
 
 

 
 
 
DYDD MAWRTH, 11 HYDREF 2022 
 
 
AT:  HOLL AELODAU’R CABINET 
 
 
YR WYF DRWY HYN YN EICH GALW I FYNYCHU CYFARFOD AML-
LEOLIAD O’R CABINET A GYNHELIR YN SIAMBR,  NEUADD Y SIR, 
CAERFYRDDIN, NEU O BELL AM 10.00 YB, DYDD LLUN, 17EG 
HYDREF, 2022 ER MWYN CYFLAWNI'R MATERION A AMLINELLIR 
AR YR AGENDA SYDD YNGHLWM 
 

Wendy Walters 

PRIF WEITHREDWR 

 

Swyddog Democrataidd: Martin S. Davies 
Ffôn (llinell uniongyrchol): 01267 224059 
E-bost: MSDavies@sirgar.gov.uk 
 

Wendy Walters Prif Weithredwr, Chief Executive, 
Neuadd y Sir, Caerfyrddin. SA31 1JP 
County Hall, Carmarthen. SA31 1JP 

 
 

 
 

Pecyn Dogfennau



 
 

   Y CABINET  
AELODAETH – 10 AELOD 

 
Cynghorydd Portffolio 

Cynghorydd Darren Price Arweinydd 

Cynghorydd Linda Evans Dirprwy Arweinydd ac Aelod Cabinet dros Gartrefi  

Cynghorydd Glynog Davie Addysg a'r Gymraeg  

Cynghorydd Ann Davies Materion Gwledig a Pholisi Cynllunio 

Cynghorydd Philip Hughes Trefniadaeth a'r Gweithlu  

Cynghorydd Gareth John Adfywio, Hamdden, Diwylliant a Thwristiaeth 

Cynghorydd Alun Lenny Adnoddau 

Cynghorydd Edward Thomas Gasanaethau Trafnidiaeth, Gwastraff a Seilwaith 

Cynghorydd Jane Tremlett Iechyd a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol 

Cynghorydd Aled Vaughan Owen Newid Hinsawdd, Datgarboneiddio a Chynaliadwyedd 

 

 



 
 

 
  

 

A G E N D A   
  

1. YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB   
 
2. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANNAU PERSONOL   
 
3. LLOFNODI FEL COFNOD CYWIR GOFNODION CYFARFOD Y 

CABINET A GYNHALWYD AR 3YDD HYDREF 2022.  
5 - 14 

 
4. CWESTIYNAU Â RHYBUDD GAN YR AELODAU   
 
5. CWESTIYNAU A RHYBYDD GAN Y CYHOEDD   
 
6. CYNLLUN CARBON SERO NET - ADRODDIAD CYNNYDDA  15 - 40 
 
7. ADRODDIAD BLYNYDDOL CYFARWYDDWR STATUDOL Y 

GWASANAETHAU CYMDEITHASOL 2021/22  
41 - 80 

 
8. CYMERADWYO STRATEGAETH DEMENTIA PARTNERIAETH 

GOFAL GORLLEWIN CYMRU  
81 - 164 

 
9. ASESIAD POBLOGAETH AC ADRODDIAD YNGHYLCH 

SEFYDLOGRWYDD Y FARCHNAD PARTNERIAETH GOFAL 
GORLLEWIN CYMRU  

165 - 468 

 
10. NODI BOD Y GRWP LLAFUR WEDI ENWEBU'R CYNGHORWYR 

MICHAEL THOMAS A DOT JONES YN LLE'R CYNGHORWYR 
SHELLY GODFREY-COLES AC ANTHONY LEYSHON AR Y 
PANEL RHIANTA CORFFORAETHOL.  

 

 
11. UNRHYW FATER ARALL Y GALL Y CADEIRYDD OHERWYDD 

AMGYLCHIADAU ARBENNIG BENDERFYNU EI YSTYRIED YN 
FATER BRYS YN UNOL AG ADRAN 100B(4)(B) O DDEDDF 
LLYWODRAETH LEOL, 1972.  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



 

CABINET 
 

DYDD LLUN, 3 HYDREF 2022  
 
 

PRESENNOL Cynghorydd   (Cadeirydd) 
 
Cynghorwyr (Yn y Siambr): 
C.A. Davies L.D. Evans G. Davies E.G. Thomas 
J. Tremlett A. Vaughan Owen   

 
Cynghorwyr (Yn rhithwir): 
P.M. Hughes G.H. John A. Lenny  
 
Hefyd yn bresennol (Yn y Siambr): 
W. Walters, Prif Weithredwr 
J. Morgan, Cyfarwyddwr y Gwasanaethau Cymunedau 
C. Moore, Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol 
G. Morgans, Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaethau Addysg a Phlant 
L.R. Jones, Pennaeth Gweinyddiaeth a'r Gyfraith 
D. Hockenhull, Rheolwr y Cyfryngau a Marchnata 
S. Rees, Cyfieithydd Ar Y Pryd 
L. Jenkins, Swyddog Cymorth y Cabinet 
C. Higginson, Media Manager 
K. Thomas, Swyddog Gwasanaethau DemocrataiddI. Jones, Pennaeth Hamdden 
H. Pugh, Pennaeth Refeniw a Chydymffurfiaeth Ariannol 
M. Evans Thomas, Prif Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd 
 
Siambr,  Neuadd Y Sir, Caerfyrddin, SA31 1JP - 10.00  - 11.00 yb 
 
1. YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB 

 
Ni chafwyd dim ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb 
  
 

2. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANNAU PERSONOL 
 
Ni ddatganwyd unrhyw fuddiannau personol. 
  
 

3. LLOFNODI FEL COFNOD CYWIR GOFNODION CYFARFOD Y CABINET A 
GYNHALWYD AR:- 
 
3.1. 18FED GORFFENNAF 2022 
 
Rhoddwyd gwybod i'r Cabinet, cyn cymeradwyo'r cofnodion uchod fel cofnod 
cywir, bod angen gwneud un gwelliant i gynnwys y Cynghorydd Dot Jones yn y 
rhestr o'r rheiny oedd yn bresennol.  
  

Tudalen 5

Eitem Rhif  3



 

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL, yn amodol ar y newid uchod, lofnodi 
cofnodion cyfarfod y Cabinet a gynhaliwyd ar 18 Gorffennaf 2022 gan eu 
bod yn gofnod cywir.  
  
 
3.2. 25AIN GORFFENNAF 2022 
 
PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL lofnodi cofnodion cyfarfod Cabinet a 
gynhaliwyd ar 25 Gorffennaf 2022 gan eu bod yn gywir.  
  
 

4. CWESTIYNAU Â RHYBUDD GAN YR AELODAU 
 
Dywedodd y Cadeirydd nad oedd dim cwestiynau â rhybudd wedi cael eu 
cyflwyno gan yr Aelodau. 
  
 
4.1. CWESTIWN GAN Y CYNGHORYDD TINA HIGGINS I’R CYNGHORYDD 

ANN DAVIES - YR AELOD CABINET DROS FATERION GWLEDIG A 
PHOLISI CYNLLUNIO 

 
A fyddech chi'n gallu rhoi'r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf i mi gan gynnwys manylion 
am y gwaith a wnaed, y canlyniadau a chamau nesaf Panel Gorchwyl a Gorffen - 
Pobl Dduon, Asiaidd a Lleiafrifoedd Ethnig. Hefyd a fyddech yn gallu anfon copi 
e-bost ataf neu roi’r ddolen i’r adroddiad gorffenedig i mi.” 
  
Ateb gan y Cynghorydd Ann Davies - Aelod Cabinet dros Faterion Gwledig 
a Pholisi Cynllunio 
  
Diolch i chi am eich cwestiwn. 
  
Fel yr ydym yn gwybod sefydlwyd y Panel Gorchwyl a Gorffen - Pobl Dduon, 
Asiaidd a Lleiafrifoedd Ethnig mewn ymateb i ddau Rybudd o Gynnig a ddaeth 
gerbron y Cyngor. Cwmpas gwaith cyfyngedig oedd gan y panel, ac mae 
rhywfaint ohono wedi'i gwblhau ac mae rhywfaint yn o broses o gael ei gwblhau.  
  
O ran y gwaith sydd eisoes wedi'i wneud, cafodd y Panel, y Grŵp Gorchwyl a 
Gorffen - Pobl Dduon, Asiaidd a Lleiafrifoedd Ethnig, ei gyfarfod diwethaf yn 
ystod Haf 2021, dros flwyddyn yn ôl ac, ar yr adeg honno, roedd y grŵp wedi 
cytuno ar gyfres o argymhellion ac roedd wrthi'n trefnu'r adroddiad drafft gyda'r 
bwriad o'i gyflwyno i'r Cabinet ar ddiwedd y flwyddyn honno.  
  
Yn anffodus, roedd oedi am gyfnod byr a bu'n rhaid gohirio'r adroddiad tan ar ôl 
dechrau'r flwyddyn. Oherwydd dechrau'r cyfnod cyn-etholiadol ym mis Mawrth, 
cadwyd yr adroddiad ac roedd gwaith y Panel i'w ystyried yn y tymor newydd 
hwn.  
  
Fel mater o broses, mae pob gweinyddiaeth yn adolygu'r Panelau Ymgynghorol 
sydd ar gael iddynt ac fel rhan o'r adroddiad a ddaeth gerbron y Cabinet ym mis 
Gorffennaf eleni cytunwyd na fyddai'r Cabinet yn gofyn i'r Panel ailymgynnull 
ond, hoffai weld yr adroddiad a bydd yr adroddiad hwn yn destun y broses 

Tudalen 6



 

ddemocrataidd yn fuan iawn ac rwy'n hyderus iawn y byddaf yn ei gyflwyno i'r 
Cabinet hwn dros y mis neu ddau nesaf. 
  
Dylwn dynnu sylw at y ffaith bod yr adroddiad interim gan y panel wedi dod 
gerbron y Cabinet ym mis Rhagfyr 2020 a chytunwyd ar yr argymhellion hynny yn 
yr adroddiad hwnnw a chawsant eu rhoi ar waith ychydig amser yn ôl. Felly, mae 
rhywfaint o'r gwaith wedi'i gwblhau eisoes.   
  
O ran y canlyniadau, mae rhai o'r argymhellion o'r adroddiad wedi eu cynnwys yn 
Natganiad Gweledigaeth y weinyddiaeth hon, ac mae'r canlyniadau yn cyfeirio at 
recriwtio a chynrychiolaeth a pharhau â'r ymgyrch i sicrhau bod y sefydliad yn 
gynhwysol ac yn amrywiol. Mae rhai o'r argymhellion hefyd wedi cael eu cynnwys 
gyda newidiadau mewn polisi cenedlaethol.  
  
Ar lefel genedlaethol, rydym wedi gweld adroddiad y Gweithgor Cymunedau, 
Cyfraniadau a Chynefin Pobl Dduon, Asiaidd a Lleiafrifoedd Ethnig (BAME) yn y 
Cwricwlwm Newydd yn cael ei gyhoeddi sydd eisoes wedi achosi newidiadau i 
Hanes Pobl Dduon a ddysgir yng nghwricwlwm ysgolion.  
  
Rydym hefyd wedi gweld 'Cynllun Gweithredu Cymru Wrth-hiliol' yn cael ei 
gyhoeddi sy'n nodi'r camau angenrheidiol dros y ddwy flynedd nesaf i gyflawni'r 
weledigaeth hirdymor o fod yn genedl wrth-hiliol. Mae mynd i'r afael â hiliaeth yn 
rhan o'r Cytundeb Cydweithio rhwng Llywodraeth Cymru a Phlaid Cymru ac 
rydym yn cefnogi'r weledigaeth hon yn llwyr.  
  
Fel y soniais, y cam nesaf yw cyhoeddi'r adroddiad terfynol hwn, ac rwy'n edrych 
ymlaen yn fawr at gyflwyno'r Cynllun i'r Cabinet dros y ddau fis nesaf.   
  
Cwestiwn Atodol gan y Cynghorydd Tina Higgins 
  
Mae'n braf clywed am y gwaith sydd wedi cael ei wneud a diolch i ti Ann am yr 
ateb y bore yma. Mae'n wych clywed beth sydd wedi ei gyflawni'n barod. Hoffwn 
ofyn a fydd yr adroddiad yn cael ei gyflwyno o'r Cyngor llawn?  
  
Ateb gan y Cynghorydd Ann Davies - Aelod Cabinet dros Faterion Gwledig 
a Pholisi Cynllunio 
  
Bydd, diolch Tina. Y broses yw y bydd yn dod gerbron y Cabinet ac yna'n cael ei 
gyflwyno i'r Cyngor llawn. Felly, ni fydd yn mynd i'r Pwyllgor Craffu gan fod y 
Grŵp Gorchwyl a Gorffen wedi dod o'r Cabinet felly, yn syth i'r Cabinet ac yn syth 
i'r Cyngor llawn  
  
 

5. CWESTIYNAU A RHYBYDD GAN Y CYHOEDD 
 
Dywedodd y Cadeirydd nad oedd dim cwestiynau wedi dod i law gan y cyhoedd. 
  
 

6. RHAGOLWG CYLLIDEB REFENIW 
 
Bu'r Cabinet yn ystyried adroddiad ar Ragolwg Cyllideb Refeniw y Cyngor ar ôl i'r 
Cyngor gytuno ar ei Gynllun Ariannol Tymor Canolig ym mis Mawrth 2022 yn 

Tudalen 7



 

seiliedig ar amcangyfrifon ac ymrwymiadau hysbys bryd hynny a chafodd ei lunio 
yng nghyd-destun setliad ariannol Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer 2022/23, yn 
cynnwys setliadau a blynyddoedd 2 a 3 o'r cynllun a'r amcangyfrifon ar gyfer 
mewnbynnau allweddol eraill. Er bod y risg o ran chwyddiant wedi'i nodi ar adeg 
pennu'r gyllideb a barnwyd mai'r ansicrwydd mwyaf bryd hynny oedd yr effaith 
anhysbys, costau parhaus a llai o incwm oherwydd pandemig Covid-19, nododd 
y Cabinet, yn dilyn hynny, y bu nifer o newidiadau sylweddol i'r amgylchedd 
allanol a fyddai'n cael effaith sylweddol ar y gyllideb yn y dyfodol h.y:- 
  

       Chwyddiant cyffredinol sylweddol uwch, y disgwylid iddo bara'n hirach 
hefyd, gan arwain at bwysau costau byw parhaus;  

       Cynnydd mawr mewn prisiau ynni sy'n effeithio ar gostau cludo yn ogystal 
â biliau gwresogi a thrydan ar gyfer aelwydydd a busnesau;  

       Ymateb cryf gan yr undebau cenedlaethol ynghylch codiadau cyflog; 
       Llacio cyfyngiadau iechyd cyhoeddus Covid 19 yn llawn.  

Dywedodd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Adnoddau wrth y Cabinet, gan ystyried y rhain, 
a phwysau cyllidebol eraill, fod yr adroddiad yn manylu ar nifer o ragdybiaethau 
allweddol i'w hystyried a fyddai'n llunio datblygiad cyllideb y Cyngor. Fodd 
bynnag, o ystyried yr ansicrwydd mawr ar hyn o bryd o ran y pwysau ar gyllideb y 
cyngor gan faterion megis costau tanwydd uwch a chodiadau cyflog, roedd y dull 
safonol o ddatblygu cyllideb wedi'i ehangu i gynnwys y sefyllfa orau posib yn 
ogystal â'r sefyllfa sylfaenol.  
  
Nododd y Cabinet, hyd yn oed yn y sefyllfa orau posib, y cyfrifwyd y byddai 
angen o leiaf £6.1 miliwn o doriadau i'r gyllideb ar gyfer y flwyddyn ariannol 
nesaf, sef £2 filiwn yn fwy na'r hyn a ragwelwyd. O dan y sefyllfa sylfaenol, 
amcangyfrifwyd bod y diffyg yn codi i bron i £19 miliwn, gan dybio bod yr 
arbedion o £3.9m a gynlluniwyd eisoes yn cael eu cyflawni. Yn y cyd-destun 
hwnnw, roedd yn bwysig i'r Cyngor ganolbwyntio ar y flwyddyn ariannol nesaf o 
ystyried maint yr her. Er na fyddai'r darlun cyflawn yn debygol o fod yn glir nes y 
ceir yr hysbysiad am y setliad ariannol drafft gan Lywodraeth Cymru, ac ni 
ddisgwylir hynny tan fis Rhagfyr, nodwyd ei bod yn bwysig cydnabod bod llawer 
o'r pwysau yr oedd Sir Gaerfyrddin yn eu hwynebu ar hyn o bryd nid yn unig y tu 
hwnt i'w rheolaeth - megis cyflog staff a gytunir yn genedlaethol a'r cyflog byw 
sylfaenol a osodir yn allanol - ond eu bod hefyd yn faterion yr oedd pob 
Awdurdod Lleol ar draws y wlad yn eu hwynebu hefyd.  
  
Dywedodd yr Arweinydd, fel yr amlinellir uchod, fod pob awdurdod lleol yng 
Nghymru yn wynebu'r pwysau cyllidebol difrifol a, gan gofio hynny, bod y 
materion wedi'u trafod mewn cyfarfod diweddar Cymdeithas Llywodraeth Leol 
Cymru, a fynychwyd gan Weinidog Cyllid Llywodraeth Cymru. Roedd y 
Gymdeithas wedi pwysleisio y byddai'r flwyddyn ariannol nesaf yn heriol iawn ac 
y byddai angen gwneud toriadau difrifol heb gyllid ychwanegol i fynd i'r afael â'r 
pwysau cyllidebol. Felly, roedd yn bwysig bod yr awdurdod yn cydweithio ag 
Awdurdodau Lleol eraill yng Nghymru i lobïo Llywodraeth Cymru a Llywodraeth y 
DU ar y mater.  
  
PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL  
  
6.1 derbyn y rhagolwg cyllidebol cychwynnol; 
6.2 cymeradwyo'r dull arfaethedig o glustnodi'r arbedion 

Tudalen 8



 

angenrheidiol; 
6.3 nodi'r dull arfaethedig o ymgynghori ynghylch y gyllideb. 
  
  
 

7. ADRODDIAD MONITRO CYLLIDEB REFENIW Y CYNGOR 
 
Bu'r Cabinet yn ystyried adroddiad monitro'r gyllideb refeniw a oedd yn rhoi'r 
wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am y sefyllfa gyllidebol fel yr oedd ar 30 Mehefin 2022, o 
ran 2022/2023.   
Yn gyffredinol, roedd yr adroddiad monitro yn rhagweld gorwariant ar gyfer y 
flwyddyn ar lefel adrannol o £4,735k gan ragweld gorwariant o £4,767k ar 
gyllideb refeniw net yr Awdurdod. Ar lefel uchel, roedd hyn o ganlyniad i gyfuniad 
o'r canlynol: 
  

    Setliadau cyflog a drafodir yn genedlaethol (heb eu penderfynu hyd yn 
hyn) ar lefelau llawer uwch na'r hyn a gyllidebwyd, ac nid yw cyllid 
ychwanegol gan y llywodraeth ar gyfer hyn yn hysbys ar hyn o bryd. 
Amcangyfrifon lefel uchel yw y gallai hynny fod yn £1.7m yn uwch na'r 
gyllideb;  

    Gorwariant mewn meysydd gwasanaeth lle’r oedd toriadau i'r gyllideb 
wedi'u rhoi ar waith, ond bod oedi o ran cyflawni cynnydd, er enghraifft 
ym maes Anableddau Dysgu;  

    Gostyngiad parhaus mewn incwm masnachol, gan gynnwys meysydd 
parcio, canolfannau hamdden a phrydau ysgol;   

    Tanwariant yr arian cyfalaf oherwydd oedi o ran cynlluniau a llai o angen i 
fenthyca.  

  
Nodwyd bod yr Awdurdod, fel rhan o broses pennu cyllideb 2022/23, wedi cytuno 
ar gyllideb wrth gefn gwerth £3m yn ystod y flwyddyn a gedwir yn ganolog ar hyn 
o bryd ac a oedd yn gwrthbwyso'n rhannol y pwysau cyffredinol a nodwyd uchod.  
  
Roedd y Cyfrif Refeniw Tai yn rhagweld gorwariant o £511k ar gyfer 2022/23, a 
fyddai'n cael ei ariannu drwy gyfraniad o gronfeydd wrth gefn. Darparwyd 
manylion am hyn yn Atodiad B a oedd ynghlwm i'r adroddiad. Byddai hynny'n 
cael ei adolygu wrth i'r materion sylweddol a nodwyd ddod yn gliriach o safbwynt 
ariannol. Nodwyd hefyd mai'r Cyfrif Refeniw Tai fyddai'n ariannu'n uniongyrchol y 
cynigion cyflog a drafodir yn genedlaethol (heb eu penderfynu hyd yn hyn) ar 
lefelau llawer uwch na'r hyn a gyllidebwyd a allai, ar lefel uchel, fod £0.5m yn fwy 
na'r hyn a gyllidebwyd.  

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL: 

7.1     Derbyn adroddiad monitro'r gyllideb, a nodi'r sefyllfa gyllidebol a'r 
camau unioni priodol a gymerwyd.  

7.2     O ran gorwariant sylweddol ar feysydd penodol o'r gyllideb, bydd y 
Prif Swyddogion a'r Penaethiaid Gwasanaeth yn adolygu'n feirniadol 
yr opsiynau sydd ar gael iddynt er mwyn mynd i'r afael â'r effaith 
barhaus.  

  

Tudalen 9



 

 
8. DIWEDDARU RHAGLEN GYFALAF 2022/23 

 
Cafodd y Cabinet adroddiad a oedd yn amlinellu'r sefyllfa gyllidebol ddiweddaraf 
ar gyfer rhaglen gyfalaf 2022/23, fel yr oedd ar 30 Mehefin 2022 gan fanylu ar y 
prosiectau newydd i'w nodi a'u cymeradwyo gan y Cabinet. Nodwyd bod 
cyfanswm y gwariant cyfalaf ar gyfer 2022/23 yn £265m gros a £148m net ar ôl 
ystyried dyraniadau grant a llithriadau 
  
Dywedwyd y rhagwelwyd gwariant net adrannol o £140,696k o gymharu â 
chyllideb net weithredol o £147,962k gan roi -£7,266k o amrywiant.  
  
Roedd y gyllideb net yn cynnwys rhaglenni cyfalaf gwreiddiol y Cyfrif Refeniw Tai 
a'r Gronfa Gyffredinol a gymeradwywyd gan y Cyngor ar 2 Mawrth, 2022 a 
llithriad o 2021/22. Nodwyd bod rhai cyllidebau hefyd wedi cael eu diwygio yn 
unol â’r gwahaniaethau yn y dyraniadau grant o gymharu â'r dyraniadau 
disgwyliedig pan gafodd y rhaglen ei chymeradwyo, a grantiau newydd a 
dderbyniwyd yn ystod y flwyddyn hyd yma.  
  
Nodwyd bod Atodiad B yn manylu ar y prif amrywiannau ym mhob adran. 
  
PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL: 
  
11.1   bod adroddiad diweddaru'r rhaglen gyfalaf 2022/23 yn cael ei 
dderbyn; 
11.2. bod y prosiectau newydd, fel yr oeddent yn yr adroddiad, yn cael eu 

nodi a'u cytuno. 
  
  
 

9. ADRODDIAD CHWARTEROL YNGYLCH RHEOLI'R TRYSORLYS A 
DANGOSYDD DARBODAETH EBRILL 1AF 2022 I MEHEFIN 30AIN 2022. 
 
Bu'r Cabinet yn ystyried adroddiad diweddaru ar weithgareddau rheoli'r trysorlys 
a'r dangosyddion darbodus ar gyfer y cyfnod rhwng 1 Ebrill 2022 a Mehefin 2022.  
  
PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL fod yr Adroddiad diweddaru ynghylch y 
Dangosyddion Darbodaeth a Rheoli'r Trysorlys rhwng 1 Ebrill 2022 a 30 
Mehefin 2022 yn cael ei gymeradwyo.  
  
 

10. COSTAU BYW 
 
Bu'r Cabinet yn ystyried adroddiad ar Gynllun Cymorth Costau Byw Llywodraeth 
Cymru a oedd yn cynnwys cynnig mewn perthynas â'r Cynllun Disgresiynol 
cysylltiedig, y gallai'r awdurdod lleol benderfynu ei ddefnyddio'n lleol.  
  
Nodwyd bod cynllun Llywodraeth Cymru yn cynnwys £152M i ddarparu taliad 
costau byw o £150 i aelwydydd cymwys (y prif gynllun) ynghyd â £25M i 
ddarparu cymorth disgresiynol at ddibenion eraill yn ymwneud â chostau byw, a 
bwriad y ddau oedd darparu cymorth ar unwaith wrth i Gymru adfer yn sgil y 

Tudalen 10



 

pandemig a helpu aelwydydd i ddelio ag effaith costau ynni a chostau eraill sy'n 
cynyddu.  
  
Gall pob awdurdod lleol ddefnyddio cyllid y Cynllun Disgresiynol i helpu 
aelwydydd y mae'n ystyried bod angen cymorth arnynt gyda'u costau byw a 
dyrannwyd £1.556 miliwn i Sir Gaerfyrddin i wario ar gynllun disgresiynol.  
  
Rhoddwyd gwybod i'r Cabinet, mewn perthynas â'r fenter ariannol a nodir yn 
nhabl 12 yn yr adroddiad, a oedd i fod i gael ei hariannu gan danwariant sydd ar 
gael o'r prif gynllun, fod canllawiau diweddar gan y llywodraeth yn golygu y 
rhagwelwyd bellach na fyddai unrhyw danwariant sylweddol o'r prif gynllun. O 
ganlyniad, byddai angen ailedrych ar y cynnig terfynol hwnnw a byddai'r gwaith o 
ddyrannu unrhyw gyllid yn cael ei wneud gan yr Aelod Cabinet dros Adnoddau a'r 
Cyfarwyddwr Adnoddau Corfforaethol o dan eu pwerau dirprwyedig cyn gynted 
ag yr oedd safbwynt Llywodraeth Cymru wedi'i egluro.  
  
PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL 
10.1 Nodi statws presennol y cynllun gorfodol;  
10.2 Cymeradwyo'r Cynllun Disgresiynol Costau Byw  
10.3 Rhoi awdurdod dirprwyedig i Gyfarwyddwr y Gwasanaethau 

Corfforaethol, mewn ymgynghoriad â'r Aelod Cabinet dros 
Adnoddau, i ddefnyddio unrhyw danwariant / trosglwyddiadau 
ariannol 

  
  
 

11. ADRODDIAD GRŴP GORCHWYL A GORFFEN Y PWYLLGOR CRAFFU 
ADDYSG A PHLANT: Y BROSES YMGYNGHORI YNGHYLCH 
TREFNIADAETH YSGOLION 
 
Bu'r Cabinet yn ystyried adroddiad ar ganfyddiadau Grŵp Gorchwyl a Gorffen y 
Pwyllgor Craffu - Addysg a Phlant, a sefydlwyd i gynnal adolygiad o'r broses 
ymgynghori gyfredol ar gyfer newidiadau trefniadaeth ysgolion, gan gynnwys 
newidiadau i'r ddarpariaeth ieithyddol a chau ysgolion. 
  
Nodwyd bod y Grŵp Gorchwyl a Gorffen, gan roi sylw i'r ffaith bod yr Adran 
Addysg a Phlant yn cynnal adolygiad o Gynllun Strategol y Gymraeg Mewn 
Addysg a'i Rhaglen Moderneiddio Addysg a fydd yn destun ymgynghoriad 
cyhoeddus, wedi llunio Adroddiad Argymhellion Interim a gafodd ei gymeradwyo 
gan y Cabinet ar 27 Medi 2021. Yn dilyn hynny, roedd y Grŵp wedi cyfarfod tair 
gwaith ac wedi llunio nifer o amodau ychwanegol i'r Cabinet eu hystyried, fel y 
manylir yn yr adroddiad.  
  
PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL gymeradwyo Adroddiad ac Argymhellion 
Grŵp Gorchwyl a Gorffen y Pwyllgor Craffu - Addysg a Phlant ar y Broses 
Ymgynghori ar gyfer newidiadau trefniadaeth ysgolion.  
  
  
 

12. LLYTHYR BLYNYDDOL YR OMBWDSMON 2021/2022 CYNGOR SIR 
CAERFYRDDIN 
 

Tudalen 11



 

Bu'r Cabinet yn ystyried Llythyr Blynyddol yr Ombwdsmon 2021/2022 ynghyd â'r 
daflen ffeithiau a'r data cysylltiedig.  
  
Nodwyd bod Ombwdsmon Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru yn rhoi llythyr i bob 
Awdurdod Lleol yng Nghymru bob blwyddyn ar ffurf taflen ffeithiau ynghyd â'r 
data cysylltiedig i'w helpu i adolygu perfformiad.  
  
PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL dderbyn Llythyr Blynyddol Ombwdsmon 
Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru 2021/22 (y Llythyr). 
  
 

13. UNRHYW FATER ARALL Y GALL Y CADEIRYDD OHERWYDD 
AMGYLCHIADAU ARBENNIG BENDERFYNU EI YSTYRIED YN FATER BRYS 
YN UNOL AG ADRAN 100B(4)(B) O DDEDDF LLYWODRAETH LEOL, 1972. 
 
Dywedodd y Cadeirydd nad oedd unrhyw eitemau eraill o fater brys. 
  
 

14. GORCHYMYN I'R CYHOEDD ADAEL Y CYFARFOD 
 
PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL, yn unol â Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972, 
fel y'i newidiwyd gan Orchymyn Llywodraeth Leol (Mynediad at Wybodaeth) 
(Amrywio) (Cymru) 2007, orchymyn i'r cyhoedd adael y cyfarfod tra oedd yr 
eitemau canlynol yn cael eu hystyried, gan fod yr adroddiadau'n cynnwys 
gwybodaeth eithriedig fel y'i diffiniwyd ym mharagraff 14 o Ran 4 o Atodlen 
12A i'r Ddeddf. 
  
  
 

15. ADLINIO LLWYBR ARFORDIROL Y MILENIWM YM MORFA BACAS, Y 
BYNEA, LLANELLI 
 
Ar ôl cynnal prawf budd y cyhoedd PENDERFYNWYD, yn unol â'r Ddeddf y 
cyfeiriwyd ati yng nghofnod rhif 14 uchod, beidio â chyhoeddi cynnwys yr 
adroddiad gan ei fod yn cynnwys gwybodaeth eithriedig am faterion 
ariannol neu faterion busnes unigolyn penodol (gan gynnwys yr Awdurdod 
oedd yn meddu ar y wybodaeth honno) (Paragraff 14 o Ran 4 o Atodlen 12A 
i'r Ddeddf). Roedd prawf budd y cyhoedd mewn perthynas â'r adroddiad 
hwn yn drech na'r budd i'r cyhoedd o ran datgelu'r wybodaeth a geir ynddo 
oherwydd byddai datgelu'r wybodaeth hon yn tanseilio sefyllfa'r Cyngor o 
ran y broses gaffael ac yn anfanteisiol i'r contractwr a ffefrir yn y farchnad 
ehangach.  
  
Bu'r Cabinet yn ystyried adroddiad oedd yn darparu gwybodaeth am y bwriad i 
adlinio Llwybr Arfordirol y Mileniwm ym Morfa Bacas, y Bynea, Llanelli.  
  
PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL gymeradwyo'r adroddiad a'r 
argymhellion y manylwyd arnynt.  
  
  
 
 

Tudalen 12



 

 
 
 

 
________________________    __________________ 
CHAIR       DATE 
 

Tudalen 13



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



 
 

  

CABINET  
17HYDREF 2022 

CYNLLUN CARBON SERO NET - ADRODDIAD 
CYNNYDDA 

Y Pwrpas:  
Cymeradwyo'r Cynllun Carbon Sero-net drafft - Adroddiad Cynnydd i'w gyfeirio at Rag-gyfarfod 
y Cabinet. 

Yr argymhellion / penderfyniadau allweddol sydd eu hangen: 
ARGYMHELLIR: 

(1) bod y Cynllun Carbon Sero Net - Adroddiad Cynnydd yn cael ei gymeradwyo i'w gyfeirio at 
Rag-gyfarfod y Cabinet, a 

(2) bod awdurdod dirprwyedig yn cael ei roi i Swyddogion wneud addasiadau teipio neu ffeithiol 
yn ôl yr angen, i wella eglurder a chywirdeb y Cynllun Carbon Sero Net - Adroddiad Cynnydd  

Y Rhesymau:  
Cymeradwywyd y Cynllun Carbon Sero Net gan y Cyngor Sir ar 12 Chwefror 2020.  

Cyflwynir yr adroddiad drafft amgaeedig yn unol â Cham Gweithredu NZC-28 o'r Cynllun sy'n 
ei gwneud yn ofynnol i adroddiadau perfformiad blynyddol ar gynnydd tuag at ddod yn 
awdurdod lleol carbon sero net erbyn 2030 gael eu cyhoeddi'n flynyddol. 

Angen i’r Cabinet wneud penderfyniad                    OES  

Angen i’r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad NAC OES 
 
 
 

YR AELOD CABINET SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:  

Y Cynghorydd Aled Vaughan Owen  Aelod Cabinet dros Newid Hinsawdd, Datgarboneiddio a 
Chynaliadwyedd 

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth 

Yr Amgylchedd  

Rhodri Griffiths  

Awdur yr Adroddiad: 

Kendal Davies 

Swydd: 

 

Pennaeth Lle a Chynaliadwyedd 

Rheolwr Datblygu Cynaliadwy 

 

 

rdgriffiths@sirgar.gov.uk  

 

01267 228351 | 5351 

jkdavies@sirgar.gov.uk 

 

 

Tudalen 15

Eitem Rhif  6

mailto:rdgriffiths@carmarthenshire.gov.uk
mailto:jkdavies@carmarthenshire.gov.uk


 
 

  

 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
CABINET  

17TH OCTOBER  2022 
 

Net Zero Carbon Plan – Progress Report 
Overview 
 
1. The County Council approved a Net Zero Carbon (NZC) Plan on 12th February 2020. 

  
2. Action NZC-28 of this NZC Plan requires performance reports on progress towards 

becoming a net zero carbon local authority by 2030 to be published annually. 
 

3. The first Progress Report (March 2021) reflected on our 2019/20 carbon emissions. 
 

4. This second Progress Report reflects on our 2020/21 carbon emissions.  
 

5. In 2020/21, our overall carbon footprint reduced by 14.1% compared to 2019/20, with all 
four areas showing a reduction in both consumption and carbon emissions i.e., Non-
Domestic Buildings; Street Lighting; Fleet Mileage; and Business Mileage.  
 

6. Whilst these reductions are in part attributable to the impact of COVID-19, the continuation 
of staff home working, together with changes in working practices such as an increased use 
of video conference facilities and online communication, should see a lasting reduction in 
carbon emissions in the longer term. 

 
7. This Progress Report is a comparatively focused document as we will be publishing a 

revised NZC Plan by 31st March 2023 to incorporate recent NZC-related developments and 
guidance, plus the declaration of a Nature Emergency by the County Council on 9th  
February 2022. 

 
8. Some of our wider actions that contribute towards addressing the climate emergency are 

being collated in advance of the Pre-Cabinet meeting. 
 
Welsh Public Sector Net Zero Carbon Reporting Guide 
 
9. The Welsh Public Sector Net Zero Carbon Reporting Guide (May 2021) introduces a 

voluntary annual reporting framework across the Welsh public sector to help monitor 
progress towards achieving Welsh Government’s ambition for a carbon neutral public sector 
by 2030.  
 

 

Tudalen 16



 
 

  

 
10. As our NZC Plan (February 2020) predates this Reporting Guide, there are differences in 

the reporting  methodologies. This has the consequence of increasing our 2019/20 reported 
emissions from 20,477 tCO2e to 28,547 tCO2e. This total will further increase as we are 
awaiting revised guidance from Welsh Government on how to calculate emissions arising 
from staff commuting. 
 

11. This implication was reported to the Pre-Cabinet meeting on 4th October 2021 with the 
following recommendations agreed: 
 
• Report annual emissions to Welsh Government in accordance with the Reporting Guide, 

and 
• Continue with the existing scope of our NZC commitment but adopt the corresponding 

methodologies prescribed in the Reporting Guide. 
 

Recommendations 

12. It is RECOMMENDED that: 
 

(1) the draft Net Zero Carbon Plan – Progress Report be approved for referral to Pre-Cabinet, and 
(2) delegated authority be granted to Officers to make typographical or factual amendments 

as necessary to improve the clarity and accuracy of the Net Zero Carbon Plan – Progress 
Report 

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? YES  

 
IMPLICATIONS 

 

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this 
report: 
Signed:                  Rhodri Griffiths, Head of Place and Sustainability  

Policy, Crime 
& Disorder 
and 
Equalities 
 

Lega  Finance  ICT  Risk 
Management 
Issues  

Staffing 
Implications 

Physical 
Assets   

None None None None None None None 

 

Tudalen 17



 
 

  

CONSULTATIONS 
I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below 
Signed:       Rhodri Griffiths, Head of Place and Sustainability                                                 
 

 
1. Scrutiny Committee request for pre-determination  YES 
 
Scrutiny Committee  Place, Sustainability & Climate Change  
Date the report was considered:- 4th October, 2022 
Scrutiny Committee Outcome/Recommendations:- 
Resolved to recommend to Cabinet that the Net Zero Carbon (NZC) Plan be endorsed 
and that the delegated authority be given to Officers.  

 
2.Local Member(s) N/A 
3.Community / Town Council N/A 
4.Relevant Partners N/A 
5.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations N/A 
CABINET MEMBER PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER(S) AWARE/CONSULTED  
 

YES 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 

List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 

THERE ARE NONE 

 

 

Tudalen 18



Page 1 of 21 
 

 

Net Zero Carbon Plan 
Progress Report 

 
September 

2022 

   
Contents 
 
Section 

 
 

 
 

Page 
1 Context 1 
 
2 

 
Introduction 

 
1 

 
3 

 
Summary of Progress – Carbon Footprint 

 
3 

   
 Carbon Footprint:  
4.1 Non-Domestic Buildings 6 
4.2 Street Lighting 9 
4.3 Fleet Mileage 10 
4.4 Business Mileage 11 
 
5 

 
Renewable Energy Generation + Carbon Offsetting 

 
12 

 
 

 
Collaboration: 

 
 

6.1 Working with Welsh Government 14 
6.2 Working with Carmarthenshire Public Services Board / Swansea 

Bay City Deal partners 
15 

6.3 Collaboration with experts from the private sector and 3rd sectors 16 
 
7 

 
Integration and Communication 

 
17 

   
Appendix 1 Summary of Progress Against Actions in NZC Plan 19 
 
Appendix 2 

 
Climate Emergency  

 
21 

 

 

1. Context 
 

Recent reports by the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change have painted a bleak picture 

of the present, with potentially devastating effects in the future - ‘now or never’ if world is to stave 

off climate disaster (April 2022). 

 

 

2. Introduction 
      
The County Council approved a Net Zero Carbon (NZC) Plan on 12th February 2020.  

Action NZC-28 of this Plan requires performance reports on progress towards becoming a net 

zero carbon local authority by 2030 to be published annually. 

The first Progress Report (March 2021) reflected on our 2019/20 carbon emissions. 

Tudalen 19

https://www.ipcc.ch/
https://www.theguardian.com/environment/2022/apr/04/ipcc-report-now-or-never-if-world-stave-off-climate-disaster
https://www.theguardian.com/environment/2022/apr/04/ipcc-report-now-or-never-if-world-stave-off-climate-disaster
https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/1223704/gd6245-netzerocarbon-plan3.pdf
http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&ved=2ahUKEwj6_Jv3z9_kAhVx5OAKHV5sAIAQjRx6BAgBEAQ&url=http://llanellionline.news/nest-wales-events-carmarthenshire-next-weeks/ccc-logo/&psig=AOvVaw2P8ObWRlnvDe5K04Sxh7E_&ust=1569076586542209


Page 2 of 21 
 

This second Progress Report reflects on our 2020/21 carbon emissions and should be read in 

conjunction with the earlier NZC documents.  

Much has happened in the last twelve months in relation to climate change, notably the UN 

Climate Change Conference (COP26) in Glasgow (November 2021), plus the publication of 

numerous guidance documents, including: 

• Welsh Public Sector Net Zero Carbon Reporting Guide (May 2021) 

• Net zero carbon status by 2030: A route map for decarbonisation across the Welsh public sector (July 2021) 

• Welsh Local Government Decarbonisation Planning: Review (September 2021) 

• Net Zero Wales Carbon Budget 2 (2021-25) (October 2021) 

Audit Wales also published Public Sector Readiness for Net Zero Carbon by 2030 (July 2022) 

based on a baseline review completed by all public bodies pre-Christmas 2021. 

 

 

COVID-19 has continued to present many challenges 

since March 2020, which have been further exasperated 

by Brexit, escalating energy costs, and war in the 

Ukraine. Notwithstanding this, considerable progress 

has been made on delivering the actions in our NZC 

Plan. 

 
Our NZC Plan mirrors the Notice of Motion unanimously agreed by County Council on 20th 

February 2019 to declare a Climate Emergency and to become a NZC local authority by 2030. 

The Plan is a living document, and whilst we have consciously adopted a pragmatic approach 

that focuses on measurable, operational issues within our control, it also recognises some of the 

wider actions that are taking place across the Council that contribute towards addressing the 

climate emergency. 

 

This second NZC Plan Progress Report is a comparatively focused document as we will be 

publishing a revised NZC Plan by 31st March 2023. This will incorporate recent NZC-related 

developments and guidance, plus the Nature Emergency declared by County Council on 9th 

February 2022 (Agenda Item 10.2). 

  

Tudalen 20

https://ukcop26.org/
https://ukcop26.org/
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2021-05/welsh-public-sector-net-zero-reporting-guide_1.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2021-07/a-route-map-for-decarbonisation-across-the-welsh-public-sector.pdf
https://www.wlga.wales/SharedFiles/Download.aspx?pageid=62&mid=665&fileid=3262
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2021-10/net-zero-wales-carbon-budget-2-2021-25.pdf
https://www.audit.wales/sites/default/files/publications/Public%20Sector%20Readiness%20for%20Net%20Zero%20Carbon%20by%202030%20-%20English_0.pdf
https://democracy.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=155&MId=5246&Ver=4


Page 3 of 21 
 

3. Summary of Progress – Carbon Footprint 
 

Carbon Footprint 
2018/19  2019/20  2020/21  2020/21 vs 2019/20  

      
Results  Progress  % change  

      
Non-Domestic Buildings 

     
 

Consumption (kWh)  64,857,362  66,407,242  59,808,497 -6,598,745 Improved -9.9% 
     

 

Carbon Emissions (tCO2e)  14,822  14,443  12,581 -1,862 Improved -12.9% 
      

Street Lighting  
      

Consumption (kWh)  4,202,381  3,925,149  3,875,843  -49,306 Improved -1.3% 
      

Carbon Emissions (tCO2e)  1,291  1,088  981  -107 Improved -9.8% 
      

Fleet Mileage  
      

Mileage (Miles)  5,293,249  5,154,668  4,427,070  -727,598 Improved -14.1% 
      

Diesel Used (litres)  1,434,583  1,419,336  1,267,437  -151,899 Improved -10.7% 
      

Carbon Emissions (tCO2e)  3,856  3,814  3,407  -407 Improved -10.7% 
      

Business Mileage 
      

Mileage (Miles)  3,846,615  3,971,513  2,251,986  -1,719,527 Improved -43.3% 
      

Carbon Emissions (tCO2e)  1,118  1,132  621  -511 Improved -45.1% 
      

TOTAL  
      

Consumption (kWh)  69,059,743  70,332,391  63,684,340 -6,648,051 Improved -9.5% 
      

Mileage (miles)  8,829,043  9,126,181  6,679,056 -2,447,125 Improved -26.8% 
      

Carbon Emissions (tCO2e)  21,087  20,477  17,590 -2,887 Improved -14.1% 
      

 

In 2020/21, our overall carbon footprint reduced by 14.1% compared to 2019/20, with all four 

areas showing a reduction in both consumption and carbon emissions i.e., Non-Domestic 

Buildings; Street Lighting; Fleet Mileage; and Business Mileage.  

Whilst these reductions are in part attributable to the impact of COVID-19, the continuation of 

staff home working, together with changes in working practices such as an increased use of 

video conference facilities and online communication, should see a lasting reduction in carbon 

emissions in the longer term. 

  

Tudalen 21



Page 4 of 21 
 

 

 

The Welsh Public Sector Net Zero Carbon 

Reporting Guide (May 2021) introduced a 

voluntary annual reporting process. This aims to 

provide a consistent reporting framework across 

the Welsh public sector to help monitor progress 

towards achieving Welsh Government’s ambition for a carbon neutral public sector by 2030. 

Our NZC Plan (February 2020) predates this Reporting Guide; consequently, there are 

differences in the reporting  methodologies.  

Total carbon emissions reported under our NZC Plan 

effectively equate to the Reporting Guide’s 

‘Operational’ emissions which additionally include: 

• Landfill of municipal waste;  
• Well-to-Tank emissions; and,  
• Water supply & treatment 

  2019/20 tCO2e 

Emissions Our NZC 
Plan 

Reporting 
Guide 

Operational 20,477 28,547 

Supply Chain   76,894 
Land Use   -697 
Total 20,477 104,744 

 

 

Note: A Well-to-Tank emissions factor, also known as upstream or indirect emissions, is an average of all the GHG [Greenhouse Gas] emissions released into the 
atmosphere from the production, processing and delivery of a fuel or energy vector. 

  

Progress Change

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2020/21 vs 2019/20
kWh 72,527,266 68,564,902 69,059,743 70,332,391 63,684,340 -6,648,051 -9.5%
Miles 9,313,790 9,069,875 8,829,043 9,126,181 6,679,056 -2,447,125 -26.8%
tCO2e 26,542 23,143 21,087 20,477 17,590 -2,887 -14.1%

0

5000

10000

15000

20000

25000

30000

2016/17
2017/18

2018/19

2019/20

2020/21

Ca
rb

on
em

iss
io

ns
(t

CO
2e

)

Year

2016/17 – 2020/21

-34% tCO 2 e

Tudalen 22

https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2021-05/welsh-public-sector-net-zero-reporting-guide_1.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2021-05/welsh-public-sector-net-zero-reporting-guide_1.pdf
https://www.zemo.org.uk/work-with-us/buses-coaches/low-emission-buses/well-to-tank.htm#:%7E:text=A%20Well%2Dto%2DTank%20emissions,a%20fuel%20or%20energy%20vector.


Page 5 of 21 
 

Operational emissions reporting is established, generally well understood, and measurable; whilst 

the reporting of Supply Chain emissions is a comparatively new, blunt instrument that is based 

on £ spend plus assumptions rather than accurate data. Welsh Government recognise that Supply 

Chain reporting is an iterative process that is currently in its relative infancy, with current reporting 

aimed at identifying and quantifying major spend categories so that more work can be focussed 

on these areas in future.  

Whilst public bodies are requested to submit annual carbon reports in a prescribed format to 

ensure consistency, the methodology adopted by an organisation for developing and tracking its 

own NZC Plan is for each individual organisation to determine. 

This NZC Plan Progress Report reflects on our 2020/21 carbon emissions based on the same 

methodologies that we have been applied in previous years to provide consistency and continuity. 

In future, we will:  

• Report annual emissions to Welsh Government in accordance with the Reporting Guide 

• Continue with the existing scope of our NZC commitment but adopt the corresponding 

methodologies prescribed in the Reporting Guide. 

Welsh Government published a revised public sector net zero reporting guide on 21st June  2022; 

consequently, the figures quoted above will change as reporting methodologies are refined.  

  

Tudalen 23

https://gov.wales/public-sector-net-zero-reporting-guide


Page 6 of 21 
 

4. Carbon Footprint: Non-Domestic Buildings 

 
Note: The performance data quoted in this document uses UK emission conversion factors issued by the Department for Business, Energy, and Industrial Strategy 
(BEIS) where appropriate. These emission conversion factors are published annually, for example: Greenhouse gas reporting: conversion factors 2020. 

 

Utility Consumption in Non-Domestic Buildings - 2020/21 vs 2019/20: 

Utility 
Consumption (kWh) 2020/21 vs 2019/20 

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 kWh % 

Electricity 19,984,610 19,668,100 15,444,707 -4,223,393 -21.5% 

Gas 39,176,883 40,025,303 35,506,410 -4,518,893 -11.3% 

Oil 3,878,728 4,576,446 4,893,784 +317,338 +6.9% 

LPG 1,398,425 1,355,527 2,873,628 +1,518,101 +112.0% 

Kerosene 418,716 660,249 1,089,907 +429,658 +65.1% 

Biomass 0 121,615 61 -121,554 -99.9% 

Total  64,857,362 66,407,242 59,808,497 -6,598,745 -9.9% 

             
Note: Whilst our Electricity and Gas consumption is metered, our reporting for Oil, LPG and Kerosene is based on delivery dates which can distort year-on-year 
comparison should deliveries be near year end. This to be addressed under Action NZC-05: Extend ‘smart’ and sub-metering technology to ensure accurate and 
timely capture of energy consumption data. Also, three Oil to LPG  fuel conversion projects were completed in our Re:Fit Cymru Phase 1 project (as LPG has a 
lower carbon emissions factor and is cheaper). Future fuel conversion projects will address the decarbonisation of heating. 

  

Progress Change
2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2020/21 vs 2019/20

kWh 66,808,235 63,690,923 64,857,362 66,407,242 59,808,497 -6,598,745 -9.9%
tCO2e 18,923 16,258 14,822 14,443 12,581 -1,862 -12.9%

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

14,000

16,000

18,000

20,000

2016/17
2017/18

2018/19

2019/20

2020/21

Ca
rb

on
Em

is
si

on
s

(t
CO

2e
)

Year

2016/17 – 2020/21

-34% tCO2e

Tudalen 24

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/greenhouse-gas-reporting-conversion-factors-2020


Page 7 of 21 
 

Progress against Actions 
NZC-01 
Action Lead Officer Timescale 

Deliver Re:fit Cymru (Energy Efficiency) Phase 1 project to achieve energy / 
carbon savings   

Head of Property 
Apr 2021 

Apr 2022 

Progress 

Whilst COVID-19 delayed on-site commencement of our Phase 1 programme, works were able to commence in 
September 2020 with most of the work completed by 31st March 2021. The solar PV system at our Parc Dewi Sant offices 
was outstanding due to additional bat surveys being required to secure planning permission. Planning permission was 
unanimously granted in January 2022 and the works have now been completed.   

Phase 1 is projected to save £315,726 and 675 tonnes of carbon equivalent (tCO2e) each year – these savings being 
guaranteed by Ameresco, our Re:Fit Cymru service provider, under an Energy Performance Contract. Working with 
Ameresco has allowed us to accelerate the roll-out of our energy efficiency programme in a more comprehensive manner 
and at a greater pace than could be achieved using limited in-house resources.  

See Carmarthenshire Net Zero Case Study | Ameresco 

NZC-02 
Action Lead Officer Timescale 

Develop further phases of Re:fit Cymru (Energy Efficiency) project, or 
similar, to achieve accelerated energy / carbon savings 

Sustainable 
Development Manager 

Ongoing 

Progress 

We are currently in discussions with Ameresco, our Re:Fit Cymru service provider, to develop a new and significant larger 
Phase 2 project for approval in 2022/23. As many as possible of our buildings are being included in an initial scoping 
exercise to identify the scale of the total energy conservation measures and associated costs necessary to decarbonise 
our Estate. This will enable further phases to be developed more quickly. 

NZC-03 
Action Lead Officer Timescale 

Incorporate 'Passivhaus' standard, where appropriate, in new building 
construction projects 

Property Design 
Manager 

Ongoing 

Progress 
We are developing a ‘Fabric First’ methodology to new build construction projects to ensure a high level of energy 
efficiency for new facilities entering our building portfolio. This is underpinned by a commitment to incorporate the quality 
assured ‘Passivhaus’ Standard. 
 
The following new schools currently under construction have been designed to achieve Passivhaus Standard certification 
and thus deliver enhanced performance in terms of energy usage and internal environment: Gorslas Primary School; Ysgol 
y Castell; and, Pembrey Community Primary School  
 
In July 2021 confirmation was received that Ysgol Parc y Tywyn had formally been accredited as achieving the Passivhaus 
standard. 
 
Other non-educational buildings also designed and built to achieve the Passivhaus Standard are: Carmarthen Archives 
and Repository (completed); and, Pendine Attractor Project – Eco Hostel building (currently under construction). 

 

  

Tudalen 25

https://www.ameresco.com/portfolio-item/carmarthenshire-county-council-wales-uk/
https://www.passivhaustrust.org.uk/what_is_passivhaus.php
https://www.designingbuildings.co.uk/wiki/Fabric_first


Page 8 of 21 
 

NZC-04 
Action Lead Officer Timescale 

Continually review and amend design specifications and briefs to reflect 
new technologies and energy efficient equipment 

Property Design 
Manager Ongoing 

Progress 
We will continue to explore solutions and methods to maximise renewable energy solutions. A further emphasis will be 
put on establishing optimised solutions in new buildings with calculated investment against the performance level of the 
building fabric and aimed to provide best value in terms of capital and operation expenditure. We will continue to explore 
a flexible model to best suit the needs of the Net Zero Carbon agenda on any given project. 
 
Examples of how renewable and low energy specifications are being continually developed and adapted include:  
• All major new build projects incorporate renewable energy technologies where appropriate with solar photovoltaic 

(PV) installations being incorporated into many recent Modernising Education Provision 21st Century Schools projects 
(e.g. Ysgol Pum Heol – 12kW PV array completed January 2021; Ysgol Rhys Pritchard – 27 kW PV array completed 
February 2021) and new housing developments (e.g. Garreglwyd and Dylan sites).  

• The new housing development currently under construction at Glanmor Terrace, Burry Port includes battery storage 
to maximise the use of the electricity generated by the solar PV installed on each dwelling. Electric vehicle charge 
points are also being provided for each property. Also features Mechanical Ventilation Heat Recovery (MVHR) units 
in each dwelling. As part of the move towards limiting the use of fossil fuels these properties are totally electric. 

• Air Source Heat Pumps have been installed to provide heating at each of the flats and communal areas at Llys yr Ysgol 
Sheltered Housing Complex. These heat pumps replaced inefficient and expensive to run electric storage heaters at 
the Complex. Air Source is currently being explored on a larger scale in respect of the new development for Ysgol 
Heol Goffa. 

• Specifications for all new school developments now include for the installation of Electric Vehicle Charging Points.  
• LED lighting now being specified as standard.  
• All new solar PV systems include technology specified to enable web access to generation data that allows more 

detailed real-time data for the analysis of electricity generation. 
NZC-05 
Action Lead Officer Timescale 

Extend ‘smart’ and sub-metering technology to ensure accurate and timely 
capture of energy consumption data 

Various Ongoing 

Progress 
A major audit of all our electricity and gas fiscal meters has enabled the roll-out of a comprehensive programme of ‘smart’ 
meter installations. We are also doing likewise for our water meters. 
 
Gas Metering: Day+1 Half Hourly (HH) data flowing from 209 meters including all the 197 supplies at sites to be retained 
(100%). Complete. 
 
Electricity Metering: Day+ 1 HH data flowing from 256 of 574 known supplies (44.6%). Work in progress, with Western 
Power Distribution, our distribution network operator, currently installing meters. EDF, our electricity provider, need to 
action 233 (D0142) upgrades to complete the bulk of our remaining meters. This has been delayed by EDF staff absence, 
progress anticipated shortly. 
 
Water Metering: Day+1 Quarter Hourly (QH) data flowing from 4 of 336 known supplies (1.2%). Work in progress to 
confirm site list with Welsh Water Dwr Cymru before arranging for data loggers to be installed. 
 
This HH and QH data is automatically imported daily to our SystemsLink energy management software system to provide 
enhanced data accuracy that enables us to better identify opportunities for savings. 

 

  

Tudalen 26

https://www.exchangeutility.co.uk/business-energy-services/half-hourly-meters-explained/
https://systems-link.com/


Page 9 of 21 
 

NZC-06 
Action Lead Officer Timescale 

Develop appropriate carbon reduction target for the Council’s non-
domestic buildings as part of annual review of action plan 

Sustainable 
Development Manager 

Mar 2021 

Mar 2023 

Progress 
Welsh Government were to establish Wales-wide methodologies for carbon emissions reporting by the end of 2019/20. 
Unfortunately, these were not published until May 2021. This delay has impacted on this Action, and other similar Actions. 
The Wales reporting methodologies differ from our current approach and we will be publishing a revised NZC Plan by 31st 
March 2023 which will incorporate trajectories for carbon emission reductions in order to develop milestone targets. 

 

 

4.2 Carbon Footprint: Street Lighting 

 

We have completed the conversion of almost 100% of our 20,000 streetlights to low energy light-

emitting diode (LED) lighting, funded by the Welsh Government’s interest-free Wales Funding 

Programme. The remainder will be converted at their end of use.  

We have also completed a project to upgrade 5,000 community street lighting units to incorporate 

LED lighting on behalf of the town and community councils which has reduced energy 

consumption and improved lighting quality in local communities. 

  

Progress Change
2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2020/21 vs 2019/20

kWh 5,718,531 4,873,979 4,202,381 3,925,149 3,875,843 -49,306 -1.3%
tCO2e 2,569 1,874 1,291 1,088 981 -107 -9.8%

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

2016/17
2017/18

2018/19
2019/20

2020/21

Ca
rb

on
 E

m
iss

io
ns

(t
CO

2e
)

Year

2016/17 – 2020/21

-62% tCO2e

Tudalen 27



Page 10 of 21 
 

Progress against Actions 
NZC-07 
Action Lead Officer Timescale 

Develop appropriate carbon reduction target for the Council’s street 
lighting as part of annual review of action plan 

Public Lighting Engineer 
Mar 2021 

Mar 2023 

Progress 
Welsh Government were to establish Wales-wide methodologies for carbon emissions reporting by the end of 2019/20. 
Unfortunately, these were not published until May 2021. This delay has impacted on this Action, and other similar Actions. 
The Wales reporting methodologies differ from our current approach and we will be publishing a revised NZC Plan by 31st 
March 2023 which will incorporate trajectories for carbon emission reductions in order to develop milestone targets. 

 

4.3 Carbon Footprint: Fleet Mileage 

 

Progress against Actions 

NZC-08 
Action Lead Officer Timescale 

Review the most appropriate fuel powered vehicles for each of the 
Council’s services 

Fleet Manager 
Ongoing 

Sept 2022 

Progress 
Our Fleet Strategy will set the priorities for investment, the scale of change will be determined by the current state of the 
market transition to low carbon technologies by vehicle type, the scale of infrastructure development required, life cost 
evaluation and grant funding available. 

 
 

  

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

2016/17
2017/18

2018/19

2019/20

2020/21

Ca
rb

on
 E

m
iss

io
ns

(t
CO

2e
)

Year

Progress Change
2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2020/21 vs 2019/20

Miles 5,127,150 5,121,289 5,293,249 5,154,668 447,070 -727,598 -14.1%
tCO2e 3,790 3,852 3,856 3,814 3,407 -407 -10.7%

2016/17 – 2020/21

-10% tCO2e

Tudalen 28



Page 11 of 21 
 

NZC-09 
Action Lead Officer Timescale 

Develop appropriate carbon reduction target for the Council’s fleet mileage 
as part of annual review of action plan 

Fleet Manager 
Mar 2021 

Mar 2023 

Progress 
Welsh Government were to establish Wales-wide methodologies for carbon emissions reporting by the end of 2019/20. 
Unfortunately, these were not published until May 2021. This delay has impacted on this Action, and other similar Actions. 
The Wales reporting methodologies differ from our current approach and we will be publishing a revised NZC Plan by 31st 
March 2023 which will incorporate trajectories for carbon emission reductions in order to develop milestone targets. 
 

 

4.4 Carbon Footprint: Business Mileage 

 

Progress against Actions 
NZC-10 
Action Lead Officer Timescale 

Undertake a review of the Council’s pool cars to identify opportunities for 
carbon reduction 

Head of Transportation 
and Highways 

TBC 

Sept 2022 

Progress 
Our Fleet Strategy is currently being updated and will include detail on how we move to electric vehicles in the car and 
light commercials sector.  Electric charging infrastructure is being installed at key depots during 2022 to facilitate 
increased use of electric vehicles.  A work stream will commence in July 2022 to review how low carbon travel can be 
facilitated as part of the Better Ways of Working. 

 

  

Progress Change
2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2020/21 vs 2019/20

Miles 4,186,640 3,948,586 3,846,615 3,971,513 2,251,986 -1,719,527 -43.3%
tCO2e 1,260 1,159 1,118 1,132 621 -511 -45.1%

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

2016/17
2017/18

2018/19

2019/20

2020/21

Ca
rb

on
 E

m
is

si
on

s
(t

CO
2e

)

Year

2016/17 – 2020/21

-51% tCO2e

Tudalen 29



Page 12 of 21 
 

NZC-11 
Action Lead Officer Timescale 

Finalise electric vehicle strategy for the County 
Transport Strategy and 
Infrastructure Manager 

TBC 

Dec 2021 

Progress 

An Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure Strategy was published in December 2021. 

NZC-12 
Action Lead Officer Timescale 

Develop appropriate carbon reduction target for the Council’s business 
mileage as part of annual review of action plan 

Head of Transportation 
and Highways 

Mar 2021 

Mar 2023 

Progress 
Welsh Government were to establish Wales-wide methodologies for carbon emissions reporting by the end of 2019/20. 
Unfortunately, these were not published until May 2021. This delay has impacted on this Action, and other similar Actions. 
The Wales reporting methodologies differ from our current approach and we will be publishing a revised NZC Plan by 31st 
March 2023 which will incorporate trajectories for carbon emission reductions in order to develop milestone targets. 

 

 

5. Renewable Energy Generation + Carbon Offsetting 
 

 
 
Whilst we are committed to significantly reducing our carbon footprint, we recognise that however 

energy / carbon efficient our Services become, we will inevitably still have a residual carbon 

footprint. This situation is acknowledged by the ‘Net’ in the Net Zero Carbon equation, which 

enables our residual carbon footprint to be compensated / offset by the generation of renewable 

electricity and through carbon sequestration (such as through the planting of trees).  

However, we continue to pursue the 

carbon mitigation hierarchy approach 

as we do not consider compensation / 

offsetting as a ‘get out clause’ for 

reducing our carbon footprint: 

 
 

We have continued to add further solar PV installations on our non-domestic buildings, including 

schools, and currently have a total installed capacity of 1.8 MWp.  

Tudalen 30

https://democracy.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/documents/s56323/Report.pdf


Page 13 of 21 
 

Renewable Energy Generation 
2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2020/21 vs 2019/20 

Result Progress % change 
Solar PV 
Installed Capacity (kWp) 1,153 1,193 1,193 1,302 Improved +9% 
Electricity generation (kWh) 937,330 979,071 997,480 1,059,364 Improved  +6% 
Equivalent Carbon Savings (tCO2e) 360 301 277 268 Declined -3% 

Note:  Solar PV systems installed as part of our Re:Fit Cymru Phase 1 project are not included as operational after 1st  April 2021. 

The continuing decarbonisation of the electricity distribution network - National Grid - means that 

emission conversion factors for electricity are decreasing. Whilst this has a positive impact in 

reducing our carbon footprint, it conversely has a negative impact in reducing the equivalent 

carbon savings from renewable energy generation, thus requiring more solar PV panels to offset 

our (reducing) carbon footprint.  

Note: The Council spends in-excess of £5m annually on energy. As is currently very evident, the procurement of energy has become increasingly complex with 
prices volatile and linked to both UK and global factors. To minimise risk, we  procure our energy using Crown Commercial Service Framework Agreements for 
most supplies. All this electricity is procured from renewable energy sources. Unfortunately, as the consumption of this ‘green’ electricity is reflected in the UK 
emission conversion factor for electricity, we are unable to directly benefit from carbon savings resulting from the procurement of ‘green’ electricity as this 
would effectively be double counting. 

 

We recently commissioned Land Use Consultants Ltd  to deliver a strategy that sets out how to 

enhance Green and Blue Infrastructure in eight selected towns across the County, and to also 

analyse our own land holdings to determine the potential for carbon sequestration. This work will 

inform the development of our new Decarbonisation / NZC Plans, as will the recent declaration of 

a Nature Emergency by the County Council.  

Progress against Actions 
NZC-13 
Action Lead Officer Timescale 

Work with Welsh Government Energy Service to explore and deliver 
opportunities for large scale renewables 

Sustainable 
Development Manager 

Ongoing 

Progress 
We continuine to work with Welsh Government Energy Service  (WGES) to explore and deliver large-scale renewable 
energy projects. WGES are currently reviewing our land holdings to determine feasibility for renewable energy. We are 
also actively pursuing other opportunities, including a possible power purchase arrangement with Hywel Dda UHB linked 
for a proposed 500 kWp solar farm at their Hafan Derwen site – some 50% of the generated electricity would be available 
to supply our adjoining Parc Dewi Sant offices. 
NZC-14 
Action Lead Officer Timescale 

Work with National Procurement Service (NPS) to support greater 
procurement of energy from locally generated renewable energy projects 

Sustainable 
Development Manager 

Ongoing 

Progress 
100% of the electricity we procure using the Crown Commercial Service Framework Agreement is from renewable energy.  
In 2020/21, 86% of this ‘green’ electricity was generated within Wales (compared to 63% in 2019/20). This sourced from: 
Hydro (1%); Landfill Gas (7%); Solar (17%); and, Wind (75%). 

 

  

Tudalen 31

https://www.crowncommercial.gov.uk/
https://landuse.co.uk/
https://carmarthenshire-gbi-strategy-eng-luc.hub.arcgis.com/


Page 14 of 21 
 

NZC-15 
Action Lead Officer Timescale 

Explore the feasibility of tree-planting and other such measures, on Council 
controlled land to contribute towards carbon offsetting Strategic Asset Manager Ongoing 

Progress 
5.71ha of native broadleaved woodland will be planted on Council land over winter 2022/23 under the Welsh Government  
Glastir Woodland Creation (GWC) scheme. The area comprises three fields in Tregib, Llandeilo; Pendre, Kidwelly and 
Maesdewi, Llandybie previously used for grazing purposes. These areas were identified as potential tree planting sites 
from bare land holdings (i.e. those not in long-term tenancy) owned by the Council. Sites were first screened to exclude 
those that held unimproved grassland of high biodiversity habitat, then sites of suitable size close to urban or rural 
communities were prioritised to maximise social benefits. Applications were made to the GWC scheme and three of the 
sites were selected by Welsh Government for funding under this scheme. The planting will use a range of site suited native 
broadleaved species to maximise biodiversity benefits. Planting will be designed to allow public access through the sites 
and community planting days will be held to encourage local people take part in the project. 
 
Carbon sequestration over the lifetime of the project will be 2,999 tCO2e (based on the UK Woodland Carbon Code Small 
Project Carbon Calculator).  
NZC-16 
Action Lead Officer Timescale 

Develop appropriate target for renewable energy generation as part of 
annual review of action plan 

Strategic Asset Manager 
Mar 2021 

Mar 2023 

Progress 
Welsh Government were to establish Wales-wide methodologies for carbon emissions reporting by the end of 2019/20. 
Unfortunately, these were not published until May 2021. This delay has impacted on this Action, and other similar Actions. 
The Wales reporting methodologies differ from our current approach and we will be publishing a revised NZC Plan by 31st 
March 2023 which will incorporate trajectories for carbon emission reductions in order to develop milestone targets. 

 

6.1 Collaboration: Working with Welsh Government 

 
Progress against Actions 
NZC-17 
Action Lead Officer Timescale 

Collaborate with Welsh Government and other ‘early adopter’ Public 
Bodies to introduce carbon reporting as part of the ambition to achieve a 
carbon neutral Welsh public sector by 2030 

Sustainable 
Development Manager 

June 2020 

Progress 
We collaborated with Welsh Government and other ‘early adopter’ Public Bodies and had anticipated that reporting 
guidance would be published in April 2020; however, the Guidance has not published until May 2021. Further, revised 
Guidance was publised in June 2022. 

 

  

Tudalen 32

https://naturalresources.wales/guidance-and-advice/business-sectors/forestry/woodland-creation/glastir-woodland-scheme/?lang=en
https://www.woodlandcarboncode.org.uk/


Page 15 of 21 
 

6.2 Collaboration: Working with Carmarthenshire Public Services Board /  

      Swansea Bay City Deal partners 

 
Progress against Actions 
NZC-18 
Action Lead Officer Timescale 

Work with the Carmarthenshire Public Services Board (PSB) Healthy 
Environment Delivery Group to undertake a Climate Change and 
Environmental Risk Assessment for the County 

Corporate Policy and 
Partnership Manager Ongoing 

Progress 
A Climate Change and Environmental Risk Assessment has been completed and will be supplemented with additional data 
and information. 

In May 2021, the Healthy Environment Delivery Group discussed the report commissioned by Natural Resources Wales 
on climate change risks. This report considered the impact on local communities, and how communities can be better 
prepared for the effects of climate change with specific reference to Newcastle Emlyn. The report recommended the 
following  priority actions: (1) Community-Led Emergency Response Plan; (2) Citizens’ Jury; (3) Newcastle Emlyn 2050 
Future Scenario; and, (4) Climate Risks and Assets Map.  

At its meeting on 29th September 2021, the PSB was unable to progress priorities (2) and (3) due to capacity issues. 
However, priority (1) - Community Lead Emergency Response Plan – is being supported with links to the 10 Towns 
project,and  priority (4) - Climate Risks and Asset Map – is also being supported with the assistance of University of Wales 
Trinity St David students.  

NZC-19 
Action Lead Officer Timescale 

Work with PSB partners to identify and develop opportunities for 
collaboration regarding carbon reduction 

Sustainable 
Development Manager Ongoing 

Progress 
Natural Resources Wales (NRW) held a virtual SW Wales PSBs Net Zero Workshop on 29th September 2021. This event 
included speakers from Welsh Government and their consultants who provided an overview of the Public Sector Net Zero 
Reporting Guide (May 2021) . NRW also shared their experience in determining baseline emissions and developing carbon 
reduction strategies through their Carbon Positive Project. 
 
Hywel Dda University Health Board have secured Welsh Government grant funding to construct a solar farm at their Hafan 
Derwen site. We had been negotiating a possible power purchase arrangement whereby some of the generated electricity 
would be available to supply our adjoining Parc Dewi Sant offices. Disappointingly, technical issues associated with the 
local grid connection meant that this has not been possible.  
NZC-20 
Action Lead Officer Timescale 

Work with Welsh Government and Swansea Bay City Region partners to 
establish a Regional Energy Plan for South West Wales 

Head of Regeneration 
Head of Place & 

Sustainability 
Ongoing 

Progress 
The South West Wales Energy Strategy (March 2022) was commissioned by the Welsh Government and supported by the 
Welsh Government Energy Service. It has been developed by the South West Wales Energy Core Group, a sub-group of 
the Regional Directors’ forum from the four constituent local authorities, with additional support from an Advisory Panel 
and regional stakeholders. It sets a strategic framework to guide the transformational interventions needed to help 
achieve a net zero Wales by 2050. It has been a collaborative exercise developed by WGES and the four local authorities, 
with input from a wide range of stakeholders - public, private, and voluntary.  
 
Undepinning this regional Strategy will be four Local Area Energy Plans (LAEPs) for each local authority area. Energy 
Systems Catapult have been appointed by Welsh Government to help support the development these LAEPs which will 
involve significant coordination across the public, private and third sectors with the involvement of businesses, 
communities, and agencies. In Carmarthenshire, this will be led by the Place and Sustainability Division. 

  

Tudalen 33

https://www.thecarmarthenshirewewant.wales/meetings/2021/psb-meeting-29-09-2021/
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2022-04/regional-energy-strategy-south-west-wales.pdf
https://es.catapult.org.uk/report/local-area-energy-planning-the-method/#:%7E:text=Local%20Area%20Energy%20Planning%20(LAEP)%20is%20a%20process%20which%20has,%2C%20engagement%20and%20initiative%E2%80%90taking.
https://es.catapult.org.uk/
https://es.catapult.org.uk/


Page 16 of 21 
 

 

6.3 Collaboration: Working with experts from the private and 3rd sectors 

 
Progress against Actions 
NZC-21 
Action Lead Officer Timescale 

Work with the Council’s contractors to explore innovative approaches to 
carbon reduction 

Various Ongoing 

Progress 
We are currently working to explore innovative approaches to carbon reduction with a range of organisations, including: 
the Active Building Centre regarding extending the Cross Hands Industrial Estate; and, the Welsh School of Architecture, 
Cardiff University to understand and model our retrofit programme to inform our housing decarbonisation strategy and 
future investment programmes across our entire housing stock. 
NZC-22 
Action Lead Officer Timescale 

Participate in the Carmarthenshire 3rd Sector Environment Network 
established by Carmarthenshire Association of Voluntary Services (CAVS) 

Various Ongoing 

Progress 
The Carmarthenshire 3rd Sector Environment Network is open to any 3rd sector organisations or community groups 
involved with, or concerned by, environmental issues to share information and to collaborate to achieve common goals. 
The meetings also allow groups to follow the progress made by the Healthy Environment PSB delivery Group in the 
implementation of the Carmarthenshire Well-being Plan. 
 
During 2021/22, two meetings with were held with presentations from Dyffryn Tywi – Hanes Tirwedd Ein Bro, Renew 
Wales, The Carbon Community and Learn with Grandma. Information was shared on any relevant volunteering, funding 
and training opportunities available. Other topics raised included working towards a Circular economy and there was a 
focus on Climate Change action in the run up to COP26 at the end of October 21. 
NZC-23 
Action Lead Officer Timescale 

Work with Ynni Sir Gâr, and others, to deliver and support local renewable 
energy projects 

Sustainable 
Development Manager Ongoing 

Progress 
Ynni Sir Gâr have been funded under the Welsh Government Rural Development Fund LEADER programme to identify 
and explore the feasibility of small-scale community energy projects in the County. The project will work collaboratively 
with our Ten Towns initiative. We are also supporting Ynni Sir Gâr to deliver a project at Ysgol Bro Dinefwr to install 
additional solar PV plus EV charging points. 

 

  

Tudalen 34



Page 17 of 21 
 

7. Integration and Communication 

 
Progress against Actions 

 

  

NZC-24 
Action Lead Officer Timescale 

Undertake a staff survey to identify how individuals can contribute to the 
Council’s commitment to become a net carbon zero local authority 

Media and Marketing 
Manager 

May 2020 

TBC 

Progress 
The staff survey was put on hold as an action due to communications around COVID-19 taking priority.  
 
Carbon Literacy for Elected Members training is being provided in June and October 2022 for all our elected 
Members. This to be followed-up by carbon literacy courses for our staff.   
 

 

Our Prosiect Zero Sir Gâr campaign was originally 
intended to run for two weeks to concide with COP26 but 
was extended as we had more stories to share and Wales 
Climate Week followed. 
 
Aims: 
1. To raise awareness of what the Council is doing to 

tackle climate change and to become a net carbon 
zero local authority by 2030; and, 

2. To encourage residents, businesses, and other 
organisations to take action to cut their own carbon 
footprint. 

This campaign was particularly popular with schools who shared pictures of their ‘Prosiect Zero Super Heroes’ to tackle 
climate change. 
NZC-25 
Action Lead Officer Timescale 

Incorporate climate change / carbon reduction into Integrated Impact 
Assessment process to be introduced by the Council 

Corporate Policy and 
Partnership Manager 

TBC 

 

Progress 

The integrated impact assessments includes a section which addresses climate change and carbon reduction impacts. 

Process to be introduced imminently. 

Tudalen 35

https://www.apse.org.uk/apse/index.cfm/training/online-courses/carbon-literacy-for-elected-members/#:%7E:text=Carbon%20Literacy%20Award,to%20the%20Carbon%20Literacy%20Project.
https://newsroom.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/2021/10/prosiect-zero-sir-g%C3%A2r/
https://ukcop26.org/
https://freshwater.eventscase.com/EN/COPCymru21/Wales-Climate-Week
https://freshwater.eventscase.com/EN/COPCymru21/Wales-Climate-Week
https://newsroom.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/2021/11/carmarthenshire-schoolchildren-unlock-their-super-powers-to-tackle-climate-change/
https://newsroom.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/2021/11/carmarthenshire-schoolchildren-unlock-their-super-powers-to-tackle-climate-change/
https://newsroom.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/2021/11/carmarthenshire-schoolchildren-unlock-their-super-powers-to-tackle-climate-change/


Page 18 of 21 
 

NZC-27 
Action Lead Officer Timescale 

Review action plan following the publication of Welsh Government 
guidance regarding new carbon reporting framework 

Sustainable Development 
Manager 

Mar 2021 

Mar 2023 

Progress 
Welsh Government were to establish Wales-wide methodologies for carbon emissions reporting by the end of 2019/20. 
Unfortunately, these were not published until May 2021. This delay has impacted on this Action, and other similar Actions.  
As identified earlier in this Report, our NZC Plan (February 2020) predates the Wales guidance, consequently there are 
differences in the reporting  methodologies. Welsh Government will be publishing further guidance in May 2022, which 
we will incorporate into to our new NZC Plan to be published by 31st March 2023. 
NZC-28 
Action Lead Officer Timescale 

Publish performance reports on progress towards becoming a net zero 
carbon local authority by 2030 

Sustainable Development 
Manager 

Annual 

Progress 
This report is the second annual update on progress towards become a net zero carbon local authority by 2030.  

 

  

NZC-26 
Action Lead Officer Timescale 

Support the ‘Walk the Global Walk’ project in the County’s schools to 
promote awareness of climate change 

Officer for International 
School Linking 

March 2021 

Progress 
We continue to support the Climate Action Consultation Group that was initiated by participants of the ‘Walk the Global 
Walk’ project. 
 

 
 

Tudalen 36

https://www.local.gov.uk/case-studies/carmarthenshire-county-council-walk-global-walk-project
https://www.local.gov.uk/case-studies/carmarthenshire-county-council-walk-global-walk-project


Page 19 of 21 
 

Appendix 1: 

Summary of Progress Against Actions in NZC Plan 
 

Ref Action to be undertaken Lead Officer By When 

 

Carbon Footprint – Non-domestic buildings 
NZC-01 Deliver Re:fit Cymru (Energy Efficiency) Phase 1 project to 

achieve energy/carbon savings 
Head of Property Apr 2021 

Apr 2022 

NZC-02 Develop further phases of Re:fit Cymru (Energy Efficiency) 
project, or similar, to achieve accelerated energy / carbon savings  

Sustainable 
Development Manager 

Ongoing 

NZC-03 Incorporate the ‘Passivhaus’ standard, where appropriate, in new 
building construction projects 

Property Design Manager Ongoing 

NZC-04 Continually review and amend design specifications and briefs to 
reflect new technologies and energy efficient equipment 

Property Design Manager Ongoing 

NZC-05 Extend ‘smart’ and sub-metering technology to ensure accurate 
and timely capture of energy consumption data 

Various Ongoing 

NZC-06 Develop appropriate carbon reduction target for the Council’s non-
domestic buildings as part of annual review of action plan 

Sustainable 
Development Manager 

Mar 2021 
Mar 2023 

 

Carbon Footprint – Street Lighting 
NZC-07 Develop appropriate carbon reduction target for the Council’s 

street lighting as part of annual review of action plan 
Public Lighting Engineer Mar 2021 

Mar 2023 

 

Carbon Footprint – Fleet Mileage 
NZC-08 Review the most appropriate fuel powered vehicles for each of the 

Council’s Services 
Fleet Manager Ongoing 

NZC-09 Develop appropriate carbon reduction target for the Council’s fleet 
mileage as part of annual review of action plan 

Fleet Manager Mar 2021 
Mar 2023 

 

Carbon Footprint – Business Mileage 
NZC-10 Undertake a review of the Council’s pool cars to identify 

opportunities for carbon reduction 
Head of Transportation & 

Highways 
TBC 

Sep 2022 

NZC-11 Finalise electric vehicle strategy for the County Transport Strategy & 
Infrastructure Manager 

TBC 
Dec 2021 

NZC-12 Develop appropriate carbon reduction target for the Council’s 
business mileage as part of annual review of action plan 

Head of Transportation & 
Highways 

Mar 2021 
Mar 2023 

 

Renewable Energy Generation / Carbon Offsetting 
NZC-13 Work with Welsh Government Energy Service to explore and 

deliver opportunities for large scale renewable energy projects 
Sustainable 

Development Manager 
Ongoing 

NZC-14 Work with National Procurement Service (NPS) to support greater 
procurement of energy from locally generated renewable energy 
projects 

Sustainable 
Development Manager 

Ongoing 

NZC-15 Explore the feasibility of tree-planting, and other such measures, 
on Council controlled land to contribute towards carbon offsetting 

Strategic Asset Manager Ongoing 

NZC-16 Develop appropriate target for renewable energy generation as 
part of annual review of action plan 

Sustainable 
Development Manager 

Mar 2021 
Mar 2023 

 

Working with Welsh Government 
NZC-17 Collaborate with Welsh Government and other ‘early adopter’ 

Public Bodies to introduce national carbon reporting framework as 
part of ambition to achieve carbon neutral Welsh public sector by 
2030 

Sustainable 
Development Manager 

Jun 2020 

  

Tudalen 37



Page 20 of 21 
 

 

Ref Action to be undertaken Lead Officer By When 

 

Working with Carmarthenshire Public Services Board / Swansea Bay City Deal partners 
NZC-18 Work with Carmarthenshire Public Services Board’s (PSB’s) 

Healthy Environment Delivery Group to undertake a Climate 
Change and Environmental Risk Assessment for the County  

Corporate Policy and 
Partnership Manager 

Ongoing 

NZC-19 Work with Carmarthenshire PSB partners to identify and develop 
opportunities for collaboration regarding carbon reduction 

Sustainable 
Development Manager 

Ongoing 

NZC-20 Work with Welsh Government and Swansea Bay City Region 
partners to establish a Regional Energy Plan for South West 
Wales 

Head of Regeneration 
Head of Place and 

Sustainability 

Ongoing 

 
Collaboration with experts from the private sector and 3rd sectors 
NZC-21 Work with the Council’s contractors to explore innovative 

approaches to carbon reduction 
Various Ongoing 

NZC-22 Participate in the Carmarthenshire 3rd Sector Environment 
Network established by Carmarthenshire Association of Voluntary 
Services (CAVS) 

Various Ongoing 

NZC-23 Work with Ynni Sir Gâr, and others, to deliver and support local 
renewable energy projects 

Sustainable 
Development Manager 

Ongoing 

 
Integration and Communication 
NZC-24 Undertake Staff survey to identify how individuals can contribute 

to the Council’s commitment to become a net zero carbon local 
authority 

Media and Marketing 
Manager 

May 2020 
TBC 

NZC-25 Incorporate climate change / carbon reduction in Integrated 
Impact Assessment process to be introduced by Council 

Corporate Policy and 
Partnership Manager 

TBC 

NZC-26 Support the ‘Walk the Global Walk’ project in the County’s schools 
to promote awareness of climate change 

Officer for International 
School Linking 

Mar 2021 

NZC-27 Review action plan following publication of Welsh Government 
guidance regarding new national carbon reporting framework 

Sustainable Development 
Manager 

Mar 2021 
Mar 2023 

NZC-28 Publish performance reports on progress towards becoming a net 
zero carbon local authority by 2030 

Sustainable Development 
Manager 

Annual 

 

Key: 

  Overdue 
  Revised target dates due to delay in publishing Wales carbon reporting guidance 
  On track 
  Completed 
  Ongoing. These Actions will continue throughout the lifetime of the NZC Plan 

 

  

Tudalen 38



Page 21 of 21 
 

Appendix 2: 
Climate Emergency 

 
The initial focus of this action plan for a route towards becoming a net zero carbon local authority 
is not intended to limit or preclude other potential wider actions that contribute towards addressing 
the climate emergency.  

Some of these actions relate to the following activities (this is not an exhaustive list): 

 

 

 

 

 

An update will be incorporated into the revised NZC Plan to be published by 31st March 2023. 

• Civil Contingencies 
• Education 
• Finance 
• Highways and Transportation 
• Housing 
• Information and Communications 

• Leisure 
• Place & Sustainability 
• Procurement 
• Public Protection and Air Quality 
• Regeneration 
• Waste and Environmental Services 

Tudalen 39



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



 

 
 

ADRODDIAD BLYNYDDOL CYFARWYDDWR STATUDOL Y GWASANAETHAU 
CYMDEITHASOL 2021/22 

 
Y Pwrpas:  
Mae'n ofynnol yn statudol i'r Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol adrodd yn flynyddol 
wrth y Cyngor ar berfformiad yr ystod gyfan o Wasanaethau Cymdeithasol a'r modd y cânt eu 
darparu, yn ogystal â chynlluniau ar gyfer eu gwella. 
 
Hwn yw'r adroddiad blynyddol gan Gyfarwyddwr y Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol ynghylch 
perfformiad ein Gwasanaethau Gofal Cymdeithasol yn y sir.  Mae'n nodi'r heriau yn ystod 
blwyddyn na welwyd ei thebyg o'r blaen oherwydd COVID-19 ac yn tynnu sylw at y meysydd 
oedd i'w datblygu yn ystod y flwyddyn gyfredol. Mae'n ymwneud â'r perfformiad yn ystod 
2021/22.   
 
Mae'r adroddiad hwn yn rhoi cyfle i Aelodau gwestiynu'r cynnwys ac mae'n rhoi cyfle i'r 
Cyfarwyddwr Statudol ystyried unrhyw sylwadau a allai fod gan Aelodau etholedig ar gyfer y 
dyfodol. Dylid nodi mai adroddiad drafft yw hwn o hyd a bydd yn cael ei brawf ddarllen a'i 
ddiwygio ymhellach cyn ei gwblhau.  

Yr argymhellion / penderfyniadau allweddol sydd eu hangen: 
Bod adroddiad blynyddol Cyfarwyddwr Statudol y Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol ynghylch 
perfformiad y Gwasanaethau Gofal Cymdeithasol yn Sir Gaerfyrddin, 2021/22 yn cael ei 
gymeradwyo. 
 
Y rhesymau:  
Mae'r Cyfarwyddwr o'r farn bod craffu ar yr adroddiad hwn yn wleidyddol yn elfen bwysig yn y 
broses ddatblygu a bydd yn cael ei ddiwygio drwy gydol y gwahanol gamau cyn cyhoeddi'r 
adroddiad hwn yn derfynol yn ystod haf 2022.  
 

 
Angen i'r Cabinet wneud penderfyniad:  OES - 17 Hydref 2022  
Angen i’r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad           OES – 9 Tachwedd 2022 
YR AELOD O'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:-            
Y Cynghorydd J. Tremlett (Deiliad y Portffolio Iechyd a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol) 
 
Y Gyfarwyddiaeth: 

Cymunedau 

Enw Pennaeth y 
Gwasanaeth: 

Jake Morgan 

Swyddi: 

Cyfarwyddwr y 
Gwasanaethau 
Cymunedol 
(Cyfarwyddwr Statudol 
y Gwasanaethau 
Cymunedol) 

Ffôn: 01267 224698 

Cyfeiriadau E-bost: 
JakeMorgan@sirgar.gov.uk 

 
 

Y CABINET
17 HYDREF 2022

Tudalen 41

Eitem Rhif  7



 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
CABINET 

17TH OCTOBER 2022 
 

STATUTORY DIRECTOR OF SOCIAL CARE SERVICES’  
ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22 

The Annual Report examines each Service area within Social Care and shows how service 
strategies, actions, targets and service risks will be addressed and delivered operationally by 
the service this year based on the approved budget.  

The Annual Report (attached) comprises an overview provided by the Director of Social 
Services, which provides information on how we have performed in 2021/22 and an 
assessment on the future, together with our strategic priorities for 2022/23.   
 
The Report links closely with the Directorate Business Plans for Community Services and 
Education & Children’s Services departments. 
 
Following publication of the report to the public (after it has been presented to full Council), 
Care Inspectorate Wales (CIW) and Welsh Government will complete their analysis and review 
of the report. There will be a formal meeting with CIW in October to discuss their analysis and 
proposed plan. This will be followed by an Annual Letter to Council in late November/early 
December, confirming their analysis and inspection plan. The process will link in closely with 
the Wales Programme for Improvement and the Annual Letter from the Wales Audit Office. 

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? YES  
  

Tudalen 42



 

IMPLICATIONS 

 

5. Risk Management Issues 
Key risks have been addressed in this report with a link to the departmental and corporate risk 
register. 
 
6. Physical Assets   
Physical assets are included in this report in relation to service delivery. 
 

7. Staffing Implications 
Workforce is a critical element included in the report.  In particular, the development and 
retention of social workers to ensure that they continue their professional development and 
remain with Carmarthenshire. 
 

 

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with 
this report: 
Signed:      Jake Morgan                                   Director of Social Services    
Policy, Crime & 
Disorder and 
Equalities 

Legal 
 

Finance 
 

ICT 
 

Risk 
Management 
Issues 

Staffing 
Implications 

 

Physical 
Assets  

 
YES  YES  YES  YES  YES  YES  YES  
1. Policy, Crime & Disorder and Equalities 
The Annual Report will be an important contribution to the Council’s Improvement Plan. 

2. Legal   
The Annual Report forms an important part of the statutory duties of the Director of Social 
Services: 
“The Director will present to Council, publish and report on an annual statement of plans for 
performance and improvement” 

3. Finance   
The financial implications are included in the report.  Budget pressures are identified 
clearly.  
4. ICT  
The PIMS system will be used to provide evidence of the Annual Report.  Comment is made 
in the body of the report as to the need to better integrate Health & Social Care IT.   

Tudalen 43



 

 
 
 

CONSULTATIONS 
 

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as 
detailed below 
Signed:   Jake Morgan                                   Director of Social Services                                                    
 

1. Scrutiny Committee request for pre-determination  YES 
 
Scrutiny Committee  Health & Social Services 
Date the report was considered:- 5th October, 2022 
Scrutiny Committee Outcome/Recommendations:- 
 

The Health and Social Services Scrutiny Committee endorsed the report. 
 

 

2.Local Member(s)  Not applicable. 
3.Community / Town Council Not applicable. 
4.Relevant Partners  Not applicable. 
5.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations  Not applicable. 
CABINET MEMBER PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER(S) AWARE/CONSULTED  

YES 

Include any observations here 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 
 
             THERE ARE NONE. 
 

 
 

Tudalen 44



1 

Statutory Director of 
Social Care Services’  
Annual Report 
 

2021/22 DRAFT  

V2  

 

 

Tudalen 45



2 

  

Contents 
 

Introduction ................................................................................................................ 3 

Overview .................................................................................................................... 5 

Direct Care Provision/Commissioned Care .............................................................. 22 

Domiciliary Care ....................................................................................................... 24 

Complaints and Compliments .................................................................................. 26 

Workforce ................................................................................................................. 30 

Welsh Language ...................................................................................................... 32 

Conclusion and Next Steps ...................................................................................... 33 

Department’s Management Structure....................................................................... 35 

 

Dates of Officer and Political meetings   

DMT 11th July 2022 
 

CMT 04th August 2022 
 

Pre-Cabinet 5th September 2022 
 

Scrutiny SC&H 5th October 2022 
 

Cabinet 17th October 2022 
 

County Council  9th November 2022 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 46



3 

Introduction  
 

This is my ninth annual report as Statutory Director of Social 

Services. Although Social Services is only a part of my 

corporate role there is a statutory requirement on me to report 

annually on the council’s social services functions.  

2021/22 really was another year with challenges like no other. 
Social services along with all other Council directorates were 
required to adapt to both the direct and indirect challenges 

from the pandemic.  Our ability to respond quickly and flexibly whilst continuing to 
provide essential services is testament to the commitment and dedication of the 
whole workforce, and I cannot thank them enough for the commitment they have 
shown given the national challenges facing the sector. We have performed 
exceptionally well across most areas of Children and Adult Services However, we 
now face immediate and ongoing challenges to maintain this high performance. 
 
The response of the staff across all our social services functions have been 
exceptional. However, many staff are showing signs of fatigue challenged in their 
personal lives by cost-of-living pressures and in their professional lives by managing 
outbreaks and the knock-on effect of vacancies on their workloads. 
 
The external forces of reduced migration, wage inflation in other sectors, increased 
early retirements and staff leaving a challenging sector have all been felt in 
Carmarthenshire. This has left the sector needing to recruit an additional 200 Home 
Carers, over 100 Residential Carers and at least 30 Social Workers. This when 
coupled with rising post Covid demand across Children and Adult Services has 
resulted in waiting lists for homecare and residential care being at the highest levels 
for many years. 
 
The last 6 months have seen a wide range of initiatives to assist recruitment that 
have included regrading of posts, record inflationary increases to care providers, the 
development of a Care Academi, record numbers of people supported onto the 
social work degree, the temporary introduction of market supplements and significant 
activity to promote and brand us as an employer and to promote care as a career. In 
our in-house service there have been significant improvements in the recruitment 
and retention of staff in residential care although gains have been more modest in 
filling social work posts and homecare. 
 
Whilst risk is managed carefully and any waiting lists are monitored closely for risk, I 
have to report that choice of care is, at times affected and a significant minority of 
people are provided with alternatives to their assessed needs where the primary 
provision is not available. Homecare is the most stretched although the numbers 
waiting for care in hospital have reduced close to pre pandemic levels. I am pleased 
to say all providers of homecare now pay well above the Real Living Wage. 
 
Children’s services have seen a small but significant growth in the number on the 
Child Protection Register and those children looked after. It is crucial we meet this 

Tudalen 47



4 

need in a timely way with preventative services stretched and are likely to require 
increased investment moving forward if we are to avoid continued growth and cost in 
the number of looked after children. 
 
Despite this challenging environment we continue to perform as well as could be 
expected. In our assurance check early this year, CIW reviewed how the local 
authority social services continue to help and support adults and children with a 
focus on safety and well-being findings: 
 

 
 

Jake Morgan, Statutory Director of Social Services 

Overall we found the local authority ensures people’s voices are heard, their 

choices respected and people routinely achieved self-identified outcomes.  

Leaders have a line of sight on front line practice with clear plans that have led 

to creative practice.   

Care Inspectorate Wales (CIW) Assurance Check 2021:   
Carmarthenshire County Council 

Tudalen 48



5 

Overview  
 

Adult Services 
 
Managing the challenges that the pandemic created has been integrated into the 
everyday work of the service. The success of the vaccination programme and the 
associated very high level of take up by vulnerable adults and social care staff has 
meant that the impact of community transmission on care settings has been 
minimised with the impact on vulnerable adults relatively low even when they are 
infected. Thus with the exception of one isolated incident in the summer, care home 
outbreaks have not led to significant illness or death of our care home population 
although Covid has contributed to increased levels of staff absence. By the end of 
this reporting year (April 2022) Covid had become something for us to manage on a 
proactive basis, rather than constantly responding to emergencies on a reactive 
basis.  
 
As a consequence of the above, we have had the opportunity to focus more on our 
core business and look at how we develop and shape our services so that they are fit 
for the future.  
 
In partnership with Llesiant Delta Wellbeing (our arms length telecare company), we 
have continued to offer a strong Information, Advice and Assistance service (IAA) 
and are still seeing positive results with a significant number of enquiries not 
requiring ongoing assistance/assessment. As in all areas recruitment to our IAA 
service is a challenge and can, at times, impact on outcomes. 
 

 
 
Whilst the use of virtual means of communication is helping us to be more flexible 
with the use of our time, we have returned to offering face to face assessments 
whenever we can to ensure that our practitioners are able to carry out a holistic 

1,221 1,206 
1,375 1,252 1,173 1,258 

1,064 
1,362 

1,172 
1,363 

1,676 
1,916 

24.73%
23.05% 23.93%

25.16%
23.19% 23.77% 23.31%

25.48%

20.48%

17.31%

29.47%

34.55%

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

IAA Referrals and outcomes 
April 21 to March 22

CareFirst SSWBA / Eclipse Referrals

Tudalen 49



6 

assessment of the individual and ensure that we can best support them and meet 
their outcomes.  
 
Our biggest challenge has come from the significant recruitment and retention issues 

we are experiencing both in terms of a qualified social work and non-qualified social 

care workforce. As a consequence from an older adults/physical disability 

perspective, we have had insufficient social workers available to assess all those 

who need assessments as quickly as we might like. This means that since October 

2021 we have started to have significant waiting lists for assessments and carefully 

prioritise those in most urgent need. Despite this waiting lists have steadily fallen. 

 

 
 

This is a common picture across Wales and reflects the shortfall in numbers of social 

workers and the increase in demand. Some headway has been made in reducing the 

number since the autumn and as we appoint more social work staff we would 

anticipate the numbers waiting falling further. 

Whilst we have a number of residential care beds still available to us, the availability 

of commissioned homecare care hours has decreased significantly since summer 

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

27/09/2021 29/10/2021 26/11/2021 07/01/2022 28/01/2022 25/02/2022 25/03/2022

C
lie

n
ts

Number of clients awaiting a social work assessment -
Excluding VI&HI 

0

2000

4000

6000

8000

10000

12000

14000

16000

31/03/2018 31/03/2019 31/03/2020 31/03/2021 31/03/2022

W
ee

kl
y 

h
o

u
rs

Dom Care & Extra Care (ALL)

Total Local Authority Private & Voluntary

Tudalen 50



7 

2021. Our in-house service has remained broadly steady with improved recruitment 

and retention levels. 

 

This reduced capacity has led to a rise in those waiting for care towards the end of 

last year. Whilst it has stabilised since then, progress to reduce the numbers waiting 

has been slow.  Improvements in reablement performance have improved the picture 

since March and numbers waiting between March and May 2022 have reduced by 

nearly 25% with 150 clients waiting for care still to be formally allocated.  

 

We have therefore had to prioritise those with the greatest need waiting for care. In 

doing this we work closely with individuals and families to consider other options 

such as a temporary step-down residential beds or remunerating families to provide 

support on an interim basis through our Wellbeing Support Grant until we can secure 

the care. In addition, we have offered temporary emergency support through Delta 

Wellbeing’s CONNECT service to avoid hospital or care home admissions.  We have 

always been a relatively high provider of statutory care services and this pressure 

has undoubtedly forced us to innovate better and reduce any unnecessary provision. 

However, we cannot provide the service we want until the whole sector has recruited 

sufficient staff. 

 

Due to the significant challenges we have been facing along with staffing pressures, I 

established a Social Care Gold Command which I have chaired with representation 

across each division, and HR, Finance and Communications to ensure that we could 

effectively manage the risks and provide the corporate reassurance needed. This 

Gold Command has now been stood down on the basis that all controls are in place, 

but our focus is now on how we recruit and retain a sustainable workforce (see 

Workforce section).   

 

The crisis that we have been faced with has also encouraged us to innovate and 

think creatively about how to best support the most vulnerable people in our 

population. New services have been created to support vulnerable users that meet 

demand in different ways. 

 

One such example is the development of the Intermediate Care Multi-Disciplinary 

Team which initially focussed on supporting hospital patients to return home within 

72 hours of their admission. The team is a collaboration between Health and Social 

Care and comprises the crisis response arm of the Health Board’s Acute Response 

Team as well as GPs, Physiotherapists, Occupational Therapists, Social Workers, 

Delta Wellbeing Community Wellbeing Officers (CWO’s) and the Council’s 

Reablement Service. Its success has been recognised both by achieving a Silver 

Award in the recent IESE Awards as well as the Health Board’s Team of the Month. 

The team is soon to be expanded to focus also on hospital admissions avoidance as 

well as supporting crisis in the community. It will work alongside our front door to 

health and social care to provide the short-term support that people need to keep 

them safe and independent at home whilst an assessment is undertaken to 

determine long-term needs.  

 

Tudalen 51



8 

Alongside the Intermediate Care Multi-Disciplinary Team has been the development 

of Ty Pili-Pala a 14 bedded step down unit which forms part of the Council’s Llys Y 

Bryn Residential Home. Again, the Council is working in partnership with the Health 

Board to allow for therapy-led reablement with a view to supporting people to be able 

to return home and live independently.  

 
At the start of the pandemic in line with government advice and the high vulnerability 
of our client groups to Covid, we immediately had to close most of our Day Services 
and suspend most planned respite in care homes.  
 
For older people we have tried to look at more innovative ways of how we can 
continue to support them to meet their preferred outcomes and provide some degree 
of respite for individuals and families. On a pilot basis we have offered those that 
previously attended our day services 1 to 1 support at home as well as an offer of a 
virtual day service by providing participants with a bespoke electronic tablet so that 
they can engage in virtual group activities such as bingo, coffee chats and exercise 
classes. At the time of writing the report, we are in the process of reopening two of 
our face-to-face day services on a phased basis. It is envisaged that these services 
will be part of our day opportunities offer alongside 1 to 1 support at home and an 
online telecare offer developed through Llesiant Delta Wellbeing. Planned residential 
respite has also started to become more of a viable option as users get more 
confident to access services  
 
Ensuring that the people we work with are able to have a voice, choice and control is 
equally important and in this context we have continued to contribute to the regional 
commissioning agenda including the review of advocacy services and the 
commissioning of Independent Professional Advocacy. We also successfully brought 
our Direct Payments Service back in-house in April 2021 from our previous 
commissioned provider. This has presented an opportunity for us to better support 
the development of Direct Payments in lieu of direct services to those that need it.  
 
Learning Disability Day Opportunities are critical to support adults in the 
community. As a result, we have continued to increase the number of people we are 
able to support as we gradually reopened our buildings. We have also offered 
support at home and a range of online virtual activities which remain popular with 
those who use our services and their carers. Activities provided include, exercise, 
quizzes, and cookery sessions, woodwork and craft activity packs have also been 
delivered to individual homes to enable them to join in with the virtual 
demonstrations. 
 
The Learning disability Services has adapted and developed new initiatives in 
response to increasing demands. We have established new opportunities in the 
Llandovery area to support people to access community activities and build 
relationships closer to home. A new walking group specifically for Carers has been 
established through the exercise buddies project which is proving to be popular and 
have just taken delivery of their own branded T shirts etc and all the centres have 
seen a significant increase in their attendance numbers.  
 
We were proud to celebrate the achievements of one of our Community Connectors, 
Fran Horton who in February was awarded Gower College Swansea’s Community 

Tudalen 52



9 

Development Apprentice of the Year after completing her QCF Level 3 in Community 
Development. Fran’s role is to promote inclusion and engagement by encouraging 
individuals to develop new networks within their local community so that they can 
utilise their own assets and those of their community to achieve the outcomes that 
are important to them.  
 
Shared Lives is a service we run on behalf of the region to provide supportive homes 
for adults with a range of needs. After a review, the service has been restructured 
and this is now bedding in. Our new online recruitment portal for Shared lives Carers 
went live in February. This provides a more user friendly and efficient platform from 
which to become a Shared Lives Carer. The service is focussed on increasing both 
the number and range of carers available across the region. There are champion 
groups now running across the county to raise awareness and provide support and 
the team are developing locality referral meetings for any teams wishing to refer into 
the service. 
 
The first phase of the new model for disability was also established during 2020 
commencing with the 0 to 25 years old service where our Children with Disabilities 
Team and adult services provide seamless transitions for users of Children’s 
Services to Adults. Initial feedback from those who use services, their carers and 
professionals is very positive. Moving forward this should enable better preparation 
for children with a disability on their transition to adult services and avoid the sense 
of a cliff edge of care that families have reported in the past. 
 
We recognise that the pandemic has been a hugely challenging time for carers who 
have been managing with reduced support and respite. Through the Regional 
Partnership Board arrangements, we have continued to adapt our offer to carers to 
ensure that they can continue to feel supported. I am delighted that we have been 
able to publish the Regional Carers Strategy and we have been able to support the 
ongoing implementation of the local and regional action plan.  
 
The social work teams and day services staff have kept in contact with carers and 
provided support when necessary. Many of our staff have either achieved or are 
undertaking the Investors in Carers Award which is an acknowledgement of the 
support provided to carers. All social work teams in Adult Social Care have also 
clearly identified Carers Champions. 
   
The pandemic is challenging for everyone, but the impact on the mental health and 
wellbeing of many people in Wales and Carmarthenshire is significant. In planning 
for this, the council has invested significant growth resource to address this which we 
used to recruit more social work and social care staff to focus on two specific areas: 
early intervention and prevention and a more robust and timelier crisis response.  
During the last year, we have been collaborating with the Health Board and the third 
sector to develop initiatives in this regard developing a Single Point of Access and a 
24/7 crisis response service. The Twilight Sanctuary Crisis Response in Llanelli, 
which was council led, goes from strength to strength and the model is now being 
rolled out across the region. For the Approved Mental Health Practitioner (AMHP) 
service, it has been business as usual, and they have had continued to undertake 
their statutory duties throughout the pandemic.  
 

Tudalen 53



10 

Within mental health and learning disability services, we are embarking on an 

ambitious programme of change in relation to accommodation. Our vision is to 

further reduce the reliance on residential care and develop more community options 

accommodation, which promote choice and independence. In 2021, we 

commissioned the Housing Learning Improvement Network (LIN) to undertake an 

accommodation needs mapping exercise for mental health. We have used this data 

to establish a four-year accommodation plan and to collaborate with colleagues in 

Housing, Commissioning and with Hywel Dda University Health Board, to develop a 

range of community accommodation projects from independent tenancies to shared 

settings.  

Learning Disability and Mental Health is now a priority in the council’s housing 

strategy. We have been able to access the council’s housing stock and new builds 

for those who are able to live independently. Our housing department have 

purchased properties and made the necessary adaptations to accommodate those 

with complex needs.  

I am pleased to report that despite the challenges of the pandemic, this work has 
remained a key objective for the division. We have developed several 
accommodation projects in partnership with our colleagues in housing and enabled 
twenty adults to step down to more independent living from residential care. 
 
The prevention of suicide and self-harm is also a priority for the region, this work is 
led by the Head of Adult Social Care. A current priority for the region and 
Carmarthenshire, is to establish a multi-agency rapid response to suicide. This 
model is being developed under the umbrella of the Regional Safeguarding Board. 
The rapid response model is a meeting where, in the event of a suicide, 
organisations and relevant others will come together swiftly to look at who is 
impacted, who needs to be supported and what needs to be done to prevent further 
incidences. It will then be extended to include incidences where suicide is not 
completed. This model has already been adopted in other parts of Wales and is seen 
as good practice in the prevention of suicide and self-harm. 
 
In relation to the Substance Misuse Team, we have seen increased demand and 
complexities related to the pandemic. We have been collaborating with partners to 
develop innovative pathways for comorbidities such as mental health and substance 
misuse and alcohol related brain damage. 
 

Adult Safeguarding 
 

In relation to adult safeguarding, the Regional Safeguarding Board and associated 

subgroups have continued to meet virtually. We were part of a Regional Multi 

Agency Covid Response Group which met weekly to have assurance regarding 

safeguarding responses during the pandemic. MAPPA, MARAC and VAWDASV 

arrangements have also continued. We have continued to work within the new All 

Wales Adult Protection Procedures and Carmarthenshire has led on several 

developments including a regional policy on self-neglect. 

 

Tudalen 54



11 

Carmarthenshire Adult Safeguarding Team is held in high regard across the region 

and received positive feedback from the CIW Assurance visit in 2021. 

We have seen an increase in safeguarding activity and an increase in the complexity 

of referrals with up to 25 referrals a week. Our risk management was highlighted as 

effective by the CIW: 

 

 
 
 

 

A robust regional approach to managing new and existing Deprivation of Liberty 

Safeguard authorisations was agreed during the pandemic. This approach ensures 

the principles of the Mental Capacity Act are upheld and is consistent with the 

guidance received from Welsh Government. As a result, we are well prepared for the 

implementation of the new Liberty Protection Safeguards in April 2023.  

 

The number of DOLS applications has been consistent during the past 12 months. 
Due to the visiting restrictions in place for care homes, the assessments have been 
undertaken remotely in line with national guidance and good practice. Assessments 
are prioritised in terms of urgency and a robust audit process is in place for ensuring 
the principles of the Mental Capacity Act (2005) are followed. 
 

Technology Enabled Care 

Llesiant Delta Wellbeing is wholly owned by the Council and was created to enable 
us to innovate and deliver care. The service has been invaluable in enabling us to 
respond to the needs of vulnerable people during the pandemic. Employing close to 
150 people and providing services both regionally and nationally the service is one of 
the UK leaders in delivering innovative Technology Enabled Care (TEC)  
 
Carmarthenshire took the best of integrated health and social care practice in Spain 
and developed the TEC CONNECT project. This innovative service provides 24 hour  
proactive integrated tele-monitoring and wellbeing calls, wellbeing plans and 
community-based support pathways with a rapid response team when vulnerable 
users are in crisis. The rapid response element of the service is now registered with 
CIW and has had a recent inspection which was hugely positive.  
 

Co-produced solutions were evident and there were positive outcomes for 

people subject to safeguarded interventions. Safeguarding enquiries and 

investigations conducted in line with statutory requirements, good analysis of 

risk, protection plans in place and action taken when necessary. Providers 

and partners said they were supported by the adult safeguarding team; their 

willingness to offer advice, guidance and assist with training of social care 

workers was acknowledged. 

 
“Care Inspectorate Wales (CIW) 2021” 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 55



12 

  

The total number of individuals who have been supported via CONNECT in 
Carmarthenshire is 3089 with Carmarthenshire having the most people in Wales 
supported by telecare. 
 
The service has been acknowledged as best practice in the UK exemplifying the 
work that is being achieved across sectoral boundaries and is delivering an 
innovative, person-centred approach to wellbeing, care and support. CONNECT has 
helped transform the way we deliver care, by implementing this new model of self-
help and pro-active care, utilising TEC, which is at the heart of the project, to improve 
wellbeing, helping people to stay independent for longer and reducing demand on 
long-term or acute care. CONNECT provides a wrap-around service which allows 
people to remain confident and safe at home and in the community.  
 
The Community Rapid Response Service has attended over 5800 calls to clients’ 
homes since April 2020 ensuring that they are receiving the right help at the right 
time. With only 7% of those calls needing to be escalated to the emergency services 
a high proportion of CONNECT clients who have suffered a non-injurious fall, have 
avoided a long-lie and ultimately a lengthy conveyance to hospital due to 
unprecedented waits for ambulances and have been lifted off the floor and supported 
by the team. 
 
We have recently embedded our service in both acute hospital sites with Delta Wellbeing 
Officers who are able to offer information and advice on site and triage new referrals to 
determine whether patients need further assessment. They are a critical link between the 
hospital ward and social care to make sure that we make the discharge process as 
streamlined as possible.  
 
We have worked hard to develop the expertise of our front-line Response and TEC 
Officers over the last year, specifically developing skills that allow them to identify issues of 
concern. Their “eyes on” within the property is invaluable to identify any concerns for an 
individual’s wellbeing and ensure the appropriate escalation or response. 
 
The Community Response Team has been expanded to assist patients to return home 
safely, ensuring the right support is available to prevent re-admission. As well as 
emergency bridging packages of care where there is a start date for someone leaving 
hospital. This service has enabled clients to return home from hospital sooner and freed 
up hospital bed spaces during what continues to be a challenging time for our local 
hospitals and domiciliary care services.  
 

 

“People and their relatives speak positively about the time-limited care and 
support they receive through Llesiant Delta Wellbeing and the ongoing support 

and reassurance provided through CONNECT, the non-regulated part of the 
service. Care staff demonstrate a good knowledge of the needs of the people 

they support and an enthusiasm for working for Llesiant Delta Wellbeing.” 

“Care Inspectorate Wales (CIW) 2022” 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 56



13 

As we continued to raise the 
profile of the CONNECT service 
and the essential support it has 
provided to date, Delta have been 
recognised in a number of high-
profile awards across various 
categories from innovation, digital 
impact, partnership working, care 
and health integration and 
transformation.  In 2021 Delta 
received a Silver Award in the 
iESE Public Sector 
Transformation Awards for 
‘Innovation’ and were also a 
winner at the Swansea Bay 
Business Awards 2021 for 
‘Customer Service’. Finally in 
2022 Delta Connect won in the 
prestigious UK wide Management 
Journal Awards for the best 
example of care and Health 
Integration. 
 
The future potential for telecare 
and telehealth is significant and 
detailed work is underway to 
integrate the service with 
assistive living in Pentre Awel, 
Llanelli and wider monitoring and 
intervention of chronic conditions. 

 

Children Services 

Children’s services have continued to function effectively throughout the pandemic 
and lockdowns and work has had to continually evolve and adapt to ensure our staff, 
and the children and families we visit stay safe whilst following Welsh Government 
guidelines in respect of Covid restrictions. The pandemic has also continued to 
demonstrate the benefits and opportunities of digital working which has often 
increased engagement, especially with those who may not have otherwise been in 
regular contact, thus providing better insight and opportunities and helping improve 
outcomes.  Whilst Covid has dominated the last two years it is also important to 
reflect on the challenging work and innovative ways our workers have adopted 
throughout the pandemic in continuing to support children and families. 
 
Progress during the year: 
 
The impact of the Covid pandemic has placed significant pressures on families and 
brought about unprecedented challenges to ensure children and young people in 
Carmarthenshire are safeguarded.  Children’s services have seen significant 

Tudalen 57



14 

increase in demand for services and support with the number of contacts to the 
department continuing to rise. 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

However, we continue to perform well despite these added pressures.  90.2% of new 

assessments were completed within statutory timescales.  The increase in contacts 

coupled with staff absence/sickness, Covid restrictions and recruitment difficulties 

have all been additional challenges resulting in some caseloads higher than normal. 

Also, within preventative services the increase in demand and effects of Covid and 

restrictions there has been less availability thus placing more pressure on statutory 

services.    

 
There continues to be good evidence in the sample of assessments that are 

audited monthly of the views of children and what life is like for them, and 

practitioners are using a wider range of tools to enable this.  There is evidence of 

collaborative work with children, parents, and extended family and increasingly 

assessments refer to the contribution that a Family Network Meeting has made to the 

assessment in terms of identifying sources of support and family/friends who have 

helped devise a safety plan that ensure a child’s needs are met appropriately.   

 
The relationship based approach to delivering social work services to children 
and families, incorporating systemic thinking and the principles of Signs of Safety is 
embedded in all childcare teams including the 0-25 disability service.  Contributions 
from adult services in pods are also increasing such as substance misuse and 
learning disability to incorporate different perspectives about a family into pod 
discussions and consequent actions and plans.   
 
Pod discussions are taking place face to face again instead of remotely wherever 
possible.  It is seen as more effective sharing thoughts and knowledge about cases 
and staff value this peer support as it helps reduce feelings of isolation.   

 

 

    

    

    

    

     

     

                                                                      

                                                      

                      

Tudalen 58



15 

Mandatory sessions for social workers in their first year of practice will include input 
on systemic practice enabling social workers from both children’s and adult services 
to have opportunities to develop their knowledge and skills. Over 20 managers and 
senior social workers have completed foundation level training this year which has 
extended their knowledge and confidence in using systemic thinking and ensuring a 
consistent approach.  
 
The focus remains on Family Network Meetings which is an essential tool in both 
assessment and childcare teams.  In collaboration with ‘Collective Space’ 
practitioners have developed a training package which will be delivered on a regular 
basis in future, in addition to more specialist risk assessment training. 
We have continued to follow regional threshold and multi-agency child protection 
arrangements ensuring early intervention and utilisation of preventative services to 
reduce the need for statutory involvement wherever possible.  A regional 
development day was held in May 2021 facilitated by Gladys White OBE which was 
an opportunity for staff to consider legislation, guidance, and child protection practice 
across the region and to ensure risks are understood and consistently applied.    
The session was well received, and feedback highlighted the benefit of workers 

having time to reflect and work alongside colleagues from different agencies, and 

across other LA’s in the region, and provided assurance that arrangements are 

working effectively across the region.   

The number of children on the child protection register has increased this year – 

102 (as at 31/3/22) compared to 78 the previous year.  Recent times have proved 

very challenging to families due to the pandemic.  Families have faced difficulties in 

relation to safeguarding issues when under Covid restrictions which has meant some 

children’s names having to be placed onto the child protection register to ensure their 

safety under demanding circumstances.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                         

                  

 
  
  
  
  
   
   

                                                

                                   

Tudalen 59



16 

We continue to develop our preventative work to reduce the number of children 
being subject to child protection plans.  Prevention is the key to practice to ensure 
children are able to remain at home with friends or family when it is safe to do so. 
The impact of the pandemic was felt acutely in this part of the service. The 
withdrawal of face-to-face preventative services meant that families became more 
isolated and as a result we have seen more children entering the statutory service, 
some as child protection cases. It is crucial that services now operate fully on a face 
to face basis.   
 
The statutory childcare teams are supported by IFST, Edge of Care and Family 
Intervention Team with intensive packages of support implemented in a variety of 
ways to keep children safe.  The effectiveness of systemic approaches and signs of 
safety working practices, including effective communication, and working together 
with families contribute to good outcomes, despite the increasing complexity of 
cases.   We continue to perform well in relation to the timeliness of child 
protection conferences with 98.6% held within statutory timescales during 2021/22. 
 
Wales has amongst the highest numbers of children in public care in the Western 
world. Reducing this is a national priority. However, whilst we have seen the number 
of children looked after increase 167 (as at 31/3/22) from 148 at the same time last 
year, Carmarthenshire still remains proportionately the lowest LAC population in 
Wales.  The rise is in part explained by several young children looked after who are 
being moved onto permanency at an early stage due to abuse and neglect with 
families suffering mental health and substance misuse.  There has also been a 
cohort of teenagers who have presented significantly challenging and complex needs 
and have required more specialist services.   The development of an inhouse 
specialist residential unit later this year on the Rhydygors site will take away 
complete reliance on an independent sector that is judged by national reports to 
have failed to meet need and used national demand to increase profits beyond what 
is reasonable. This will enable us to only work with external providers who offer 
quality care with reasonable levels of profit. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

                         

                      

 
  
   
   
   
   

                                         

             

Tudalen 60



17 

We have continued to work hard across teams to maintain placement stability for 
looked after children and focus on the careful matching of placements.   During 
2021/22, 11 children (6.6%) of children experienced 3 or more placement moves.  
These were due to children and young people who had experienced emotional and 
physical trauma, challenging behaviours, and complex needs.  We continually 
perform well in maintaining children in the same school.   
 
There are robust systems in place to prevent children from becoming looked after 
including Accommodation panel where requests for placements are reviewed, 
together with IFST and Edge of Care involvement, focusing on good quality family 
network meetings and regular Legal Gateway and Pre-proceeding meetings.  Early 
intervention working in partnership with families through care and support plans is 
key to achieving this. As mentioned previously, the pandemic has had an impact in 
this area and this has been compounded by a significant social work vacancy factor 
that the local authority is working to address. 
 
The LAC education team has continued to deliver weekly trauma informed practice 
and attachment training online and in schools in Carmarthenshire throughout 2021-
22.  Schools have provided very positive feedback as it has helped staff understand 
how trauma impacts on children and how schools can use strategies to help children 
who have experienced trauma in their lives to feel secure in school and subsequently 
enable them to achieve better outcomes. We have consistently performed well in 
respect of maintaining children in the same school wherever possible.   
 
Choice of available foster carers is something we continue to make slow but steady 
progress on.  We have recruited 12 new foster carers during 2021/22 which is an 
improvement as previously the pandemic had impacted on recruitment with low 
numbers of people interested in fostering. Nevertheless, placement availability has 
been limited by the increased numbers being received into care. The National 
Fostering Framework has been replaced under the new name of Foster Wales which 
was launched on 15th July 2021 and is now the statutory responsibility of 
Adoption/Wales Management.   We have continued to develop our digital marketing 
programme and use of our local website alongside the Regional Marketing Officer to 
promote foster care both locally and regionally as many more carers are needed to 
care for children especially those with challenging and complex needs.   
 
Regional working together continues to drive through common aims and objectives 

such as developing the harmonisation of fees/allowances and support services to 

retain foster carers across the region and locally.  Carmarthenshire foster carers 

receive 24 hour support along with training, mentoring, and support groups to meet 

their learning and development needs, as well as financial resources and support.  

The Marketing and Recruitment officer in the Mid and West Wales Adoption Service 

continues to link with the fostering service to share recruitment opportunities and 

resources.   

 

Foster carers are a valuable commodity and it is likely that rates will have to be 

reviewed to reflect cost of living increases if we are to retain the ones we have. 

Demand for Mid and West Adoption Services (MWAS) has remained high.  

Although the number of children with a plan for adoption and the number adopted 

Tudalen 61



18 

fluctuates, the demand for adoption services has carried on rising.  MWAS has been 

able to place sibling groups this year as well as older children and children with more 

complex needs.  MWAS is implementing the Wales Good Practice Guides and a 

one-off meeting between birth parent and adopter is offered in nearly all instances.  

Adopters and birth parents are positive about the benefits of this meeting, despite its 

emotional nature.   

 

To enable adopters to know more about the child`s lived experience and what may 

affect them, MWAS holds ‘Understanding the Child’ days, and the psychologist 

assists staff to compile a Trauma Nurture Timeline for each child.  This greatly helps 

the adopters explore the impact on the child of their early experiences and helps 

tailor the support package that is made available to the adoptive family.  Demand for 

adoption support continues to be high.   

 

Welsh Government funding for adoption support has increased the capacity of 
MWAS to support adoptive children and families. Whilst we are reaching more 
families and providing a range of interventions, demand continues to grow.  As with 
other services Covid restrictions, staff absence/shortages and recruitment have been 
additional challenges for Adoption and Fostering services this year. 
 
We have continued to develop our services for disabled children aged 0-25 since 
implementing the new structure during 2020/21 bringing together our statutory and 
non-statutory teams for children and young people.  These have been jointly 
delivered between children’s services, adult social care, health, and education and 
employ a systemic approach to practice working with the whole family, focusing on 
their strengths and capabilities in order to meet their needs.  We have seen an 
increased demand for support from families as an impact of the pandemic.  We 
continue to meet with parents each month as part of our ‘working together’ group and 
with their input we designed and delivered a range of activities over the summer and 
winter.    We have continued to develop the Early help service and the recently 
appointed manager will have an important role in managing demand into the service 
to ensure families get the right help at the right time.   Work has been undertaken 
with partners to develop the web based local offer of support to ensure important 
information, advice and guidance is included plus sign-posting for specific services.    
 
‘Autism Skilled Training’ for health and Social Care practitioners has continued 
during the year with over 90+ being trained to date.  Our ASD Development Officer 
has been part of a working group alongside the National Autism Team (NAT) which 
has developed the framework.  Short training and information sessions, and e-
learning modules have also been held to help people recognise and respond to 
autism, in addition to on-going and specific training delivered to our partners and 
other agencies, and further e-learning being developed for 2022/23. 
 
The Complex Needs panels for Carmarthenshire, Pembrokeshire and Ceredigion 
have been brought together to create a regional panel with Hywel Dda University 
Health Board and the inaugural Regional Panel met in July 2021. 
 
The implementation of a Resource Allocation System (RAS) has not yet been 
taken forward due to operational priorities.  However, this remains an important piece 

Tudalen 62



19 

of work and progress to date will be taken to the Regional Children’s Board to be 
developed as a regional project with support from the West Wales Care Partnership 
Team. 
 
The programme of improvement across our residential services for children has 
continued.  Care and support arrangements for disabled young people who are 
moving on from residential care/foster care has been developed.  Utilisation of staff 
from the children’s setting to transfer and aid the transitional period helps ease such 
a big move.  The first transition has been completed and was successful for the 
individual involved.   
 
The homes are recovering well from the difficulties posed during Covid restrictions.  
Staff are working more freely between homes, and this is becoming the ethos of the 
service enabling us to be responsive in directing support where needed. Young 
people themselves have been involved in the planning, design, and appointment of 
care staff.  We have continued to play an active role in the regional partnership 
Board and lead on several workstreams to transform health and care services in the 
West Wales region. 
 
The Corporate Parenting Panel resumed meeting virtually since November 2021 to 
monitor and scrutinise the care and support that the Local Authority provides to our 
Looked After Children and Care Leavers.  Throughout the Covid pandemic all 
Looked after children and care leavers have continued to be supported via the 
childcare teams and corporate parenting service to ensure they are safeguarded and 
receiving good quality care which has enabled them to reach their potential.   
A number of Care Leavers are studying in colleges and Universities and others 
participating in training which is a great achievement for the young people. In 
addition, a number of Care Leavers are graduating from universities, and 
subsequently taking up professional positions in the community.  
 
The Corporate Parenting Service is also regularly monitoring the outcomes of 
Looked After Children through the MALAC (Multi-Agency Care Management 
meetings) and CYSUR Audit and Evaluation Meetings that have continued to take 
place virtually through 2021-22 to ensure the council fulfils its corporate parenting 
role and progress is monitored as part of the Corporate Parenting Strategy.  Whilst 
the pandemic created challenges for children’s services throughout 2021-22 the 
outcomes being achieved for Looked After Children and Care Leavers in 
Carmarthenshire has remained overwhelmingly positive. 
 
Creating more housing options for vulnerable young people has faced a significant 
delay due to Covid.  However, we are working closely with partner agencies to 
implement a 16-25 housing transformation plan which aims to decommission a 
number of current providers in the Tyisha area of Llanelli and replace with smaller 
accommodation with increased support for young people.  The aim is to achieve this 
by September 2022.  Following work between the Housing Department, 
Commissioning Services, Youth Support Service, and Children’s Services, we 
anticipate new supported accommodation will be available by September 2022.  
Young people at risk of becoming homeless or those who are experiencing 

homelessness will now have the opportunity of being offered more supported 

accommodation in smaller housing projects within their communities as opposed to 

Tudalen 63



20 

larger supported accommodation which was mainly based in Llanelli.  Increased 

support will also be available to ensure they are supported to achieve better 

outcomes.   

 

In addition, children’s services successfully applied for funding from the Housing 
Support Grant to develop an in-house Supported Lodgings service to increase 
capacity for supported lodgings placements for vulnerable young people aged 16-25.  
It aims to provide 24 placements for our young people including those who 
experience more complex needs.   Staff are currently being recruited to run the 
service and it is hoped it will start to provide placements to young people within the 
next few months. 
 
There is a new structure in place for Electively Home Educated children (EHE).  
The number of families electing to educate their children at home has increased 
since 2020 and is continuing to increase.   There are currently 565 children known to 
be electively home educated (541 statutory school age and 24 pre-school age).  The 
most common reason for opting to home educate has been due to the Covid 
pandemic. It’s a policy area where repeated recommendations for a strengthening of 
national guidance have been rejected by Welsh Government despite the Children’s 
Commissioner, ADSSC (Directors of Social services) ADEW (Directors of Education) 
and the national safeguarding board all recommending action by government, the 
position of the promised guidance remains delayed by years despite multiple drafts 
and consultation. This is an area identified as a risk by the Mid and West Wales 
Safeguarding Board. 
 
The level of engagement with EHE families continues to increase with 90% of 
children having had a visit within the last 12 months.  Welsh Government funding has 
enabled us to strengthen the team on a temporary basis, and grant funding has also 
contributed towards a number of schemes and initiatives for EHE families and 
feedback has been positive.  One of our Home Education Advisors has recently 
received a gold KIT award from home education charity “Education Otherwise”.  This 
award recognises officers who have achieved high standards in their role, nominated 
by home educating families. 
 
Team Around the Family (TAF) are continuing to re-shape their service to meet 
future need.  The TAF-in-Schools team has been amalgamated with the TAF Central 
team as part of the reshaping TAF to be a more efficient, place based, and 
community focused organisation.  TAF are continuing to develop links with the third 
sector, and work closely with schools, Safeguarding and Attendance and Early Help 
team as part of the behaviour support agenda. The team have operated at a much 
reduced capacity (less than 50%) to meet the needs of families primarily through 
digital means.  The first peer parent support group is in the early stages of 
development going forward into 2022/23. 
 
The Family Information Service (FIS) has kept families and professionals up to 
date by providing information and advice via a variety of methods.  During 2021/22 
there have been 1866 enquiries to the FIS website.  FIS Social media channels are 
continuing to grow and are an excellent means of communication.  As well as 37,363 
website hits, engagement via Facebook reached 31,247 and Twitter 33.4K.   The 
Child Development Fund provides additional support to children and families who are 

Tudalen 64



21 

in greatest need and disadvantage especially due to Covid to ensure needs are 
identified early before they escalate.  During the year, 178 families benefitted from 
the CDF with 187 children being supported.   
 
Promotion of the Childcare Offer has continued with vigorous and multi-media 
advertising.  During 2021/22 the number of enquiries to the webpage was 463, with 
12,168 hits to the webpage.  On average 500-600 children accessed the childcare 
offer each month during 2021/22.  The new national digital service is planned to be 
rolled-out nationally in January 2023.  Carmarthenshire is participating in a small pilot 
working with Ceredigion commencing September 2022.   
 
All Families First projects have been providing a broad range of support to 
families/young people in a variety of locations including schools, office/community 
basis and families’ homes as well as continuing to provide support virtually.    
Projects continue to face challenges including Covid related staff sickness, families 
contracting Covid, working with limited group numbers and pre booked appointments 
are still required.  As restrictions ease, projects are working with greater numbers of 
individuals and are reporting an increase in referrals.  FF Projects have benefitted 
from additional short-term grants from WG which has helped meet demand for 
support and enabled support from other agencies:   
 
During 2021-22: 
 
6792 individuals supported from the FF programme, of which 4876 (72%) were new 
individuals. 
 
3569 families supported from the FF programme, of which 2683 (75%) were new 
families (as a result of working with people on a one-to-one basis) 
 
591 single agency JAFFs were closed with a forward movement of 551 (93%) on the 
distance travelled tool.  
 
16 cases were stepped up to Social Services, of which 1 of those cases were 
stepped up to Ceredigion and 86 cases were stepped down from Social Services to 
the FF programme. 
 
In most cases support has been provided on a one-to-one basis due to Covid 
restrictions.   As projects have increased their face-to-face support, there has been 
an increase in the number of families stepping down from Children’s Services into 
preventative services which will now help alleviate some pressures in statutory 
services. 
 
Collaborative work has continued within Flying Start (FS) providing a holistic 

approach to communicate and engage with families, sharing ideas and resources.  

The Flying Start App has been integral in engaging families, keeping them informed 

and providing vital information. We have used mobile data devices to help families 

unable to download the app. The FS team met with WG to evaluate the success of 

the App, especially during Covid, with an aim of it being rolled out to other LA`s.  

Challenges have continued due to ongoing Covid restrictions and lack of access to 

suitable venues for face-to-face delivery. Staffing issues due to Covid and vacancies 

Tudalen 65



22 

have also made it difficult to run full services.  Language and Play (LAP) services 

have worked closely with the advisory teacher and educational psychologist has 

enabled them to offer bespoke support to individual childcare settings to support 

children’s developing communication skills.  

 

Direct Care Provision/Commissioned Care   
 
Care Homes  
 

Care Homes have been amongst the hardest hit by Covid. Thankfully, the roll out of 

the vaccination programme and the high take up amongst residents and health and 

social care staff has meant that in the majority of cases residents and staff are no 

longer becoming seriously unwell with Covid. However, it is still something that we 

need to manage carefully and the Welsh Government and Public Health Guidance 

still means that we are seeing ongoing patterns of having to close care homes to 

new admissions for significant periods of time.  

 

We are hopeful that as the evidence is now showing that the effect of the vaccination 

programme has significantly lowered the risk to care home residents that we will start 

to see the guidance change and move away from the need to isolate new residents 

on admission and close care homes to new admissions when there are a number of 

cases. Clearly, each instance of Covid cases needs to be managed on a risk 

assessed basis, but we are hopeful that greater discretion will be given to 

Responsible Individuals to take risk-based decisions on how to operate their homes.  

 

In the last year, 61 care homes (across older people, learning disability and mental 

health) have been under exclusion (incident status), with several homes being under 

exclusion on numerous occasions. However, in the last year we have seen only one 

home where Covid infection has led to significant levels of serious illness and death of 

residents.  

 
Most of the care and support in Carmarthenshire is delivered by the independent 
commissioned sector. The Commissioning Team in Carmarthenshire has continued 
to play a significant part in supporting these services during the pandemic. The range 
of support has included: 
 

• Coordination of the numerous communications and guidance. 

• Coordination and supply of PPE. 

• Proactive communications with providers.  

• Support for risk assessments surrounding admissions/returns from hospital. 

• Initiating provider performance arrangements to address any Covid or other 
concerns in relation to service provision. 

• Support with testing and infection control.  

• Financial support.  

• Coordination of support and liaison with care homes experiencing outbreaks. 

Tudalen 66



23 

Visiting care homes by families and friends has continued to be a challenge, but all 
care homes now have good systems in place to ensure that residents are able to 
have visitors and maintain family contact to support their wellbeing.   
 
The sector continues to experience challenges with filling vacant beds and at the 
time of writing the report we had 12% of beds vacant in Carmarthenshire. A recent 
regional market stability report has been developed and is helping us to better 
understand the risks associated with the market and to consider what capacity we 
need going forward and how we work with providers to reshape their provision to 
better meet the needs of the population. Capacity and the ability to take placements 
is impacted by the difficulty the whole sector has in recruitment, albeit recruitment 
levels have improved significantly in the last few weeks within our in-house 
residential care settings. 
 
The Population Needs Assessment has also been recently updated, which clearly 
articulates the demographic pressures linked to an increase in the population of over 
85-year-olds and higher instances of dementia. The ‘sufficiency’ assessment of the 
Population Needs Assessment combined with the Market Stability Assessment of 
regulated services will provide a strong foundation for strategic planning for the next 
five years.  
 
It is fair to say however that the impact of Covid has led to individuals and families 
making quite different decisions about their long-term care. People are choosing to 
remain at home much longer than they might have prior to the pandemic because of 
the much-publicised impact that Covid has had on care homes. The number of 
commissioned placements has decreased considerably as per the graph below. This 
is in part due to increased reluctance of people making this choice post covid, partly 
availability of beds and an increased reliance on community packages to meet need. 
 
 

 

700

750

800

850

900

950

Ja
n

-1
8

M
ar

-1
8

M
ay

-1
8

Ju
l-

1
8

Se
p

-1
8

N
o

v-
1

8

Ja
n

-1
9

M
ar

-1
9

M
ay

-1
9

Ju
l-

1
9

Se
p

-1
9

N
o

v-
1

9

Ja
n

-2
0

M
ar

-2
0

M
ay

-2
0

Ju
l-

2
0

Se
p

-2
0

N
o

v-
2

0

Ja
n

-2
1

M
ar

-2
1

M
ay

-2
1

Ju
l-

2
1

Se
p

-2
1

N
o

v-
2

1

Ja
n

-2
2

M
ar

-2
2

C
lie

n
ts

Month end

Elderly & Physical Disabilities Long Term Accommodation 
Clients at month end

Tudalen 67



24 

There has been unprecedented financial support to the care sector with vacancies 
paid through much of the pandemic even when costs reduced as numbers fell. The 
decrease in commissioned care home beds is now likely to be having a financial 
impact on care homes although there is no evidence at this stage that their viability is 
in question. Many need to evolve their business model to take a greater proportion of 
the elderly mentally Ill (EMI) and ensure their staffing terms and conditions match the 
market rate.  
 
Managing the mental and physical impact on staff in care settings continues to be 
one of the greatest challenges, which is compounded by the ongoing recruitment and 
retention issues linked to the workforce. We continue to provide support to external 
homes where we can and ensure that we are supporting the wellbeing of our own 
staff. We recognise that staff are tired after such a difficult two years, and we are 
doing everything we can to support them.  
 
We have provided a substantial percentage uplift to residential home fees between 
10.55% and 11.78% to enable them to pay staff at the real living wage and meet 
other inflationary pressures. 
 

Domiciliary Care 
 

We have articulated clearly what the challenges have meant in terms of the difficult 

decisions we are making surrounding people’s care, and at the time of writing the 

report we were still seeing a declining trend in commissioned care hours, although it 

has started to plateau elsewhere.  The decline is largely because of systemic 

workforce shortages across the county. 

 

Despite the challenges, we are among the most forward thinking of authorities and 

are determined to address this national issue- there are some green shoots on the 

horizon. Late last year, we went out to tender for our new Domiciliary Care 

Framework and have been successful in appointing providers to all “lots” under the 

Framework. We officially launched the Framework in March 2022 and will be 

gradually moving to the new commissioning arrangements over the next few months. 

The new framework will allow us to meet some of the long-standing challenges such 

as equity of provision in some of the more rural areas of the county. It will also allow 

us to develop our Community Assessment Service with both our in-house and 

external provider, which will allow as many individuals as possible a period of 

assessment before long-term care decisions are made with a view to increasing 

independence and support people to remain safe and well at home for as long as 

possible. All commissioned hours should now be paid at the real living wage or 

above and receive a mileage rate that is comparable to the local authority (45p). 

 

At the time of writing the report, we have just received the report concerning a CIW 

inspection of our in-house domiciliary care inspection. I am delighted to report that 

the feedback has been extremely positive. To receive this during a global pandemic 

and despite significant workforce challenges is quite remarkable.  

Tudalen 68



25 

The report is not yet published, however, the following is a summary of the feedback 

received: 

 

 
 
Measures to recruit and retain domiciliary care workers has become one of our core 
areas of work. We have developed a marketing campaign to try and attract people to 
want to come and work in the sector, we have provided financial incentives to 
encourage our own staff to work extra shifts and we have worked with the 
independent sector to try and improve rates of pay and consider recruitment and 
retention initiatives. As a result, the proportion of care delivered as a percentage of 
the total continues to grow and is now consistently at 38% of the market from a low 
of 22% 6 years ago. This is in line with the agreed strategy to rebalance care and 
ensure the care market in Carmarthenshire is balanced. It is intended a further 
review will be completed should we reach 50% of the market share. Reflecting the 
increasing complexity of the role, pay for our in-house teams is now up to £25,363 
PA or just over £13 an hour. Despite this market leading rate recruitment remains 
extremely challenging. 
 
I am particularly proud of this in-house workforce who have demonstrated 
remarkable resilience and commitment and continued to deliver care to our most 
vulnerable throughout this most difficult of times. Managing staff absence, whether 
that be linked to Covid, general sickness or vacancies has been extremely difficult 
and we have continued to rely on the goodwill and generosity of our staff to fill gaps 
when needed. Whilst our recruitment and retention work is currently only allowing us 
to increase numbers at a very slow rate, I hope in 2022/23 that we will once again be 
in a position to grow the workforce and get to a more sustainable position where we 
can better meet needs. 
 
To contribute to this improvement, we hope to create a joint reablement service with 
the health-board giving comparable terms and conditions, joint recruitment and 
deployment. This will, if successful move away from the overall tension within the 
system where NHS Healthcare Assistants are paid substantially more than their local 
authority equivalents. 
Regular compliance meetings with CIW for all registered services have taken place 
during 2021/22 and have been very positive. A key objective going forward is to grow 

“People and their relatives speak highly about the care and support 

they receive. Care records are person centred and reflect people’s 

individual needs. Care staff are well trained, have a good knowledge 

of the people they care for and are enthusiastic about working in the 

service. Dedicated and knowledgeable managers who are well 

supported by the Responsible Individual (RI) lead the service. The 

managers are accessible and well respected by all involved. The RI 

has good oversight of the service and there are robust systems in 

place to support this. The leadership team have good working 

relationships and a clear vision about the service.” 

 

Tudalen 69



26 

the in-house domiciliary service which will include supporting those with more 
complex needs. 
 

Complaints and Compliments 
 

Adults 
 
Adult Social Care complaints and compliments 2021/22. It provides a positive picture 
of the department’s performance in the context of 4,190 individuals that received a 
social care service from Carmarthenshire County Council during this period. This 
means that only 1% of individuals formally complained about the service they 
received. 
 

Complaints 
 
A total of 46 complaints were recorded at either Stage 1 or 2 in relation to Adult 
Social Care. 
 
Summary 
 

• 37 of the Adult Social Care complaints were investigated at the local 
resolution Stage 1. 

• 9 were recorded under the Formal Investigation of Stage 2 

• A further 41 complaints were dealt with by the department and recorded either 
as Redirects, No Further Action, on hold pending safeguarding or other. 

 
 
 
 

 

37

9

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

Stage 1 Stage 2

Number of Stage 1 & 2 Complaints

Tudalen 70



27 

Ombudsman Complaints 
 
In total, eight complaints have been escalated to the Public Services Ombudsman for 
Wales following completion of a Stage 2 investigation. Of the eight complaints, five 
were rejected and no further investigation took place. However, there are currently 
two complaints being investigated by the Ombudsman and the council had to issue 
compensation to one complainant that related to delays in the effective handling of a 
complaint relating to an external provider. Changes have been put in place to stop 
this happening again. 

 
Compliments 
 

A total of 172 Adult Social Care compliments were received in during 2021/22.  
 

                    

Children 
 
In relation to Children services, there were sixteen (16) Stage 1 complaints received.  
 
Twelve (12) of the Stage 1 complaints were not upheld.  
 
There were four (4) Stage 2 complaints investigated by an Independent Investigating 
Officer (IIO) 
 
Three (3) of the Stage 2 investigations were not upheld by outcome.  
 
Of the 4 Stage 1 complaints upheld - these focused on;  
 

“We are delighted & so thankful to XX 
& everyone who’s  involved in 

guiding  us through this transition for 
Mam. Everyone has made the 

experience so stress free especially at 
a time when it can be very emotional. 
Could I please thank each & everyone 

for all the help, support, patience & 
guidance. It has been so painless with 

all of your help.” 
 

 

“Would like to send a huge thank 
you for your kindness as my 

mums social worker. From our 
first Teams meeting with you, my 

sister and mam, you acted in 
mams best intertest and quite 

frankly saw what a character she 
was. As a family we could not 

have wished for better care and 
support from your care team. You 
came in on a days annual leave 
and certainly went above and 

beyond to help mam be 
comfortable in the last few weeks. 

Diolch yn fawr 
 L &  G” 

 

“Llawer iawn o ddiolch I chi am bob Cymorth a chyngor a gawsom fel teulu ganddoch yn 
ystod y flwyddyn ddiwethaf.  Mae’n dda gwybod fod rhywun fel chi ar gael I rol 

cefnogaeth eto os bydd angen.  Cofion cynnes iawn. 

Tudalen 71



28 

How a foster carer communicated in a meeting about the parents (complainants) 
child. During a complex legal dispute over parental contact with their child how one 
parent (the complainant) alleged preferential treatment over such contact than the 
other. 
 
The conduct of social workers carrying out a home visit for assessment/investigation 
purposes, not wearing face masks and not providing updates to the complainant on 
the assessment and investigations and that the complainant felt embarrassed by the 
visit due to lanyards being worn visible to neighbours impacting further on the 
complainant’s mental health. 
 
Concerns raised by complainants that during supervised contact they overheard 
contact staff at the venue discussing other cases which worried them in terms of 
whether their case would be discussed with others. It was established no names or 
identifying details were disclosed, but discussions did happen. 
 
All the complainants received apologies and an explanation was given in respect to 
what had happened, including reassurance of compliance with the department’s 
Covid policy/practice at that time, and relevant staff being reminded about 
confidentiality.  
 
There was one (1) upheld independently investigated Statutory Stage 2 complaint.  
This related to an adult who was subject to social services involvement when a child 
in the early 1980’s who believed should have been removed from an abusive home 
life (witnessing domestic violence).  
 
The IIO concluded there were possible missed opportunities by professional involved 
at the time, and subsequently partially upheld the complaint and compensation was 
awarded.  

Compliments  

Compliment from High Court Judge & Guardian in respect of extremely 
complex case to childcare Social Workers.  This kind of acknowledgment is 
rarely given when it should be but has been noticed on this case.    
 
Judge x expressed gratitude to the Social Work team, for its sensitive, flexible and 

common-sense approach to both the case and the family, and for the work and support 

which is being provided in the future.  The LA was also complimented on the quality of both 

its social work and legal documentation.  The Children’s Guardian made particular note of 

the Department’s work with this family in her Final Analysis, stating that she wished her 

thanks to the social work team to be put on formal record, in light of the fact that they had 

“worked tirelessly to support the family at what has been a difficult time”.  Mother has also 

formally acknowledged her gratitude to the LA for its approach with her. 

Tudalen 72



29 

 

It takes a very special person 
To do the job that you both do 

We don’t know where we would be now 
Without the help from you 

 

You stood by us as we struggled 
You were there through the good and bad 

I think I speak for all your clients 
You were the guardian angels when we were sad 

 

You guided us through our bad days 
You taught us so much too 

If ever someone needs help like this 
I’ll be putting them onto you 

 

Sometimes you may feel unappreciated 
Some people may treat you bad 
But believe us when we tell you 

You are the best friends that we’ve had 
 

Without you both I don’t know what we’d have done 
Or where we would be now 

When we were down and in despair 
You showed us the Where, When, and Who 

 

We’ll never forget what you’ve both done for us 
And we will miss you in our own way 

We’ll always remember everything you’ve done 
You’re the reason we are who we are today 

 

Thank you so much for all you’ve done for us 
Throughout all our troubles and strife 

It’s guardian angels like you both 
That deserve the best in life 

 

Never put yourself or what you do down 
We’ve gained two very special friends 
I hope all that happiness you deserve 
Will be there when this journey ends 

 

Thank you both from the bottom of our hearts 
 
Poem written by a young person to her child care Social Workers to recognise 

the difference they have made to their life. 
 

 

 

Legal Team. Children’s Guardian, and Barrister feedback to childcare Social worker 
 

Excellent work it was a complex case and you managed this exceptionally well.  The 
Guardian has fed back how impressed she was with your conduct of the case, your 
relationship with the three children as well as your final evidence, your detailed care plans 
and your oral evidence in court last week. The judge also referred to your comprehensive 
assessments of both parents in his judgment.  You gave evidence clearly and understood 
what was best for the children... and gone above and beyond to provide the parent 
opportunities to engage.   

 

Tudalen 73



30 

Performance Framework 

With the introduction of the Social Services and Well-being Wales Act, the Local Authority 

undertook a survey of people who use their Social Care Services via an annual 

questionnaire. The survey was conducted between March 2022 and May 2022 a response 

rate of 24%. 

The findings of the survey were positive and consistent with previous years.  

• 90% of respondents felt that they live in a home that best supports their 
wellbeing. 

• 57% answered ‘Yes’ they could do the things that were important to them. 

• 55% felt that they were part of a community 

• 88% were happy with the support they received from family, friends, and 
neighbours. 

• 83% stated they felt safe from any kinds of abuse physical harm or from falling 
both inside and outside their home. 

• 82% of respondents new who to contact about the care and support 

• 75% of people stated they thought they had the right information or advice 
when needing it.  

• 77% of respondents were involved in decisions. 

• 91% were able to communicate in their preferred language 
 

Full report can be available from the Performance, Analysis & Systems Team  

Workforce 
 
Having the very best people working for the Authority means the very best social 
care can be provided for our people in the community.  It is important that staff feel 
proud about the social care they provide and feel they are connected to the local 
communities and the teams they work within. 
 
I cannot stress enough how much our staff have continued to step up to the 
challenge and go above and beyond what is expected of them. The pressures 
continue to be immense, and without their flexibility and resilience we would not have 
a service to deliver. I recognise that being a social care worker, social worker, 
occupational therapist or staff who support our back-office functions is at times an 
impossible task within the context of the challenges we now face. However, despite 
everything, they continue to display the highest levels of compassion and empathy to 
the people they work with and are doing everything possible to help them achieve 
the best possible outcomes.  
 
However, the position across the country is stark with the office for National Statistics 
seeing pay in the public sector falling in real terms by 4.5% last year. This impacts on 
our ability to recruit and retain the staff we need and, with over 1.3 million vacancies 
across the UK it is likely that recruitment will remain a challenge for some time. 
 
To tackle this challenge the work that we are doing on recruitment and retention will 
be critical to grow and develop our workforce giving them real reasons to stay and 
develop their careers. To this end, I chair a social care recruitment and retention 

Tudalen 74



31 

working group which has developed our overall plan and is ensuring that it is 
delivered. Initiatives developed include: 
 

• Overseas recruitment as well as how we ensure that all our staff are able to 
access appropriate career paths to encourage them to stay with us.  

• Comprehensive advertising strategy  

• A significant expansion of traineeships and secondments  

• The development and launch of a Care Academi to deliver a career pathway 
for care staff 

• Systematic job role reviews to ensure our roles reflect the task needed 
 
We work closely with the trade unions and we are currently considering what actions 
we can take to support Homecare staff with the massive impact of fuel rises. 
 
We recognise that the last two years has had a huge emotional and psychological 
impact on many of our staff, and this should not be underestimated. As a 
department, we have encouraged staff to come forward as Wellbeing Champions 
and now have a Wellbeing Champions Group who meet regularly to work through 
some of the wellbeing challenges and put suggestions for areas of improvement 
through to our Departmental Management Team. We are also providing dedicated 
wellbeing support at team level where we are experiencing challenges. 
 
We asked a question to all staff in the Department if they would “Rate Your Division 

as an Employer” to understand their experience working in the department and 

Division.  The response was consistent with pervious years as “Good ”, despite the 

ongoing pressures. 

 
 

Carmarthenshire County Council care workers have been recognised in the 

Queen’s New Year’s Honours list for their services to health and social care 

during the Covid-19 pandemic. 

Lisa Randell, a Support Worker and Lyndsay McNicholl, Care Home Manager 

at Llys Y Bryn Residential Home in Llanelli, were awarded the British Empire 

Medal (BEM) for their dedication and determinations shown throughout the 

crisis. 

                                                 

 

 

Tudalen 75



32 

Welsh Language  
 

Within the Communities Department, we have ensured the active offer is a priority, 

and this was recognised in a recent CIW inspection of Domiciliary care. CIW noted 

that in line with Carmarthenshire’s policy and direction, the service provides an 

'Active Offer' of the Welsh language. It anticipates, identifies, and meets the Welsh 

language and cultural needs of people who use, or may use the service. 

 

Whilst the Welsh Language Board has not met as frequently during the Pandemic, 

access to training has continued and a total 72 staff have completed their training. 

The sustainability of the Welsh language depends on providing enough educational, 

cultural and social opportunities to use the language daily and this is an essential 

part of our workforce strategy.  

Within 2022 we have a workshop planned to refresh our Welsh Language strategy 

within the department. The promotion of the Welsh language and culture is a priority 

for the Communities department as it is at the heart of our communities in 

Carmarthenshire. 

A revision of our strategy will provide the opportunity for us to build on the work that 

has already been done in Carmarthenshire, and create the conditions that will enable 

the Welsh Language to thrive, to ensure it can be seen and heard in our 

communities and amongst our workforce. The strategy will support and contribute to 

the Welsh’s Government’s vision to create a million Welsh speakers in Wales by 

2050. 

In our annual survey to people receiving care and support 91% were able to 

communicate in their preferred language. 

 

“People receive care and support that meets their needs. Staff are 

knowledgeable, caring and take pride in the care and support they provide. 

Personal plans provide good information about the individual and daily 

records support these. The service provides an 'Active Offer' of the Welsh 

language. Many of the staff are Welsh speakers, which means people are 

able to communicate in Welsh or English as they choose.” 

Care Inspectorate Wales (CIW)  
 

“We found the Welsh language ‘Active Offer’ was being promoted with 
recognition of people’s first language recorded and services being delivered in 
people’s chosen language. Preferred language is recognised as a key factor in 

building effective relationships between people and practitioners. “ 
 

Care Inspectorate Wales (CIW) Assurance Check 2021: 
Carmarthenshire County Council 

Tudalen 76



33 

 

Conclusion and Next Steps 
 

Children’s Services 

No Action 

 
By 

Who 
 

1 We will continue to transform children’s social work practice through 
a Relationship based approach that incorporates systemic thinking 
and the principles of Signs of Safety.             

 

2 We will continue effective management oversight & challenge of 
Assessments & Care & Support plans to ensure they are outcome 
focused, evidencing the voice of the child, & reflect the underpinning 
principles of the Social Services & Well-being Act (SSWBA)           

 

3 We will review and monitor the implementation of the Corporate 
Parenting Strategy ensuring the council fulfils its Corporate 
Parenting role and that our looked after children and care leavers 
have the opportunity to reach their full potential     

 

4 We will continue to develop and deliver the early intervention 
support services (0-25) for disadvantaged children, young people, 
and families across the county in line with the Family Support 
Strategy, utilising opportunities for integrating services across the 
Children and Communities Grant and flexible funding opportunities 
with the Housing Support Grant. 

 

5 We will maintain the focus on increasing the range of placements to 
ensure placement stability and stability in education in respect of 
looked after children, including accommodation through the 
implementation of an in-house supported lodgings service. This will 
include the development of an in-house residential service. 

 

 

Tudalen 77



34 

Adult Social Care and Integrated Services 
 

No Action By 
Who 

 

1 Develop a 10 year strategy for Social Care incorporating Children 
and adult services 

Director 

2 Develop and implement a Digital Transformation Strategy for the 
department  

GM 

3 Develop and deliver a workforce Plan to recruit, retain and develop 
staff to ensure a sustainable workforce for the future 

AB 

4 Ensure we implement the new domiciliary framework which 
effectively addresses the lack of availability of domiciliary care to 
support vulnerable adults.  

CH 

5 Re-model and grow a quality, sustainable and efficient in-house 
domiciliary care service alongside an effective private and micro 
enterprise sector 

AB 

6 Develop and implement a Prevention Strategy for Carmarthenshire 
which will include continuing to work in partnership with Delta 
Wellbeing in support of our residents 

AW 

Tudalen 78



35 

Department’s Management Structure 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

T
udalen 79



M
ae'r dudalen hon yn w

ag yn fw
riadol



 

 
 

CYMERADWYO STRATEGAETH DEMENTIA PARTNERIAETH 
GOFAL GORLLEWIN CYMRU 

Y Pwrpas:  
Gofyn i Gyngor Sir Caerfyrddin gymeradwyo'r strategaeth ranbarthol.  
 
Yr argymhellion / penderfyniadau allweddol sydd eu hangen: 
Gofynnir i aelodau gymeradwyo Strategaeth Dementia Partneriaeth Gofal Gorllewin Cymru er 
mwyn iddi fynd drwy'r broses wleidyddol i gael ei chymeradwyo'n derfynol.  
 

Y rhesymau:  
Mae'r Strategaeth hon wedi'i llunio mewn partneriaeth rhwng swyddogion y 3 Awdurdod Lleol, 
y Bwrdd Iechyd a phartneriaid yn y trydydd sector yn ogystal â phobl â dementia, eu gofalwyr, 
ac aelodau o'r teulu. Mae'n cefnogi sawl amcan allweddol yn y Cynllun Corfforaethol, a'n 
hamcan llesiant i 'gefnogi pobl hŷn er mwyn iddynt heneiddio'n dda a chadw'u hurddas a'u 
hannibyniaeth wrth wneud hynny', a bydd cymeradwyo'r strategaeth yn ein galluogi i ddarparu 
gwasanaethau yn unol ag anghenion ein cymuned.  
 
Angen i'r Cabinet wneud penderfyniad:         OES - 17 Hydref 2022 

Angen i'r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad:        OES – 9 Tachwedd 2022 

YR AELOD CABINET SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:-             
Y Cynghorydd Jane Tremlett (yr Aelod Cabinet dros Iechyd a Gofal Cymdeithasol) 

 
Y Gyfarwyddiaeth:  
Cymunedau 
 
Awdur yr Adroddiad:  
Monica Bason-Flaquer 

Swydd:  

Rheolwr Rhaglen a 
Newid, Dementia 

 

Ffôn: 07775407085  

Cyfeiriad e-bost:  
mabason-flaquer@sirgar.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Y CABINET 
17 HYDREF 2022

Tudalen 81

Eitem Rhif  8



 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
CABINET 

17TH OCTOBER 2022 
APPROVAL OF THE WEST WALES CARE PARTNERSHIP’S 

DEMENTIA STRATEGY 
In February 2021, the West Wales Care Partnership appointed healthcare consultancy Attain to 
develop a regional dementia strategy and service model pathway of care. The strategy, 
finalised in April 2022, was co-designed with officers, people living with dementia and their 
carers across West Wales. The strategy also provides a programme governance structure and 
the foundation on which to manage the Regional Integration Fund funding and ensure new 
ways of working are fully resourced.  
 
This document seeks approval of the strategy from Carmarthenshire County Council; the 
strategy is simultaneously going through the democratic processes for approval in Ceredigion 
and Pembrokeshire, and has already been approved by the Health Board.  
 
The context for this work includes: 

• Increasing focus worldwide on dementia and its impact on health and social care 
systems; prevalence is increasing year on year, mainly due to people living longer, 
particularly in high income economies. 

• The Welsh Government’s Dementia Action Plan 2018-2022. 
• The vision for Wales to be a ‘dementia friendly nation that recognises the rights of people 

with dementia to feel valued and to live as independently as possible in their 
communities’. 

• Improvement Cymru’s All-Wales Dementia Care Pathway of Standards (March 2021). 
This work, directed by the requirements of the Dementia Action Plan for Wales, is 
overseen by the Welsh Government Dementia Oversight Implementation and Impact 
Group (DOIIG). 

 
The strategy sets out a West Wales vision for dementia services, to ‘Support each person to 
live well and independently with dementia for as long as possible’, and outlines a dementia 
wellbeing pathway which focuses on streamlining pathways and placing people living with 
dementia and their carers at the centre of our service provision.  
 
Implementation of the strategy will focus on: 

• Implementing best practice within primary care, social care, care homes, domiciliary 
care and specialist services.  

• The development of the diagnostic pathway and post diagnostic support, support and 
co-ordination for people living with dementia and their carers and supporting carers to 
care for family members living with dementia.   

• Providing support, training and help to navigate/co-ordinate services to families, build 
resilience and maintain balance across all aspects of their life. 

• Improving end of life care so that people living with dementia die in a place of their 
choosing with dignity and improve co-ordination across different care providers to 
ensure they understand the end-of-life care plan. 

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? YES 

 

Tudalen 82



 

IMPLICATIONS 

 
 

  

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with 
this report: 
Signed: Alex Williams                                                                   Head of Integrated Services 
Policy, Crime & 
Disorder and 
Equalities 

Legal 
 

Finance 
 

ICT 
 

Risk 
Management 
Issues 

Staffing 
Implications 

 

Physical 
Assets  

 
YES NONE YES  NONE NONE YES  NONE 

1. Policy, Crime & Disorder and Equalities 
The Dementia Strategy supports several key objectives within the Corporate Plan, ‘Moving 
Forward in Carmarthenshire: the next 5-years’, primarily, ‘Continue to support residents 
affected by dementia and support the development of more dementia friendly and 
supportive communities across the County.’ It will also deliver work contributing to our 
wellbeing objective to ‘support older people to age well and maintain dignity and 
independence in their later years.’ 
 
An Equality Impact Assessment has been completed, highlighting the potential benefits of 
the strategy for people affected by dementia (disability), older people, and Welsh language 
speakers. The Dementia Steering Group which will oversee the delivery of the strategy also 
includes representation from Hywel Dda Health Board’s Diversity and Inclusion team to 
provide assurance that the needs of diverse groups will be considered within the 
implementation of the strategy. 
 
Any service changes or developments will be delivered in line with existing Welsh 
Language requirements, which all partners (NHS, local authorities, and third sector) are 
required to adhere to. 

Tudalen 83



 

3. Finance   
The bulk of the work that sits within the Dementia Strategy has historically been funded 
through the Integrated Care Fund (ICF), transitioning into the Regional Integration Fund 
(RIF) in 2022/2023. The West Wales Care Partnership team oversees RIF funding and 
relevant reporting back to the Welsh Government; the Dementia Steering Group oversees 
management and distribution of dementia funding within this and senior decision makers 
from both the NHS and all 3 Local Authorities are represented on this group to ensure 
appropriate authority is in place for financial decisions. 
 
The strategy has recommended a review of all projects currently funded through ICF/RIF 
funding, to ensure that the funding is delivering impact and value, and this is an ongoing 
process. Where the strategy has recommended new services be developed, such as the 
Dementia Wellbeing Connector (in line with the expectations of the national Dementia Care 
Pathway of Standards), the Dementia Steering Group will first seek to identify whether 
existing funding can be redirected to support this and any additional funding opportunities 
through the RIF. However, for this service to be delivered long-term and sustainably, it will 
require additional funding commitments from all partners involved. The Steering Group will 
ensure that any additional funding decisions and commitments are taken through the 
appropriate processes within Carmarthenshire County Council and other partner 
organisations. 
6. Staffing Implications 
Any potential staffing implications through changes to services or introduction of new 
services will comply with statutory employment legislation and the Authority’s employment 
policies. 

 

Tudalen 84



 

CONSULTATIONS 
 

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed 
below 
Signed:  Alex Williams                                                                Head of Integrated Services   
 

1. Scrutiny Committee request for pre-determination  YES 
 
Scrutiny Committee  Health & Social Services 
Date the report was considered:- 5th October, 2022 
Scrutiny Committee Outcome/Recommendations:- 
 
The Health and Social Services Scrutiny Committee endorsed the report. 

 
2.Local Member(s) NA 
3.Community / Town Council NA 
4.Relevant Partners   
The strategy is simultaneously going through democratic processes for Ceredigion and 
Pembrokeshire County Councils. The strategy was endorsed by the Regional Partnership 
Board on 16th May 2022 and has been approved by the Health Board.   
5.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations NA 
CABINET MEMBER PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER(S) AWARE/CONSULTED  
YES  

The West Wales Care Partnership’s Dementia 
Strategy, developed in partnership with the 
three local authorities, Hywel Dda University 
Health Board and third sector partners, offers 
a co-ordinated approach to develop a 
dementia friendly region delivering services to 
people at all stages of their dementia journey. 

 
Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 
 
THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW 
 
Title of Document 
 

File Ref No. Locations that the papers are available for public inspection  

Dementia Strategy 
 

To be 
completed 

Appendix 1 to this report  
 

Equality Impact 
Assessment 

To be 
completed 

Appendix 2 to this report  
 

 

Tudalen 85



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Strategaeth Ddementia 
Partneriaeth Gofal Gorllewin Cymru

1

Chwefror 2022
V19_0 DRAFFT 

T
udalen 87



Cynnwys
Tudalen Manylion

3 1. Cefndir

7 2. Crynodeb o Ddadansoddiad o Anghenion y Boblogaeth

11 3. Cynlluniau Gweithredu Presennol, Prosiectau Trawsffurfio Rhanbarthol

15 4. Beth mae Arfer Gorau yn ei Ddweud Wrthym?

22 5. Adborth o Gyfweliadau Strwythuredig

26 6. Gweledigaeth a Llwybr Llesiant Gwasanaeth Dementia Gorllewin Cymru 

39 7. Ein Dull o Weithredu Llwybr Llesiant Dementia

51 8. Y Camau Nesaf ar gyfer 2022/23

53 9. Atodiad 1: Dadansoddiad o Boblogaeth Gorllewin Cymru

60 10. Atodiad 2: Adborth o’r Cyfweliadau Strwythuredig Cychwynnol

64 11. Atodiad 3: Dull o reoli’r rhaglen waith

2

T
udalen 88



1. Cefndir

3

T
udalen 89



WWCP Draft Dementia Strategy February 2022

Cefndir

4

• Mae Partneriaeth Gofal Gorllewin Cymru (WWCP) yn dwyn ynghyd sefydliadau o’r sector statudol, y trydydd sector a’r sector 
annibynnol gyda chylch gorchwyl o integreiddio a thrawsnewid iechyd, gofal a chefnogaeth yn y rhanbarth. 

• Mae Bwrdd Partneriaeth Rhanbarthol (BPRh) statudol yn goruchwylio gwaith y WWCP. 

• Mae Grŵp Llywio Dementia rhanbarthol yn eistedd o dan y BPRh ac mae’n cynnwys cynrychiolaeth o bob rhan o’r Bartneriaeth. 
Mae’n darparu mecanwaith ar gyfer datblygu dull rhanbarthol o ofalu am bobl sy’n byw gyda dementia (PBGD) a’u teuluoedd. 
Bu’r Grŵp hwn yn gweithio’n agos gydag Attain i ddatblygu’r Strategaeth ddrafft a bydd ganddo rôl allweddol wrth fwrw ymlaen i 
weithredu camau nesaf y gwaith. 

• Mae Llywodraeth Cymru yn darparu cyllid drwy’r Gronfa Gofal Integredig (CGI) i gefnogi’r gwaith o wella gofal a chefnogaeth ar 
gyfer PBGD a’u teuluoedd. Rheolir y cyllid hwn drwy’r Grŵp Llywio Dementia a bydd yn gyfrwng i gyflawni blaenoriaethau y 
cytunwyd arnynt yn y Strategaeth.

• Partneriaid allweddol ar y WWCP yw:

• `12

Cymdeithas 
Gwasanaethau 
Gwirfoddol Sir 

Benfro

Cyngor Sir 
Caerfyrddin

Cyngor Sir 
Ceredigion

Cyngor Sir Penfro

Bwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol 
Hywel DdaCymdeithas 

Gwasanaethau 
Gwirfoddol Sir 
Gaerfyrddin

Cymdeithas 
Gwasanaethau 

Gwirfoddol 
Ceredigion

T
udalen 90



WWCP Draft Dementia Strategy February 2022

Cefndir

Ym mis Chwefror 2021, penododd WWCP Attain i weithio gyda phartneriaid i ddatblygu strategaeth ddementia ranbarthol a llwybr gofal 
model gwasanaeth. Ochr yn ochr â’r gwaith hwn, fe wnaethom gynnal adolygiad o brosiectau dementia rhanbarthol y Gronfa Gofal 
Integredig, a roddodd gyfeiriad ynghylch pa wasanaethau y dylid parhau i’w hariannu, yn ogystal ag arwydd o unrhyw fentrau ychwanegol y 
dylid ymgymryd â hwy yn ystod 2021/22. Un maes blaenoriaeth oedd i Attain ddatblygu achos busnes ar gyfer cyflwyno Cysylltydd Llesiant 
Dementia, sy’n seiliedig ar arfer gorau ac sy’n rôl gynhenid o fewn Llwybr Llesiant Dementia Gorllewin Cymru. 

Mae’r cyd-destun ar gyfer y gwaith hwn yn cynnwys:

• Y ffocws cynyddol ledled y byd ar ddementia a'i effaith ar systemau iechyd a gofal cymdeithasol; mae mynychder yr achosion yn cynyddu 
flwyddyn ar ôl blwyddyn, yn bennaf oherwydd bod pobl yn byw’n hirach, yn enwedig mewn economïau incwm uchel.

• Er mwyn egluro ei strategaeth ddementia, ym mis Chwefror 2018, cyhoeddodd Llywodraeth Cymru y ‘Cynllun Gweithredu Dementia 2018-
2022’.

• Y weledigaeth yw i Gymru fod yn ‘genedl gyfeillgar i ddementia, sy’n cydnabod hawliau pobl â dementia i deimlo eu bod yn cael eu 
gwerthfawrogi ac i fyw mor annibynnol â phosibl yn eu cymunedau’.

• Ym mis Mawrth 2021, cyhoeddodd Gwelliant Cymru Lwybr Safonau Gofal Dementia Cymru Gyfan. Caiff y gwaith hwn, dan gyfarwyddyd 
gofynion Cynllun Gweithredu Cymru ar Ddementia Cymru, ei oruchwylio gan Grŵp Goruchwylio Gweithredu ac Effaith Dementia (DOIIG) 
Llywodraeth Cymru.

• Bwriadwyd i’r ugain safon fod yn ddeinamig drwy ymateb i werthusiad a thystiolaeth ategol. Maent yn eistedd o fewn pedair thema: 
Hygyrch, Ymatebol, Taith, Partneriaethau a Pherthnasoedd a Ategir gan Garedigrwydd a Dealltwriaeth. 

• Datblygwyd y safonau gan ddefnyddio Fframwaith Cyflawni Gwelliant Cymru a disgwylir y bydd y gwaith yn canolbwyntio ar ddatblygu 
Canllaw Fframwaith Cyflawni dwy flynedd ar gyfer rhanbarthau Cymru dros y cyfnod Ebrill 2021 – Mawrth 2023.

Cyn i’r Fframwaith gael ei gweithredu, mae Attain wedi cyd-ddylunio’r strategaeth hon gyda chydweithwyr, pobl sy’n byw gyda dementia a’u 
gofalwyr ledled Gorllewin Cymru. Mae’r strategaeth lefel uchel hefyd yn darparu strwythur llywodraethu rhaglen a’r sylfaen ar gyfer ariannu 
gwasanaethau sy’n cyd-fynd â Fframwaith Cyflawni Gwelliant Cymru.

5

T
udalen 91



WWCP Draft Dementia Strategy February 2022

Argymhellion allweddolMae Attain wedi gwneud y canlynol:

Gofynion a Gweithgareddau’r Prosiect
Mae'r sleid hon yn amlinellu gofynion y prosiect, canlyniadau'r gwaith a wnaed a chamau gweithredu allweddol.

1. Strategaeth a Chynllun Cyflawni Trosfwaol ar 
Ddementia
• Hwyluso cyd-gynhyrchu strategaeth ddementia 

ranbarthol gyda rhanddeiliaid, PBGD a'u gofalwyr 
• Datblygu model cynaliadwy a chynllun cyflawni 

cysylltiedig ar gyfer y strategaeth yn y tymor canolig i'r 
tymor hwy, defnyddio ffrydiau ariannu presennol ac yn 
y dyfodol i gefnogi hyn a rhoi cyfrif i Lywodraeth Cymru 
a rhanddeiliaid eraill ar gyflawni ac effaith 

• Ystyried gofynion perchnogaeth ranbarthol ac 
arweinyddiaeth y rhaglen yn y dyfodol i weithredu a 
chyflawni'r strategaeth ddementia

• Mae angen ystyried y strategaeth ddementia a'r 
cynllun cyflawni cysylltiedig yng nghyd-destun 
demograffeg sy'n newid ar draws y rhanbarth, effaith 
hirdymor COVID-19 ar bobl â dementia a’r effaith ar    
y ffrydiau gwaith presennol fel tystiolaeth

2.  Datblygu achos busnes ar gyfer rôl rheolwr achosion 
dementia 
• Yn unol â safonau dementia Cymru Gyfan a’r 

strategaeth gofal lliniarol a diwedd oes a ddatblygwyd 
yn ddiweddar gan y Bwrdd Iechyd, datblygu achos 
busnes ar gyfer rôl rheolwr achosion dementia 

3. Gyda golwg ar y tasgau uchod roedd gofyn i Attain: 
•   Gweithio gydag amrywiaeth o randdeiliaid 

cenedlaethol a rhanbarthol, gan gynnwys swyddogion 
Llywodraeth Cymru, arweinwyr systemau, rheolwyr 
gwasanaethau, clinigwyr ac ymarferwyr, aelodau 
etholedig ac annibynnol ynghyd â defnyddwyr a 
gofalwyr fel y bo’n briodol. 

• Cynhyrchu cynigion ac adroddiadau o ansawdd 
uchel ar gyfer amrywiaeth o gynulleidfaoedd

Yr hyn a ddisgwylir: 
1. Strategaeth a Chynllun Cyflawni Trosfwaol ar Ddementia: 
• Cynhyrchu adroddiad yn dilyn adolygu arfer gorau yn  

genedlaethol a rhyngwladol 
• Gweithio gyda chydweithwyr i ddatblygu strategaeth 

ranbarthol, gweledigaeth a llwybr model gwasanaeth yn 
seiliedig ar arfer gorau 

• Mae'r strategaeth hon yn cynnwys rhaglen a strwythur 
llywodraethu arfaethedig sy'n cyd-fynd â Llywodraeth 
Cymru a strwythurau Rhanbarthol 

• Mae'r strategaeth yn cynnwys crynodeb o’r galw a’r 
mynychder presennol ac yn y dyfodol ymhlith y 
boblogaeth. Nid oes gwybodaeth ar gael ar hyn o bryd 
am effaith COVID-19 ar y rhai â dementia

• Mae rhanddeiliaid wedi nodi bod COVID-19 wedi 
effeithio ar ddiagnosis prydlon oherwydd cyflwyno’n hwyr 
a’r anallu i gael mynediad at wasanaethau asesu

2. Datblygu achos busnes ar gyfer rôl cysylltydd llesiant 
dementia: 
•   Cynnal adolygiad bwrdd gwaith ar arfer gorau mewn 

cyd-drefnu/rheoli achosion dementia a lefel baich 
achosion ar gyfartaledd 

•   Datblygu achos busnes gyda mewnbwn gan aelodau 
grŵp llywio dementia WWCP 

3. Ymgysylltu â rhanddeiliaid: 
•   Mae Attain wedi gweithio gyda rhanddeiliaid lluosog ar 

draws y rhanbarth pobl sy'n byw gyda dementia (PBGD) 
a'u gofalwyr a staff rheng flaen. Mae holl Bartneriaid 
Gofal Gorllewin Cymru wedi chwarae rhan lawn a 
chefnogol iawn yn natblygiad y strategaeth hon

1. Gweithredu strategaeth a llwybr llesiant dementia 
• Unwaith y bydd y strategaeth wedi’i chymeradwyo’n 

ffurfiol gan WWCP, cymdeithasoli argymhellion y 
strategaeth, a’r llwybr llesiant dementia er mwyn sicrhau 
bod cydweithwyr, PBGD a’u gofalwyr ledled Gorllewin 
Cymru yn cymryd meddiant ohoni. 

• Dylid datblygu cynllun cyfathrebu i redeg am oes y 
strategaeth 

• WWCP i fabwysiadu'r strwythur llywodraethu arfaethedig a 
recriwtio rheolwr rhaglen Dementia Rhanbarthol 

• Dylid datblygu achos busnes llawn er mwyn symud ymlaen 
i sefydlu rôl cysylltydd llesiant dementia  

• Dylid adolygu'r strategaeth, y weledigaeth a'r llwybr model 
gwasanaeth unwaith y bydd gwybodaeth ar gael am 
effaith COVID-19 ar y rhai â dementia a'u gofalwyr. 

• Dylid adolygu a monitro'r amser disgwyl am ddiagnosis; 
dylid dod o hyd i atebion i fynd i’r afael ag amseroedd aros 
hir, gan gynnwys cydgynllunio a datblygu’r llwybr diagnosis 
dementia rhanbarthol

2. Cynllun Dementia y Gronfa Gofal Integredig (CGI):
• Mae'r strategaeth yn argymell y dylid cynnal adolygiad o 

BOB menter a ariennir ar hyn o bryd gan y Gronfa, gan 
gynnwys edrych ar dystiolaeth o ganlyniadau, alinio cyllid i 
weithredu'r blaenoriaethau strategol, a sicrhau bod 
adnoddau llawn ar gyfer unrhyw ffordd newydd o weithio

• Datblygu dull strategol a chydgysylltiedig rhanbarthol o 
gefnogi gofalwyr – ystyried brigdorri cyllid dementia’r 
Gronfa i gynyddu elfen y gofalwyr er mwyn sicrhau parhad 
gwasanaethau, gan gefnogi’r rhai sy’n gofalu am bobl sy’n 
byw gyda dementia.

6

T
udalen 92



2. Dadansoddiad o 
Anghenion y Boblogaeth

Am ragor o wybodaeth ynghylch y dadansoddiad o’r boblogaeth gweler atodiad 1

7

T
udalen 93



WWCP Draft Dementia Strategy February 2022

Rhagamcaniad o boblogaeth y rheiny sydd â 
dementia yng Ngorllewin Cymru

Mae Cymdeithas Alzheimer’s y DU yn amcangyfrif bod dementia yn effeithio ar un ym mhob chwech 
o bobl 80+. Dengys cofnodion Gorllewin Cymru fod gan 1 ym mhob 10 o bobl dros 85 ddementia. 

1 mewn 6

Mae Ymchwil Alzheimer's yn amcangyfrif mai 53% yw cyfradd y diagnosis* ar draws Cymru, sy’n awgrymu angen presennol nad yw’n 
cael ei ddiwallu o 2,400 o gleifion ar draws Hywel Dda
 
Dengys y tabl isod BOB diagnosis o ddementia a ragwelir yn seiliedig ar gofrestrau Meddygon Teulu Gorllewin Cymru, gan ystyried y 
cynnydd yn nifer y rhai dros 85 oed a’r amcangyfrif o angen heb gael diagnosis. Nid oedd data ar restrau aros ar gael ond mae'n 
bwysig dod o hyd i ffyrdd o fonitro hyn wrth i'r galw gynyddu.
. 

*Cyfradd diagnosis yw canran y diagnosis o gymharu â’r amledd gwirioneddol a amcangyfrifir
** Mae’r amcangyfrif yn seiliedig ar gyfradd y diagnosis yn aros yr un fath ag yw yn awr, hon yw’r senario “Peidio â gwneud dim”

I roi hyn mewn 
persbectif…

Mae hyn yn gymaint â 
phawb ym Mhenfro yn 
byw â dementia.

8

Sir Pobl â 
diagnosis ar 
hyn o bryd 
(ar gofrestr 
meddyg 
teulu)

Amcangyfrif 
o’r nifer 
presennol 
heb gael 
diagnosis

Cyfanswm 
mynychder 
presennol a 
amcangyfrifir

2040 
amcangyfrif 
o’r nifer â 
diagnosis** 
(seiliedig ar y 
gyfradd  diagnosis 
bresennol)

2040 nifer a 
amcangyfrifir 
heb dderbyn 
diagnosis**

2040 
amcangyfrif o 
gyfanswm y 
mynychder

Sir Gaerfyrddin 1,363 1,208 2.571 2,035 1,793 3,828

Ceredigion 578 512 1,090 863 760 1,623

Sir Benfro 871 772 1,643 1,300 1,145 2,445

Gorllewin 
Cymru

2,812 2,492 5,304 4,198 3,698 7,896

7,896 
erbyn 
2040 (yn 

cynnwys y bobl heb 
gael diagnosis)

T
udalen 94



WWCP Draft Dementia Strategy February 2022

Diagnosis Dementia Gorllewin Cymru

Benywaidd yn 
bennaf (62%) yn 

rhannol oherwydd 
disgwyliad oes 

hirach merched

Mae 45% o gleifion 
dros 85 mlwydd oed 

a bydd y boblogaeth 
hon yn tyfu ar draws 

Hywel Dda

Prif achos 
marwolaeth yn y DU 
(cyn-COVID-19) ac 
mae’n cynrychioli 

12.7% o’r holl 
farwolaethau

Prif achosion marwolaeth, y DU hyd at 2018 (yn dangos y % ddiweddaraf o gyfanswm y marwolaethau)Cleifion ar gofrestrau Meddygon Teulu â diagnosis dementia yng Ngorllewin Cymru 

Mynychder 
Diagnosis ar draws 

Ceredigion yn 
uchaf: 0.8% o’r 

rhestr lawn

Yng Ngheredigion y 
ceir y gyfran uchaf o 

bobl dros 65, sef 
26%; y cyfartaledd 
ar gyfer Hywel Dda 

yw 25%

Mae poblogaeth 
Hywel Dda yn 

heneiddio, bydd 
dros 10% dros 85 

erbyn 2040

Mae 65% o gleifion 
dementia yn y DU yn 

ferched ac maent 
hefyd yn ffurfio dros 

60% o’r gofalwyr

Mae 84 o gleifion 
ar y gofrestr â 

dementia cynnar 
(0.06% o’r 
oedolion)

Mae 56% o oedolion 
â diagnosis cynnar* 
yn ddynion (mae 24 
yn Sir Gaerfyrddin a 

10 yng 
Ngheredigion)

Mae poblogaeth yr 
oedolion yn gostwng 
ar draws pob ardal, 

yn enwedig yng 
Ngheredigion 
(-11% 2040)

Mae gostyngiad ym 
mhoblogaeth yr 

oedolion yn lleihau’r 
gofal cefnogol ar 

gyfer y boblogaeth 
hŷn

9

* Dementia cynnar yw dechrau 
dementia pan fydd person o dan 65 
oed. Ar draws Gorllewin Cymru mae 84 
o gleifion ar y cofrestrau sydd o dan 65 
oed. O'r rheiny, mae 55 yn y grŵp 
oedran 60-65 oed. Mae hyn yn rhoi 
cyfradd o 0.04% i Orllewin Cymru ar 
draws y boblogaeth oedolion, sy'n 
debyg iawn i'r gyfradd a welir ar draws 
cofrestrau Cymru yn genedlaethol. 

%
 m

ar
w

ol
ae

th
au

Clefydau Cerebrofasgwlar, 
5.81

Neoplasm ysgyfaint, pibell 
wynt a broncws, 6.27

Clefyd resbiradol isaf cronig, 
5.14

Clefydau isgemia’r galon, 
10.4 Clefydau isgemia’r galon, 

10.4

Y Ffliw a Niwmonia, 
4.90

Blwyddyn Gwerth X 

T
udalen 95



3. Cynlluniau gweithredu 
presennol, prosiectau 
trawsnewid rhanbarthol ​

10

T
udalen 96



WWCP Draft Dementia Strategy February 2022

Lansiwyd yn 2014 
Heneiddio yng Nghymru: Trosolwg o 
safbwynt Ewropeaidd
5 blaenoriaeth i wella iechyd a llesiant 
pobl hŷn yng Nghymru:
• Cymunedau cyfeillgar i henaint
• Cymunedau sy’n cefnogi Dementia
• Atal codymau
• Unigrwydd ac arwahanrwydd
• Cyfleoedd i ddysgu a gweithio

Gall tai addas i bobl hŷn fod o gymorth i 
fynd i’r afael â phob un o’r uchod. 

Dogfennau dementia perthnasol i Gymru:

Ym mis Chwefror 2018 cyhoeddodd 
Llywodraeth Cymru
‘Cynllun Gweithredu Dementia 2018-2022’
Mae’r Cynllun Gweithredu yn egluro 
strategaeth glir ar gyfer Cymru i fod yn 
‘Genedl gyfeillgar i ddementia sy’n 
cydnabod hawliau pobl sy’n byw gyda 
dementia i deimlo eu bod yn cael eu 
gwerthfawrogi ac i fyw mor annibynnol â 
phosibl yn eu cymunedau’. 

Fframwaith Gwaith Da, Fframwaith 
Dysgu a Datblygu Dementia i Gymru

Cyhoeddwyd yn 2016 
Yn gyffredinol, nod y Fframwaith yw cefnogi 
pobl i nodi’n rhydd, yn greadigol ac yn 
gyfrifol beth yw eu hanghenion dysgu a 
datblygu penodol hwy eu hunain a mynd i’r 
afael â’r rhain o fewn cyd-destun eu 
bywydau a’u hamgylchiadau, lle bynnag y 
digwyddant fod. Bwriad y Fframwaith yw 
nid cyfyngu pobl drwy ddarparu rhestr rhy 
ragnodedig o bwy sydd angen gwybod a 
gwneud beth.
Bwriadwyd i’r Fframwaith hwn gefnogi’r hyn 
sy’n cyfrif fwyaf i bobl Cymru, yn ogystal ag 
ysbryd a gofynion polisïau, deddfwriaeth ac 
arweiniad Cymru ynghylch gofalu, cefnogi 
a galluogi pobl â dementia, eu gofalwyr a’r 
gweithlu iechyd a gofal cymdeithasol.

Heneiddio’n Dda yng Nghymru Cynllun Gweithredu Dementia Cymru 
Gyfan

Bydd y strategaeth hon a’r rhaglen gofal lliniarol a gofal diwedd oes yn y dyfodol yn tynnu ar fentrau allweddol presennol:

Llwybr Safonau Gofal Dementia 
Cymru Gyfan

Ym mis Mawrth 2021, cyhoeddodd Gwelliant 
Cymru Lwybr Safonau Gofal Dementia 
Cymru Gyfan. Goruchwylir y gwaith hwn, a 
gyfarwyddir gan ofynion Cynllun Gweithredu 
Cymru ar Ddementia, gan Grŵp Goruchwylio, 
Gweithredu ac Effaith Dementia (DOIIG) 
Llywodraeth Cymru. Bwriadwyd i’r 20 safon 
fod yn ddeinamig drwy ymateb i werthusiad 
a thystiolaeth ategol. Maent yn eistedd o 
fewn pedair thema: Hygyrch, Ymatebol, Taith, 
Partneriaethau a Pherthnasoedd a Ategir gan 
Garedigrwydd a Dealltwriaeth. Datblygwyd y 
safonau gan ddefnyddio Fframwaith 
Cyflawni Gwelliant Cymru a bydd y gwaith 
yn canolbwyntio ar ddatblygu Canllaw 
Fframwaith Cyflawni dwy flynedd ar gyfer y 
rhanbarthau ledled Cymru dros y cyfnod 
Ebrill 2021 – Mawrth 2023.

11

T
udalen 97



WWCP Draft Dementia Strategy February 2022

Darpariaeth Gofal Diwedd Oes benodol ar gyfer dementia 
y Bwrdd Iechyd – ardal Gorllewin Cymru

• Gan ddefnyddio cyllid Llywodraeth Cymru a 
hwyluswyd gan Bartneriaeth Gofal Gorllewin Cymru, 
comisiynodd Bwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Hywel Dda Paul 
Sartori a Marie Curie i ddarparu hyfforddiant ar 
Gynllunio Gofal Ymlaen Llaw a Dementia.

• Mae Uwch Nyrsys Marie Curie yn cynorthwyo cleifion 
â dementia datblygedig i gael mynediad at 
wasanaethau gofal lliniarol a diwedd oes ar draws y 
rhanbarth. Mae'r nyrsys yn cefnogi timau 
amlddisgyblaethol i gwrdd ag anghenion gofal pobl 
â dementia yn yr ysbyty, gartref ac mewn cartrefi 
gofal. Maent hefyd yn helpu i drosglwyddo gofal yn 
ddiogel ar draws lleoliadau gofal. 

• Mae Sefydliad Paul Sartori hefyd yn darparu addysg i 
amrywiaeth o gynulleidfaoedd, i’w staff eu hunain 
ond hefyd i eraill ar draws y Bwrdd Iechyd, gan 
gynnwys ar bynciau fel dementia. 

• Yn Sir Benfro mae aelodau amrywiol o'r tîm hefyd 
wedi cyfrannu at ddigwyddiadau addysgol eraill, gan 
gynnwys addysgu am Gynllunio Gofal Ymlaen Llaw 
mewn cynhadledd ddementia.

Gwasanaethau Presennol: Meysydd ar gyfer Gwella:

• Mae angen mwy o waith i ganfod y rhai sy'n byw gyda dementia yn 
gynnar a darparu'r cymorth sydd ei angen. Bydd hyn yn cynnwys 
addysg i gydweithwyr ym maes gofal sylfaenol i ystyried pan fydd 
rhywun â dementia yn nesáu at ddiwedd eu hoes a chynorthwyo i 
gynnwys y grŵp hwn mewn cofrestrau gofal lliniarol. 

• Gwella’r gwaith o ganfod a gofalu’n gynnar am bobl fregus sy’n 
defnyddio gwasanaethau, gan gynnwys y rheiny â dementia, gyda’r 
bwriad penodol o gynnal llesiant ac annibyniaeth.

• Cydnabod yr angen i roi ffocws neilltuol i brofiad grwpiau penodol 
gan gynnwys y rhai sydd ag anableddau dysgu, dementia, 
problemau clyw neu olwg a'r rhai sy'n oedrannus ac yn fregus. Mae 
gofalwyr yn grŵp arbennig o bobl sy’n aml heb eu cydnabod. 

• Yn ogystal â datblygu'r Llwybr Cleifion Gofal Hirdymor, mae pob Nyrs 
Arbenigol Gofal Hirdymor yn datblygu diddordeb arbennig mewn 
maes neilltuol o arbenigedd; mae'r meysydd hyn yn cynnwys rheoli 
poen, gofal diwedd oes, gofal dementia, maeth, rheoli 
meddyginiaeth ac agweddau eraill ar ofal sylfaenol. Defnyddir y 
sgiliau hyn i gefnogi darparu gofal diogel sy'n canolbwyntio ar yr 
unigolyn.

Ffynhonnell: Cynllun Cyflawni Gofal Diwedd Oes a Lliniarol Law yn Llaw at Iechyd BIPHDd 2016 -2020

Mae Cynllun Cyflawni Gofal Diwedd Oes a Lliniarol Law yn Llaw at Iechyd BIPHDd 2016 -2020 yn amlinellu’r
Adnoddau Gofal Diwedd Oes sydd ar gael ar hyn o bryd i gynorthwyo pobl â dementia: 

Er bod gwasanaethau yn eu lle yng Ngorllewin Cymru, mae gweithredu blaenoriaethau Cynllun Gweithredu Dementia Cymru wedi cael eu cynnwys yng 
nghynllun y rhaglen liniarol a diwedd oes a bydd yn cael effaith sylweddol ar ansawdd gwasanaethau Gofal Diwedd Oes i'r rhai â dementia. 12

T
udalen 98



4. Beth mae arfer gorau  
    yn ei ddweud wrthym?

13

T
udalen 99



WWCP Draft Dementia Strategy February 2022

Dementia – meysydd ffocws allweddol

• Nododd yr adolygiad o arfer gorau cenedlaethol a rhyngwladol ac arloesedd mewn dementia, lawer o feysydd o arfer 
gorau, ymchwil ac arloesi ar draws sbectrwm cyfan gofal dementia. 

• Mae dementia yn gyflwr sy’n torri ar draws gwasanaethau system gyfan ac felly’n fusnes i bawb. Mae’n bwysig deall a 
chydnabod bod angen i wasanaethau dementia gael eu hymgorffori yn y system gyfan o ddarpariaeth.

• Mae’r strategaeth hon yn canolbwyntio ar feysydd allweddol i ysgogi gwelliant ac arloesedd ar draws Gorllewin Cymru, sef:

1. Gweithredu strategaethau i gael diagnosis cynnar 

i. Cynorthwyo meddygon teulu, gweithwyr proffesiynol perthynol i iechyd (GPPI) a nyrsys i wneud asesiadau a 
gwella ansawdd atgyfeiriadau i wasanaethau arbenigol 

ii. Canolbwyntio ar weithredu arfer gorau o fewn gofal cymdeithasol, gofal cartref, cartrefi gofal a gwasanaethau 
arbenigol 

2. Sefydlu llwybrau gofal, yn enwedig cymorth ôl-ddiagnostig

i. Cefnogaeth a chydgysylltiad ar gyfer PBGD a'u gofalwyr 

3. Cynorthwyo gofalwyr i ofalu am aelodau o'r teulu â dementia 

i. Darparu cefnogaeth, hyfforddiant a chymorth i weithio drwy/cydgysylltu gwasanaethau i deuluoedd, meithrin 
gwytnwch a chynnal cydbwysedd ar draws pob agwedd ar eu bywyd 

4. Gwella gofal diwedd oes fel bod PBGD yn marw gydag urddas mewn lle o'u dewis  

i. Cydgysylltiad rhwng darparwyr gofal gwahanol i sicrhau eu bod yn deall y cynllun diwedd oes

 
14

T
udalen 100



WWCP Draft Dementia Strategy February 2022

Diagnosis cynnar – yn y gymuned
• Mae canllawiau NICE yn awgrymu y dylai asesu a diagnosis ddigwydd mewn lleoliadau 

anarbenigol. Mae hyn yn cefnogi modelau rhyngwladol lle gwneir diagnosis mewn Gofal 
Sylfaenol lle bo modd.

• Gall meddygon teulu, GPPI a nyrsys leihau'r pwysau ar wasanaethau arbenigol drwy;

• Asesu a gwneud diagnosis mewn gofal sylfaenol 

• Gwella ansawdd atgyfeiriadau i ofal arbenigol 

• Meddygon teulu a chydweithwyr o fewn gofal sylfaenol hefyd yn aml yw’r cyswllt cyntaf i 
rywun sy’n byw gyda dementia, ond dengys llawer o astudiaethau ar draws y DU ac yn 
rhyngwladol fod diffyg hyder ymhlith meddygon teulu, GPPI a nyrsys o fewn gofal 
sylfaenol i wneud diagnosis o ddementia 

• Gall mwy o hyfforddiant, ymwybyddiaeth a modelau dementia newydd o fewn gofal 
sylfaenol i gyd helpu tuag at wneud y gorau o gapasiti adnoddau a sicrhau diagnosis o 
ddementia yn gynt 

• Mae rhai modelau diagnosis yn awgrymu dull tair haen 1) asesiad cychwynnol mewn 
gofal sylfaenol 2) ail asesiad/diagnosis gan arbenigwyr gofal dementia o fewn gofal 
sylfaenol 3) atgyfeirio i glinigau cof ar gyfer diagnosis dementia. 

Gwella Asesiad / Diagnosis 
mewn gofal sylfaenol

• Hyfforddiant i Feddygon Teulu, 
GPPI a nyrsys wedi ei alinio â 
Fframwaith ‘Gwaith Da’ ac 
arfer gorau rhyngwladol

• Cyllid/fframweithiau yn eu lle i 
annog Meddygon teulu a GPPI 
i fynychu hyfforddiant

• Cynyddu hyder meddygon 
teulu a GPPI i wella diagnosis/ 
ansawdd atgyfeiriadau 
dementia i wasanaethau 
arbenigol

• Fframwaith o gefnogaeth i 
Feddygon Teulu a GPPI  - gan 
gynnwys pecynnau offer, 
canllawiau a hyfforddiant 
rheolaidd

• Mynediad cyflym at arbenigwyr 
dementia mewn gofal sylfaenol 
a chlinigau cof arbenigolAsesiad Gofal 

Sylfaenol
Arbenigwyr 
Dementia 

Gofal Sylfaenol

Gofal 
Arbenigol

15

T
udalen 101



WWCP Draft Dementia Strategy February 2022

Diagnosis cynnar

Asesiad Gofal 
Sylfaenol

Arbenigwyr 
Dementia Gofal 

Sylfaenol
Gofal Arbenigol

Gofal Sylfaenol

• Hyfforddiant i feddygon teulu, GPPI a 
nyrsys yn seiliedig ar y ‘Fframwaith 
Gwaith Da’ ar gyfer ymwybyddiaeth o 
ddementia ac i adnabod arwyddion 
cynnar dementia 

• Hyfforddiant i gynnal rhywfaint o 
brofion i nodi pobl a allai fod â 
dementia

• Lleihau straen ar glinigau cof arbenigol 
drwy wella ansawdd atgyfeiriadau 

• Dileu rhwystrau i feddygon teulu a GPPI 
rhag mynychu hyfforddiant 

• Ystyried darparu hyfforddiant ar-lein i 
wella hygyrchedd

Arbenigwyr Dementia Gofal 
Sylfaenol

• Nodi carfan o feddygon teulu, GPPI a 
nyrsys a all weithredu fel arbenigwyr 
dementia (e.e. meddygon teulu, GPPI 
a nyrsys â diddordeb arbennig) 

• Hyfforddiant arbenigol ar gyfer 
arbenigwyr dementia yn seiliedig ar y 
‘Fframwaith Gwaith Da’ 

• Gallai pobl a ganfu00wyd mewn gofal 
sylfaenol gael eu hatgyfeirio i gael 
asesiad ychwanegol 

• Mynediad at offer diagnostig 
• Gwella ansawdd atgyfeiriadau i 

glinigau cof arbenigol 

Clinigau Cof

• Gwasanaethau yn cael eu comisiynu yn 
unol â fframweithiau 

• Gwasanaeth Achredu Cenedlaethol ar 
gyfer Gwasanaethau Cof (MSNAP) 

• Adolygu ac alinio ag arfer gorau o bob 
rhan o'r DU 

• Protocolau sganio ymennydd gwell
• Canolbwyntio ar leihau’r amseroedd 

rhwng atgyfeirio a diagnosis; a rheoli’r 
capasiti a’r galw

• Canolbwyntio ar gyfraddau diagnosis 
• Cyswllt di-dor â chymorth ôl-ddiagnostig

16

T
udalen 102



WWCP Draft Dementia Strategy February 2022

Gweithredu Llwybrau Gofal
Mae Cynllun Gweithredu Dementia Cymru yn amlinellu’r angen i ddatblygu llwybrau gofal mwy ffurfiol ar gyfer PBGD ac mae hyn 
yn cyd-fynd â strategaeth arfer gorau yn rhyngwladol.

Y model ôl-ddiagnostig yn yr Alban yw’r unig fodel sydd wedi ei ddogfennu ar hyn o bryd sy’n cael ei ddefnyddio ar draws y byd.

Mae model yr Alban yn amlinellu’r ffordd orau i gefnogi PBGD wrth i’w cyflwr ddatblygu. Gan ddechrau gyda Chymorth Ôl-
ddiagnostig (Model y 5 colofn), drwodd i’r Cymorth Seiliedig yn y Gymuned (8 Colofn) a Diwedd Oes (Model Dementia Uwch).

Mae’r model:
• Yn galluogi’r unigolyn a’i deulu i ddatblygu cynllun personol cadarn sy’n defnyddio’u 

rhwydweithiau cefnogi naturiol

• Yn cynnal mecanweithiau cymorth cyfoedion ochr yn ochr a chysylltiadau cymunedol presennol a 
rhai newydd

• Yn cynorthwyo pobl i fyw’n dda ac yn annibynnol gyda dementia gyhyd ag y bo modd 17

T
udalen 103



WWCP Draft Dementia Strategy February 2022

Cyd-drefnu Cymorth a gofal
• Mae teuluoedd a gofalwyr yn chwarae rhan ganolog wrth alluogi PBGD i fyw'n annibynnol mewn cymunedau gyhyd                     

ag y bo modd 

• Hwy fydd yn ymgymryd â’r rhan fwyaf o’r gofal, yn enwedig yn y camau cynnar os cafodd diagnosis cynnar ei wneud – mae 
strategaeth genedlaethol a rhyngwladol yn canolbwyntio ar yr angen i leihau effaith gofalu am rywun â dementia 

• Mae arnynt angen cymorth i feithrin gwytnwch, datblygu'r sgiliau ar gyfer gofalu am rywun sy'n byw gyda dementia a pharhau i 
allu cynnal ansawdd bywyd y tu allan i'w gofal am y PBGD. 

• Mae mynediad at ofal seibiant hyblyg yn hanfodol fel bod teuluoedd a gofalwyr yn gallu cynnal ansawdd bywyd 
• Mae cymryd rhan a chefnogi’r aelod o'u teulu â dementia i wneud penderfyniadau ynghylch 
     ei ofal yn hanfodol ac mae deall y gwasanaethau sydd ar gael yn allweddol i gyflawni hyn 

• Mae canolfannau dementia yn chwarae rhan gynyddol bwysig mewn llawer o ardaloedd, 
     gan ddarparu un pwynt mynediad a chymorth ar draws ystod o wasanaethau ar gyfer PBGD 
     a'u gofalwyr

• Staff cefnogi, gan gynnwys 
gweithwyr cefnogi dementia, 
nyrsys Admiral ac yn y blaen. 

• Grwpiau cymorth ar gyfer PBGD 
a'u gofalwyr 

• Mynediad at wasanaethau 
dementia lleol 

• Rhaglenni hyfforddiant i ofalwyr

• Gweithgareddau ar gyfer PBGD
• Caffi dementia 
• Clinigau cof
• Mynediad at gyngor ynghylch 

cyllid/materion cyfreithiol/budd-
daliadau

• Cyfleoedd i gymryd rhan mewn 
ymchwil

Mae’r gwasanaethau a ddarperir mewn canolfan ddementia yn cynnwys:

18

T
udalen 104



WWCP Draft Dementia Strategy February 2022

Gofal Diwedd Oes

• Yn achos dementia, gall fod yn anodd rhagweld pryd bydd person yn nesáu at farwolaeth. Mae’n bosibl y bydd yn dangos 
arwyddion sy'n awgrymu ei fod yn agos iawn at farwolaeth ond, mewn gwirionedd, ddangos yr arwyddion hyn am fisoedd 
lawer, neu hyd yn oed flynyddoedd. 

• At hynny, gall y PBGD farw o gyflwr meddygol arall, er enghraifft canser neu glefyd y galon. Gall hefyd gael heintiau a mân 
afiechydon ar ben y cyflyrau parhaus hyn.

• Gall cyflyrau ac afiechydon eraill olygu bod y person yn derbyn gofal, neu’n marw yn y pen draw, mewn ysbyty neu gyfleuster 
nad yw’n arbenigo mewn gofal dementia.

• Er bod gwybodaeth am ofal diwedd oes wedi cynyddu’n sylweddol dros y deng mlynedd ddiwethaf, yn enwedig mewn 
meysydd fel gofal canser, mae llawer o PBGD nad ydynt yn derbyn gofal diwedd oes o ansawdd da. 

• Lle bo modd, dylid cynllunio gofal ymlaen llaw fel y gall y PBGD wneud penderfyniadau am ei ofal - mae diagnosis cynnar o 
ddementia yn chwarae rhan allweddol gan y gall person wneud penderfyniadau am ei ofal diwedd oes ochr yn ochr â 
theulu/gofalwyr. 

• Mae’n bwysig bod cynllunio gofal ymlaen llaw yn rhan lawn o gynlluniau gofal a llesiant personol, cynhwysol, ehangach ar gyfer 
dementia a bod cymorth ar gael i ofalwyr pan fydd y PBGD yn marw. 

• Mae angen dull gweithredu cydgysylltiedig rhwng yr holl sefydliadau sy’n gofalu am y PBGD – fel bod pawb yn deall 
dymuniadau’r person a sut mae’n dymuno cael gofal ar ddiwedd ei oes 

19

T
udalen 105



5. Adborth o       
gyfweliadau strwythuredig

20

T
udalen 106



Ymgysylltu â 
Rhanddeiliaid

Datblygwyd y strategaeth hon rhwng 
mis Chwefror 2021 a mis Ionawr 2022. 
Cafodd ei harwain gan Attain 
(darparwr gwasanaethau cymorth 
iechyd annibynnol) a gomisiynwyd 
gan Gyngor Sir Caerfyrddin ar ran 
WWCP i weithio gyda phartneriaid, 
PBGD a’u gofalwyr i ddatblygu 
strategaeth dementia, gweledigaeth 
a Llwybr Llesiant Dementia ar draws Sir 
Gaerfyrddin, Ceredigion a Sir Benfro. 
Mae’r gwaith wedi cael ei gefnogi’n 
dda gan randdeiliaid, PBGD a’u 
gofalwyr o bob rhan o’r rhanbarth, 
sydd wedi gweithio’n galed iawn i 
ddarparu gwybodaeth a 
mewnwelediad lleol, trwy 
drafodaethau strwythuredig â 
rhanddeiliaid. Ceir crynodeb o'r 
themâu a ddeilliodd o'r cyfweliadau ar 
y tudalennau canlynol.

21

Enw

Rheolwyr gwasanaethau gofal cymdeithasol oedolion Cyngor Sir Caerfyrddin
Timau Tîm Adfer Cymunedol Cyngor Sir Caerfyrddin 
Cyfarwyddwyr gofal cymdeithasol oedolion Cyngor Sir Ceredigion
Rheolwyr Corfforaethol Cyngor Sir Ceredigion ar gyfer Iechyd Meddwl a Llesiant a Gofal wedi'i Gynllunio 
Age Cymru Dyfed
Fforwm Ymarferwyr Cyngor Sir Penfro
Cymdeithas Gwasanaethau Gwirfoddol Sir Benfro 
Fforwm Darparwyr Cymdeithas Gwasanaethau Gwirfoddol Sir Benfro 
Tîm Cyflyrau Hirdymor Bwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Hywel Dda (BIPHD)
Tîm nyrsys Admiral rhanbarthol BIPHDd
Tîm Iechyd Meddwl Therapi Galwedigaethol BIPHDd - Oedolion Hŷn 
Tîm Llesiant Dementia Ysbytai Acíwt BIPHDd
Tîm Iechyd Meddwl Oedolion Hŷn BIPHDd 
Penaethiaid gwasanaeth – Therapïau BIPHDd 
Tîm Cymunedol Llesiant Dementia BIPHDd 
Fforwm Darparwyr Cartrefi Gofal Rhanbarthol 
Fforwm Sir Benfro Iachach 

Clwstwr Tywi Taf 
Clwstwr Aman Gwendraeth
Clwstwr Gogledd Ceredigion 
Clwstwr De Ceredigion
Clwstwr Gogledd Sir Benfro 

De Sir Benfro

Llawer o ddiolch i’r rhai a gymerodd ran yn y gwaith hwn:

21

Mawr ddiolch i’r 16 o ofalwyr a 
roddodd eu hamser i ddarparu  

gwybodaeth am brofiadau’r bobl y 
maent yn gofalu amdanynt yn 

ogystal â’u profiad hwy eu hunain fel 
gofalwyr – ni fyddai’r strategaeth hon 

wedi bod yn bosibl heb eich 
cyfraniad chi. 

T
udalen 107



WWCP Draft Dementia Strategy February 2022

Asesiad a 
diagnosis

Dim hyfforddiant o gwbl – 
gorfod dod o hyd i’r 

wybodaeth fy hun. Llawer o 
daflenni ond roedd arnaf 
angen rhywun fyddai’n 

eistedd i lawr efo fi ac yn 
egluro pethau.

Roedd gwybodaeth a 
hyfforddiant Llanelli dros 

4 wythnos yn gymorth 
mawr – cyfeiriadau, 
rhifau, gwefannau, 

gwasanaethau

Gormod braidd o 
alwadau ffôn dryslyd 
oddi wrth gymdeithas 
gofalwyr. Dim cymorth 

gan y Meddyg Teulu na 
chymdeithas y gofalwyr

Baglu ymlaen yn y 
tywyllwch. Digwydd cael 

cymorth wrth holi 
ynghylch y dreth gyngor

Mae gen i gymaint o waith 
papur, rydw i’n anghofio beth 

ydy beth. Hanner yr amser 
dydw i ddim yn gwybod beth 
i’w wneud a does arnaf i ddim 

eisiau sôn am y peth o hyd

Roedd y wybodaeth a’r 
cyngor ar y dechrau yn 
wych ond doedd yna 

ddim meddwl 
cydgysylltiedig

Y bobl orau sydd wedi 
helpu – cymdeithas 

Alzheimer’s, maen nhw’n 
ffonio bob mis ac yn rhoi 
cyngor sut i hawlio lwfans 

gofalu

Mae gofalwyr angen 
hyfforddiant sut i ddelio 
ac ymdopi â’r person. 

Rydw i’n dysgu wrth fynd 
ymlaen. 

Roedd yn rhaid imi 
weithio allan beth i’w 
wneud. Ein materion 

ariannol, busnes, popeth. 
Roedd yn drech na fi.

Dim gwybodaeth, cyngor 
na chymorth. Dim ond yn 
ddiweddar mae pobl yn 

dechrau fy helpu fi. 

Llesiant, lleihau risg a gohirio cychwyniad, 
codi ymwybyddiaeth a dealltwriaeth

Adnabod, nodi a chymorth cychwynnol 

Hyfforddiant – Gorfod ei 
weithio allan eich hun yn 
bennaf yn enwedig ar ôl 

gadael yr ysbyty gyda 
cathetr. Roedd hynny yn 

hunllef llwyr

Mae’r themâu a ddeilliodd o’r cyfweliadau gyda gofalwyr wedi dylanwadu ar 
ddatblygiad llwybr y model gwasanaeth a’r argymhellion o fewn yr adroddiad hwn.

Cymerodd oesoedd i 
gysylltu â’r nyrs 

anymataliaeth. Yn awr yn 
ceisio cael drwodd at y 

deintydd

Mae ar ofalwyr a PBGD 
angen gwybodaeth glir a 

hawdd ei deall sy’n eu 
cysylltu â grwpiau 

cyfoedion lleol am gymorth 
ar y dechrau

Pa ddarpariaeth sydd yna i 
amddiffyn pobl â dementia sy’n 

byw ar eu pen eu hunain? 
Dylent fod yn uchel ar y rhestr 

mewn meddygfeydd 
meddygon teulu oherwydd eu 

bod yn fregus. 22

Methu â chael neb i 
gydnabod y diagnosis

Dim meddwl 
cydgysylltiedig yn yr 
adran Seiciatrig. Dim 

ond ein trosglwyddo i’r 
meddyg teulu, oedd yn 

gwneud dim

Dim gwybodaeth – roeddwn 
yn amharod i gael cymorth, 

roeddwn i’n meddwl y 
medrwn ymdopi. Ond roedd 

mor ddigalon

Roedd canolfan ddydd yn 
arfer bod yn ein llyfrgell leol. 

Fe fyddai’n ddefnyddiol 
cael canolfan ddydd i fynd 

iddi (Aberystwyth)

Dydw i erioed wedi deall y 
diagnosis. Dydw i ddim yn 
deall pa fath o ddementia 
sydd ganddo. Fe hoffwn i 

wybod pa fath o 
ddementia sydd ganddo. 

Mynd at y Meddyg Teulu a 
chael diagnosis o ddementia – 

eisiau atgyfeiriad at y 
gwasanaethau iechyd meddwl  
rhag ofn bod modd cael trin y 

dementia. Cymerodd 2 flynedd 

T
udalen 108



WWCP Draft Dementia Strategy February 2022

Cefais ddiagnosis yn 2019. 
Gwelais yr ymgynghorydd 

ddwywaith a chefais 
bresgripsiwn a dydw i ddim 
wedi gweld neb ers hynny

Mae cymaint o 
wasanaethau yn darparu 

cymorth ond ddim yn 
siarad â’i gilydd ac felly 

mae’n rhaid i mi ddweud 
wrthynt beth sydd wedi 

digwydd

 

Asesiad a diagnosis Byw yn dda gyda dementia
Yr angen am fwy o gymorth

Byddai’n dda cael 
canolfan ddydd benodol 
ar gyfer pobl â dementia 

neu fod pobl yno i 
gynorthwyo pobl â 

dementia

Fe welsom ni gymaint o 
bobl yn y 12 mis cyntaf. Y 

cyswllt cyntaf oedd 
crossroads a chawsom ein 

cyfeirio at lawer o 
weithgareddau gwahanol 

e.e. Caffi dementia

Rydw i’n byw y tu allan i’r 
ardal ac yn ei chael yn 

anodd gwybod pa 
wasanaethau sydd yna yn 

ardal fy mam. Mae 
meddygfa’r meddyg teulu 

yn ceisio cadw mewn 
cysylltiad

 Taliad uniongyrchol: 
ardderchog gan y 

medrwch chi gael yr 
arian ond dim werth os 

na ellwch chi gael y 
gofal yn ei le

Roeddwn i’n arfer gwneud zoom  
- cerddoriaeth – cymryd dim sylw.  

Doedd o ddim yn gweithio i fy 
ngŵr ac mae gofalwyr eraill wedi 
dweud nad ydy zoom yn gweithio 

mewn gwirionedd i bobl â 
dementia

Mae’r themâu a ddeilliodd o’r cyfweliadau gyda gofalwyr wedi dylanwadu ar 
ddatblygiad llwybr y model gwasanaeth a’r argymhellion o fewn yr adroddiad hwn.

Cefais lwyth o daflenni a 
llawer o alwadau ffôn 
ond doedd gen i ddim 

syniad pwy oedden nhw, 
roedd yn gam i mewn i 

bwll dwfn iawn.

Byddai’n braf cael 
person i ddatrys fy 

mhroblemau yn lle fy 
mod yn ceisio eu datrys 
fy hun a dod o hyd i’r 

ffordd

Yn 2019 fe geisiodd y meddyg 
wneud prawf dementia ond 
doedd fy ngŵr ddim yn gallu 

clywed. Gofynnais am 
atgyfeiriad i’r ysbyty. Cafodd 
ei atgyfeirio ymhen blwyddyn

Yn awr ei fod wedi cael y 
diagnosis, rydw i’n teimlo y 
gallaf alw ar bobl ond does 

yna ddim lle i fynd. Gallwn fod 
yn eistedd yn y tŷ am 5 diwrnod 

yr wythnos – does yna ddim 
byd (Sir Gaerfyrddin)

23

Dydy o ddim yn ymddangos 
bod yna weithgareddau – 
rydym ni mewn ardal eithaf 

gwledig ac mae’n rhaid 
teithio am hanner awr i fynd 

i unrhyw le (Ceredigion)

COVID – Wedi gwneud pethau 10 
gwaith yn waeth gan na fedrwch 
chi weld neb.  Mae gwasanaeth 

dydd yng Ngheredigian wedi cau 
a byddai wedi bod yn dda gallu 

mynd â hi yno

Gofynnodd mwy nag un gofalwr 
am weithgareddau oedd ar gyfer 

pobl iau. Anfonwyd rhestr o 
weithgareddau i ofalwyr bob 
wythnos yn wych a llawer o 

bethau i’w gwneud yn Sir Benfro 
(Sir Benfro)

Daeth nyrs Admiral allan a 
mynd gyda’r gofalwyr i weld 
mam i’w cynorthwyo yn eu 

gwaith gofalu – os bydd mam 
yn gwrthod byddwn yn ei 

adael i’r teulu

Mae pawb wedi bod yn wych 
ers i dad syrthio – gweithiwr 
cymdeithasol, fe wnaeth hi 

weithredu ar unwaith a thrafod 
gyda’r ysbyty a chael lle iddo 

mewn cartref nyrsio.

Euogrwydd a straen pan 
oedd raid iddo fynd i gartref, 

methiant, cwestiynu 
addunedau priodas – cael fy 

nhorri rhwng rhyddhad ac 
euogrwydd

Wedi dod drwy’r cyfnod clo heb 
seibiant a llai o seibiant yn awr. 

Wnewch chi ailsefydlu’r holl 
gyfleusterau gofal dydd, os 
gwelwch yn dda. Mae ar y 

gofalwyr a’r bobl â dementia eu 
hangen.

Siomedig iawn yn y gofal – 
ward arbenigol dementia 
oedd hi ond dim triniaeth 

benodol. Dim hyd yn oed yn 
sicrhau ei fod yn bwyta ac yn 

yfed.

Mae angen i ymgynghorwyr 
mewn ysbytai gael eu hyfforddi 

am bŵer atwrnai ar gyfer iechyd.  
Mae ar staff ysbytai angen 

hyfforddiant – fe gollon nhw ei 
sbectol, ei gymhorthion clyw a’i 

ddannedd gwaelod

T
udalen 109



WWCP Draft Dementia Strategy February 2022

Asesiad a 
diagnosis

Mae angen inni 
gynyddu’r defnydd o 

DEWIS ar draws y 
rhanbarth gan weithwyr 
proffesiynol a’r cyhoedd

Mae angen inni godi 
ymwybyddiaeth o 

ddementia cynnar ac 
mae angen llwybr a 

chynnig gwasanaeth clir

Mae gohirio pethau yn 
arwain at dderbyniadau 
brys ac mae gan y rhai a 
dderbynnir gyflyrau mwy 

cronig

Mae angen datblygu a 
chyd-drefnu 

gweithgareddau 
cymunedol – Mae Sir 
Benfro’n fwy aeddfed

Gallai tîm amlddisgyblaethol 
seiliedig mewn gofal 

sylfaenol wneud diagnosis yn 
uniongyrchol. Dylai 

Arbenigwr Asesu Meddygol 
ganolbwyntio ar ddiagnosis 

arbenigol

Mae llawer o fudiadau a 
chymunedau a gall fod 

yn rhwystr i 
PBGD/gofalwyr gael 

mynediad

Sut mae pobl yn cael 
cymorth heb ddiagnosis? 
Mae Dementia yn cael ei 

ystyried ar wahân ond 
ddylai hynny ddim 

digwydd, mae’n rhan o 
fod yn fregus

Mae arnom angen dull 
safonol o gael diagnosis 

waeth ble y bydd yn 
digwydd

Mae arnom angen llwybr 
asesu/diagnosis clir sydd 

y tu allan i’r 
gwasanaethau iechyd 

meddwl

Gall staff derbynfa a 
meddyg teulu gyfeirio 

pobl am help gan 
wasanaethau’r 3ydd 

sector

Mae pobl yn dod i 
argyfwng ond heb gael 
diagnosis – anodd cael 
cymorth iechyd parhaus 

heb ddiagnosis

Dylid darparu cymorth 
waeth beth fo’r 

diagnosis, gan gynnwys 
cymorth iechyd parhaus , 
gan ei fod yn seiliedig ar 

angen

Llesiant, lleihau risg a gohirio cychwyniad, 
codi ymwybyddiaeth a dealltwriaeth

Adnabod, nodi a chymorth cychwynnol

Mae angen inni ddeall yn 
glir beth sy’n digwydd pan 

fydd pobl yn cael 
gwybodaeth e.e. at bwy y 
gallant droi am gymorth?

Mae’r themâu a ddeilliodd o’r cyfweliadau gyda staff y rheng flaen wedi dylanwadu ar 
ddatblygiad llwybr y model gwasanaeth a’r argymhellion o fewn yr adroddiad hwn.

Mae gweld meddyg teulu, 
deintydd, clinigau clyw 

wedi mynd yn fwy anodd 
ers COVID – mae pobl yn 

wynebu rhwystrau sy’n 
cynyddu’r straen i’r gofalwr

Mae ar ofalwyr a PBGD 
angen gwybodaeth glir a 

hawdd ei deall sy’n eu 
cysylltu â grwpiau 
cyfoedion lleol am 

gefnogaeth o’r cychwyn
Mae mynediad at 

rwydweithiau lleol yn well 
mewn rhai ardaloedd 

nag eraill. Does dim dull 
strategol rhanbarthol o 

gefnogi gofalwyr
24

Hyfforddiant ar gyfer pawb- 
dealltwriaeth sylfaenol i reoli 

ymddygiadau cymhleth – 
galluogi pobl i adnabod 

arwyddion, beth i’w 
ddisgwyl i gynorthwyo PBGD

Mae angen cysondeb yn y 
ffordd y mae pobl yn cael 

apwyntiadau meddyg teulu 
– efallai na fydd PBGD yn 

gallu cael heibio’r 
dderbynwraig neu’r 

brysbennu 

Cynorthwyo staff cartrefi gofal 
drwy ddarparu gwybodaeth 

onest wrth ryddhau fel y 
gallant gwrdd â holl 

anghenion yr unigolyn. 
Cynorthwyo staff drwy 

hyfforddiant

Mae angen hyfforddi’r holl staff 
gan gynnwys gofal cartref a 

chartrefi gofal i adnabod 
arwyddion dementia, yn 
enwedig yn y rheiny sy’n 

fyddar, yn ddall ac yn siarad 
Cymraeg

T
udalen 110



WWCP Draft Dementia Strategy February 2022

Ydy hi’n bosibl datblygu: 
asesiad gwybyddiaeth ar 

gyfer pobl sy’n siarad 
Cymraeg, pobl sy’n ddall 
ac asesiad cyflym ar gyfer 

dementia?

A all gofal cymdeithasol a’r 
3ydd sector ddod yn rhan o’r 

tîm llesiant rhanbarthol?

Mae angen dull cyson o 
fonitro, adolygu a rhagnodi 
meddyginiaeth mewn gofal 

sylfaenol ar draws y 
rhanbarth

Mae angen inni fod yn glir y 
bydd unrhyw ffordd 

newydd o weithio angen 
cael ei hariannu’n llawn

Mae llawer o sefydliadau yn 
mynd i mewn i gartrefi pobl 
ac nid ydynt yn siarad â’i 

gilydd ac felly mae pobl yn 
gorfod ailadrodd eu hunain 

o hyd

 

Asesiad a diagnosis Byw yn dda gyda dementia Yr angen am fwy o gefnogaeth

Cynyddu llesiant y cleifion tra 
byddant yn yr ysbyty drwy restr 
wirio derbyniadau – wedi cael 
diagnosis, diagnosis i ddod ac 
yn y blaen. -  defnydd gwell o 

Dîm Llesiant Dementia yn y 
Ward aciwt

Angen proses ffurfiol ar gyfer 
diagnosis ymgynghorydd 

gofal eilaidd a chod darllen 
wedi ei gynnwys yn y 

rhyddhad – sut mae cartrefi 
gofal a meddygon teulu yn 

cael gwybod

Gall cydweithwyr cludiant 
cymunedol fod o gymorth i 
dimau amlddisgyblaethol 

drwy ddarparu 
gwybodaeth berthnasol 

ynghylch y claf

 Angen sicrhau bod 
cyflogwyr yn asesu ar gyfer 
addasiadau rhesymol ac yn 

eu gweithredu er mwyn 
galluogi gwasanaethau’r 

PBGD i weithio

Addysg -  Hyfforddiant a 
chyngor gan Dîm Llesiant 
Dementia (DWT), ystyried 

ehangu’r aelodaeth i 
gynnwys gofal cymdeithasol 

a’r 3ydd sector

Mae’r themâu a ddeilliodd o’r cyfweliadau gyda staff y rheng flaen wedi dylanwadu ar 
ddatblygiad llwybr y model gwasanaeth a’r argymhellion o fewn yr adroddiad hwn.

.

Wrth i’r cyflwr ddatblygu mae’r 
trosglwyddo i’r gwasanaeth 
iechyd yn aml yn anodd ac 

angen bod yn well. Mae pobl 
mewn argyfwng ond ddim yn 

cael diagnosis

Cynllunio gofal rhagweithiol 
cyfannol drwy dîm 

amlddisgyblaethol – dull cyson 
ar draws y rhanbarth, darparu 

cynllun cymorth a llesiant o 
gwmpas y person

Credu na all ddigwydd ond 
mewn lleoliad meddygol 

arbenigol. Mae angen dull tîm 
amlddisgyblaethol i gael 
diagnosis a rhagnodi yn y 

gymuned e.e. Meddygon Teulu 
/GPPI wedi eu hyfforddi’n llawn

Y peth cyffredinol nad yw’n 
cael ei drafod yw’r gofal 

cofleidiol sylfaenol o 
amgylch y person, cyd-
drefnydd ar hyd y daith

25

Efallai y bydd 
gwasanaethau dydd 

rhithwir yn gofyn am i ofalwr 
fod yn bresennol i hwyluso.  
Mae PBGD yn elwa o fod 

mewn grwpiau heb y 
gofalwr

Cynyddu’r defnydd o 
dechnoleg ar gyfer gweithwyr 

proffesiynol, PBGD a’u 
gofalwyr e.e. Cysylltu gofalwyr 

â chymorth drwy AP ar iPad 
gwely’r ysbyty

Mae llawer o bethau’n cael eu 
cynnig i ofalwyr ond dydy ffrwd 
gyllido gofalwyr y Gronfa heb 
ei chysylltu â ffrwd dementia’r 
Gronfa ac felly mae ymdrech 

yn cael ei dyblygu

Cynllun gofal a chynllun 
gofal brys yn ei le ar gyfer 

y gofalwr

Mae angen hyfforddiant ar 
mewn ymyriadau 

ymddygiadol gyfer 
gofalwyr a darparwyr gofal 
cartref– gan atal lleoliadau 

preswyl dianghenraid

Gall offeryn adnabod 
Dementia fod o gymorth i 

ddatblygu cynlluniau rheoli 
ymddygiad, ymddygiadau 

allweddol a pha ymyriadau y 
ceir eu defnyddio

Ceir themâu pellach yn deillio o sgyrsiau cychwynnol gyda rhanddeiliaid yn atodiad 2

T
udalen 111



6. Gweledigaeth a Llwybr 
Llesiant Gwasanaeth 
Dementia Gorllewin Cymru
Mae'r tudalennau canlynol yn cynnwys gweledigaeth a Llwybr Llesiant y gwasanaeth dementia sy'n adeiladu ar adroddiad ymchwil Attain ar arfer 
gorau a ddosbarthwyd ym mis Ionawr 2021. Mae'r llwybr model gwasanaeth hwn wedi ymdrechu i ymgorffori gwasanaethau presennol yng 
Ngorllewin Cymru. Cafodd gweledigaeth a Llwybr Llesiant y gwasanaeth eu cydgynllunio drwy ymgysylltu â staff o bob cwr o’r rhanbarth, PBGD a’u 
gofalwyr.
Cynllun Gweithredu Dementia Cymru Gyfan 2018-2022: Fel llofnodwr i Ddatganiad Glasgow (1) mae Llywodraeth Cymru wedi ymrwymo o’r blaen i hyrwyddo hawliau, urddas ac 
ymreolaeth pobl sy’n byw gyda dementia. Trwy eu hymgysylltiad â rhanddeiliaid clywsant am waith cadarnhaol Dementia Action Alliance wrth ddatblygu cyfres o ddatganiadau 
gyda phobl sy’n byw gyda dementia a’u gofalwyr (2). Rydym wedi cysoni’r datganiadau hyn â’n Llwybr Llesiant Dementia.
1) https://link.edgepilot.com/s/67f68721/ecxOvtDsBECT3n7RjIzvhg?u=https://www.alzheimer-europe.org/Policy/Glasgow-Declaration-2014
2) https://link.edgepilot.com/s/8d37d66b/NmKURNiXoUaKCjtzSUiWhQ?u=https://www.dementiaaction.org.uk/nationaldementiadeclaration 26

T
udalen 112

https://link.edgepilot.com/s/67f68721/ecxOvtDsBECT3n7RjIzvhg?u=https://www.alzheimer-europe.org/Policy/Glasgow-Declaration-2014
https://link.edgepilot.com/s/8d37d66b/NmKURNiXoUaKCjtzSUiWhQ?u=https://www.dementiaaction.org.uk/nationaldementiadeclaration


WWCP Draft Dementia Strategy February 2022

DRAFFT –Gweledigaeth Gorllewin Cymru ar gyfer gwasanaethau dementia

‘Cefnogi pob unigolyn i fyw yn dda ac yn annibynnol gyda dementia gyhyd ag y bo modd’‘Cefnogi pob unigolyn i fyw yn dda ac yn annibynnol gyda dementia gyhyd ag y bo modd’

• Gweledigaeth, strategaeth a model gwasanaeth dementia 
rhanbarthol clir yn unol ag arfer gorau.

• Datblygu arweinyddiaeth a llywodraeth broffesiynol a chlinigol 
effeithiol i sicrhau bod y model gwasanaeth a swyddogaethau 
newydd wedi eu cynllunio yn unol ag arfer gorau ac yn rhan o’r 
holl system iechyd a gofal cymdeithasol  

• Trefniadau comisiynu strategol a chydweithredol sy’n 
canolbwyntio ar y PBGD/gofalwr

• Gweithio ar draws sefydliadau 
• Rheolaeth ariannol a rheoli perfformiad ar y cyd

• Cydgomisiynu ar gyfer gofal integredig, sy’n sicrhau mynediad a 
darpariaeth deg ar draws Gorllewin Cymru

• Gwneud y defnydd gorau o’r ystâd – adeiladu ar gymunedau a 
darparu cymorth yn nes adref e.e. Mannau cyfarfod/ 
canolfannau lleol lle gall pobl gysylltu 

• Addasu TG fel ei fod yn adlewyrchu gweithgaredd ac yn sicrhau 
canlyniadau unigolyn-ganolog. ​

• Rhaglenni a chynlluniau cyffredin i drawsnewid y system 
• PBGD a’u gofalwyr a’r gymuned i gael eu cynnwys yn systematig 

wrth gynllunio a datblygu’r model gwasanaeth newydd

• Ffyrdd newydd o weithio yn ehangu capasiti fframwaith 
hyfforddiant Gwaith Da a swyddogaethau newydd yn y 
gweithlu e.e. Swydd cysylltydd llesiant dementia

• Defnyddio technoleg i rymuso PBGD a’u gofalwyr a’n staff 
ninnau. ​

• Comisiynu a darparu gwasanaethau gofal sylfaenol ar raddfa 
fawr

• Dehongli data iechyd / gofal cymdeithasol y boblogaeth, 
• Adborth PBGD/teulu, cynllunio gwasanaethau ar gyfer 

rhwydweithiau a thynnu cymorth i mewn oddi wrth 
wasanaethau ehangach

Atal, Cynllunio ac Addysg yn ein 
cymunedau

Cymunedau’n barod i gefnogi a 
chynorthwyo

Gofal rhagweithiol a Chynllunio 
Gofal fel tîm amlddisgyblaethol 

Gofal yn cael ei gyd-drefnu i 
sicrhau’r cymorth iawn ar yr 

amser iawn.

Gofal canolraddol i gefnogi pobl 
ar adeg o angen cynyddol. 
Rydym yn cynyddu cysur a 

llesiant – gan gynorthwyo pobl yn 
eu cartrefi eu hunain

Cymorth gofal dementia 
arbenigol – yn y gymuned ac yn 
yr ysbyty

Elfennau allweddol i wneud 
cyflawni’n bosibl

3. Cymorth pan fydd arnoch ei angen

2. Cymorth i’ch helpu chi eich hun

1. Cymorth i gymunedau cryf

4Cymorth tymor hir

.-+27

T
udalen 113



WWCP Draft Dementia Strategy February 2022

Sut mae da yn edrych ar gyfer Gorllewin Cymru – 
Llwybr Llesiant Dementia

28

Gan weithio gyda phartneriaid ar draws Gorllewin Cymru rydym wedi datblygu ein Llwybr Llesiant Dementia gyda’n gilydd gan 
ganolbwyntio ar symleiddio llwybrau a gosod y Bobl sy’n byw gyda Dementia a’u gofalwyr wrth ganol y gwasanaeth yr ydym yn ei 
ddarparu. Byddwn yn gweithredu strategaethau i gynyddu diagnosis cynnar, gan gefnogi meddygon teulu a GPPI mewn gofal 
sylfaenol gyda mewnbwn arbenigol lle bo angen fel rhan o ddull tîm amlddisgyblaethol o asesu a diagnosis cymunedol ac i wella 
ansawdd atgyfeiriadau i wasanaethau arbenigol.

Byddwn yn canolbwyntio ar weithredu arfer gorau o fewn gofal sylfaenol, gofal cymdeithasol, cartrefi gofal, gofal cartref a 
gwasanaethau arbenigol. Bydd gweithredu’r Llwybr Llesiant Dementia yn cynnwys datblygu’r llwybr diagnostig a chymorth ôl-
ddiagnostig, cymorth a chydgysylltu ar gyfer PBGD a’u gofalwyr a chefnogi gofalwyr i ofalu am aelodau o’r teulu sy’n byw gyda 
dementia. Byddwn yn darparu cymorth, hyfforddiant a chymorth i weithio drwy/cydgysylltu gwasanaethau i deuluoedd, meithrin 
gwydnwch a chadw cydbwysedd ar draws pob agwedd ar eu bywyd. Byddwn yn gwella gofal diwedd oes fel bod PBGD yn marw 
gydag urddas yn y lle o’u dewis, ac yn gwella cydgysylltu ar draws gwahanol ddarparwyr gofal i sicrhau eu bod yn deall y cynllun 
gofal diwedd oes.
 

T
udalen 114



WWCP Draft Dementia Strategy February 2022

Cynllun Gweithredu Dementia Cymru 2018-22

Fel llofnodwr i Ddatganiad Glasgow (1) mae Llywodraeth Cymru wedi ymrwymo o’r blaen i hyrwyddo hawliau, urddas ac ymreolaeth pobl sy’n 
byw gyda dementia. Trwy ymgysylltiad y Llywodraeth â rhanddeiliaid, clywsant am waith cadarnhaol y Gynghrair Gweithredu Dementia yn 
datblygu cyfres o ddatganiadau gyda phobl sy’n byw gyda dementia a’u gofalwyr (2).

Mae Datganiadau Dementia yn adlewyrchu'r pethau y mae pobl â dementia a gofalwyr yn dweud sy'n hanfodol i ansawdd eu bywyd. 
Datblygwyd y datganiadau hyn gan bobl â dementia a’u gofalwyr, ac mae’r person â dementia yn ganolog i’r datganiadau hyn. Mae'r “ni” a 
ddefnyddir yn y datganiadau hyn yn cwmpasu pobl ag unrhyw fath o ddementia waeth beth fo'u hoedran, cam neu ddifrifoldeb; eu gofalwyr; 
teuluoedd; a phawb arall y mae dementia yn effeithio arnynt. 

Mae’r hawliau hyn wedi’u hymgorffori yn y Ddeddf Cydraddoldeb, deddfwriaeth Galluedd Meddyliol, deddfwriaeth Iechyd a gofal a chyfraith 
Hawliau Dynol Rhyngwladol ac maent yn alwad uchel i wella bywydau pobl â dementia. Mae’r Datganiadau hyn yn cydnabod na ddylai pobl â 
dementia gael eu trin yn wahanol oherwydd eu diagnosis.
 
Rydym wedi cysoni’r datganiadau dementia â Llwybr Llesiant Dementia newydd Gorllewin Cymru ac mae’r argymhellion yn y strategaeth hon 
hefyd wedi’u halinio. 

Am fwy o wybodaeth gweler:
1. https://link.edgepilot.com/s/67f68721/ecxOvtDsBECT3n7RjIzvhg?u=https://www.alzheimer-europe.org/Policy/Glasgow-Declaration-2014
2. https://link.edgepilot.com/s/8d37d66b/NmKURNiXoUaKCjtzSUiWhQ?u=https://www.dementiaaction.org.uk/nationaldementiadeclarationT

udalen 115

https://link.edgepilot.com/s/67f68721/ecxOvtDsBECT3n7RjIzvhg?u=https://www.alzheimer-europe.org/Policy/Glasgow-Declaration-2014
https://link.edgepilot.com/s/8d37d66b/NmKURNiXoUaKCjtzSUiWhQ?u=https://www.dementiaaction.org.uk/nationaldementiadeclaration


WWCP Draft Dementia Strategy February 2022

Sut mae da yn edrych i Orllewin Cymru– 
Llwybr llesiant dementia drafft
Llesiant, lleihau risg, gohirio cychwyniad, 
codi ymwybyddiaeth a dealltwriaeth

30Yn seiliedig ar gynllun cyfathrebu, adnabod arbenigwyr drwy brofiad, mynediad at dechnoleg gynorthwyol. Gweithredu Fframweithiau Hyfforddiant Adnabod a Gwaith Da

Creu cymunedau cyfeillgar i ddementia, 
gwneud dementia yn fusnes i bawb
Mae gennym yr hawl i barhau â bywyd o 
ddydd i ddydd a bywyd teuluol, heb 
wahaniaethu na chost annheg, i gael ein 
derbyn a’u cynnwys yn ein cymunedau a 
pheidio â byw ar wahân neu’n unig. 

T
udalen 116



WWCP Draft Dementia Strategy February 2022

Sut mae da yn edrych i Orllewin Cymru– 
Llwybr llesiant dementia drafft
Adnabod, Nodi, Cefnogi a Hyfforddiant

31

Mae pob person yn cael mynediad teg at ofal, 
waeth beth fo’r diagnosis
Mae gennym yr hawl i gael ein hadnabod fel 
pwy ydym, i wneud dewisiadau ynghylch ein 
bywydau gan gynnwys cymryd risg, ac i 
gyfrannu i gymdeithas. Ni ddylai ein diagnosis 
ein diffinio, ac ni ddylem ychwaith fod â 
chywilydd ohono.

Yn seiliedig ar gynllun cyfathrebu, adnabod arbenigwyr drwy brofiad, mynediad at dechnoleg gynorthwyol. Gweithredu Fframweithiau Hyfforddiant Adnabod a Gwaith Da

T
udalen 117



WWCP Draft Dementia Strategy February 2022

Asesiad a diagnosis

Sut mae da yn edrych i Orllewin Cymru– 
Llwybr llesiant dementia drafft

32

Cynllunio ar gyfer y 
dyfodol ar gyfer y 

gofalwr a’r PBGD, e.e. 
atwrneiaeth arhosol, 

- eiddo, cyllid, 
iechyd a lles 

Cynllunio ar 
gyfer y dyfodol ar 
gyfer y gofalwr a’r 
PBGD, e.e. 
atwrneiaeth arhosol, - 
eiddo, cyllid, iechyd a 

lles 

Deall y salwch 
a rheoli'r 

symptomau. 
Sgrinio safonol 

cadarn ar 
gyfer deliriwm Cefnogaeth tymor 

byr i berson ag 
arwyddion cynnar o 

ddementia a’r gofalwr. 
Cefnogaeth i'r rhai nad ydynt 

yn gweld eu hunain fel 
gofalwyr. 

Technoleg 
gynorthwyol, 
gwybodaeth, 

cymorth, 
cyngor, 

eiriolaeth a 
chymorth 
parhaus

Caiff pob person ei weld fel unigolyn
Mae gennym yr hawl i ddiagnosis cynnar 
a chywir, ac i dderbyn gofal a thriniaeth 
sy’n seiliedig ar dystiolaeth, yn briodol, yn 
dosturiol ac wedi’i ariannu’n briodol, gan 
bobl hyfforddedig sy’n ein deall a sut 
mae dementia yn effeithio arnom. Rhaid 
i hyn gwrdd â’n hanghenion, lle bynnag 
yr ydym yn byw. 

Yn seiliedig ar gynllun cyfathrebu, adnabod arbenigwyr drwy brofiad, mynediad at dechnoleg gynorthwyol. Gweithredu Fframweithiau Hyfforddiant Adnabod a Gwaith Da

T
udalen 118



WWCP Draft Dementia Strategy February 2022

Byw yn dda gyda dementia
Cynllunio gofal rhagweithiol CYFANNOL drwy dîm 
amlddisgyblaethol (cydweithwyr yn cael eu galluogi i 
fynychu’n rhithwir) – dull gweithredu rhanbarthol cyson, gan 
ddarparu cymorth sefydlog a chynllun llesiant o amgylch y 
person a’i ofalwr, lle bo’n briodol,  waeth beth fo’r diagnosis 
gan gynnwys:

Sut mae da yn edrych i Orllewin Cymru– 
Llwybr llesiant dementia drafft

33

• Cysylltydd llesiant dementia 
• Meddyg Teulu
• Eiriolwr
• Gofal cymdeithasol
• Nyrs Ardal(DN)
• GPPI e.e. Therapydd 

Galwedigaethol ffisiotherapydd, 
dietegydd, therapydd iaith a 
lleferydd ac yn y blaen

• Gweithwyr allweddol/ Arweinydd 
technoleg gynorthwyol 

• Nyrs Admiral 
• Gofal Sylfaenol
• 3ydd sector
• Fferyllydd
• Seicolegydd
• Cartrefi gofal
• Iechyd Meddwl Pobl Hŷn
• Iechyd Meddwl Oedolion ar gyfer 

dementia cynnar
• Cyngor ynghylch hyfforddiant fel 

bo angen gan DWTs yn y 
gymuned a lleoliadau aciwt

• Gofal eilaidd ac ymgynghorwyr 
SPC fel bo angen

Iechyd cyffredinol, 
adolygu 

meddyginiaeth a 
chymorth iechyd 

meddwl/seicolegol 
i'r PBGD a'i ofalwr 

Cefnogaeth bersonol 
i’r PBGD a’r gofalwr 
pan fo angen, e.e. 
gweithgareddau 

llesiant 

Cynllunio gofal yn 
rhagweithiol yn galluogi 

pobl i gael ansawdd bywyd 
da ac aros yn eu 

hamgylchedd eu hunain 
gyhyd â phosibl 

Cefnogaeth 
arbenigol i'r 

PBGD. 
Rhagweld 

profedigaeth i 
ofalwyr

Cysylltydd llesiant 
dementia yn 
cefnogi'r PBGD a 
chydgysylltu’r 
system gofleidiol 

Byw llesol sy'n 
canolbwyntio ar yr 

unigolyn ar gyfer PBGD 
a'u gofalwyr. Addasu 

amgylcheddol, tec. tai â 
chymorth 

Gofal yn cael ei gyd-drefnu
Mae gennym yr hawl i gael ein 
parchu, a’n cydnabod fel partneriaid 
mewn gofal, i gael addysg, cymorth, 
gwasanaethau a hyfforddiant sy’n 
ein galluogi i gynllunio a gwneud 
penderfyniadau am y dyfodol. Mae 
gennym yr hawl i wybod a 
phenderfynu a ydym am fod yn rhan 
o ymchwil sy'n edrych ar achos, 
iachâd a gofalu am ddementia a 
chael ein cynorthwyo i gymryd rhan.

Yn seiliedig ar gynllun cyfathrebu, adnabod arbenigwyr drwy brofiad, mynediad at dechnoleg gynorthwyol. Gweithredu Fframweithiau Hyfforddiant Adnabod a Gwaith Da

T
udalen 119



WWCP Draft Dementia Strategy February 2022

Gweithredu’r Fframwaith Gwaith Da – mae 
angen inni ystyried anghenion dysgu a 

datblygu pawb y mae dementia yn 
effeithio arnynt mewn rhyw ffordd. Mae 

hyn yn cynnwys pobl sy'n byw gyda 
dementia, gofalwyr, staff rheng flaen, 
rheolwyr, comisiynwyr, rheoleiddwyr, 

ymchwilwyr, siopwyr, cymdogion drws 
nesaf ac yn y blaen. 

Mae hyn yn arwain at bobl wybodus, pobl 
fedrus a phobl a all weithredu fel 

dylanwadwyr 

Mwy o gymorth pan fyddwch ei angen
Cynllunio gofal rhagweithiol trwy dîm amlddisgyblaethol 
CYFANNOL (cydweithwyr yn cael eu galluogi i fynychu’n 
rhithwir) – dull gweithredu rhanbarthol cyson, gan ddarparu 
cymorth sefydlog a chynllun llesiant o amgylch y person a, lle bo’n 
briodol, ei ofalwr, waeth beth fo’r diagnosis gan gynnwys:

Sut mae da yn edrych i Orllewin Cymru– 
Llwybr llesiant dementia drafft

34

• Cysylltydd llesiant dementia 
• Meddyg Teulu
• Eiriolwr
• Gofal cymdeithasol
• Nyrs Ardal(DN)
• GPPI e.e. Therapydd 

Galwedigaethol, ffisiotherapydd, 
dietegydd, therapydd iaith a 
lleferydd ac yn y blaen

• Gweithwyr allweddol/ Arweinydd 
technoleg gynorthwyol 

• Nyrs Admiral 
• Gofal Sylfaenol
• 3ydd sector
• Fferyllydd
• Seicolegydd
• Cartrefi gofal
• Iechyd Meddwl Pobl Hŷn
• Iechyd Meddwl Oedolion ar gyfer 

dementia cynnar
• Cyngor ynghylch hyfforddiant fel 

bo angen gan dimau llesiant 
dementia yn y gymuned a 
lleoliadau aciwt

• Gofal eilaidd ac ymgynghorwyr 
SPC fel bo angen

 Yn cael ei danategu gan gynllun cyfathrebu,  adnabod arbenigwyr drwy brofiad, mynediad at dechnoleg gynorthwyol ac yn y blaen. Gweithredu’r Fframweithiau Hyfforddiant Gwaith Da ac Adnabod

Mae’r staff I gyd yn barod i ofalu
Ble bynnag ydw i, mae staff iechyd 
a gofal yn dod ag empathi, sgiliau 
ac arbenigedd ac yn rhoi gofal 
cymwys, hyderus a thosturiol i mi. Gofal diwedd oes 

integredig y tîm 
amlddisgyblaethol. 
Datblygu cymorth 

profedigaeth i ofalwyr 
a PBGD fel rhan o 

gynllun gofal

Cefnogaeth 
arbenigol i’r PBGD , 
e.e. Timau Llesiant 

Dementia cymunedol 
rhanbarthol ac acíwt. 

Byw'n ystyrlon i PBGD 
a'u gofalwyr. Addasu 

amgylcheddol, TEC. Tai 
â chymorth 

Cynllunio gofal 
rhagweithiol a 
chymorth gan 
ddarparu ansawdd 
bywyd yn eu cartrefi 
eu hunain gyhyd
â phosibl 

Cefnogaeth iechyd 
meddwl ac iechyd 

cyffredinol i'r PBGD a'u 
gofalwr 

Cefnogaeth bersonol 
i’r PBGD/gofalwr e.e. 
sgrinio risg maethol. 
cymorth pan roddir 
PBGD mewn gofal 
preswyl. 

Cysylltydd 
llesiant 
dementia – 
system 
gofleidiol (e.e. 
gwasanaeth 
ymateb cyflym 
y 3ydd sector yn 
ôl yr angen 

Pobl sy’n byw ayda 
dementia

Cyllunio ar gyfer y 
dyfodol. Cefnogaeth yn 

cael ei lapio o’ch 
cwmpas.

T
udalen 120



WWCP Draft Dementia Strategy February 2022

• Mae'r llwybr hwn yn gosod y PBGD a‘i ofalwr wrth ganol cymorth y 
gwasanaeth. Mae'n dangos ffordd newydd fwy cydgysylltiedig o 
ddarparu gwasanaethau. Mae'n seiliedig ar arfer gorau a 
gwasanaethau presennol yng Ngorllewin Cymru. 

• Dylai'r model gwasanaeth gael ei ategu gan gyfres o weithdrefnau 
gweithredu gwasanaeth cytunedig y mae angen eu datblygu

Sut mae da yn edrych i Orllewin Cymru– 
Llwybr llesiant dementia drafft

35Yn cael ei danategu gan gynllun cyfathrebu,  adnabod arbenigwyr drwy brofiad, mynediad at dechnoleg gynorthwyol ac yn y blaen. Gweithredu’r Fframweithiau Hyfforddiant Gwaith Da  ac Adnabod

T
udalen 121



WWCP Draft Dementia Strategy February 2022

Gwasanaethau sy’n cyd-fynd â’r llwybr llesiant dementia

36

Gwasanaethau pob dydd: 

• Rhwydweithiau a 
gweithgareddau cymunedol

• Gweithgareddau chwaraeon a 
hamdden

• Gweithgareddau iechyd a’r 
celfyddydau

• Llyfrgelloedd 
• Sinemâu 
• Siopau
• Meddygfeydd meddygon teulu
• Yr heddlu
• Y Gwasanaeth Tân
• Deintyddion
• Optegwyr 
• Awdiolegwyr 
• Fferyllwyr 
• Addysg
• Tai
• Cludiant

Adnabod, nodi, cymorth a 
hyfforddiant

Gwybodaeth Cyngor a Chymorth – 
cyfrifoldeb statudol yr Awdurdod Lleol. 
Darperir cyngor a gwybodaeth 
cychwynnol wrth y pwynt mynediad 
cyntaf i ofal cymdeithasol. 

• Delta – ar gyfer Sir Caerfyrddin, 
• Porth Gofal ar gyfer 

Ceredigion 
• XXX ar gyfer Sir Benfro. 

• Rhwydweithiau Cymunedol
• Gwasanaethau/gweithgareddau

’r 3ydd sector 
• Cysylltwyr llesiant cymunedol/ 

dementia /rhagnodwyr 
cymdeithasol 

• Staff yr awdurdod lleol e.e. 
gweithwyr cefnogi gofal 
cymdeithasol, gweithwyr 
cymdeithasol, gofal cartref, Delta 
Connect, 

• Meddygon Teulu a staff gofal 
sylfaenol 

• Gweithwyr proffesiynol perthynol i 
iechyd

• Nyrsys ardal
• Timau CRT/ART Cartrefi gofal
• Cludiant cymunedol
• Staff iechyd ysbyty
• Gwasanaeth ambiwlans Cymru
• Gwasanaethau pob dydd

Asesiad a diagnosis 

Asesiad Tîm Amlddisgyblaethol (MDT) 
yn y gymuned gan staff hyfforddedig 
gyda chymorth gan MAS.  Asesiad 
MAS yn yr ysbyty ar gyfer diagnosis 
arbenigol

• MDT Cymunedol : Cysylltydd 
Llesiant Dementia , Meddygon 
Teulu, gweithwyr i gyd wedi 
derbyn hyfforddiant llawn) 
gweler y rhestr ar olwyn 3 MAS 
– seiliedig yn y gymuned

• MAS seiliedig yn yr ysbyty
• 3ydd sector – gwybodaeth 

gychwynnol a chymorth yn 
dilyn diagnosis

• Nyrs Admiral

Byw yn dda gyda dementia

Mae’r Tîm Amlddisgyblaethol  
Cymunedol yn cynllunio gofal yn 
rhagweithiol gyda’r cydlynydd 
dementia

• Gweithgareddau llesiant 
unigolyn ganolog ar gael ar 
draws y 3 sir i ateb 
anghenion y PBGD, yn hen 
ac yn ifanc. 

• Gwasanaethau pob dydd

Mwy o gymorth pan fydd 
arnoch ei angen

Mynediad amserol at wasanaethau 
gan gynnwys asesiad CHC, pecynnau 
cymorth yn cael eu cytuno waeth 
beth fo’r diagnosis dementia

• Cysylltydd llesiant dementia 
• Nyrs Admiral 
• CRT/ART – iechyd a gofal 

cymdeithasol
• Staff yr awdurdod lleol e.e. 

gweithwyr cefnogi gofal 
cymdeithasol, gweithwyr 
cymdeithasol, gofal cartref, 
Delta Connect

• Cartrefi gofal
• Meddygon Teulu a staff gofal 

sylfaenol 
• Gweithwyr proffesiynol 

perthynol i iechyd
• Nyrsys ardal
• Gwasanaethau gofal lliniarol 

arbenigol
• Gwasanaethau llesiant 

dementia cymunedol
• Gwasanaethau llesiant 

dementia ysbytai

Dylai pobl â nam gwybyddol allu bod mor annibynnol â phosibl gyda phobl yn eu cefnogi yn eu bywyd bob dydd. Dylai mynediad at wasanaethau a chymorth fod ar gael waeth beth fo'r diagnosis. Mae’r llwybr 
wedi’i gynllunio i alluogi gofal cofleidiol i’r PBGD a’u gofalwr, gyda phobl yn cael mynediad at gymorth pan fydd arnynt ei angen

Llesiant, lleihau risg a gohirio 
cychwyniad, codi 
ymwybyddiaeth a 

dealltwriaeth

T
udalen 122



7. Ein dull o weithredu 
Llwybr Llesiant Dementia

37

Mae’r sleidiau canlynol yn crynhoi’r meysydd blaenoriaeth sydd eu hangen er mwyn gweithredu’r strategaeth dementia a’r llwybr llesiant newydd. 

Ynghyd â chyd-gynllunio’r Llwybr Llesiant Dementia, mae’r meysydd blaenoriaeth wedi’u nodi ar ôl ymgysylltu’n helaeth â rhanddeiliaid ledled Gorllewin Cymru ac ystyried arfer gorau yn 
ogystal â Chynllun Gweithredu Dementia Cymru Gyfan a’r Safonau Llwybr Gofal Dementia Cymru Gyfan a gyhoeddwyd yn ddiweddar. 

Cynllun Gweithredu Dementia Cymru Gyfan 2018-2022: Fel llofnodwr i Ddatganiad Glasgow (1) mae Llywodraeth Cymru wedi ymrwymo o’r blaen i hyrwyddo hawliau, urddas ac ymreolaeth 
pobl sy’n byw gyda dementia. Trwy eu hymgysylltiad â rhanddeiliaid, clywsant am waith cadarnhaol Dementia Action Alliance yn datblygu cyfres o ddatganiadau gyda phobl sy’n byw 
gyda dementia a’u gofalwyr (2). Rydym wedi cysoni’r datganiadau hyn â’n blaenoriaethau a’n hargymhellion.

1) https://link.edgepilot.com/s/67f68721/ecxOvtDsBECT3n7RjIzvhg?u=https://www.alzheimer-europe.org/Policy/Glasgow-Declaration-2014
2) https://link.edgepilot.com/s/8d37d66b/NmKURNiXoUaKCjtzSUiWhQ?u=https://www.dementiaaction.org.uk/nationaldementiadeclaration

T
udalen 123

https://link.edgepilot.com/s/67f68721/ecxOvtDsBECT3n7RjIzvhg?u=https://www.alzheimer-europe.org/Policy/Glasgow-Declaration-2014
https://link.edgepilot.com/s/8d37d66b/NmKURNiXoUaKCjtzSUiWhQ?u=https://www.dementiaaction.org.uk/nationaldementiadeclaration


WWCP Draft Dementia Strategy February 2022

Llesiant, lleihau risg, gohirio cychwyniad, codi 
ymwybyddiaeth a dealltwriaeth

Creu cymunedau cyfeillgar i ddementia, gwneud dementia yn fusnes i bawb 
Mae gennym yr hawl i barhau â bywyd o ddydd i ddydd a bywyd teuluol, heb wahaniaethu na chost annheg, i gael ein derbyn a’u cynnwys yn ein 
cymunedau a pheidio â byw ar wahân neu’n unig. 
Yr hyn yr ydym yn ei wneud a’r cynlluniau sydd gennym yn y maes hwn:

Gweithredu'r 
fframwaith Gwaith Da 
– Hyfforddiant i BAWB

• Adnewyddu fframwaith hyfforddi dadansoddi anghenion dysgu Gorllewin Cymru a gweithio gyda phartneriaid i'w roi ar waith. Sicrhau bod yr hyfforddiant a 
ddarperir yn seiliedig ar dystiolaeth a hawliau lle bo’n briodol a hefyd i gynnwys hyfforddiant a ddarperir gan Lywodraeth Cymru i helpu i gyflawni’r dasg o 
weithredu Llwybr Safonau Gofal Dementia Cymru Gyfan (AWDCPS). 

• Yr holl staff, gan gynnwys y rheiny mewn gwasanaethau pob dydd ac mewn gwasanaethau fel gofal cartref a chartrefi gofal, i gael eu hyfforddi i adnabod 
arwyddion dementia a chael eu hyfforddi ynghylch y ffordd orau i gefnogi PBGD - sy'n briodol i lefel y cyswllt - o ddealltwriaeth sylfaenol i reoli ymddygiad. 
sy’n fynegiant o angen heb ei ddiwallu - galluogi gwasanaethau generig (e.e. gwaith cymdeithasol, cynorthwywyr personol, gofal cartref, cartrefi gofal, 
nyrsio ardal, therapi galwedigaethol, ffisiotherapi ac yn y blaen) i gefnogi PBGD yn arbennig y rhai sy’n fyddar, yn ddall ac yn siaradwyr Cymraeg.

• Hyfforddiant i’r holl staff mewn dealltwriaeth sylfaenol o reoli gofal sy’n canolbwyntio ar yr unigolyn/mynegiant ymddygiadol o angen nas diwallwyd - 
galluogi pobl i adnabod arwyddion, beth i’w ddisgwyl er mwyn cefnogi PBGD. 

• Trefnu bod y gweithwyr proffesiynol hynny sydd â diddordeb yn cael eu hyfforddi trwy gwrs diagnosis dementia cyfadran Cymru Gyfan sydd ar gael i bob 
gweithiwr proffesiynol - ystyried a fyddai hyfforddiant rhanbarthol pwrpasol yn briodol ar gyfer rhanbarth Gorllewin Cymru 

• Sicrhau bod mynediad at hyfforddiant mewn ymyriadau ymddygiadol ar gyfer gofalwyr a darparwyr gofal cartref – gan atal lleoliadau preswyl diangen
  Llwybr Safonau Gofal Dementia Cymru Gyfan (AWDCPS) 
• O fewn 12 wythnos i dderbyn diagnosis, caiff PBGD gynnig addysg a gwybodaeth am bwysigrwydd gweithgareddau iechyd corfforol i gefnogi a hybu iechyd. (AWDCPS 9) 
• Gweithredu cyrsiau arbenigol trwy brofiad Cymru Gyfan (yn cael eu trwyddedu gan brifysgol Harvard) – cynigir hyfforddiant dysgu, addysg a sgiliau i PBGD, gofalwyr a theuluoedd. Bydd y cynnig 

hwn yn briodol i’r cam ac yn cael ei ddarparu ar rannau arwyddocaol o daith unigolyn. Bydd yn cynnwys ystod o gefnogaeth cymheiriaid a chyfleoedd profiad a rennir. (AWDCPS 10) 
• Bydd pob aelod o staff sy'n darparu gofal ar bob lefel o fewn pob disgyblaeth a lleoliad yn cael y cyfle i gymryd rhan mewn dysgu a datblygu sy'n canolbwyntio ar yr unigolyn gyda chymorth i'w 

roi ar waith yn ymarferol bob dydd. Bydd hwn yn ddull rhanbarthol ar y cyd o nodi ystod o gyfleoedd dysgu a datblygu gan gynnwys gwella ansawdd. (AWDCP 17)

Cyfathrebu, codi 
ymwybyddiaeth 
galluogi mynediad at 
wybodaeth/gwasan-
aethau amserol

• Hybu negeseuon iechyd Llywodraeth y DU a Chymru i’r cyhoedd ar draws y rhanbarth.
• Codi ymwybyddiaeth o ddementia cynnar a datblygu cynnig gwasanaeth clir.
• Mae ar ofalwyr a phobl sy’n byw gyda dementia (PBGD) angen gwybodaeth glir a hygyrch i’w cysylltu â grwpiau cyfoedion lleol i gael cymorth o’r 

cychwyn cyntaf
• Gweithwyr proffesiynol a'r cyhoedd ar draws y rhanbarth  i wneud y defnydd gorau o DEWIS 
• Creu dull safonol ar draws sefydliadau ar gyfer darparu gwybodaeth i PBGD a'u gofalwyr 
• Gofal sylfaenol i ystyried sut mae PBGD yn cael mynediad at apwyntiadau meddyg teulu - efallai na fydd PBGD yn gallu mynd heibio’r derbynnydd neu’r 

system brysbennu os ydynt yn byw ar eu pen eu hunain 
• Cyflwyno rôl cysylltydd llesiant Dementia, a fydd yn gweithio gyda gwasanaethau lleol o fewn y cymunedau y maent yn cyd-fynd â hwy a bydd yn 

galluogi gwell mynediad at wasanaethau bob dydd fel deintyddion, optegwyr a meddygfeydd. 
• Datblygu ystod o ymyriadau a chyfleoedd corfforol a gweithgareddau unigol a grŵp sy'n canolbwyntio ar yr unigolyn er mwyn i PBGD gael eu defnyddio
• Cydnabod bod cludiant, yn enwedig mewn ardaloedd gwledig, i gael pobl i weithgareddau cymunedol yn heriol a nodi ffyrdd o fynd i'r afael â hyn
 

T
udalen 124



WWCP Draft Dementia Strategy February 2022

Adnabod, nodi cefnogi a hyfforddi
Mae pob unigolyn yn cael mynediad teg at ofal
Mae gennym yr hawl i gael ein hadnabod fel y person yr ydym, i wneud dewisiadau ynghylch ein bywydau gan gynnwys cymryd 
risg, a chyfrannu I gymdeithas, Ni ddylai ein diagnosis ein diffinio, ac ni ddylem fod cywilydd ohono. 
Yr hyn yr ydym yn ei wneud a’r cynlluniau sydd gennym yn y maes hwn 

Cynorthwyo pobl yn 
rhagweithiol

• Cryfhau mynediad at rwydweithiau lleol ar draws y rhanbarth i’r rheiny â nam gwybyddol ysgafn ac i’r rheiny â dementia
• Sicrhau bod dementia yn ddangosydd fel rhan o haeniad risg o fewn gofal sylfaenol a bod PBGD a’u gofalwyr sydd angen cymorth yn derbyn 

cynllunio gofal rhagweithiol gan y Tîm Amlddisgyblaethol ynghyd â chymorth gan y cysylltydd llesiant Dementia
• Datblygu dull rhagweithiol o reoli achos (rhannu gofal/gwneud penderfyniadau) drwy waith y Tîm Amlddisgyblaethol, yn datblygu cynlluniau i ostwng 

y tebygolrwydd y bydd PBGD yn profi argyfwng, hyd yn oed i’r rheiny heb ddiagnosis

Llwybr Safonau Gofal Dementia Cymru Gyfan (AWDCPS)
• Cynigir dewis i’r bobl sy’n byw gyda Nam Gwybyddol Ysgafn (MCI) o wasanaethau cyfannol yn monitro eu hiechyd corfforol a meddyliol a’u llesiant, gydag adolygiadau yn cael eu cynnal 

bob chwe mis o leiaf. Bydd hyn yn cynnwys ystod o ddewisiadau yn cynnwys  cymorth cyfoedion. Dylai cyfeirio ac adnoddau cymunedol fod wrth ganol pob ymyriad(AWDCPS 8). 

Cymorth waeth beth fo’r 
diagnosis

• Gofalwyr a phobl yr amheuir eu bod fwy na thebyg yn byw gyda dementia i gael mynediad clir at wybodaeth ddealladwy yn eu cysylltu â grwpiau 
cyfoedion lleol am gefnogaeth ar y cychwyn. 

• Gofalwyr a phobl yr amheuir eu bod fwy na thebyg yn byw gyda dementia i dderbyn cyngor a chefnogaeth o ran rheoli eu bywydau bob dydd ar 
hyd eu taith. 

• Mae angen datblygu a chyd-drefnu gweithgareddau cymunedol ar gyfer pobl yr amheuir eu bod fwy na thebyg yn byw gyda dementia a’u 
gofalwyr – dylai’r gweithgareddau fod yn canolbwyntio ar yr unigolyn  a bod ar gael waeth beth fo’r diagnosis

Strwythurau sy’n galluogi • Datblygu dull strategol/cydlynol rhanbarthol o gefnogi gofalwyr – ystyried brigdorri cyllid dementia’r Gronfa  i’w gynnwys yng nghyllid y Gronfa ar 
gyfer y gofalwyr, ac felly sicrhau bod holl wasanaethau gofalwyr yn cynnal y rheiny sy’n gofalu am bobl sy’n byw gyda dementia. 

• Adolygu asesiadau CHC sydd wedi digwydd dros y 18 mis diwethaf i weld a yw pobl yn defnyddio CHC er gwaethaf diagnosis o ddementia 
         – datblygu adroddiad a chynllun gweithredu i fynd i’r afael â hyn, os bydd angen
• Datblygu rhaglen gyfathrebu gynhwysfawr i hybu’r strategaeth a’i negeseuon. Cadw’r cynllun yn fyw a sicrhau bod y cyhoedd yn gwybod am unrhyw 

ddatblygiadau gwasanaeth newydd yn eu hardal neu ar draws y rhanbarth. Adrodd am gynnydd yn rheolaidd ac adolygu’r cynllun drwy Grŵp 
Llywio Dementia’r WWCP. 

T
udalen 125



WWCP Draft Dementia Strategy February 2022

Asesiad a diagnosis 
Mae pob person yn cael ei weld fel unigolyn
Mae gennym yr hawl i ddiagnosis cynnar a chywir, ac i ofal a thriniaeth drugarog, briodol, seiliedig ar dystiolaeth ac sydd yn cael ei 
gyllido’n iawn, gan bobl hyfforddedig sy’n ein deall ni a sut mae dementia yn effeithio arnom. Rhaid i hyn gwrdd â’n hanghenion ble 
bynnag yr ydym yn byw.
Yr hyn yr ydym yn ei wneud a’r cynlluniau sydd gennym yn y maes hwn 

Cael llwybr y 
diagnosis a’r 
wybodaeth yn 
gywir y tro cyntaf

• Datblygu llwybr diagnosis rhanbarthol, gan wneud y defnydd gorau o weithwyr proffesiynol perthynol i iechyd (GPPI), dylunio ffyrdd newydd o wneud diagnosis 
yn y gymuned, datblygu achos busnes amlinellol i weithredu’r llwybr newydd gydag adnoddau wedi eu modelu. Bydd y llwybr newydd yn cynnwys gweithredu’r 
AWDCPS: 3, 5, 6, 7 ad 15 – (Gweler y safonau isod).

• Sicrhau bod y llwybr newydd yn cynnwys proses ffurfiol ar gyfer diagnosis gan ymgynghorydd ysbyty aciwt a chodau READ wedi eu cynnwys ym mhapurau 
rhyddhau – fel bod cartrefi gofal a meddygon teulu yn cael gwybod

• Yn dilyn datblygu achos busnes amlinellol yn ddiweddar, datblygu achos busnes llawn ar gyfer swydd cysylltydd llesiant Dementia, i gynnwys arbedion system 
cysylltiedig â’i gyflwyno’n raddol. Grŵp llywio dementia WWCP i gytuno ar y dewis gorau. Datblygu cynllun i weithredu’r swydd newydd. 

Llwybr Safonau Gofal Dementia Cymru Gyfan (AWDCPS)
• Bydd y Gwasanaethau Asesu Cof (MAS) a Gofal Sylfaenol (GP) yn mabwysiadu Codau READ. Bydd y rhai fydd wedi cael diagnosis o ddementia mewn lleoliadau y tu allan i’r MAS (yn cynnwys gofal 

sylfaenol, timau adnoddau cymunedol, cyswllt seiciatryddol a niwroleg) yn rhoi’r Cod READ penodol i’r Meddyg Teulu neu i MAS o fewn dwy wythnos i’r diagnosis (AWDCPS 3)
• Bydd gwasanaethau Iechyd a gofal cymdeithasol yn rhoi’r wybodaeth gywir i gynorthwyo’r MAS wrth iddynt gynnal asesiadau ac wrth roi diagnosis. Bydd hyn hefyd yn gymorth i’r person reoli unrhyw 

anawsterau byw bob sydd wedi dod i’r amlwg. (AWDCPS 5) 
• Bydd MAS, o fewn cyfnod o 12 wythnos o amser atgyfeirio, yn rhoi ystod o ymyriadau (sydd wedi eu rhestru yn AWDCPS 6) i gefnogi’r diagnosis. Ystyried pa lwyfannau digidol ac addasiadau a dulliau. 
• eraill sydd eu hangen i alluogi gweithredu’r safon hon
• Bydd pobl yn cael mynediad at berson cyswllt a all roi cymorth emosiynol drwy gydol cyfnod yr asesiad a thros y 48 awr nesaf ar ôl derbyn diagnosis a sicrhau, yn dilyn y cyfnod hwn, ei fod yn cael ei 

gynnig fel bo angen (AWDCPS7) 
• Caiff pobl o fewn 12 wythnos o gael  diagnosis o ddementia gynnig cymorth i ddechrau cynllunio ar gyfer y dyfodol, gan gynnwys gofal diwedd oes. Bydd y cynnig hwn yn cynnwys y cyfle i ailedrych ar 

y cynllun a’i ddiweddaru ar hyd taith yr unigolyn. Lle bo’n briodol, bydd cynrychiolydd a defnyddio eiriolwr yn sicrhau bod hawliau’r unigolyn yn cael eu hamddiffyn (AWDCPS 15). 

Cynorthwyo’r 
rheiny ag 
anabledd dysgu

• Sicrhau bod y prosesau sydd yn eu lle yn galluogi’r person ag anabledd dysgu i dderbyn archwiliad llesiant gwybyddol

Llwybr Safonau Gofal Dementia Cymru Gyfan (AWDCPS)
• Bydd gwasanaethau Anabledd Dysgu (LD) yn diffinio proses i gysylltu â’r boblogaeth gyfan o bobl sy’n byw gydag anabledd dysgu a Down Syndrome yn benodol i gynnig archwiliad llesiant 

gwybyddol.  (AWDCPS 4) 

T
udalen 126



WWCP Draft Dementia Strategy February 2022

Byw yn dda gyda dementia
Mae gofal yn cael ei gydlynu
Mae gennym yr hawl i wybod a phenderfynu a oes arnom eisiau bod yn rhan o ymchwil sy'n edrych ar achos, iachâd a gofalu am 
ddementia a chael ein cefnogi i gymryd rhan. Mae gennym yr hawl i gael ein parchu, a’n cydnabod fel partneriaid mewn gofal, i 
gael addysg, cymorth, gwasanaethau a hyfforddiant sy’n ein galluogi i gynllunio a gwneud penderfyniadau am y dyfodol. 
Yr hyn yr ydym yn ei wneud a’r cynlluniau sydd gennym yn y maes hwn 

Galluogi pobl 
i gael 
adolygiadau 
iechyd a 
mynychu 
apwyntiadau

• Ar ôl cymeradwyo’r achos busnes llawn, cyflwyno’r gwasanaeth cysylltydd llesiant Dementia a fydd yn hyrwyddo cynllunio gofal rhagweithiol trwy ddull tîm 
amlddisgyblaethol CYFANNOL cyson ar draws y rhanbarth, gan ddarparu cymorth sefydlog cynllun llesiant o amgylch y person – datblygu templed cynllun gofal cyfannol 
rhanbarthol 

• Cysylltydd llesiant dementia i gydlynu cymorth drwy gydol taith unigolyn 
• Datblygu gweithdrefn weithredu safonol gwasanaeth cyn ac ar ôl diagnosis (PPDS). Bydd hyn yn nodi disgwyliadau, prosesau a gofynion cofnodi data y PPDS. 
• Datblygu dull cyson o fonitro, adolygu a rhagnodi meddyginiaeth mewn gofal sylfaenol ar draws y rhanbarth 
Llwybr Safonau Gofal Dementia Cymru Gyfan (AWDCPS) 
• Bydd gan PBGD apwyntiad wyneb yn wyneb cyfredol lle bydd adolygiad iechyd corfforol yn cael ei ddarparu mewn partneriaeth gan ofal sylfaenol ac eilaidd. Lle mae rheswm cyfiawn dros beidio â darparu 

apwyntiad wyneb yn wyneb, bydd adolygiad iechyd corfforol yn cael ei gyflawni drwy ddulliau eraill h.y. llwyfannau digidol, ymgynghoriad dros y ffôn. (AWDCPS 14) 
• Bydd PBGD, eu gofalwyr a'u teuluoedd yn cael cefnogaeth a chymorth i ymgysylltu ag apwyntiadau. Bydd hyn yn osgoi derbyn apwyntiadau iechyd a gofal cymdeithasol lluosog a all orlethu, drysu ac ynysu'r 

person. Bydd symleiddio prosesau gweithredo yn ymarferol yn cefnogi'r gwasanaeth i osgoi dyblygu a gwneud y mwyaf o gyfleoedd i arfer egwyddorion darbodus wrth ddarparu gwasanaethau. (AWDCPS 18)

Ymateb ar 
draws y 
system

• Cefnogi PBGD i fyw'n dda; parhau i weithredu’r rhaglen therapi galwedigaethol The Journey Through Dementia sy’n cynnwys gweithredu ‘egwyddorion dylunio sy’n ystyriol 
o ddementia’ o fewn amgylcheddau pobl eu hunain ac unrhyw adeilad neu wasanaeth newydd 

• Sicrhau bod cyflogwyr yn asesu ac yn gweithredu addasiadau rhesymol i alluogi’r PBGD i weithio 
• Waeth beth fo’r diagnosis, rôl cysylltydd llesiant Dementia i weithredu fel cydlynydd ar gyfer y PBGD gan leihau’r tebygolrwydd y bydd yn rhaid iddo ef neu ei ofalwr 

ailadrodd ei stori neu fod yn atebol am drosglwyddo gwybodaeth rhwng gwasanaethau – sy’n cyfleu hanfod pwy oedd y person – edrych i mewn i ddefnyddio AP y claf 
sy’n gwybod orau

• Adolygu POB menter a ariennir ar hyn o bryd gan y Gronfa Integredig Ranbarthol, gan ddangos tystiolaeth o ganlyniadau, alinio cyllid i weithredu blaenoriaethau strategol, 
sicrhau bod adnoddau llawn ar gyfer unrhyw ffordd newydd o weithio 

• Ystyried a allai gweithwyr cymdeithasol o bob sir a chydweithwyr o’r 3ydd sector ddod yn rhan o’r tîm cymunedol llesiant dementia rhanbarthol 
• Adolygu gweithgareddau cymunedol sydd ar gael ar draws y rhanbarth ar gyfer PBGD a gweithgareddau cefnogi i ofalwyr. Mynd i’r afael â bylchau, gan gynnwys 

gweithgareddau ar gyfer y rheiny â dementia cynnar 
• Cynyddu’r defnydd o dechnoleg, ar gyfer gweithwyr proffesiynol, PBGD a’u gofalwr e.e. cysylltu gofalwyr â chymorth drwy AP ar Ipad gwely’r ysbyty 
• Gweithredu gweddill y camau gweithredu o Gynllun Gweithredu Dementia Cymru Gyfan 
• Nodi maes ar gyfer gweithredu Safonau Llwybr Gofal Dementia Cymru Gyfan yn unol â'r rhaglen waith 2 flynedd a amlinellir yn y safonau. (AWDCPS 1) 
Llwybr Safonau Gofal Dementia Cymru Gyfan (AWDCPS) 
• Bydd gwasanaethau yn y mannau cyswllt yn darparu addasiadau rhesymol i ofal sy’n bodloni anghenion a dewisiadau personol y person.(Safon 2 Llwybr Gofal Dementia Cymru Gyfan) 
• Bydd addasiadau rhesymol sy’n canolbwyntio ar yr unigolyn yn cefnogi’r person i fyw’n dda drwy wneud y mwyaf o’i annibyniaeth a’i allu i gymryd rhan yn ei gymuned. (Safon 2 Llwybr Gofal Dementia Cymru 

Gyfan) 
• Bydd gan bobl sy’n byw gyda dementia a’u gofalwyr gyswllt enwebedig(cysylltydd) i gynnig cymorth, cyngor a chyfeirio, drwy gydol eu taith o ddiagnosis hyd at ddiwedd oes. (AWDCPS 12) 
• Bydd pobl sy’n byw gyda dementia yn cael mynediad, pan fo angen, at wasanaethau pwrpasol perthnasol (ac wrth gael mynediad at wasanaethau iechyd meddwl) ar ôl diagnosis, lle bynnag y byddant yn byw. 

Mae hyn yn uniaethu â’r gofal a’r tîm sy’n lapio p gwmpas yr unigolyn (AWDCPS 13) 
• Mae sefydliadau a lleoliadau gofal sy’n darparu gofal dementia dwys (mae hyn yn cynnwys lleoliadau cleifion mewnol iechyd meddwl ac anableddau dysgu) yn defnyddio’r offeryn mapio gofal dementia i 

werthuso a dysgu am ymarfer galluogi sy’n canolbwyntio ar yr unigolyn. Mae’n cefnogi ymresymu clinigol a gwneud penderfyniadau. Bydd gwasanaethau DCM iechyd meddwl yn cynnig cymorth DCM i leoliadau 
gofal aciwt, carchardai a chartrefi gofal. (AWDCPS 16) 

• Gan weithio mewn partneriaeth, bydd y rhanbarth yn cyflawni gofynion yr eitemau data y cytunwyd arnynt (gweithlyfr mesur) ar gyfer adrodd a sicrwydd. (AWDCPS 20)

T
udalen 127



WWCP Draft Dementia Strategy February 2022

Mwy o gymorth pan fydd arnoch ei angen
Mae’r staff i gyd yn barod i ofalu
Lle bynnag yr ydw i, mae staff iechyd a gofal yn dod ag empathi, sgiliau ac arbenigedd ac yn rhoi gofal medrus, hyderus a 
thrugarog i mi.
Yr hyn yr ydym yn ei wneud a’r cynlluniau sydd gennym yn y maes hwn 

Gofal cyson tra 
yn yr ysbyty 

• Cynyddu llesiant cleifion tra yn yr ysbyty drwy restr wirio derbyniadau a rhyddhau – wedi cael diagnosis, diagnosis gweithio ac ati. Mabwysiadu'r siarter Ysbytai sy'n Gyfeillgar i 
Ddementia yn llawn, codi ymwybyddiaeth ymhlith staff a gwirfoddolwyr, gan atal materion fel eiddo personol yn mynd ar goll neu gymhorthion clyw heb gael eu rhoi i mewn yn 
gywir – datblygu cynllun gweithredu i’w roi ar waith a’i adolygu’n rheolaidd drwy grŵp Llywio Dementia WWCP.

• Sicrhau bod staff ysbytai wedi’u hyfforddi i ddeall beth mae pŵer atwrnai iechyd yn ei olygu 
Llwybr Safonau Gofal Dementia Cymru Gyfan.–(AWDCPS)
      Bydd Cymru’n mabwysiadu’r Siarter Ysbytai sy’n Gyfeillgar i Ddementia gydag adolygiad rheolaidd o’r gweithredu a’r canlyniadau. (AWDCPS 11).

Cynyddu gallu 
gwaith y Tîm 
Aml-
ddisgyblaethol, 
mynediad at 
gymorth pan 
fydd arnoch ei 
angen  

• Datblygu cynllun gofal, rhyngddisgyblaethol, safonol, rhanbarthol a thrwy waith tîm amlddisgyblaethol rhagweithiol sy’n galluogi cydweithwyr i ymuno’n rhithwir, a gwneud 
penderfyniadau ar y cyd gyda’r claf a’r gofalwr, cynllunio ymlaen llaw i atal argyfwng yn ogystal â chynyddu cymorth pan fo angen gan gynnwys cytuno ar derfynau gofal - 
ystyried a ddylid gosod y cynllun mewn AP y gall y claf, gofalwyr a chydweithwyr gael mynediad ato

• Cynyddu’r cylch cefnogaeth e.e. gall cydweithwyr cludiant cymunedol helpu timau amlddisgyblaethol drwy ddarparu gwybodaeth berthnasol ynglŷn â’r claf 
• Sicrhau bod sefydliadau’n cyfathrebu â’i gilydd yn hytrach na bod PBGD neu eu gofalwyr yn gorfod cydlynu cyfathrebu ar draws gwasanaethau 
• Nodi pryd mae’r gofalwr yn byw y tu allan i’r rhanbarth i sicrhau bod ganddo wybodaeth leol i alluogi’r person y mae’n gofalu amdano i gael mynediad at wasanaethau yn ei 

ardal leol 
• Sicrhau bod cynllun gofal wrth gefn mewn argyfwng ar waith ar gyfer y PBGD a’i ofalwr a bod y gofalwr hefyd yn gallu cael cymorth pan fydd arno ei angen
• Mae angen hyfforddiant mewn mynegiant ymddygiadol o angen heb ei ddiwallu, sy’n canolbwyntio ar yr unigolyn – gweithredu’r offeryn adnabod dementia ar draws y rhanbarth 

a all helpu i ddatblygu cynlluniau rheoli ymddygiad, ymddygiadau allweddol a nodi pa ymyriadau y gellir eu defnyddio

Llwybr Safonau Gofal Dementia Cymru Gyfan(AWDCPS)
• Bydd gwasanaethau’n sicrhau, pan fydd yn rhaid i berson sy’n byw gyda dementia newid neu symud rhwng unrhyw leoliadau neu wasanaethau, y bydd gofal gydag 

ymyriadau cefnogol yn cael ei gydgysylltu’n briodol i alluogi’r person i ystyried ac addasu i’r amgylchedd newydd. Bydd hyn yn sicrhau y bydd yr holl bartneriaid gofal yn 
cyfathrebu ac yn gweithio ar y cyd i gefnogi pontio di-dor. (AWDCPS 19).  

T
udalen 128



WWCP Draft Dementia Strategy February 2022

Cyflwyno'r mentrau drwy reoli rhaglen

Yn ogystal â datblygu’r weledigaeth, y llwybr model gwasanaeth, y strategaeth, gofynnwyd i Attain adolygu’r llywodraethu 
rhanbarthol presennol i sicrhau perchnogaeth amlasiantaethol gadarn ar Gynllun y Gronfa, y ffordd y caiff ei gyflawni a’i werthuso. 

I ddechrau, dangosodd Attain sut beth yw rheoli rhaglen yn dda (am ragor o fanylion gweler atodiad 3) 
Mae'r sleidiau canlynol yn disgrifio'r fframwaith rheoli rhaglen arfaethedig ar gyfer y Rhaglen Ddementia Ranbarthol.

43

Sut beth yw rheoli rhaglen yn dda?

Gweledigaeth, 
Arweinyddiaeth 

a Diwylliant

Llywodraethu 
Rhaglen

Rheoli 
Rhanddeiliaid 
a Chyfathrebu

Cynllunio ac 
Adnoddau

Olrhain 
Deilliannau 
a Buddion

Rheoli 
Risgiau a 

Phroblemau

Cefnogi’r 
Rhaglen

Rheolaeth 
ariannol

T
udalen 129



Dull Cyflawni 
Arfaethedig: 
Rheoli Ffrydiau 
Gwaith y Rhaglen

Rheoli ffrydiau 
gwaith

Rheoli ffrydiau gwaith

Cynllunio 
capasiti

Buddion / Gwerth

Cylch cynllunio 
/ Blaenoriaethu

Prosesau ac Amserlennu

Dyrannu

Rheoli prosiect

Rheoli adnoddau

Rheolaeth ariannol

Prosiectau 
/ Mentrau

Blaenoriaethu

Cychwyn Cynllun Gweithredu Cau

Dadansoddiad 
Cost / Budd

Rheoli Ffrwd Waith ac Adolygu Rheolaidd

Gweithredu / Monitro Prosiect

Defnyddio Adnoddau

Cyllido / Rhagamcanu

44 44

T
udalen 130



WWCP Draft Dementia Strategy February 2022

Dull gweithredu’r strategaeth Ddementia a’r Llwybr 
Llesiant

Ymgysylltu â rhanddeiliaid

Gweithrediad y strategaeth yn cael ei oruchwylio drwy lywodraethu cryf a rheoli rhaglen

Gwella gwasanaeth yn barhaus ar sail data da a gwybodaeth fusnes

Ymgysylltu â rhanddeiliaid

Rhaglen Drawsffurfio Gwasanaeth Dementia WWCP

Byw yn dda 
gyda 

dementia

Llesiant, lleihau 
risg, gohirio 

cychwyniad, 
codi 

ymwybyddiaeth 
a dealltwriaeth

Adnabod, 
nodi, 

cymorth a 
hyfforddiant 

Mwy o 
gefnogaeth 

pan fydd 
arnoch ei 

angen

Blaenoriaethau 
dementia yn 
cyd-fynd â’r 

ffrydiau gwaith

Asesiad a 
diagnosis

T
udalen 131



WWCP Draft Dementia Strategy February 2022

Ymgysylltu â rhanddeiliaid

Datblygiad y strategaeth a’i gweithredu yn cael ei oruchwylio drwy lywodraethu cryf a rheoli rhaglen

Gwella gwasanaeth yn barhaus ar sail data da a gwybodaeth fusnes

Ymgysylltu â rhanddeiliaid

Rhaglen Drawsffurfio Gwasanaeth Dementia WWCP

Rheoli’r 
rhaglen a’r 
diwylliant o 

gydweithio a 
rhannu arfer 

gorau

Ffrwd waith 3
Datblygu a 
hyfforddi’r 
gweithlu 

Dementia

Ffrwd waith 1
Llywodraethu 

rhaglen a 
galluogwyr y 

system

Ffrwd waith 2 
Trawsffurfio’r 
gwasanaeth 

Dementia

Ffrwd waith 4
BI a data 

Dementia

Y ffrydiau gwaith arfaethedig i gyflawni strategaeth 
Ddementia WWCP

Cyfnod trawsffurfio’r gwasanaeth yw 5 mlynedd

T
udalen 132



WWCP Draft Dementia Strategy February 2022

Y Dull Cyflawni Arfaethedig: Rheoli Portffolio
Bydd y set ddangosol isod o bortffolios yn darparu strwythur i gyflawni cam nesaf y gwaith o ddatblygu'r strategaeth/cynllun rhaglen ddementia. 
Mae blaenoriaethau’r strategaeth ddementia yn unol â safonau llwybr gofal dementia Cymru Gyfan ac yn adeiladu 
ar yr arfer da presennol sydd eisoes ar waith. Dylai blaenoriaethau dementia gael eu harwain gan uwch arweinydd o fewn y system a bydd 
Uwch-swyddog Rhanbarthol yn eu goruchwylio, ynghyd â grŵp llywio dementia WWCP. Fodd bynnag, bydd y rhaglen waith gyfan hefyd yn 
cael ei goruchwylio gan y Grŵp Gweithredol Integredig a'r Bwrdd Partneriaeth Rhanbarthol. Bydd angen nodi adnoddau dros oes y rhaglen er 
mwyn ei gwneud yn bosibl parhau i ddarparu gwasanaethau tra bydd staff y rheng flaen yn gweithio i ddylunio a datblygu'r gwasanaethau. 

Datblygu a hyfforddi’r gweithlu

Gweithredu’r blaenoriaethau sy’n codi 
o’r strategaeth ddementia sy’n 
ymwneud â datblygu a hyfforddi’r 
gweithlu

Trawsffurfio’r gwasanaeth Dementia

Gweithredu’r argymhellion sy’n codi o’r 
strategaeth ddementia sy’n ymwneud â 
thrawsffurfio’r gwasanaeth.

• Cynorthwyo pobl yn rhagweithiol
• Rhoi cymorth, waeth beth fo’r 

diagnosis
• Cael llwybr y diagnosis a’r wybodaeth 

yn gywir y tro cyntaf 
• Cynorthwyo’r rheiny ag anabledd 

dysgu 
• Galluogi pobl i gael adolygiadau 

iechyd a mynychu apwyntiadau
• Camau gweithredu cysylltiedig â 

gweithredu ymateb ledled y system 
• Gofal cyson tra yn yr ysbyty
• Cynyddu effaith gweithio fel tîm aml-

ddisgyblaethol, gan gael mynediad at 
gymorth pan fydd ar bobl ei angen

BI a data

Gweithredu’r blaenoriaethau sy’n codi 
o’r strategaeth ddementia sy’n 
ymwneud â dull unffurf o gasglu 
gwybodaeth fusnes a deilliannau.

• Data yn sbarduno newid – datblygu 
dangosfwrdd perfformiad rhaglen 
ddementia y Gronfa Gofal 
Integredig

• Datblygu achos busnes llawn y 
cysylltydd llesiant Dementia gydag 
anghenion manwl y boblogaeth, y 
gweithlu a’r galw a modelu’r 
capasiti ar gyfer rôl cysylltydd llesiant 
Dementia i ddarparu cymorth 
emosiynol drwy gydol y cyfnod 
asesu a thros y 48 awr cyntaf ar ôl 
cael diagnosis 

• Gweithredu argymhellion y 
strategaeth ddementia mewn 
perthynas â BI a data.

Llywodraethu rhaglen a galluogwyr y 
system

Gweithredu’r strategaeth ddementia 
ranbarthol wedi ei chadarnhau gan y 
WWCP. Cynlluniau gweithredu cadarn y 
gellir eu cyflawni.

• Recriwtio rheolwr rhaglen y rhanbarth 
• Datblygu cynllun rhaglen y rhanbarth i 

gyflawni argymhellion y strategaeth. 
• Strwythur llywodraethu rhaglen WWCP 
• Goruchwylio prosiectau 2021/22 a 

dyrannu ar gyfer 2022 ymlaen 
• Ei gwneud yn bosibl casglu 

gwybodaeth am d data er mwyn gallu 
gwneud penderfyniadau a chynllunio 

• Sefydlu a gweithredu'r strwythurau 
galluogi sy'n deillio o'r argymhellion yn y 
strategaeth 

• Cynllun cyfathrebu sy’n cydredeg â’r 
strategaeth, gan godi ymwybyddiaeth, 
a hybu datblygiadau gwasanaeth yn 
lleol 

N
od

M
ey

sy
dd

 
Bl

ae
no

ria
et

h

. 

Cydgynhyrchu, adeiladu ar arfer gorau a’i rannu

• Gweithredu’r fframwaith Gwaith Da – 
Hyfforddiant i BAWB a’r argymhellion 
yn y strategaeth yn ymwneud â 
hyfforddiant e.e. Adnewyddu 
fframwaith hyfforddi dadansoddiad 
anghenion dysgu Gorllewin Cymru, 
gweithio gyda phartneriaid i'w roi ar 
waith gan sicrhau bod yr holl 
hyfforddiant a ddarperir yn seiliedig ar 
dystiolaeth 

• Datblygu cynllun gweithlu i gefnogi 
trawsnewid gwasanaethau

• Cefnogi datblygiad yr offeryn 
adnabod dementia 

• Mynd ymlaen i ddatblygu a chyflwyno 
rôl y cysylltydd llesiant Dementia

Cydgynhyrchiad y claf a’r gofalwr – gwella profiad y claf drwy wneud mynediad yn hawdd a thrwy safoni gwybodaeth, gwasanaethau a rhoi cyfle i lais y defnyddiwr/teulu wrth newid 
gwasanaethau

T
udalen 133



WWCP Draft Dementia Strategy February 2022

Llywodraeth Cymru

Fforwm CGI Rhanbarthol

Grŵp Llywio Dementia
Goruchwylio datblygiad Cynllun Buddsoddi Dementia y 

CGI / cynllun y rhaglen ranbarthol ac adrodd am 
gynnydd yn ei erbyn a gweithrediad y cynllun 

gweithredu dementia cenedlaethol yn ehangach

Bwrdd Partneriaeth 
Rhanbarthol

Grŵp Gweithredu 
Integredig

Rhaglen Cynllun 
Buddsoddi Dementia 

Cronfa Integredig Iechyd 
a Gofal Cymdeithasol 

Ranbarthol 

Adrodd am wariant a 
chyflawniad Cynllun 

Buddsoddi Dementia y 
CGI

BI a dataDatblygu a hyfforddi’r 
gweithlu

Trawsffurfio gwasanaeth 
Dementia

Llywodraethu rhaglen a 
galluogwyr y system

Trefniadau Llywodraethu Arfaethedig  Cronfa Gofal Integredig (CGI) 
Dementia

48

T
udalen 134



8. Y camau nesaf ar 
gyfer 2022/23

49

T
udalen 135



WWCP Draft Dementia Strategy February 2022

Y 
Camau 
nesaf

Gweithredu strategaeth 
Ddementia newydd 

Gorllewin Cymru

Cyflawni’r rhaglen: 
• Cytuno ar y rhesymeg i barhau i 

ariannu yn ystod 2022/23 
• Nodi adnodd i sefydlu a rheoli'r 

rhaglen waith ar draws partneriaid - 
recriwtio i'r rôl 

• Creu cynllun rhaglen, blaenoriaethu 
prosiectau ac adolygu llinellau amser i 
sicrhau bod cynllun realistig yn ei le y 
gellir ei gyflawni. Defnyddio Rheoli 
Ffrwd Gwaith fel y broses ar gyfer 
cyflawni 

• Nodi Ffrwd Gwaith yr Uwch-swyddog 
Rhanbarthol i yrru’r gwaith yn ei flaen 
gyda chymorth Swyddog Rheoli 
Rhaglen (SRhRh); rhoi perchnogaeth 
ac atebolrwydd i gyflawni 

• Dylid darparu diweddariadau 
cynnydd rheolaidd yng Ngrŵp misol 
Llywio Dementia WWCP

Gweithredu’r strategaeth:

• Ceisio cymeradwyaeth gan y Grŵp 
Gweithredu Integredig a’r Bwrdd 
Partneriaeth Rhanbarthol, datblygu 
cynllun cyfathrebu i gymdeithasoli’r 
strategaeth fel bod yr holl bartneriaid 
yn ymwybodol o’r cyfeiriad teithio ar 
gyfer gwasanaethau dementia yng 
Ngorllewin Cymru. 

• Cynllun cyfathrebu i gwmpasu oes y 
strategaeth, gan alluogi'r cyhoedd i fod 
yn ymwybodol o unrhyw ddatblygiad 
newydd yn eu hardal 

• Diweddaru cynllun y rhaglen gyda’r 
datblygiadau gwasanaeth newydd 
sydd eu hangen i gyflawni llwybr llesiant 
dementia 

• Sicrhau bod trefniadau llywodraethu 
cadarn yn eu lle i oruchwylio’r dasg o 
weithredu’r mentrau gwasanaeth 
newydd, gan sicrhau bod pob menter 
newydd yn dilyn dull y rhaglen ac yn 
adrodd ar gynnydd yn rheolaidd i’r 
Grŵp Llywio Dementia Rhanbarthol

50

T
udalen 136



9. Atodiad 1: 
Dadansoddiad o boblogaeth 
Gorllewin Cymru

51

T
udalen 137



WWCP Draft Dementia Strategy February 2022

Dadansoddiad o boblogaeth Gorllewin Cymru
(Swyddfa Ystadegau Gwladol)
Ar y cyfan mae’n ymddangos yn debygol y bydd poblogaeth Gorllewin Cymru yn cynyddu o 0.4% yn gyffredinol erbyn 2025 ac o 2% erbyn 2040 (20 
mlynedd). Bydd poblogaeth Sir Benfro a Sir Gaerfyrddin yn gweld cynnydd tebyg o 0.6% a 0.7% erbyn 2025 a 2.7% a 3.5% erbyn 2040. Disgwylir i boblogaeth 
Ceredigion weld gostyngiad (0.7% yn 2025 a 3% yn 2040). Fodd bynnag, o ran oedran; mae pob ardal yn mynd i weld cynnydd yn eu poblogaethau 
oedrannus.

 Ar y cyfan, mae’r boblogaeth oedrannus yn mynd i gynyddu, a phoblogaeth y plant a’r bobl sydd yn oed gwaith yn mynd i leihau
• Erbyn 2025 (ymhen 4-5 mlynedd) mae poblogaeth y rhai dros 65 yn debygol o gynyddu o 6% (dros 80 o 11%)
• Erbyn 2040 (oddeutu 20 mlynedd o heddiw) mae’n ymddangos y bydd y boblogaeth dros 65 yn debygol o gynyddu o 27% a’r rhai dros 80 o 55%
• Mae’r bobl dros 65 ar hyn o bryd yn ffurfio chwarter y boblogaeth. Ymhen 5 mlynedd byddant  yn 26.8% ac erbyn 2040 maent yn debygol o fod bron yn 

drydedd ran o’r boblogaeth gyda’r rhai dros 80 yn dod dros 10% (o ddim ond dros 6% yn awr)

Ffynhonnell: Swyddfa 
Ystadegau Gwladol

Rhagamcaniadau poblogaeth ar gyfer Gorllewin Cymru

52

Cynnydd o 0.4% ar y cyfan
Cynnydd o 2% ar y cyfan

Sir Gaerfyrddin Sir Benfro

5-9 oed
10-14 oed

0-4 oed

15-19 oed
20-24 oed
25-29 oed
30-34 oed
35-39 oed
40-44 oed

50-54 oed
45-49 oed

55-59 oed
60-64 oed
65-69 oed
70-74 oed
75-79 oed
80-84 oed
85-89 oed

90+ oed

T
udalen 138



WWCP Draft Dementia Strategy February 2022

Dementia Gorllewin Cymru (Cofrestr QOF)
Mae'r data yn y pecyn hwn yn ddyfyniad o'r systemau meddygon teulu sy’n ddefnyddio diffiniad y QOF. 

Merched yw tua 62% o’r cleifion dementia cofrestredig yng Ngorllewin Cymru ond mae hyn yn rhannol oherwydd disgwyliad oes uwch yn y boblogaeth 
fenywaidd. 

Mae bron i 50% o'r cleifion dementia benywaidd dros 85 oed o gymharu â 36% o'r cleifion gwrywaidd. Mae hyn yn golygu bod 45% o gyfanswm y cleifion 
dementia dros 85 oed. Disgwylir i'r grŵp oedran hwn dyfu'n sylweddol dros yr 20 mlynedd nesaf, a disgwylir iddo fod dros 10% o boblogaeth Gorllewin Cymru 
erbyn 2040. Dengys astudiaethau diweddar nad yw nifer yr achosion o ddementia yn cynyddu'n sylweddol ond oherwydd disgwyliad oes uwch a 
chanlyniadau gwell ar gyfer gofal, bydd eu mynychder yn parhau i gynyddu.

Daeth dementia yn brif achos marwolaeth yn y DU yn 2015 
ac mae wedi parhau i ddisodli achosion marwolaeth eraill. 
Cyn-Covid (2020) roedd yn cynrychioli 12.7% o farwolaethau 
ac roedd y nifer hwnnw wedi cynyddu'n flynyddol 
Ar draws y boblogaeth gyfan, mae nifer yr achosion o 
gleifion ar y gofrestr QOF sydd wedi cael diagnosis o 
ddementia ychydig dros 0.7%. Fodd bynnag, 2.3% yw nifer yr 
achosion ymhlith pobl dros 60 oed (pobl ar y 
gofrestr/poblogaeth yn y grŵp oedran). Diffinnir dementia 
cynnar fel y rhai dan 65 oed sy'n cael diagnosis. 
Mae'r rhain yn cynrychioli nifer fechan iawn o achosion sydd 
wedi derbyn diagnosis gan feddygon teulu ond maent o 
bosibl yn cynrychioli cyfran fwy o'r angen sydd heb ei 
ddiwallu a heb ei ddarganfod
 Mae pobl dros 60 oed yn cynrychioli tua thraean o'r 
boblogaeth a 98.9% o'r cleifion dementia cofrestredig yng 
Ngorllewin Cymru  

Source: GP QOF
53

Dan 1 
oed

T
udalen 139



WWCP Draft Dementia Strategy February 2022

Dementia fesul clwstwr
Yn Sir Gaerfyrddin y ceir y boblogaeth fwyaf o'r 3 sir ar draws Gorllewin Cymru, mae ganddi tua 49% o'r boblogaeth gyfan a 46% o’r rhai dros 65 oed, gyda 
24% o'i phoblogaeth hi ei hun dros 65 oed. Ganddyn nhw mae 48% o'r diagnosis dementia. Hi hefyd yw'r ardal fwyaf gwledig o'r tair sir. 

Mae gan feddygon teulu Sir Benfro boblogaeth o tua 870 o gleifion wedi eu cofnodi â diagnosis dementia, sy'n cynrychioli tua 31% o'r diagnosis dementia 
yng Ngorllewin Cymru. Fel sir mae ganddynt 32.5% o'r boblogaeth a 34% o'r boblogaeth dros 65 oed. Mae'r boblogaeth dros 65 oed yn cynrychioli bron i 27% 
o gyfanswm poblogaeth Sir Benfro. Fodd bynnag, erbyn 2040 bydd y twf ar gyfer Sir Benfro yn 6.6% 

Er bod disgwyl i boblogaeth Ceredigion ostwng yn gyffredinol, mae disgwyl i bobl dros 65 oed gynyddu dros 4% yn yr 20 mlynedd nesaf. 

Dengys y graffig isod y niferoedd gwirioneddol o ddynion a merched fesul clwstwr ac fel y gwelwch, mae’r niferoedd yn nhri chlwstwr Sir Gaerfyrddin yn 
uchel iawn, yn gymharol, yng nghategori’r merched dros 85 oed. Yn nodedig, mae gan Dde Sir Benfro hefyd niferoedd uchel o ddynion a merched dros 85 
oed sydd wedi cael diagnosis o ddementia 

Ffynhonnell: GP QOF ac ONS
54

T
udalen 140



WWCP Draft Dementia Strategy February 2022

Map

Cyfran y boblogaeth dros 40 oed yn seiliedig ar restrau practisau, yn ôl MOSA lleoliad 
y practis

Cyfanswm diagnosis poblogaeth yn seiliedig ar restrau practisau, yn ôl MOSA lleoliad y 
practis

Nid oedd data Ardaloedd Cynnyrch Ehangach Haen Is (LOSA) ar gael ar gyfer cleifion ac felly mae’r wybodaeth isod yn dangos y pwysau ar bractisau 
meddygon teulu ar lefel Ardal Gynnyrch Ehangach Haen Ganol (MOSA) a dyna pam y ceir bylchau.

55

T
udalen 141



WWCP Draft Dementia Strategy February 2022

7,900 (yn 
cynnwys angen 

sydd heb dderbyn 
diagnosis)

Dementia - mynychder

Poblogaeth  
386 mil

5,300Dementia

2,812

2,488

= Ar gofrestr meddyg 
teulu

= Amcangyfrif heb dderbyn 
diagnosis

Poblogaeth 
Gorllewin Cymru

Amcangyfrif o gleifion dementia 
presennol Amcangyfrif 2040

Dengys y siart isod y boblogaeth ddementia gofrestredig bresennol a'r lefel bosibl sydd heb dderbyn diagnosis; mae wedyn yn rhagweld, yn seiliedig ar y 
gyfradd heb gael diagnosis a thwf y boblogaeth, y nifer bosibl o gleifion fydd yn byw gyda dementia ar draws Gorllewin Cymru erbyn 2040. Mae’n bwysig 
nodi bod effaith COVID-19 ar ddiagnosis a chyfradd mynychder dementia yn dal i fod yn anhysbys. Mae pryder bod COVID-19, mewn rhai achosion, yn 
achosi niwed i’r ymennydd ac y gallai hyn yn y tymor hir arwain at risg uwch o ddatblygu dementia* 

à Mae’r mynychder ar gofrestrau Meddygon Teulu ar hyn o bryd fymryn o dan 1% ar y cyfan
à Mae’n debygol fod bwlch diagnosis o oddeutu 50%
à Mae'r uchod yn cyfrifo, ar lefel uchel, y mynychder gwirioneddol posibl yn seiliedig ar dwf y 

boblogaeth a chymhwyso'r gyfradd ddiagnosis
à Gallai’r mynychder fel cyfradd fod mor uchel â 2% erbyn 2040, yn seiliedig ar y twf yn y 

boblogaeth dros 65 oed. *Gweler: “The chronic neuropsychiatric 
sequelae of COVID-19: The need for a 
prospective study of viral impact on brain 
functioning” - Gabriel A. de Erausquin et al

I roi hyn mewn persbectif…

Mae hyn yn gymaint â phawb sy’n 
byw ym Mhenfro yn cael dementia.

56

T
udalen 142



WWCP Draft Dementia Strategy February 2022

Cymharu Byrddau Iechyd

Mynychder Dementia cofrestrau Meddygon teulu (ymhlith poblogaeth oedolion)

Dengys y graff ar y dde y cyfraddau mynychder ar gyfer 
dementia a gofnodwyd yng nghofrestrau meddygon teulu (yn 
ôl diffiniadau QOF). Sylwch, mae hyn yn debygol o fod yn is na 
chyfradd y mynychder gwirioneddol oherwydd defnyddio 
poblogaeth sydd wedi’i chofrestru gyda meddygon teulu o’r 
system meddygon teulu fel enwadur (ac nid y boblogaeth 
breswyl, mae hefyd yn cynnwys pob grŵp oedran)
 
Fodd bynnag, y peth pwysig i'w nodi yw'r gwahaniaethau yn 
hytrach na'r niferoedd. Gorllewin Cymru yw’r 3ydd uchaf ac 
maent ychydig yn uwch na chyfartaledd Cymru (tua 0.87% o 
gymharu â 0.85%) 

Niferoedd y cleifion ar gofrestr dementia yn ôl rhyw a BIP

57

T
udalen 143



WWCP Draft Dementia Strategy February 2022

Dementia Cynnar
Dementia cynnar yw dechrau dementia pan fydd person dan 65 oed. Ar draws Gorllewin Cymru mae 84 o gleifion ar y cofrestrau sydd dan 65 oed. O'r 
rheiny, mae 55 yn y grŵp oedran 60-65 oed. Mae hyn yn rhoi cyfradd o 0.04% i Orllewin Cymru ar draws y boblogaeth oedolion, sy'n debyg iawn i'r gyfradd a 
welir ar draws cofrestrau Cymru yn genedlaethol. 

Mae 5 claf ar gofrestrau meddygon teulu sydd dan 50 oed. Mae llai na 30 yng Nghymru gyfan (gyda diagnosis ffurfiol wedi'i gofrestru gan feddyg teulu). 
Unwaith eto, mae’r cyfraddau mynychder ar draws Gorllewin Cymru yn uwch na rhai Cymru (tua 0.0025%)

Dementia Cynnar fesul oedran a chlwstwr

58

T
udalen 144



10. Atodiad 2: 
Adborth o Gyfweliadau 
Strwythuredig Cychwynnol

59

T
udalen 145



Ymgysylltu â 
rhanddeiliaid

Digwyddodd cam cyntaf datblygiad y 
strategaeth hon rhwng Ionawr a Mai 
2021. Comisiynwyd Attain i ddechrau 
gan Gyngor Sir Caerfyrddin ar ran 
WWCP i gynnal adolygiad o Gynllun 
Buddsoddi Dementia y CGI ochr yn 
ochr â datblygu strategaeth 
ddementia lefel uchel, gweledigaeth 
a llwybr model gwasanaeth ar draws 
rhanbarth Gorllewin Cymru. 
Cefnogwyd y gwaith cychwynnol yn 
dda gan WWCP a weithiodd gydag 
Attain i gyd-lunio strategaeth ddrafft 
lefel uchel ar gyfer dementia. Bu 
rhanddeiliaid o bob rhan o’r rhanbarth 
yn gweithio’n galed iawn i ddarparu 
gwybodaeth a mewnwelediad lleol, 
trwy drafodaethau strwythuredig gyda 
rhanddeiliaid. Mae'r themâu sy'n deillio 
o'r cyfweliadau cychwynnol wedi cael 
eu crynhoi lle bo modd ar y 
tudalennau canlynol. Mae themâu ail 
gam y gwaith wedi cael eu crynhoi yn 
gynharach yn y strategaeth.

60

Enw Teitl Staff ychwanegol

Rhian Dawson  BIP Hywel Dda a Chyngor Sir Caerfyrddin – 
Cyfarwyddwr Sir Caerfyrddin

E-byst a anfonwyd 
25/03 a 12/04

Jina Hawkes  BIP Hywel Dda – Rheolwr Cyffredinol Gofal Sylfaenol 
Cymunedol - Ceredigion

Sonia Hay BIP Hywel Dda  - Rheolwr Cyffredinol Gofal 
Cymunedol a Sylfaenol Sir Benfro

Charlotte Duhig, Ceri 
Griffiths a 2 arall

Rebecca Jones   Rheolwr Rhaglen WWCP ar gyfer datblygu’r gweithlu
Sue Leonard Prif Weithredwr PAVS Cherry Evans Sophie 

Buckley
Elaine Lorton BIP Hywel Dda Cyfarwyddwr Sirol Sir Benfro
Peter Skitt BIP Hywel Dda – Cyfarwyddwr Sirol Ceredigion
Alex Williams   

Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Integredig Sir Gaerfyrddin
Ynghyd â 
chydweithwyr o Sir 
Gaerfyrddin 

Neil Mason BIP Hywel Dda – Rheolwr Gwasanaeth Iechyd 
Meddwl Oedolion Hŷn Ynghyd â  Nyrs Admiral

Graham O’Connor (BIP Hywel Dda – Seiciatrydd Ymgynghorol)
Donna Pritchard  Pennaeth Oedolion Cyngor Ceredigion Ellen James, Sian 

Howys, Nerys Lewis
Claire Sims  BIP Hywel Dda – Pennaeth Therapi Galwedigaethol Ynghyd â Karen 

Shearsmith-Farthing
Becca Stilwell Seicolegydd Clinigol Anfonwyd e-bost 

15/04/21

Llawer o ddiolch i’r rheiny a gymerodd ran yng ngham cyntaf y gwaith:

60

T
udalen 146



WWCP Draft Dementia Strategy February 2022

Gwasanaethau 
cydgysylltiedig

Y peth trosfwaol nad 
ymdrinnir ag ef yw gofal 
sylfaenol yn lapio am y 

person, cysylltydd ar hyd 
eu taith

Alzheimer's yn darparu 
cymorth cyn diagnosis yn 
dilyn atgyfeirio – pobl yn 
mynd yn syth at gymorth 

wyneb yn wyneb yn 
hytrach na chanolfan alw

Gwasanaeth Nyrs Admiral 
newydd yn eistedd gyda 

gofal cymdeithasol – 
darparu cymorth, dod â 

gweithwyr proffesiynol eraill 
ynghyd o amgylch y person

Mae angen i bob 
Meddyg Teulu gymryd y 
cyfrifoldeb am ragnodi 

dementia

Gallai Meddygon Teulu/GPPI 
wneud diagnosis 

uniongyrchol o ddementia.  
Dylai tîm iechyd meddwl 

ganolbwyntio ar ddiagnosis 
arbenigol

Dim trosolwg ganolog ar 
gofrestrau dementia 

meddygon teulu

Angen cael sgyrsiau 
ynghylch gofal diwedd oes 

yn gynt. Mae rhai 
gweithwyr proffesiynol yn 

amharod i gychwyn 
sgyrsiau am gynllun gofal 

ymlaen llaw

Mae angen i sefydliadau 
yn awr wneud eu rhan i 

ffurfio dull integredig 
cydgysylltiedig – dim yn 
hawdd yng Ngorllewin 

Cymru

Mae angen i weledigaeth a 
model y gwasanaeth 

sicrhau ei bod yn hawdd 
cael mynediad at 

wasanaethau a’u bod yn 
gydgysylltiedig

Ymgynghorwyr wedi eu 
hyfforddi i gynorthwyo 

pobl â dementia

Mae gofalwyr 
answyddogol wedi 

ymlâdd – gellid osgoi hyn 
pe gallent gael y 

cymorth iawn

Mae dementia mor eang 
– mae ar draws y 

gymuned gyfan ac mae 
angen iddo fod yn rhan 
o gynllunio a datblygiad 

o ddydd i ddydd

Y Prif Themâu
Yr hyn sy’n 
gweithio’n 

dda
Yr hyn y gellid 

ei wella
Yr elfennau 
sydd ar goll

Llawer o drosglwyddiadau 
rhwng gwasanaethau – 

anhawster gyda gofal tymor 
hir – ble mae dementia yn 
eistedd? Does gan yr un 
gwasanaeth y capasiti  i 
reoli’r garfan fawr hon

Mae angen strategaeth, 
gweledigaeth a model 

gwasanaeth clir, rhanbarthol 
a chyllid tymor hir i 

gyflwyno’r gwasanaethau

Swyddogaeth cysylltydd 
dementia yn y 3ydd sector 

wedi dod â 
swyddogaethau eraill at ei 
gilydd yn canolbwyntio ar 
ddementia ac yn gweithio 
fel tîm amlddisgyblaethol

Mae’r themâu a ddeilliodd o’r cyfweliadau gyda rhanddeiliaid wedi dylanwadu ar 
ddatblygiad llwybr y model gwasanaeth a’r argymhellion yn yr adroddiad hwn.

Nid oes llwybr cydlynol ac 
mae diffyg 

gofal/dealltwriaeth o 
ddementia sy’n 

canolbwyntio ar yr 
unigolyn

Meddwl am ddementia fel 
problem iechyd meddwl ac 

felly pan fydd rhywun yn 
ymgyflwyno gydag 

ymddygiad heriol maent yn 
galw ar Iechyd Meddwl

Rhai enghreifftiau da – Delta 
Connect, bywydau hapus – 

gofal cartref yn canolbwyntio 
ar y person, Ceredigion – dod 

o hyd i ddatrysiadau da – 
teimlad gwirioneddol o dîm

Rheoli rhaglen 
gwasanaethau dementia 

Gorllewin Cymru drwy’r 
WWCP, gwerthuso 

gwasanaeth ac adrodd am 
berfformiad

Gellir addasu adborth y 
system genedlaethol ar ofal 

ysbyty ar gyfer PBGD a’i 
ofalwyr i roi adborth ar ein 

holl wasanaethau

61

T
udalen 147



WWCP Draft Dementia Strategy February 2022

Ystyried beth yw pwrpas y 
diagnosis? Triniaeth? 

Meddyginiaeth? Gohirio’r 
anochel? Seibiant, cymorth 

i’r gofalwr?

Mae cyfle i bwynt 
mynediad canolog drwy 

wasanaeth Delta 
Wellbeing a ddarperir yn 

rhanbarthol

Mae angen i bobl sy’n 
darparu gofal fedru canfod 
dementia a chael y sgiliau i 
gynorthwyo – mae angen 
hyfforddiant adnewyddu 

rheolaidd

Mae Delta connect yn 
ceisio datblygu gofal fel y 
gall y person aros gartref

Mae’r tîm Llesiant yn 
gweithio gyda Delta 

connect – ceisio 
uwchsgilio’r tîm argyfwng i 

atal pobl rhag gorfod mynd 
i’r ysbyty

 

Cyfathrebu
Sut mae pobl yn 
cael mynediad 
at wasanaethau

Gweithlu a 
hyfforddiant

Ar hyn o bryd gormod o 
drosglwyddiadau heb eu 
cysylltu yn unrhyw ffordd 

angen cyd-drefnu a rheoli 
achosion

Llesiant dementia yn yr 
ysbytai aciwt yn cefnogi 
addasiadau rhesymol ar 
gyfer y rhai a dderbynnir. 

Rhan o dîm 
amlddisgyblaethol y ward – 

ar fin cael ei werthuso

Yn unol ag arfer gorau, 
dylai’r defnydd o 
dechnoleg fod yn 

ganolog i ddarparu 
gwasanaethau 

dementia

Ble mae bywydau pobl yn 
eistedd? Darlun cyfannol – 

angen i anghenion y gofalwyr 
wedi eu coladu gael eu 

cynnwys o fewn cofnod y 
person sy’n byw gyda 

dementia.

 

Bydd y tîm llesiant dementia 
rhanbarthol sydd ar fin cael ei 
lansio yn darparu hyfforddiant 

i uwchsgilio staff a dull tîm 
amlddisgyblaethol arbenigol  
ar gyfer achosion cymhleth

Mae’r themâu a ddeilliodd o’r cyfweliadau gyda rhanddeiliaid wedi dylanwadu ar 
ddatblygiad llwybr y model gwasanaeth a’r argymhellion yn yr adroddiad hwn.

Sut mae pobl 
yn cael 

diagnosis
Y defnydd o 
dechnoleg

Diffyg gwybodaeth, hyder a 
sgiliau mewn 

staff/gwasanaethau i ddeall 
bod pobl â  dementia a’u 

gofalwyr yn defnyddio nifer o 
wasanaethau

 Datblygu strwythur i 
wasanaethau gyfathrebu’n 

well â’i gilydd/rhannu 
gwybodaeth –mae’r hyn sydd 

ar gael yn y gymuned yn 
teimlo’n fratiog iawn

Nid yw asesiad gofalwyr 
yr Awdurdod Lleol yn 
dibynnu ar ddiagnosis 

ond rydych yn dal i 
glywed amdano

Angen adolygu pobl â 
dementia, sylwadau 

cymunedol, rolau fel rhagnodi 
cymdeithasol i osgoi dyblygu 
a’u halinio ar draws y system

Y CYNTAF O’I FATH – Mae 
Therapyddion Galwedigaethol 
yn gweithio yn yr Alban ac yn 
darparu taith drwy ddementia 
– ymyriadau fydd yn cael eu 

gwerthuso, dan arweiniad 
protocol

Mae ar feddygon teulu angen 
hyfforddiant i ganfod arwyddion 
cynnar dementia a phroblemau 

corfforol yn y camau 
diweddarach. Mae angen i rai 

sy’n mynd yn nyrsys iechyd 
meddwl gael hyfforddiant mewn 

dementia

Mae’r tîm llesiant yn gweithio 
gyda @learning Wales i wneud 
yr hyfforddiant yn fwy hygyrch. 

Cadw mewn cof nad ydyw 
hyfforddiant e-ddysgu yn rhoi’r 

offer i bobl

Gofal cymdeithasol, 
gofal cartref, gofal 

seibiant – mwy anodd 
ei gael a llai sicr. Loteri 

cod post o ran 
mynediad

Cred na ellir ei wneud ond 
mewn lleoliad meddygol 

arbenigol – rhai cleifion yn 
derbyn diagnosis yn yr ysbyty. 

Angen dull tîm 
amlddisgyblaethol i wneud 

diagnosis yn y gymuned 62

Mae angen adnabod a 
chael diagnosis yn gynt 

mewn gofal sylfaenol. Angen 
cyflymu diagnosis dementia 
yn unol ag asesiadau CHC

T
udalen 148



11. Atodiad 3: 
Dull rheoli’r rhaglen waith

Gofynion y Prosiect  Cynnydd Y peth allweddol a gyflawnwyd

Adolygu llywodraethu rhanbarthol presennol i sicrhau perchnogaeth 
amlddisgyblaethol ar Gynllun y Gronfa, ei gyflawni a’i werthuso  

•  • Mae’r adroddiad hwn yn darparu 
amlinelliad o raglen a awgrymir

63

T
udalen 149



WWCP Draft Dementia Strategy February 2022

Sut mae rheoli rhaglen yn dda yn edrych?

Gweledigaeth, 
Arweinyddiaeth 

a Diwylliant

Llywodraethu 
Rhaglen

Rheoli 
Rhanddeiliaid a 

Chyfathrebu

Cynllunio ac 
Adnoddau

Olrhain 
Deilliannau a 

Buddion

Rheoli Risgiau a 
Phroblemau

Cefnogi’r 
Rhaglen

Rheolaeth 
ariannol

64

T
udalen 150



WWCP Draft Dementia Strategy February 2022

Cydrannau rhaglen dda(1)

Gweledigaeth, 
Arweinyddiaeth a 
Diwylliant

Llywodraethu Rhaglen Rheoli Rhanddeiliaid a Chyfathrebu Cynllunio ac Adnoddau

Sut mae 
da yn 
edrych

• Gweledigaeth glir 
gyffredin yn cael ei 
pherchnogi gan yr 
holl bartneriaid

• Arweinyddiaeth 
gydgysylltiedig yn 
ymgysylltu’n llawn 

• Gweledigaeth a 
strategaeth wedi eu 
halinio â 
strategaethau 
sefydliadau 
partneriaid a 
strategaethau 
rhanbarthol/cened-
laethol perthnasol

• Strwythur llywodraethu clir yn ei le sy’n 
cynnwys mewnbwn ar y lefel gywir i 
wneud penderfyniadau a rheoli 
risgiau/problemau 

• Proses glir yn ei lle ar gyfer 
uwchgyfeirio risgiau, problemau a 
chyfleoedd 

• Strwythur diwastraff; amser yn cael ei 
ddefnyddio’n effeithiol, gyda 
chydbwysedd rhwng trafodaeth a 
gweithredu  

• Mae gan dîm y rhaglen 
ddealltwriaeth glir o rolau a 
chyfrifoldebau 

• Ymgysylltiad claf/cyhoedd wedi ei 
gynnwys wrth lywodraethu’r rhaglen 

• Arweinyddiaeth glinigol yn rhan o 
lywodraethu’r rhaglen 

• Mapio rhanddeiliaid a chynlluniau 
cyfathrebu yn eu lle 

• Mae perthynas â rhanddeiliaid 
allweddol yn cael ei rheoli’n 
rhagweithiol 

• Targedir cyfathrebiadau allanol at 
gynulleidfaoedd perthnasol a 
defnyddir iaith/fformat cyfathrebu 
hawdd

• Cyfathrebiadau mewnol i roi 
gwybodaeth i dîm y rhaglen a 
chefnogi dynameg y tîm.

• Caiff llwyddiannau eu dathlu’n 
fewnol ac mae pob maes yn y 
rhaglen yn cyfrannu i astudiaethau 
achos a storïau newyddion da ar 
gyfer defnydd allanol. 

• Mae achos busnes cyffredinol 
cadarn dros y rhaglen yn ei le ac 
wedi cael ei gytuno gan y 
partneriaid, gyda phwyntiau 
adolygu yn eu lle er mwyn sicrhau 
hyfywedd parhaus 

• Mae cynllun clir ar gyfer pob ffrwd 
waith, yn egluro beth fydd yn cael ei 
gyflawni, sut a phryd

• Mae elfennau rhyngddibynnol wedi 
cael eu mapio 

• Mae’r adnoddau angenrheidiol i 
gyflawni’r rhaglen wedi cael eu 
mapio a’r buddsoddiad wedi cael ei 
gytuno 

• Gofynion OD wedi eu mapio a 
strategaeth yn ei lle ar gyfer cyflawni 
cydgysylltiedig

Offer a 
chynnyrch

• Gweledigaeth / 
cenhadaeth / 
datganiad 
gwerthoedd

• Memorandwm 
Dealltwriaeth / 
cytundeb partneriaeth

• Achos busnes 
amlinellol

• Siart(iau) Strwythur  Llywodraethu’r 
Rhaglen

• Maes Gorchwyl
• Blaengynllun cyfarfodydd
• Siart sefydliadol tîm y rhaglen 
• Matrics rolau / cyfrifoldebau 
• Prosesau adrodd ac uwchgyfeirio 

risgiau/problemau 
• Templedi ar gyfer agendâu 

cyfarfodydd, nodiadau a chamau 
gweithredu, adroddiadau am 
uchafbwyntiau  

• Strategaeth Gyfathrebu ac 
Ymgysylltu’r Rhaglen / Cynllun 
Gweithredu

• Offeryn mapio rhanddeiliaid 
• Proses gyfathrebu fewnol 
• Proses a dogfennaeth yr Asesiad 

Effaith ar Gydraddoldeb
• Casgliad craidd o 

ddogfennaeth/cyflwyniadau/ 
templedi wedi eu brandio i’w 
defnyddio gydag ystod o 
gynulleidfaoedd

• Olrheiniwr ymgysylltu 

• Cynllun rhaglen lefel uchel gyda 
cherrig milltir a dibyniaethau 
hollbwysig

• Cynllun rhaglen manwl
• Cynllun gwaith y Swyddog Rheoli 

Rhaglen (SRhRh) 
• Olrheiniwr recriwtio ac adnoddau 

(tîm y rhaglen)
• Proses yr achos busnes, templed ac 

arweiniad
• Cynllun ariannol

65

T
udalen 151



WWCP Draft Dementia Strategy February 2022

Cydrannau rhaglen dda(2)

Olrhain deilliannau a Buddion Risg a Rheolaeth Cefnogi’r Rhaglen Rheolaeth Ariannol

Sut mae 
da yn 
edrych

• Mae buddion ariannol y 
rhaglen a rhai heb fod yn 
ariannol wedi cael eu 
mynegi’n glir (yn cynnwys 
symud gweithgaredd, 
ansawdd clinigol a phrofiad y 
claf) ac wedi cael eu profi 
gyda rhanddeiliaid allweddol 

• Mae methodoleg gadarn yn 
ei lle i olrhain buddion ar 
draws pob ffrwd gwaith 

• Data sylfaenol wedi ei gofnodi 
• Targedir mesurau deilliannau i 

fedru monitro ymyriadau 
penodol – i weld a yw newid 
yn effeithiol 

• Casgliadau data presennol 
ac adroddiadau yn cael eu 
defnyddio lle bynnag y bo 
modd i leihau’r baich o 
adrodd (dull diwastraff)

• Risgiau allweddol i gyflawni’r 
rhaglen wedi cael eu mapio 
a chamau gweithredu 
lliniarol wedi eu nodi 

• Prosesau clir yn eu lle ar gyfer 
nodi ac olrhain risg, gyda 
lefelau uwchgyfeirio 

• Dogfennaeth gyson, gadarn 
yn cael ei defnyddio ar 
draws y rhaglen i gefnogi 
rheoli risg yn rhagweithiol a 
darparu llwybr olrhain  

• Cofrestr risg y rhaglen yn 
cael ei gynnal a’i adolygu yn 
rheolaidd gyda thystiolaeth 
o ddilyn i fyny. Camau 
lliniarol wedi eu cofnodi a’u 
dilyn drwodd. 

• Mae gwybodaeth yn cael ei rheoli’n 
dda ac yn hawdd i ddod o hyd iddi 
e.e. Rhestr gysylltiadau, strwythur 
ffeilio, protocolau yn eu lle i gadw 
llwybr olrhain archwilio

• Rheolaeth newid yn ei lle ar gyfer 
dogfennau/offer craidd

• Tîm y Swyddog Rheoli Rhaglen yn 
gallu cefnogi’r staff gweithredol / 
ffrydiau gwaith drwy leihau baich y 
ddogfennaeth 

• Swyddog Rheoli’r Rhaglen yn 
cynghori a chefnogi tîm y 
rhaglen/arweinwyr cyflawni; 
datblygu sgiliau, gwella ansawdd 

• Sicrwydd ansawdd yn ei le ar gyfer 
pethau allweddol sydd i gael eu 
cyflawni

• Y gyllideb wedi ei chytuno ar gyfer 
adnoddau’r rhaglen 

• Mecanweithiau cadarn yn eu lle ar 
gyfer rheoli cyllideb y rhaglen - 
gosod cyllideb, rheoli newid, 
monitro, cyfrifon taladwy, caffael

Offer a 
chynnyrch

• Achos busnes/ Gwerthuso 
buddsoddiad

• Fframwaith buddion / 
deilliannau, cofnodi 
dangosyddion perfformiad 
allweddol, mesurau deilliannau, 
metrigau ac yn y blaen)

• Cynllun sylweddoli buddion ac 
offeryn olrhain

• Cofrestr risg a phroblemau’r 
rhaglen

• Proses rheoli risg a 
chanllawiau

• Rhestr cysylltiadau’r rhaglen
• Protocolau rheoli gwybodaeth a 

strwythur ffeilio
• Calendr/mewnflwch rhaglen 

cyffredin

• Proses rheolaeth ariannol y rhaglen 
• Cyllideb y rhaglen

66

T
udalen 152



Dull Cyflawni 
Arfaethedig: 
Rheoli Ffrydiau 
Gwaith y Rhaglen

Rheoli ffrydiau 
gwaith

Rheoli ffrydiau gwaith

Cynllunio 
capasiti

Buddion / Gwerth

Cylch cynllunio 
/ Blaenoriaethu

Prosesau ac Amserlennu

Dyrannu

Rheoli prosiect

Rheoli adnoddau

Rheolaeth ariannol

Prosiectau 
/ Mentrau

Blaenoriaethu

Cychwyn Cynllun Gweithredu Cau

Dadansoddiad 
Cost / Budd

Rheoli Ffrwd Waith ac Adolygu Rheolaidd

Gweithredu / Monitro Prosiect

Defnyddio Adnoddau

Cyllido / Rhagamcanu

67 67

T
udalen 153



Cysylltiadau

Martin Wilson martin.wilson@attain.co.uk                 07710 744391

Su Gordon-Graham su.gordon-graham@attain.co.uk      07717 035647

Adele Yemm                     adele.yemm@attain.co.uk                07766 681051

Cherie Cope cherie.cope@Attain.co.uk                 07787 427341

68

T
udalen 154



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

Carmarthenshire County Council 

Assessing Impact  

The Equality Act 2010 

The Equality Act 2010 (the Act) brings together and replaces the previous anti-discrimination laws with a single Act. It simplifies and 
strengthens the law, removes inconsistencies and makes it easier for people to understand and comply with it. The majority of the 
Act came into force on 1 October 2010. 

The Act includes a new public sector equality duty (the ‘general duty’), replacing the separate duties on race, disability and gender 
equality.  This came into force on 5 April 2011. 

What is the general duty? 

The aim of the general duty is to ensure that public authorities and those carrying out a public function consider how they can 
positively contribute to a fairer society through advancing equality and good relations in their day-to-day activities.  The duty 
ensures that equality considerations are built into the design of policies and the delivery of services and that they are kept under 
review. This will achieve better outcomes for all. 

The duties are legal obligations. Failure to meet the duties may result in authorities being exposed to legal challenge. 

Under equality legislation, public authorities have legal duties to pay ‘due regard’ to the need to eliminate discrimination and 
promote equality with regard to race, disability and gender, including gender reassignment, as well as to promote good race 
relations. The Equality Act 2010 introduces a new public sector duty which extends this coverage to age, sexual orientation, 
pregnancy and maternity, and religion or belief. The law requires that this duty to pay ‘due regard’ be demonstrated in the decision 
making process. It is also important to note that public authorities subject to the equality duties are also likely to be subject to the 
obligations under the Human Rights Act and it is therefore wise also to consider the potential impact that decisions could have on 
human rights as part of the same process. 

T
udalen 155



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

Carmarthenshire’s approach to Equality Impact 

In order to ensure that the council is considering the potential equality impact of its proposed policies and practices, and in order to 
evidence that we have done so, every proposal will be required to be supported by the attached Equality Impact Assessment. 
Where this assessment identifies a significant impact then more detail may be required. 

Reporting on assessments  

Where it is clear from the assessment that the likely impact on the authority’s ability to meet the general duty is substantial, then it 
must publish a report.  

Initial and Detailed Equality Impact Assessments 

The initial EIA (appendix 1) is a simple and quick method of assessing the effect of a policy, function, procedure, decision including 
financial cuts on one or more of the protected characteristics.   

The Service Manager responsible for the relevant new or revised policies, functions, procedures and financial decisions must 
undertake, at least, an initial EIA and where relevant a detailed Equality Impact Assessment (appendix 2); EIA must be attached as 
background paper with reports to Executive and Scrutiny .   

 

T
udalen 156



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

 

Equality impact assessment – Process to follow where HR implications have been identified  

 

 

 

 

 

Lead/service Manager to identify the policy, function, procedure or a change in Policy. 

Undertake an initial or detailed EIA. See appendix 1 and if there is a requirement 
go on to complete appendix 2  

	
  

New HR Policy or HR policy change 

Circulate EIA with draft Policy to strategic 
HR team for comment. 

Organisational change/restructure 

EIA and proposed changes taken to 
change review panel for comment. 

Amendments identified /further work to complete or referral to legal 

Passed to the Policy and Partnership Team for approval (equalities@carmarthenshire.gov.uk)  

T
udalen 157



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

 
Initial Equalities Impact Assessment Template    Appendix 1 

Department: 

 

Completed by (lead): 

 

Date of initial assessment: 

 

Revision Dates: 

Area to be assessed: (i.e. name of policy, function, 
procedure, practice or a financial decision) 

 

Is this existing or new function/policy, procedure, practice or decision?  

What evidence has been used to inform the assessment and policy? (please list only) 

 

 

1.  Describe the aims, objectives or 
purpose of the proposed function/policy, 
practice, procedure or decision and who 
is intended to benefit. 

 

The Public Sector Equality Duty requires 
the Council to have “due regard” to the 
need to:-  

(1) eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment 
and victimisation; 

(2) advance equality of opportunity between 
different groups; and 

2.  What is the level of impact on 
each group/ protected 
characteristics in terms of the three 
aims of the duty? 

Please indicate high (H) medium (M), 
low (L), no effect (N) for each.  

3.  Identify the risk or positive effect that could result 
for each of the group/protected characteristics?  

4.  If there is a disproportionately 
negative impact what mitigating 
factors have you considered? 

Risks  Positive effects  

Communities Monica Bason-Flaquer
22/06/2022

West Wales Care Partnership Dementia Strategy

New

 The strategy sets out a West Wales vision for dementia services, to ‘Support each person tolive well and
independently with dementia for as long as possible', and outlines a dementia wellbeing pathway which focuses on
on streamlining pathways and placing people living with dementia and their carers at the centre of service provision.

The full documentation of the dementia strategy; engagement with people living with dementia and carers as part of strategy development; engagement with key

stakeholders across the health board, council, and third sector services spanning the region.

T
udalen 158



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

(3) foster good relations between different groups 

(see guidance notes) 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

Pr
ot

ec
te

d 
ch

ar
ac

te
ris

tic
s 

Age     

Disability     

Gender reassignment     

Race     

Religion/Belief     

Pregnancy and maternity     

Sexual Orientation     

Sex     

Welsh language     

 Any other area     

 

5. Has there been any consultation/engagement with the appropriate 
protected characteristics?  

 

 

YES                           NO   

High

High

No effect

No effect

No effect

No effect

No effect

Medium

Potential to improve quality of life
for older people affected by dementia
Potential to improve quality of life
for people affected by dementia
 (including young onset)

No effect

Potential to increase diagnosis 
rates and improve support 
for Welsh language speakers with dementia

T
udalen 159



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

6. What action(s) will you take to reduce any disproportionately negative impact, if any? 

7. Procurement  

Following collation of evidence for this assessment, are there any procurement implications to the activity, proposal, service. 

Please take the findings of this assessment into your procurement plan. Contact the corporate procurement unit for further advice. 

8. Human resources 

Following collation of evidence for this assessment, are there any Human resource implications to the activity, proposal or service? 

9. Based on the information in sections 2 and 6, should this 
function/policy/procedure/practice or a decision proceed to Detailed 
Impact Assessment? (recommended if one or more H under section 2)  

 

YES    

 

NO   

Approved by: 

Head of Service 

 Date: 

 

NA

T
udalen 160



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

Detailed Equalities Impact Assessment Template  Appendix 2 

 
Department: 

 

Please see initial impact assessment  

Completed by (lead):  

Date of Detailed assessment:  

Area to be assessed: (Policy, 
function, procedure, practice or a 
financial decision)) 

Please see initial impact assessment 

Is this existing or new 
function/policy/Procedure/ practice  

Please see initial impact assessment 

 
1.  Describe the aims, objectives or 
purpose of the function/policy, 
practice or procedure and who is 
intended to benefit. 

 

 

Please see initial impact assessment 

T
udalen 161



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

2.  Please list any existing 
documents, evidence, research 
which have been used to inform the 
Detailed equality impact assessment. 
(This must include relevant data used in 
this assessment) 

 

3. Has any consultation, involvement 
been undertaken with the protected 
characteristics to inform this 
assessment? (please provide details, 
who and how consulted) 

 

 

4. What is the actual/likely impact? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5. What actions are proposed to 
address the impact? (The actions 
needs to be specific, measurable and 
outcome based) 

What are we going to do  

 

 

Who will be responsible  

 

When will it be completed  

 

How will we know we have 
achieved our objective  

 

    

    

T
udalen 162



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

    

6. How will actions be monitored? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Approved by: 

Head of Service 

 Date: 

 
Thank you for completing this assessment.  
 

For further information regarding Assessing Impact, please contact the -  

Policy & Partnership Team  

Chief Executive’s Department  

01267 22(4914) / (4676) 

equalities@carmarthenshire.gov.uk  

 

Please send a copy of the assessment to the above e-mail address upon completion.  

 

T
udalen 163



M
ae'r dudalen hon yn w

ag yn fw
riadol



 

 
 

ASESIAD POBLOGAETH AC ADRODDIAD YNGHYLCH 
SEFYDLOGRWYDD Y FARCHNAD PARTNERIAETH GOFAL 

GORLLEWIN CYMRU 
 
Y Pwrpas:  

• Crynhoi'r dull a ddefnyddiwyd i lunio'r adroddiadau uchod.  
• Crynhoi'r prif ganfyddiadau. 
• Egluro'r broses gyhoeddi.  
• Rhoi sicrwydd bod proses drylwyr wedi'i dilyn wrth lunio'r adroddiadau a bod 

swyddogion Cyngor Sir Caerfyrddin wedi'u cynnwys ym mhob rhan o'r broses.  

  
Yr argymhellion / penderfyniadau allweddol sydd eu hangen: 
 
Gofynnir i'r aelodau oruchwylio a chraffu ar y canlynol:  
 

1. Asesiad Poblogaeth Partneriaeth Gofal Gorllewin Cymru (atodir y Crynodeb 
Gweithredol yn Atodiad A)  

2. Adroddiad ynghylch Sefydlogrwydd y Farchnad Partneriaeth Gofal Gorllewin Cymru 
(atodir y Crynodeb Gweithredol yn Atodiad B)  

3. Adroddiad ynghylch Sefydlogrwydd y Farchnad Partneriaeth Gofal Gorllewin Cymru 
(Atodir y Ddogfen Lawn yn Atodiad C)  

4. Asesiad Poblogaeth Partneriaeth Gofal Gorllewin Cymru (Atodir y Ddogfen Lawn yn 
Atodiad D)  

 
Gofynnir i aelodau gefnogi canfyddiadau'r adroddiadau llawn a atodir a'r dull a ddefnyddiwyd 
o ran eu cyhoeddi ar wefan Cyngor Sir Caerfyrddin. 

 
Y rhesymau:  
Cydymffurfio â chanllawiau Llywodraeth Cymru ar lunio asesiadau poblogaeth a'r canllawiau 
mwy diweddar ar lunio'r adroddiad ynghylch sefydlogrwydd y farchnad. 
 
Angen i’r Cabinet wneud penderfyniad:                  OES – 17 Hydref, 2022 
Angen i'r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad: OES – 9 Tachwedd, 2022 
 
YR AELOD CABINET SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:-             
Y Cynghorydd Jane Tremlett (Deiliad y Portffolio Iechyd a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol) 

Y CABINET
17 HYDREF 2022

Tudalen 165

Eitem Rhif  9



 

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth: 

Cymunedau 

Enw Pennaeth y 
Gwasanaeth: 

Chris Harrison  

Awdur yr Adroddiad:  
Kelvin Barlow  

Swydd: 

 
 
 
Pennaeth Comisiynu 
Strategol ar y Cyd  
 
Rheolwr Rhaglen y 
Bartneriaeth 
Ranbarthol  

Cyfeiriad e-bost: 
 
 
 
 
chris.harrison@pembrokeshire.gov.uk 
 
kelvinbarlow@sirgar.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 166

mailto:chris.harrison@pembrokeshire.gov.uk
mailto:kelvinbarlow@carmarthenshire.gov.uk


 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
CABINET  

17TH OCTOBER, 2022 
 

WEST WALES CARE PARTNERSHIP POPULATION ASSESSMENT 
AND MARKET STABILITY REPORT 

Main Issues  
 
Under Part 2 of the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014, the Health Board and Local 
Authorities are required to produce a Population Assessment. This work is undertaken through 
the Regional Partnership Board (RPB) and is co-ordinated by the West Wales Care Partnership 
Team. This work has been overseen by the Regional Commissioning Programme Group with 
oversight and scrutiny from all partners. Regular updates have been provided to the Regional 
Partnership Board. 
 
Population Assessments must be published once within each local government electoral cycle. 
The first Population Assessment (PA) was produced in March 2017, the detail of which is being 
refreshed during 2022.  
 
Welsh Government issued supplementary advice for Regional Partnership Boards regarding the 
production of the 2022 PA. This included the need to also produce a separate Market Stability 
Report (MSR).  The MSR will provide:  
 

• An assessment of the sufficiency of care and support in meeting the needs and demand 
for care and support  

• An assessment of the stability of the market for regulated services providing care and 
support  

 
The West Wales Care Partnership will publish the PA and MSR on online data portal for the 
region: Home - West Wales Care Partnership (wwcpdata.org.uk). This contains summary 
information from the existing PA and Area Plan, alongside core data sets included within the 
Population Assessment. These are updated on a regular basis. 
 
These reports will inform the West Wales Area Plan and in turn inform regional and local, 
commissioning intentions.  

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? YES  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 167



 

IMPLICATIONS 

 
2. Legal   
Under Part 2 of the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014, the Health Board and 
Local Authorities are required to produce a Population Assessment.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this 
report: 
Signed: Chris Harrison                           Head of Strategic Joint Commissioning                  

 

Policy, Crime & 
Disorder and 
Equalities 

Legal 
 

Finance 
 

ICT 
 

Risk 
Management 
Issues 

Staffing 
Implications 

 

Physical 
Assets  

 
YES  YES NONE  NONE NONE NONE NONE 

1. Policy, Crime & Disorder and Equalities 
West Wales Population Assessment has been produced in conjunction with the 
Carmarthenshire PSB Wellbeing Assessments to ensure alignment. 

Tudalen 168



 

CONSULTATIONS 
 

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed 
below 
 Signed: Chris Harrison                           Head of Strategic Joint Commissioning    
 

1. Scrutiny Committee request for pre-determination  YES/NO/N/A – Delete as 
appropriate 

If yes include the following information: - 
Scrutiny Committee   
Date the report was considered:-  
Scrutiny Committee Outcome/Recommendations:- 

2.Local Member(s)  - N/A 
3.Community / Town Council – N/A 
4.Relevant Partners   
On the 7th December 2021 an Extraordinary meeting of the Regional Partnership Board, in 
a workshop format, shared the initial findings of the PA and the approach taken with 
members and the approach was endorsed. 
5.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations  - N/A 
CABINET MEMBER  PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER(S) AWARE/CONSULTED  
YES 

Include any observations here 
 
Cllr. Tremlett is fully aware of the content of 
the report. 
 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 
 
THERE ARE NONE 
 

 
 

Tudalen 169



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



1 
 

WEST WALES POPULATION 
ASSESSMENT OVERVIEW 
 

 
February 2022 

West Wales Population Assessment 2022 

 

Summary of report and key issues 
 

1. The West Wales Care Partnership (WWCP) brings together partners from local 

government, the NHS, third and independent sectors with users and carers with the 

aim of transforming care and support services in the region. 

2. The West Wales region covers the area of Hywel Dda University Health Board 

(HDdUHB) and includes the council areas of Carmarthenshire, Ceredigion and 

Pembrokeshire 

3. In March 2017 West Wales Care Partnership published the first Population 

Assessment (PA) for West Wales. 

4. Required under Section 14 of the Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act, this 

assessment was carried out jointly by the three local authorities and Hywel Dda 

University Health Board with input from users, carers and colleagues in the third and 

independent sectors. It provides a detailed analysis of care and support needs, and 

support needs of carers in the region, the range and level of services required and 

the extent to which those needs are currently being met 

5. The PA is required by Welsh Government to look at the specific needs of the following 

population groups: 

• Carers 
• Children and Young People 
• People with Physical Disabilities 
• People with a Learning Disability and people with Autism 

• People with a Mental Health condition 
• Older people 
• People with a sensory impairment 
• People involved in Substance Misuse 
• People experiencing Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual 

Violence 

6. PAs must be published once within each local government electoral cycle, so must 

now be reviewed and published in April 2022. 

 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 171

http://www.wwcp.org.uk/featured-on-home-page/assessing-the-need-for-care-and-support-in-west-wales/
http://www.wwcp.org.uk/featured-on-home-page/assessing-the-need-for-care-and-support-in-west-wales/


2 
 

 

7. The 2022 PA must take into account the impact of COVID 19. Also, as well as the 

above population groups the PA must give attention to  

 

• Autism  

• Dementia  

 
As specific population groups  
 

8. Welsh Government issued supplementary advice for Regional Partnership Boards 
regarding the production of the 2022 assessment. This included the need to also 
produce a separate Market Stability Report (MSR). 
 

9. The MSR will provide: 

 

• An assessment of the sufficiency of care and support in meeting the needs and 

demand for care and support 

• An assessment of the stability of the market for regulated services providing care 

and support  

10. The MSR is subject of a separate report which will detail the findings for 

consideration and endorsement prior to publication   

 

11. We are then required to produce an Area Plan setting out how we will work together 

to address the findings and recommendations of our PA and MSR.  

 

12. The West Wales RPB will publish the PA and MSR on online data portal for the region 

This contains summary information from the existing PA and Area Plan, alongside 

core data sets included within the Population Assessment. These are updated on a 

regular basis.  

 

13. This report provides an executive summary of the finding of the 2022 PA. The report 

sets out the approach taken and summarises the key findings for each population 

group.  

 
Recommendations 
 

1. The key findings of West Wales Population Assessment are endorsed  

2. The approach to publication is agreed  

 
 

 

 

 

Tudalen 172

http://www.wwcp-data.org.uk/


3 
 

Approach 

 

1. To complete the 2022 PA, we have built upon the learning from the creation of the 2017 
PA and the existing structures and planning activities of the Regional Partnership Board.  
 
This includes utilising:  
 

• Well-established relationships with the three Public Services Boards (PSBs) and a 
shared commitment to align the development of the Population Assessments and 
Wellbeing Assessments  

• The evidence base of population and service data, held on the online data portal, 
which reduced the need for extensive additional data collection 

• Existing population based planning groups to facilitate engagement and consultation 
events. 

• The results from the Population Assessment survey. 
• The available evidence in relation to the impact of Covid-19, including the initial 

analysis approved by the RPB in October 2019. 
 

2. We commissioned the Tritech Institute Home Page - TriTech Institute (nhs.wales) to 
undertake the production of the PA.   

3. This work has been overseen by the Regional Commissioning Programme Group with 
oversight and scrutiny from all partners. Regular updates have been provided to the 
Regional Partnership Board   

4. On the 7th December 2022 an Extraordinary meeting of the Regional Partnership Board, 
in a workshop format shared the initial findings of the PA and the approach taken with 
members and the approach endorsed.  

5. The PA will be a public document, published on the West Wales Care Partnership website 
on behalf of Regional Partners.    

6. The PA will be bi-lingual, providing a full report, including all data, analysis and 
appendices. The PA will also provide a summary & easy read version to ensure it is 
accessible.    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 173

http://www.wwcp-data.org.uk/
https://tritech.nhs.wales/


4 
 

 

Summary of findings 
 

1. Population overview 

 

According to the Office for National Statistics (ONS) by 2025, the population of the West 

Wales region is estimated at 389,719, an increase of 1.34% since the 2017 population 

assessment was undertaken.  

 

• 48.8% of the population in the region live in Carmarthenshire, 18.7% in Ceredigion 

and 32.5% live in Pembrokeshire.  

• 40% of adults in Carmarthenshire; 49% of adults in Ceredigion and 22% of adults 

in Pembrokeshire speak Welsh. 

• 2021 estimates from ONS indicate that people over 65 make up 24.1% of the 

population in Carmarthenshire, 26.2% in Ceredigion and 26.7% in Pembrokeshire 

and as large parts of West Wales are both rural and coastal, the area attracts high 

levels of inward migration of people over 65. 

 

By 2043, current Welsh Government population projections predict an increase in the 

total population of West Wales to 396,000, with a predicted rise in those aged over 65 to 

124,587 or 31.5% of the total population. 
 

2. OLDER PEOPLE 

 

Overview and key messages 

 

West Wales has a higher proportion of older people than average across Wales, with inward 
migration a major accelerating factor for the growth of the older population. Pembrokeshire 
has an older population than Carmarthenshire and Ceredigion, with a projected regional 
increase in those 85 and over of 28% by 2030, with variation as follows: 
Carmarthenshire=25%; Ceredigion=26% and Pembrokeshire=33%. 
 
People are living longer with increasingly complex issues, whilst wanting to remain in their 
own homes as independently as possible for as long as possible. COVID-19 has had a 
significant impact on the physical and mental wellbeing of older people. This is as a result of 
long periods of social isolation, lack of access to health and care services as well as the direct 
impact of contracting COVID-19.   

Care and support arrangements should be designed with older people, should be flexible and 
include a range of community, digital and technology-based solutions. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 174



5 
 

Gaps and areas for improvement  

 

Include: 

 

• Involving older people and their carers in assessment and care planning, including 

discharge planning 

• Helping people to remain independent in their homes for longer through continuing 

development of digital and telehealth support particularly for those in very rural 

areas and where transport is an issue 

• Providing additional support for carers managing multiple and complex conditions 

• Continuing development of community connectivity, well-being and resilience 

services that address a range of needs including loneliness and isolation 

• Increasing supply of alternative accommodation options such as extra-care schemes. 

• Ensuring older people and their families can access services through their language 

of choice and the active offer through the medium of Welsh is available. 

The impact of COVID -19: 
 
The COVID-19 has led to widespread social isolation, with lasting implications on mental 
health of older people. People have delayed seeking help during the pandemic and now 
are presenting with much more complex health issues. 
 
Due to the reported mortality rates in residential care older people are now far more 
reluctant to go into residential care creating a greater demand for alternative 
accommodation. 
 
 

3. DEMENTIA 

 

Overview and key messages 

 

As life expectancy and inward migration of older people impacts on the percentage of 

older people in the region, the number of People Living with Dementia (PLwD) in West 

Wales is expected to increase in the coming decades.  

 

The Dementia Action Plan for Wales (DAP) 2018 – 2022 sets out a clear vision for “Wales 

to be a dementia friendly nation that recognises the rights of people with dementia to 

feel valued and to live as independently as possible in their communities.” 

 

Our West Wales Regional dementia strategy is being produced and will inform the 

development of person-centred dementia pathways, co-produced with users and carers.  

(a link to which will be included once is has been approved).  

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 175



6 
 

Key messages are as follows: 

 

• The incidence of dementia on the Quality Assurance and Improvement Framework 

(QAIF) disease register in Hywel Dda in 2019-20 was 0.7%, in line with the Welsh 

national average of 0.7% 

• In 2016-17 dementia diagnosis rates were one of the lowest in Wales at 45.6% 

indicating that prevalence rates are likely to be closer to 1.4% although, the 

number of those diagnosed has increased an average of 3% per annum to 2947 

in 2020. 

• Over thirty genetic, medical, lifestyle, cultural and societal factors have been 

identified, which impact the risk of cognitive decline differently depending on 

gender. Some of these factors increase risk more dramatically in women than in 

men.  

 

Gaps and areas for improvement 

 

Include: 

 

• Continuing to improve awareness, identification, and diagnosis of dementia, 

including onset of dementia in younger people  

• to ensure timely diagnosis and access to appropriate care and support 

• Improving co-production of services by including PLwD  

• Increasing diagnosis rates in non-specialist community settings by: 

 

o Improving training and awareness of new evidence-based best practice 

dementia models within primary care, based on the Good Work Framework 

o Supporting GPs, allied health professionals (AHPs) and nurses to make 

assessments 

o Improving quality of referrals into specialist care for those requiring it 

 

• Developing more consistent rights-based person-centred care and support 

• Continuing improvements in community support, training and help for PLwD to 

discuss their diagnosis, navigate/co-ordinate services, to build resilience and 

maintain balance across all aspects of their life 

• Ensuring equal access to physical health services and treatment for PLwD 

• Ensuring advance care planning and end of life care is fully embedded in wider 

inclusive, person-centred care and wellbeing planning 

• Improving research into dementia by involving care homes in the region in current 

research opportunities 

• Continuing the development of a “hub” or single point of contact approach for 

PLwD to access information and support.  
 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 176



7 
 

The impact of COVID -19: 

 

COVID-19 has had a disproportionately negative impact on PLwD, with dementia being 

shown as an age-independent risk factor for severity and death in COVID-19 patients. 

 

Although the exact impact on the diagnosis and incidence rate of dementia is unclear, 

stakeholders have identified that COVID-19 has impacted timely diagnosis due to late 

presentations. 

 

Full information on the impact of COVID-19 upon those with dementia and their carers is 

not yet available. However, there is some concern that it may cause damage to the brain 

in the longer term.   
 

4. UNPAID CARERS 

 

Overview and key messages 

 

2011 ONS Census data indicates there are more than 47,000 known unpaid carers across 

West Wales, of which, 3,436 were Young Carers (defined as 5-17 years old), representing 

12.5% of residents. It is recognised also that there is a considerable number of ‘hidden’ 

carers who do not define themselves as such. 

 

Early identification and self-identification of unpaid carers is vital to ensure they access 

the right help and support at the right time, as well as maintain their own health, well-

being and independence. 

 

Support for unpaid carers in West Wales is driven through the West Wales Carers 

Development Group (WWCDG), a formal sub-group of the West Wales Regional 

Partnership Board (RPB) and a partnership between Hywel Dda University Health Board, 

the three Local Authorities of Carmarthenshire, Ceredigion and Pembrokeshire, Third and 

Voluntary sector organisations and representatives of service users and Carers in West 

Wales. 

 

The Regional Partnership Board published their Carers Strategy in November 2020. 

WWCDG West Wales Carers Strategy 2020-2025 The West Wales Carers Development 

Group (WWCDG) are responsible for ensuring that an annual action plan is in place to 

respond to the key priority areas.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 177

https://www.wwcp.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/11/Carers-Strategy-Final-20.10.20-Eng.pdf


8 
 

Gaps and areas for improvement  

 

Highlighted during the engagement session include: 

 

• Continuing improvements in the consistency of approach, information, advice and 

assistance provided across the region, within a more integrated system  

• Reviewing information provided to carers to ensure it is current, relevant, more 

accessible and easier to find  

• Extending use of social media and technology to identify and provide information to 

carers and maintain regular contact, particularly for young carers  

• Developing a single point of contact to help people navigate the system 

• Ensuring respite care fits the needs of both the carer and the cared for 

• Addressing the challenges of accessing support in rural areas 

• Improving the statutory carers assessment process, which can be challenging, often 

takes too long and may not always consider carers needs appropriately  

• Improving delivery of the “active offer” through the medium of Welsh. Carers want to 

feel comfortable using their preferred language of choice, including languages other 

than English and Welsh 

Young carers report: 

• They struggle to have a break, are not seeing their friends and don’t have their own 

space.  

• They find it difficult to balance schoolwork, homework and their caring role and can 

feel stressed, worried and anxious at school, as they are away from the person that 

relies on them for care  

• They may require extra support for their mental health and wellbeing. 

 

The impact of COVID -19: 

 

Caring is such an important part of life and the role of unpaid Carers has become 

increasingly prominent. A significant number of unpaid carers have sought support with 

their caring role and in an on-line survey circulated as part of the process to develop the 

PA, many carers reported: 

 

• Feeling isolated during the pandemic 

• Being cautious of people coming into their homes due to the risk in virus 

transmission, with many choosing to suspend domiciliary care, putting further strain 

on their wellbeing and mental health 

• Experiencing financial pressure, as they have had to take more time off work to 

support the person they care for 

• Concern over the adverse effect of limited social contact on the well-being of loved 

ones in hospitals and care homes, due to strict visiting restrictions  

• Young carers missed the break from caring and social interaction with peers that 

schooling (suspended during lockdown) usually provides 

Tudalen 178



9 
 

• Improved access to support due to the increased availability of on-line services in 

response to the pandemic. 
 

5. LEARNING DISABILITY 

 

Overview and key messages 

 

The population of People with a Learning Disability (PwLD) in West Wales is projected to 

remain relatively stable. However, projections suggest the number of people diagnosed 

with severe or profound and multiple learning disabilities (PMLD) is expected to grow by 

1.8% each year.  The number of older people with a learning disability is set to increase.  

 

PwLD often have additional diagnoses and/or co-existing conditions such as: autism; 

physical disabilities; sensory and communication impairment. They are more likely to 

experience poorer physical and mental health and multiple morbidities, often linked to 

poor diet, low levels of physical activity, smoking, alcohol use and difficulties in accessing 

preventative health services. 

 

Through the Regional Improving Lives Partnership, PwLD have worked together with 

partners to develop the West Wales Charter – a simple list of things they expect, and 

need, to live fulfilling lives, which is supported by the Welsh Government; County Councils 

of Carmarthenshire, Ceredigion and Pembrokeshire, Hywel Dda University Health Board 

and a range of community and 3rd sector organisations. 

 
Gaps and areas for improvement  
 
Include: 
 
• Improving awareness of the needs of PwLD and through training and education of 

service providers, healthcare workers, families and carers 

• Improving the quality of communication with and information for PwLD (easy read) 

• Widening access to supported accommodation in a location of choice 

• Strengthening access to education, volunteering and paid work opportunities in local 

communities 

• Improving processes for managing transition between children’s and adult services 

and specialist health services 

• Supporting self-advocacy for PwLD  

• Increasing planning and resources for PMLD and their carers. 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 179

https://www.ldcharter.com/


10 
 

The impact of COVID -19: 
 
COVID-19 has had a particular effect on mental health, well-being, health and feeling of 
isolation for PwLD and their care and support network. There has been a significant 
impact upon services and care available, such as day opportunities and short breaks which 
has significantly impacted their health and wellbeing.  
 
Many PwLD have been required to shield during the pandemic, limiting their opportunities 
to contribute to many of the consultations and planning events around services in LD, 
including the development of the PA.  
 

6. AUTISM  

 

Overview and key messages 

 

Autism is a term used to describe people with a group of complex neuro developmental 

symptoms, of variable severity which affects how people communicate and interact with the 

world. Autism is generally described as a spectrum and can cover a wide range of behaviours 

and needs. Autism was covered under the Learning Disability chapter in the 2017 PA 

however, in response to the introduction of the Autism Code of Practice in 2021, a separate 

Autism chapter is being developed. 

 

The term ‘autistic people’ rather than ‘people with autism’, reflects the language preferences 

expressed by autistic people. The term ‘people’ refers to children, young people and adults. 

Estimates of the prevalence of autism spectrum disorders suggest rates of around 1% in the 
general population. This would suggest there are about 4000 autistic people living in West 
Wales. However, there is much debate and the suggestion that not all individuals are 
identified1  

New services for adult diagnosis have been set up across Wales at a time of rising awareness 
of the spectrum of autism experiences; however, until recently no studies have examined 
adult autism prevalence in Wales 

Increased rates of diagnosis and more prevalence of autism will require more specialist 
support in the community. 

Feedback from engagement meetings across the region identified the following: 

 Gaps and areas for improvement: 

 

• Improve waiting times for diagnosis and diagnosis rates for both children and adults 

• Improve access to information and advice for Autistic people and their families, 

including the autism strategy and the associated support services available in West 

Wales.  

 
1 (Brugha et al., 2011, 2016; Chiarotti & Venerosi, 2020; Fombonne et al., 2021; Lyall et al., 2017). 

Tudalen 180

https://gov.wales/new-code-practice-delivery-autism-services-published


11 
 

• Improve awareness of Autism and the Autistic Spectrum Conditions across health, 

social care services, education and all public services.   

• Greater emphasis on user engagement and coproduction in service development 

• Improving the transition for Autistic Young people when they leave school  

• Increasing opportunities for volunteering, work experience, employment opportunities 

and networking for autistic people.  
 

The impact of COVID -19: 

 

The pandemic has impacted on the care and support available for autistic people as many 

support services were paused. In addition, the uncertainty and frequent changes to 

routines and rules will, in some cases have had a significant impact upon people’s mental-

health and wellbeing. This has placed increased pressure on family members and carers.  

 

For Autistic People the resumption of and reintegration to activities such as education 

following prolonged periods of lock down has also presented significant challenges.  

 
  

7. CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE 

 

Overview and key messages 

 

There are over 82,000 children and young people in the region, approximately 22% of 

the total population. Although the population of children and young people up to the 

age of 25 will remain relatively stable, the number of children aged 10-15 in the region 

is expected to decline by 8% by 2031. It is estimated that 6,105 children and young 

people live with a long-term condition or disability.  

 

31% of Children in Wales a living in poverty, where families are unable to buy food, 

clothing and provide a safe place to live. West Wales has seen a dramatic rise in child 

poverty during the last five years as result of stagnating family incomes, increase of rent 

and the COVID-19 pandemic. The rate of children living in poverty across the region are: 

 

Area Rate 2019/20 % Point change since 2014/15 

Carmarthenshire 31.3% 2.4% 

Pembrokeshire 32.4% 2.1% 

Ceredigion 31.8% 2.7% 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 181



12 
 

The region has a lower number of looked After Children (LAC) than the national average. 

The Capped 9-point score (Year 11 pupils’ best 9 results from qualifications available in 

Wales) is 361.7, above the Wales average of 353.8. 

 

At 14%, the number of young people not in education, employment or training in West 

Wales is marginally lower than the Welsh average. 

 

Gaps and areas for improvement: 

 

 

Include: 

 

• Further integration with early years services 

• Involvement of children and young people, including care experienced young 

people and those with complex needs such as disability in the planning of services.    

• Further development of preventative and early intervention services, building on 

established programmes such as Family Information Services, Families First and 

Team Around the Family and trauma informed models of support 

• Considering the importance of physical, mental and emotional wellbeing of children 

and the key role of community services play in achieving this 

• Enhancing partnership working to deliver a ‘No Wrong Door’ approach to services 

so that children and young people receive the support they need regardless of 

where they enter the system.  

• Developing resilience and wellbeing in families to enable children and young people 

to remain within their families and/ or communities so long as it is safe for them 

to do so 

• Continuing development of multi-agency and individualised approach to supporting 

children with complex needs 

• Developing a regional transition process for children and young people into adult 

services where appropriate. 
 

The impact of COVID -19: 

 

Children and Young People’s Mental Health and Wellbeing has been significantly affected 
during the pandemic. School closures, quarantine periods, fear of becoming unwell and 
impact upon older relatives are factors that have contributed to a decline in their Mental 
Health and Wellbeing. 
 
In addition, Children and Young People from areas of poverty were subject to increased 
risk of poor Mental Health and Wellbeing. Contributing factors included the increased 
worry of parent financial insecurity, lack of social support, housing quality and poor 
nutrition. 
 

Tudalen 182



13 
 

Children’s Social Services have maintained face-to-face contact for children identified as 

at risk throughout the pandemic. However, enforced absences form school and time at 

home has presented significant challenges in identifying and responding to risk.    

 

The region has experienced a rise Children and Young People seeking support with 

complex emotional and mental health difficulties, including behaviours that challenge. 

 

 

8. MENTAL HEALTH 

 

Overview and key messages 

 

Our mental health affects how we think, feel and act. A healthy outlook can reduce both 

the intensity and duration of illnesses, whereas poor mental health can have the opposite 

effect. It has been shown that depression and its symptoms are major risk factors in the 

development of coronary heart disease and death after myocardial infarction. Stigma 

surrounding mental illness is common and can play a role in people potentially hiding 

issues surrounding their mental health rather than seeking help, which can be mitigated 

through increasing the information, education and public awareness. 

 

 

According to the Welsh Government’s Together for Mental Health Strategy:  

• 1 in 4 adults experience mental health problems or illness at some point in their 
lifetime. 

• 1 in 6 adults are experiencing symptoms at any one time. 

• 1 in 10 children between the ages of 5 and 16 has a mental health problem, and 
many more have behavioural issues. 

• Approximately 50% of people who go on to have serious mental health problems 
will have symptoms by the time they are 14 and many at a much younger age. 
 

The Hywel Dda Mental Health Quality and Outcomes Framework (QOF) register records 

approximately 4,100 patients in 2019. 

 

Through a range of facilitated engagement sessions we were able to identify:  

 

 

Gaps and areas for improvement 

 

• Improving integration and communication between services, so that patients with 

multiple issues have access to the range of support and care needed 

• Improving processes for those experiencing crisis, to reduce instances where patients 

in crisis have difficulty accessing services 

• Promoting and supporting self-management by educating people on how to manage 

their conditions, live more independently and make their own choices.  

Tudalen 183



14 
 

• Shifting the emphasis to community-based services  

• Recognising the effect of COVID-19 and the resulting increased demand for mental 

health services. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The impact of COVID -19:   

 

COVID-19 has led to increased isolation and a disruption of normal life, which could have 

short term effects on mental health. It is not clear what the long-term effects of COVID 

on mental health and wellbeing might be however, in the period immediately before the 

pandemic, it was reported that 11.7% of Welsh people suffered from severe mental health 

issues, which reportedly climbed to 28.1% in April 2020.  
 

COVID-19 has also had a worse effect on particular on those groups who already 

experience poor mental health outcomes, including  those from black and minority ethnic 

backgrounds, those with existing physical or learning disabilities and those in areas of 

high poverty.   

 
 

9. HEALTH AND PHYSICAL DISABILITIES 

 

Overview and key messages 

 

Most people in the West Wales region between the age 18 to 64 will not access care and 

support for a specific need or protected characteristic. Instead, they are served by public 

health information and national and local programmes designed to encourage healthy 

lifestyles and practices. These programmes are aimed at reducing specific health risk 

factors such as cardiovascular disease, often achieved by strategies to reduce obesity and 

smoking and improve diets. 

 

There are a proportion of people who have a range of specific needs because of physical 

disability or chronic health conditions that may require extra support to enable them to 

live as independently as possible. 

 
 

Gaps and areas for improvement  

 

identified through engagement include: 

 

• Involving people with a range of disabilities at the planning and design phase of new 

developments and accommodation, to ensure they are easy to use and accessible. 

Tudalen 184



15 
 

• Improving early identification, treatment and management of preventable and 

chronic conditions including diabetes, heart disease and respiratory illness, to 

improve long term well-being and reduce complications. 

• Improving appropriate access to a range of information, advice and assistance. 

• Increasing use of assistive technology, such as telecare to transform domiciliary care 

and supported living services 

• Improving access support for assisted living. Many of the current rules and 

regulations about supporting and helping people with disabilities are too rigid. 

• Improving access to and communication of financial support such as personal 

independence payments, disabled facilities grant, direct payments  

• Improving the process for home improvements and modifications. 

• Increasing the flexibility of step up and down provision to respond to changing 

needs 

• Improving access to transport. 
 

 

The impact of COVID -19:   

 

COVID-19 has led to widespread social isolation, with lasting impact on physical and 

mental health for those people having to shield during the pandemic.  

 

People will struggled to access or delay seeking help during and are now presenting later, 

with much more complex health issues often resulting in worsening comorbidities and 

prolonged illness. 

 

10. SENSORY IMPAIRMENT 

 

Overview and key messages 

 

Sensory impairment is inevitable with ageing. As sensory impairment can be a significant 

life-limiting condition, the challenges associated with the condition are likely to grow over 

the coming decades.  

 

People with sensory impairment are more likely to feel lonely and isolated. Research by 

RNID in 2000 found that 66% of deaf and hard of hearing people feel isolated due to 

their condition excluding them from everyday activities. 

 

Sensory impairment is something that cuts across system wide services; it is important 

that sensory impairment awareness and services are embedded in the whole system of 

provision. 

 

The combination of two sensory impairments can mean that a deafblind person will have 

difficulty, or find it impossible, to utilise and benefit fully from services for deaf people or 

services for blind people. Meeting the needs of deafblind people therefore needs a 

different approach. 

Tudalen 185



16 
 

 

Apart from the day-to-day difficulties, people with sensory impairment also have poorer 

health outcomes, higher rates of poverty and lower educational achievements than people 

free from disability. 

 

• Both visual and hearing impairment are projected to increase in West Wales over the 

coming years 

• Accelerating factors for sight loss include diabetes and obesity 

• Sensory impairment is associated with increased risk of falls and fear of falling has a 

major impact on people’s ability to remain independent. 

 

 

Gaps and areas for improvement 

 

• Improving awareness and understanding of sensory impairment 

• Improving the accessible implementation standard and developing a process to audit 

implementation  

• Improving provision of accessible information e.g., braille letters  

• Extending provision of the interpretation service outside 9-5 and increasing 

availability of interpreters 

• Enhancing record systems such as Welsh Patient Administration System (WPAS) to 

be able to record more than one impairment 
 

The impact of COVID -19:   

 

The COVID pandemic has contributed to communication difficulties for both hearing and 

visually impaired people. Access to information has been more difficult to obtain for the 

visually impaired e.g., reduced access to braille in surgeries. Where services have shifted 

from face to face to video consultations, they don’t work for sight impaired people, who 

prefer phone conversations. 

 

The pandemic has also led to challenges for hearing impaired people around 

communication e.g., face masks make lip reading impossible. People with sensory 

impairment are more likely to suffer from isolation and loneliness, which has been 

exacerbated by the COVID pandemic. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 186



17 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

11. SUBSTANCE MISUSE 

 

Overview and key messages 

 

Welsh Government has recently launched its new Substance Misuse (drug and alcohol) 

Delivery Plan for 2019 - 2022. The new plan builds on the progress made during the 

lifetime of the 2008-2018 strategy and is a key reference for the PA.  

 

Gaps and areas for improvement 

 

• Improving prevention and harm reduction 

• Reducing smoking prevalence levels 

• Supporting individuals to improve health and aid maintain recovery 

• Supporting and protecting families 

• Tackling availability of substances and protecting individuals and communities 

• Developing stronger partnerships, workforce development and service user 

involvement. 

• Developing accommodation provision in response to care and support needs 

 

The impact of COVID -19:   

 

The effect of COVID-19 pandemic may have had a significant impact on substance misuse 

however, at present data is not available. 

 
 

12. VAWDASV 

 

Overview and key messages 

 

Violence against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (VAWDASV) is a major 

public health problem, a criminal justice issue, and a violation of human rights. It causes 

harm to individuals and families, and its impact can be felt across whole communities, 

societies, and economies and can impact on victims in many ways. For example, sexual 

violence can lead to a multitude of health consequences including physical, reproductive, 

and psychological harm. 

Tudalen 187

https://gov.wales/substance-misuse-delivery-plan-2019-2022-0
https://gov.wales/substance-misuse-delivery-plan-2019-2022-0


18 
 

 

The Violence against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (Wales) Act 2015, 

together with the statutory guidance on commissioning sets the conditions and 

expectations for service developments in Wales, with progress reported annually.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Gaps and areas for improvement 

 

• Increasing awareness of violence against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence 

• Enhancing education about healthy relationships and gender equality 

• Ensuring professionals are trained to provide effective, timely and appropriate 

responses to victims and survivors 

• Providing equal access to appropriately resourced high quality, needs led, strength 

based, gender responsive services 

• Improving prevention focussed initiatives e.g. IRIS/Ask Me. 
 

The impact of COVID -19:   

 

Emerging literature suggests that levels of VAWDASV have been impacted by the COVID-

19 public health restrictions, including lockdown, shielding and social distancing 

regulations (Snowdon et al., 2020). Whilst the full picture of how the pandemic has 

impacted on VAWDASV is still to fully emerge, it appears likely that both the scale and 

nature of VAWDASV may have worsened, with rising helpline contacts for all forms of 

VAWDASV and increased reports to emergency services for domestic abuse in some areas 

(Hohl and Johnson, 2020). Many prevention strategies and programmes have been put 

on hold or been forced to adapt during the pandemic because of restrictions on 

movement, face to face interactions and public events. Given the increasing number of 

reports of VAWDASV during the pandemic, it is more important than ever to promote 

prevention through the transformation of norms, attitudes and stereotypes that accept 

and normalise violence. 

 

Tudalen 188

https://gov.wales/violence-against-women-domestic-abuse-and-sexual-violence-progress-report-2019-2020-html


Page 1 of 11 
 

 

WEST WALES MARKET STABILITY 
REPORT 
 

 
February 2022 

West Wales Market Stability Report 2022: Executive Summary1 

Summary of report and key issues 
 

Welsh Government requires local authorities, acting together with health boards, to 
produce Market Stability Reports (MSRs) on a regional partnership board basis. Such 
reports must assess the sufficiency of care and support services.  In addition, the 
reports must also assess the stability of specified services regulated by Care 
Inspectorate Wales (CIW). The publication deadline is 30th June 2022. 
 
 

Recommendations 
 
Strategic Development and Operational Delivery Committee is asked to note the MSR, 
which has been produced on a regional basis to enhance understanding of the regional 
market for care and support, in line with legislative requirements. 

 
The West Wales Market Stability Report (MSR):  
Executive Summary 
 
This report is structured into the following sections: 
 

1. Context and legislative requirements 
2. Approach and method 
3. Findings and implications: 

• regulated services 
• population groups 

4. Recommendation 
 
1. Introduction: context and legislative requirements 
 
The Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act has been amended by Regulation to 
require local authorities to work together, and with health partners, through 
Regional Partnership Boards, to undertake a Market Stability Assessment (MSA) and 
to produce a regional Market Stability Report (MSR), which also reflects county 
circumstances. 
 

 
1 This executive summary draws on the commissioned work undertaken by the Institute of Public Care and was 
produced by Dr Kevin Pett of the WWCP. Use is also made of the Code of Practice and Statutory Guidance on 
the exercise of social services functions and partnership arrangements in relation to market stability reports.  
See: https://gov.wales/code-practice-and-guidance-under-social-services-and-well-being-wales-act-2014  
 

Tudalen 189

https://gov.wales/code-practice-and-guidance-under-social-services-and-well-being-wales-act-2014


Page 2 of 11 
 

Considered broadly, MSRs are concerned with the supply of care and support2 and, 
therefore, in principle, a response to the demand identified through Population 
Needs Assessments (PNAs).  Put another way, PNAs identify ‘what’, whereas MSRs 
inform the ‘how’ of care and support.  The Market Stability Report must be published 
by 30th June 2022. 
 
Though a single report, the regulations require MSRs to comprise two distinct 
assessments3: firstly, an assessment of the sufficiency of care and support services4; 
and secondly, a stability assessment for regulated services.  In practice, the second 
aspect applies as an additional element – but only in relation to regulated services. 
 
Market Stability Reports: two key elements 
 
Sufficiency assessment 
Considering first the sufficiency assessment, this must consider: 

• An overview of sufficiency against the previous Population Assessment 
(backward view) 

• The extent to which current levels of care and support services are meeting 
existing demand (current state) 

• Issues likely to affect sufficiency over the coming five years (future) 
 
Relevant issues will include: 

• Changing patterns of demand 
• Expectations of users 
• Trends, challenges, risks and opportunities 

 
Welsh Government intend that the sufficiency assessment addresses the needs 
applying to the defined Population Groups within PNAs5 and suggest the sufficiency 
assessment is cross referenced accordingly6.   
 
Stability assessment 
Secondly, a stability assessment must be undertaken as an additional requirement – 
but only for ‘regulated services’7.  The stability assessment must assess, for 
regulated services8, the following five aspects: 

• Sufficiency (see relevant paragraphs above) 
• Quality: inspections, contract monitoring, etc 

 
2 All population groups (support services only for carers). 
3 In undertaking MSRs, local authorities must pay ‘due regard’ to a range of duties (e.g., equality duty) and 
conventions (e.g., UN convention on the rights of the child) – see code of practice (page 16). 
4 ‘Care and support’ is broadly conceived, to include preventative services, but excluding that provided 
informally or by family.  Wellbeing services, including those offered by GP clusters, should not be overlooked. 
5LD, sensory impairment, older people, unpaid carers, disability, mental health, dementia, children and young 
people, autism, VAWDASV 
6 The code of practice suggests that the MSR process can be used to meet duties under part 6 of the Act in 
relation to the sufficiency of accommodation for Looked After Children. 
7 Care homes, secure accommodation (children), residential family centre, adoption service, fostering, adult 
placement, advocacy, domiciliary support service. 
8 In addition, the Welsh language dimension of these five aspects must be considered, alongside the impact of 
non-regulated services on regulated services (and vice versa). 

Tudalen 190



Page 3 of 11 
 

• Trends (current and developing): user expectations, TEC, demography, etc 
• Challenges (current and developing): transparency and mitigation 
• Impacts of commissioning and resourcing decisions: funding, fee levels; 

regional and county approaches; pooled funding 
 
The above paragraphs describe the main elements needed for undertaking the 
‘sufficiency’ and ‘stability’ exercises.  The code of practice outlines that the MSR 
‘should’, or in some cases ‘must’ cover a number of other aspects9. 
 
The relationship between the MSR and other relevant strategic documents is 
expressed in the diagram overleaf: 
 

 
 
2. Approach and method 
 
Following decision at the Integrated Executive Group (IEG)10, The Institute of Public 
Care (IPC) was appointed to undertake the assessment of market stability on behalf 
of the West Wales Care Partnership (WWCP)11.  This work culminated in the MSR 

 
9 See the code of practice from page 27. Examples of additional duties include assessing the contribution of 
social value and the impact of Direct Payments on regulated services. 
10 It was agreed to extend the existing contract in place with IPC for the delivery of an MSR for older adult care 
homes. 
11 WWCP is the Regional Partnership Board for West Wales. 

Tudalen 191



Page 4 of 11 
 

that accompanies this paper.  The MSR has been shaped by five main sources of 
evidence: 
 

• Analysis of data, both from published sources and bespoke data collections 
from the three counties and Hywel Dda Health Board. 

• Review of key policy documents, strategies, and plans. 
• Surveys of providers (administered bilingually online). 
• Interviews and focus groups with commissioners and providers. 

• Intelligence from the engagement programmes that informed the PNA and 
well-being assessments - including engagement with citizens, individuals with 
care and support needs and their carers. 

 
Together these provide a strong evidence base. Working with the teams responsible 
for the PNA and Well-being Assessments has helped to maximise synergies and 
avoid duplication. 
 
3. Findings and implications 
 
In January 2021 the Welsh Government (WG) published a White Paper setting out 
an ambition to rebalance care and support. ‘Rebalancing’ includes an explicit 
commitment to a mixed economy of provision ‘so that there is neither an over 
reliance on the private sector (including the voluntary and charity sector), nor a 
monopoly in the other direction’.  The findings from the MSR support active pursuit 
of this policy direction. 
 
In general, the MSR confirms that the ongoing pandemic has exposed some of the 
frailties of an already fragile health and care system.  In combination with sustained 
public sector austerity, the pandemic is compounding pressures on the whole 
system.  Market uncertainty is inhibiting private investment and increasing levels of 
complexity are not being matched by corresponding workforce capacity, placing 
further pressure upon market stability. 
 

It is unrealistic for this report to encapsulate the detailed findings of the MSR in its 
entirety.  This section therefore draws out only key points. 

 
Sufficiency: population groups12 
 

Implications County variations 
(where relevant) 

Children  

The number of children 0-15 is expected to decline 8% 
over the next decade (to 2031).  There are therefore 
likely to be sufficient universal services, however, 
demand for specialist support and services such as 
CAMHs and residential care which are already hard to 
source locally may increase.  User voice, co-

There is a decline in all 
counties, with variation 
as follows: 
Carmarthenshire=6% 
Ceredigion=11% 
Pembrokeshire=10% 

 
12 For further detail, please refer to the draft PNA. 

Tudalen 192



Page 5 of 11 
 

production, and integration, including more seamless 
transitions to adult services, remain key areas for 
development. 

Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse and 
Sexual Violence (VAWDASV) 

 

Incidents of violence against women have increased 
during the pandemic whilst victims may have found it 
harder to access services. The complex funding 
arrangements are a significant risk to ensuring 
sufficiency of support.  There is a growing issue of 
supporting older victims of domestic abuse. 

-2994 incidents were 
reported across the 
region in 2018: 
Carmarthenshire=1215 
Ceredigion=1062 
Pembrokeshire=717 

Unpaid carers  

The amount of care and support given by unpaid 
carers is projected to increase significantly over the 
next 10 years as the population grows older. Key 
issues for the region include improving digital 
inclusivity of unpaid carers and access to all-age 
unpaid carer support services and support, especially 
within rural communities. Young carers need more 
mental health and emotional support and services. The 
pandemic has had a significant negative impact upon 
young carers in terms of increased isolation and 
mental health / emotion stress. 

-The number of requests 
for support in the region 
has increased by 2073 in 
2020-21: 
Carmarthenshire=6,071 
(was 4,613) 
Ceredigion=1,092 (was 
825) 
Pembrokeshire=2,918 
(was 2,570) 

Learning Disability (LD)  

The numbers of people with LD who are more likely to 
present themselves to health and care services is 
predicted to remain relative consistent going forwards 
over the next 10 years – although the number of older 
people with LD is expected to increase significantly 
reflecting an improvement in life expectancy. There 
will be demand for more Shared Lives and supported 
living accommodation. 

-Prevalence is estimated 
at 0.5% across the 
Region 

Autism  

The PNA identified many people with autism had a 
general feeling of being unsupported with a need for 
improved and accessible signposting across the region. 
Projections suggest numbers will remain stable to 
2030. Issues include significant waiting times for 
diagnosis and limited access to subsequent services 
and support. The Housing LIN report has identified 
significant demand for specialist housing in the region 
for people with Learning Disability and Autism. 

-It is estimated that 
there are around 4,000 
people with Autism in the 
region, broken down as 
follows: 
Carmarthenshire=2,000 
Ceredigion=750 
Pembrokeshire=1,500 

Mental Health  

The pandemic is likely to have had a severe impact on 
mental wellbeing. The long-term impact is difficult to 
predict not least because the pandemic is ongoing. 
However, there is a significant risk that there will be a 

 

Tudalen 193



Page 6 of 11 
 

legacy of increased mental health problems.  The 
housing needs assessment identifies a need for 
significant additional units of accommodation over the 
next two decades. 

Physical disability  

Ensuring access to specialist services for people with a 
range of more complex needs is particularly 
challenging in rural areas. This is compounded by 
existing barriers relating to design and accessibility. 
Evidence about the sufficiency of specialist services 
and services for conditions and needs is limited and 
further work is needed to identify and tackle gaps. 

 

Sensory impairment  

The numbers are expected to grow significantly in line 
with an ageing population.  A range of support will be 
needed, including specialist services and equipment, to 
enable people to access opportunities, including (for 
those working age) employment. 

 

Dementia  

The number of people living with dementia is expected 
to increase significantly with impacts on care and 
support services13.  Locally available bespoke support 
for early onset dementia may needed. 

-There is a projected 
regional increase of 41% 
to 2030 (severe 
dementia), with variation 
as follows: 
Carmarthenshire=41% 
Ceredigion=37% 
Pembrokeshire=44% 

Older people  

The aging population means that there will be an 
increasing demand for care and support services 
including a range of housing options. The complexity 
of needs will also continue to grow as the number of 
people living with dementia and multiple co-morbidities 
increases. The need to grow community support14 is 
even greater given the fragility of the markets for 
regulated services highlighted in the stability 
assessments. 

-There is a projected 
regional increase in those 
85 and over of 28% by 
2030, with variation as 
follows: 
Carmarthenshire=25% 
Ceredigion=26% 
Pembrokeshire=33% 

 
Stability: regulated services 
 
The Code of Practice defines market stability in terms of a set of characteristics of a 
well-functioning market for care and support: 
 

● Demand and supply are broadly balanced – i.e. there is sufficient provision 
of quality care and support to meet demand. 

 
13 Including support services for unpaid carers. 
14 Including strengthening support for unpaid carers. 

Tudalen 194



Page 7 of 11 
 

● There is a diverse provider base and an element of competition, with no 
over-reliance on any one provider or sector. 

● Individuals who need care and support have a real say and choice over 
how their care and support needs are met, and providers are readily able 
to respond to changing demand and expectations. 

● Providers are able to access reliable information about the market in order 
to plan for the future and make investments. 

● There is a healthy competitive equilibrium between price and quality. 
● There are sufficient levels of suitably trained and motivated staff providing 

quality care and support across providers. 
● Commissioners and purchasers have confidence that providers are 

financially viable and sustainable, and any risks are clearly identified. 
● Entry and exit of providers to and from the market takes place in an 

orderly fashion without individuals who need care and support being 
disadvantaged. 

● The market is robust enough to withstand shocks, and contingency plans 
are in place so that the market can respond effectively when providers 
(especially large or specialist providers) fail or experience operational 
difficulties. 

 
 

Implications County variations 

Care homes for children and young people  

• The market for children’s homes is not 
functioning well nationally or regionally. There 
are currently insufficient places available, 
partly because of placements made by ‘out of 
region’ authorities 

• The WG goal of eliminating private profit from 
the market is creating uncertainty for both 
providers and commissioners  

• A significant shift towards in-house or third 
sector provision will be required over the next 
decade to meet the ‘rebalancing’ agenda. 
This has investment implications 

• In parallel, investment in evidence-based 
preventative services can successfully reduce 
the need for children to be looked after away 
from their families 

-Carmarthenshire has the 
fewest children in care 
homes 
-Looked After Children are 
increasing in Ceredigion 
and Pembrokeshire but 
declining in 
Carmarthenshire. 
-Pembrokeshire has the 
most placements available 
(49), then Carmarthenshire 
(44), and Ceredigion has 
none. 
-In house capacity is 
highest in Carmarthenshire 
(3 units) 

Fostering  

• Increased numbers of looked after children 
regionally15 and nationally are making it 
harder to place children 

• There is considerable uncertainty in the 
market with the WG commitment to eliminate 
‘for profit’ provision and the impact of the 

-Looked After Children are 
increasing in Ceredigion 
and Pembrokeshire but 
declining in 
Carmarthenshire. 

 
15 Carmarthenshire has seen a reduction. 

Tudalen 195



Page 8 of 11 
 

pandemic.  Growing in-house capacity may 
be necessary as well as desirable 

• The ultimate constraint is recruiting sufficient 
foster carers with the skills and motivation to 
care for children and young people who have 
typically experienced significant trauma and 
adversity 

• Alongside growing in-house capacity, 
engagement with IFA providers offering 
placements in West Wales is crucial, both to 
begin planning for the likely transition to a 
not-for-profit model, and to make the most of 
local capacity for West Wales children 

• Investment in preventative, respite and edge 
of care services can help reduce the need for 
children to be looked after away from their 
families 

-Pembrokeshire has 
increased in-house fostering 
places in recent years, with 
the opposite being true of 
Carmarthenshire and 
Pembrokeshire 

Adoption  

• There is no independent sector involvement 
in the regional market, but 3rd sector 
agencies are involved with placement in 
some cases16 

• Enhancing support to adoptive families will be 
beneficial to children and will reduce the risk 
of breakdowns of adoptive placements.  West 
Wales should consider the recommendations 
from the national evaluation of adoption 
support 

-Adoption services are 
provided regionally 
(including Powys) 
-Numbers are small (less 
than 20 in 2021) 

Secure accommodation  

• Provision is extremely specialist for which 
there is very little demand from the Region17.  
On the rare occasions when a West Wales 
child needs secure accommodation it may not 
be available in Wales as there is only one 
secure unit (Neath) 

• WG should be alerted if there are concerns 
about the sufficiency of secure 
accommodation 

-County variation cannot be 
discerned (numbers very 
low) 

Residential family centres  

• There is insufficient demand for residential 
family placements to justify commissioning 
dedicated regional provision 

-County variation cannot be 
discerned (numbers very 
low) 

 
16 If placement cannot be identified in-region, a search will be made through Adoption Register Wales. Those 
adopters may have been approved by a Voluntary Adoption Agency, another regional adoption service, or an 
adoption agency in England.  The Adopting Together scheme is utilised where children have very complex 
needs. 
17 Typically, only one or two placements may be required – none in some years 

Tudalen 196



Page 9 of 11 
 

• Increasing regional parent and child fostering 
capacity, either in house or commissioned 
from an IFA will mean residential 
assessments are even rarer, and would 
provide local capacity over which 
commissioners have significantly more 
influence in terms of cost and quality 

Domiciliary care services  

• There is chronic under-supply and the 
outlook is worsening as complexity increases 

• The domiciliary care market is critical to 
helping people to live independently and 
reduce / delay the need for acute health 
services and residential care. However, it is 
arguably the sector under the greatest 
pressure - risking both stability and 
sufficiency of supply 

• Commissioners and providers need to 
collaborate to address significant workforce 
issues across the sector. Ongoing 
engagement with providers is also needed to 
develop new models and promote innovation 

• Fee methodologies should reflect issues 
relating to costs (such as national 
commitment to the Real Living Wage) 

• Further exploration of investing into 
community preventative and early 
intervention solutions to offset demand and 
increasing levels of complexity is encouraged. 
There is potential to expand upon 
community-based early intervention and 
preventative services 

-Research suggests 
greatest pressures are in 
Ceredigion and 
Pembrokeshire (waiting lists 
and hand backs) 
- Carmarthenshire has the 
most in-house provision 
(32% of hours delivered) 
and this is growing.  
Pembrokeshire’s in-house 
provision has gone from 
0% to 17% over the last 3 
years, (Ceredigion=very 
limited). 
-Pembrokeshire had seen 
an expansion of micro-
enterprises to 30 
 

Adult placement (Shared Lives)  

• Adult placement has growth potential, 
subject to sufficiency of carer availability 

• Shared Lives is an excellent fit with the 
challenges and opportunities faced by West 
Wales 

• The Development Plan should be revisited, 
and additional resources invested if necessary 
to overcome any delays caused by the 
pandemic 

• Consider making an expression of interest for 
a pilot Homeshare scheme to complement an 
expanded and diversified Shared Lives service 

-76% of people supported 
are from Carmarthenshire 
(plans have been agreed to 
increase numbers across 
the Region) 

Care homes for working aged adults  

Tudalen 197



Page 10 of 11 
 

• The vast majority of placements 
accommodate people with learning disability 
and/ or mental health needs 

• A more strategic approach to commissioning 
care homes for younger adults is needed to 
increase the availability of local provision, 
including further investment to develop and 
scale up alternative community provision 

• Commissioners may wish to consider offering 
any “spare” in-house provision to other West 
Wales councils 

• Investment in dedicated resources and 
projects for younger adults has the potential 
to return substantial improvements in quality 
and better value for money in the longer 
term, as well as securing capacity 

• Better data about quality, including the user 
voice should be a priority 

-Ceredigion has the highest 
proportion of out of county 
placement (though also 
high for Carmarthenshire 
and Pembrokeshire) 

Care homes for older people  

• The number of people requiring residential 
care is unlikely to rise in line with 
demographic changes but the trend of 
residents having greater needs will continue 

• Uncertainty combined with escalating 
workforce pressures are major barriers to 
investment and transformation 

• Market conditions are unlikely to incentivise 
sufficient investment without more active 
market shaping and intervention 

• In-house provision offers control over supply 
and ensures local authorities retain expertise 
and capability (critical when risk of provider 
failure).  In-house also offers a context for 
trialling innovative practice 

• More specialist and nursing provision 
especially for people with dementia will be 
needed.  Options include: 
o incentivise investment through contracts 

which share occupancy risks, providing 
sites, facilitating planning consents and 
supporting workforce initiatives 

o Consider whether to acquire homes which 
are at risk of closure either to sustain 
provision, repurpose for other uses which 
support people to remain independent, 

-In-house provision is 
proportionately highest in 
Ceredigion and lowest in 
Pembrokeshire 
-Fee rates differ across the 
Region and are highest in 
Pembrokeshire, followed by 
Ceredigion18 
  

 
18 Except Nursing EMI rates, where Ceredigion’s rate is lowest. 

Tudalen 198



Page 11 of 11 
 

such as supported living, or release the 
capital to reinvest in new provision 

o Consider the business case to develop in-
house nursing provision (including taking 
due regard to registration requirements) to 
rebalance the market and address market 
failures 

o Develop in-reach and out-reach models 
with residential homes at the centre of 
their communities (also referenced as Hub 
and Spoke models) 

Advocacy  

• There is a wide spectrum of formal and 
informal advocacy but only advocacy for 
children who need care and support or are 
looked after are regulated 

• Ensure that the service continues to be 
promoted through the active offer 

• Build capacity in wider advocacy services 
across West Wales to strengthen the voices 
of user and carers and ensure a diverse pool 
of skilled advocates 

• Consider piloting advocacy for parents to 
complement the statutory offer. 

• Make the most of learning from advocacy 
through streamlined reporting processes 

-Regionally commissioned 
service 

 
 
4. Recommendation 
 
Strategic Development and Operational Delivery Committee is asked to note the 
MSR, which has been produced on a regional basis to enhance understanding of the 
regional market for care and support, in line with legislative requirements. 
 

Tudalen 199



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



 

 

 
 
 
West Wales Care Partnership 
Market Stability Report (v12) 
 
Report 
 
February 2022 
 
 
 

 

 
 

Tudalen 201



Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   1 

West Wales Care Partnership 
Market Stability Report (v12) 
 

Report 
 

Contents 
1 Introduction ............................................................................................................... 6 

1.1 Purpose .............................................................................................................. 6 

1.2 Scope ................................................................................................................. 6 

1.3 Context ............................................................................................................... 7 

2 Approach and Methods .......................................................................................... 11 

2.1 The Code of Practice ........................................................................................ 11 

3 Structure of Report ................................................................................................. 14 

4 Market Overview .................................................................................................... 15 

4.1 Rebalancing ..................................................................................................... 15 

5 Sufficiency Assessment: Part A .............................................................................. 17 

6 Stability Assessment: Part B .................................................................................. 22 

6.1 Care homes for children and young people ...................................................... 22 

6.1.1 Sufficiency ................................................................................................. 22 

6.1.2 Quality & Choice ........................................................................................ 23 

6.1.3 Trends ........................................................................................................ 23 

6.1.4 Challenges & Opportunities ....................................................................... 24 

6.1.5 Impact of Commissioning ........................................................................... 24 

6.1.6 Issues & Recommendations ...................................................................... 25 

6.2 Fostering .......................................................................................................... 26 

6.2.1 Sufficiency ................................................................................................. 26 

6.2.2 Quality & Choice ........................................................................................ 27 

6.2.3 Trends ........................................................................................................ 27 

6.2.4 Challenges & Opportunities ....................................................................... 28 

6.2.5 Impact of Commissioning ........................................................................... 28 

6.2.6 Issues & Recommendations ...................................................................... 29 

6.3 Adoption Services............................................................................................. 30 

6.3.1 Sufficiency ................................................................................................. 30 

6.3.2 Quality & Choice ........................................................................................ 30 

6.3.3 Trends ........................................................................................................ 30 

6.3.4 Challenges & Opportunities ....................................................................... 31 

Tudalen 202

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   2 

6.3.5 Impact of Commissioning ........................................................................... 31 

6.3.6 Issues & Recommendations ...................................................................... 31 

6.4 Secure Accommodation ................................................................................... 33 

6.4.1 Sufficiency ................................................................................................. 33 

6.4.2 Quality and Choice ..................................................................................... 33 

6.4.3 Trends ........................................................................................................ 33 

6.4.4 Challenges & Opportunities ....................................................................... 33 

6.4.5 Impact of Commissioning ........................................................................... 34 

6.4.6 Issues & Recommendations ...................................................................... 34 

6.5 Residential Family Centres ............................................................................... 35 

6.5.1 Sufficiency ................................................................................................. 35 

6.5.2 Quality and choice ..................................................................................... 35 

6.5.3 Trends ........................................................................................................ 35 

6.5.4 Challenges & Opportunities ....................................................................... 35 

6.5.5 Impact of Commissioning ........................................................................... 35 

6.5.6 Issues & Recommendations ...................................................................... 36 

6.6 Children’s Advocacy Services .......................................................................... 37 

6.6.1 Sufficiency ................................................................................................. 37 

6.6.2 Quality and choice ..................................................................................... 37 

6.6.3 Trends ........................................................................................................ 38 

6.6.4 Challenges & Opportunities ....................................................................... 38 

6.6.5 Impact of Commissioning ........................................................................... 38 

6.6.6 Issues & Recommendations ...................................................................... 38 

6.7 Adult Placement Services ................................................................................. 39 

6.7.1 Sufficiency ................................................................................................. 39 

6.7.2 Quality and choice ..................................................................................... 39 

6.7.3 Trends ........................................................................................................ 39 

6.7.4 Challenges & Opportunities ....................................................................... 40 

6.7.5 Impact of Commissioning ........................................................................... 40 

6.7.6 Issues & Recommendations ...................................................................... 41 

6.8 Care Homes for working Aged Adults............................................................... 42 

6.8.1 Sufficiency ................................................................................................. 42 

6.8.2 Quality & Choice ........................................................................................ 43 

6.8.3 Trends ........................................................................................................ 43 

6.8.4 Challenges & Opportunities ....................................................................... 44 

6.8.5 Impact of Commissioning ........................................................................... 44 

6.8.6 Issues & Recommendations ...................................................................... 45 

6.9 Domiciliary Care Services ................................................................................ 46 

Tudalen 203

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   3 

6.9.1 Sufficiency ................................................................................................. 46 

6.9.2 Quality and Choice ..................................................................................... 48 

6.9.3 Trends ........................................................................................................ 48 

6.9.4 Challenges and Opportunities .................................................................... 49 

6.9.5 Impact of Commissioning ........................................................................... 50 

6.9.6 Issues and Recommendations ................................................................... 50 

6.10 Care Homes for Older People ....................................................................... 51 

6.10.1 Sufficiency .............................................................................................. 51 

6.10.2 Quality & Choice ..................................................................................... 51 

6.10.3 Trends .................................................................................................... 52 

6.10.4 Challenges .............................................................................................. 53 

6.10.5 Impact of Commissioning ....................................................................... 53 

6.10.6 Issues & Recommendations ................................................................... 54 

7 Region Wide Options.............................................................................................. 55 

7.1 Focus on quality and outcomes ........................................................................ 55 

7.2 Invest in Unpaid Carers .................................................................................... 55 

7.3 Invest in prevention and early intervention ....................................................... 56 

7.4 Re-provision services ....................................................................................... 56 

7.5 Reconfiguring services ..................................................................................... 57 

7.6 Developing new services .................................................................................. 57 

7.7 Enhancing regional commissioning for specialist services ............................... 58 

7.8 Rebalancing the market .................................................................................... 58 

7.9 Build workforce capacity ................................................................................... 58 

7.10 Fee Methodologies ........................................................................................ 59 

7.11 Support market confidence ........................................................................... 60 

7.12 Restarting work delayed by the pandemic ..................................................... 60 

7.13 Invest in Technology Innovation .................................................................... 60 

8 Conclusion – A Call to Action ................................................................................. 62 

Appendix 1: Full Sufficiency assessments ..................................................................... 63 

1 Children and Young People .................................................................................... 63 

1.1 Looking Back .................................................................................................... 63 

1.2 Looking Forward ............................................................................................... 64 

1.3 Issues and Gaps............................................................................................... 65 

2 Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence .......................... 66 

2.1 Looking back .................................................................................................... 67 

2.2 Looking forwards .............................................................................................. 67 

2.3 Issues and Gaps............................................................................................... 68 

3 Carers (including unpaid carers) ............................................................................ 68 

Tudalen 204

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   4 

3.1 Looking Back .................................................................................................... 69 

3.2 Looking Forward ............................................................................................... 69 

3.3 Issues and Gaps............................................................................................... 71 

4 Learning Disabilities ............................................................................................... 71 

4.1 Looking Back .................................................................................................... 72 

4.2 Looking Forward ............................................................................................... 72 

4.3 Issues and Gaps............................................................................................... 74 

5 Autism .................................................................................................................... 74 

5.1 Looking Back .................................................................................................... 75 

5.2 Looking Forwards ............................................................................................. 75 

5.3 Issues and Gaps............................................................................................... 75 

6 Mental Health ......................................................................................................... 75 

6.1 Looking Back .................................................................................................... 76 

6.2 Looking Forward ............................................................................................... 76 

6.3 Issues and Gaps............................................................................................... 78 

7 Health and Physical Disability ................................................................................ 78 

7.1 Looking Back .................................................................................................... 78 

7.2 Looking Forward ............................................................................................... 80 

7.3 Issues and Gaps............................................................................................... 80 

8 Sensory Impairment ............................................................................................... 80 

8.1 Looking Back .................................................................................................... 81 

8.2 Looking Forward ............................................................................................... 81 

8.3 Issues and Gaps............................................................................................... 82 

9 Dementia ................................................................................................................ 82 

9.1 Looking Back .................................................................................................... 82 

9.2 Looking Forward ............................................................................................... 82 

9.3 Issues and Gaps............................................................................................... 83 

10 Older People ........................................................................................................ 83 

10.1 Looking Back ................................................................................................. 83 

10.2 Looking Forward ........................................................................................... 85 

10.3 Issues and Gaps ........................................................................................... 86 

Technical Appendix ....................................................................................................... 87 

1 Cross-cutting .......................................................................................................... 87 

1.1 Demographic Data............................................................................................ 87 

1.2 Guidance .......................................................................................................... 88 

1.3 Key Data Sources............................................................................................. 88 

1.4 Regional Documents ........................................................................................ 88 

1.5 Further Reading & Background ........................................................................ 88 

Tudalen 205

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   5 

2 Older People .......................................................................................................... 89 

2.1 Demographic Data............................................................................................ 89 

2.2 Trends in activity, capacity and spend .............................................................. 90 

2.2.1 Domiciliary Care ......................................................................................... 90 

2.2.2 Care homes for Older People .................................................................... 92 

2.2.3 Social Care Wales Priority Area Reports ................................................... 96 

2.2.4 Further Reading & Background .................................................................. 96 

3 Working Age Adults ................................................................................................ 97 

3.1 Demographic Data............................................................................................ 97 

3.2 Trends in activity, capacity and spend .............................................................. 97 

3.3 Regional Documents ...................................................................................... 101 

3.4 Further Reading & Background ...................................................................... 101 

4 Children and Young People .................................................................................. 101 

4.1 Demographic Data.......................................................................................... 101 

4.2 Trends in activity, capacity and spend ............................................................ 102 

4.3 Regional Documents ...................................................................................... 105 

4.4 Social Care Wales Priority Area Reports ........................................................ 105 

4.5 Further Reading & Background ...................................................................... 106 

 
 
 
  

Tudalen 206

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   6 

1 Introduction 

1.1 Purpose 

This is the first regional Market Stability Report (MSR) for West Wales. Its purpose is to: 
 

• assess the market for services for individuals requiring care and support and their 
carers, 

• inform action, and ultimately to;  

• improve outcomes for people. 
 
The MSR was commissioned by the West Wales Care Partnership (WWCP) which 
brings together partners from local government, the NHS, third and independent sectors 
with users and carers with the aim of transforming care and support services in the 
region.  
 
The legal duty to prepare a MSR was introduced by the Social Services and Well-being 
Act (Wales) 2014 in recognition that the way social care services are provided has 
changed dramatically over recent decades. Less is now delivered directly by public 
sector bodies and services are now provided by a complex mix of independent, public, 
and voluntary sector provision. These are often commissioned and funded by local 
authorities and health boards, but sometimes purchased by people themselves, either 
using Direct Payments or their own funds if they do not qualify for state funded care. 
The mix of provision varies across local authorities and types of service creating a 
complex landscape for people trying to find the right care. 
 
The shift towards a mixed market for care has potential benefits, including increased 
choice, competition, and economies of scale. However, it has also brought complexity 
and new risks - such as potential market failure or exits of individual providers, gaps in 
provision and market imbalances, which, if not addressed might mean that sufficient 
care of the right quality and cost will not be available in future. The Welsh Government 
has therefore legislated for stronger market shaping responsibilities for commissioning 
organisations, including the requirement to produce comprehensive MSRs every five 
years alongside Population Needs Assessments (PNAs1). 

1.2 Scope 

This MSR covers the whole of Carmarthenshire, Ceredigion, and Pembrokeshire, which 
is the area covered by the Hywel Dda University Health Board. In line with the national 
Code of Practice it comprises two inter-linked assessments: 
 

• the sufficiency of care and support services; and 

• the stability of the market for regulated services  
 
The Sufficiency Assessment covers all the population groups included in the PNA - 
namely: 
 

• Children and young people (including looked after children) 

 
1 Not to be confused with Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment 

Tudalen 207

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk
https://gov.wales/code-practice-and-guidance-under-social-services-and-well-being-wales-act-2014-html


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   7 

• Violence against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence 

• Carers (including unpaid carers) 

• Learning Disability  

• Autism 

• Mental Health 

• Health and Physical Disabilities  

• Sensory Impairment 

• Dementia 

• Older People 
 
The Stability Assessment covers all services regulated by Care Inspectorate Wales, 
namely: 
 

• Care homes for children and young people 

• Fostering  

• Adoption  

• Secure accommodation 

• Residential family centres 

• Children’s advocacy services 

• Adult placement services 

• Care homes for working age adults  

• Domiciliary care  

• Care homes for older people 
 
Supported Living services are not regulated as such, but the care provided is regulated 
as domiciliary care. They are therefore included either in the sufficiency sections for 
relevant population groups or the domiciliary care stability section. 
 
The benefit of assessing care and support from these two inter-linked perspectives is 
that future requirements for regulated services cannot be understood adequately in 
isolation from the broader fabric of services and support. 

1.3 Context 

This MSR has been developed against the background of the worst pandemic for over 
a century impacting profoundly on people who need care and those caring for 
them - whether unpaid or paid. Providers of services have also been severely affected 
and existing workforce pressures have worsened considerably. The challenges of the 
pandemic have introduced a great deal of uncertainty into care markets - making this 
MSR very timely and crucial in setting out a direction of travel across the West Wales 
Region to urgently and collectively address market stability and sufficiency. 
 
The sector has also been dealing with historic systematic challenges which are now 
being magnified2 as a consequence of the pandemic. Over the last decade demand 
pressures on social care services have been compounded by fiscal austerity across 
public services. Reduced funding for local authorities and competing priorities has 
limited the rates that local authorities (and the Health Board) are able to pay for care 
and placed a disproportionate emphasis on economy rather than quality and improved 

 
2 https://www.kingsfund.org.uk/publications/covid-19-magnified-social-care-problems 

Tudalen 208

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   8 

outcomes. Providers (particularly those running care homes for older people) have 
commented that prices have not kept pace with their costs and that their inability to 
renumerate staff at competitive levels is worsening ongoing workforce pressures. 
 
Ongoing public sector budget pressures have impacted upon commissioners’ ability to 
prioritise investment into preventative community-based services and support. In 
2018 the Welsh Government’s Finance Committee Inquiry into “The cost of caring for an 
ageing population3” noted; “the evidence shows that funding pressures, along with an 
increasing population, is resulting in a funding shortfall”, Commissioners have also 
commented that prices for placements in care settings for children and working age 
adults are also increasing. Scarce resources have been absorbed in paying for 
placements in statutory services at the expense of preventative support, fuelling further 
levels of unmet need and exacerbating the trend towards increasing complexity as 
needs are not being addressed early. 
 
Whilst these challenges are relatively common across all regions, West Wales has 
distinctive characteristics that accentuate the emphasis of these challenges locally. 
Firstly, West Wales is predominantly rural - covering approximately a quarter of 
Wales but, with a population of 389,719, is home to only 12% of the Welsh population4. 
Secondly, the working age population is falling, whilst there are increasing 
numbers of older people retiring to the region and adults living longer with health 
conditions and Learning Disabilities.  Both aspects have a significant influence over the 
local care market, specifically: 
 

• additional cost and logistics of providing services within isolated communities and; 

• increased demand for health and care just as the potential workforce and carer pool 
is shrinking. 

 
West Wales has a much higher proportion of Welsh speakers than the national 
average with 37% of people aged over three speaking Welsh in 2011: almost twice the 
national figure of 19%. Carmarthenshire has more people who speak Welsh than any 
other county in Wales (just over 78,000), and Ceredigion has the highest proportion of 
Welsh speakers in the region at 47%, the third highest in Wales (there are just under 
35,000 people who speak Welsh in the county).  The proportions are lower in 
Pembrokeshire with 19% of the population able to speak Welsh (just under 23,000 
people). It is therefore particularly important that people can access services in their 
local communities and through the medium of Welsh if they wish5. 
 
The wider national policy context is one of a long-term drive to help people to live 
independently in the community and reduce reliance on residential care, as 
described in the Welsh Government’s policy paper “A Healthier Wales”. This applies 
across population groups and has been driven by changing public expectations as well 
as an awareness that, with a rapidly aging population, social care services will not be 
sustainable without better prevention and community support. For children, there is a 
similar emphasis on prevention and enabling children to live safely with their own 
families whenever possible.  
 

 
3 https://senedd.wales/laid%20documents/cr-ld11773/cr-ld11773-e.pdf  
4 Population Estimates 2020, Stats Wales 
5 Data from the 2021 Census will start to be published from March 2022 

Tudalen 209

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk
https://senedd.wales/laid%20documents/cr-ld11773/cr-ld11773-e.pdf


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   9 

Prevention and early intervention are key planks of the well-being agenda - as 
articulated in the Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014 and more recently in 
the Welsh Government’s A Healthier Wales plan which was updated in 20216. Both 
seek to improve outcomes for people by addressing the long-term national challenges 
such as health inequity, aging and climate change in ways which benefit future 
generations as well as the current population. The Well-being of Future Generations 
(Wales) Act 2015 sets out ambitious long-term goals for Wales and requires each area 
to produce Well-being assessments and local Well-being Plans.  
 
In this context, it is noted that Ceredigion has recently launch it’s “Through Age Well-
being Strategy 2021-20277”, which sets out plans to design and deliver services based 
upon the life course of individuals as opposed to being determined by age 
categorisations. This approach can offer greater continuity in supporting people to being 
resilient and maintaining their independence in their own homes.  
 
The contribution of unpaid carers is a significant aspect to regional market stability 
and sufficiency activity. Building upon the vision for a ‘Healthier Wales’, a national 
Strategy for Unpaid Carers was launched in March 2021, which committed to “embed 
the preventative aspects…more effectively in public services and move key providers of 
services, including the third sector, towards an improved model of support for unpaid 
carers.” This theme is reflected throughout this MSR. 
 
Partnership and collaboration is another key theme. Regional Partnership Boards 
were established in recognition that good outcomes for people can best be achieved 
through integrated health and social care services - with partners sharing a common 
vision and agenda, collaborating well at a local level and across the region. The 
requirements to produce PNAs and Well-being Assessments overseen by local Public 
Services Boards form part of this system of partnership arrangements, as of course do 
MSRs. 
 
In January 2021 the Welsh Government published a White Paper setting out an 
ambition to rebalance care and support. ‘Rebalancing’ includes an explicit 
commitment to a mixed economy of provision ‘so that there is neither an over 
reliance on the private sector (including the voluntary and charity sector), nor a 
monopoly in the other direction’, but is defined more broadly as a set of descriptors of 
the system change sought: 
 

 
 

 
6 https://gov.wales/healthier-wales-long-term-plan-health-and-social-care  
7 Ceredigion Through-age & Wellbeing Strategy 

Tudalen 210

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk
https://gov.wales/healthier-wales-long-term-plan-health-and-social-care
https://www.ceredigion.gov.uk/resident/social-care-wellbeing/through-age-wellbeing-strategy/


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   10 

The Programme for Government goes further in relation to children’s services, 
committing to ‘eliminate private profit from the care of looked after children during the 
next Senedd term’ (2026-31). Whilst the direction of travel has been indicated, further 
detail on how this will be achieved, and the wider rebalancing agenda is awaited. In the 
meantime, this MSR is an opportunity to take stock of the care and support markets in 
West Wales and assess the extent to which rebalancing is required. 
 
  

Tudalen 211

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   11 

2 Approach and Methods 

This MSR has been shaped by five main sources of evidence; 
 

• Analysis of data, both from published sources and bespoke data collections from the 
three counties and Hywel Dda Health Board. 

• Review of key policy documents, strategies, and plans. 

• Surveys of providers (administered bilingually online). 

• Interviews and focus groups with commissioners and providers. 

• Intelligence from the engagement programme to inform the PNA and Well-being 
Assessments, including engagement with citizens, individuals with care and support 
needs and their carers. 

 
Together these provide a strong evidence base. Working with the teams responsible for 
the PNA and Well-being Assessments has helped to maximise synergies and avoid 
duplication. 
 
The assessment of care homes for older people was done first and considered both the 
stability and sufficiency of this market segment. This provided the opportunity to pilot 
some of the approaches which were then rolled out across other types of regulated 
services. IPC is also doing similar work in other parts of Wales and the UK providing a 
valuable reference point and a richer overall understanding of the markets and 
commissioning approaches. 

2.1 The Code of Practice 

This MSR is structured in accordance with the Code of Practice.  
 
The Code of Practice states that: 
 

“Market stability reports are designed to give a high-level overview and 
assessment of the overall sufficiency of care and support, and of the stability of 
the market for regulated services8”. 

 
Importantly, the Code of Practice recognises that there will continue to be a need for 
more detailed Market Position Statements and commissioning strategies for specific 
services and segments of the market. 
 
The sufficiency element of the MSR intentionally overlaps with the PNA as set out 
helpfully in the diagram below which is taken directly from the Code of Practice: 
 

 
8 Code of Practice and guidance on the exercise of social services functions and partnership 
arrangements in relation to market stability reports, paragraph 3.16 

Tudalen 212

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   12 

 
 
The Code of Practice also includes useful definitions of sufficiency and stability which 
have been adopted in developing this MSR. 
 
‘Sufficiency’ is defined using standard dictionary definitions: 
 

• an amount of something that is good enough for a particular purpose (Cambridge 
Dictionary) 

• the condition or quality of being sufficient for its purpose or for the end in view 
(Oxford English Dictionary)9 

 
As these definitions make clear sufficiency is about both the quantity of provision 
required to meet needs and the quality of this provision.  
 
Taking this further, for the purposes of this MSR the following aspects as set out in the 
Code of Practice have been considered to assess sufficiency: 
 

• Choice of Services: Is there a choice as to what services are available to meet 
personal preferences and needs? 

• Access to Services: Are services available in people’s communities or within 
reasonable travelling distance? Are more specialist services located within the local 
authority boundary, West Wales Region or Nationally?  

 
9 As above, paragraph 4.9 

Tudalen 213

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   13 

• Availability of Services: Within this range of services, are there vacancies or 
waiting lists?  

• Affordability of Services: Are prices for care and support affordable within 
budgets? How do rates for self-funders compare and are they affordable?  

• Welsh Language: Are services available through the medium of Welsh? 

• Quality of Services: What do service users and carers think of the quality of 
services available? What does evidence from monitoring and inspection tell us? 

 
The Code of Practice defines market stability in terms of a set of characteristics of a 
well-functioning market for care and support: 
 

• Demand and supply are broadly balanced – i.e. there is sufficient provision of quality 
care and support to meet demand. 

• There is a diverse provider base and an element of competition, with no over-
reliance on any one provider or sector. 

• Individuals who need care and support have a real say and choice over how their 
care and support needs are met, and providers are readily able to respond to 
changing demand and expectations. 

• Providers are able to access reliable information about the market in order to plan 
for the future and make investments. 

• There is a healthy competitive equilibrium between price and quality. 

• There are sufficient levels of suitably trained and motivated staff providing quality 
care and support across providers. 

• Commissioners and purchasers have confidence that providers are financially viable 
and sustainable, and any risks are clearly identified. 

• Entry and exit of providers to and from the market takes place in an orderly fashion 
without individuals who need care and support being disadvantaged. 

• The market is robust enough to withstand shocks, and contingency plans are in 
place so that the market can respond effectively when providers (especially large or 
specialist providers) fail or experience operational difficulties. 

 
This MSR will help commissioners and others across the West Wales Care Partnership 
to identify risks and opportunities and address strategic collaborative planning in 
supporting market sufficiency and stability going forwards. 
 
  

Tudalen 214

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   14 

3 Structure of Report 

The structure of this report closely follows the Code of Practice and is designed to 
ensure that the two assessments – sufficiency and stability- dovetail with each other 
and the PNA. 
 
This report begins with an overview of care and support markets in the region 
highlighting key themes and issues which are drawn out in the detailed assessments. 
 

Part A: summarises the sufficiency assessment setting out the issues and gaps 
which have been identified for each population group either in the PNA or in the 
research for this MSR. Rounded judgements about the sufficiency of regulated 
services cannot be made without this wider picture of the care and support available. 
The full sufficiency assessment undertaken for this MSR is found in Appendix 1. This 
covers the detailed requirements of the Code of Practice. 

 

Part B: The stability assessment covers services regulated by Care Inspectorate 
Wales (CIW). This is presented in full in the body of the document as this covers the 
market and stability aspects which are fundamental to the MSR. As required by the 
Code of Practice, each stability assessment covers the sufficiency of that regulated 
service in greater depth. 

 
The assessments are ordered on a life course basis, from children and young people, to 
working aged adults and finally to older people. 
 
  

Tudalen 215

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   15 

4 Market Overview 

The ongoing pandemic has impacted us all. It has exposed some of the frailties of the 
health and care system - but has also brought to the fore many of its qualities, 
demonstrating the level of commitment and action across the sector to supporting 
people within local communities.  
 
A combination of sustained public sector austerity and the wide-ranging impact of the 
pandemic is compounding pressures upon the whole system.  Market uncertainty is 
inhibiting private investment and increasing levels of complexity are not being matched 
by corresponding workforce capacity – increasing pressure upon market stability. 
  
Across adult services, some providers have, or are considering, handing back contracts 
or stopping services, waiting lists are developing and domiciliary care packages are 
being are being subjected to tighter assessment. Further there is limited access to some 
local specialist services – such as those focused on people with mental health issues, 
and critically, significant workforce shortages across all parts of the care and support 
market.  
 
Analysis undertaken for this report indicates that the market for domiciliary care for older 
people is currently presenting the greatest risk of market instability as workforce 
pressures continue to mount and complexity of need increases, whilst prices paid for 
care are reported by providers as being insufficient to pay staff at competitive rates.  
This market segment has seen all three counties taking on more in-house domiciliary 
hours and reablement support over the last 3 years.   
 
However, there is also a growing risk of market instability within the residential / nursing 
home market for older people across the region. Providers are facing significant 
workforce pressures, rising levels of complexity, increased costs and reduced 
occupancy levels. As additional funding tapers away by March 2022 (Hardship Fund), 
some providers are considering closing their business or reducing the services being 
offered. Market intelligence across Wales suggests that the pressures on residential 
providers have escalated since Autumn 2021 with staffing issues meaning that some 
homes are not able to accept new residents. 
 
Likewise in children services and services for working aged adults, there are growing 
challenges in ensuring access to the right services and support - with many placements 
being made outside of the county (and region) at significant cost.   
 
Whilst there are sufficient places in fostering, children’s homes, and care homes for 
working aged adults across the region as a whole, many of these are purchased by 
authorities from outside the region and are therefore not available locally in practice - 
leading to out of county or out of region placements.  There are also gaps either 
geographically or for more specialist services such as younger onset dementia and 
CAMHS. 

4.1 Rebalancing 

Across each county, the MSR has evidenced a shift over the last 3 years in the extent 
by which services are being operated in-house, often as a direct response to market 
failure or to anticipate market exits- particularly amongst domiciliary care providers.  

Tudalen 216

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   16 

This shift is happening at a time of national debate about rebalancing the market and 
removing the profit element from service provision in children services.  
 
The extent of these shifts differs across the region in terms of scale and pace. For 
example, Ceredigion operates all its reablement services in-house as well as running 
six residential care homes, whilst Carmarthenshire has recently expanded its in-house 
share of the local domiciliary market to 32% of hours commissioned from 19% in 
2017/18. Pembrokeshire has gone from 0% to 17% share of its domiciliary market in 3 
years and took its reablement service completely in-house in 2019 - as part of its 
development of intermediate care services These variations reflect differing political 
appetites for market intervention as well as local conditions, but the overall regional 
trend is clear. 
 
Feedback from system leaders and commissioners indicates that in-house services can 
help secure access to the right support locally - although at similar or higher costs- as 
well as adding in-house capability to support market development. At the same time, it 
is widely acknowledged that the role of the independent provider sector remains critical 
- and the key judgement for the regional partnership, the Health Board and individual 
county councils is to determine the optimal balance between in-house and 
independent provision. This judgement will require significant engagement across the 
system to include independent providers and importantly local people. Each county has 
its own distinctive characteristics and challenges and will have to decide, together with 
the Health Board, the right mix of action to tackle instability in care markets and take 
advantage of the opportunities presented by the current crisis to ‘reset’ the system. 
 
  

Tudalen 217

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   17 

5 Sufficiency Assessment: Part A 

This section provides a summary of the issues and gaps in terms of sufficiency of care 
and support services for each prescribed. population group. 
 

Population 
Group 

Children and Young People 

Issues & 
Gaps 

• The draft Well-being assessments highlight concerns about the 
sufficiency of affordable child care, particularly in Pembrokeshire 
and Ceredigion.  

• Child poverty has increased across West Wales. 

• The overall child population is projected to decline but the demand 
for specialist support and services such as CAMHs and residential 
care which are already hard to source locally may increase. 

• The long-term impact of the on-going pandemic is very uncertain 
but there is a significant risk that it will be detrimental to children 
and young people’s wellbeing and exacerbate existing challenges. 

• User voice, co-production, and integration, including more 
seamless transitions to adult services, remain key areas for 
development. 

 
 

Population 
Group 

Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence 
(VAWDASV) 

Issues & 
Gaps 

• Incidents of violence against women have increased during the 
pandemic whilst victims may have found it harder to access 
services. 

• The complex funding arrangements are a significant risk to 
ensuring sufficiency of support.   

• There is a specific gap in terms of lack of services for older victims 
of domestic abuse. 

• The Mid and West Wales VAWDASV Strategic Group, consisting of 
commissioners, providers and survivors of VAWDASV identified the 
following themes as gaps or areas for improvement 

• Services for children and young people 

• More prevention focused services 

• Ensuring there is VAWDASV specialist input for specific groups 
ie BAME, disability, LGBT, older people 

• Reviewing the refuge model and accommodation options 

• Accommodation and support options for people with complex 
needs who challenge existing models 

• Community based services for survivors of sexual violence and 
abuse 

• Interventions /Services for perpetrators 

 

Tudalen 218

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   18 

Population 
Group 

Carers (including unpaid carers) 

Issues & 
Gaps 

• The level of unpaid care and support sought by unpaid carers is 
projected to increase significantly over the next 10 years as the 
population grows older.  

• Many carers are themselves over 65 and 46% of older carers are 
providing more than 50 hours of care per week10. 

• This is against the backdrop of the significant increase in self-
identification of unpaid carers during the pandemic and the existing 
strain on specialist carers support services to provide a timely 
response.  

• There is a need to improve access to services and support within 
rural communities for unpaid carers and improve level of digital 
inclusivity of unpaid carers. 

• Young carers need more mental health and emotional support and 
services. The pandemic has had a significant negative impact upon 
young carers in terms of increased isolation and mental health / 
emotion stress. 

 
 

Population 
Group 

Learning Disability  

Issues & 
Gaps 

• The numbers of people with learning disabilities likely to present 
themselves to health and care services is predicted to remain 
relative consistent over the next 10 years – although the number of 
older people with learning disabilities is expected to increase 
significantly reflecting an improvement in life expectancy. 

• The housing needs assessment identifies a need for significant 
additional units of specialist accommodation (shared lives and 
supported living) over the next 15 years, whilst the volume of 
residential care placements is projected to reduce considerably. 

• Many of the challenges faced prior to the pandemic persist and are 
highlighted in both the 2017 and 2022 PNAs. 

 
  

 
10 Social Care Wales Population Projections Platform (daffodil) 

Tudalen 219

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   19 

Population 
Group 

Autism 

Issues & 
Gaps 

• The numbers of people with autism will remain relatively stable over 
next 10 years  

• The PNA identified that many people with autism feel unsupported 
– particularly when living within rural areas. 

• There is a need for improved signposting across region, particularly 
for supporting young people transitioning to adult social care 
services. 

• Significant waiting times for diagnosis and limited access to 
subsequent services and support – especially supported living 
options and Mental Health services for young people.  Currently 
there are 900 adults and 1500 children on the diagnostics waiting 
list. 

• The Housing LIN report identified significant demand for specialist 
housing in the region for people with Learning Disability and 
Autism. 

• The pandemic has led to increased levels of mental health 
problems and further isolation. 

 
 

Population 
Group 

Mental Health  

Issues & 
Gaps 

• The pandemic is likely to have had a severe impact on mental 
wellbeing. The long-term impact is difficult to predict, however, 
there is a significant risk that there will be a legacy of increased 
mental health problems.   

• Meanwhile the pandemic has disrupted services and there are 
increased waiting times for assessment and treatment for both 
CAMHs and adult services. This may compound the direct impact 
of the pandemic. 

• The housing needs assessment identifies a need for significant 
additional units of accommodation over the next two decades. 

 
  

Tudalen 220

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   20 

Population 
Group 

Health and Physical Disability 

Issues & 
Gaps 

• The pandemic has had a disproportionate impact on disabled 
people which may compound existing inequalities 

• Engagement for the PNA highlighted a number of the social barriers 
which cause disability, particularly the design of buildings, including 
housing, and the lack of public transport.  

• Ensuring access to specialist services for people with a range of 
more complex needs is particularly challenging in rural areas 

• Evidence about the sufficiency of specialist services for specific 
conditions and needs is limited and further work is needed to 
identify and tackle gaps. 

 
 

Population 
Group 

Sensory Impairment  

Issues & 
Gaps 

• The number of people with sensory impairments is expected to 
grow significantly as the population ages. 

• There is a specific need to reduce social isolation of people with 
sensory impairments within rural communities including 
improvements to community support and access to specialist 
services. 

• For the relatively small number of younger people with sensory 
impairments, a range of support is needed including equipment and 
advice to remove barriers and increase employment and 
opportunities. 

 
 

Population 
Group 

Dementia 

Issues & 
Gaps 

• The number of people living with dementia is expected to increase 
by 49% by 204011. 

• This is a major factor in the increased complexity of needs which is 
impacting upon services. 

• The number of people living with young onset dementia is small, 
but they typically require specialist services which may not be 
available locally. 

• There is a lack of bespoke support for younger people living with 
dementia such as group activities or specialist residential care. 

 
  

 
11 Draft West Wales Care Partnership (WWCP) Dementia Strategy 

Tudalen 221

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   21 

Population 
Group 

Older People 

Issues & 
Gaps 

• The number of people aged 85 or over is expected to increase by 
27.8% by 2031, whilst the West Wales population as a whole will 
grow by just 1.3%12 

• The ageing population means that there will be an increasing 
demand for care and support services including a diverse range of 
housing options. 

• The complexity of needs will also continue to grow as the number of 
people living with dementia and multiple co-morbidities increases. 

• The need to grow community support is even greater given the 
fragility of the markets for regulated services highlighted in the 
stability assessments. 

• Recruitment and retention of staff is a key challenge across social 
care and is severely impacting both domiciliary and residential care. 

• A continuing shift towards more specialist residential and nursing 
care is required but in current conditions it is difficult to see the 
market delivering that at sufficient pace or scale. 

 
  

 
12 Stats Wales, Population Projections 2018 based 

Tudalen 222

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   22 

6 Stability Assessment: Part B 

This section of the MSR considers the stability of the prescribed regulated services as 
set out in the Code of Practice. This assessment also considers the sufficiency of these 
regulated services to meet projected demand. 

6.1 Care homes for children and young people 

The vast majority of children who are looked after are placed with foster carers or 
kinship carers, but at any one time there is a small group of children whose needs 
cannot be met in a family setting either temporarily or on a longer-term basis – around 
25 children as at March 2021, or 5.5% of children looked after. 
 

6.1.1 Sufficiency 
Overall, there is a shortage of available residential care places for children and young 
people in West Wales - as most of the provision is purchased by local authorities from 
outside the region. There are also differences between counties in terms of demand. 
 
Whilst rates of children looked after remain below the national average, both Ceredigion 
and Pembrokeshire have experienced significant increases in the number of children 
looked after, and increases in the number of children placed out of county and in 
residential care. This picture is common across Wales and many parts of England, but 
Carmarthenshire is one of four Welsh authorities to have seen consistently reducing 
numbers of children looked after over recent years. 
 
The vast majority of children homes in West Wales are run by independent sector 
providers and, with strong demand from other areas, it has proved increasingly difficult 
to place children appropriately. Five children’s home providers responded to the 
provider survey. They reported only one vacant place between them. There was also 
significant purchasing from authorities outside the region with two providers having 
more than two thirds of places purchased by authorities outside West Wales, one of 
which was mainly commissioned by English local authorities.  
 
If all the capacity in West Wales was available to the region there would not be a 
shortage, other than perhaps niche specialist services. There would also be more 
opportunity to re-shape regional provision to better match the priorities identified in the 
Mid and West Wales Market Position Statement for Children’s Residential Care and 
Fostering Services (see below).   
 
Data from the Children’s Commissioning Support Resource (CSSR) shows that as of 
December 2021 there are 26 children’s homes in West Wales providing a maximum of 
93 places (44 in Carmarthenshire and 49 in Pembrokeshire and none in Ceredigion). 
The vast majority of these places are commissioned by local authorities outside the 
region, and as a result children are increasingly placed out of county and sometimes out 
of region. Pembrokeshire has the highest number of children placed in residential care, 
and although there are 11 independent sector homes offering 43 places, 16 children 
were placed in children’s homes out of county as at March 2021. Carmarthenshire has 
the most in house capacity (three units, including two providing respite care) but the 
lowest number of children placed in residential care as at March 2021. 
 

Tudalen 223

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   23 

The CSSR data shows that there are some vacancies in children’s homes in West 
Wales – a total of 12 as at December 2021- but it should be borne in mind that these 
may not be suitable to the individual needs of a child requiring a placement. 
 
A draft Market Position Statement (MPS) for Mid and West Wales (including Powys) has 
been developed for children’s residential care and fostering. For residential care, the 
draft emphasises that in addition to the issue of local capacity often not being available 
there are also gaps in capacity that meets the needs profile of children looked after. 
These include: 
 

• Local emergency / crisis models of care 

• Step down from Secure Welfare 

• Homes with evidence-based models and proven outcomes 

• Support for emotional and mental health need 
 
Overall, this picture suggests that there is a need to rebalance the children’s care home 
market, both geographically and to secure access to local capacity, and also to better 
match the priorities identified in the Mid and West Wales MPS.  Action to address this is 
underway as described below. 
 

6.1.2 Quality & Choice 
With rising numbers of children looked after, frequently needing to be placed on an 
urgent or emergency basis, it is very difficult to match placements to each child’s 
individual needs. The more distant a placement the harder it is to monitor quality and 
provide oversight of each child’s care even if the overall quality of the provision is good. 
 
The small number of children in the region who currently require residential care are 
often placed out of their own area, occasionally in England, making it harder to maintain 
family relationships and friendships, or community and educational links. For Welsh 
speakers, placements may not meet their assessed language needs, even though 
meeting their assessed and agreed care and support needs. 
 

6.1.3 Trends 
The increase in the number of children looked after is a national trend, although as we 
have seen, with exceptions including Carmarthenshire. The number of children starting 
to be looked after each year in Wales has however been falling since 2017. This implies 
that nationally children are on average being looked after for longer, as the total of 
looked after children at any one time has continued to increase. 
 
Modern children’s homes tend to be very small – typically four beds- catering mainly for 
adolescents with complex needs, often exhibiting risky and sometimes challenging 
behaviour. 
 
The market for children’s care has become a controversial issue, with the Welsh 
Government committing to end private profit in children’s care in the next Senedd term, 
as recommended by the Children’s Commissioner for Wales. The high costs of 
placements have also been widely criticised. The national independent review of 
children’s social care has highlighted the issue and the Competition and Markets 
Authority (CMA) are undertaking a study of the market. The CMAs interim report 
suggests that the market is failing and found that large providers were currently making 

Tudalen 224

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   24 

higher profits than would be expected in a well-functioning market. However, it found no 
evidence that quality in the independent sector is lower and also suggested that the 
costs of providing residential care in-house are similar to the prices paid by local 
authorities. The CMA believes that profit margins reflect lower overheads, on-costs and 
staffing ratios within the independent sector. 
 

6.1.4 Challenges & Opportunities 
Rising numbers of children looked after are currently making it difficult to place children 
appropriately in Ceredigion and Pembrokeshire. However, it is very difficult to predict 
future trends as the factors driving variation in children looked after numbers are 
complex and not fully understood. Commissioning specialist services for low but 
variable numbers of individuals (e.g. parent and child placements or step-down from 
Tier 4 CAMHS) is inherently challenging and is one reason why councils have tended to 
rely on spot-purchasing placements in the independent sector. Regional collaboration 
can help mitigate this. 
 
It is not yet known when, or how, the Welsh government will implement its proposals to 
remove private profit from children’s care. This is already causing uncertainty in the 
market (as referenced in the Children’s Commissioning Consortium Cymru submission 
to the Competition and Markets Authority study on children care markets) and was 
highlighted as a concern in the provider survey with two respondents saying that they 
would otherwise have considered expansion in the region. This is likely to continue until 
proposals are finalised and there is clearly a significant risk that provision will be lost if 
the transition is not managed smoothly. 
 
Recruitment and retention is a challenge shared across social care and applies to both 
in-house and independent provision. The pandemic has exacerbated labour shortages 
across the economy and social care is competing with other sectors which can offer 
similar or better wages for less challenging work. 
 
The long-term impact of the on-going pandemic on the wellbeing of children and young 
people and therefore the volume and type of services they might require cannot be 
predicted with confidence at this stage. 
 
There is an opportunity to share and build on best practice in the region with 
Carmarthenshire succeeding in reducing the need for children to be looked after away 
from their families against the national trend. The rebalancing agenda presents 
opportunities alongside risks and is already giving impetus to regional collaboration. 
 

6.1.5 Impact of Commissioning 
For the reasons explained, local authorities have tended to rely on spot purchasing of 
placements. Other factors include the recognition that children’s homes are difficult 
services to manage well and carry significant risks, and the higher ‘on costs’ of local 
authority employment contracts. Spot purchasing, whilst understandable, has resulted in 
the current situation where local authorities feel they lack influence over the market and 
local provision is often purchased by authorities from other parts of the country or UK. 
 
The West Wales Care Partnership has begun to address these issues by developing 
proposals for additional in-house capacity. A successful bid for Welsh Government 
funding was made proposing a regional hub with local ‘step-down’ provision. Further 

Tudalen 225

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   25 

work questioned the feasibility of the hub model but plans for local provision are being 
taken forward in all three counties. 
 

6.1.6 Issues & Recommendations 
 

• The market for children’s homes is not functioning well nationally or regionally. 
There are currently insufficient places available to children within their local areas. 

• The Welsh Government has set a radical goal of eliminating private profit from the 
market but not yet set out the mechanism or timescale, creating uncertainty for 
both providers and commissioners. 

• A significant shift towards in-house or third sector provision will be required over 
the next decade to meet the policy change (and mitigate potential risks of 
increased ‘out of county’ placements). 

• This will require both revenue funding and capital investment. 

• As a short to medium term response - explore commissioning independent 
provision differently with more use of ‘soft’ block contracts. However, contract 
terms would need to be attractive to providers (particularly covering voids) and 
moving from the current provision to a contract would need to be done carefully 
and gradually, avoiding children having to move unnecessarily. 

• In parallel, investment in evidence-based preventative and edge of care services 
to safely reduce the need for children to be looked after can help improve both 
placement choice and outcomes for children and young people. 

 
  

Tudalen 226

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   26 

6.2 Fostering 

The vast majority of children who are looked after live with foster cares, including 
connected or kinship carers. Most foster carers are recruited and supported by local 
authorities but there are also Independent Fostering Agencies (IFAs) which recruit and 
approve carers and offer placements to local authorities. Most IFAs are in the 
independent sector but a few are operated on a not-for-profit basis by charities and 
social enterprises. Of 460 children looked after by West Wales councils at March 2021, 
350 (76%) were looked after in foster care, including 38 (8%) in IFA placements. 
 

6.2.1 Sufficiency 
The number of children looked after has been increasing both regionally and nationally. 
As a result, it has become harder to place children locally. Data from the Children’s 
Commissioning Support Resource (CSSR) shows that the issue is less one of capacity, 
but rather that many fostering placements in West Wales are purchased by authorities 
outside the region. As at December 2021 there were a total of 704 fostering places in 
West Wales across 354 households, many more places than the 350 children who were 
placed in foster care as at March. Just over half of these foster placements are local 
authority carers, with 45% being IFA placements. Only a handful of the IFA placements 
are provided by third sector providers (<2% of the total fostering places in West Wales). 
 
IFA placements offer choice, and sometimes meet specialist needs, such as parent and 
child placements but, in the absence of block contracts, they will often be purchased by 
authorities outside the region. 
 
The increasing difficulty in finding placements is evident in a rising number of IFA 
placements and an increase in children placed out of county. As at March 2021 there 
were 38 children placed with IFAs compared to 13 in March 2018, while 34 children 
were placed with foster carers out of county at March 2021, compared to 29 in March 
2018. Five of these Placements were outside the region. 
 
There are important differences between counties however, with Ceredigion and 
Pembrokeshire both seeing sharp increases in the number of children looked after, 
while Carmarthenshire has achieved a reduction. 
 
Pembrokeshire has succeeded in increasing both the number of ‘in-house’ fostering 
households and available places over the last four years, (carers may be approved to 
look after more than one child), but in-house capacity has declined in Ceredigion and 
Carmarthenshire over the same period.  
 
The CSSR also records vacancies. At December 2021 there were 36 fostering 
vacancies across Mid and West Wales (including Powys) or 4.1% of the total places. 
This is a slightly higher than the national rate of 3.9% vacancies but suggests a tight 
market, especially when you consider that many of these vacancies will not be 
appropriate for an individual child requiring a placement, for example because they are 
for a different age group or have additional needs. 
 
The draft Market Position Statement for Mid and West Wales emphasises that whilst in-
house fostering is generally able to meet the needs of most children there is a need of 
for more specialist foster placements, including: 
 

Tudalen 227

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   27 

• Placements for young people who have experienced significant trauma and maybe 
exhibiting multiple risk-taking behaviours including substance misuse, risk of CSE, 
poor decision making and absconding 

• Children with autism and significant learning disabilities  

• Parent and child placements; and  

• Foster carers who are able to speak Welsh.  
 
Overall, there are enough foster placements across West Wales but these are not all 
available to West Wales authorities and meeting specific needs close to a child’s home 
is sometimes not possible. If demand continues to increase (regionally and/or 
nationally) finding placements which match children’s needs will become increasingly 
difficult. 
 

6.2.2 Quality & Choice 
The quality of care provided by foster carers, whether local authority or IFA is generally 
high13, but the fewer vacancies there are the harder it becomes to match children 
appropriately to placements. Distant placements also make it harder to maintain 
relationships and continuity of education and health care, whilst individual needs, 
including Welsh language care may not be met. For the vast majority of children, the 
best quality placement will therefore be local to their home area.  
 
The number of placement moves children experience is an important indicator of 
quality, with frequent moves correlated with poorer long-term outcomes. In 2021 
proportion of children experiencing 3 or more placement moves was above the national 
average in Pembrokeshire and Ceredigion but below average in Carmarthenshire, 
consistent with the counties’ respective demand pressures. 
 

6.2.3 Trends 
The increase in the number of children looked after in Wales is a long-term trend, with 
numbers increasing steadily from 4195 in 2003 to 7265 in 2021: an increase of 73%. 
This would have placed strain on the local market for care placements even if the region 
itself had not seen an increase. Carmarthenshire is, as we have seen, one of four 
Welsh authorities to have achieved a reduction against this trend, but both Ceredigion 
and Pembrokeshire have seen increases.  
 
An increase in the proportion of children looked after by relatives or friends is another 
long-term national trend reflected in local data.  This can help mitigate the shortage of 
local placements. 
 
The Welsh Government’s stated policy goal of eliminating private profit from children’s 
care in the next Senedd term impacts most Independent Fostering Agencies. They also 
fall within scope of the Competition and Markets Authority’s (CMA) investigation which 
covers England, Scotland and Wales. The CMA’s interim report found that the largest 
IFAs were making higher levels of profit than they would expect in a well-functioning 
market, suggesting that there are barriers to entry. It also provisionally found that the 
cost to local authorities of purchasing IFA placements is generally higher than the costs 
of providing them in-house, even taking account of local authority overheads. 

 
13 For example the CMA interim report found no evidence of differences in quality between local authority 
and IFA carers   

Tudalen 228

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/childrens-social-care-market-study-interim-report/interim-report


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   28 

 

6.2.4 Challenges & Opportunities 
With current levels of demand, both within the region and beyond, it is increasingly 
difficult to match children to appropriate local placements. Without mitigating action this 
will be detrimental to children and will see continuing pressure on budgets.  
 
Recruiting foster carers is an ongoing challenge compounded by the falling working age 
population across the region. The availability and cost of housing is another constraint 
as foster carers obviously need sufficient space to offer children homes. Initiatives to 
increase the supply of affordable family homes, such as the council house building 
programmes in train across the region can help address this. 
 
The success of Pembrokeshire in recruiting carers and of Carmarthenshire in reducing 
numbers of looked after children shows that there is good practice across the region to 
share and build on. 
 
The ‘rebalancing’ agenda, particularly the proposals to eliminate profit present both risks 
and opportunities for the region. Depending on timing and how well the transition is 
managed, there is a risk that some placements and expertise will be lost, as some 
carers may prefer to give up fostering rather than change agency. On the other hand, if 
the change is well managed there is potential to increase the pool of local carers and 
ensure that those placements are available for West Wales children. 
 
The long-term impact of the ongoing pandemic on fostering is very uncertain. There is 
some evidence that people may be more attracted to fostering having re-evaluated their 
lives and attitude to employment and commuting. The pandemic prompted an upsurge 
in volunteering and community action, but on the other hand it may deter others from 
offering placements, particularly on a short-term or respite basis.  
 
The impact of the pandemic on children may be poorer emotional and mental well-
being, which in turn will mean that children who need to be looked after away from 
home need even more support. This could potentially exacerbate existing trends 
towards children exhibiting more complex and challenging needs, including acute 
mental health issues, autism and self-harm. 
 

6.2.5 Impact of Commissioning 
There have been a number of national and regional initiatives to support effective 
commissioning of children’s placements. These include the National Fostering 
Framework14 and Children’s Commissioning Consortium Cymru’s (4Cs), placement 
finding tool: the Children’s Commissioning Support Resource (CCSR).  
 
An issue frequently raised by providers is insufficient clarity from commissioners about 
the projected level of demand and the type of services required. The Market Position 
Statement and this MSR should help to address that but ongoing engagement and 
dialogue with providers is essential. 
 

 
14 National Fostering Framework Final Report 2018-21 

Tudalen 229

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk
https://www.adss.cymru/en/blog/post/national-fostering-framework-final-report-2018-2021


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   29 

The 4Cs represent an important source of expertise in commissioning placements and 
the CSSR, when fully used by local authorities, provides useful intelligence to both 
commissioners and providers. 
 

6.2.6 Issues & Recommendations 
 

• Increased numbers of children looked after regionally and nationally are making it 
harder to place children 

• There is considerable uncertainty in the market with the commitment to eliminate 
‘for profit’ provision and the impact of the pandemic 

• The ultimate constraint is recruiting sufficient foster carers with the skills and 
motivation to care for children and young people who have typically experienced 
significant trauma and adversity 

• Growing in-house capacity can help address these challenges. Recruitment 
campaigns alone are often ineffective and have low conversion rates. Reviewing 
and, where necessary enhancing, the total offer to foster carers is more likely to 
succeed. Non-financial elements like out of hours support and training are 
particularly important. The Mockingbird model, which groups carers together into 
constellations providing mutual support is worth exploring 

• Alongside growing in-house capacity, engagement with IFA providers offering 
placements in West Wales is crucial, both to begin planning for the likely transition 
to a not-for-profit model, and to make the most of local capacity for West Wales 
children. Different commissioning models – such as “soft” block contracts and 
stronger partnerships will be needed, otherwise IFAs will have little incentive to 
tailor their offer to local requirements. 

• Investment in preventative, respite and edge of care services can help reduce the 
need for children to be looked after away from their families. There is good 
practice in the region to share and build upon. 

 
  

Tudalen 230

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   30 

6.3 Adoption Services 

Adoption provides permanent families for children who cannot safely live with their birth 
families. It is a vital service with lifelong impact but one which is only needed by a small 
number of children. Since 2014 adoption services in Wales have been provided on a 
regional basis, including by Adoption Mid and West Wales (which includes Powys), with 
support from the National Adoption Service (NAS) and in partnership with local 
authorities and voluntary adoption agencies.  There is no independent sector 
involvement so there is not really a market for adoption services in the same way that 
there is a market for other sectors e.g. residential care. However, the availability and 
quality of adoption services does affect demand for other children looked after services, 
and vice versa. 
 

6.3.1 Sufficiency 
At any one time the number of children going through the adoption process in West 
Wales is small. As at March 2021 there were less than 20 children placed for adoption 
by the three West Wales counties (national data does not report the precise number for 
Ceredigion as it less than 5). Since 2016 numbers have fluctuated between around 15 
and 30. 
 
Recruiting sufficient adopters has been a long-term challenge nationally and regionally, 
and it remains difficult to find well matched adoptive carers, especially for older children, 
sibling groups and children with additional needs or disabilities. 
 

6.3.2 Quality & Choice 
Outcomes for children who are adopted are generally positive but the process of 
assessing carers and matching and placing children can be protracted and there is a 
focus on minimising delays. There has been limited progress nationally in reducing the 
time from entry to care to adoption, with the process taking around 800 days on average 
over recent years. In 2021 this increased to 854 days possibly due to the impact of the 
pandemic on timescales. 
 
Commissioners have identified that if a placement cannot be identified in-region, a 
search will be made through Adoption Register Wales. Those adopters may have been 
approved by a Voluntary Adoption Agency, another regional adoption service, or an 
adoption agency in England. The Adopting Together scheme is utilised where children 
have very complex needs. 
 
There is increasing recognition that adoptive families need consistent and ongoing 
support. The IPC recently published an evaluation of the Welsh National Adoption 
Support Framework, which was introduced in 2017 to address gaps in support. This 
identified significant progress but also support gaps including for older children with 
more complex needs, including those who are in transition to adulthood. 
 

6.3.3 Trends 
The long-term trend has been a reduction in the average age of children adopted in 
Wales, from 61 months in 2003, to 37 months in 2021. This probably reflects more 
timely decision making and increased use of concurrent planning in care proceedings. 
Most children adopted in Wales were aged between 1 and 4 years (84%). 

Tudalen 231

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   31 

 
The pandemic has had a significant impact on adoption services. Nationally, there was 
an increase of 23% in the number of initial enquiries, and 20% in adopter assessments 
starting, possibly reflecting the upsurge in altruism and volunteering seen during the 
pandemic, and the opportunity for people to reassess their priorities and lifestyles. 
However, the practicalities of completing assessments amidst Covid restrictions meant 
that fewer adopters were approved, with a decrease of 8% nationally. Whether the 
increased interest in adoption will be sustained is very uncertain. 
 
The pandemic is also likely to have a detrimental impact on the emotional and mental 
well-being of children and young people. This could potentially exacerbate existing 
trends of children exhibiting more complex needs, often due to mental health problems. 
The IPC evaluation mentioned above found that adopted children had much greater 
difficulties, as measured by the Strengths and Difficulties Questionnaire (SDQ), 
than a representative sample of British children. 
 

6.3.4 Challenges & Opportunities 
The fundamental challenge remains recruiting a sufficient pool of adoptive families to 
ensure that children can be well matched, and that their individual needs, including for 
many the opportunity to grow up in a Welsh speaking family can be met. 
 
In this context the pandemic presents both opportunities and challenges. More people 
may be attracted to adopt in a world of increasingly flexible work styles, however so 
long as the pandemic continues there may be challenges and delays to assessment 
processes. 
 

6.3.5 Impact of Commissioning 
The development of regional services has ensured that specialist skills are available to 
authorities which would otherwise be working with only a handful of children requiring 
adoption at any one time. They also help ensure consistency and quality in assessment 
and matching. 
 

6.3.6 Issues & Recommendations 
 

• Enhancing support to adoptive families will be beneficial to children and also 
reduce the risk of breakdowns of adoptive placements. It may also be the best 
way to promote recruitment of adopters as, like fostering, positive ‘word of mouth’ 
is by far the most effective recruiting tool. 

• West Wales should consider the recommendations from the national evaluation of 
adoption support, namely: 

• All adopted children to have the right kind of support and attention in schools 
or colleges, where they often struggle, often more so than at home. 

• Consistency of access for families to valued forms of targeted support across 
all regions and / or support agencies, particularly that which can provide 
effective ‘early stage’ therapeutic or psychological support before families 
reach a crisis, also pro-active advice about contact with birth families and 
high-quality therapeutic life story work. 

Tudalen 232

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   32 

• Greater overall access to targeted and specialist support where it is needed by 
adoptive families across Wales, including for older children or young people 
with complex needs, and for those children who may have neuro-
developmental conditions requiring further exploration and support. 

 
  

Tudalen 233

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   33 

6.4 Secure Accommodation 

Secure accommodation is an extremely specialist provision, the use of which is rightly 
governed by a tight legal framework to ensure that children are only placed in locked 
environments when absolutely essential and for as short a period as possible. Secure 
accommodation for a child’s welfare, as opposed to in criminal proceedings, can only be 
used, with the necessary court authorisation, to ensure the safety of the chid or others. 
 

6.4.1 Sufficiency 
There is only one children’s secure unit in Wales: the Hillside Secure Children’s Home 
in Neath which has a maximum of 22 places. Places at Hillside are shared between the 
Youth Justice Board, for placements due to offending, and Welsh local authorities for 
welfare purposes. West Wales typically only needs one or two secure placement a year, 
and in some years none. 
 
Because there are so few secure units (there are also few in England), they tend to be 
used nationally and it can be difficult to find a place when they are required. This is a 
national commissioning issue and not something that can appropriately be addressed at 
a regional level. 
 
By their nature secure placements will usually be distant from the child’s home, and will 
always be, if there are no vacancies in the Neath secure home. 
 

6.4.2 Quality and Choice 
The Hillside Secure Children’s home is inspected by Care Inspectorate Wales and 
Estyn for the on-site education provision. 
 
Given that there is only one provision of this type there is clearly a lack of choice of 
provision and if there were any quality concerns the only alternatives are in England. 
This obviously presents a risk at the national level should any issues arise at Hillside or 
places become unavailable for any reason. 
 
The fact that the unit is relatively close to the region is beneficial. 
 

6.4.3 Trends 
The number of children requiring secure accommodation is low and that can be 
expected to continue. 
 

6.4.4 Challenges & Opportunities 
It is very difficult to ensure that there is just sufficient of this type of provision as needed 
at any one time, given that the number of children requiring it is so low. Secure 
accommodation is costly and difficult to provide and recruiting and retaining skilled staff 
willing to work in a challenging environment is difficult. 
 
For Wales, having only one unit presents significant risks, and means that places will 
usually be far from home and sometimes not available in Wales when children need 
them. 
 

Tudalen 234

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   34 

6.4.5 Impact of Commissioning 
The commissioning of secure accommodation is a national responsibility. 
 

6.4.6 Issues & Recommendations 
 

• On the rare occasions when a West Wales child needs secure accommodation it 
may not be available in Wales as there is only one secure unit. 

• Welsh Government should be alerted if there are concerns about the sufficiency of 
secure accommodation. 

 
  

Tudalen 235

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   35 

6.5 Residential Family Centres 

Residential family centres are another extremely specialist service which is rarely 
required by local authorities in West Wales. They provide assessments and therapeutic 
interventions for families, usually in the context of care proceedings where it is thought 
there are significant risks to the child or children, requiring very close monitoring. 
 

6.5.1 Sufficiency 
There are only two registered residential family centres in the whole of Wales, one of 
which recently reopened after a closure. Neither is in West Wales. 
 
Placements in residential family centres are rarely required but there are occasional 
placements by West Wales authorities, including one recently. In general, parent and 
child foster placements are often preferred and can provide an assessment in a more 
‘natural setting’. However, parent and child placements are scarce and are one of the 
priorities identified in the draft Mid and West Wales MPS for children’s residential care 
and fostering. 
 

6.5.2 Quality and choice 
With only two centres nationally there is obviously little choice, and any placements will 
always be out of region. 
 

6.5.3 Trends 
Nationally there has been a shift away from residential assessment models towards 
parent and child fostering. This is reflected in the limited amount of provision. The use of 
residential family centres depends to a great extent on the perceptions of the courts 
about their value. 
 

6.5.4 Challenges & Opportunities 
It is challenging to commission rarely used but important services like residential family 
centres. The fact that there are only two such centres in Wales means that places may 
not be available when they are needed. 
 
Parent and child fostering can provide an alternative, although it is important to 
recognise that it is a different service and may not be appropriate. Commissioning 
regional parent and child foster provision or developing it in-house can mitigate risks 
and provide more local and cost-effective alternatives. 
 

6.5.5 Impact of Commissioning 
Spot purchasing occasional places when they are needed avoids committing resources 
to provision that may not be needed. However, it does mean that costs are likely to be 
high when they are required, and placements will be distant and possibly outside Wales. 
 
  

Tudalen 236

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   36 

6.5.6 Issues & Recommendations 
 

• There is insufficient need for residential family placements to justify commissioning 
dedicated regional provision. 

• Increasing regional parent and child fostering capacity, either in house or 
commissioned from an IFA will mean residential assessments are even rarer, and 
would provide local capacity over which commissioners have significantly more 
influence in terms of cost and quality. 

 
  

Tudalen 237

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   37 

6.6 Children’s Advocacy Services 

Advocacy means promoting the views, wishes and feelings of an individual to ensure 
that they are fully taken into account and acted upon during decision making processes.  
There is a wide spectrum of formal and informal advocacy covering all types of needs 
and age groups, however only very specific aspects of advocacy are regulated: namely 
advocacy for children who need care and support or are looked after. 
 

6.6.1 Sufficiency 
Concerns about the availability and consistency of advocacy for children led to the 
introduction of a national approach to statutory advocacy services in 2017. Services are 
commissioned across Mid and West Wales (on the same footprint as Safeguarding 
Boards) but within a national framework including the service specification, national 
standards and an ‘active offer’ designed to ensure that children are routinely offered 
advocacy when they are subject to a child protection conference or enter care. In West 
Wales the service is commissioned on a Mid and West Wales basis, (including Powys), 
and provided by TGP Cymru, a children’s rights charity. Eligible children who take up 
the offer are allocated an independent professional advocate. A national helpline – 
Meic- is available for children and young people who do not qualify for statutory 
independent advocacy. 
 
The current contract term is coming to an end and a procurement process has been 
completed for the new contract to begin from April 2022. 
 
Intelligence from commissioners suggests that the active offer is working well and 
advocacy is available for all those children who need it. A gap has been identified for 
advocacy for parents, which is non-statutory, and a pilot to address this is being 
considered in Pembrokeshire. 
 
In terms of the wider advocacy offer across Mid and West Wales,  an adult  
Independent Professional Advocacy (IPA) service has just been regionally 
commissioned with a view to developing  advocacy provision across the spectrum of 
advocacy and is a collaboration of advocacy providers working  together to a co-
produced model. 
 

6.6.2 Quality and choice 
Nationally there are only two registered providers of children’s advocacy, Tros Gynnal 
Plant (TGP Cymru) and the National Youth advocacy Service (NYAS).  
 
With only two registered providers and a small number of purchasers the market for 
children’s independent advocacy is obviously small. This can be mitigated to an extent 
by building advocacy capacity more generally across West Wales. 
 
A user survey conducted by TGP during the pandemic gave very positive feedback from 
young people, with 99% saying they found working with TGP Cymru helpful all or most 
of the time. The survey was conducted across Wales but 40 of the 95 respondents were 
from Mid and West Wales. 
 
Commissioners in West Wales report consistently positive feedback from children and 
young people who receive advocacy. 

Tudalen 238

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   38 

 

6.6.3 Trends 
Data published by Stats Wales suggests that the total number of children receiving care 
and support reduced slightly between 2018 and 2020 (from 1380 to 1285). However, as 
noted above the number of children looked after increased over the same period. These 
trends influence the potential demand for regulated advocacy services, but actual 
demand is driven more by awareness of the service and the extent to which children 
and young people exercise their right to an independent advocate. 
 

6.6.4 Challenges & Opportunities 
The new contract has provided an opportunity to review the reporting arrangements with 
a view to maximising the learning from advocacy without compromising confidentiality. 
Sharper reporting will provide better insights for commissioners into the views of 
children and young people and help identify themes for improvement. 
 

6.6.5 Impact of Commissioning 
The national approach brings greater consistency in statutory advocacy for children and 
young people across Wales. However, with only two registered providers there is limited 
choice for commissioners and risks if either of the providers were in difficulties for any 
reason. 
 

6.6.6 Issues & Recommendations 
 

• Ensure that the service continues to be promoted through the active offer. 

• Build capacity in wider advocacy services across West Wales to strengthen the 
voices of user and carers and ensure a diverse pool of skilled advocates. 

• Consider piloting advocacy for parents to complement the statutory offer. 

• Make the most of learning from advocacy through streamlined reporting 
processes. 

 
  

Tudalen 239

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   39 

6.7 Adult Placement Services 

Adult Placement schemes, now more commonly termed Shared Lives, involve carers 
providing care to adults in the carers own home, either on a long term, respite or day 
basis. Shared Lives offers people the opportunity to live as part of a household in the 
community, helping them to be as independent as possible whilst maintaining their links 
to family, community and friends. 
 

6.7.1 Sufficiency 
There is a single West Wales Shared Lives scheme covering the whole region. The 
services is jointly funded by Carmarthenshire, Ceredigion and Pembrokeshire and 
hosted by Carmarthenshire.  
 
An independent review of the service was undertaken by Shared Lives Plus in 2019. At 
the time the West Wales scheme provided care for 142 individuals, with 91 people 
placed in live-in Shared Lives arrangements and 51 receiving short breaks services 
only. There were 78 Shared Lives Carers in 58 households. Although the scheme is 
open to people with a range of needs, the vast majority of people placed (129/142) had 
learning disabilities. Coverage of the scheme was uneven across the region with 109 of 
the people supported being from Carmarthenshire (76%). 
 
Based on benchmarking with other schemes, the review identified scope to significantly 
scale up Shared Lives and improve coverage across Pembrokeshire and Ceredigion. In 
the best performing area in the UK 2.2% of the adult social care population used shared 
lives, and 9.4% of the local learning disability population, compared to 0.97% and 5.6% 
respectively in West Wales. The proportion of people with learning disabilities supported 
in West Wales varied from 2.2% in Ceredigion to 7.6% in Carmarthenshire. 
 
The West Wales Shared Lives Development Plan 2019-2022 sets out targets to expand 
the service with an extra 22 placements in Carmarthenshire, 31 in Ceredigion and 29 in 
Pembrokeshire by 2025. 
 

6.7.2 Quality and choice 
The review found that West Wales Shared Lives “delivers significant annual savings, 
whilst also ensuring fantastic outcomes for people using the service”. 
 
Shared Lives has the potential to enable more people to continue to live in their own 
communities, and, so long as there is a sufficient pool of carers, to better match 
individual needs and preferences than supported living or residential care. The model is 
well suited to the region given the challenges of providing care and recruiting staff in 
rural areas. 
 

6.7.3 Trends 
Shared Lives arrangements have been growing rapidly nationally and schemes have 
been diversifying to meet a wider range of needs. According to the annual State of the 
Nation Shared Lives Report, shared lives placements grew by 42% between 2015 and 
2020. Schemes now cater for a wide range of needs including mental health, dementia, 
parent and child arrangements and care leavers and there have been innovative pilots 

Tudalen 240

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   40 

of using shared lives in hospital discharge pathways. The number of people with 
dementia supported by Shared Lives more than doubled between 2018/19 and 2019/20. 
 
The review of West Wales Shared Lives recommended that the scheme diversify as 
well as scale up, with potential to provide for mental ill-health, older people, care 
leavers, disabled adults and family carers wanting short breaks, hospital discharge, 
dementia care, and people who have been residing in residential care or long-term 
assessment and treatment units. 
 

6.7.4 Challenges & Opportunities 
The pandemic has brought challenges to assessing carers and making new 
introductions and placements. These have slowed implementation of the Development 
Plan. 
 
In addition to demonstrating scope to expand and diversify the service, the review also 
highlighted that West Wales has good potential for recruiting carers. A demographic 
analysis looked at household characteristics and compared these with the typical profile 
of Shared lives carers. This found that 48 of the 156 wards in the region have a higher-
than-average number of residents with spare rooms and 43 of these wards have people 
with the required characteristics to be a Shared Lives carer  
 
The Shared Lives service could be complemented by other community housing and co-
housing models. For example, Homeshare involves a person, typically with lower-level 
support needs, letting a room at a subsidised rate in return for a few hours of support 
and companionship a week. Like Shared Lives this is a sustainable approach which 
relies on people’s willingness to support one another and makes best use of available 
housing space. Welsh Government are funding three pilot Homeshare schemes for 
which there is an opportunity to express an interest. Both Shared Lives and Homeshare 
add significant social value to communities.  
 
Commissioners reported that early regional discussions were held to consider the 
opportunity to extend the Shared lives offer to support young people in transition from 
children services who were in foster placements. 
 

6.7.5 Impact of Commissioning 
West Wales has a long established and successful Shared Lives scheme which 
provides an excellent basis for growth. The business case for Shared Lives is very 
strong with significant savings against other types of placements. For example, the 
review estimated that growing the scheme for people with learning disabilities so that 
10% of people were supported via Shared Lives could bring savings of £1.1 million per 
year across the region.  
 
The Service Development Plan provides a good basis for growing the service and 
addressing the current deficit of carers in Ceredigion and Pembrokeshire. 
 
  

Tudalen 241

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   41 

6.7.6 Issues & Recommendations 
 

• Shared Lives is an excellent fit with the challenges and opportunities faced by 
West Wales. 

• The Development Plan should be revisited, and additional resources invested if 
necessary to overcome any delays caused by the pandemic. 

• Consider making an expression of interest for a pilot Homeshare scheme to 
complement an expanded and diversified Shared Lives service. 

 
  

Tudalen 242

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   42 

6.8 Care Homes for working Aged Adults 

There is a single category of registration for care homes whatever age group they 
primarily cater for, however the range of needs met by care homes is so wide that for 
the purposes of assessing stability, separate stability assessments have been made for 
three sectors of the market: children, working aged adults and older people.  
 
Working aged adults are defined as people aged 18-64 and have a variety of needs 
including learning disabilities, mental health needs, sensory impairments, neurological 
conditions, physical disabilities, dementia, and substance use challenges.  The 
overwhelming majority of working aged adults with such needs live in their communities, 
often supported by informal carers and receiving a range of support services, such as 
supported housing, day services, equipment, and domiciliary care. However, a small 
number of people with more significant or complex needs live in residential care. 
 

6.8.1 Sufficiency 
There is substantial capacity in care homes which provide care for working aged adults 
in West Wales but, as with children’s homes, many places are purchased by authorities 
outside the region and people are often placed out of county. 
 
Data on care home capacity for working aged adults is hard to obtain because of 
changes in the way it is collected nationally. Until 2018 Care Inspectorate Wales 
published data for care homes for working aged adults separately, but more recent data 
is not disaggregated.  
 
Triangulating data provided by the counties for the MSR, national data and information 
from the in-depth study of care homes for older people, there are around 85 homes 
providing care for working aged adults with a total of around 800 beds across the 
region. This compares to a total of 429 working aged adults placed by the West Wales 
authorities as at March 2021, of whom 22 were in homes with nursing. The majority of 
working aged adults paced in residential care had Learning Disabilities (237/429) with 
people with mental health needs being the next largest group (131/429). Together these 
two groups accounted for over 85% of working aged adults in care homes, and 81% of 
the gross spend on residential care for working aged adults. 
 
Few care homes for working aged adults provide nursing care and almost all are in the 
independent sector. Over 95% of the total gross local authority spend on residential or 
nursing care in West Wales is with the independent sector and there is no significant 
self-funder market. 
 
Despite a long term national and regional drive to shift towards community-based 
provision, the number of working aged adults placed in care homes has increased 
slightly since 2018 (up from 400 to 429 or 7%). Although this is well below the maximum 
regional capacity, around 40% of placements for working aged adults are out of county 
(171 at March 2021, with little change over the last four years). Ceredigion has by far 
the highest proportion of out of county placements, reflecting a lack of provision in the 
area, but even in Pembrokeshire and Carmarthenshire out of county placements are 
common (30% in Pembrokeshire and 28% in Carmarthenshire). 
 
Responses to the provider survey indicate that a key reason for this is that many places 
are purchased by authorities outside the region. Thirteen care homes for working aged 

Tudalen 243

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   43 

adults, including one nursing home responded to the survey. Three providers reported 
places purchased by Welsh local authorities outside West Wales, one by another Welsh 
Health Board and two had places purchased by English local authorities. 
 
Commissioners believe that that some placements purchased by local authorities from 
outside the region were being secured through higher rates than those being paid by 
West Wales councils and the Health Board.  There is no national or local data to fully 
test this assumption but feedback from providers indicates that securing the highest 
rates was a priority. 
 
The high proportion of out of county placements may also indicate a mismatch between 
the type of provision available locally and the needs of people who need to be placed. 
Commissioners reported difficulty in finding appropriate local placements for people with 
more complex needs such as multiple conditions, behaviour which challenges and 
acquired brain injury. 
 
For West Wales as a whole, there is sufficient capacity on paper, but in practice much 
of this is not available when a placement is needed, and it is difficult to meet individual 
needs. There is a lack of provision in Ceredigion and as a result most working aged 
adults who need residential care are placed out of county. 
 

6.8.2 Quality & Choice 
Inspection reports indicate that the care provided in many homes is of a high standard 
but there is a lack of systematic information about quality nationally and regionally. 
Better ways to measure and monitor quality which give a strong voice to service users 
and carers are needed. The more distant placements are from people’s communities 
and families the harder it is for them to maintain relationships and for commissioners to 
monitor quality. 
 
The difficulty of finding placements for individuals and the number of out of county 
placements indicate that there is a lack of choice in the market in terms of placements 
being afforded at the prevailing fee rates being paid by the West Wales councils and 
Health Board. Welsh speakers may also not have their needs well met. 
 

6.8.3 Trends 
The working aged population of West Wales is projected to fall over the coming 
decades. Other things being equal, this should reduce the demand for residential and 
nursing care for younger adults. However, there are some contrary trends, including the 
welcome fact that life expectancy for people with many disabilities is improving. There is 
also evidence that the prevalence of some conditions such as mental health problems 
and autism has been increasing over the long-term, and the pandemic may exacerbate 
this in relation to mental health. 
 
There has been a long-term strategy to reduce the need for people to live in residential 
care and to increase alternatives such as supported housing and shared lives. The 
recent assessment of the need for supported housing by Housing LIN was predicated 
on significant reductions in people placed in residential care or in hospital settings over 
the next two decades. This is a reasonable assumption, but the data suggests that 
despite a growth in supported housing options the number people in residential care 
has increased slightly in recent years.  It is noted that the region has developed an 

Tudalen 244

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   44 

Market Position Statement for Learning Disabilities (this has not been published), which 
described a strategic objective of reducing residential provision and increasing 
alternative accommodation to support independence. 
 
There has been a recent increase in the number of younger adults in nursing care, 
albeit from a low base, up from 16 at March 2020 to 22 at March 2021. The majority of 
this increase is in people with ‘other needs’ (i.e., neither Learning Disability, mental 
health, physical disability or sensory impairment). This includes conditions like acquired 
brain injury and early onset dementia. This trend is reflected in a significant increase in 
gross spend on nursing care for younger adults in the Revenue Outturn data, from £9.6 
million in 2018/20 to £12 million in 2020/21 across all categories of need (25.7%). 
 

6.8.4 Challenges & Opportunities 
It is very challenging to commission locally accessible services for a diverse range of 
individual needs. The total spend on care homes for younger adults is however 
substantial and growing, (over £50 million gross local authority spend in 2020/21) 
suggesting that there is an opportunity to achieve a better match between need and 
provision through a more strategic approach to commissioning locally and regionally.  
 
The issue of local provision being purchased by authorities outside the region could be 
addressed through either growing alternatives, including in-house provision, or 
engaging with the market in a different way, with more use of regional or local block 
contracts. These options will however require careful consideration and business case 
analysis to understand costs.   
 
The workforce challenges felt across social care are shared by working age adults care 
homes and are particularly acute in rural areas. This was confirmed by providers in the 
survey who were also concerned about cost pressures, fee levels and registration 
requirements. 
 
The pandemic has had a major impact on care homes of all types, although homes for 
working age adults have seen less of a dip in occupancy than the older people’s sector. 
Five of the 13 providers who responded to the survey had 100% occupancy, and most 
were at 85% or higher. But whilst occupancy may not be a major concern for most 
providers, the other challenges of the pandemic are shared with other social care 
services: infection control, increased isolation for residents, recruitment, inflation and 
decreased mental wellbeing of residents and staff. 
 
The long-term impact of the pandemic is very uncertain but the effect on mental and 
emotional wellbeing may add to the complexity of needs of working age adults requiring 
support.   
 

6.8.5 Impact of Commissioning 
There is a National Collaborative Framework for Adults (18+ years) in Mental Health 
and Learning Disabilities care homes & care homes with nursing for NHS and Local 
authorities in Wales (‘Care Home Framework’)15. However, feedback from 
commissioners is that use of the framework is inconsistent across the region, meaning 
that opportunities to secure local provision are not always taken. 

 
15 Annual Position Statement 2019/20 

Tudalen 245

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk
https://cwmtafmorgannwg.wales/Docs/Quality,%20Safety%20and%20Risk%20Committee/12%20JULY%2014%202020/4.8.1%20Appendix%201%20QAIS%20APS%20-%20QSC%2014%20July%202020.pdf


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   45 

 
Because of the diversity of needs amongst working age adults’ ‘spot’ purchasing is an 
attractive model. However, the current market conditions are showing the limitations of 
this approach with many people placed out of county and commissioners having limited 
influence over price and quality. Providers do not receive clear or consistent signals 
about the provision which is required and have little incentive to prioritise local 
placements. They also carry the risk of fluctuations in demand and occupancy which 
influences decisions about investment. 
 
There has been good progress in developing alternatives to residential care such as 
supported housing, extra care housing and shared lives. However, this has not been 
fast enough to reduce the total numbers in residential care in recent years. 
 

6.8.6 Issues & Recommendations 
 

• A more strategic approach to commissioning care homes for working age adults is 
needed to increase the availability of local provision and thereby improve 
outcomes for people.  

• This should include further investment to develop and scale up alternative 
community provision, including a diverse range of specialist housing options (as 
referenced in the Housing LIN report). 

• Consideration should also be given to securing dedicated local provision, whether 
in-house, or through contracts (there are many options in between pure spot 
purchasing and rigid block contracts). 

• Commissioners may wish to consider offering any “spare” provision to other West 
Wales councils or offer these more generally via an LATC when not needed 
regionally. It is important that such arrangements take full regard of costs and 
ensure capacity is returned to the host/lead council if required. 

• Consistent use of the National Collaborative Framework can also help secure local 
provision. 

• Commissioning resources and expertise are thinly spread or focused on the higher 
volume higher spend areas such as older people. Investment in dedicated 
resources and projects for working age adults has the potential to return 
substantial improvements in quality and better value for money in the longer term, 
as well as securing capacity. 

• Better data about quality, including the user voice should be a priority 

• The working age adults’ sector should be included in a cross-system approach to 
addressing workforce challenges. 

 
  

Tudalen 246

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   46 

6.9 Domiciliary Care Services 

6.9.1 Sufficiency 
Regulated domiciliary care services are an important part of the social care “fabric” that 
supports local people to maintain their independence in their own homes. These 
services support resilience and well-being and offer alternatives to residential provision, 
as well as reablement support to facilitate expedient and safe transfers from hospitals 
and contribute to reducing emergency hospital admissions. 
 
Domiciliary care services are available to all age groups, but in practice they are 
predominantly focused upon supporting older people with care and support needs. 
Children and working aged adults are generally supported to be independent in their 
own communities through other arrangements - such as supported living and respite 
care- which are calibrated around different needs and expectations of these population 
groups.    
 
The fact that domiciliary care is overwhelming a service for older people is reflected in 
the revenue outturn data. In West Wales 93% of adult spend categorised as domiciliary 
care is on older people, with the remainder spent on working age adults.   There is no 
category for home care for children, reflecting the fact that at home support for children 
with disabilities is limited and would not normally best be described as home care. If 
‘other support for disabled children’ is combined with home care, then spend on older 
people still represents 91% of the total, and that on children 1.4%. 
 
The national picture is similar, in that most domiciliary care is provided to older people 
but the proportion of spend on working age adults is markedly higher than in West 
Wales (22.4% for Wales as a whole compared to just 6.97% in West Wales in 2021).  
This signals that across West Wales, the level of commissioned homecare support for 
working aged adults is below that of other Welsh local authorities, suggesting a gap in 
sufficiency which is only partly explained by lower numbers of working age people in the 
local population. 
 
The draft PNA 2022 reaffirms that older people prefer that their care needs are met in 
their own homes and that the demand for care is increasing, as the region’s population 
ages, with increasing health complexity. The picture of growing demand was also 
reflected in responses from providers to the survey, who generally expect volumes of 
local authority commissioned activity to increase going forwards, although less so for 
self-funders purchasing domiciliary care. 
 
The actual size of the self-funder market is problematic to accurately capture.  There 
are no national data sets that collate this intelligence and local authority systems are 
focused upon commissioned activity only. Research undertaken by the Homecare 
Association estimates that across Wales, 21% of domiciliary care is purchased by self-
funders. 
 
Analysis of activity data over the period April 2020 to September 2021 shows a broadly 
flat picture of activity both in terms of number of people supported by the councils and 
the hours commissioned.  For West Wales as a whole, an average of 2,217 people 
received general domiciliary care each week (i.e. not including reablement or supported 
living), with an average of 25,567 hours per week provided – equivalent to11.5 hours 
per person per week.  

Tudalen 247

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   47 

 
In terms of making judgements on the sufficiency of regulated domiciliary care services 
for older people, there are a number of factors in play which suggest that services are 
being stretched and local older people are not able to readily access services that 
support them to remain independent in their own homes.  Feedback from both 
commissioners and providers and analysis of commissioned domiciliary activity data 
indicate that: 
 

• Providers are handing back contracts as they report they do not have the staffing 
capacity in the right places to take on new referrals. 

• Workforce shortages, including the ability to retain high quality home care staff are 
highlighted by both providers and commissioners as the single most significant risk 
to market sufficiency and stability across the whole care market.   

• Feedback from commissioners indicates that pressures on the domiciliary market 
are most pronounced in Pembrokeshire and Ceredigion. Both counties are reporting 
waiting lists and service hand-backs, although similar issues are also being reported 
in Carmarthenshire.  

• Many providers in the survey commented that they were unable to pay sufficiently to 
compete with other sectors (such as leisure, retail and tourism) posing a risk to the 
stability of their business.  Increasing fees was the second most popular option to 
“improve the stability of their business”  

• However, analysis undertaken by the Homecare Association in 2021, indicates that 
Carmarthenshire and Pembrokeshire are the highest paying councils in Wales and 
are the only two nationally paying above the Homecare Association recommended 
minimum rate of £21.43 per hour, although Ceredigion was reported to be paying 
below the recommended minimum rate16. 

• All three councils are reporting growing waiting lists since summer 2021 (see 
technical appendix). 

• Commissioners are reporting the increasing use of residential care to support 
individuals being discharged from hospital and awaiting a domiciliary care package 
signalling shortages in the market. 

• Commissioners are reporting that they are actively reviewing domiciliary care 
packages to consider reducing the number of hours provided where appropriate and 
seeking greater support from family carers as a substitute and accessing wider 
preventative community support options.  This is being reflected in activity data for 
2021 (see technical document), which shows the number of hours being 
commissioned either remaining flat or reducing despite indicators of increased 
demand.  

 
These circumstances are largely aligned to the consequences of two key factors, firstly 
the on-going pandemic and secondly the ongoing public sector budget pressures which 
have necessitated savings over a prolonged period. 
 
The overall readout is that the stability of the domiciliary care market in the region is 
fragile and risks sufficiency in meeting demand and expectations of local people. 
 

 
16 The Homecare Deficit 2021, Home Care Association, p125 

Tudalen 248

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   48 

6.9.2 Quality and Choice 
Currently Care Inspectorate Wales (CIW) is not publishing ratings of its inspections 
including those for regulated domiciliary services - but rather are using a “silent system” 
whereby the rating is only available to the regulator. This arrangement does not assist 
individuals in exercising choice based upon professional evaluations of quality. Under 
the terms of the Regulation and Inspection of Social Care (Wales) Act 2016, the 
intention has been for a ratings system to be introduced from 2021, but this was 
postponed due to the pandemic. 
 
CIW data from 2020 shows that the proportion of registered domiciliary care workers 
who were fluent in Welsh across the region was 15.2% which is below the regional 
average of fluent Welsh Speakers (37% of the population in 2011) and the gap is more 
marked in Pembrokeshire where only 5.9% of this workforce were fluent Welsh 
speakers. 
 
The rurality of the region and the relatively low number of providers per head suggests 
that in some parts of West Wales, local people have a more limited choice between 
domiciliary providers.  This seems to be more pronounced in Pembrokeshire and 
Ceredigion. 
 

6.9.3 Trends 
Whilst the long-term consequences of the pandemic remain uncharted, some clear 
trends are emerging which will impact upon the sufficiency and stability of the 
domiciliary care market going forwards- namely: 
 

• Spend on commissioned domiciliary care by all three counties has increased over 
the course of the pandemic but volumes of commissioned hours have remained 
relatively flat. At the same time the proportion of in-house delivered hours have 
increased signalling potentially higher costs of in-house services (suggested linked 
to better T&Cs for staff). 

• The draft PNA 2022 confirms that local people increasingly want care delivered and 
accessed in their own home as an alternative to residential care.   

• Feedback from commissioners and providers suggest that the pandemic has 
negatively impacted people’s views on residential care. People are managing at 
home for longer on their own and are much more resistant to go into formal care 
settings because of COVID restrictions and concerns.   

• Both providers and commissioners are reporting increasing levels of complexity 
amongst people receiving domiciliary care. This is having a significant impact upon 
provider’s capacity to respond given widespread workforce shortages across the 
sector. 

• Providers are reporting increased proportions of local authority purchased hours of 
domiciliary care compared to hours purchased by self-funders.  Feedback indicates 
that self-funders have more discretion about accessing care and support and are 
choosing not to use domiciliary (or even residential) care due to concerns about the 
pandemic. Around 50% of providers responding to the provider survey indicated that 
volumes of hours purchased by self-funders reduced over the course of 2020/21. 

• Feedback from commissioners indicate that there an opportunity to offer new models 
of domiciliary care to self-funders through the expansion of micro-enterprises. Many 
of these services are not regulated but offer support to individuals to maintain their 

Tudalen 249

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   49 

independence. Pembrokeshire is investing into this market and has supported the 
introduction of 30 micro-enterprises to the area. 

• Only 15% of providers responding to the provider survey expected volumes of self-
funder activity to significantly increase over the next 12 months (signalling a small 
return in market confidence), but 40% did expect local authority and Health Board 
volumes to increase over the same period. 

• However, this provider survey was undertaken in late 2021 ahead of Omicron variant 
and it remains uncertain as to when and whether activity levels, particularly amongst 
self-funders will return to pre-pandemic levels.  

• County councils have increased their share of provision in the domiciliary care 
market over the last 3 years.  Most notably, the exit of a major provider in 2021 
signalled a significant shift towards in-house provision as councils responded to 
ensuring continuity of care as part of their market duties.   

• However, the level of in-house provision is markedly different between the three 
county councils - with limited in-house provision reported in Ceredigion in terms of 
long- term domiciliary care provision; Pembrokeshire has increased its share of this 
market segment from 0% to 17% over the last 3 years; and Carmarthenshire is 
reporting that they are now covering over 50% of this market in terms of hours 
purchased. 

• In terms of reablement (services which are short term in nature to generally assist 
individuals in regaining independence when being transferred from hospital), it is 
noted that these are all delivered in-house across the region, with Pembrokeshire 
moving all its reablement provision in-house in 2019/20 as part of its strategic intent 
to develop intermediate care services. 

 

6.9.4 Challenges and Opportunities 

• Demand for domiciliary care is likely to grow in the long term due to the aging 
population and the increasing numbers of people with dementia and other complex 
needs.  

• The pandemic may amplify this as people are postponing moving into residential 
care. This will reinforce the existing trend towards greater complexity in needs of 
people supported in the community. 

• Delivering domiciliary care is more challenging and expensive in rural areas and this 
is a disincentive for new or existing providers to increase provision (for example, 
some providers noted that travel time between visits were not paid - and there is a 
need to ensure consistency across the region in meeting travel and additional costs). 

• Recruitment and retention have become increasingly challenging, partly due to the 
pandemic, but also reflecting the competition for staff with other sectors. This is likely 
to continue as the working age population is projected to fall. 

• The challenges are already manifesting themselves in waiting lists, market exits and 
contract hand-backs. This has encouraged a shift towards in-house provision over 
the last three years in a bid to secure provision. This shift presents challenges, but 
also opportunities for both commissioners and providers to proactively re-shape 
provision and develop new models. 

• There are opportunities to strengthen partnerships with community support 
networks, which have flourished during the pandemic, and also to scale-up hub and 
spoke models of provision, including residential homes and health services, 
alongside home care and third sector provision. 

 

Tudalen 250

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   50 

6.9.5 Impact of Commissioning 
Nationally there is concern that margins for home care providers are very tight and that 
commissioning models, such as dynamic purchasing systems, have encouraged 
providers to compete on price rather than quality in ‘a race to the bottom’. The rates 
paid by West Wales authorities are above average, but this may not be sufficient to 
offset the challenges of rurality and workforce. 
 
Commissioners have acted quickly to bring services in-house and respond to market 
exits and pressures. However, a more proactive approach will be needed to rebalance 
the market longer term, to ensure a sustainable market with a good mix of provision. 
There is considerable scope to enhance partnership and innovation with commissioners 
and providers working together to develop more effective models of reablement and 
make better use of technology. 
 

6.9.6 Issues and Recommendations 
 

• The domiciliary care market is critical to helping people to live independently and 
reduce / delay the need for acute health services and residential care. However, it 
is also the sector under perhaps the greatest pressure risking both stability and 
sufficiency of supply. 

• Commissioners and providers need to collaborate to address significant workforce 
issues across the sector. 

• Ongoing engagement with providers is also needed to develop new models and 
promote innovation. 

• The region should develop a strategic approach to the market, moving beyond the 
reactive emergency measures which have increasingly been required during the 
pandemic.  

• Fee methodologies should be reviewed to address issues relating to costs (such 
as national commitment to the Real Living Wage) and seeking greater consistency 
across the region. It is noted that Carmarthenshire and Pembrokeshire have 
included the Homecare Association unit cost models in their current tenders for 
2022, and both counties are currently paying above the Homecare Association 
recommended minimum rate - whereas Ceredigion is reported to be paying below 
this recommended rate. 

• Further exploration of investing into community preventative and early intervention 
solutions (to include availability of suitable accommodation) to offset demand and 
increasing levels of complexity is encouraged. For example, there is potential to 
expand upon Pembrokeshire approach to supporting “micro- enterprises” in 
providing community based early intervention and preventative services. 

 
  

Tudalen 251

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   51 

6.10 Care Homes for Older People 

6.10.1 Sufficiency 
The overall number of care homes and beds for older people in West Wales has 
changed little over the last five years.  
 
The vast majority of care homes in West Wales are in the independent sector. Each 
county has some in-house provision, with Ceredigion having proportionately most and 
Pembrokeshire least, but in all three counties there are few third sector homes. 
 
Most homes in West Wales are owned by small or medium sized businesses and there 
is little provision by large national businesses. This has strengths in terms of long-term 
commitment to local communities but does mean that businesses may lack access to 
capital for remodelling existing services or investing in new facilities 
 
Although there has been little change in the number of homes or their ownership over 
the past five years there has been a change in the type of provision, with a modest 
decrease in the number of nursing home beds and an increase in the number of 
‘elderly, mentally infirm’ or EMI beds in residential care homes without nursing. To an 
extent these trends align with the drive to enable people to live in their homes for longer 
which means that people move to residential care at older ages and with multi 
morbidities. 
  
However, the decline in nursing beds runs counter to this and means that there may 
already not be sufficient care with nursing to meet the needs of people, especially those 
with more complex needs, such as behaviour that challenges associated with dementia, 
who are frequently placed out of county or out of region. 
 
The on-going pandemic has had a severe impact on providers with subdued demand, 
increased costs and exacerbated recruitment and retention difficulties. Support from 
Welsh Government and commissioners regionally has mitigated this to a significant 
extent, but as financial support tapers away (The Welsh Government Hardship Fund 
ends in March 2022) the outlook for providers is very uncertain. This is a further brake 
on investment and means there is likely to be a greater shortfall in the more specialist 
provision needed in future. 
 
There is currently sufficient general residential provision to meet demand however this 
could change over the next 6-12 months if the pressures on providers lead to a rapid 
increase in the number of exits from the market as hardship funding ends. 
 

6.10.2 Quality & Choice 
Care Inspectorate Wales does not have a system for grading care homes. This makes it 
harder to benchmark quality against other areas or for individuals and their families to 
choose care with confidence. However, the available evidence suggests that the quality 
of care provided by homes in West Wales is generally good. Occasionally however 
significant concerns are identified through monitoring or following inspections. There is 
a regional protocol in place to identify, address, and if necessary, escalate concerns. 
 
There is a lack of data about quality from the user’s point of view. This is a challenging 
area given the needs of residents but there is scope for improvement.  
 

Tudalen 252

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   52 

Many care homes in West Wales are converted buildings and there is a need for 
significant investment both to improve existing provision and provide the sort of modern 
purpose-built facilities that people requiring care increasingly prefer. (It is noted that the 
Regulation and Inspection of Social Care (Wales) Act requires increased physical 
standards for new build care homes and extensions, with every room requiring an 
ensuite including a shower as well as increased space requirements). Providers have 
indicated that  the opportunity to invest is challenging  resulting in a lack of choice –and 
people may not be able to find care of the quality they want, or the type they need, close 
to home or family. 
 
Care homes provide significant social value through the important contribution that they 
make to well-being and the overall functioning of the health and social care system. 
They are also significant employers and the fact that most current providers are West 
Wales businesses helps keep expenditure and revenues within the local economy.  
 
A 2016 study estimated the total the total direct, indirect, and induced value of the adult 
social care sector in Wales £2.2 billion. The total GVA of the sector (the direct value) 
was estimated at £1.1 billion with over a quarter - £328 million - in residential care.17 
 
There is scope to increase the social value delivered by encouraging more third sector 
provision and promoting collaboration between care homes, other providers, and the 
communities in which they operate. A residential care home could partner with local 
community networks and domiciliary care providers for example.  Pembrokeshire is the 
early stages of testing such an approach, partnering an independent residential care 
home with domiciliary care and day care services to offer support to people in the 
community. This approach includes creating flexible care roles allowing for staff to work 
in different settings – which adds to job satisfaction and potentially improving staff 
retention and recruitment levels. 
 

6.10.3 Trends 
The market has been relatively stable with few entries or exits but, once hardship 
funding ends in March 2022, providers whose occupancy has not fully recovered may 
struggle to continue (as reflected in the provider survey). This is most likely to apply to 
older homes in need of investment offering general residential care. 
 
If this happened gradually alongside an increase in more specialist provision this would 
better match demand, but the risk is that the loss of provision happens too quickly with 
insufficient investment in replacement provision. 
 
There are significant capital costs in entering the care market and regulatory standards 
to meet, but the provider survey indicated that currently the need to recruit and retain 
suitably skilled staff, especially registered nurses is perhaps the biggest barrier to entry. 
 
The trend towards increased acuity of needs of residents is marked. One provider 
interviewed was expanding nursing care and had established a home care business 
during the pandemic, but this was an exception. Many providers reported they were 
unable to convert to nursing care either because of the physical constraints of the 
building and higher specifications for extensions and new builds, poor access to capital, 

 
17 The Economic Value of the Adult Social Care sector – Wales, ICF Consulting, commissioned by Skills 
for Care and Development, 2016 

Tudalen 253

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk
https://socialcare.wales/cms_assets/file-uploads/The-Economic-Value-of-the-Adult-Social-Care-Sector_Wales.pdf
https://socialcare.wales/cms_assets/file-uploads/The-Economic-Value-of-the-Adult-Social-Care-Sector_Wales.pdf


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   53 

or significant concerns about recruiting registered nurses and care staff. Commissioners 
also reported that some care homes were struggling to cope with the more complex 
needs of residents, exacerbated by workforce shortages. 
 
If community services to help people live independently for longer expand, the number 
of people requiring residential care is likely to grow modestly, if at all, but they will move 
into care homes later with more complex needs.  This scenario is likely to result in 
shorter duration of stays within residential care settings and consequently a higher 
turnover rate and likely a longer time to secure a new admission. Analysis by Welsh 
Government in 2018 highlighted that “it can often take several weeks to make 
arrangements to fill an unoccupied place once a resident leaves or passes away – and 
longer if major redecoration is needed”. These delays add further pressures upon the 
stability of care home provision. 
 
Both providers and commissioners have reported the increased use of respite options 
within care homes to help rehabilitate individuals being transferred from hospital (the 
‘Right Sizing’ agenda) and offer care until domiciliary care is in place. These 
arrangements are designed to only be temporary, but commissioners recognise that, 
with growing waiting lists, there is a risk of individuals becoming institutionalized the 
longer such packages last. Further, providers have commented that respite options are 
extremely costly to manage (each move to a care home requires a new full assessment 
– often requiring additional staff time) and such arrangements do not provide the same 
planning assurances as that of longer-term placements or admissions. 
 
Recent national government announcements about capping the care costs for 
individuals will not offer significant additional funding, at least in the medium term, and 
leave it unclear how the gap between local authority and self-funder rates will be 
addressed. 
 
More active intervention and market shaping will be required to ensure sufficiency and 
stability. Without it there is likely to be insufficient specialist residential and nursing care, 
a lack of investment and innovation and an increase in market exits, compounding 
pressures on overall market sufficiency. 
 

6.10.4 Challenges 
The key challenges facing providers are: 
 

• Significant difficulty recruiting and retaining skilled and qualified staff, particularly in 
the context of the pandemic, low pay and status across the sector, increasing 
competition for staff (and consequentially higher agency fees) and a falling working 
age population in the region 

• Uncertainty about the long-term impact of the pandemic on demand particularly 
amongst self-funders 

• Increased acuity of needs amongst residents; and 

• Converted buildings which are difficult and costly to update or expand 
 

6.10.5 Impact of Commissioning 
Commissioners have helped sustain provision through both public sector austerity and 
the pandemic. They have not however succeeded in reshaping the market for the 

Tudalen 254

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   54 

future. This is not surprising given the constraints facing commissioners including tight 
budgets, competing priorities, and stretched capacity. 
 
Regional collaboration, including shadow pooled fund arrangements, has increased 
transparency, and helped mitigate some pressures, but a more active market shaping 
approach will be needed to match the scale of the post-pandemic challenges and 
opportunities.  Whether this takes the form of incentivising investment in the type of 
provision required, facilitating independent or third sector provision, or increasing in-
house provision, it will require a commensurate level of resourcing for commissioning 
and transformation. 
 

6.10.6 Issues & Recommendations 
 

• There is an increased risk of market exits as temporary government support 
tapers away. 

• Uncertainty combined with escalating workforce pressures are a major barrier to 
investment and transformation. 

• Market conditions are unlikely to incentivise sufficient investment without more 
active market shaping and intervention. 

• The number of people requiring residential care is unlikely to rise in line with 
demographic changes but the trend of residents having greater needs will 
continue.  

• There is therefore a need for more specialist and nursing provision especially for 
people with dementia, and it is noted that modern purpose-built facilities tend to 
have the highest occupancy. The pandemic has accelerated this trend, particularly 
in the self-funder market. 

• Monitor occupancy closely as hardship funding tapers to identify providers who 
may be struggling and try to ensure that any unavoidable exits are planned and 
supported. 

• Seek to incentivise investment in new/expanded dementia and nursing care in the 
region, for example through contracts which share occupancy risks, providing 
sites, facilitating planning consents and supporting workforce initiatives. 

• Consider whether to acquire homes which are at risk of closure either to sustain 
provision, repurpose for other uses which support people to remain independent, 
such as supported living, or release the capital to reinvest in new provision. 

• Consider the business case to develop in-house nursing provision (including 
taking due regard to registration requirements) to rebalance the market and 
address market failures. 

• Develop in-reach and out-reach models with residential homes at the centre of 
their communities (also referenced as Hub and Spoke models). This will be 
mutually beneficial for homes and the wider array of community services and 
support. 

 
  

Tudalen 255

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   55 

7 Region Wide Options 

Within the stability assessment (Part B), several recommendations to address specific 
issues related to that regulated service area have been set out.  To complement these 
recommendations, this section describes broader strategic options that can be applied 
singularly or in combination according to regional and county circumstances and 
priorities. 
 
The options have been constructed as prompts for strategic and business case 
discussion and agreement.  Where possible this MSR includes examples of innovation 
and market development which can support these discussions. 

7.1 Focus on quality and outcomes 

Feedback suggests that the focus upon maximising scarce public resources has been 
to the detriment of maintaining a focus on quality and outcomes. Commissioners 
reported that they are hard pushed to assure quality of placements made outside of 
their locality and the outcomes being achieved. This is in part due to the lack of national 
outcome measures (that work across organisational boundaries), and limited contact 
between the commissioner and provider due to distance differences. 
 
The regional partnership is committed to high quality and improved outcomes as a key 
building block to ensuring market sufficiency and stability. High quality outcome-based 
services and facilities are more attractive to people who need care and support, and 
both public and private investment is likely to be more forthcoming where services can 
meet market expectations and be seen to add value across the whole system.   
 
This emphasis on developing quality and improved outcomes needs to be undertaken in 
partnership with providers - and importantly with people who have lived experience of 
care and support (and can be supported through the development of the regional 
Independent Professional Advocacy service). It is suggested that any co-produced 
developmental work should be undertaken at a regional level to support continuity and 
integration, encourage inward investment and complement existing shared data returns 
and management information systems - although it is recognised that national data 
systems need to be improved at the same time. 
 
The voice of the person is key.  The region needs to build upon its work on supporting 
advocacy. 
 
Ceredigion has recently launched a “Through Age Well-Being Strategy 2021-202718” 
which in part addresses the well-being outcomes of local people through an “all- age” 
approach that does not make distinctions between age profiles but rather focuses upon 
a continuum of improving outcomes over the individual’s life course.  This approach 
anticipates a shift in resources towards prevention. 

7.2 Invest in Unpaid Carers 

The contribution of unpaid carers is widely acknowledged and appreciated as key to 
supporting people remain independent within their own homes and communities. 

 
18 https://www.ceredigion.gov.uk/resident/social-care-wellbeing/through-age-wellbeing-strategy/  

Tudalen 256

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk
https://www.ceredigion.gov.uk/resident/social-care-wellbeing/through-age-wellbeing-strategy/


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   56 

However, this contribution cannot be taken for granted and the region needs to ensure 
unpaid carers are supported in their vitally important roles. The West Wales Care 
Partnership Unpaid Carers Strategy 2020-25 provides the framework for this support, 
but further work is required to ensure that dedicated services and support are available 
and accessible to all unpaid carers across all parts of the region, with a particular 
reference to improving the digital offer to supporting unpaid carers within rural 
communities. 

7.3 Invest in prevention and early intervention 

As a cornerstone to market sufficiency and stability, this MSR confirms the significance 
of investing and supporting early prevention and intervention. This is echoed in the 
Welsh Government’s paper “A Healthier Wales” which emphasized “Over the next 
decade, we will see a shift of services from hospitals to communities, and from 
communities to homes. People will be supported to remain active and independent, in 
their own homes, for as long as possible. A lot of this change will be as a result of 
maintaining good health, through more emphasis being placed on prevention” and the 
commitment to prevention and early intervention is ‘hard-wired’ into the WWCP Area 
Plan and its transformation work programme. 
 
However, feedback from system leaders recognised that the overwhelming pressures 
on the “statutory” element of care and support services is drawing away focus and 
resources from the very elements that support local people to remain independent and 
safe in their own homes or with their families for longer.  The PNA describes gaps in 
these community preventative services across adult and children population groups, 
and feedback from residential and domiciliary providers indicates that the perceived 
shortage of community services is placing pressures on their services in the context of 
increasing complexity of new placements and referrals.  
 
Further work is required regionally and at a county level to build community and 
individual resilience, support community initiatives (such as the community catalyst 
model in Pembrokeshire) and create new opportunities for the 3rd sector to contribute 
within their own communities.  The pandemic has unleashed a growing sense of 
community action - which can be built upon, but as noted in the PNA, many population 
groups feel isolated and unsupported and progress needs to be urgently accelerated 
across all parts of the region. 

7.4 Re-provision services 

Commissioners and providers are encouraged to consider options to re-provision 
existing services into other models of care - when faced with potential market failures or 
in response to market opportunities. Examples can include re-provisioning a former care 
home into extra care housing units as seen in Ceredigion.  This shift away from 
traditional care models to new approaches can allow for existing market capacity to be 
retained - but which is more closely calibrated with rising public expectations.  The 
option to reprovision care homes into specialist housing has been specifically 
highlighted as a viable approach in responding to the projected demand for specialist 
housing across the region, within a business model that is more suited to retaining and 
recruiting staff. 

Tudalen 257

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   57 

7.5 Reconfiguring services 

Feedback from commissioners and providers identified examples where existing service 
models can be reconfigured and expanded into different market segments or ways of 
delivering services and support, whilst retaining the existing model.  Examples include 
developing “hub and spoke” models - combining residential care with community 
services, which can offer a more dynamic way of supporting individuals to remain 
independent in their homes but with the options of residential support. Such approaches 
can also offer staff increased flexibility of different working conditions and experiences - 
which may boost staff recruitment and retention levels.  

7.6 Developing new services 

System leaders, commissioners and providers have all recognised the advantages of 
‘starting from scratch, in developing new services to meet projected levels of need and 
changing market expectations.  This MSR identifies particular market growth areas to 
include specialist residential care for older people, domiciliary care, and specialist 
housing for working aged adults and older people.  
 
However, current market conditions are considered not conducive to new investment 
from the private sector. General feedback from providers is that concerns about 
workforce pressures and income levels, as well as higher specification for new builds 
are limiting opportunities for market expansion and investment - and it is noted that 
many of the providers operating in the region are SME organisations with limited access 
to investment capital and internal capacity for developmental project work   
 
However, the analysis has identified some small pockets of recent market growth, for 
example Carmarthenshire has experienced a growth in the number of regulated 
domiciliary care providers in the last 3 years (up from 23 in 2018 to 32 in 2020) and 
there have been several new extra care developments recently being built in both 
Pembrokeshire and Ceredigion for older people as well as working age adults.    
 
County councils have a key part to play in supporting the conditions for new market 
entrants (and expansion of existing providers) to develop new care and support 
services.  Feedback from system leaders and commissioners indicates a range of 
options to include; 
 

• Access to capital grants including HRA grants and Welsh Government capital 
funding initiatives and grants (Pembrokeshire has recently started to build council 
houses again, including specialist housing) and economic development support. 
Carmarthenshire is considering how to use this HRA grant to support the 
development of Supported Living and Extra Care units in the county (as identified in 
the Housing LIN report). Improved access to capital funding is suggested as a key 
priority for the region to stimulate a new care and support offer. 

• Freeing up land-banks for development (for example Ceredigion has recently 
released land in the north of the county to work in partnership with an independent 
provider to develop a new Residential EMI Care Home) 

• Land use planning and project management advice and support. County councils 
can offer access to internal project management expertise particularly to small sized 
providers, who dominate the care market across the region and who may lack 
internal capacity 

Tudalen 258

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   58 

• Where possible, county councils should review their Local Development Plans 
(LDPs) to seek out opportunities to support the development of new care and 
support services – including the provision of specialist housing units. 

7.7 Enhancing regional commissioning for specialist services 

System leaders and commissioners recognised that under current arrangements 
several service areas (particularly specialist services for adults and also for children) 
would benefit from a more joined up regional approach to commissioning and 
resourcing. This MSR highlights high-cost low volume services which are best suited to 
more joined up regional arrangements. In some markets there is sufficient provision on 
paper but in practice it is mainly utilised by authorities outside the region.  Where 
national and regional arrangements are already in place, such as the Children’s 
Commissioning Consortium Cymru (known as the ‘4Cs:), there is scope to make better 
use of them, but ultimately a move away from spot purchasing will be needed to secure 
consistent access to local independent sector provision. 

7.8 Rebalancing the market 

In line with statutory requirements relating to business continuity, local authorities must 
work with existing providers to find solutions if they are in difficulties and act as the 
provider of last resort if there is a market exit. For example, the recent exit of a group 
domiciliary provider in Pembrokeshire has resulted in the local authority taking on an 
increasing share of the local market (now at 17% of the market provided in-house).  
 
The nature of such interventions is problematic, whilst such responses secure continuity 
of care, these exits are often rapid and unexpected particularly where the provider is 
part of a group operating outside the locality (decisions to exit maybe a result of a 
decision not directly connected to the locality) and requires the local authority to act 
expediently without the options to make a more considered strategic response as to the 
long-term implications of decisions to intervene. 
 
The decision to exit the market maybe a result of a failing business - and the local 
authority is at risk of taking on a service that is not viable or requires significant 
investment (i.e., building refurbishment etc). The need for robust business cases is key 
to any market intervention alongside clear regard to ensuring continuity of care. Having 
in-house capacity (and hence capability) will also mean the local authority is better 
placed to support providers experiencing difficulties and manage potential transfers 
from private to public provision. 
 
It is noted that there is an opportunity to develop a regional approach to “Home Closure” 
based upon local policies already in place in Pembrokeshire and Carmarthenshire 
councils. 

7.9 Build workforce capacity 

The current deteriorating market conditions are largely attributable to significant 
workforce shortages across the whole sector.  Whilst many underpinning national 
workforce actions are out of scope of the regional partnership etc, there are several 
options that were identified as being constructive in mitigating (in part) some of these 

Tudalen 259

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   59 

pressures and importantly to establishing a platform for a bold vision of market 
development and change going forwards. Options include; 
 

• Hybrid care and nursing roles - allowing staff to work flexibly between services. 
These are already in development in Ceredigion and Pembrokeshire and can be 
expanded across the region 

• Local and regional recruitment campaigns - to include online resources hosted by 
the local authority or regional partnership 

• Learning and Development offers to support staff career progression across both in-
house and independent provider sectors 

• In-house staff pool that can be deployed to independent providers as required. 

• Parity of T&Cs across the sector. This will require significant investment and 
partnership approaches between the Health Board and the county councils. 

• Linking up local economic initiatives – such as Pembrokeshire’s Regeneration 
Strategy to supporting the recruitment and retention of care staff, alongside wider 
economic and enterprise stimulus activity.  

• Commitment to the Real Living Wage - Welsh Government has already signalled 
support and new tenders being developed in the region (Pembrokeshire and 
Carmarthenshire councils) reference a commitment to the Real Living Wage.  This 
commitment will require significant investment across all parts of the market - for 
example research conducted by the Homecare Association indicates domiciliary 
care rates will need to increase by around 12%19 in 2022 across Wales. 

7.10 Fee Methodologies 

Most providers responding to the MSR surveys identified unmet rising costs as a 
significant challenge to their market stability, particularly in services for older people. At 
the same time commissioners in other market segments, notably children’s homes and 
independent fostering are concerned by the high cost of placements.  It is noted that the 
Competition and Markets Authority are currently conducting an inquiry into children 
services, which is likely to influence national policy going forward20.  
 
The fee setting process for older people residential and domiciliary care differs across 
the region and despite recognition in the Rebalancing White Paper for a standardised 
fee setting framework, local arrangements currently persist raising concern amongst 
providers as to transparency and consistency across the region (for example the 
domiciliary care rate in Ceredigion is significantly different to the other two county 
councils).   This variation is creating internal tensions in the market in terms of stability 
between counties and services although it is recognised that these arrangements are 
determined by a range of local factors to include for example differing rurality costs. 
 
Commissioners have indicated that regional capacity (particularly care homes for 
working aged adults) is being absorbed by out of region local authorities who are 
prepared to pay a competitive rate to secure placements.  West Wales councils and the 
Health Board need to consider external competition when calculating their fee rates. 
 

 
19 https://www.homecareassociation.org.uk/resource/real-living-wage-for-careworkers-in-wales-must-be-
funded.html  
20 https://www.gov.uk/cma-cases/childrens-social-care-study  

Tudalen 260

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk
https://www.homecareassociation.org.uk/resource/real-living-wage-for-careworkers-in-wales-must-be-funded.html
https://www.homecareassociation.org.uk/resource/real-living-wage-for-careworkers-in-wales-must-be-funded.html
https://www.gov.uk/cma-cases/childrens-social-care-study


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   60 

There is opportunity for the region to move together towards greater consistency in how 
it sets placement fees across the three councils and the Health Board (Continuing 
Health Care fees), and such approaches will require close engagement with providers 
using an open book approach and formula that addresses the need to ensure value for 
money whilst delivering high quality services that improve outcomes.  
 
This approach is clearly endorsed by Welsh Government and there is opportunity to 
build upon progress already being made in the region to harmonize shared 
methodologies - for example Pembrokeshire and Carmarthenshire use to the “Lets 
Agree to Disagree” framework for older people care homes, and the Homecare 
Association unit cost model for setting domiciliary care fees. WWCP has established a 
Regional Fees Group as a forum to collectively work towards greater consistency in 
setting fees and this work needs to be prioritised going forwards. 

7.11 Support market confidence 

Feedback from both commissioners and   adult care home providers was that block 
contracts rather than spot contracts provided more robust business assurances in 
planning ahead.  Whilst such arrangements require careful consideration to ensure 
scarce resources are efficiently and effectively deployed, it was acknowledged that 
block contracts, even if set over a short period, can offer assurances to providers when 
occupancy levels are below the financial break-even point - whilst giving commissioners 
secure options when making placements.  Increasing use is being made in some areas 
of ‘soft’ block contacts which share occupancy risks. 

7.12 Restarting work delayed by the pandemic 

General feedback from system leaders, commissioners and providers was that many of 
the existing regional and local priorities to supporting local people to remain 
independent in their own homes and communities have been subject to delay or 
suspension during the pandemic, including for example projects funded through the ICF 
such as the Discharge to Review and Assess (D2RA) Schemes which prevented the full 
use of planned step-down facilities. It is suggested that the regional partnership reviews 
its priorities ahead of the next spending round i.e. conduct a stocktake of the Area Plan 
to identify which of these existing priorities should be reinstated if temporary halted by 
the pandemic. It is noted that the Welsh Government introduced a statutory duty under 
the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009 for local authorities to prepare an Annual 
Improvement Review, which can form the catalyst for this proposed stocktake. 

7.13 Invest in Technology Innovation 

Wider use of digital technology was identified by all stakeholders as an option to support 
individuals remain independent in their own homes for longer, whilst also supporting 
improved community cohesion and resilience.  These elements were considered vital in 
addressing rising complexity of demand upon local care markets. 
 
The region has already embraced digital technology and a regional digital group has 
recently been established to take forward this agenda. However the feedback from both 
commissioners and providers was that currently much of the regional deployment of 
digital technology was considered as basic technology – such as fall alarms, pendants 
and sensors – and that there was opportunity to both scale up current levels of digital 

Tudalen 261

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   61 

adoption and the types of digital technology being used- such as the use of AI 
technology in people’s homes (including residential care homes) and digitalised care 
records for example.  Further, the PNA has identified concerns around the lack of digital 
inclusion of people with care and support needs across the region - particularly in rural 
areas. This extent of digital exclusion has been accentuated by the pandemic and 
physical access to services and support being restricted.  
 
The region has recently established the Research, Innovation and Improvement 
Coordination Hub (RIICH) funded by the Transformation Fund bringing together Health 
Board and county council staff, providers and entrepreneurs with the aim to “enable 
teams and services to share learning, access information, advice and good practice, 
and look at opportunities to up-scale and spread new ideas and ways of working” 
across the regional health and care system. 
 
It is suggested that the regional partnership builds upon the work of this hub to support 
wider use of digital technology innovation. This can include scaling up the region’s 
CONNECT project on using digital technology to support early intervention and 
prevention activities, as well as exploring and encouraging commissioners, providers 
and technology suppliers to work together on developing new digital care and support 
services.  
 
Other examples of progress include work undertaken in Pembrokeshire during the 
pandemic to support local people access digital technology, to include loaning digital 
equipment. This initiative was recognised nationally (MJ finalists). 
 
Further, the county councils are encouraged to explore use of national government 
funding and initiatives21 to support digital connectivity across the region, as well as to 
look to internal resources and capacity to support local people to become “digital 
citizens” – such as schemes to loan digital hardware- such as tablets and laptops to 
local people. 
 
  

 
21 https://gov.wales/digital-strategy-wales-html  

Tudalen 262

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk
https://gov.wales/digital-strategy-wales-html


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   62 

8 Conclusion – A Call to Action 

This MSR and the PNA describe a care and support system under significant stress. 
Much can be attributed to the compounding impacts of the pandemic, public sector 
austerity and workforce pressures across all parts of the market. However, the sector 
has also shown great resilience and flexibility - and it is these strengths alongside a 
shared recognition that bold action is required that offers a sense of optimism and vision 
for the future. 
 
There are many examples of innovative practice and delivery to build upon - alongside a 
real opportunity to shape a market that is calibrated around the expectations and 
demands of 21st Century citizens. This does not mean jettisoning the past, but rather 
consolidating upon what works well and seeking innovative approaches to arising 
opportunities and challenges as described in this MSR. 
 
Much will depend upon a collaborative approach to seek commitment, consistency, and 
continuity in improving quality and outcomes.  The forthcoming national funding 
allocation is particularly timely to potentially underwrite some of this ambition - 
especially in terms of levering in capital investment to help kick-start new (and 
innovative) service to ensure a vibrant mixed economy of care and support services.   
 
The WWCP is well placed to coordinate and drive this agenda to ensure a stable and 
sufficient care and support market across the whole region that promotes Well-being for 
local people and communities. 
 
  

Tudalen 263

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   63 

Appendix 1: Full Sufficiency assessments 

1 Children and Young People 

Children and young people rely on a wide range of services to complement the care 
provided by their families. These range from universal services like schools and heath 
visiting to specialist services for children with particular needs such as residential care 
and child and adolescent mental health services. All these services need to be available 
in sufficient quantity and quality and working well together to enable children and young 
people to achieve the best possible outcomes.  
 
Only a few of these services are regulated services which fall directly within the scope 
of the MSR Code of Practice: 
 

• Care homes for children and young people 

• Fostering 

• Adoption services 

• Secure accommodation 

• Residential family centres 

• Regulated Advocacy 
 
In addition, children and young people also sometimes need domiciliary care services, 
but since these services are overwhelming aimed at adults, they are covered elsewhere 
in this MSR. 
 
The children’s services in scope of the MSR represent half of the list of regulated 
services but they are only needed by a very small proportion of children and young 
people locally, and in some cases, such as secure accommodation by less than 30 
children across all of Wales at any one time. 
 
To avoid duplication the sufficiency assessment considers services for children and 
young people in the round based on the PNA. There are separate stability assessment 
for each of the regulated services which are specifically for children and young people. 
It is important to bear in mind that the extent to which the regulated services will be 
required depends crucially on the wider constellation of universal and targeted services 
for children, young people and their families or carers. 

1.1 Looking Back 

The 2017 PNA identified that the number of children in West Wales was likely to stay 
broadly stable over the next 15 years at around 85,000. It also identified that the rate of 
children looked after was lower than the average for Wales.  
 
In general, the PNA concluded that’ the required statutory services are in place to meet 
the needs of the most vulnerable children and young people and to keep them from 
harm’ but ‘the development of fit for purpose services right across the range is, 
however, an ongoing journey and there are a number of areas in which further 
improvement can be made’. These included: 
 

• Strengthening user voice and control 

Tudalen 264

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   64 

• Increasing co-production; and 

• Developing co-operation partnership and integration 
 
The priorities set out in the Area Plan included two relating specifically to regulated 
services, namely: 
 

• Reconfiguring commissioning processes for high cost, low volume care and support 
packages for children with complex needs, to deliver consistent cost-effective 
services that ensure best outcomes for service users 

• Reducing the number of placement moves for LAC and reducing reliance on 
residential care 

 
Although progress has been made on commissioning specialist provision, high-cost low 
volume placements remain a challenge. Over the last four years the number of children 
looked after in West Wales has increased, from 390 at March 2018 to 455 at March 
2021, whilst the number in residential care has also increased. The picture has varied 
across the region however with number rising sharply in Ceredigion and Pembrokeshire 
but falling in Carmarthenshire. This suggests that regional partnership needs to be 
combined with bilateral and single county solutions when appropriate. 
 
There are also reported gaps in targeted and specialist services, including support for 
disabled children and CAMHs service. 

1.2 Looking Forward 

The latest population estimates suggest that whilst the population of West Wales will 
grow modestly over the next decade (1.3% by 2031), the number of children under 16 
will decline by 8%, or around 5000 fewer children, with the decline greatest in 
Ceredigion and Pembrokeshire. This will affect the demand for universal services, but it 
is unlikely to translate directly into reduced demand for specialist services, indeed 
current trends show increases.  
 
The factors determining the number of children requiring specialist support are complex 
and the variation between areas and time periods is an area of debate and ongoing 
research nationally. The draft PNA 2022 highlights the impact of the Covid 19 pandemic 
as a major source of uncertainty. There is emerging evidence that the pandemic has 
adversely affected children and young people’s wellbeing in a variety of ways, 
particularly their mental health and has increased adverse experiences such as 
domestic abuse. Education has also been severely disrupted and there may be children 
suffering or at risk of harm who have not been identified or helped as promptly as 
before. The long-term impact of the pandemic will only become clear over the next few 
years but services would be wise to anticipate a likely increase in the number of children 
and young people with more complex needs who require targeted and specialist 
services. 
 
The draft Well-being assessments highlight concerns about the sufficiency of affordable 
child care, particularly in Pembrokeshire and Ceredigion. Lack of childcare is a barrier to 
employment and high child care costs are a significant factor in in-work poverty. For 
other universal services, such as schools, the demographic trends suggest that there 
are likely to be sufficient services, although these can expect to face significant 

Tudalen 265

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   65 

workforce challenges with the projected decline in the working age population across 
the region. 
 
Increased levels of child poverty are identified in the draft Well-being Assessments as a 
regional priority. Rates are above the national average for Wales and increased in all 
three counties between 2018/19 and 2019/20. 
 
A report released in October 2020 by the End Child Poverty coalition using research 
which modelled DWP data, found that Pembrokeshire had the highest child poverty rate 
in Wales (once housing costs have been taken into account) with 31.4% of children 
judged to be living in poverty (a total of 4,376 children). (Ceredigion was fourth highest 
at 30.3% and Carmarthenshire 9th at 29.3%)22. 
 
Demand for more specialist services may well increase due to the direct and indirect 
consequences of the pandemic, including the economic impact. This is particularly 
challenging given the difficulties of providing services in more rural areas. There may be 
shortfalls in the availability of specialist services within reasonable distance of the child’s 
home and well matched to their needs, for example in the Welsh language where 
needed. 
 
Some of the issues identified in the previous PNA such as enhancing user voice and 
control and improving the coordination of services and the transitions between them 
have been highlighted again. 

1.3 Issues and Gaps 

• The draft Well-being assessments highlight concerns about the sufficiency of 
affordable child care, particularly in Pembrokeshire and Ceredigion.  

• Child poverty has increased across West Wales. 

• The overall child population is projected to decline but the demand for specialist 
support and services such as CAMHs and residential care which are already hard 
to source locally may increase. 

• The long-term impact of the on-going pandemic is very uncertain but there is a 
significant risk that it will be detrimental to children and young people’s wellbeing 
and exacerbate existing challenges. 

• User voice, co-production, and integration, including more seamless transitions to 
adult services, remain key areas for development. 

 
  

 
22 Draft Pembrokeshire Well-being Assessment 

Tudalen 266

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   66 

2 Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual 
Violence 

Violence against women domestic abuse and sexual violence (VAWDASV) is a major 
public health problem, criminal justice and human rights issue, with a range of adverse 
consequences for health and wellbeing over the life course. It causes harm to 
individuals and families, and its impact can be felt across whole communities, societies, 
and economies. 
 
Whilst actual number of reported VAWDASV can be captured, there is no agreed 
methodology to project forward the number of individuals directly or indirectly impacted 
by VAWDASV. This is because incidents of VAWDASV are not predictable. The 2017 
PNA identified that in 2018 there were 1,215 reported cases of abuse in 
Carmarthenshire, 1,062 reported cases in Ceredigion and 717 reported cases in 
Pembrokeshire, compared to a total of 22,410 reported abuse cases across all of 
Wales, but did not project these incidents forwards. 
 
Data supplied by ONS identified that between March 2018 and 2019, Welsh police 
forces recorded 80,924 VAWDASV related incidents nationally, yet recorded police data 
only highlights a fraction of the real picture, as incidents often go unreported.  
 
In response to the scale and seriousness of VAWDASV, the Welsh Government has 
recently refreshed its national VAWDASV Strategy 2016-21.  A key objective of the 
national VAWDASV strategy is to make early intervention and prevention a priority, in 
recognition that prevention is vital to breaking the cycle of violence in families and 
communities.   
 
Similarly, an VAWDASV Strategy for Mid and West Wales (Safer Lives, Healthier 
Families) was initiated in 2018, to mirror this national strategy and act as catalyst for 
enhanced partnership working between commissioners and providers to tackle 
VAWDASV and ensure appropriate support and prevention interventions were available 
and accessible where and when required. 
 
VAWDASV services and support range from statutory duties, such as provision of 
refuge centres and support to a range of non-statutory services and support to include 
for example access to specialist counselling and online help and advice services. The 
range of services that are covered include; 
 

• Models of accommodation 

• Community based services 

• Early Intervention and Prevention initiatives 

• Services for Children and Young People 

• Perpetrator related services 

• Public Service Initiatives 

• Sexual violence and abuse services 
 
Latest analysis by the Mid and West Wales VAWDASV Strategy Group indicates that 
the region has received a total of £2.9m in funding in 2018, although it was noted that it 
remains a complex task to identify the totality of financial resources due to how budgets 
for universal support are disaggregated. A large proportion of this funding was routed 
through the Housing Support Grant and many services also rely upon grants from 

Tudalen 267

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   67 

charities.  This complex funding arrangement was considered by the Strategy Group to 
pose significant challenges in effectively planning and delivering services. 

2.1 Looking back 

The 2017 PNA preceded the Mid and West Wales VAWDASV strategy and identified 
the following gaps in service provision and areas for improvement: 
 

• Raising the profile and public understanding of violence against women, domestic 
abuse and sexual violence, including among vulnerable groups such as Black and 
Ethnic Minorities, disabled people, the LGBT community, older people, refugees and 
migrants. 

• Embedding good practices around identification, information, consultation and 
integration of other related services. 

• Earlier identification of violence against women, domestic abuse and sexual 
violence. 

• Enhancing education about healthy relationships and gender equality. 

• Ensuring professionals are trained to provide consistent effective, timely and 
appropriate responses to victims and survivors. 

• Provide victims with equal access to appropriately resourced, consistent high quality, 
needs led, strength based, gender responsive services. 

• Developing community-based, user-led, co-produced services that prevent isolation 
and promote well-being and resilience. 

• Increasing survivor engagement in the planning, delivery and monitoring of services. 

• Developing and implementing an integrated pathway for all forms of violence against 
women, domestic abuse and sexual violence. 

• Increased focus on perpetrators, holding them to account for their actions and 
providing opportunities, through intervention and support, to change their behaviour. 

2.2 Looking forwards 

The ongoing pandemic has had a significant impact upon survivors of VAWDASV, and 
the consequences going forward remain uncharted. Since the outbreak of COVID-19, 
emerging data, and reports from those working in front line services have shown that 
many types of VAWDASV, particularly domestic violence have intensified.” 
 
The draft PNA 2022 has had the benefit of building upon the more recent gap analysis 
undertaken by the Mid and West Wales VAWDASV Strategic Group, in preparation for 
the roll out of Regional VAWDASV Service Specification. The Strategic Group 
consisting of commissioners, providers and survivors of VAWDASV identified the 
following themes as gaps or areas for improvement. Note, these themes are themselves 
more specific than those identified in the 2017 PNA, which are considered more generic 
and concerned with approach rather than actual service delivery. 
 

• Services for children and young people. 

• More prevention focused services. 

• Ensuring there is VAWDASV specialist input for specific groups ie BME, disability, 
LGBT, older people. 

• Reviewing the refuge model and accommodation options. 

Tudalen 268

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   68 

• Accommodation and support options for people with complex needs who challenge 
existing models. 

• Community based services for survivors of sexual violence and abuse. 

• Interventions / Services for perpetrators. 
 
Alongside the draft PNA 2022 gap analysis, work undertaken by the Mid and West 
Wales VAWDASV Strategy Group in 2021 has provided a “deeper dive” into service and 
support gaps within each county council area.   
 
In response to the challenges faced in delivering consistent and high-quality services 
across the region, the VAWDASV Strategy Group is preparing to launch a Regional 
VAWDASV Service Specification, to underpin the Mid and West Wales “Safer Lives, 
Healthier Families” Strategy 2018. The timings for this roll-out coincide with each county 
renewing their VAWDASV contracts in 2022. 

2.3 Issues and Gaps 

• Incidents of violence against women have increased during the pandemic whilst 
victims may have found it harder to access services. 

• The complex funding arrangements are a significant risk to ensuring sufficiency of 
support.   

• There is a specific gap in terms of lack of services for older victims of domestic 
abuse 

• The Mid and West Wales VAWDASV Strategic Group, consisting of 
commissioners, providers and survivors of VAWDASV identified the following 
themes as gaps or areas for improvement 

• Services for children and young people 

• More prevention focused services 

• Ensuring there is VAWDASV specialist input for specific groups i.e. BAME, 
disability, LGBT, older people 

• Reviewing the refuge model and accommodation options 

• Accommodation and support options for people with complex needs who 
challenge existing models 

• Community based services for survivors of sexual violence and abuse 

• Interventions /Services for perpetrators 

 

3 Carers (including unpaid carers) 

A carer is anyone who cares, unpaid, for a friend/family member/neighbour who has any 
sort of health condition, illness, disability, a mental health problem or an addiction and 
cannot cope at hone without extra support.  Services for unpaid carers is overseen by 
the West Wales Carers Development Group (WWDDG) which includes  representation 
from the Health Board, county councils, third sector partners and unpaid carers. 
 
The Social Services Well-being Act (Wales) 2014 sets out a range of duties upon local 
authorities to support unpaid carers to cover:  
 

Tudalen 269

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   69 

• Identification and recognition 

• Advice and information 

• Assessment of carers needs 

• Practical support  

• Advocacy 

• Condition specific support for the carer and the person they care for 
 
However, unpaid carers are also supported through a myriad of services and support, to 
include;  
 

• Universal services: For example, leisure centres, community centres, libraries, and 
adult education opportunities. 

• Preventative services: For example, good neighbour schemes, luncheon clubs, 
community enterprises, community/ voluntary services. 

• Day Opportunities: Providing social contact, reducing isolation and loneliness, 
maintaining and / or restoring independence, offering activities which provide mental 
and physical stimulation, providing care services, offering low-level support. 

• Respite provision: these services however are discretionary. 

• Direct Payments: These provide another way for individuals to access a range of 
opportunities by being able to choose who provides the services they need. 

3.1 Looking Back 

The PNA in 2017 identified the following gaps and opportunities to support (un-paid) 
carers across the region; 
 

• There are challenges to improving outcomes for carers. Caring responsibilities can 
grow over time so that individuals do not immediately recognise they have become a 
‘carer’ or that support may be available. 

• There is a need to design and develop preventative services. 

• There is a need to improve carer assessments and to do more to ensure services 
that support the cared for person are accessible and available.  

• There is a need to strengthen the role of social enterprises and user-led services. 

• There is a need to develop a much more joined up approach between partners and 
other agencies to ensure the issues facing carers are taken into account when 
planning community programmes such as transport, housing, technology 
developments and other community programmes. 

3.2 Looking Forward 

Analysis from the draft PNA 2022 indicates that currently the extent and volumes of 
services and support offered to unpaid carers across the region is insufficient when set 
against prevailing numbers of unpaid carers coming forward. 
 
Analysis undertaken by Carers Wales in October 2019 “Track the Act Report” 
highlighted that the unpaid Carer population across Wales is expected to increase 
significantly in the coming years. By 2037 it is estimated that the Carer population will 
rise from 370,000 to over half a million nationally.  
 

Tudalen 270

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   70 

As a baseline the 2011 Census estimated that there was over 47,000 unpaid carers 
representing 12.5% of residents in West Wales in 2011, and the 2022 PNA has noted 
that whilst number of people self-identifying as carers has increased over the course of 
the pandemic, the numbers of identified carers is below the numbers highlighted in the 
2011 Census analysis. This suggests a considerable gap in carers being recognized 
and supported in their vitally important caring roles.  
 
There are a significant and growing number of older carers. While the number of unpaid 
carers is projected to increase by 2% between 2020 and 2030, the proportion aged over 
65 is projected to increase by 17%. An estimated 30% of carers provide 50 or more 
hours a week of care, but this rises to 46% of carers aged 65 or over23. 
 
This reflects ONS projections of an increasing older population across the region, 
contrasted by a falling working age population.  ONS data illustrates that the number of 
people aged over 85 is projected to increase by 27.8% between 2021 and 2031, 
whereas the working aged population is projected to fall by 3.1% over the same period. 
This mismatch will place increasing pressures on the need to identify and support 
unpaid carers.   
 
As noted, the pandemic has had a significant bearing upon unpaid carers. Analysis by 
the regional Carers Information and Support services has confirmed significant 
increases in the numbers of request for support over this period;  
 

• up by 31% in Carmarthenshire,   

• up 15% in Pembrokeshire, and  

• up 32% in Ceredigion.   

• The draft PNA 2022 calculates that there is a total of 10,081 known carers in the 
West Wales region identified via GP practices, social services and education 
settings – of which 9,500 are adult carers and over 400 Young Carers.  

 
Furthermore, the Health Board identified that 8,483 unpaid Carers were known to GP 
practices on 31st March 2020. Within twelve months this had increased by over 2,000 
(25%) and as a result of the roll-out of the vaccination programme by May 2021 a 
further 3,000 unpaid Carers had self-identified, an overall increase of over 5,500 unpaid 
Carers (64%) during the course of the past 15-months.  
 
Since the PNA in 2017, the region has seen considerable development in its approach 
to supporting unpaid carers, although the gaps identified in 2017 persist.  Most notably, 
in November 2020, the West Wales Care Partnership   launched the ‘Our West Wales 
Carers Strategy 2020-2025: Improving Lives for Carers’. The strategy is focused upon 
supporting unpaid carers to achieve what matters to them socially, economically, 
educationally and to maintain good health and mental well-being. The strategy focuses 
on 4 main priorities; 
 

• Priority 1: Improve the early identification and self-identification of Carers including 
Young Carers and Young Adult Carers. 

• Priority 2: Ensure a range of services is available to support the well-being of 
Carers of all ages, in their life alongside caring. 

 
23 Social Care Wales Population Projections Platform, Daffodil 

Tudalen 271

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   71 

• Priority 3: Support Carers to access and maintain education, training, and 
employment opportunities. 

• Priority 4: Support Carers to become digitally included. 
 
The draft PNA 2022 also provided some more granular details on gaps in services and 
support for unpaid carers – which can be summarized as follows: 
 

• The negative Impact of being a carer on wellbeing and mental health and the need 
for more emotional support and counselling services. 

• Difficulty accessing support and the need for better signposting, accessible 
information, and navigation. 

• Problems in accessing carer services and support within rural communities. 

• Supporting carers to be digitally included.  

• More targeted support for young carers to include improved access to respite break, 
mental health and emotional support and services. 

3.3 Issues and Gaps 

• The level of unpaid care and support sought by unpaid carers is projected to 
increase significantly over the next 10 years as the population grows older.  

• Many carers are themselves over 65 and 46% of older carers are providing more 
than 50 hours of care per week24 

• This is against the backdrop of the significant increase in self-identification of 
unpaid carers during the pandemic and the existing strain on specialist carers 
support services to provide a timely response.  

• There is a need to improve access to services and support within rural 
communities for unpaid carers and improve level of digital inclusivity of unpaid 
carers. 

• Young carers need more mental health and emotional support and services. The 
pandemic has had a significant negative impact upon young carers in terms of 
increased isolation and mental health / emotion stress. 

 

4 Learning Disabilities 

People with learning disabilities (LD) have a reduced ability to understand new or 
complex information and learn new skills. In addition, people with LD often have a 
reduced capacity to live independently. Importantly, LD is a diagnosis and not a health 
condition and should not be confused with other diagnoses such as ‘mental health 
problems’ or ‘learning difficulties’. 
 
Care services are generally arranged around prevailing conditions, such as Learning 
Disabilities for example. However, services are also arranged around age groups to 
include children & young people, working age adults and older people.  People with 
learning Disabilities are generally identified within the children & young people, and the 
working age adults’ groupings as distinct services, but not within Older People services. 
This is in part due to historic issues relating to life expectancy, which has now 

 
24 Social Care Wales Population Projections Platform (daffodil) 

Tudalen 272

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   72 

significantly improved for people with LD, although the categorisation of services 
remains unchanged.   
 
There are degrees of learning disability ranging from mild to severe.  Those people 
diagnosed with Profound and Multiple Learning Disabilities (PMLD) who have the 
highest level of needs. 
 
All of the regulated services covered in the Stability part of the MSR are used by people 
with learning disabilities, but Shared Lives and Care Homes for Younger Adults are 
predominantly provided to people with learning disabilities. 

4.1 Looking Back 

The PNA assessment undertaken in 2015 estimated there were 1,483 adults (aged 
18+) with a moderate or severe learning disability across West Wales - and was 
projected to rise to 1,571 by 2030, although as a percentage of the total population the 
position was expected to remain largely the same.   Projected growth was identified in 
Carmarthenshire whilst numbers within Pembrokeshire and Ceredigion numbers were 
expected to remain the same. 
 
Significantly the projections identified a rise of 33% in people over 75 with a moderate 
or severe learning disability over the same period, however the PNA projections did not 
detail incidence of LD amongst children and young people. 
 
The 2015 PNA identified the following gaps in service provision and support- namely: 
 

• Empowering people with a learning disability to decide who provides their support 
and what form that support takes. 

• Strengthening pathways back to local communities following education, and 
developing local education, volunteering and work opportunities in communities, 
making the necessary adjustments for people with a learning disability. 

• Increasing access and availability of appropriate local housing and accommodation 
to enable people with a learning disability to live as independently as possible, in a 
place of their choice. 

• Developing consistent, integrated commissioning and procurement processes that 
are based on co-production principles, which involve user-led community-based 
groups and fora in the design and delivery of services. 

• ‘Right-sizing’ existing packages of care to ensure they meet current needs, facilitate 
personal development, increase independence and deliver cost-effective services 
that ensure best outcomes for service users. 

• Developing a consistent, outcomes-based performance framework for service 
delivery across the region, utilising data to support future planning and 
commissioning. 

4.2 Looking Forward 

The draft PNA 2022 has taken a different approach to that of using the Quality 
Outcomes Framework (QoF) register, as it was recognised that this methodology does 
not account for people undiagnosed with LD.   
 

Tudalen 273

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   73 

In terms of overall numbers of adults with a LD, the draft PNA 2022 reviewed data 
relating to Personal Independence Payments (PIP) across West Wales on the 
assumption that these payments are targeted mainly at people with LD. The number of 
people claiming PIP in November 2020 was 2,264 (1,160 in Carmarthenshire, 770 in 
Pembrokeshire and 334 in Ceredigion). This is a larger number than that presented in 
the 2015 PNA and indicates a higher level of (undiagnosed) need across the region, but 
of course this includes people with other disabilities and health conditions.  
 
The total number of children and young people with LD (aged 0-17) in West Wales is 
currently calculated to be 2,978 in 2021 and is expected to remain consistent over the 
next 10 years.  
 
The draft PNA 2022 also considered the number of people diagnosed with PMLD who 
are most likely to be receiving care services at high intensity. This was based upon 
research undertaken in Scotland in 2013. The PNA applied a prevalence rate of 0.05% 
expanding at 1.8% per year and identified 77 people with PMLD in Carmarthenshire, 51 
in Pembrokeshire and 32 in Ceredigion in 2021. However, this baseline has not been 
projected forwards. 
 
The Housing Lin produced an analysis of accommodation needs for adults with learning 
disabilities in West Wales based upon extrapolations of prevalence rates. These 
projections considered different accommodation needs up to 2037, and concluded that 
there will be significant reductions in the use of residential care and more moderate 
reductions in the numbers of people with LD living with family carers, compensated by 
significant increases in supported housing units, shared lives places and more 
moderate increases in the number of adults with LD accessing mainstream housing with 
support (see below):  
 

• A reduction in the use of residential care from 266 places to 149 places.  

• An increase in provision of supported housing from 299 housing units to 529 housing 
units.  

• An increase in the provision of shared lives places from 76 places to 161 places.  

• An increase in access to mainstream housing with support from 129 to 169 housing 
units.  

• A reduction in the number of adults with learning disabilities living with family carers 
from 634 to 569 people. 

 
Feedback from people with LD identified significant progress across the region in the 
level of engagement and commitment to co-produce services to include the 
establishment of the Dream Team, and the launch of a LD Charter, but there was 
feedback that there were increases in the number of complex cases which required 
more support and funding. The engagement suggested that a joined-up strategy was 
required to meet these needs.  
 
The PNA engagement considered the (ongoing impact) of the pandemic upon services 
and support for people with LD and concluded that there was a “..loss of momentum 
and progress in the development of LD services during the lockdown” and that the 
pandemic has had significant impact upon people with LD, particularly in the context of 
increased levels of isolation and stress, as well as incidences of service breakdowns, 
and sadly proportionately higher Covid  mortality rates amongst people with LD than the 
general population. 

Tudalen 274

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   74 

 
The PNA identified the following themes as gaps in current service provision and 
support:  

• Accommodation/housing needs for this group of individuals with complex health 
needs, most of whom will be eligible to continuing health care funding. 

• Redesign of the current accommodation model with a focus on community living and 
enabling people to live independent lives. 

• Transition between child and adult community services. 

• Access to day services and respite care. 

• Improvement in the quality information provided to individuals (easy read and 
bilingual) and better signposting in how to access that information. 

• Systems and information to improve access to primary and secondary health care 
services. 

• Systems, strategies, and technology to improve communication between different 
services and department across the region. 

• A multifaceted approach and more joined up way of working between specialities 
when caring and supporting people with LD who also have other complex issues. 

4.3 Issues and Gaps 

• The numbers of people with learning disabilities are more likely to present 
themselves to health and care services is predicted to remain relative consistent 
going forwards over the next 10 years – although the number of older people with 
learning disabilities is expected to increase significantly reflecting an improvement 
in life expectancy. 

• The housing needs assessment identifies a. need for significant additional units of 
specialist accommodation (shared lives and supported living) over the next 15 
years, whilst volumes of residential care settings is projected to reduce 
considerably. 

• Many of the challenges faced prior to the pandemic persist and are highlighted in 
both the 2015 and 2022 PNAs. 

 

5 Autism 

According to the National Autistic Society25, autism is defined as a lifelong 
developmental disability which affects how people communicate and interact with the 
world.  The society estimates that one in 100 people are on the autism spectrum and 
there are around 700,000 autistic adults and children in the UK. 
 
The society however notes that autism is a spectrum disorder which means autistic 
people can have varying support needs. One third of autistic people also have a 
learning disability. The autism spectrum isn't linear, and some autistic people will have 
high support needs, which may mean that they require full time care and support. Some 
people may need a bit of support with day-to-day activities, while others live fully 
independent lives. 

 
25 https://www.autism.org.uk/  

Tudalen 275

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk
https://www.autism.org.uk/


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   75 

5.1 Looking Back 

The 2017 PNA did not cover autism as a separate population group, but rather included 
autism within the learning disability population assessment (see LD PNA section). 

5.2 Looking Forwards 

The draft PNA 2022 used the same projection ratio identified by the National Autistic 
Society (autism affecting one in every 100 people in a population) and estimated that 
there was around 4000 people living with autism in West Wales. This was further 
broken down by: 
 

• 2000 in Carmarthenshire,  

• 1500 in Pembrokeshire and  

• 750 in Ceredigion based upon current population estimates 
 
The draft PNA 2022 estimated that numbers of people with Autism will remain relatively 
stable up to 2031 across all three county councils. This is also consistent with other 
projection models such as Daffodil.  However, the PNA did also recognise that overall 
estimates maybe under- representative. 

5.3 Issues and Gaps 

• The numbers of people with autism will remain relatively stable over next 10 years. 

• The PNA identified many people with autism had a general feeling of being 
unsupported – particularly when living within rural areas across the region. 

• Need for improved and accessible signposting across region, particularly for 
supporting young people transitioning to adult social care services. 

• Reported significant waiting times for diagnosis and limited access to subsequent 
services and support – especially supported living options and Mental Health 
services for young people.  Currently there are 900 adults and 1500 children on 
the diagnostics waiting list. 

• The Housing LIN report has identified significant demand for specialist housing in 
the region for people with Learning Disability and Autism. 

• The pandemic has led to increased levels of mental health deterioration and 
further isolation. 

 

6 Mental Health 

According to the World Health Organisation, mental health is defined as "a state of well-
being in which the individual realizes his or her own abilities, can cope with the normal 
stresses of life, can work productively and fruitfully, and is able to make a contribution to 
his or her community" 
 
It has been estimated that 1 in 4 adults experience mental health problems or illness at 
some point in their lifetime and that 1 in 6 adults are experiencing symptoms at any one 
time. Approximately 50% of people who go on to have serious mental health problems 
will have symptoms by the time they are 14 and many at a much younger age. 

Tudalen 276

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   76 

6.1 Looking Back 

The 2017 PNA identified that the prevalence of common mental health disorders in 
West Wales was very similar to the national figure: 75% of people aged 16+ were ‘free 
from a common mental health disorder’ compared to 74% for Wales as a whole. 
(Common mental health disorders include depression, anxiety disorder, panic disorder, 
obsessive-compulsive disorder and post-traumatic stress disorder and make up around 
75% of all mental health problems). It was projected that the prevalence of the full range 
of mental health disorders would increase between 2015 and 2030 in all three counties 
in the Hywel Dda area. 
 
In line with the national Welsh Government ten-year strategy Together for Mental 
Health, there had been a marked shift towards community-based support and a 
reduction in the number of people admitted to hospital across the region, from 165 in 
2009 to 123 in 2015. However, the number of people with mental health problems 
placed in residential care was projected to increase unless further community 
accommodation and support was developed. 
 
Gaps and areas for improvement identified in the 2017 PNA included: 
 

• Improving prevention and early intervention services, alternatives to hospital 
services such as a safe haven, respite and transfer of care liaison services, and 
access to services, especially for those in crisis. 

• Developing an outcome focused and ‘risk-enablement’ approach to service provision 
to support a flexible approach to supporting people with a MH problem. 

• Improving access to specific mental health welfare rights support and increased 
support for carers and carers need to be involved in Care and Treatment planning. 

• Developing 24-hour direct access to alternative provision for those in crisis where 
hospital admission is not the best option. 

• Improving service user experience and conveyancing in relation to S136 of the 
Mental Health Act for those detained in police custody. 

• Developing co-produced services and community networks to support people in 
building confidence and skills using peer support and/or mentoring. 

• Developing a flexible and responsive workforce across health and social care to 
successfully deliver new models of mental health service; and 

• Addressing the lack of transport links within very rural regions, which add to the 
difficulty of accessible service delivery and recruitment challenges. 

 
The draft PNA 2022 suggests that, although progress has been made, some of these 
issues, require further improvement including access to 24/7 support and shifting further 
towards a more community-based model. 

6.2 Looking Forward 

The draft PNA 2022 suggests that mental health problems are a growing issue in West 
Wales linked to the pandemic. 
 
The data presents a mixed picture. The proportion of people who are ‘free of common 
mental health disorders’ has increased but remains just above the national figure. 
 

Tudalen 277

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   77 

The number of people recorded on the mental health quality outcomes framework has 
increased between 2009 and 2019 suggesting that awareness of mental health and 
access to treatment have improved over the longer term.  
 
Projections of future prevalence have changed since 2017 with the latest version now 
showing an overall decrease between 2020 and 2043, although common mental health 
disorders are projected to increase slightly in Carmarthenshire and Pembrokeshire. This 
change reflects revised population projections which predict a falling working age 
population in West Wales. Since mental health disorders are more common in people at 
working age this demographic change affects the expected prevalence. The latest 
estimates would equate to approximately 48,000 people living with mental health 
disorder across West Wales at any one time (15% of the population aged 16+). The 
vast majority of people will not seek or receive any treatment for their condition, 
signalling potential un-met need.  
 
The number of people with more severe or enduring mental illnesses is much lower. A 
baseline of people requiring accommodation and support due to mental health was 
calculated for a housing needs assessment conducted by Housing Lin in 2021. They 
estimated a total of 571 people across West Wales with support needs either living in 
the community or in residential or hospital settings. 
 
The pandemic may however change this significantly. There is evidence that the 
pandemic has had a detrimental impact on mental wellbeing, for example a study by 
Fiscal Wales concluded that “mental health in Wales has deteriorated substantially as a 
result of COVID-19 for the whole population. The impact has not been distributed 
equally in the population, with the negative effects disproportionately affecting younger 
adults, women, low-income earners, and ethnic minorities, which are groups that 
already experienced lower levels of mental health before the onset of the pandemic.” 
 
The pandemic has also seen increased waiting times for mental health assessment and 
treatment which can be expected to compound the direct harm caused by the 
pandemic. In September 2019 there were 379 referrals for Local Primary Mental Health 
Support Services, of which 91% were assessed within 28 days26. In September 2021, 
the number of referrals was lower at 262 but only 71% were assessed within 28 days. 
Similarly, the number of children waiting more than 4 weeks for a CAMHs appointment 
increased from 2 to 22 (or from 2% to 28%)27. 
 
A recent assessment of the housing needs of people with mental health problems 
conducted by Housing LIN concluded that a significant increase in units of 
accommodation would be required over the next two decades – a total of 460 additional 
units by 2040. This assumed: 
 

• A year-on-year increase in the number of people requiring support 

• A substantial reduction in people in residential care; and 

• A substantial reduction in psychiatric in-patient numbers 
 

 
26 Stats Wales waiting times for LPMHSS assessment 
27 Stats Wales CAMHS appointment waiting times 

Tudalen 278

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Health-and-Social-Care/Mental-Health/Mental-Health-Measure/Part-1/waitingtimesforalpmhssassessment-by-lhb-month
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Health-and-Social-Care/Mental-Health/specialist-child-and-adolescent-mental-health-services-scamhs/first-appointment-waiting-times


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   78 

Even if these assumptions prove inaccurate the need for more accommodation with 
support, of good quality and offering a choice of different types of accommodation and 
levels of support is clear. 

6.3 Issues and Gaps 

• The pandemic is likely to have had a severe impact on mental wellbeing. The 
long-term impact is difficult to predict not least because the pandemic is ongoing. 
However, there is a significant risk that there will be a legacy of increased mental 
health problems.   

• Meanwhile the pandemic has disrupted services and there are increased waiting 
times for assessment and treatment for both CAMHs and adult services. This may 
compound the direct impact of the pandemic. 

• The housing needs assessment identifies a need for significant additional units of 
accommodation over the next two decades. 

 

7 Health and Physical Disability 

The social model of disability draws an important distinction between ‘impairment and 
‘disability’. According to Disability Wales, the national association of disabled people’s 
organisations an ‘impairment’ is: 
 

• An injury, illness, or congenital condition that causes or is likely to cause a long-term 
effect on physical appearance and / or limitation of function within the individual that 
differs from the commonplace. 

 
Whereas a disability is: 
 

• The loss or limitation of opportunities to take part in society on an equal level with 
others due to social and environmental barriers.  

• Disability is caused by ‘barriers’ or elements of social organisation which take 
insufficient account of people who have impairments. 

 
Unfortunately, much of the legislation and data is rooted in a medical model of disability 
which conflates impairments with disabilities, and emphases the characteristics of 
individuals rather than the social changes which could promote equality. 
 
Some impairments are life-long, others are caused by injuries or health conditions. As 
we age the proportion of people with impairments grows but healthy and active lifestyles 
can reduce or delay this significantly. 

7.1 Looking Back 

The 2017 PNA found that the number of adults aged 18-64 living with a limiting long-
term illness was likely to decline, reflecting the projected fall in the working age 
population rather than any change in the incidence of impairments. In contrast the 
number of older people living with long term illnesses or disabilities is increasing, an 
important factor in the increased complexity of care needs highlighted in the older 
people’s section. 

Tudalen 279

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   79 

 
There were a total of 1,679 people registered with a physical disability on local authority 
registers in West Wales and a further 1,744 registered as having physical and sensory 
disabilities: equivalent to around 1.1% of the total 18-64 population. Registration data 
underestimates the number of people with disabilities as many people are unaware of 
the register or choose not to use it. This is demonstrated by the fact that the number of 
adults receiving Disability living Allowance and Personal Independence Payments was 
much higher at 16,740, although this would include other needs such as learning 
disabilities. 
 
The PNA identified neurological conditions as the most common cause of serious 
disability having a major, but often unrecognised, impact on health, social services and 
on people’s lives. 
 
The PNA stated that although the current number of people with specific care and 
support needs is small, and projected to decrease in the medium term, ‘it is vital that 
appropriate provision is in place to promote wellbeing and independence and prevent 
escalation of need’. 
 
The gaps and areas for improvement identified in the Area Plan based on the PNA 2017 
focused on prevention and early intervention: 
 

• Developing appropriate access to a range of information, advice and assistance 
including Dewis Cymru and Infoengine, and advocacy services relevant to health 
and social care needs at all key life stages. 

• Developing consistent, integrated regional services that are accessible and respond 
to population need. 

• Improving the early identification, treatment and management of preventable and 
chronic conditions including diabetes, heart disease and respiratory illness, to 
improve long term wellbeing and reduce complications. 

• Ensuring effective interventions and pathways for prevention, treatment and 
management of obesity and childhood obesity are routinely available and 
systematically implemented. 

• Improving early identification and treatment of risk factors associated with health 
inequality. 

• Strengthening transition arrangements between children and young people’s 
services and adult services. 

• Developing community-based, user-led, co-produced services that prevent isolation, 
promote independence and support people to become more resilient and manage 
their own conditions. 

• Increasing use of assistive technology, such as telecare to transform domiciliary 
care and supported living services. 

• Improving flexibility to deliver step up and down provision to respond to changing 
needs. 

 
There was little about improving access to specialist services or about the removing 
barriers which cause disability such as poorly designed buildings or better more 
accessible public transport. 

Tudalen 280

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   80 

7.2 Looking Forward 

The draft PNA 2022 identifies similar trends, with the number of adults aged under 65 
living with impairments likely to decrease in line with the projected fall in the working 
age of the population of West Wales. A total of 3460 people were recorded on local 
authority registers with a physical or sensory impairment as at 2019 (the most recent 
data published) – about the same number as the 2017 PNA. 
 
Engagement for the PNA highlighted a number of the social barriers which cause 
disability, particularly the design of buildings, including housing, and the lack of public 
transport especially in rural areas. People also highlighted the complexity of rules 
around supported living leading to delays and frustration. 
 
The Covid pandemic has had a disproportionate impact on disabled people which can 
be expected to exacerbate existing inequalities. Disabled people were more likely to be 
directly impacted by Covid, with a significantly increased mortality risk, and were also 
more likely to be employed in sectors which were badly affected by restrictions. 
Disruption to services added to this. (See for example data published in March 2021 by 
the Welsh Government on the impact of Covid on disabled people). 
 
There is little data in the PNA about the sufficiency of specialist services for particular 
needs or conditions reflecting gaps in data nationally and regionally. 
 
Improving information, advice and advocacy is an improvement area highlighted both in 
2017 and 2022. 

7.3 Issues and Gaps 

• The pandemic has had a disproportionate impact on disabled people which may 
compound existing inequalities. 

• Engagement for the PNA highlighted a number of the social barriers which cause 
disability, particularly the design of buildings, including housing, and the lack of 
public transport especially in rural areas.  

• Ensuring access to specialist services for people with a range of more complex 
needs is particularly challenging in rural areas. 

• Evidence about the sufficiency of specialist services and services for conditions 
and needs is limited and further work is needed to identify and tackle gaps. 

 

8 Sensory Impairment 

Sensory impairment refers to the range of visual or hearing impairments, including dual 
sensory loss. A person does not have to have a full loss of a sense to be ‘impaired’. 
 
As highlighted above an impairment is not the same as a disability. Disability arises 
when social or environmental barriers deny or limit opportunities to take part in society 
on an equal basis. 

Tudalen 281

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   81 

8.1 Looking Back 

The 2017 PNA found that sensory impairment becomes increasingly common as we 
age. It is therefore becoming more common as the population ages and is an aspect of 
the increased complexity of needs seen in older people. Whereas it was estimated that 
145 people aged 18-64 had a severe visual impairment in West Wales, 2592 people 
over 75 were estimated to have registerable eye conditions. Around 12% of people 
aged over 75 have a moderate or severe visual impairment. Similarly, hearing loss 
disproportionately affects older people at is was estimated that 71% of people aged 
over 70 have some kind of hearing loss. In total, around 47,000 adults in West Wales 
were estimated to have a moderate or severe hearing impairment. 
 
The importance of early intervention was highlighted as well as the fact that many 
sensory impairments go undiagnosed meaning that opportunities for early treatment are 
missed. 
 
Gaps and areas for improvement included: 
 

• Raising the profile and public understanding of sensory impairment and the NHS 
Low Vision Service and embedding good practices around identification, information, 
consultation and integration of other related services. 

• Developing appropriate access to a range of information, advice and assistance that 
addresses the needs and barriers to accessing services, which can prevent those 
with sensory impairment accessing vital healthcare. 

• Developing specific consistent support and services such as interpretation, 
translation, lip reading, talking therapies, rehabilitation and clinics for ophthalmology 
and glaucoma to ensure they are available and accessible across the region. 

• Increasing use of direct payments to ensure people can exercise genuine choice 
and control over the care and support they receive. 

• Developing community-based, user-led, co-produced services that prevent isolation; 
promote community connectivity, well-being and resilience and support people to 
remain independent for longer in their own communities. 

• Addressing the lack of transport links within very rural regions, which add to the 
difficulty of accessible service delivery. 

8.2 Looking Forward 

The draft PNA 2022 identifies similar trends of increasing numbers of people with 
sensory impairments in line with the aging of the population. The number of younger 
people with sensory impairment is expected to reduce slightly to 2043 whilst most of the 
growth is in people aged 75 or older. 
 
Overall, the number of people with a visual impairment in West Wales is expected to 
increase from 12,971 in 2020 to 21,910 by 2043. Meanwhile the number of people with 
a hearing impairment is expected to grow from 85,864 in 2020 to 107,782 by 2043. 
 
As with physical disabilities, people with sensory impairment have been 
disproportionately impacted by the pandemic. They also face additional barriers to 
accessing services remotely or maintaining social contact virtually. 
 

Tudalen 282

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   82 

People with sensory impairment are at much greater risk of loneliness and social 
isolation both as a direct impact of their impairments and because of issues like lack of 
transport and sign language. Social isolation is also increased by lack of access to 
public transport, especially in rural areas, and by fear of falls, exacerbated by poorly 
designed or maintained public realm. 

8.3 Issues and Gaps 

• The number of people with sensory impairments is expected to grow significantly. 

• There is a specific need to reduce social isolation of people with sensory 
impairments within rural communities to include improvements community support 
and access to specialist services. 

• For the relatively small number of younger people with sensory impairments, a 
range of support is needed including equipment and advice to remove barriers and 
increase employment and opportunities. 

 

9 Dementia 

Dementia is a syndrome (or group of related symptoms) that manifests when the brain 
is damaged by injury or disease. As dementia progresses, it leads to impairments in 
memory, thinking and behaviour, which negatively impact a person’s ability to function 
and carry out everyday activities. Dementia is caused by a range of conditions, the most 
common of which is Alzheimer’s disease, and is becoming more prevalent as the 
population ages. Pre-pandemic, dementia had become the leading cause of death in 
the UK, accounting for 12.7% of all deaths. 

9.1 Looking Back 

The 2017 PNA did not consider dementia separately, but rather as part of the chapters 
on older people and mental health. Although this reflected the fact that dementia is far 
more common amongst older people it risked giving insufficient attention to dementia 
which begins before the age of 65 (‘young onset dementia’). 
 
The areas identified for improvement specific to dementia in this group were as follows: 
 

• Ensuring services (including primary care, domiciliary care, residential care and 
reablement) and communities are ‘dementia friendly’. 

• Improving dementia diagnosis rates. 
 
The Dementia Action Plan for Wales 2018-2022 sets out a vision: to be a dementia 
friendly nation that recognises the rights of people with dementia to feel valued and to 
live as independently as possible in their communities. 

9.2 Looking Forward 

The number of people living with dementia is projected to continue to increase. Work 
done for the draft West Wales Care Partnership Dementia Strategy estimates that the 
number of people diagnosed with dementia will increase from 2,812 in 2020 to 4,200 by 
2040 (a 49% increase). However, factoring in undiagnosed dementia (estimated at 53% 

Tudalen 283

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   83 

of total cases), the Strategy estimates that the number of people living with dementia 
across West Wales will increase from 5,300 to 7,900 by 2040. 
 
These estimates broadly align with projections published on the national population 
projections platform using a different methodology. These project a 41% increase in the 
number of people living with dementia in West Wales between 2020 and 2030, from 
4,107 to 5,802. 
 
Although the prevalence (the number of people living with) dementia is increasing as 
the population ages, the incidence (the proportion of people in an age group living with) 
dementia, is declining over the long term. International research has estimated that the 
incidence of dementia has fallen by approximately 15% each decade over the last thirty 
years. This is mainly due to improved vascular health thanks to reductions in smoking 
and underlines the importance of public health campaigns to encourage people to 
reduce their personal risk of dementia through simple changes in lifestyle. (Reported by 
Alzheimer’s Research UK). 
 
The draft Dementia Strategy identified 84 patients on GP registers who are under 65 
years old. Of those, 55 are in the 60-65 year age group. This gives West Wales a rate of 
0.04% across the population in the adult population, which is very similar to the rate 
seen across Wales registers nationally. Only 5 patients on the GP registers were under 
50 years old. 

9.3 Issues and Gaps 

• The number of people living with dementia is expected to increase by 49% by 
204028. 

• This is a major factor in the increased complexity of needs which is impacting 
upon services. 

• The number of people living with young onset dementia is small, but they typically 
require specialist services which may not be available locally. 

• There is a lack of bespoke support such as group activities for younger people 
living with dementia or specialist residential care. 

 

10 Older People 

For the purposes of this document ‘older people’ refers to people aged 65 or over. This 
is a large segment of the population with widely varying levels of wellbeing and need. 
The group aged 85+ is often used as a proxy to estimate the number of people who are 
likely to have more substantial care and support needs. 

10.1 Looking Back 

The 2017 PNA identified an aging population and an increase in the complexity of 
needs of older people (“people are living longer but with increased levels of illness and 
disability”). The assessment commented that rurality, deprivation, and fuel poverty in 

 
28 Draft West Wales Care Partnership (WWCP) Dementia Strategy 

Tudalen 284

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk
https://www.alzheimersresearchuk.org/international-research-shows-dementia-rates-falling-by-15-per-decade-over-last-30-years/


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   84 

West Wales would potentially compound demographic trends, increasing demand for 
health and social care services. 
 
The PNA identified a range of gaps and areas for improvement for older people: 
 

• Developing appropriate access to a range of information, advice and assistance 
including Dewis and advocacy services relevant to health and social care needs at 
relevant stages for health and social care. 

• Improving anticipatory care across the health, social care and other sectors to avoid 
escalation of need. 

• Reducing the reliance on residential and nursing care in favour of lower level, 
preventative and well-being services. 

• Developing community-based, user-led, co-produced services that prevent isolation; 
promote community connectivity, well-being and resilience and support people to 
remain independent for longer in their own communities. 

• Enhancing assessment and care planning processes to ensure older people and 
their carers are involved in decisions about them, including discharge planning. 

• Ensuring that older people and their families are able to access services through 
their language of choice and that the offer through the medium of Welsh is available. 

• Achieving a consistent, integrated approach to frailty across the region that aligns 
with regional frailty and dementia strategies and pathway. 

• Developing consistent, integrated commissioning and procurement processes based 
on co-production principles, which involve older people, user-led community-based 
groups and fora in the design and delivery of services, to achieve market 
sustainability. 

• Improving and standardising levels of telehealth and telecare across the region. 

• Addressing the lack of transport links within very rural regions, which add to the 
difficulty of accessible service delivery and recruitment challenges. 

• Growing an integrated approach to quality assurance and contract monitoring of 
care homes to identify and address emerging concerns and prevent placement 
breakdown. 

 
The PNA shaped the West Wales Area Plan, the delivery plan for which included a 
range of actions to address gaps and areas for improvement for older people including 
development of a regional dementia strategy. 
 
The overall strategic direction for older people services and support set in the Area Plan 
remains valid, but the context for delivering it has been even more challenging than 
anticipated due to the ongoing pandemic. As a result, the challenges identified remain 
and, in many ways, have become sharper.  
 
The fact that the ‘system’ has not collapsed and continued to deliver good quality care 
and support for older people despite unprecedented challenges is testament to the 
dedication and commitment of social care workers and providers and their staff. 
 
Another important lesson highlighted by the pandemic is the huge potential of hyper-
local support networks to play a growing role. However they require ongoing funding 
and facilitation going forwards, and more broadly, significant effort and investment will 
be required nationally as well as regionally and locally to secure long term sustainability. 

Tudalen 285

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   85 

10.2 Looking Forward 

The draft PNA 2022 confirms the trends previously identified i.e. an aging population 
and increased complexity of needs due to increased prevalence of dementia and life 
expectancy increasing faster than disability free life expectancy. 
 
According to the latest projections the population of West Wales is likely to grow from 
386,501 to 391,688 between 2021 and 2031, an increase of 1.3%. Meanwhile the 
number of older people (65+) is projected to increase by 17.5%, and people over 85 by 
27.8%. These increases in the older age groups are higher than the national average. 
Further the 2020 PNA identifies that the area attracts high levels of inward migration of 
people over 65. The highest levels are found in Pembrokeshire with 87% of those 
moving in aged over 65. 
 
Meanwhile the working age population is projected to decline in all three counties but 
most sharply in Ceredigion where the overall population is projected to decline. 
(Between 2021 and 2031 the population aged 16-64 is projected to fall by 3.1% across 
West Wales and by 5.6% in Ceredigion). 
 
These demographic trends will increase demand for health and social care, but they will 
not necessarily translate directly into increased demand for residential and nursing care. 
This is because of changing expectations and the fact that more intensive support at 
home has enabled people to live independently for longer. A national report by Grant 
Thornton found that the proportion of people over 85 in residential care declined steadily 
between 1996 and 2017 from 25.2% to 14.8%29, and Fiscal Wales reported a similar 
picture in The Future of Care in Wales with numbers in residential care falling as the 
older population increased. 
 
The corollary of this is that people who do need care tend to have more complex needs. 
Data analysis and fieldwork for the MSR, such as the provider survey and interviews 
confirmed that these trends are also evident in West Wales, with both providers and 
commissioners reported increasing complexity of new referrals and placements.  
 
Analysis undertaken by the Alzheimer’s Society estimated that about 70 per cent of all 
care home residents have dementia or severe memory problems.  
 
The PNA has identified that the pandemic has impacted public perceptions of care 
homes and made people reluctant to choose residential care for themselves or their 
relatives unless absolutely unavoidable.  Where people do opt for residential care 
(including nursing care), market intelligence from both the fieldwork and desk-top review 
suggests that they increasingly prefer higher specification purpose-built homes with 
ensuite bathrooms which facilitate infection control. This has accelerated existing trends 
in the market driven by higher user expectations and stronger requirements to provide 
choice. 
 
This points to the need for increased community provision, and specialist housing 
options such as Extra Care schemes (as identified in the PNA and referenced in 
projections made by the Housing LIN for West Wales) to enable people to live 
independently for as long as possible alongside more specialist residential and nursing 
provision designed to meet the needs of people with dementia and multiple conditions. 

 
29 Care homes for the elderly: Where are we now? Grant Thornton 2018 

Tudalen 286

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   86 

 
The draft PNA 2022 also highlights the potential benefits of scaling up technology 
enabled care which can complement more traditional care especially in rural areas. This 
requires both infrastructure and digital inclusion initiatives. 
 
Evidence from the annual workforce survey conducted by Social Care Wales suggests 
that the proportion of staff who can communicate effectively in Welsh varies significantly 
between areas and is higher in local authority directly provided services than in 
commissioned services. For commissioned services in 2019, 11% of staff across Mid 
and West Wales could communicate effectively in Welsh. Although this is higher than 
the national average of 8% it means that people will not consistently have access to 
services in the Welsh language. 
 
Detail about the sufficiency of regulated services for older people is provided in the 
stability sections for care homes and domiciliary care, but in short: 
 

• The supply of domiciliary care has not expanded rapidly enough to provide sufficient 
capacity to fully meet demand and provide choice and this sector is under stress in 
terms of meeting rising levels of complexity set against ongoing workforce pressures 
and inflation. 

• The overall number of care home places is currently sufficient but there is a shortfall 
in nursing provision, especially for more complex and specialist needs.  

• Future sufficiency is uncertain due to the pandemic. 

10.3 Issues and Gaps 

• The number of people aged 85 or over is expected to increase by 27.8% by 2031, 
whilst the West Wales population as a whole will grow by just 1.3%. 

• The aging population means that there will be an increasing demand for care and 
support services including a range of housing options. 

• The complexity of needs will also continue to grow as the number of people living 
with dementia and multiple co-morbidities increases. 

• The need to grow community support is even greater given the fragility of the 
markets for regulated services highlighted in the stability assessments. 

• Recruitment and retention of staff is a key challenge across social care and is 
severely impacting both domiciliary and residential care. 

• A continuing shift towards more specialist residential and nursing care is required 
but in current conditions it is difficult to see the market delivering that at sufficient 
pace or scale. 

 
  

Tudalen 287

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   87 

Technical Appendix 

This appendix provides selected data underpinning the MSR together with links to key 
sources and background documents. Charts and tables have not been included in the 
main body of the MSR to keep it to a manageable length. 
 
The appendix is structured under four broad headings: 
 

• Cross-cutting 

• Older People 

• Working Age Adults; and 

• Children and Young People 
 

1 Cross-cutting 

1.1 Demographic Data 

Population Estimates Mid-Year 2020 
 

 0 to 15 16 to 64 Aged 65 + Total 

Carmarthenshire  33,156 111,224 45,693 190,073 

Ceredigion  10,774 43,453 18,668 72,895 

Pembrokeshire  21,363 72,219 33,169 126,751 

West Wales 65,293 226,896 97,530 389,719 

Source: Stats Wales, Mid-Year Estimates 2020 

 
 
Projected percentage change in number of people 2021-31 
 

 All ages 0-15 16-64 65+ (85+) (90+)* 

Carmarthenshire 2.2% -6% -1.9% 17.6% 24.9% 13.7% 

Ceredigion  -1.5% -11% -5.6% 13.2% 25.7% 20.1% 

Pembrokeshire  1.7% -10% -3.4% 19.7% 32.5% 31.8% 

West Wales 1.3% -8% -3.1% 17.5% 27.8% 21.7% 

Wales 2.3% -5% -0.4% 16.6% 24.9% 19.0% 

Source: Stats Wales, Population Projections 2018 based 

 
  

Tudalen 288

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   88 

Projected increase/decrease in number of people 2021/2031 
 

 All ages 0-15 16-64 65+ (85+) (90+)* 

Carmarthenshire 4,083 -1,862 -2,087 8,032 1,364 259 

Ceredigion  -1,046 -1,164 -2,358 2,476 671 200 

Pembrokeshire  2,151 -2,097 -2,382 6,630 1,483 532 

West Wales 5,187 -5,124 -6,827 17,138 3,518 990 

Wales 73,796 -29,299 -8,520 111,615 21,164 5,799 

Source: Stats Wales, Population Projections 2018 based 
*65+ includes all people over 64, including those aged over 84 or 89. Likewise 85+ includes 90+ 

1.2 Guidance 

Code of Practice and Guidance on the exercise of social services functions and 
partnership arrangements in relation to market stability reports. 

1.3 Key Data Sources 

Stats Wales (includes demographic, health and social care and finance data). 
National Social Care Data Portal For Wales (includes a wide range of data and thematic 
reports for each local authority and region on three priority areas: care and support at 
home, dementia and children who are looked after). 
Social Care Wales Population Projections Platform (includes projections about a wide 
range of needs and conditions at local authority, regional and national levels, including: 
informal care, autism, activities of daily living, common mental disorders, hearing 
impairment, visual impairment and dementia). 

1.4 Regional Documents 

Population Needs Assessment 2017. 
Population Needs Assessment 2022 (link when published). 
Draft Well-being Assessments (one for each county). 
West Wales Area Plan. 
West Wales Carers Strategy 2020-25. 
Regional framework for service development and commissioning of Violence against 
women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence Services in Mid and West Wales. 
Annual Report of the Statutory Director of Social services Carmarthenshire, Ceredigion, 
Pembrokeshire. 

1.5 Further Reading & Background 

Rebalancing Care and Support Welsh Government White Paper. 
Association of Directors of Social Services Cymru Rebalancing Social Care: A report on 
Adult Services. 
Association of Directors of Social Services Cymru Rebalancing Social Care: A report on 
Children’s Services. 
Challenges and Priorities for Health and Social Care in Wales, Wales Centre for Public 
Policy, December 2021. 

Tudalen 289

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk
https://gov.wales/code-practice-and-guidance-under-social-services-and-well-being-wales-act-2014-html#:~:text=The%20code%20describes%20how%20local,included%20in%20market%20stability%20reports.&text=In%20both%20the%20code%20of,as%20must%20or%20must%20not.
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue
https://www.socialcaredata.wales/IAS/
http://www.daffodilcymru.org.uk/
http://www.wwcp-data.org.uk/population-needs-assessment
https://www.haveyoursay.hduhb.wales.nhs.uk/have-your-say-on-the-assessment-of-local-well-being
http://www.wwcp-data.org.uk/area-plan
https://www.wwcp.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/11/Carers-Strategy-Final-20.10.20-Eng.pdf
https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/1226994/0-master-dar-2020-21-v9-english.pdf
https://www.ceredigion.gov.uk/media/10421/statutory-directors-annual-report-2019-2020.pdf
https://www.pembrokeshire.gov.uk/objview.asp?object_id=10448&language=
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/consultations/2021-01/consutation-document.pdf
https://www.adss.cymru/en/blog/post/rebalancing-social-care-a-report-on-children-s-services
https://www.adss.cymru/en/blog/post/rebalancing-social-care-a-report-on-children-s-services
https://www.wcpp.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/12/Challenges-and-Priorities-for-Health-and-Social-Care-Wales-Briefing-Note-.pdf


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   89 

Bevan Commission, Bevan Exemplars, innovation projects in health and care. 
Digital innovation in social care, NHSX, Ipsos Mori, Skills for Care and IPC 2021. 
 

2 Older People 

2.1 Demographic Data 

Population Estimates Mid-Year 2020 
 

 65 to 74  75 to 84  85 and over  Total 65+ 

Carmarthenshire  24,841 15,053 5,799 45,693 

Ceredigion  9,998 6,035 2,635 18,668 

Pembrokeshire  17,767 10,995 4,407 33,169 

West Wales 52,606 32,083 12,841 97,530 

Source: Stats Wales, Mid-Year Estimates 2020 

 
 
Projected increase in the number of people aged 85+ 2021-2031 
 

 
Source: Stats Wales, Population Projections 2018 based 

 
 
  

Carmarthenshire Ceredigion Pembrokeshire West Wales

2021 5478 2617 4565 12659

2031 6842 3288 6048 16178

0

2000

4000

6000

8000

10000

12000

14000

16000

18000

2021 2031

Tudalen 290

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk
https://www.bevancommission.org/exemplars/
https://www.ipsos.com/en-uk/nhsx-reviews-published-digital-technology-innovation-and-digital-skills-adult-social-care


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   90 

Projected increase in the number of people with severe dementia over the next 
decade* 
 

 2020 2025 2030 Increase 
(number) 

Increase 
(%) 

Carmarthenshire 1,912 2,306 2,697 785 41.1% 

Ceredigion 789 942 1,076 287 36.5% 

Pembrokeshire 1,407 1,720 2,030 622 44.2% 

West Wales 4,107 4,968 5,802 1,695 41.3% 

Source: Social Care Wales Population Projection Platform, Daffodil Cymru 
*This will include a small number of younger people with dementia 

2.2 Trends in activity, capacity and spend 

2.2.1 Domiciliary Care 
 
Number of people receiving general domiciliary care 
 

 
Source: data collected by IPC for MSR 

 
 
Hours of general domiciliary care 
 

West Wales General Domiciliary Care Trend 

 People Estimated Weekly 
Hours 

Hours per person 

Apr-20 2,100 23539.3 11.2 

May-20 2,122 25798.2 12.2 

Jun-20 2,141 24638.2 11.5 

Jul-20 2,188 25003.7 11.4 

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

Ceredigion Carmarthenshire Pembrokeshire West Wales

Tudalen 291

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   91 

West Wales General Domiciliary Care Trend 

 People Estimated Weekly 
Hours 

Hours per person 

Aug-20 2,218 27447.2 12.4 

Sep-20 2,219 25391.0 11.4 

Oct-20 2,246 25610.1 11.4 

Nov-20 2,264 27590.9 12.2 

Dec-20 2,229 25404.0 11.4 

Jan-21 2,230 27167.9 12.2 

Feb-21 2,222 25051.2 11.3 

Mar-21 2,210 25158.9 11.4 

Apr-21 2,214 25114.6 11.3 

May-21 2,347 27242.1 11.6 

Jun-21 2,244 25556.6 11.4 

Jul-21 2,232 25025.4 11.2 

Aug-21 2,205 25977.2 11.8 

Sep-21 2,278 23487.8 10.3 

Source: data collected by IPC for MSR 

 
 
Number of people on waiting lists for general domiciliary care West Wales 
 

 
Source: data collected and analysed by IPC for MSR 

 
 
  

0.0

50.0

100.0

150.0

200.0

250.0

300.0

Wait list

Tudalen 292

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   92 

Trends in expenditure on older people’s domiciliary care 
 

 O
w

n
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 

(i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 j

o
in

t 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

) 

P
ro

v
is

io
n

 b
y
 

o
th

e
rs

 (
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

jo
in

t 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

) 

G
ro

s
s
 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
 

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

 

O
w

n
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 a
s
 

%
 o

f 
g

ro
s
s
 

C
h

a
n

g
e

 i
n

 n
e
t 

s
p

e
n

d
 

2018/19 £5,739,678 £24,667,016 £32,370,612 £27,082,994 17.73%  

2019/20 £8,240,572 £22,456,699 £32,688,443 £26,514,253 25.21% -2.10% 

2020/21 £14,476,337 £18,279,484 £35,108,949 £28,053,682 41.23% 5.81% 

Source: Revenue Outturn returns analysed by IPC for MSR 

 

2.2.2 Care homes for Older People 
 
Number of homes for older people in West Wales 
 

 
Source: data collected by IPC for MSR 

 
  

20 21 21 20 20

6 5 5 5 5

65 64 66 66 66

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Residential

Nursing

Dual Registered

Tudalen 293

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   93 

Trends in bed numbers for older people 
 

 
Source: data collected by IPC for MSR 

 
 
Trends in placements commissioned by the local authorities or Health Board 
 

Total as at 31 March 

 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 

Carmarthenshire 897 860 945 1006 842 

Ceredigion 339 356 331 349 329 

Pembrokeshire 407 446 450 525 465 

Hywel Dda* 325 328 308 297 275 

Grand Total 1,968 1,990 2,034 2,177 1,911 

Source: data collected by IPC for MSR 

 
*Hywel Dda placement numbers are for Continuing Health Care (CHC) and Section 117 only. 
Funded Nursing Care (FNC) placements are included in the local authority numbers to avoid 

double counting. 

 
  

632

511

1129

734

567

442

1168

811

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

Nursing Nursing EMI Residential Residential EMI

2017

2018

2019

2020

2021

Tudalen 294

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   94 

Impact of the covid-19 pandemic on new placements of older people 
 

 
Source: data collected by IPC for MSR 

 
Trends in Occupancy 
 

Average occupancy rate 

 2019 (April-Dec) 2020 (Whole year) 2021 (Jan-May) 

Nursing 93.6% 91.2% 80.7% 

Carmarthenshire 93.6% 89.2% 74.5% 

Ceredigion 94.9% 95.5% 88.5% 

Pembrokeshire 92.4% 88.9% 79.1% 

Nursing EMI 95.9% 93.7% 86.8% 

Carmarthenshire 95.3% 95.5% 86.5% 

Ceredigion 100.0% 100.0% 91.4% 

Pembrokeshire 92.6% 85.8% 82.5% 

Residential 95.5% 92.7% 83.5% 

Carmarthenshire 92.4% 91.9% 75.6% 

Ceredigion 97.0% 95.3% 90.5% 

Pembrokeshire 97.2% 90.8% 84.4% 

Residential EMI 94.5% 91.6% 83.0% 

Carmarthenshire 92.4% 93.8% 83.0% 

Ceredigion 94.3% 90.4% 80.4% 

Pembrokeshire 96.8% 90.6% 85.4% 

Source: data collected by IPC for MSR 

 
 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

A
p

r-
1

9

M
ay

-1
9

Ju
n

-1
9

Ju
l-

1
9

A
u

g-
1

9

Se
p

-1
9

O
ct

-1
9

N
o

v-
1

9

D
ec

-1
9

Ja
n

-2
0

Fe
b

-2
0

M
ar

-2
0

A
p

r-
2

0

M
ay

-2
0

Ju
n

-2
0

Ju
l-

2
0

A
u

g-
2

0

Se
p

-2
0

O
ct

-2
0

N
o

v-
2

0

D
ec

-2
0

Ja
n

-2
1

Fe
b

-2
1

M
ar

-2
1

New Placements monthly West Wales

Residential Total Nursing Total Linear (Residential Total)

Tudalen 295

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   95 

Trends in expenditure on older people’s residential care 
 

Residential Care Placements People over 65 (including older mentally ill) 

 Own provision 
(including joint 
arrangements) 

Provision by 
others 
(including joint 
arrangements) 

Gross 
Expenditure 

Net 
Expenditure 

2018/19 £13,436,425 £37,439,911 £54,949,646 £34,436,969 

2019/20 £14,595,477 £39,402,785 £57,621,516 £34,833,819 

2020/21 £12,020,675 £47,972,723 £62,701,202 £38,944,781 

Source: Revenue Outturn returns analysed by IPC for MSR 

 
 

Nursing Care Placements People over 65 (including older mentally ill) 

 Own provision 
(including joint 
arrangements) 

Provision by 
others 
(including joint 
arrangements) 

Gross 
Expenditure 

Net 
Expenditure 

2018/19 £0 £13,819.432 £14,266.123 £6,113.636 

2019/20 £0 £14,591.892 £15,535.686 £4,334.880 

2020/21 £0 £16,420.064 £18,051.701 £7,528.241 

Source: Revenue Outturn returns analysed by IPC for MSR 

 
 

 
Source: Revenue Outturn returns analysed by IPC for MSR 

 
  

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

Nursing Care £6,113,636 £4,334,880 £7,528,241

Residential care £34,436,969 £34,833,819 £38,944,781

£0
£5,000,000

£10,000,000
£15,000,000
£20,000,000
£25,000,000
£30,000,000
£35,000,000
£40,000,000
£45,000,000
£50,000,000

Net Expenditure on placements for older people, West 
Wales

Residential care Nursing Care

Tudalen 296

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   96 

Rates paid for residential care for older people 
 

Standard Weekly Rates 2020/21 

 Residential Residential 
EMI 

Nursing Nursing EMI 

Carmarthenshire £594.39 £620.52 £575.56 £663.41 

Ceredigion £605.00 £645.00 £617.00 £657.00 

Pembrokeshire £651.62 £709.10 £665.05 £720.62 

Source: data collected by IPC for MSR 

 

Average Weekly Rates 2020/21 

 Residential Residential 
EMI 

Nursing Nursing EMI 

Carmarthenshire £646.16 £638.06 £604.26 £705.54 

Ceredigion £629.31 £682.50 £646.98 £842.79 

Pembrokeshire £677.12 £709.10 £682.51 £735.90 

Source: data collected by IPC for MSR 

 

Percentage increase in average rates over two years: 2018/2019 to 2020/2021 

 Residential Residential 
EMI 

Nursing Nursing EMI 

Carmarthenshire 7% 9% 10% 12% 

Ceredigion 6% 9% 10% 29% 

Pembrokeshire 6% 6% 20% 9% 

 

2.2.3 Social Care Wales Priority Area Reports 
 
Care and Support at Home (you may select either an individual county or the region). 
People with Dementia (likewise, you may select either an individual county or the 
region). 
 

2.2.4 Further Reading & Background 
 
Fiscal Wales The Future of Care in Wales, Resourcing Social Care for Older Adults. 
Care Homes for the Elderly: Where are we now? Grant Thornton 2018. 
Developing a capacity and demand model for out-of-hospital care John Bolton, LGA 
2021. 
Alternative Models for Domiciliary Care, Welsh Centre for Public Policy, 2020. 
Market Overview Domiciliary Care, Homecare Association 2021. 
 

Tudalen 297

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk
https://www.socialcaredata.wales/IAS/themes/priorityareareports/careandsupportathome
https://www.socialcaredata.wales/IAS/themes/priorityareareports/peoplewithdementia
https://www.cardiff.ac.uk/__data/assets/pdf_file/0019/2427400/social_care_final2_aug20.pdf
https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/globalassets/1.-member-firms/united-kingdom/pdf/documents/care-homes-for-the-elderly-where-are-we-now.pdf
https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/25.200%20Developing%20a%20Capacity_04_1.pdf
https://www.wcpp.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/Alternative-Models-of-Domiciliary-Care.pdf
https://www.homecareassociation.org.uk/resource/market-overview-2021.html


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   97 

3 Working Age Adults 

3.1 Demographic Data 

Population Estimates Mid- Year 2020 
 

 Aged 16 to 64 Percentage of total 
population 

Carmarthenshire  111,224 58.52% 

Ceredigion  43,453 59.61% 

Pembrokeshire  72,219 56.98% 

West Wales 226,896 58.22% 

Source: Stats Wales, Mid-Year Estimates 2020 

 
 
Projected decrease in number of people aged 16-64 2021-2031 
 

 Change in number aged 16-64 

Carmarthenshire -2,087 

Ceredigion  -2,358 

Pembrokeshire  -2,382 

West Wales -6,827 

Source: Stats Wales, Population Projections 2018 based 

 
 

3.2 Trends in activity, capacity and spend 

Expenditure on home care for people aged under 65 (all need groups) 
 

 Own provision 
(including joint 
arrangements) 

Provision by 
others 
(including joint 
arrangements) 

Gross 
Expenditure 

Net 
Expenditure 

2018/19 £307,272 £2,051,408 £2,542,765 £1,841,035 

2019/20 £443,906 £1,972,443 £2,598.,154 £1,962,115 

2020/21 £560,764 £1,881,283 £2,630,626 £1,872,265 

Source: data collected by IPC for MSR 

 
  

Tudalen 298

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   98 

Net expenditure on home care by need group 2020/21 
 

 
Source: data collected by IPC for MSR 

 
Adults aged under 65 placed in residential care homes 
 

By need category, as at 31 March (total both in county and out of county) 

 Physical 
disability 
or sensory 
impairment 

Learning 
disabilities 

Mental 
health 
needs 

Other 
Needs 

Total 

2018 22 223 123 20 400 

2019 27 232 129 15 418 

2020 22 240 129 23 430 

2021 20 237 131 19 429 

Source: data collected by IPC for MSR 

 
Adults aged under 65 placed in nursing homes 
 

By need category, as at 31 March (total both in county and out of county) 

 Physical 
disability 
or sensory 
impairment 

Learning 
disabilities 

Mental 
health 
needs 

Other 
Needs 

Total 

2018 2 2 4 4 12 

2019 1 0 4 10 15 

2020 2 1 3 10 16 

2021 3 1 3 15 22 

Source: data collected by IPC for MSR 

 

93.7%

4.0%

1.75%
0.5%

Older People Physical Disability or sensory impairment

Mental Heath Needs Learning Disabilities

Tudalen 299

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   99 

Adults aged under 65 placed in residential care homes out of county 
 

By need category, as at 31 March (out of county only) 

 Physical 
disability 
or sensory 
impairment 

Learning 
disabilities 

Mental 
health 
needs 

Other 
Needs 

Total 

2018 9 84 63 6 162 

2019 10 89 72 5 176 

2020 8 83 71 5 167 

2021 6 78 71 6 161 

Source: data collected by IPC for MSR 

 
 
Adults aged under 65 placed in nursing homes out of county 
 

By need category, as at 31 March (out of county only) 

 Physical 
disability 
or sensory 
impairment 

Learning 
disabilities 

Mental 
health 
needs 

Other 
Needs 

Total 

2018 0 1 4 2 7 

2019 0 0 4 3 7 

2020 1 0 3 3 7 

2021 1 0 3 6 10 

Source: data collected by IPC for MSR 

 

 
Source: data collected by IPC for MSR 

 
 

5
8 9

12

7

7
7

10

0

5

10

15

20

25

2018 2019 2020 2021

Nursing Placements, people aged under 65, at 31 March

In County Out of County

Tudalen 300

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   100 

Number of registered care homes and places for adults aged 18-64, 2018 
 

 Homes Places 

 Without 
Nursing 

With  Without 
Nursing 

With  

Ceredigion 7 0 51 0 

Pembrokeshire 27 1 207 24 

Carmarthenshire 45 1 435 62 

West Wales 79 2 693 86 

Source: National Social Care Data Portal For Wales archived data 

 
This data has not been published in this form since 2018. Data collected by IPC for the 
MSR suggests little change in this picture so these figures remain a useful guide. 
 
 
Trends in expenditure on working age adults residential care 
 

Residential Care Placements People under 65 (all needs groups) 

 Own provision 
(including 
joint 
arrangements) 

Provision by 
others 
(including 
joint 
arrangements) 

Gross 
Expenditure 

Net 
Expenditure 

2018/19 £2,278,656 £31,670,722 £36,679,008 £23,515,690 

2019/20 £2,513,720 £34,428,506 £39,265,490 £31,062,030 

2020/21 £2,478,472 £36,114,158 £39,164,330 £31,502,256 

Source: Revenue Outturn returns analysed by IPC for MSR 

 

Nursing Care Placements People under 65 (all needs groups) 

 Own provision 
(including 
joint 
arrangements) 

Provision by 
others 
(including 
joint 
arrangements) 

Gross 
Expenditure 

Net 
Expenditure 

2018/19 £0.00 £9,892.31 £9,929.17 £574.40 

2019/20 £0.00 £9,118.77 £9,606.55 £1,707.63 

2020/21 £0.00 £10,013.38 £12,077.00 £1,503.69 

Source: Revenue Outturn returns analysed by IPC for MSR 

 
  

Tudalen 301

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   101 

Gross expenditure on placements (residential and nursing) by need group 
 

 
Source: Revenue Outturn returns analysed by IPC for MSR 

 

3.3 Regional Documents 

West Wales Charter for people with learning disabilities. 
Housing and accommodation needs assessment for people with learning disabilities in 
West Wales to 2037, Housing LIN 2019. 

3.4 Further Reading & Background 

Learning Disability: Improving Lives Programme. 
Code of Practice on the Delivery of Autism Services. 
Disability Wales, The Social Model of Disability. 
Together for Mental Health, a Strategy for Mental Health and Wellbeing in Wales. 
Shared Lives in Wales 2021. 
 

4 Children and Young People 

4.1 Demographic Data 

Population Estimates Mid-Year 2020 
 

 Aged 0 to 4  Aged 5 to 15  Aged 16 to 24  Total 0-24 

Carmarthenshire 9,259 23,897 17,430 50,586 

Ceredigion  2,877 7,897 10,606 21,380 

Pembrokeshire  5,719 15,644 11,265 32,628 

West Wales 17,855 47,438 39,301 104,594 

Source: Stats Wales, Population Projections 2018 based 

5%

68%

27%

Gross spend on residential and nursing placements 2021 by 
need group

Physical Disability or Sensory Impairment Learning Disability Mental Health Needs

Tudalen 302

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk
https://www.ldcharter.com/
https://www.wwcp.org.uk/wp/wp-content/uploads/2019/02/WWCP_LD_Housing_Assessment_HousingLIN.pdf
https://gov.wales/learning-disabilities
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2021-07/code-of-practice-on-the-delivery-of-autism-services.pdf
https://www.disabilitywales.org/social-model/
https://sharedlivesplus.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/06/State-of-the-Nation-Shared-Lives-2021-Report.pdf


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   102 

Projected change in number of people under 16 2021-31 
 

People aged 0 to 15 Number Percentage 

Carmarthenshire -1,862 -6% 

Ceredigion  -1,164 -11% 

Pembrokeshire  -2,097 -10% 

West Wales -5,124 -8% 

Source: Stats Wales, Population Projections 2018 based 

4.2 Trends in activity, capacity and spend 

Children looked after at 31 March 
 

 
Source: National Social Care Data Portal for Wales 

 
 
Proportion Placed in Foster Care 
 

 % 

Carmarthenshire  83.3% 

Ceredigion  70.6% 

Pembrokeshire  73.3% 

West Wales 76.1% 

Wales 69.8% 

Source: Stats Wales, Children looked after at 31 March by placement type 

 
  

Tudalen 303

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   103 

Trend in out of county placements 
 

 
Source: data collected by IPC for MSR 

 
Trend in out of region placements 
 

 
Source: data collected by IPC for MSR 

 
In-house capacity as at January 2022 
 

 Maximum 
Places 

Occupied 
Places 

Vacant 
Places 

Unavailable 
Places 

Carmarthenshire 199 199 0 0 

Fostering 191 191 0 0 

Residential 8 8   

Ceredigion 79 77 2  

Fostering 79 77 2  

2018 2019 2020 2021

Carmarthenshire 17 19 14 12

Pembrokeshire 22 28 30 37

Ceredigion 9 8 10 15

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

Children Placed out of County

Ceredigion Pembrokeshire Carmarthenshire

2018 2019 2020 2021

Ceredigion 3 5 7 6

Pembrokeshire 16 16 16 11

Carmarthenshire 1 0 0 0

West Wales 20 21 23 17

0

5

10

15

20

25

Children placed out of region

Ceredigion Pembrokeshire Carmarthenshire West Wales

Tudalen 304

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   104 

 Maximum 
Places 

Occupied 
Places 

Vacant 
Places 

Unavailable 
Places 

Pembrokeshire 121 111 10 0 

Fostering 115 105 10 0 

Residential 6 6   

Grand Total 399 387 12 0 

Source: Children’s Commissioning support Resource data analysed by IPC 

 
Charitable and third sector capacity as at January 2022 
 

 Maximum Places* 

Carmarthenshire 6 

Ceredigion 2 

Pembrokeshire 4 

Total 12 

Source: Children’s Commissioning support Resource data analysed by IPC 
*All fostering, there are no third sector children’s residential beds in West Wales 

 
Independent sector capacity as at January 2022 
 

 Maximum 
Places 

Occupied 
Places 

Vacant 
Places 

Unavailable 
Places 

Carmarthenshire 208 135 18 55 

Fostering 172 109 12 51 

Residential 36 26 6 4 

Ceredigion 59 37 4 18 

Fostering 59 37 4 18 

Pembrokeshire 113 83 15 15 

Fostering 70 47 8 15 

Residential 43 36 7 0 

Grand Total 380 255 37 88 

Source: Children’s Commissioning support Resource data analysed by IPC 

 
  

Tudalen 305

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   105 

Trends in gross expenditure on placements 
 

 
Source: Revenue Outturn returns analysed by IPC for MSR 

 
 

 
Source: Revenue Outturn returns analysed by IPC for MSR 

4.3 Regional Documents 

Children and Young People’s Residential Care and fostering, Mid and West Wales 
Market Position Statement, April 2021 to April 2023 (link when published) 

4.4 Social Care Wales Priority Area Reports 

Children who are looked after (you may select either an individual county or the region) 

Carmathenshire Ceredigion Pembrokeshire West Wales

2018/19 £3,800,918 £1,760,455 £2,457,000 £8,018,373

2019/20 £3,601,240 £1,947,719 £2,895,490 £8,444,449

2020/21 £3,225,452 £1,483,993 £3,207,750 £7,917,195

£0

£1,000,000

£2,000,000

£3,000,000

£4,000,000

£5,000,000

£6,000,000

£7,000,000

£8,000,000

£9,000,000

Fostering gross expenditure

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

Carmathenshire Ceredigion Pembrokeshire West Wales

2018/19 £2,878,153 £29,258 £1,230,000 £4,137,411

2019/20 £1,452,071 £357 £1,439,240 £2,891,668

2020/21 £549,841 £545,000 £1,744,490 £2,839,331

£0

£500,000

£1,000,000

£1,500,000

£2,000,000

£2,500,000

£3,000,000

£3,500,000

£4,000,000

£4,500,000

Children's residential gross expenditure

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

Tudalen 306

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk
https://www.socialcaredata.wales/IAS/themes/priorityareareports/childrenwhoarelookedafter


Market Stability Report (v12) February 2022 

  
ipc@brookes.ac.uk                                                                                                                                                   106 

4.5 Further Reading & Background 

Children Looked After in Wales: Trends Welsh Centre for Public Policy 2021. 
Children Looked After in Wales, Welsh Centre for Public Policy Evidence Briefing Paper 
2021. 
Children’s Commissioning Consortium Cymru (4C’s) response to ‘Competition Market 
Authority (CMA) Children’s social care market study, Invitation to Comment. 
Competition and Markets Authority Children’s Social Care Markets Study Interim 
Report. 
Social Care Wales, Improving Outcomes for children already living in care. 

Tudalen 307

mailto:ipc@brookes.ac.uk
https://www.wcpp.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/09/Children-looked-after-in-Wales-Trends.pdf
https://www.wcpp.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/WCPP-Evidence-Briefing-Children-looked-after-in-Wales.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/60a3c68dd3bf7f288288cd41/Childrens_Commissioning_Consortium_Cymru_-.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/60a3c68dd3bf7f288288cd41/Childrens_Commissioning_Consortium_Cymru_-.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/childrens-social-care-market-study-interim-report/interim-report
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/childrens-social-care-market-study-interim-report/interim-report
https://socialcare.wales/service-improvement/improving-outcomes-for-children-already-living-in-care


Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Population Needs Assessment 

DRAFT REPORT 

June 2022 

Tudalen 309



2 

 

 
Foreword            7 

List of Tables            9 

List of Figures          10 

1. Executive Summary        12 

2. Background and Scope       26 

2.1  Purpose of the Population Needs Assessment 2022   26 

2.2  Plan and Approach of the Population Need Assessment 2022  27 

3. Cross Cutting Themes       29 

3.1  Access to services       29 

3.2   Assessment and Diagnosis      29 

3.3  Communication        29 

3.4  Use of Digital Technology      30 

3.5  Embedding Co-production      30 

3.6  Prevention and Wellbeing      30 

3.7  Supporting our Workforce      31 

3.8  Transition        31 

3.9  Voice and Control       31 

3.10  Welsh Language       32 

4. West Wales Population Profile      33 

4.1   Deprivation and Lifestyle Factors     36 

4.2   Further Information       38 

5. Older People         40 

5.1  Introduction        40 

5.2  Demographic Profile       40 

5.2.1    Falls        43 

5.2.3    Rurality        43 

5.2.4    Loneliness and Isolation      44 

5.3  Care and Support Needs       44 

5.4  Current and Future Care and Support Provision    44 

5.5  Gaps and Areas for Improvement     45 

5.6  The impact of the Covid-19 Pandemic     45 

5.7  Recommendations       46 

Tudalen 310



3 

 

6. Dementia         49 

6.1  Introduction        49 

6.2  Demographic Profile       49 

6.3  Care and Support Needs       52 

6.4  Current and Future Care and Support Provision    52 

6.5  Gaps and Areas for Improvement     52 

6.6  The impact of the Covid-19 Pandemic     53 

6.7  Recommendations       54 

7. Unpaid Carers         55 

7.1  Introduction        55 

7.2  Demographic Profile       55 

7.3  Care and Support Needs       56 

7.4   Current and Future Care and Support Provision    57 

7.5  Gaps and Areas for Improvement     57 

7.5.1   Impact of being a carer on well-being and mental health  57 

7.5.2   Supporting the needs of carers     58 

7.5.3   Digital Inclusion and Technology     58 

7.5.4   Young People       59 

7.6  The impact of the COVID-19 Pandemic     59 

7.7  Recommendations       60 

8. Learning Disabilities        62 

8.1  Introduction        62 

8.1.1   Classification of a learning disability    62 

8.1.2   Health facts and inequalities associated with LD   62 

8.2  Demographic Profile       62 

8.2.1   Children and Young People     63 

8.2.2   Adults        63 

8.2.3   PMLD        64 

8.2.4   Placements and Provision     64 

8.3  Care and Support needs       65 

8.4  Current and Future Care and Support Provision    65 

8.5   Gaps and Areas for Improvement     66 

8.5.1   Children and Young People     66 

8.6  The impact of the Covid-19 Pandemic     66 

8.7  Recommendations       67 

9. Autism          68 

Tudalen 311



4 

 

9.1  Introduction        68 

9.2  Demographic Profile       68 

9.3  Care and Support Needs       68 

9.4  Current and Future Care and Support Provision    69 

9.5  Gaps and Areas for Improvement     69 

9.6  The impact of the Covid-10 Pandemic     71 

9.7  Recommendations       71 

10. Children and Young People       73 

10.1  Introduction        73 

10.2  Demographic Profile       73 

10.3  Care and Support Needs       75 

10.4  Current and Future Care and Support Provision    76 

10.5  Gaps and Areas for Improvement     76 

10.5.1   Voice and control      76 

10.5.2   Prevention and early intervention    76 

10.5.3   Wellbeing       76 

10.5.4   Co-production       76 

10.5.5   Cooperation, partnership, and integration   76 

10.6  The impact of the Covid-19 Pandemic     77 

10.7  Recommendations       77 

11. Mental Health         78 

11.1  Introduction        78 

11.1.1   Classification of Mental Health     78 

11.1.2    Health facts and inequalities associated with Mental Health 78 

11.2  Demographic Profile       78 

11.2.1   Admissions to Mental Health Facilities by Local Health Board 79 

11.2.2   Specialist Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services  

(sCAMHS) waiting for a First Appointment   80 

11.2.3    Local Primary Mental Health Support Services   80 

11.2.4    Predicted Change in Mental Disorder Prevalence   80 

11.3  Care and Support Needs       81 

11.4  Current and Future Care and Support Provision    81 

11.5  Gaps and Areas for Improvement     82 

11.6  The impact of the Covid-19 pandemic     83 

11.7  Recommendations       83 

12. Health and Physical Disabilities      86 

Tudalen 312



5 

 

12.1  Introduction        86 

12.2  Demographic Profile       86 

12.3  Care and Support Needs       87 

12.4  Current and Future Care and Support Provision    87 

12.5  Gaps and Areas for Improvement     88 

12.6  The impact of the Covid-19 Pandemic     88 

12.7  Recommendations       88 

13. Sensory Impairment        90 

13.1  Introduction        90 

13.1.1   Visual Impairment and Sight Loss    90 

13.1.2   Hearing Impairment and Deafness    90 

13.1.3   Dual Sensory Impairment     90  

13.2  Demographic Profile       91 

13.3  Care and Support Needs       91 

13.4  Current and Future Care and Support Provision    92 

13.5  Gaps and Areas for Improvement     92 

13.6  The impact of the Covid-19 pandemic     92 

13.7  Recommendations       93 

14. Substance Misuse        94 

14.1  Introduction        94 

14.2  Demographic Profile       94 

14.3  Care and Support Needs       95 

14.4  Current and Future Care and Support Provision    95 

14.5  Gaps and Areas for Improvement     96 

14.6  The impact of the Covid-19 pandemic     97 

14.7  Recommendations       97 

15. Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence  98 

15.1  Introduction        98 

15.2  Demographic Profile       98 

15.3  Care and Support Needs       100 

15.4  Current and Future Care and Support Provision    100 

15.5  Gaps and Areas for Improvement     101 

15.6  The impact of the Covid-19 pandemic     101 

15.7  Recommendations       102 

 

 

Tudalen 313



6 

 

APPENDICES          

Appendix 5A          104 

Appendix 5B          105 

Appendix 5C          107 

Appendix 6A          108 

Appendix 6B          110 

Appendix 6C          112 

Appendix 7A          113 

Appendix 7B          115 

Appendix 7C          118 

Appendix 8A          119 

Appendix 8B          120 

Appendix 8C          124 

Appendix 9A          125 

Appendix 9B          126 

Appendix 9C          127 

Appendix 10A          128 

Appendix 10B          130 

Appendix 10C          131 

Appendix 11A          132 

Appendix 11B          133 

Appendix 11C          135 

Appendix 12A          139 

Appendix 12B          141 

Appendix 12C          142 

Appendix 13A          143 

Appendix 13B          144 

Appendix 13C          145 

Appendix 14A          149 

Appendix 14B          151 

Appendix 14C          155 

Appendix 15A          158 

Appendix 15B          159 

Appendix 15C          160 

Tudalen 314



7 

 

Foreword 
 
The Regional Partnership Board brings together partners from local government, the 
NHS, third and independent sectors with service users and carers. Our aim is to 
transform care and support services in West Wales. Our region covers the area of 
Hywel Dda University Health Board and includes the local authority areas of 
Carmarthenshire, Ceredigion and Pembrokeshire. 

We are required to produce a Population Needs Assessment (PNA) under section 14 
of the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act and in 2017 published our first. This 
was an important document, as it was the first time we had produced an assessment 
of the health and care needs of our population in this way.  

The findings from this assessment have since guided our planning, investment and 
service delivery in West Wales. We are now required to publish our second. This is an 
opportunity to update and refresh the findings of our first PNA and to consider the 
progress we have made. 

Central to our approach has been engagement and collaboration with the people who 
live in West Wales. We have worked closely with our stakeholders, including our Public 
Service Boards (PSBs), our professional and stakeholder working groups and, most 
importantly, wherever we can, our citizens.  

Welsh Government provides detailed guidance for population assessments and there 
are a few important changes for this version. Firstly, we must give specific attention 
to the needs of Autistic people and those living with Dementia.  

Secondly, we must take account of the impact of COVID-19. We know this has affected 
everyone in our community, but particularly those who use health and social care 
services.  

Also, the Welsh Government has asked that this year we undertake a ‘Market Stability 
Report.’ This is a separate report which will consider whether we have sufficient 
services in the care sector and how able they are to meet future demand. 

Whilst these assessments are important pieces of work, more important are our 
actions that will follow them. These will be developed and included in our West Wales 
Area Plan, which we will produce by April 2023, setting out our ambitions for the years 
ahead.    

We want our assessments to be accessible to people in West Wales and, alongside 
our detailed reports, we will be publishing them on our online data portal. This will 
ensure that the information is continually refreshed and updated. We are also 
committed to ensuring that ‘engagement’ is not a one-off activity; rather, a continuous 
and collaborative conversation with our citizens. 

We are in unprecedented times and the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and other 
global events will continue to present us with significant challenges in West Wales. 
However, we believe that our Population Needs Assessment, and the approach we 

Tudalen 315

http://www.wwcp-data.org.uk/


8 

 

have taken to complete this, will enable us to overcome these 
challenges together, to evolve and continue to deliver excellent 
outcomes for the people of West Wales. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Judith Hardisty 

Chair, West Wales Regional 

Partnership Board 

Tudalen 316



9 

 

List of Tables 
 

 

Table No. 
 

 

 

Title 
 

 

 

Page No. 

Table 1 Key population statistics (HDdUHB Pharmaceutical Needs 
Assessment, 2021) 

34 

Table 2 Life expectancy and healthy life expectancy in the three local 
authorities (HDdUHB Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment, 2021) 

34 

Table 3 Children receiving care and support by local authority and 
disability (StatsWales) 

74 

Table 4 Referrals received and accepted to S-CAMHS (CAMHS) 75 

Table 5 Summary Statistics Description of HDdUHB’s population (Public 
Health Wales, 2019) 

95 

Table 6 Number of people receiving payment attendance allowance for 
age groups in local authorities and West Wales (November, 2020) 

107 

Table 7 Number of people registered as partially sighted or blind in local 
authorities 

145 

Table 8 Predicted number of people with visual impairment in 
Carmarthenshire in 2020 and 2043 by age group 

146 

Table 9 Predicted number of people with visual impairment in 
Pembrokeshire in 2020 and 2043 by age group 

146 

Table 10 Predicted number of people with visual impairment  
in Ceredigion in 2020 and 2043 by age group 

146 

Table 11 Current and predicted number of adults with hearing impairment 
in Carmarthenshire by age group 

147 

Table 12 Current and predicted number of adults in Pembrokeshire with 
hearing impairment by age group 

147 

Table 13 Current and predicted number of adults in Ceredigion with 
hearing impairment by age group 

147 

Table 14 West Wales’ response to the Welsh Government Delivery Plan 
2019-2022 

152 

 
  

Tudalen 317



10 

 

List of Figures 

 

 

Figure No. 
 

 

 

Title 
 

 

 

Page No. 

Figure 1 The West Wales and Hywel Dda University Health Board region, 
which includes the counties of Pembrokeshire, Carmarthenshire 
and Ceredigion (HDdUHB Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment 2021; 
ONS) 

28 

Figure 2 Population projections by age cohort in Hywel Dda University 
Health Board 2018 – 2043 (Welsh Government, 2018)  

34 

Figure 3 Population of Wales by gender and age group, mid 2020 (values 
presented as percentage of total population) (ONS, 2021)  

34 
 

Figure 4 Population of West Wales by gender and age group, mid 2020 

(values presented as percentage of total population (ONS, 2021)  

35 
 

 
Figure 5 

Population of Ceredigion by gender and age group, mid 2020  
(values presented as percentage of total population) (ONS, 2021) 

36 
 

 
Figure 6 

Population of Pembrokeshire by gender and age group, mid 2020  
(values presented as percentage of total population) (ONS, 2021) 

36 
 

 
Figure 7 

Population of Carmarthenshire by gender and age group, mid 2020 

(values presented as percentage of total population) (ONS, 2021) 

37 

 
Figure 8 

Welsh Index of Multiple Deprivation (WIMD) for the West Wales 

region (2019) 

38 

Figure 9 Alcohol consumption among adults for each local health board, 
2016/17-2017/18 (HDdUHB Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment, 
2021) 

39 

Figure 10 Population of West Wales by gender and age group, mid 2020 
(values presented as percentage of total population) (ONS, 2021) 

42 

Figure 11 Population Projections by percentage of the total population in 
West Wales 2018 – 2043 (Welsh Government, 2018) 

42 

Figure 12 Projected number of people aged 65+ for each local authority 
(Welsh Government, 2018) 

43 

Figure 13 Projected growth for different age groups, HDdUHB (percentage 
growth compared to 2018 values) (Welsh Government, 2018) 

43 

Figure 14 Percentage growth of 85+ group in different local authorities 
(Welsh Government, 2018) 

44 

Figure 15 
 

Predicted number of people with dementia in HDdUHB 2020-2040 
(Attain, WWCP) 

52 

Figure 16 
 

Dementia statistics (Alzheimer’s Society UK) 52 

Figure 17 Number of adults (aged 16 to 64) claiming Personal Independence 
Payments in West Wales [data collected from the department of 
works and pension, https://stat-xplore.dwp.gov.uk] 

65 

Figure 18 Placements for PwLD in West Wales [data collected from WG, 
https://statswales.gov.wales] 

66 

Figure 19 Diagram illustrating the role of the Autism Champion in collating and 
sharing information to inform the Regional Partnership Board (Welsh 
Government, 2021)  

71 

Figure 20 Number of looked after children in Wales 2017 – 2021 (Welsh 
Government) 

74 

Figure 21 Number of young people not in education, employment or training 75 

Figure 22 Population accessing non statutory / statutory services in West 
Wales 

75 

Tudalen 318



11 

 

Figure 23 Total number of patients on the mental health Qualities and 
Outcomes Framework (QOF), registered in HDdUHB and Wales  

79 

Figure 24 Total admissions to mental health facilities in Wales and West Wales 
from 2010 to 2019 

80 

Figure 25 sCAMHS pathways waiting time for first appointment (up to 4 weeks, 
compared to over 4 weeks) in Wales 

81 

Figure 26 sCAMHS pathways waiting time for first appointment (up to 4 weeks, 
compared to over 4 weeks) in West Wales 

135 

Figure 27 HdUHB population and Limiting Long-term Illness 87 

Figure 28 HDdUHB population with limiting disability 87 

Figure 29 Sensory impairment in West Wales 91 

Figure 30 Total number of people projected to have fuel poverty in different 
age groups in HDdUHB 

107 

Figure 31 Dementia Charts and Graphs (GP QOF) 112 

Figure 32 Dementia Charts and Graphs (GP QOF) 112 

Figure 33 Dementia Charts and Graphs (GP QOF) 112 

Figure 34 Provision of unpaid care in HDdUHB (ONS, 2011) 118 

Figure 35 Projection of number of children and young people with moderate 
LD across the LA in West Wales [Projection based on models 
provided by Social Care Wales Population Projection Profile, 
www.daffodilcymru.org.uk] 

124 

Figure 36 Number of children or young people (aged 0-16)  
entitled to Disability Living Allowance in West Wales  
[data collected from the department of works and pension, 
https://stat-xplore.dwp.gov.uk] 

124 

Figure 37 Needs of Children, Young People and Families 130 

Figure 38 Percentage of people aged 16+ years free from common mental 
disorders in West Wales local authorities compared to Wales and 
West Wales as a whole, 2020 

135 
 

Figure 39 Section 135 and 136 detentions in Wales and West Wales by 
quarter 

136 

Figure 40 Patients in mental health hospitals and units in Wales with a mental 
illness 

136 

Figure 41 Deprivation of liberty safeguard requests received by each local 
authority from 2017 to 2020 

137 

Figure 42 Yearly deaths due to suicide in local authorities and Wales, 2013 - 
2020 

138 

Figure 43 Number of people entitled to Personal Independence Payments and 
Disability Living Allowance in the West Wales area 

142 

Figure 44 HDdUHB population and Limiting Long-term Illness and limiting 
disability 

142 

Figure 45 Projected number of people with visual impairment in Wales and 
Local Authorities, 2020 – 2043 

145 

Figure 46 Projected change in adults 18+ with hearing impairment,  
in Wales and West Wales Local Authorities 2020 – 2043 

147 

Figure 47  Number of drug related deaths in Hywel Dda by year (2018-2020) 155 

Figure 48 Comparison charts to show the changes over time in the gender  
of drug related deaths in Hywel Dda (2018-2020) 

156 

Figure 49 Age distribution of drug related deaths in Hywel Dda 2018-2020 156 

Figure 50 Geographical spread of drug related deaths in Hywel Dda 2018-
2020 

157 

  

Tudalen 319

http://www.daffodilcymru.org.uk/


12 

 

1. Executive Summary 

According to the Office for National Statistics (ONS) by 2025, the population of the 

West Wales region is estimated at 389,719, an increase of 1.34% since the 2017 

population assessment was undertaken.  

 

• 48.8% of the population in the region live in Carmarthenshire, 18.7% in 
Ceredigion and 32.5% live in Pembrokeshire.  

• 40% of adults in Carmarthenshire, 49% of adults in Ceredigion and 22% of 
adults in Pembrokeshire speak Welsh. 

• 2021 estimates from the ONS indicate that people over 65 make up 24.1% of 
the population in Carmarthenshire, 26.2% in Ceredigion and 26.7% in 
Pembrokeshire and, as large parts of West Wales are both rural and coastal, 
the area attracts high levels of inward migration of people over 65 

 

By 2043, current Welsh Government population projections predict an increase in the 

total population of West Wales to 396,000, with a predicted rise in those aged over 

65 to 124,587 or 31.5% of the total population. 

 

Overview and Summary by Population Group 

1. Older People 

Overview and key messages 

 

West Wales has a higher proportion of older people than average across Wales, with 
inward migration a major accelerating factor for the growth of the older population. 
Pembrokeshire has an older population than Carmarthenshire and Ceredigion. The 
projected increase in those 85 and over is 28% by 2030, with local variation as follows: 
Carmarthenshire=25%; Ceredigion=26% and Pembrokeshire=33%. 
 
People are living longer with increasingly complex issues, whilst wanting to remain in 
their own homes and live as independently as possible for as long as possible. COVID-
19 has had a significant impact on the physical and mental wellbeing of older people. 
This is as a result of long periods of social isolation, lack of access to health and care 
services as well as the direct impact of contracting COVID-19.   

Care and support arrangements should be designed with older people; should be 
flexible and include a range of community, digital and technology-based solutions. 

Gaps and areas for improvement  

 

Include: 

 

• Involving older people and their carers in assessment and care planning, 
including discharge planning 

• Helping people to remain independent in their homes for longer through 
continuing development of digital and telehealth support, particularly for those 
in very rural areas and where transport is an issue 

Tudalen 320



13 

 

• Providing additional support for carers managing multiple and complex 
conditions 

• Continuing development of community connectivity, well-being and resilience 
services that address a range of needs including loneliness and isolation 

• Increasing supply of alternative accommodation options such as extra-care 
schemes. 

• Ensuring older people and their families can access services through their 
language of choice and the active offer through the medium of Welsh is 
available. 

 

The impact of COVID -19: 
 
COVID-19 has led to widespread social isolation, with lasting implications on the 
mental health of older people. People have delayed seeking help during the pandemic 
and now are presenting with much more complex health issues. 
 
Due to the reported mortality rates in residential care older people are now far more 
reluctant to go into residential care creating a greater demand for alternative 
accommodation. 
 

2. Dementia 

Overview and key messages 

 

As life expectancy and inward migration of older people impacts on the percentage of 

older people in the region, the number of People Living with Dementia (PLwD) in West 

Wales is expected to increase in the coming decades.  

 

The Dementia Action Plan for Wales (DAP) 2018 – 2022 sets out a clear vision for 

“Wales to be a dementia friendly nation that recognises the rights of people with 

dementia to feel valued and to live as independently as possible in their communities.” 

 

Our West Wales Regional Dementia Strategy informs the development of person-

centred dementia pathways, co-produced with users and carers. 

 

Key messages are as follows: 

 

• The incidence of dementia on the Quality Assurance and Improvement 
Framework (QAIF) disease register in Hywel Dda in 2019-20 was 0.7%, in line 
with the Welsh national average of 0.7% 

• In 2016-17 dementia diagnosis rates were one of the lowest in Wales at 45.6% 
indicating that prevalence rates are likely to be closer to 1.4% although, the 
number of those diagnosed has increased an average of 3% per annum to 
2947 in 2020. 

• Over thirty genetic, medical, lifestyle, cultural and societal factors have been 
identified, which impact the risk of cognitive decline differently depending on 
gender. Some of these factors increase risk more dramatically in women than 
in men.  

Tudalen 321

https://view.officeapps.live.com/op/view.aspx?src=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.wwcp.org.uk%2Fwp-content%2Fuploads%2F2022%2F06%2FWWCP-Dementia-Strategy-Final-Issued.pptx&wdOrigin=BROWSELINK


14 

 

 

Gaps and areas for improvement 

 

These include: 

 

• Continuing to improve awareness, identification, and diagnosis of dementia, 
including onset of dementia in younger people  

• To ensure timely diagnosis and access to appropriate care and support 
• Improving co-production of services by including PLwD  
• Increasing diagnosis rates in non-specialist community settings by: 

• Improving training and awareness of new evidence-based best practice 
dementia models within primary care, based on the Good Work 
Framework 

• Supporting GPs, allied health professionals (AHPs) and nurses to make 
assessments 

• Improving quality of referrals into specialist care for those requiring it 

• Developing more consistent rights-based person-centred care and support 
• Continuing improvements in community support, training and help for PLwD 

to discuss their diagnosis, navigate/co-ordinate services, to build resilience 
and maintain balance across all aspects of their life 

• Ensuring equal access to physical health services and treatment for PLwD 
• Ensuring advance care planning and end of life care is fully embedded within 

our approach. 
• Improving research into dementia by involving care homes in the region in 

research opportunities 
• Continuing the development of a “hub” or single point of contact approach for 

PLwD to access information and support.  
 

The impact of COVID -19: 

 

COVID-19 has had a disproportionately negative impact on PLwD, with dementia being 

shown as an age-independent risk factor for severity and death in COVID-19 patients. 

 

Although the exact impact on the diagnosis and incidence rate of dementia is unclear, 

stakeholders have identified that COVID-19 has impacted timely diagnosis due to late 

presentations. 

 

Full information on the impact of COVID-19 upon those with dementia and their carers 

is not yet available. However, there is some concern that it may cause damage to the 

brain in the longer term.   

 

3. Unpaid Carers 

Overview and key messages 

 

2011 ONS Census data indicates there are more than 47,000 known unpaid carers 

across West Wales, of which, 3,436 were Young Carers (defined as 5-17 years old), 

Tudalen 322



15 

 

representing 12.5% of residents. It is also recognised that there is a considerable 

number of ‘hidden’ carers who do not define themselves as such. 

 

Early identification and self-identification of unpaid carers is vital to ensure they access 

the right help and support at the right time, as well as maintain their own health, well-

being and independence. 

 

Support for unpaid carers in West Wales is driven through the West Wales Carers 

Development Group (WWCDG), a formal sub-group of the West Wales Regional 

Partnership Board (RPB) and a partnership between Hywel Dda University Health 

Board, the three Local Authorities of Carmarthenshire, Ceredigion and Pembrokeshire, 

Third and Voluntary sector organisations and representatives of service users and 

Carers in West Wales. 

 

The Regional Partnership Board published their Carers Strategy in November 2020 

WWCDG West Wales Carers Strategy 2020-2025. The West Wales Carers 

Development Group (WWCDG) are responsible for ensuring that an annual action plan 

is in place to respond to the key priority areas.  

 

Gaps and areas for improvement  

 

• Continuing improvements in the consistency of approach, information, advice 
and assistance provided across the region, within a more integrated system  

• Reviewing information provided to carers to ensure it is current, relevant, 
more accessible and easier to find  

• Extending use of social media and technology to identify and provide 
information to carers and maintain regular contact, particularly for young 
carers  

• Developing a single point of contact to help people navigate the system 

• Ensuring respite care fits the needs of both the carer and the cared for 
• Addressing the challenges of accessing support in rural areas 
• Improving the statutory carers assessment process, which can be challenging, 

often takes too long and may not always consider carers needs appropriately  
• Improving delivery of the “active offer” through the medium of Welsh. Carers 

want to feel comfortable using their preferred language of choice, including 
languages other than English and Welsh 

 
Young carers report: 

• They struggle to have a break, are not seeing their friends and don’t have 
their own space.  

• They find it difficult to balance schoolwork, homework and their caring role 
and can feel stressed, worried and anxious at school, as they are away from 
the person that relies on them for care  

• They may require extra support for their mental health and wellbeing. 
 

  

Tudalen 323

https://www.wwcp.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/11/Carers-Strategy-Final-20.10.20-Eng.pdf


16 

 

The impact of COVID -19: 

 

Caring is such an important part of life and the role of unpaid Carers has become 

increasingly prominent. A significant number of unpaid carers have sought support 

with their caring role and many carers reported: 

 

• Feeling isolated during the pandemic 
• Being cautious of people coming into their homes due to the risk in virus 

transmission, with many choosing to suspend domiciliary care, putting further 
strain on their wellbeing and mental health 

• Experiencing financial pressure, as they have had to take more time off work 
to support the person they care for 

• Concern over the adverse effect of limited social contact on the well-being of 
loved ones in hospitals and care homes, due to strict visiting restrictions  

• Young carers missed the break from caring and social interaction with peers 
that schooling usually provides 

• Improved access to support due to the increased availability of on-line services 
in response to the pandemic 

 

4. Learning Disabilities 

Overview and key messages 

 

The population of People with a Learning Disability (PwLD) in West Wales is projected 

to remain relatively stable. However, projections suggest the number of people 

diagnosed with severe or profound and multiple learning disabilities (PMLD) is 

expected to grow by 1.8% each year.  The number of older people with a learning 

disability is set to increase.  

 

PwLD often have additional diagnoses and/or co-existing conditions such as: autism; 

physical disabilities; sensory and communication impairment. They are more likely to 

experience poorer physical and mental health and multiple morbidities, often linked to 

poor diet, low levels of physical activity, smoking, alcohol use and difficulties in 

accessing preventative health services. 

 

Through the Regional Improving Lives Partnership, PwLD have worked together with 

partners to develop the West Wales Charter – a simple list of things they expect, and 

need, to live fulfilling lives. The charter is supported by the Welsh Government; County 

Councils of Carmarthenshire, Ceredigion and Pembrokeshire, Hywel Dda University 

Health Board and a range of community and 3rd sector organisations. 

 

Gaps and areas for improvement  
 

Include: 
 
• Improving awareness of the needs of PwLD and through training and 

education of service providers, healthcare workers, families and carers 

Tudalen 324

https://www.ldcharter.com/


17 

 

• Improving the quality of communication with and information for PwLD (easy 
read) 

• Widening access to supported accommodation in a location of choice 
• Strengthening access to education, volunteering and paid work opportunities 

in local communities 
• Improving processes for managing transition between children’s and adult 

services and specialist health services 
• Supporting self-advocacy for PwLD  
• Increasing planning and resources for people with PMLD and their carers 
 

The impact of COVID -19: 
 
COVID-19 has had a particular effect on the physical and mental health of PwLD and 
their care and support network. This has been exacerbated by the availability of the 
services and care, such as day opportunities and short breaks.  
 
Many PwLD have been required to shield during the pandemic, limiting their 
opportunities to contribute to many of the consultations and planning events as part 
of this assessment.  

 

5. Autism  

Overview and key messages 

 

Autism is a term used to describe people with a group of complex neuro developmental 

symptoms, of variable severity which affects how people communicate and interact 

with the world. Autism is generally described as a spectrum and can cover a wide 

range of behaviours and needs. Autism was covered under the Learning Disability 

chapter in the 2017 Population Assessment. However, in response to the introduction 

of the Autism Code of Practice in 2021, a separate Autism chapter is being developed. 

 

The term ‘autistic people’ rather than ‘people with autism’, reflects the language 

preferences expressed by autistic people. The term ‘people’ refers to children, young 

people and adults. 

 

Estimates of the prevalence of autism spectrum disorders suggest rates of around 1% 
in the general population. This would suggest there are about 4000 autistic people 
living in West Wales. However, there is much debate and the suggestion that not all 
individuals are identified [1]. 

New services for adult diagnosis have been set up across Wales at a time of rising 
awareness of the spectrum of autism experiences; however, until recently no studies 
have examined adult autism prevalence in Wales 

Increased rates of diagnosis and more prevalence of autism will require more specialist 
support in the community. 

Feedback from engagement meetings across the region identified the following: 

 

Tudalen 325

https://gov.wales/new-code-practice-delivery-autism-services-published


18 

 

Gaps and areas for improvement: 

• Improve waiting times for diagnosis and diagnosis rates for both children and 
adults 

• Improve access to information and advice for Autistic people and their 
families, including the autism strategy and the associated support services 
available in West Wales.  

• Improve awareness of Autism and the Autistic Spectrum Conditions across 
health, social care services, education and all public services.   

• Greater emphasis on user engagement and coproduction in service 
development 

• Improving the transition for Autistic Young people when they leave school  

• Increasing opportunities for volunteering, work experience, employment 
opportunities and networking for autistic people.  

 

The impact of COVID -19: 

 

The pandemic has impacted on the care and support available for autistic people as 

many support services were paused. In addition, the uncertainty and frequent changes 

to routines and rules will, in some cases have had a significant impact upon people’s 

mental-health and wellbeing. This has placed increased pressure on family members 

and carers.  

 

For Autistic People the resumption of and reintegration to activities such as education 

following prolonged periods of lock down has also presented significant challenges.  

 

6. Children and Young People 

Overview and key messages 

 

There are over 82,000 children and young people in the region, approximately 22% 

of the total population. Although the population of children and young people up to 

the age of 25 will remain relatively stable, the number of children aged 10-15 in the 

region is expected to decline by 8% by 2031. It is estimated that 6,105 children and 

young people live with a long-term condition or disability.  

Children and young people are considered under the following three groups:  

 

• Up to the age of 18 

• Up to the age of 21 if they’ve been in care 

• Up the age of 25 if they’ve been in care and are still in education 

 

The region has a lower number of looked After Children (LAC) than the national 

average. The Capped 9-point score (Year 11 pupils’ best 9 results from qualifications 

available in Wales) is 361.7, above the Wales average of 353.8. 

 

At 14%, the number of young people not in education, employment or training in 

West Wales is marginally lower than the Welsh average. 

 

Tudalen 326



19 

 

Gaps and areas for improvement: 

 

These include: 

 

• Further integration with early years services 
• Involvement of children and young people, including care experienced young 

people and those with complex needs such as disability in the planning of 
services.    

• Further development of preventative and early intervention services, building 
on established programmes such as Family Information Services, Families First 
and Team Around the Family and trauma informed models of support 

• Considering the importance of physical, mental and emotional wellbeing of 
children and the key role of community services play in achieving this 

• Enhancing partnership working to deliver a ‘No Wrong Door’ approach to 
services so that children and young people receive the support they need 
regardless of where they enter the system.  

• Developing resilience and wellbeing in families to enable children and young 
people to remain within their families and/ or communities so long as it is safe 
for them to do so 

• Continuing development of multi-agency and individualised approach to 
supporting children with complex needs 

• Developing a regional transition process for children and young people into 
adult services where appropriate 

 

The impact of COVID -19: 

 

Children and Young People’s Mental Health and Wellbeing has been significantly 
affected during the pandemic. School closures, quarantine periods, fear of becoming 
unwell and impact upon older relatives are factors that have contributed to a decline 
in their Mental Health and Wellbeing. 
 
In addition, Children and Young People from areas of poverty were subject to 
increased risk of poor Mental Health and Wellbeing. Contributing factors included the 
increased worry of parent financial insecurity, lack of social support, housing quality 
and poor nutrition. 
 

Children’s Social Services have maintained face-to-face contact for children identified 

as at risk throughout the pandemic. However, enforced absences form school and 

time at home has presented significant challenges in identifying and responding to 

risk.    

 

The region has experienced a rise Children and Young People seeking support with 

complex emotional and mental health difficulties, including behaviours that challenge. 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 327



20 

 

7. Mental Health 

Overview and key messages 

 

Our mental health affects how we think, feel and act. A healthy outlook can reduce 

both the intensity and duration of illnesses, whereas poor mental health can have the 

opposite effect. It has been shown that depression and its symptoms are major risk 

factors in the development of coronary heart disease and death after myocardial 

infarction. Stigma surrounding mental illness is common and can play a role in people 

potentially hiding issues surrounding their mental health rather than seeking help, 

which can be mitigated through increasing the information, education and public 

awareness. 

 

According to the Welsh Government’s Together for Mental Health Strategy:  

 

• 1 in 4 adults experience mental health problems or illness at some point in 
their lifetime 

• 1 in 6 adults are experiencing symptoms at any one time 

• 1 in 10 children between the ages of 5 and 16 has a mental health problem, 
and many more have behavioural issues 

• Approximately 50% of people who go on to have serious mental health 
problems will have symptoms by the time they are 14 and many at a much 
younger age 

 
The Hywel Dda Mental Health Quality and Outcomes Framework (QOF) register 

records approximately 4,100 patients in 2019. 

 

Through a range of facilitated engagement sessions we were able to identify:  

 

Gaps and areas for improvement 

 

• Improving integration and communication between services, so that patients 
with multiple issues have access to the range of support and care needed 

• Improving processes for those experiencing crisis, to reduce instances where 
patients in crisis have difficulty accessing services 

• Promoting and supporting self-management by educating people on how to 
manage their conditions, live more independently and make their own choices.  

• Shifting the emphasis to community-based services  
• Recognising the effect of COVID-19 and the resulting increased demand for 

mental health services. 
 

The impact of COVID -19:   

 

COVID-19 has led to increased isolation and a disruption of normal life, which could 

have short term effects on mental health. It is not clear what the long-term effects of 

COVID on mental health and wellbeing might be however, in the period immediately 

Tudalen 328

https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-03/together-for-mental-health-a-strategy-for-mental-health-and-wellbeing-in-wales.pdf


21 

 

before the pandemic, it was reported that 11.7% of Welsh people suffered from severe 

mental health issues, which reportedly climbed to 28.1% in April 2020 [2]. 

 

COVID-19 has also had a worse effect on particular on those groups who already 

experience poor mental health outcomes, including those from black and minority 

ethnic backgrounds, those with existing physical or learning disabilities and those in 

areas of high poverty.  

 

8. Health and Physical Disabilities 

Overview and key messages 

 

Most people in the West Wales region between the age 18 to 64 will not access care 

and support for a specific need or protected characteristic. Instead, they are served 

by public health information and national and local programmes designed to 

encourage healthy lifestyles and practices. These programmes are aimed at reducing 

specific health risk factors such as cardiovascular disease, often achieved by strategies 

to reduce obesity and smoking and improve diets. 

 

There are a proportion of people who have a range of specific needs because of 

physical disability or chronic health conditions that may require extra support to enable 

them to live as independently as possible. 

 

Gaps and areas for improvement  

 

identified through engagement include: 

 

• Involving people with a range of disabilities at the planning and design phase 
of new developments and accommodation, to ensure they are easy to use and 
accessible. 

• Improving early identification, treatment and management of preventable and 
chronic conditions including diabetes, heart disease and respiratory illness, to 
improve long term well-being and reduce complications. 

• Improving appropriate access to a range of information, advice and 
assistance. 

• Increasing use of assistive technology, such as telecare to transform 
domiciliary care and supported living services 

• Improving access support for assisted living. Many of the current rules and 
regulations about supporting and helping people with disabilities are too rigid. 

• Improving access to and communication of financial support such as personal 
independence payments, disabled facilities grant, direct payments  

• Improving the process for home improvements and modifications. 
• Increasing the flexibility of step up and down provision to respond to changing 

needs 
• Improving access to transport. 

 

 

Tudalen 329



22 

 

The impact of COVID -19:   

 

COVID-19 has led to widespread social isolation, with lasting impact on physical and 

mental health for those people having to shield during the pandemic.  

 

People have delayed seeking help or had difficulty accessing it during the pandemic 

and are now presenting later, with much more complex health issues often resulting 

in worsening comorbidities and prolonged illness. 

 

9. Sensory Impairment 

Overview and key messages 

 

Sensory impairment is a normal part of ageing. As sensory impairment can be a 

significant life-limiting condition, the challenges associated with the condition are likely 

to grow over the coming decades.  

 

People with sensory impairment are more likely to feel lonely and isolated. Research 

by RNID in 2000 found that 66% of deaf and hard of hearing people feel isolated due 

to their condition excluding them from everyday activities. 

 

Sensory impairment is something that cuts across system wide services; it is important 

that sensory impairment awareness and services are embedded in the whole system 

of provision. 

 

The combination of two sensory impairments can mean that a deafblind person will 

have difficulty, or find it impossible, to utilise and benefit fully from services for deaf 

people or services for blind people. Meeting the needs of deafblind people therefore 

needs a different approach. 

 

Apart from the day-to-day difficulties, people with sensory impairment also have 

poorer health outcomes, higher rates of poverty and lower educational achievements 

than people free from disability. 

 

• Both visual and hearing impairment are projected to increase in West Wales 
over the coming years 

• Accelerating factors for sight loss include diabetes and obesity 
• Sensory impairment is associated with increased risk of falls and fear of falling 

has a major impact on people’s ability to remain independent. 
 

Gaps and areas for improvement 

 

• Improving awareness and understanding of sensory impairment 
• Improving the accessible implementation standard and developing a process 

to audit implementation  
• Improving provision of accessible information e.g., braille letters  

Tudalen 330



23 

 

• Extending provision of the interpretation service outside 9-5 and increasing 
availability of interpreters 

• Enhancing record systems such as Welsh Patient Administration System 
(WPAS) to be able to record more than one impairment 

 

 

The impact of COVID -19:   

 

The COVID pandemic has contributed to communication difficulties for both hearing 

and visually impaired people. Access to information has been more difficult to obtain 

for the visually impaired e.g., reduced access to braille in surgeries. Where services 

have shifted from face to face to video consultations, they don’t work for sight 

impaired people, who may prefer phone conversations. 

 

The pandemic has also led to challenges for hearing impaired people around 

communication e.g., face masks make lip reading impossible. People with sensory 

impairment are more likely to suffer from isolation and loneliness, which has been 

exacerbated by the COVID pandemic. 

  

10. Substance Misuse 

Overview and key messages 

 

Welsh Government has recently launched its new Substance Misuse (drug and alcohol) 

Delivery Plan for 2019 - 2022. The new plan builds on the progress made during the 

lifetime of the 2008-2018 strategy and is a key reference for the Population 

Assessment.  

 

Gaps and areas for improvement 

 

• Improving prevention and harm reduction 
• Reducing smoking prevalence levels 
• Supporting individuals to improve health and aid maintain recovery 

• Supporting and protecting families 
• Tackling availability of substances and protecting individuals and 

communities 
• Developing stronger partnerships, workforce development and service user 

involvement. 
• Developing accommodation provision in response to care and support needs 

 

The impact of COVID -19:   

 

The effect of COVID-19 pandemic may have had a significant impact on substance 

misuse however, at present data is not available. 

 

 

Tudalen 331

https://gov.wales/substance-misuse-delivery-plan-2019-2022-0
https://gov.wales/substance-misuse-delivery-plan-2019-2022-0


24 

 

11. Violence against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual 

Violence (VAWDASV) 

Overview and key messages 

Violence against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (VAWDASV) is a major 

public health problem, a criminal justice issue, and a violation of human rights. It 

causes harm to individuals and families, and its impact can be felt across whole 

communities, societies, and economies and can impact on victims in many ways. For 

example, sexual violence can lead to a multitude of health consequences including 

physical, reproductive, and psychological harm. 

 

The Violence against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (Wales) Act 2015, 

together with the statutory guidance on commissioning sets the conditions and 

expectations for service developments in Wales, with progress reported annually.  

 

Gaps and areas for improvement 

 

• Increasing awareness of violence against women, domestic abuse and sexual 

violence 

• Enhancing education about healthy relationships and gender equality 

• Ensuring professionals are trained to provide effective, timely and appropriate 

responses to victims and survivors 

• Providing equal access to appropriately resourced high quality, needs led, 

strength based, gender responsive services 

• Improving prevention focussed initiatives e.g., IRIS/Ask Me. 

 

The impact of COVID -19:   

 

Emerging literature suggests that levels of VAWDASV have been impacted by the 

COVID-19 public health restrictions, including lockdown, shielding and social 

distancing regulations [3]. Whilst the full picture of how the pandemic has impacted 

on VAWDASV is still to fully emerge, it appears likely that both the scale and nature of 

VAWDASV may have worsened, with rising helpline contacts for all forms of VAWDASV 

and increased reports to emergency services for domestic abuse in some areas [4]. 

Many prevention strategies and programmes have been put on hold or been forced to 

adapt during the pandemic because of restrictions on movement, face to face 

interactions and public events. Given the increasing number of reports of VAWDASV 

during the pandemic, it is more important than ever to promote prevention through 

the transformation of norms, attitudes and stereotypes that accept and normalise 

violence. 

 

 

 

Tudalen 332

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2015/3/contents/enacted
https://gov.wales/violence-against-women-domestic-abuse-and-sexual-violence-progress-report-2019-2020-html


25 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

References: 

[1] (Brugha et al., 2011, 2016; Chiarotti & Venerosi, 2020; Fombonne et al., 2021; 

Lyall et al., 2017).  

[2] Rodriguez J. Covid-19 in Wales: the mental health and wellbeing impact. Wales 

Fiscal Analysis. Available at 

https://www.cardiff.ac.uk/__data/assets/pdf_file/0010/2533762/COVID-19-Mental-

health-FINAL-08-07-2021.pdf 

[3] Bystander-Experiences-of-Domestic-Violence-and-Abuse-during-the-COVID-19-

Pandemic.pdf (violencepreventionwales.co.uk) 

[4] https://committees.parliament.uk/writtenevidence/22280/pdf/ 

Tudalen 333

https://www.cardiff.ac.uk/__data/assets/pdf_file/0010/2533762/COVID-19-Mental-health-FINAL-08-07-2021.pdf
https://www.cardiff.ac.uk/__data/assets/pdf_file/0010/2533762/COVID-19-Mental-health-FINAL-08-07-2021.pdf
https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.violencepreventionwales.co.uk%2Fcms-assets%2Fresearch%2FBystander-Experiences-of-Domestic-Violence-and-Abuse-during-the-COVID-19-Pandemic.pdf&data=05%7C01%7CKNeyland%40carmarthenshire.gov.uk%7C4344b43870764b13f21f08da64f0569e%7C319baa9a8e8b4d1e86aef76a403f1c84%7C1%7C0%7C637933280786199478%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=s4C82OkcD8t5wq5cqgfymqwA1DK3EPFZH6fvSGCQ0x4%3D&reserved=0
https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.violencepreventionwales.co.uk%2Fcms-assets%2Fresearch%2FBystander-Experiences-of-Domestic-Violence-and-Abuse-during-the-COVID-19-Pandemic.pdf&data=05%7C01%7CKNeyland%40carmarthenshire.gov.uk%7C4344b43870764b13f21f08da64f0569e%7C319baa9a8e8b4d1e86aef76a403f1c84%7C1%7C0%7C637933280786199478%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=s4C82OkcD8t5wq5cqgfymqwA1DK3EPFZH6fvSGCQ0x4%3D&reserved=0
https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcommittees.parliament.uk%2Fwrittenevidence%2F22280%2Fpdf%2F&data=05%7C01%7CKNeyland%40carmarthenshire.gov.uk%7C4344b43870764b13f21f08da64f0569e%7C319baa9a8e8b4d1e86aef76a403f1c84%7C1%7C0%7C637933280786199478%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=OLd6b%2FwlG1Gh9GGjPBiC1g12gT1F3KfMm%2BDhPa6a0ko%3D&reserved=0


26 

 

2. Background and Scope 

 
Regional Partnership Boards (RPBs) are required to produce a Population Needs 
Assessment (PNA) once every local government electoral cycle. They provide a clear 
and specific evidence base to underpin the delivery of their statutory duties and inform 
planning and operational decisions in response to the changing needs of people with 
care and support needs. This is the second PNA published by the West Wales Regional 
Partnership Board (WWRPB).  
 

2.1 Purpose of the Population Needs Assessment 2022 

The PNA provides an overview of the population demographics and distributions 
across the West Wales region and a detailed assessment of the care and support needs 
of 11 important population groups outlined by the Welsh Government, which include: 
 

1. Older People (OP) 
2. Dementia (D) 
3. Unpaid Carers (UC) 
4. Learning Disabilities (LD) 
5. Autism (A) 
6. Children and Young People (C&YP) 
7. Mental Health (MH) 
8. Health and Physical Disabilities (H&PD) 
9. Sensory Impairment (SI) 
10. Substance Misuse (SM) 
11. Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (VAWDASV) 

 
The PNA draws on a range of existing strategies in place across the region, providing 
an opportunity to review strategic intent at regional and local level and assess:  
 

• the need for care and support 

• the support needs of carers in the area 
• the extent to which those needs are or are not being met 
• the impact of Covid-19, including ‘Long COVID’ on care and support needs 
• details of the range and level of services required to meet those needs 
• details of the range and level of services required to deliver the preventative 

services required in section 15 of the Social Services and Wellbeing Act 
• details of how these services will be delivered through the medium of Welsh 

 
This PNA has been undertaken collaboratively by all partners in the West Wales region, 
agreed by the Regional Partnership Board (RPB) and has been endorsed by the three 
local authorities (LAs) and Hywel Dda UHB.  It will inform the regional Area Plan, which 
sets out how partners aim to address the needs that are identified.   
 
The first PNA published in March 2017 can be found here (Layout 1 (wwcp.org.uk)). 

 

Tudalen 334

https://www.wwcp.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/03/West-Wales-Population-Assessment-March-2017.pdf


27 

 

 
Figure 1: The West Wales and Hywel Dda University Health Board region,  

which includes the counties of Pembrokeshire, Carmarthenshire and Ceredigion  
(Hywel Dda University Health Board Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment, 2021) 

 

2.2 Plan and Approach of the Population Need Assessment 

2022 

This report will include a detailed assessment of the care and support needs for each 
of the groups listed above. The results of these individual assessments are collated 
into thematic reports, which contain: 
 

• an introduction and demographic profile 
• a description of care and support needs 
• an overview of current and future care and support provision 
• special note of Welsh language and Covid-19 implications 

• identification of gaps and areas for development 
• recommendations  

 
This information was collated in several ways, through survey data, direct 
engagements with residents and through focus groups and discussions with expert 
clients.  Wherever possible, stakeholders, such as providers in the third and 
independent sectors, were engaged.  
 
The following questions were considered as part of the assessment of each of the 
population groups: 
 

Tudalen 335



28 

 

1. Do the core data sets (as used in the 2017 assessment, updated and provided for 
consideration) provide a comprehensive basis for assessing projected need for care 
and support among this population group? 

 
2. Are there additional data sets that are used for this population group and which 

would be useful in assessing need? How can these be sourced? 
 
3. Are there any further gaps in data which need to be addressed in order to give a 

comprehensive picture? 
 
4. What data is available to evidence sufficiency of current services to meet the 

identified need and where are some of the gaps? 
 
This approach ensured that a comprehensive picture was generated for each of the 
population groups being assessed.  
 
In addition, the following issues were considered for each of the population groups: 
 
1. Are there any key issues to consider in relation to this population group, which 

will have an impact on need for care and support in West Wales? How can the 
impact be quantified? 

 
2. What has / will be the impact of Covid-19, including ‘Long COVID’ on needs moving 

forwards?  
 
 

 

  

Tudalen 336



29 

 

3. Cross Cutting Themes 

This section provides an overview of cross-cutting themes which apply across 
population groups. This also builds upon the themes identified within the 2017 
Population Assessment. 
 
There are a range of population stakeholder groups in West Wales which support our 
approach to continuous engagement, consultation and planning. These groups help 
us to reflect the lived experience of people within our Population Assessment. 
 

3.1 Access to services 
 

The 2017 Population Assessment identified the challenge that many disadvantaged 

groups face in accessing services to meet their care and support needs. A range of 

actions have taken place and will be an ongoing priority for the RPB. These include: 

• The development of policies to ensure that it is as easy as possible for people 
to access support within their communities. 

• Services should take account of language of choice, economic and cultural 
needs and additional needs such as physical, sensory and learning disabilities, 
neurodiversity, cognitive impairment and poor mental health 

• The development of a single point of contact in each area, across the health 
and care system to make it easier to access relevant advice, information and 
support. 

• The need to continue to develop technological solutions such as Assist My Life 
app, telehealth and virtual day-centres which assist people in accessing 
services 

 

3.2 Assessment and diagnosis 
 

Waiting times for assessment, diagnosis and treatment, as well as availability of 

support have been significantly impacted in Wales as the result of the COVID-19 

pandemic. In West Wales, there is a need to continue: 

• Improving availability of information available in relation to accessing 
community-based services for diagnosis 

• Providing people with information regarding waiting times 
• Increasing the range of support offered following diagnosis 

 

3.3 Communication 
 
There is a need to: 

• Improve the consistency of information, advice and assistance across the 
region 

• Ensure information, including care plans, are available in a range of formats 
such as easy read, sign language and braille and in the language of choice 

Tudalen 337



30 

 

• Continue to improve communication between organisations and professionals 
in relation to care planning to avoid people having to repeat their story. 

• Increase the use of integrated information systems where all the information 
about a person is in one place and can be accessed by the right people 
across the different systems when it is needed 

 

3.4 Use of Digital Technology 
 
During the COVID-19 pandemic digital solutions were used by health and social care 
services to keep in touch with people, provide support, advice and information. This 
highlighted the potential and accelerated the use of digital technologies. 

However, not everyone is able to access services in this way in West Wales. This is in 
part due availability of high-speed broadband or 4G coverage in some areas, access 
to suitable devices, as well as the confidence or skills to access support in this way. 
We must address this deficit. 

We should also build on the experience during the pandemic to: 

• Ensure a wide spectrum of people can access virtual services when and 
where appropriate 

• Make better use of social media channels to engage with, inform and 
support communities 

• Maximise the potential of digital and virtual support and telehealth to help 
people to manage certain conditions, address social isolation and reach 
those living in isolated communities 

• Increase the use of assistive technology to enhance our direct care services 
such as domiciliary care and supported living 

 

3.5 Embedding Co-production 
 

There is more to do to ensure co-production is integral to our work by: 

• Ensuring co-production is a key principle in developing sustainable 
community-based, user-led services 

• Ensuring commissioners and providers co-produce services with those that 
use them 

• Ensuring people needing care and support, their families and unpaid carers 
are involved in the decisions made about their care 

 

3.6 Prevention & Wellbeing 
 
In West Wales there are a range of ‘preventative’ services already available. The 
pandemic has led to increased isolation and a disruption of normal life. This could 
have short term effects on mental health and other conditions, as people may have 
been unable, or too concerned to access the support they would normally have. It is 
a priority for us to: 

Tudalen 338



31 

 

• Regain the momentum of community initiatives across the region that were 
paused during the pandemic 

• Re-establish engagement activities and events that supported people to 
meet, share information and support and contribute to the development of 
services. 

• Ensure preventative services are able to ‘step up’ to statutory services when 
people’s needs increase and they require more support 

• Further develop community-based services, that prevent isolation and 
support people to become more resilient and manage their own conditions 

• Strengthen links with schools to identify groups of children, young people, 
families and unpaid carers, who may need additional support 

• Improve access to mental health services at an early stage for both children 
and adults, thus preventing escalation and the need for referral to statutory 
services 

 

3.7 Supporting our Workforce 
 
Supporting and developing our workforce in health and social care remains a priority 
for us. Areas for attention include: 

• Improving awareness and recognition of hidden conditions including, 
sensory and cognitive impairment, language and communication needs, 
neurodiversity and autism, Violence against Women, Domestic Abuse and 
Sexual Violence. 

• Ensuring staff are aware of the range of services which are available within 
their community. 

• Ensuring all staff have an awareness of safeguarding of adults and children 

 

3.8 Transition 
 
The time of transition from childhood to adulthood can be challenging. It can mean 
changes in arrangements for education, health, care and support and other aspects 
of a young person’s life. To support a smooth transition, we should: 

• Develop a regional transition policy that provides seamless and integrated 
support of families rather than a start/stop process 

• Improve transition when accessing multiple services, particularly for children 
and young people who have complex needs 

 

3.9 Voice and control 
 
Putting the individual and their needs, at the centre of their care is a guiding principle 
of the Social Services and Wellbeing Act.  It remains a priority for us to: 

• Ensure assessment and care planning processes focus on what is important 
to people 

• Ensure people have a choice in how their support needs can be met. 

Tudalen 339



32 

 

• Improve the range and choice of accommodation so people can continue to 
live independently in their communities 

• Increase opportunities for volunteering, work experience, employment 
opportunities and networking for people living with a range of disabilities 
and conditions 

 

3.10 Welsh language 
 
Under the Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011 the language has official status in 
Wales and as such should not be treated less favourably than the English language. A 
key principle of the original Framework – is that of the ‘active offer’, which places the 
onus on service commissioners and providers to deliver a service in Welsh without 
someone having to ask for it, is a continuing priority for those needing care and 
support in West Wales where, according to the Office for National Statistics in 2011, 
37 % of the population over 3 years of age are Welsh speakers 

 

  

Tudalen 340



33 

 

4. West Wales Population Profile 

The latest population estimates for the West Wales region are 389,719 (mid-2020) 

[1], an increase of 1.34% since the 2017 population assessment. This comprises of 
191,368 males (49.1%) and 198,351 females (50.9%).  

48.8% of the population in the region live in Carmarthenshire, 18.7% in Ceredigion 
and 32.5% live in Pembrokeshire.  

Current population projections suggest the total population of West Wales will increase 
to 396,000 by 2043, with a rise in those aged over 65 from 94,336 in 2018 to 124,587 

by 2043 [2]. This increase in the older population will be a key challenge. 

 

Figure 2: Population projections by age cohort in Hywel Dda University Health Board 2018 – 2043  
(Welsh Government, 2018) 

The following figures below show the 
population profiles for Wales and West 

Wales.  

Figures 3 and 4 show that West Wales 

has an older population than Wales in 

general, with more people in the age 

groups of 55 and over, and less people 

in the 20 – 49 age range. 

 

 

Figure. 3: Population of Wales by gender and 
age group, mid 2020 (values presented as 

percentage of total population) (ONS, 2021) 

2
0

1
8

2
0

1
9

2
0

2
0

2
0

2
1

2
0

2
2

2
0

2
3

2
0

2
4

2
0

2
5

2
0

2
6

2
0

2
7

2
0

2
8

2
0

2
9

2
0

3
0

2
0

3
1

2
0

3
2

2
0

3
3

2
0

3
4

2
0

3
5

2
0

3
6

2
0

3
7

2
0

3
8

2
0

3
9

2
0

4
0

2
0

4
1

2
0

4
2

2
0

4
3

0

50000

100000

150000

200000

250000

0-15 years 16-64 years 65-84 years 85+ years

2.5
2.8
2.8

2.6
3.1
3.2
3.1
3.0

2.8
3.1

3.5
3.6

3.2
2.9
3.0

2.2
1.6

1.0
0.7

2.6
2.9
3.0
2.8

3.4
3.4
3.1
2.9
2.7

3.0
3.3
3.4

3.0
2.8
2.8

1.9
1.3

0.7
0.3

0-4

10-14

20-24

30-34

40-44

50-54

60-64

70-74

80-84

90+

5 0 5

Males Females

Tudalen 341



34 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure. 4: Population of West Wales 
by gender and age group, mid 2020 
(values presented as percentage of 
total population) (ONS, 2021) 

 

Table 1 below sets out key population statistics for West Wales, compared with Wales 
overall. It shows that West Wales has a higher proportion of people aged 75+ than 

Wales as a whole. West Wales also has a slightly lower proportion of adults who are 

overweight or obese when compared to Wales, as well as a slightly higher incidence 

of smokers and those who drink above guidelines.  

The birth rate in West Wales is slightly lower than the national average. 

Key Statistics Wales West Wales 

Total Population 3,169, 586 389,719 

Population aged 75 and over (%) 9.7 11.5 

Adults who are overweight or obese 
(%) 

60 59 

Adults who smoke (%) 18.4 18.7 

Adults who drink above guidelines 
(%) 

19.0 20.0 

Birth Rate (per 1,000 population) 
 

10.3 9.0 

Table 1: Key population statistics (HDdUHB Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment, 2021) 

Table 2 below shows the life expectancy and healthy life expectancy for males and 

females in each of the three local authorities. Carmarthenshire has both a lower life 

expectancy, and less percentage of life expectancy in good health when compared to 
Ceredigion and Pembrokeshire. 

 Males Females 

 Life 

Expectancy 

Healthy 

Life 
Expectancy 

Percentage 

Life 
Expectancy 

in Good 

Health 

Life 

Expectancy 

Healthy 

Life 
Expectancy 

Percentage 

Life 
Expectancy 

in Good 

Health 

Ceredigion 80.1 67.9 84.7 83.9 69.7 83.1 
Pembrokeshire 79.5 66.9 84.1 82.9 69 83.3 
Carmarthenshire 78.6 65 82.7 82.6 66 79.9 

Table 2: Life expectancy and healthy life expectancy in the three local authorities  
(HDdUHB Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment, 2021) 

2.2
2.7
2.7

2.6
2.6
2.8

2.6
2.6
2.6

3.0
3.6

4.0
3.7

3.4
3.5

2.6
1.8

1.2
0.8

2.3
2.8

2.9
2.8

3.1
2.9

2.5
2.4
2.3

2.7
3.4

3.7
3.4
3.3
3.3

2.4
1.5

0.9
0.4

0-4

10-14

20-24

30-34

40-44

50-54

60-64

70-74

80-84

90+

6 4 2 0 2 4 6

Males Females

Tudalen 342



35 

 

Differences in the composition of the populations for each of the three local authorities 
are illustrated in figures 5, 6 and 7 below. 

 

Figure 5: Population of Ceredigion by gender and age group, mid 2020  
(values presented as percentage of total population) (ONS, 2021) 

 

Figure 6: Population of Pembrokeshire by gender and age group, mid 2020  
(values presented as percentage of total population) (ONS, 2021) 

1.9
2.4
2.5

2.9
4.3

3.2
1.9

2.1
2.1

2.7
3.4

3.8
3.6

3.5
3.5

2.5
1.8

1.3
0.9

2.1
2.5
2.5

3.2
5.2

4.0
1.7

1.9
2.1

2.4
3.2

3.4
3.5

3.3
3.5

2.4
1.5

0.9
0.5

0-4

5-9

10-14

15-19

20-24

25-29

30-34

35-39

40-44

45-49

50-54

55-59

60-64

65-69

70-74

75-79

80-84

85-89

90+

6 4 2 0 2 4 6

Males Females

2.2
2.7
2.8

2.5
2.2

2.6
2.7

2.5
2.5

3.1
3.6

4.0
3.6

3.5
3.7

2.7
1.9

1.3
0.8

2.3
2.8

3.0
2.6
2.7
2.7
2.7

2.4
2.3

2.6
3.4

3.7
3.5
3.4
3.4

2.5
1.6

0.9
0.5

0-4

5-9

10-14

15-19

20-24

25-29

30-34

35-39

40-44

45-49

50-54

55-59

60-64

65-69

70-74

75-79

80-84

85-89

90+

5 4 3 2 1 0 1 2 3 4 5

Males Females

Tudalen 343



36 

 

 

Figure 7: Population of Carmarthenshire by gender and age group, mid 2020  
(values presented as percentage of total population) (ONS, 2021) 

Ceredigion has a larger population of young adults aged 20-24 and 25-29 when 
compared to Carmarthenshire and Pembrokeshire due to its large University town. 

 

4.1  Deprivation and Lifestyle Factors 

Geographically based deprivation measures can be used to show inequalities in health. 
The Welsh Index of Multiple Deprivation (WIMD) is the Welsh Government’s official 
measure of relative deprivation for small areas in Wales. Figure 8 below shows there 
are some areas of deprivation in West Wales, mainly in less rural areas such as Llanelli, 
Pembroke Dock, Haverfordwest and Cardigan. 

2.4
2.7
2.8

2.6
2.3

2.7
2.9

2.8
2.8

3.1
3.7

4.0
3.7

3.3
3.3

2.4
1.7

1.1
0.8

2.5
2.9

3.0
2.7
2.7
2.7

2.7
2.6
2.5

2.9
3.4

3.7
3.3
3.2
3.2

2.3
1.5

0.8
0.4

0-4

5-9

10-14

15-19

20-24

25-29

30-34

35-39

40-44

45-49

50-54

55-59

60-64

65-69

70-74

75-79

80-84

85-89

90+

5 4 3 2 1 0 1 2 3 4 5

Males Females

Tudalen 344



37 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Figure 8: Welsh Index of Multiple Deprivation (WIMD) for the West Wales region (2019) 

 

Generally, WIMD implies that deprivation is lower in West Wales than in the rest of 
Wales.  
 
Of the 10% most deprived Lower Super Output Areas (LSOAs) in Wales, 10 are located 
in West Wales, which accounts for 4.4% of the LSOAs in the local health board. 
Furthermore, using the health metric of the WIMD, only 5 LSOAs are in the 10% most 
deprived for Wales (2% of those in the local health board).  
 
Despite this, there are still some challenges to address. In Hywel Dda, 20% of 
residents drink more than the recommended guidelines, which is one of the top three 
health boards for this category, and higher than the Welsh average of 19%. This is 
due to Carmarthenshire (20.9%) and Pembrokeshire (19.8%) figures, whereas in 
Ceredigion only 18.4% of residents drink more than the recommended guidelines. 
Alcohol consumption among adults for each of the local health boards in Wales is 
shown in figure 9 below: 
 
 

Tudalen 345



38 

 

 
Figure 9: Alcohol consumption among adults for each local health board, 2016/17-2017/18  

(HDdUHB Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment, 2021) 

 
Obesity is a major challenge in Hywel Dda and across Wales, where more people are 
struggling to maintain a healthy weight. In Wales, currently 60% of adults are classed 
as overweight or obese, which compares to 59% in the Hywel Dda region. If current 
trends continue, it is predicted that 64% of adults in Wales will be overweight or obese 
by 2030 [3]. 
 
Prevalence of smoking is also slightly higher in Hywel Dda (18.7%) than the Welsh 
average (18.4%). Prevalence of smoking is highest in Pembrokeshire (20.3%), 
followed by Carmarthenshire (18.8%) and Ceredigion (16.6%) [3]. 
 
4.2  Further Information  

More information on the West Wales population profile is available in the Hywel Dda 
UHB Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment [3], which provides further details on the 

demographic profile, lifestyle factors and other determinants that impact upon health 

in West Wales. 

Further reference is made to lifestyle and environmental factors where appropriate in 

each of the thematic reports that follow. 

 

Tudalen 346



39 

 

 

  

References: 

[1] Office for national statistics Population estimates for the UK, England and 

Wales, Scotland and Northern Ireland - Office for National Statistics 

(ons.gov.uk) 

[2] Welsh Government. Available at 

https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Population-and-
Migration/Population/Projections/Local-Authority/2018-

based/populationprojections-by-localauthority-year 

[3] Hywel Dda UHB Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment. Available at 

https://hduhb.nhs.wales/about-us/consultation-and-

engagement/pharmaceutical-needs-assessment/ 

 

Tudalen 347

https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/populationandmigration/populationestimates/bulletins/annualmidyearpopulationestimates/mid2020
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/populationandmigration/populationestimates/bulletins/annualmidyearpopulationestimates/mid2020
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/populationandmigration/populationestimates/bulletins/annualmidyearpopulationestimates/mid2020
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Population-and-Migration/Population/Projections/Local-Authority/2018-based/populationprojections-by-localauthority-year
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Population-and-Migration/Population/Projections/Local-Authority/2018-based/populationprojections-by-localauthority-year
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Population-and-Migration/Population/Projections/Local-Authority/2018-based/populationprojections-by-localauthority-year
https://hduhb.nhs.wales/about-us/consultation-and-engagement/pharmaceutical-needs-assessment/
https://hduhb.nhs.wales/about-us/consultation-and-engagement/pharmaceutical-needs-assessment/


40 

 

5. Older People 

5.1 Introduction 

The Strategy for Older People in Wales 2013-2023 was published by the Welsh 

Government in 2021, with the following vision: 

• that all people in Wales feel valued and supported whatever their age 
 

• that all older people in Wales have the social, environmental and financial 
resources they need to deal with the opportunities and challenges they face 

 

The strategy aims to improve the wellbeing of older people around social, financial 

and environmental factors. Building well-being and resilience is a key aim of the 

strategy, helping people to have a sense of control and purpose in life, reducing 

dependence and improving overall health. 

The population of West Wales has a higher proportion of older people than the Welsh 

Average, and it is predicted that the elderly population will continue to increase in the 

coming decades.  

High levels of inward migration contribute to the elderly population of West Wales and 

is an accelerating factor, especially in Pembrokeshire, which has an older population 

than Ceredigion or Carmarthenshire.  

The change in the profile of the population will undoubtedly have an impact on health, 

as older people are statistically more likely to have a life limiting health condition [2]. 

These changes will significantly impact on the health and social care services provided, 

as demand for hospital and community services by those aged 75 and over is in 

general more than three times that from those aged between 30 and 40 [14]. 

5.2 Demographic Profile 

It is estimated that the total number of people aged 65 and older in England and 

Wales will increase by 19.4% between 2015 and 2025, with the number with a 

disability increasing by 25%. [1] 

 

There is an increasing number of older people in West Wales. Current population 

estimates for 2021 suggest that people over 65 make up 24.1% of the population in 

Carmarthenshire, 26.2% in Ceredigion and 26.7% in Pembrokeshire. The population 

by age group and gender in West Wales is shown in figure 10 below. 

 

Tudalen 348



41 

 

 

Figure 10: Population of West Wales by gender and age group, mid 2020  

(values presented as percentage of total population) (ONS, 2021)  

As large parts of West Wales are both rural and coastal, the area attracts high levels 

of inward migration of people over 65. The highest levels are found in Pembrokeshire, 

with a 31% migration rate, 87% of which are over 65. [3] 

 

 

Figure 11: Population Projections by percentage of the total population in West Wales 

(Welsh Government, 2018) 

2.2
2.7
2.7

2.6
2.6

2.8
2.6
2.6
2.6

3.0
3.6

4.0
3.7

3.4
3.5

2.6
1.8

1.2
0.8

2.3
2.8

2.9
2.8

3.1
2.9

2.5
2.4
2.3

2.7
3.4

3.7
3.4
3.3
3.3

2.4
1.5

0.9
0.4

0-4

5-9

10-14

15-19

20-24

25-29

30-34

35-39

40-44

45-49

50-54

55-59

60-64

65-69

70-74

75-79

80-84

85-89

90+

5 4 3 2 1 0 1 2 3 4 5

Population Pyramid - West Wales, mid year 2020

Males Females

17.0 15.3

58.5

53.3

24.5

31.4

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

0-15 years 16-64 years 65+ years

Tudalen 349



42 

 

As in the previous population assessment, the projected number of people aged over 

65 is predicted to increase in each of the three local authority areas from until 2043 

(Figure 12). 

 

 

                      

Figure 12: Projected number of people aged 65+ for each local authority 

(Welsh Government, 2018) 

As shown in figure 12 above, Pembrokeshire is predicted to have a slightly larger 

proportion of its population in the 65+ age bracket, whereas Carmarthenshire is 

predicted to continue to have a slightly lower proportion of its population in the 65+ 

age bracket.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 13: Projected growth for different age groups, HDdUHB  

(percentage growth compared to 2018 values) 

 

2
0

1
8

2
0

1
9

2
0

2
0

2
0

2
1

2
0

2
2

2
0

2
3

2
0

2
4

2
0

2
5

2
0

2
6

2
0

2
7

2
0

2
8

2
0

2
9

2
0

3
0

2
0

3
1

2
0

3
2

2
0

3
3

2
0

3
4

2
0

3
5

2
0

3
6

2
0

3
7

2
0

3
8

2
0

3
9

2
0

4
0

2
0

4
1

2
0

4
2

2
0

4
3

-20

0

20

40

60

80

100

Projected Growth of Different Age Groups, Hywel Dda

0-15 years 16-64 years 65-84 years 85+ years

24.9

32.5
25.7

33.8

23.5

29.5

2
0

1
8

2
0

1
9

2
0

2
0

2
0

2
1

2
0

2
2

2
0

2
3

2
0

2
4

2
0

2
5

2
0

2
6

2
0

2
7

2
0

2
8

2
0

2
9

2
0

3
0

2
0

3
1

2
0

3
2

2
0

3
3

2
0

3
4

2
0

3
5

2
0

3
6

2
0

3
7

2
0

3
8

2
0

3
9

2
0

4
0

2
0

4
1

2
0

4
2

2
0

4
3

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

Projected number of people aged 65+

Ceredigion Pembrokeshire Carmarthenshire

Tudalen 350



43 

 

As per the 2017 population assessment, the projections continue to predict an 

increasingly aging population in all three local authorities of the HDdUHB region.  

 

Pembrokeshire is projected to be the local authority with the biggest percentage 

increase in people aged over 85, with the group almost doubling in size by 2043 (93% 

increase). This can be seen in Figure 14 below. This is likely due to the migration of 

pensioners to Pembrokeshire due to the access to countryside and coast.  

 

 

Figure 14: Percentage growth of 85+ group in different local authorities  

(Welsh Government, 2018)  

5.2.1 Falls 

Falls are a common problem amongst the older population. Current projections by 

suggest a modest increase in hospital admissions due to falls in people over 60 of just 

10% towards 2043 [4]. 

 

Recent research has shown that falls prevention exercise programmes are effective at 

reducing falls in people aged 60 and over, with a reported reduction in falls of 23% 

for those who took part in any form of regular exercise [6]. Measures should be taken 

to encourage exercise in older people where possible, possibly the implementation of 

exercise programmes for older people should be considered. 

 

5.2.2 Rurality 

The West Wales region has a high proportion of rural areas. This could contribute to 

the ageing population due to migratory factors – the average age of rural areas was 

found to be increasing faster in 2013 [7]. Rurality also has impacts on housing, 

-10

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

Percentage Growth of 85+ group in different Local Authorities

Ceredigion Pembrokeshire Carmarthenshire Hywel Dda

Tudalen 351



44 

 

deprivation, access to services and levels of physical and social isolation. Deprivation 

also has a big impact on health in older age – people living in the least deprived areas 

of Carmarthenshire can expect to live 14 years longer than those living in the most 

deprived areas [8]. 

 

5.2.3 Loneliness and Isolation 

In West Wales, 45% of the aged 65+ group are living alone. Although historically, 

loneliness and isolation has been a problem that is thought to be more prevalent in 

older people, most recent data taken from 2019-20 suggests that people in Wales 

overall, the percentage of adults who are lonely according to the De Jong Gierveld 

loneliness scale is lower in the older age groups, with loneliness appearing to be a 

growing problem in younger adults [10]. 

 

The number of people aged over 65 in West Wales that struggle with activities of daily 

living is predicted to increase by almost 40% towards 2043 [4]. This could lead to 

further increased demand for carers. 

 

In summary, West Wales has a higher proportion of older people than Wales, and the 

overall percentage of older people is predicted to rise over the coming decades. The 

demand for care is increasing however, people want to remain in their own homes 

with care provided, or in alternative settings such as extra care schemes. This demand 

has been accelerated by the COVID pandemic, which has negatively impacted people’s 

views on residential care. 

5.3 Care and Support Needs 

The 2017 report emphasised the need for a holistic approach to care and support, 

able to respond to wide and varied levels of need and support the development of 

resilience and independence. 

All partners in the region have continued to move towards a consistent model of care 

for older people based on the principles of wellbeing and prevention, encapsulated in 

the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014 and informed locally by a range 

of plans and strategies, including Ageing Well plans, the Health Board’s Integrated 

Medium Terms Plan, Carmarthenshire County Council’s “Vision for Sustainable Social 

Services for Older People 2015-25” and the regional Statement of Intent for the 

Integration of Services for Older People with Complex Needs in West Wales (2014) 

[17]. 

5.4 Current and Future Care and Support Provision 

There is an increasing demand for extra care housing in Wales [15]; likely because it 

allows people to remain in housing accommodation, with the potential for extra care 

and support should they need it. This type of care allows for greater flexibility to 

maintain independence when compared to traditional residential home model. 

 

Although technology enabled care has been increasingly utilised in response to the 

pandemic, this needs to be evaluated and a clear plan developed to realise the full 

Tudalen 352

https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-05/social-services-and-well-being-wales-act-2014-the-essentials.pdf


45 

 

benefits of technology across the region. Although technology has improved the 

availability of care and support across the region, some of the older population are 

not confident in using technology. This needs to be considered when using technology 

in the future, so that care and support can be delivered effectively and appropriately. 

 

A response to the lack of transport links within very rural regions that impacts on 

access to services also needs to be considered. 

 

Older people spend 70-90% of their time at home, which means it is crucial for this 

environment to be conducive to supporting their wellbeing. The importance of housing 

quality for older people could have an impact on their care and support needs. The 

2018 Housing and Ageing report [18] highlighted the need to place housing at the 

heart of service integration.  

 

“Housing should be at the centre of attempts to support older adults,  

not on the edges, which is how the current situation is often perceived  

within health and social care integration.” 

 

For current care and support provision, please see Appendix 5B. 

 

5.5 Gaps and Areas for Improvement 

• Fewer people are choosing long-term residential care, creating a greater 
demand for community-based care and an increased need to develop 
alternative accommodation 

 

• Whilst recognising that technology does not provide solutions for everyone, 
the evaluation, standardisation and development of services such as 
telehealth and telecare across the region could mitigate increasing demand 
for care and support where appropriate 

 

• If current trends continue, 160,000 more people in England and Wales will 
need palliative care by 2040 [16]. In addition to improving palliative and end 
of life provision, increasing implementation of advance care planning would 
allow people to make informed choices before reaching crisis point and 
inform future development of services 

 

5.6 The impact of the Covid-19 Pandemic 

• COVID has had a significant effect on quality of life for older people. A UK 
wide survey conducted in April/May 2020 showed that being unable to 
access social support services due to COVID contributed to worse quality of 
life and increased anxiety in older adults and those with dementia [11]. 
Social support services need to continue to adapt to provide support services 
to those potentially affected by COVID in the future 

 

Tudalen 353



46 

 

• COVID has been responsible for the deaths of thousands of older people in 
Wales. During the first wave of COVID, there were an estimated 47,243 
excess deaths in England and Wales, of which 41,608 were aged over 65. 
This includes an estimated 1,757 excess deaths in Wales [12]. In March and 
April of 2020 alone, there were an estimated 20,000 more deaths in the care 
sector of England and Wales than would normally be expected [13]. 
Additional exacerbating factors of the pandemic on the older population 
include the negative effect on mental health that come with the social 
isolation caused by lockdown, and possibly increased care needs due to the 
longer-term impact on health to survivors of COVID 

 

5.7 Recommendations 

• There is an increasing demand for older people needing care but wanting to 
remain in their own environment. Future support needs to focus on 
providing care and support for older people in their homes, allowing them to 
remain as independent as possible for as long as possible 

 

• There is a need to further develop alternatives to residential care such as 
extra care. These changing demands have been fuelled by the COVID 
pandemic, which has negatively altered people’s perceptions of residential 
care 

 

• Pembrokeshire has an older population than Carmarthenshire and 
Ceredigion. This could mean there are greater demands for services for 
older people such as community-based care 

 

• Continue to develop technology enabled care initiatives such as telehealth 
and telecare across the region, which will improve access to care especially 
in very rural areas, and potentially help people to remain independent in 
their homes for longer 

 

• Consider the impact of fuel poverty on overall health and well-being, which 
is projected to increase over the coming years 

 

• Ensuring that services are available through the medium of Welsh 
 

 

 

For current legislation and regulations see Appendix 5A  

For current care and support provision see Appendix 5B  

For additional data see Appendix 5C  

 

Tudalen 354



47 

 

  References: 

 

[1] Guzman-Castillo M, Ahmadi-Abhari S, Bandosz P, Capewell S, Steptoe A, Singh-Manoux A, 

Kivimaki M, Shipley MJ, Brunner EJ, O'Flaherty M. Forecasted trends in disability and life 

expectancy in England and Wales up to 2025: a modelling study. Lancet Public Health. 2017 

May 23;2(7):e307-e313. doi: 10.1016/S2468-2667(17)30091-9. PMID: 28736759; PMCID: 

PMC5500313. 

 

[2] Office for national statistics. Available at 

https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/populationandmigration/populationestimates/d

atasets/populationestimatesforukenglandandwalesscotlandandnorthernireland. 

 

[3] Office for national statistics. Available at 

https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/populationandmigration. 

 

[4] Social Care Wales Data Portal: 

https://www.socialcaredata.wales/dataset?c=32&p=4&i=60095   

 

[5] Office for national statistics. Available at https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/. 

 

[6] Sherrington C, Fairhall N, Wallbank G, Tiedemann A, Michaleff ZA, Howard K, Clemson L, 

Hopewell S, Lamb S. Exercise for preventing falls in older people living in the community: an 

abridged Cochrane systematic review. Br J Sports Med. 2020 Aug;54(15):885-891. doi: 

10.1136/bjsports-2019-101512. Epub 2019 Dec 2. PMID: 31792067. 

 

[7] International Longevity Centre UK, available at https://ilcuk.org.uk/impact-of-an-ageing-

population-on-service-design-and-delivery-in-rural-areas/. 

 

[8] Public Health Wales (2011). Large differences in healthy life expectancy within 

Carmarthenshire, Pembrokeshire and Ceredigion found [online]. Available at 

http://www.wales.nhs.uk/sitesplus/888/page/5846. 

 

[10] https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/statistics-and-research/2020-07/national-survey-

wales-headline-results-april-2019-march-2020-947.pdf  

 

[11] Giebel C, Lord K, Cooper C, Shenton J, Cannon J, Pulford D, Shaw L, Gaughan A, Tetlow 

H, Butchard S, Limbert S, Callaghan S, Whittington R, Rogers C, Komuravelli A, Rajagopal M, 

Eley R, Watkins C, Downs M, Reilly S, Ward K, Corcoran R, Bennett K, Gabbay M. A UK survey 

of COVID-19 related social support closures and their effects on older people, people with 

dementia, and carers. Int J Geriatr Psychiatry. 2021 Mar;36(3):393-402. doi: 

10.1002/gps.5434. Epub 2020 Sep 25. PMID: 32946619; PMCID: PMC7536967. 

 

[12] Kontopantelis E, Mamas MA, Deanfield J, Asaria M, Doran T. Excess mortality in England 

and Wales during the first wave of the COVID-19 pandemic. J Epidemiol Community Health. 

2021 Mar;75(3):213-223. doi: 10.1136/jech-2020-214764. Epub 2020 Oct 15. PMID: 

33060194; PMCID: PMC7892396. 

Tudalen 355

https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/populationandmigration/populationestimates/datasets/populationestimatesforukenglandandwalesscotlandandnorthernireland
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/populationandmigration/populationestimates/datasets/populationestimatesforukenglandandwalesscotlandandnorthernireland
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/populationandmigration
https://ilcuk.org.uk/impact-of-an-ageing-population-on-service-design-and-delivery-in-rural-areas/
https://ilcuk.org.uk/impact-of-an-ageing-population-on-service-design-and-delivery-in-rural-areas/
http://www.wales.nhs.uk/sitesplus/888/page/5846


48 

 

  

[13] Burki T. England and Wales see 20 000 excess deaths in care homes. Lancet. 2020 May  

23;395(10237):1602. doi: 10.1016/S0140-6736(20)31199-5. PMID: 32446403; PMCID: 

PMC7241982. 

 

[14] The Strategy for Older People in Wales 2013 – 2023. Welsh Government. Available at 

https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-06/the-strategy-for-older-people-in-

wales-2013-2023.pdf. 

 

[15] Evaluation of extra housing care in Wales. Batty E. et al., Welsh Government. Available at 

https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/statistics-and-research/2019-07/171005-evaluation-extra-

care-housing-en.pdf. 

 

[16] Etkind SN, Bone AE, Gomes B, Lovell N, Evans CJ, Higginson IJ, Murtagh FEM. How many 

people will need palliative care in 2040? Past trends, future projections and implications for 

services. BMC Med. 2017 May 18;15(1):102. doi: 10.1186/s12916-017-0860-2. PMID: 

28514961; PMCID: PMC5436458. 

 

[17] https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/3345/older-people-vision.pdf  

[18] Citation for published version (APA): McCall, V., Ziegler, F., Robertson, J., Lovatt, M., 

Phillips, J., Porteus, J., McIntyre, Z., Rutherford, A., Sixsmith, J., Woolrych, R., Eadie, J., 

Wallman, J., Epinosa, M., Harrison, E., & Wallace, T. (2020). Housing and Ageing: Let’s get 

serious-“how do you plan for the future while addressing immediate chaos?". Social Inclusion, 

8(3), 28- 42. https://doi.org/10.17645/si.v8i3.2779 

 

 

Tudalen 356

https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-06/the-strategy-for-older-people-in-wales-2013-2023.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-06/the-strategy-for-older-people-in-wales-2013-2023.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/statistics-and-research/2019-07/171005-evaluation-extra-care-housing-en.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/statistics-and-research/2019-07/171005-evaluation-extra-care-housing-en.pdf
https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/3345/older-people-vision.pdf


49 

 

6. Dementia 

6.1 Introduction 

The dementias are a group of disorders, characterised by a continual and progressive 

dying of brain cells, that leads to a deterioration in physical and cognitive functions 

that are beyond what might be expected from the usual consequences of biological 

ageing.   It affects memory, attention, sensory changes, language, thinking and 

problem-solving skills.  

The impairment in cognitive function is occasionally preceded by, or commonly 

accompanied by, changes in an individual’s psychological wellbeing. Behaviour 

Expression of Unmet Need (BEUN) can also become more apparent when the 

wellbeing of the individual becomes compromised in some way, leading to carer stress 

and placement breakdown.   

Young onset dementia is defined as those under 65 that are diagnosed with dementia. 

People living with dementia (PLwD) include those who are pre-diagnosis, post 

diagnosis, their families and carers.  

The Dementia Action Plan for Wales (DAP) 2018 – 2022 sets out a clear vision for 

“Wales to be a dementia friendly nation that recognises the rights of people with 

dementia to feel valued and to live as independently as possible in their communities.” 

In response, the west Wales region has commissioned the development of a 

Regional Dementia Strategy to support implementation of best practice focussing on: 

• Considering dementia as everybody’s business 

 

• Improving diagnosis rates and subsequent care planning and management, 
including those for young onset dementia 
 

• Enhancing community preventative services 

 

• Implementing best practice within social care, domiciliary care, care homes 
and specialist services 
 

• Ensuring advance care planning for end-of-life care is fully embedded in wider 
inclusive, personalised care and wellbeing planning 
 

• Improving access to support for carers  

 
6.2 Demographic Profile 

Dementia is becoming increasingly prevalent in ageing populations of high-income 

countries across the world. As life expectancy and inward migration of older people 

impacts on the percentage of older people in West Wales, the number of people living 

Tudalen 357

https://view.officeapps.live.com/op/view.aspx?src=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.wwcp.org.uk%2Fwp-content%2Fuploads%2F2022%2F06%2FWWCP-Dementia-Strategy-Final-Issued.pptx&wdOrigin=BROWSELINK


50 

 

with dementia in the region is expected to continue to increase over the next couple 

of decades. It is therefore important to identify what services we will need to invest 

in to support people to maintain their independence, live as well as possible following 

diagnosis and remain living in their residence of choice for as long as possible.  

Dementia is a condition that cuts across system wide services and is therefore 

everybody’s business. It is important to recognise that dementia services need to be 

embedded in the whole system of provision. 

West Wales has the highest proportion of people over the age of 85 in Wales, due in 

part to inward migration, the popularity of West Wales as a retirement destination, 

and the outward migration of young people unable to find employment in their own 

communities.  

As the incidence of dementia is strongly linked with age, it is therefore very likely that 

we will see an increase in the number of people living with dementia. 

The previous Population Assessment carried out in 2017 included dementia within the 

‘older people’ population group, with young onset dementia included as a mental 

health issue. This assessment however requires a separate section outlining the care 

and support needs of PLwD. 

• The older adult population in West Wales is set to increase, whilst the child 
and working age adult population is set to decrease: 

• By 2025 the population of over 65s is expected likely to increase by 6% (over 
80s by 11%) 

• By 2040 the population of over 65s is predicted likely to increase by 27% 
(over 80s by 55%) 

• The over 65s currently make up a quarter of the population and the over 80s 
make up just over 6% 

• By 2040 nearly a third of the population is expected to be made up of over 
65s, with the over 80s predicted to increase to over 10% (from just over 6% 
currently) (ONS) 

• The incidence of dementia on the Quality Assurance and Improvement 
Framework (QAIF) disease register in Hywel Dda in 2019-20 was 0.7%, in 
keeping with the Welsh national average of 0.7% 

• As there is thought to be a diagnosis gap of around 50% in west Wales, 
actual prevalence is likely to be closer to 1.4% 

• In 2015, dementia became the leading cause of death in the UK and has 
continued to displace other causes of death; pre-COVID, dementia was the 
leading cause of death in the UK, representing 12.7% of all deaths 

• Over thirty genetic, medical, lifestyle, cultural and societal factors have been 
identified that impact the risk of cognitive decline differently, depending on 
gender. Because of the unique aspect of the female brain, some of these 
factors increase risk more dramatically in women than in men. Importantly, 
hormonal changes in the years leading up to and after the menopause have 
been shown to act as key underlying mechanism that can activate these risks 
as well as existing predispositions 

 

Tudalen 358



51 

 

 

Figure 15: Predicted number of people with dementia in HDdUHB 2020-2040  

(Attain, WWCP) 

.

 

Figure 16: Dementia statistics (Alzheimer’s Society UK) 

 

 

Tudalen 359



52 

 

6.3 Care and Support Needs 

A Regional Dementia Strategy has been commissioned in collaboration with a range 

of partners across West Wales. The aim of the strategy was to identify current and 

future care and support needs, to ensure that the support provided for people living 

with dementia in West Wales is co-produced, person-centred and based on best 

practice. 

6.4 Current and Future Care and Support Provision 

The new pathways that are being developed demonstrate the continuing shift towards 
a more integrated approach to service delivery, whilst continuing to refine best 
practice in existing services within West Wales.  
 
There is much to be commended in current service delivery. However, the co-
productive approach taken to developing the dementia strategy and the engagement 
activity undertaken to develop the needs assessment has confirmed the gaps in 
services and have identified areas for improvement. 
 
In addition, a new wave of data suggests that dementia is preventable, leading to a 
drive to deliver direct clinical care to improve brain health, with a focus on both risk 
assessment and early intervention. 
 
For current care and support provision, please see Appendix 6B. 
 

6.5 Gaps and Areas for Improvement 

The list below identifies gaps and areas of improvement that have become apparent 

during our engagement process. The list however is not exhaustive; it is to be 

expected that as the strategy and new pathways are developed, further gaps and 

areas for improvement will be identified and the strategy will be amended accordingly. 

The gaps and areas for improvement identified have outlined the need for the 

following actions: 

• Continuing to improve awareness, identification and diagnosis of dementia, so 
that people with dementia have a timely diagnosis and can access appropriate 
care and support and long-term care when and where required 

• Improving co-production of services by including PLwD in service design. 

• Agreeing a set of delivery principles to underpin development of pathway 
models 

• Building on the dementia training framework, the learning and development 
requirements of those supporting PLwD in communities should be reflected 
and addressed through organisational workforce strategies. 

• Increasing diagnosis rates in non-specialist community settings by: 
• Improving training and awareness of new dementia models within primary 

care, based on the Good Work Framework 
• Supporting GPs, allied health professionals (AHPs) and nurses to make 

assessments 
• Improving quality of referrals into specialist care for those that require it 

Tudalen 360

https://view.officeapps.live.com/op/view.aspx?src=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.wwcp.org.uk%2Fwp-content%2Fuploads%2F2022%2F06%2FWWCP-Dementia-Strategy-Final-Issued.pptx&wdOrigin=BROWSELINK


53 

 

• Continuing improvements in community support, training and help for PLwD 
to discuss their diagnosis, navigate/co-ordinate services, to build resilience 
and maintain balance across all aspects of their life 

• Developing more consistent person-centred care across the region. 

• Ensuring equal access to physical health services and treatment for PLwD, as 
poor physical health is an inevitable consequence of dementia 

• Ensuring any health issues are factored into person-centred planning and end 
of life care 

• Continuing improvements in awareness of and implementation of advance 
care planning and end of life care, so that PLwD die with dignity in a place of 
their choosing 

• Improving research into dementia by involving care homes in the region in 
research opportunities 

• Building on emerging data and intelligence to inform future service 
development 

• Continuing the development of a “hub” or single point of contact approach for 
PLwD to access information and support for: 

• Support staff, including dementia support workers, admiral nurses etc 
• Support groups for PLwD and their carers 
• Access to local dementia services 
• Training programmes for carers 
• Activities for PLwD 
• Dementia cafes 
• Memory clinics 
• Finance/legal/benefits advice 
• Involvement in research opportunities 

 

6.6 The impact of the Covid-19 Pandemic 

The COVID-19 pandemic has had a disproportionately negative impact on PLwD (The 

Impact of COVID-19 on People Affected By Dementia (alzheimers.org.uk)) and 

dementia has also been shown as an age-independent risk factor for severity and 

death in COVID-19 patients [1]. 

Although the exact impact of COVID on the diagnosis and incidence rate of dementia 

is unclear, stakeholders have identified that COVID has impacted timely diagnosis due 

to late presentations. 

There is also some concern that in some cases, COVID causes damage to the brain 
and long-term, this could lead to increased risk of developing dementia (How Covid-
19 can damage the brain - BBC Future). However, full information on the impact of 
COVID upon those with dementia and their carers is not yet available. 
 
Technology has been shown to contribute to patient and carer resilience during 
COVID. Just being able to communicate has benefits in allowing to sustain contact 
with previous activity groups and hobbies [2]. However, not all PLwD are able to adapt 
well to using technology and may require others present to support them in using 
technology, as they may be unable to do this independently due to their dementia.  
 
 

Tudalen 361

https://www.alzheimers.org.uk/sites/default/files/2020-08/The_Impact_of_COVID-19_on_People_Affected_By_Dementia.pdf
https://www.alzheimers.org.uk/sites/default/files/2020-08/The_Impact_of_COVID-19_on_People_Affected_By_Dementia.pdf
https://www.bbc.com/future/article/20200622-the-long-term-effects-of-covid-19-infection
https://www.bbc.com/future/article/20200622-the-long-term-effects-of-covid-19-infection


54 

 

6.7 Recommendations 

•  Further refinement of integrated service model in line with the West Wales 

Dementia Strategy. 

•  Further development of initiatives to encourage early diagnosis and improve 

diagnosis rates by 3% per annum  

•  Implementation of care pathways as agreed in the regional strategy, particularly 

post-diagnostic support and coordination for PLWD and their carers  

•  Enhancing support for those caring for family members with dementia.  

• Expanding support for care homes to care for residents with dementia 

 

 

  

For current legislation and regulations see Appendix 6A  

For current care and support provision see Appendix 6B  

For additional data see Appendix 6C  

 

References: 

[1] Tahira AC, Verjovski-Almeida S, Ferreira ST. Dementia is an age-
independent risk factor for severity and death in COVID-19 inpatients. 
Alzheimers Dement. 2021 Nov;17(11):1818-1831. doi: 10.1002/alz.12352. 
Epub 2021 Apr 21. PMID: 33881211; PMCID: PMC8250282. 

[2] Hackett RA, Steptoe A, Cadar D, Fancourt D (2019) Social engagement 
before and after dementia diagnosis in the English Longitudinal Study of 
Ageing. PLoS ONE 14(8): e0220195. 

 

 

Tudalen 362



55 

 

7. Unpaid Carers 

7.1 Introduction 

The Social Services and Well Being (Wales) Act 2014 defines an unpaid carer as a 

person, of any age, who provides or intends to provide care for an adult or child.  

 

An unpaid carer can be anyone, of any age, who provides unpaid care and support to 

a relative, friend or neighbour who is disabled, physically or mentally ill, or affected 

by substance misuse. Unpaid carers are the single largest provider of care to people 

with support needs in our communities, saving the NHS and Social Services millions 

of pounds a year [1]. 

 

Over recent years there has been progress towards recognising and supporting unpaid 

carers through legislative changes. These include adoption of the Social Services and 

Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014, the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 

and the long-term plan for health and social care “A Healthier Wales”. 

 

It is important that we can identify unpaid carers, or assist them to self-identify, to 

enable them to access the right help and support, at the right time, to help them to 

fulfil their role.  

It is also important to provide unpaid carers with support to maintain their own health, 

well-being and independence.  The 2019 GP Patient Survey (England) found that 

unpaid carers are more likely than non-carers to report having a long-term condition, 

disability or illness (63% of unpaid carers compared to 51% of non-carers). 

Support for unpaid carers in West Wales is overseen by the West Wales Carers 

Development Group* (WWCDG), which is a sub-group of the West Wales Regional 

Partnership Board (RPB).  

 

7.2 Demographic Profile  

The following points outline some key facts that are relevant to unpaid carers in West 

Wales: 

• In Wales, more than 370,000 unpaid carers, of all ages, provide care that 
is estimated to be worth around £8.1 billion to the Welsh economy each 
year [2]  

• It is estimated that 3 in 5 people in Wales will become an unpaid carer at 
some point in their lives [3] 

*The West Wales Carers Development Group includes representatives from Hywel Dda University 

Health Board, the three Local Authorities of Carmarthenshire, Ceredigion and Pembrokeshire, as well 

as Third and Voluntary sector organisations and representatives of service users and Carers in West 

Wales” 

 

Tudalen 363



56 

 

• Carers Wales’ ‘Missing Out’ report noted that, in Wales, 55% of unpaid 
carers took more than a year to recognise their caring role, while 24% 
took more than five years to identify as a carer [4] 

• Research from Carers Trust Wales (2015) suggests that Young Carers 
have significantly lower educational attainment at GCSE level and are 
significantly more likely to become NEET (not in education, employment 
or training) between the ages of 16 and 19, than those without caring 
responsibilities [5] 

• Problems with school attendance or attainment can have an impact on 
the future of Young Carers, often resulting in unemployment, reduced 
earnings, poor health and depression 

• Estyn in 2019 reported that many secondary schools, colleges and pupil 
referral units do not know which learners have a caring role at home and 
identified the importance of improving provision and outcomes for Young 
Carers. [6] 

• Census data (ONS, 2011) records more than 47,000 unpaid carers in 
West Wales, with 3,436 of these falling into the Young Carers category 
(5-17 years old); this equates to 12.5% of the residents of West Wales, 
with a large number of ‘hidden’ carers not included in these figures [7] 

• Based on a national calculation (Carers UK and Sheffield University, 2015; 
Buckner and Yeandle, 2015), the cost of replacing unpaid care in West 
Wales would be around £924m. This exceeds the total NHS annual 
budget for the region, which is almost £727m [8] 

 

7.3 Care and Support Needs 

In January 2020, the WWCDG engaged with unpaid carers, with input from relevant 

support organisations, to find out ‘what mattered to them’. Engagement was primarily 

undertaken via a survey, with the aim of the exercise being to improve outcomes for 

unpaid carers in West Wales. Some of the survey results are listed below: 

• Only 38% of respondents to the West Wales Carers’ survey indicated that 
they recognised their role immediately, or within 6 months of becoming a 
Carer; 49% agreed that they had missed out on support as a result  

• 26% of those who responded to the WWCDG Carers survey indicated that 
they were in employment, with 91% of these aged 35-64  

• Survey respondents in the 35-44 age group felt that being a Carer had 
impacted negatively on finances, work, physical and mental health, as 
well as on relationships 

• 64% of people commented that caring has had a negative impact on their 
own physical health and mental wellbeing 

• Only one-fifth of respondents to the WWCDG Carers survey indicated that 
they had spoken to a health, social care or third sector organisation about 
what to do if the condition of the person they care for deteriorates, or 
they are no longer willing to provide care 

• We identified that some things matter more to younger people - or have a 
greater impact on them; this means we need to plan action that takes 
account of the different needs of unpaid carers across the different age 
groups 

Tudalen 364



57 

 

 

The information that was gathered from the engagement was used to develop a long-

term strategy for unpaid carers called ‘Improving lives for Carers’ (Carers-Strategy-

Final-20.10.20-Eng.pdf (wwcp.org.uk)). 

 

7.4  Current and Future Care and Support Provision 

A report by the Social Care Institute for Excellence (SCIE) (2018) reported that Wales 

has the highest proportion of older unpaid carers and those providing more than 50 

hours’ unpaid care a week. 

A ‘Track the Act’ report by Carers Wales (October 2019) predicted that the number of 

unpaid carers across Wales will increase significantly in the coming years. By 2037, it 

is estimated that the unpaid carer population will rise from 370,000 to over half a 

million.  

West Wales has an ageing population that is expected to increase in magnitude over 

the next 5 years. People are living longer, often with limiting health conditions. 

Inevitably, this will increase the number of people requiring additional care and 

support from both unpaid and paid carers. 

The experience of lockdown during the COVID-19 pandemic recognised the need to 

safeguard vulnerable people who are more at risk, many of whom rely on unpaid 

carers and community support. 

The COVID-19 pandemic has seen an increase in the self-identification of unpaid 

carers. A National Survey for Wales report (June 2020) showed a 35% increase in the 

number of people recognising they look after or give help and support to family 

members, friends and neighbours.  

The Carers Information and Support Service across West Wales reported an increase 

of 2,073 in unpaid carers during 2020/21 (from 8,008 to 10,081): 

• Carmarthenshire, Carers Trust Crossroads Mid and West Wales reported a 
31%, from 4,613 to 6,071 

• Hafal Crossroads, who provide information and support in Pembrokeshire, 
reported an increase in numbers from 2,570 to 2,918 

• Ceredigion Carers Unit reported the number increased by 267 from 825 to 
1,092  

 

For current care and support provision, please see Appendix 7B. 

 

7.5 Gaps and Areas for Improvement 

The Gaps and Areas for improvement are comprehensive and reflect the 

engagement work undertaken to develop the West Wales Improving Lives for Carers 

Strategy published in 2021.  

7.5.1 Impact of being a carer on well-being and mental health 

Tudalen 365

https://www.wwcp.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/11/Carers-Strategy-Final-20.10.20-Eng.pdf
https://www.wwcp.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/11/Carers-Strategy-Final-20.10.20-Eng.pdf


58 

 

Being an unpaid carer, whilst being inspiring and rewarding, can leave them feeling: 
 

• Exhausted, isolated and in need of emotional support and counselling 
• Concerned over the financial burden of being an unpaid carer and its effect 

on their employment 
• They have lost the ability to maintain a balance between the caring role and 

work-life balance 
• They have lost their identity beyond that of being a carer 
• Their ‘voice’ is not well enough recognised 

• The WWCDG Carers survey revealed that 75% of former unpaid carers who 
took part in the survey felt that they had experienced a negative impact on 
their physical health and mental well-being due to their caring role 

 

7.5.2 Supporting the needs of carers 

Self-identification of unpaid carers and identification and recognition of their role by 
health and social care professionals is vital to ensure that they access the right help 

and support at the right time, as well as maintain their own health, well-being and 

independence.  Unpaid carers report: 

 
•  There should be an improvement in the consistency of approach, information, 

advice and assistance provided across the region, within a more integrated 

system 
•  Information provided to carers needs to be reviewed to ensure it is current 

and relevant, more accessible and easier to find. Having a single point of 

contact to navigate the system would help people to identify relevant 

information and access the support to which they are entitled 
•  Access to appropriate respite should ensure that it fits the needs of both the 

carer and the looked after person 

•  Support is particularly difficult to source in rural areas 
•  The statutory carers assessment process can be challenging, often takes too 

long and carers needs are not always properly considered. Whilst it is 

recognised that not all unpaid carers need or want a statutory carers 

assessment, it is important that those that do, know how to apply and 
outcomes are reviewed to reflect changing needs or circumstances  

•  Response to the WWCDG Carers survey indicates that 81% of people had not 

had a Carer’s assessment or review of their assessment within the last 12-
months  

•  62% of those surveyed who had an assessment or review during the transition 

from children to adult services, felt that the assessment process and 
subsequent consideration of the care and support needs did not consider their 

needs properly 

 

7.5.3 Digital Inclusion and Technology 

Digital connectivity has become even more important since the Covid-19 pandemic. 

Engagement events identified: 
 

Tudalen 366



59 

 

• Most people are using technology but not all. Efforts must be made to ensure 
technology is available to all and that digital inclusion (and training) as well as 
non-digital alternatives are offered 

• Better use could be made of social media channels to identify and provide 
information to carers, particularly for young carers 

• Technology could be used to make it easier for support staff to keep in 
regular contact with the carer to make sure they do not burn out 

 

7.5.4 Young People 

Many young carers and young adult carers fed back that their caring responsibilities 
mean: 

 

•  They struggle to have a break, are not seeing their friends and do not have 

their own space  
•  They find it difficult to balance schoolwork, homework and their caring role 

and can feel stressed, worried and anxious at school, as they are away from 

the person that relies on them for care 
•  They may need extra support especially for their mental health and wellbeing 

 

7.6 The impact of the COVID-19 Pandemic  

During the COVID-19 pandemic the role of unpaid carers has become more prominent. 
The experience of lockdown during the COVID-19 pandemic, and the need to 
safeguard people who are more at risk of the disease, has further highlighted the 
important role that unpaid carers play within our communities [9].  

Hywel Dda University Health Board (HDdUHB) has been proactive in supporting unpaid 
carers to access COVID Testing and, more recently, identifying unpaid carers through 
eligibility checks for COVID-19 vaccinations. This resulted in over 3,000 unpaid carers 
self-identifying between April - May 2021, who had not registered previously as an 
unpaid carer with their GP practice [10].  

As part of HDdUHB action to make every contact count, the Health Board Carers Team 
provided follow up information to each newly identified carer including information 
about third sector support services and the Introduction to Looking After Me courses 
delivered by the Education Programme for Patients.  

Many unpaid carers have felt increasingly isolated due to the COVID-19 pandemic. 

Some of the concerns expressed in engagement events and feedback from an on-line 

survey circulated as part of the process to develop the PNA highlighted the following: 

 

• Many were very cautious of people coming into their homes due to the risk in 
virus transmission, with many choosing to suspend domiciliary care. This 

increased their isolation and put further strain on their wellbeing and mental 
health 

• Many experienced financial pressure, as they had to take more time off work 
to support their cared for person 

• A reduction in access to respite care as care homes closed their doors to new 
clients increased their isolation and put further strain on their wellbeing and 

mental health 

Tudalen 367



60 

 

• Many were concerned about the adverse effect on the well-being of loved 
ones, due to the strict visiting restrictions in hospitals and care homes 

• Young carers missed the break from caring and social interaction with peers 
that schooling (suspended during lockdown) usually provides 

• In some instances, unpaid carers reported they were able to access more 
support due to the increased availability of services on-line because of the 
pandemic 

 

7.7 Recommendations 

The recommendations below are an excerpt of those identified in the West Wales 

Carers Strategy 2020-2025 (Carers-Strategy-Final-20.10.20-Eng.pdf (wwcp.org.uk)). 

The recommendations are: 

 
• Ensure that staff in health, social care, education (schools and colleges), and 

other public, private and third sector organisations are “carer aware” and 
have robust systems in place to proactively identify unpaid carers, including 
Young Carers and Young Adult Carers  

• Ensure that statutory partners, working with the third-sector, commission 
sufficient capacity to enable staff to signpost to support and respond 
proactively to the unprecedented increase in carers identified during the 
pandemic 

• Continue to increase the number of settings achieving an Investors in Carers 
award, recognising the contribution this scheme makes to ensuring that 
people have greater awareness of what care and support services are 
available to them locally, and are supported to have a voice and control over 
their care and support needs  

• Deliver a programme of carer awareness campaigns linked to national days 
and events e.g. Carers Week, Young Carers Day, Carers Rights Day to 
promote the identification and self-identification of Carers 

• Develop a Carers ID Card scheme across the region that supports unpaid 
carers to self-identify and access Carer-based support / benefits  

• Promote and identify opportunities for unpaid carers of all ages to be involved 
in the co-production of services to ensure they are given the opportunity to 
shape and influence services 

• Raise awareness of unpaid carers with employers, including small and 
medium enterprises, through the Employers for Carers Scheme. It would also 
be helpful to look at a way of ensuring consistency in the use of the term 
‘Carer’ across all public bodies and departments. It may help to identify an 
agreed name for Care Workers in Health and Social Care which differs from 
the term ‘Carer’ 

• Review the support offered to Young Carers in West Wales and engage Young 
Carers in the process to ensure a best practice innovative service is 
recommissioned.  

• Rollout the Resilience and Well-being facilitator training, to extend the 
support offered to those in employment with a caring role  

• Actively promote the regional Employers for Carers membership, focusing on 
working collaboratively with other public sector services as well as small and 
medium size enterprises (SMEs)  

Tudalen 368

https://www.wwcp.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/11/Carers-Strategy-Final-20.10.20-Eng.pdf


61 

 

• Continue to encourage involvement in the Investors in Carers accreditation 
scheme and support progression through the award levels 

• Work with others, including commissioned services to maximise the potential 
of digital services 

For current legislation and regulations see Appendix 7A 

For current care and support provision see Appendix 7B  

For additional data see Appendix 7C and the carers strategy Carers-Strategy-Final-

20.10.20-Eng.pdf (wwcp.org.uk) 

 

References: 

[1]  https://www.carersuk.org/for-professionals/policy/policy-library/valuing-
carers-2015  

[2]  Carers Wales 1 October 2019. https://www.carersuk.org/wales/news-
campaigns/news/unpaid-carers-in-wales-feel-demoralised-and-disillusioned 

[3]  Carers Trust https://carers.org/around-the-uk-our-work-in-wales/our-work-
in-wales#faq-46  

[4]  Carers UK https://www.carersuk.org/for-professionals/policy/policy-
library?task=download&file=policy_file&id=5811  

[5]  Carers Trust Wales (2015) 
https://socialcare.wales/cms_assets/hubdownloads/Time_to_be_heard.pdf  

[6]  Estyn Thematic Report (2019) https://www.estyn.gov.wales/thematic-
report/provision-young-carers-secondary-schools-further-education-colleges-
and-pupil   

[7]  Office of National Statistics (2011) 2011 Census Analysis Unpaid care in 
England and Wales 2011 
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/healthandsocialcare/h
ealthcaresystem/articles/2011censusanalysisunpaidcareinenglandandwales2011
andcomparisonwith2001/2013-02-15   

[8]  Carers Update Report – Health in Wales (2018) 
http://www.wales.nhs.uk/sitesplus/documents/862/Item%207.1%20Carers%2
0Update%20Report.pdf 

[9]  https://phw.nhs.wales/publications/publications1/voices-of-carers-during-
the-covid-19-pandemic-messages-for-the-future-of-unpaid-caring-in-wales/ 

[10] WWCDG-Annual-Report-2021-21-FINAL https://www.wwcp.org.uk/wp-
content/uploads/2020/11/Carers-Strategy-Final-20.10.20-Eng.pdf    

Tudalen 369

https://www.wwcp.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/11/Carers-Strategy-Final-20.10.20-Eng.pdf
https://www.wwcp.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/11/Carers-Strategy-Final-20.10.20-Eng.pdf
https://www.carersuk.org/for-professionals/policy/policy-library/valuing-carers-2015
https://www.carersuk.org/for-professionals/policy/policy-library/valuing-carers-2015
https://www.carersuk.org/wales/news-campaigns/news/unpaid-carers-in-wales-feel-demoralised-and-disillusioned
https://www.carersuk.org/wales/news-campaigns/news/unpaid-carers-in-wales-feel-demoralised-and-disillusioned
https://carers.org/around-the-uk-our-work-in-wales/our-work-in-wales#faq-46
https://carers.org/around-the-uk-our-work-in-wales/our-work-in-wales#faq-46
https://www.carersuk.org/for-professionals/policy/policy-library?task=download&file=policy_file&id=5811
https://www.carersuk.org/for-professionals/policy/policy-library?task=download&file=policy_file&id=5811
https://socialcare.wales/cms_assets/hubdownloads/Time_to_be_heard.pdf
https://www.estyn.gov.wales/thematic-report/provision-young-carers-secondary-schools-further-education-colleges-and-pupil
https://www.estyn.gov.wales/thematic-report/provision-young-carers-secondary-schools-further-education-colleges-and-pupil
https://www.estyn.gov.wales/thematic-report/provision-young-carers-secondary-schools-further-education-colleges-and-pupil
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/healthandsocialcare/healthcaresystem/articles/2011censusanalysisunpaidcareinenglandandwales2011andcomparisonwith2001/2013-02-15
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/healthandsocialcare/healthcaresystem/articles/2011censusanalysisunpaidcareinenglandandwales2011andcomparisonwith2001/2013-02-15
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/healthandsocialcare/healthcaresystem/articles/2011censusanalysisunpaidcareinenglandandwales2011andcomparisonwith2001/2013-02-15
http://www.wales.nhs.uk/sitesplus/documents/862/Item%207.1%20Carers%20Update%20Report.pdf
http://www.wales.nhs.uk/sitesplus/documents/862/Item%207.1%20Carers%20Update%20Report.pdf
https://phw.nhs.wales/publications/publications1/voices-of-carers-during-the-covid-19-pandemic-messages-for-the-future-of-unpaid-caring-in-wales/
https://phw.nhs.wales/publications/publications1/voices-of-carers-during-the-covid-19-pandemic-messages-for-the-future-of-unpaid-caring-in-wales/
https://www.wwcp.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/11/Carers-Strategy-Final-20.10.20-Eng.pdf
https://www.wwcp.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/11/Carers-Strategy-Final-20.10.20-Eng.pdf


62 

 

8. Learning Disabilities 

8.1 Introduction 

People with learning disabilities (PwLD) have a reduced ability to understand new or 

complex information and learn new skills. In addition, PwLD often have a reduced 

capacity to live independently.  

In the West Wales region there are approximately 2,588 adults (16+) living with 

moderate or severe learning disability (LD). Some people with a severe learning 

disability can also have a complex range of other difficulties or disabling conditions 

requiring a high amount of specialist care and support. This group are referred to as 

people with Profound and Multiple Learning Disabilities (PMLD). There are a significant 

number of people with PMLD in West Wales, some of whom continue to experience 

significant inequalities in the services they receive. 

8.1.1 Classification of a learning disability 

PwLD are not one singular homogenous group, they have diverse needs and goals. 

LD is often classed in terms of its severity: mild (a person able to live independently 

with minimal help), moderate (able to live independently in appropriate 

accommodation with the right support), or severe (unable to live independently and 

reliant on carers). In addition, it is not uncommon for people with LD to also have 

other diagnoses/conditions such as: Down’s syndrome, autism, physical disabilities, 

sensory impairment, communication impairment etc. 

Some people with LD may always need full assistance with every activity of living 

because of their diagnosis and prognosis, but that should not impact on, or detract 

from, their right to have a fulfilling life. Others with more moderate impairments 

should have the choice to manage with less support. 

8.1.2 Health facts and inequalities associated with LD 

Learning disabilities are not always apparent and can sometimes be difficult to identify, 
which can lead to PwLD not having the care and support they need or would choose. 

PwLD face many health inequalities. They are more likely than other people to 
experience poorer health with poorer self-rated health; physical health; psychological 
distress; or multiple morbidities. Behavioural risk factors are more common such as 
poor diet, low levels of physical activity, smoking, alcohol use and resistance to access 
health services. 

They are less likely to be employed for 16 hours or more per week; live in a high-
quality neighbourhood or feel safe outside in the dark. They are more likely to 
experience financial hardships; social isolation; being threatened; actual violence or 
being a victim of hate crime.  

8.2 Demographic Profile 

Results from the 2019-2020 Quality and Outcomes Framework (QOF) register 
indicates an incidence rate of people with LD in the West Wales region of about 0.5%. 
The value is the same as that recorded for the whole of Wales.  

Tudalen 370



63 

 

At a local authority level, the incidence is higher in Carmarthenshire (0.6%) compared 
to Pembrokeshire (0.5%) and is lowest in Ceredigion (0.4%). The QOF register is 
based on data collected from Local authorities who submit numbers of all persons 
identified as having LD currently known to the authority and included in a register of 
records for the purpose of planning or providing services. The register of PwLD data 
may be an underestimate as registration is voluntary and does not account for people 
undiagnosed.  

8.2.1 Children and Young People 

The total number of children and young people with LD (aged 0-17) in West Wales is 

currently predicted at 2,978 in 2021. The total number of children with LD is expected 

to remain consistent over the next 10 years (see Appendix 8C) for all categories of 

severity. The current prediction of the number of children and young people (aged 0-

17) with LD in each of the LA is: 

• Moderate LD: 1,206 in Carmarthenshire, 770 in Pembrokeshire, and 395 in 
Ceredigion 

• Severe LD: 241 in Carmarthenshire, 154 in Pembrokeshire, and 79 in 
Ceredigion 

• PMLD: 68 people in Carmarthenshire, 43 in Pembrokeshire, and 22 in 
Ceredigion 

 

8.2.2 Adults  

A current estimate of the number of people (aged between 17 and 65) with LD in 

West Wales, is provided by people claiming financial support in West Wales through 

Personal Independence Payments (PIP) and DLA.  

The number of people claiming PIP in November 2020 is 2,264 (1,160 in 

Carmarthenshire, 770 in Pembrokeshire and 334 in Ceredigion). Figure 17 shows a 

steady increase, over the last 5 years, in that number coinciding with a significant 

reduction in the number of claims for DLA. From Nov 2020 only 162 adults (17 to 65 

years old) are entitled to DLA (42 in Carmarthenshire, 49 in Pembrokeshire and 71 in 

Ceredigion).   

There has also been a steady increase in people with LD aged 65+ claiming personal 

independence payments rising to 94 [Nov 2020] (52 in Carmarthenshire, 28 in 

Pembrokeshire and 14 in Ceredigion).  Coinciding with a reduction in claims for DLA 

in over 65s to just 68 (34 in Carmarthenshire, 16 in Pembrokeshire and 18 in 

Ceredigion). 

Tudalen 371



64 

 

 

Figure 17: Number of adults (aged 16 to 64) claiming Personal Independence Payments in West 

Wales [data collected from the department of works and pension, https://stat-xplore.dwp.gov.uk] 

 
8.2.3 PMLD 

An important consideration in planning for care and provision in people with LD are 
those with the most needs. The prevalence of PMLD in the general population is 0.05 
per 1,000.  
 
Due to medical advances the total number of children and adults with PMLD is 
expected to grow by about 1.8% each year. This estimate would lead to a figure of 
77 people with PMLD in Carmarthenshire, 32 in Ceredigion and 51 in Pembrokeshire 
in 2021. Within the Hywel Dda catchment area the figure is thought to be around 160.  
 
8.2.4 Placements and Provision 

One of the key challenges in supporting PwLD is providing safe and supported 

accommodation relevant to their life stage and care needs. As they transition into 

adulthood and age, the choice of accommodation should reflect their changing needs, 

promoting independence whenever possible and appropriate.   

The greatest proportion of PwLD live with their families. This is illustrated in Figure 

18 which shows the breakdown of accommodation type for 1,854 people living in 

West Wales.   

 

   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 372



65 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Figure 18: Placements for PwLD in West Wales  

[data collected from WAG, https://statswales.gov.wales] 

8.3 Care and Support needs 

To provide an assessment of the current services and to determine the gaps and areas 

for improvement, several engagements were undertaken, both through interviews and 

workshops that captured the views of PwLD and those who provide and deliver their 

care. These groups include: 

• Services Users: Engagement with the LD community has been through 
workshops and responses with members of the Dream Team. The Dream 
Team primarily consists of people with moderate LD and tend to be more 
independent. In addition, parents and carers involved in support and caring 
for people with LD with more complex needs were also invited to provide 
their views on their behalf 

 

• Service providers: Opinions from a range of different specialities, services, 
and commission bodies across the three local authorities 

 

Engagement activity with PwLD and those providing care and support has 

demonstrated that although there is some way to go, lessons learned from the 

previous PNA in 2017 have resulted in several improvements and developments in the 

approach to supporting PwLD, which include the development and implementation of 

the LD Charter and the work of the Dream Team. 

 

8.4 Current and Future Care and Support Provision 

A range of care and support services are in place across the region to support adults 

with LD to live fulfilled lives within the community, which are summarised in Appendix 

8B. 

There is a noticeable increase in the number of people with PMLD and an increase in 

complex cases. This will require a multiagency approach across West Wales to 

address.  

 

Tudalen 373

http://www.pembrokeshirepeople1st.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/05/Bilingual-LD-Charter.pdf


66 

 

8.5  Gaps and Areas for Improvement 

The main gaps and needs identified in the chapter are covered by 6 main themes, 

some of which are also common to other population groups: 

 

• Improved Communication 
• Improved Access, Support and Planning of Peoples Care 

• Better Training and Education for All 
• Changes to How Placements and Accommodation is managed 
• Improvement in how Transition between Services & Specialities are Managed 
• Improved Services and Education for Children & Young People with LD and 

their families 
 

8.5.1 Children and Young People 

The following areas were identified in respect of services and provision for children 

and young people with LD. These included: 

 

• A need to focus on children with LD to ensure they are getting the support 
required 

• Implementation of the Additional Learning Needs Act 
• A need to provide specialist training and support to foster carers who look 

after children with learning disabilities.   
• Ensuring that parents of children and young people with LD can access 

information, advice and support if they need it.   
• There needs to be an overall strategy and better links between health, 

education, children’s and adult social care to ensure there is a joined-up way 
of meeting the care and support needs of children and young people  

 

8.6 The impact of the Covid-19 Pandemic 

Coronavirus has had a continued profound effect on PwLD in Wales. According to 

Phase 2 of a 2021 Disability Wales study, during the pandemic almost 30% of PwLD 

paid for a direct payment service they were not receiving and around 70% of PwLD 

had restrictions on visitors [1]. PwLD rely on contact with their GP, community or 

learning disability nurse and / or social worker to maintain their health and well-being. 

During the pandemic, PwLD had more difficulty accessing GPs, social workers and day 

/ community services, leading to increased social isolation, a negative impact on their 

mental health, general health and well-being and increased stress for their carers and 

support network. 

Tudalen 374



67 

 

A report published in February 2021 by Improvement Cymru, shows that in Wales, 

PwLD are 3 to 6 times more likely to die from Coronavirus than the rest of the 

population, due to inherent health inequalities. 

 

The pandemic has impacted on the implementation of continuous improvements 

planned for LD services in the region, including a buddying programme between PMLD 

and members of the Dream Team.  

8.7 Recommendations 
 

Ongoing improvements in care and support should include the development of a 

comprehensive set of standards co-produced by PwLD and adopted by commissioners 

and all providers of LD services. This should and underpin innovation in design and 

delivery of: 

• Accessible community-based accommodation that promotes independence 
• Appropriate care for PMLD 
• Awareness of LD and how to support PwLD and PMLD 
• Communication with and for PwLD and between care and support services 
• Multi-disciplinary approaches for providing care and support 

• Support for transition between services for children and adults 
• Access to primary and secondary health care, day-services and respite care 

“This report is an essential piece of on-going work to highlight the health inequalities we 

so often find with people with learning disabilities. This report is vitally important in 

maintaining the focus on improving the lives of people with a learning disability both now 

and in the future.” 

Dr Rachel Ann Jones, Learning Disabilities programme Lead at Improvement Cymru 

For current legislation and regulations see Appendix 8A.  

For current care and support provision see Appendix 8B.  

For additional data see Appendix 8C. 

 

References: 

[1] https://www.ldw.org.uk/project/covid19-learning-disability-study/  

 

Tudalen 375

https://www.ldw.org.uk/project/covid19-learning-disability-study/


68 

 

9. Autism  

9.1 Introduction 

Autism is a developmental disorder which affects the way a person communicates with 

and relates to other people and the world around them. The way in which people are 

affected varies from one individual to another and by age and intellectual functioning. 

The term ‘autistic people’ rather than ‘people with autism’, reflects the language 

preferences expressed by autistic people. The term ‘people’ refers to children, young 

people and adults. This language will be used throughout this chapter.  

Estimates of the prevalence of autism spectrum disorders suggest rates of around 1% 

in the general population, but there is much debate and the suggestion that not all 

individuals are identified (Brugha et al., 2011, 2016; Chiarotti & Venerosi, 2020; 

Fombonne et al., 2021; Lyall et al., 2017) [1][2][3][4][5].  

New services for adult diagnosis have been set up across Wales at a time of rising 

awareness of the spectrum of autism experiences; however, until recently no studies 

have examined adult autism prevalence in Wales 

Increased rates of diagnosis and more prevalent autism in the community necessitate 

increased funding for specialist services to enable autistic adults to receive any support 

they require. As an alternative to a separate Autism Bill, The Welsh Government 

developed a Code of Practice for Autism which highlights and reinforces existing duties 

of the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014 and the NHS (Wales) Act 2006 

in respect of Autistic people. 

9.2 Demographic Profile 

Estimates suggest that 1 in every 100 people in a population will have a diagnosis of 

Autism. This would mean that there are in the region of 4,000 autistic people in West 

Wales (about 2,000 in Carmarthenshire, 1,500 in Pembrokeshire and 750 Ceredigion)  

Local authorities are required to keep data by Special Educational Needs (SEN) 

category. In 2020-21 there were 945 children in West Wales in the Autism category - 

375 in Carmarthenshire, 420 in Pembrokeshire and 150 in Ceredigion.      

However, these estimates are likely to be underplaying the true prevalence rates in 

West Wales. Currently Hywel Dda University Health Board reports that there are 900 

adults on the waiting list waiting to be assessed for an autism diagnosis and over 

1,000 children.  

9.3 Care and Support Needs 

Since the 2017 Population Needs Assessment the needs of Autistic people have been 

recognised as a separate requirement to Learning Disabilities. This recognition of the 

needs of Autistic people, be they children or adults, is also reflected within the Welsh 

Government’s Autism Code of Practice. 

Tudalen 376



69 

 

The Code of Practice sets out what autistic people, their parents and carers can expect 

from public services in Wales and how Welsh Government intend to adapt the way we 

organise society to be more aware and more attuned to neurodiversity. 

The Code of Practice recognises that whilst some autistic people may have a co-morbid 

learning disability or mental illness, many will not, yet will still at times require specific 

advice, help and support.  

9.4 Current and Future Care and Support Provision 

In March 2016, as part of the refreshed Autistic Spectrum Disorder Strategic Action 

Plan the Welsh Government announced that it would be funding a new national 

Integrated Autism Service (IAS) 

The West Wales Integrated Autism Service (WWIAS) was then established in 2019. 

This is a joint service delivered by Hywel Dda University Health Board in partnership 

with the local authorities of West Wales.   

The service was developed across Wales following consultation with autistic people, 

carers and professionals which highlighted the lack of support available for autistic 

people who did not meet the criteria for mental health and learning disability services.   

WWIAS offer adult autism diagnostic assessment for adults who do not have a 

significant learning disability or mental health problem. They also offer a range of 

support for autistic people, their families, including carers and advice for professionals.   

In 2020-2021:  

• They received 420 referrals to the service were made for autistic adults with 
41% of these self-referrals from adults 

• They undertook 1,944 interactions were made with autistic adults 

• 68% of referrals for autistic adults were requesting autism diagnostic 
assessments and 32% were requesting support 

• 118 adults received a full diagnostic assessment  

• 109 interactions were made with parents/ carers 

• 38 referrals to the service were made for parents/ carers with 21% referrals 
by professionals and 79% of these self-referrals 

• 1,061 interactions were made with professionals 

• 280 new contacts with professionals 

 
9.5 Gaps and Areas for Improvement 

To provide an assessment of the current services to determine the gaps and areas for 

improvement, engagements have been completed with autistic people, parents, carers 

and professionals. 

In West Wales a regional strategic group of all key partners meets to oversee the 

implementation of services for Autistic people, including the Integrated Autism Service 

Tudalen 377



70 

 

(IAS). This strategic group is chaired by the Head of Service within Hywel Dda 

University Health Board with the responsibility for Autism.  

In each local authority there is an ‘Autism Lead’ a named contact responsible for 

overseeing and coordinating the activity in their area. This includes the coordination 

of local steering and stakeholder groups (with autistic people and their families) as 

well as training and awareness raising for staff.  

Our engagement activities have been limited during the COVID 19 pandemic. 

However, our agreed approach for the future is set out below. 

     

 

Figure 19: Diagram illustrating the role of the Autism Champion in collating and sharing information 

to inform the Regional Partnership Board (Welsh Government, 2021) 

Engagement through the strategic groups has allowed us to reflect what matters to 

autistic people in West Wales including the impact of the COVID-19 Pandemic on their 

wellbeing and care and support needs.   

In addition, a virtual meeting was held with 10 parents of children and young people 

with complex needs, including autism.  

 

 

Tudalen 378



71 

 

9.6 The impact of the Covid-10 Pandemic 

 

The pandemic has impacted on the care and support available for autistic people as 

many support services were paused. In addition, the uncertainty and frequent changes 

to routines and rules will, in some cases have had a significant impact upon people’s 

mental-health and wellbeing. This has placed increased pressure on family members 

and carers.  

 

For Autistic People the resumption of and reintegration to activities such as education 

following prolonged periods of lock down has also presented significant challenges.  
 

9.7 Recommendations 

The overarching themes and recommendations for improvement, taken from our 

engagements, include the following: 

 

• A need to Improve waiting times for diagnosis and diagnosis rates for both 

children and adults 

 

• Improve access to information and advice for Autistic people and their 

families, including the autism strategy and the associated support services 

available in West Wales 

 

• Improve awareness of Autism and the Autistic Spectrum Conditions across 

health, social care services, education and all public services 

 

• Greater emphasis on user engagement and coproduction in service 

development 

 

• Improving the transition for Autistic Young people when they leave school  

 

• Increasing opportunities for volunteering, work experience, employment 

opportunities and networking for autistic people 
 

 

For current legislation and regulations see Appendix 9A  

For current care and support provision see Appendix 9B  

For additional data see Appendix 9C  

 

Tudalen 379



72 

 

References: 

[1] Brugha, T. S., McManus, S., Bankart, J., Scott, F., Purdon, S., Smith, J., 

Bebbington, P., Jenkins, R., & Meltzer, G. C. W. (2011). Epidemiology of autism 

spectrum disorders in adults in the community in England. Archives of General 

Psychiatry, 68(5), 459–465. https://doi.org/10.1001/arch-genpsychiatry.2011.38 

[2] Brugha, T. S., Spiers, N., Bankart, J., Cooper, S. A., McManus, S., Scott, F. J., 

Smith, J., & Tyrer, F. (2016). Epidemiology of autism in adults across age groups 

and ability levels. British Journal of Psychiatry, 209(6), 498–503. https://doi. 

org/10.1192/bjp.bp.115.174649 

[3] Chiarotti, F., & Venerosi, A. (2020). Epidemiology of autism spectrum disorders: 

A review of worldwide prevalence estimates since 2014. Brain Sciences, 10(5), 274. 

https://doi. org/10.3390/brainsci10050274 

[4] Fombonne, E., MacFarlane, H., & Salem, A. C. (2021). Epidemiological surveys of 

ASD: Advances and remaining challenges. Journal of Autism and Developmental 

Disorders, 51, 4271–4290. https://doi.org/10.1007/s10803- 021-05005-9 

[5] Lyall, K., Croen, L., Daniels, J., Fallin, M. D., Ladd-Acosta, C., Lee, B. K., Park, B. 

Y., Snyder, N. W., Schendel, D., Volk, H., Windham, G. C., & Newschaffer, C. 

(2017). The changing epidemiology of autism spectrum disorders. Annual Review 

of Public Health, 38, 81–102. https:// 

www.annualreviews.org/doi/abs/10.1146/annurev-publ-health-031816-044318 

Tudalen 380

https://doi.org/10.1001/arch-genpsychiatry.2011.38


73 

 

10. Children and Young People 

10.1 Introduction 

Children and Young People can be grouped into three categories:  

• Up to the age of 18 
• Up to the age of 21 if they are in care 
• Up the age of 25 if they are in care and are still in education 

 

10.2 Demographic Profile 

• There are over 82,000 children and young people (0-19) in the West Wales 
Region (StatsWales), making up approximately 22.2% of the population 

• The number of young people is expected to stay relatively stable over the next 
15 years 

• The region has a lower number of Looked After Children (LAC) than the 
national average 

• Care and support needs span a wide range from universal, through to early 
intervention, multiple needs and remedial intervention 

• All three local authorities are currently below the national average for the 
number of young people as a percentage of the population 

• Projections for 2043 show that young people aged 0-15 will account for 
16.54% of the national population, whereas only 16.22% of the population in 
Carmarthenshire, 14.67% of the population in Pembrokeshire, and 13.64% of 
the population in Ceredigion will be made up of people aged 0-15 

• In 2020 there were an estimated 6,105 children and young people with a long-
term illness/disability in West Wales – 3,105 in Carmarthenshire, 1,983 in 
Pembrokeshire, and 1,017 in Ceredigion; projections for 2043 show a 
decrease to 5,652, with 2,986 in Carmarthenshire, 1,784 in Pembrokeshire, 
and 882 in Ceredigion 

 

 

Tudalen 381



74 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Figure 20: Number of looked after children in West Wales 2017-2021(Welsh Government) 

 

Local Authority  Children with a 
Disability 

Children with no 
Disability 

All Children 
receiving care 
and support 

Ceredigion  195 220 410 

Pembrokeshire 65 230 295 

Carmarthenshire 145 435 580 
 

Table 3: Children receiving care and support by local authority and disability (StatWales) 

 

 Carmarthenshire Ceredigion Pembrokeshire 

 Received Accepted Received Accepted Received Accepted 

2017-
2018 999 638 308 218 646 445 

2018-
2019 1267 826 352 252 773 497 

2019-
2020 1268 937 362 273 775 559 

2020-
2021 1178 826 342 249 632 449 

2021-
2022 1463 1016 455 324 820 546 

 
Table 4: Referrals received and accepted to S-CAMHS (CAMHS) 

 

 

Tudalen 382



75 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Figure 21: Number of young people not in education, employment or training 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Figure 22: Population accessing non statutory / statutory services in West Wales  

Source: http://www.wwcp-data.org.uk/children-and-young-people   

 

10.3 Care and Support Needs 

Care and support needs for children and families span a wide range from universal, 

through early intervention, multiple needs and remedial intervention. Children and 

families will require different levels of care and support depending upon their 

presenting need and strengths. In West Wales we have developed ‘The Right Help at 

the Right Time’ Framework which details the care and support available in each 

locality. The document also provides guidance on the thresholds of need 

acknowledging that children’s situations and circumstances can vary across the 

spectrum of need and professional judgement should always be used in partnership 

with the family. 

Tudalen 383

http://www.wwcp-data.org.uk/children-and-young-people


76 

 

10.4 Current and Future Care and Support Provision 

As outlined in Appendix 10B the range and level of care and support currently being 

provided offers a range of interventions at varying levels of intensity, with the aim of 

preventing escalation to more restrictive interventions and delivering positive 

outcomes to children and young people.  

10.5 Gaps and Areas for Improvement 

There are several areas in which further improvement can be made. These are set out 

below against the core principles of the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 

2014. 

10.5.1 Voice and control 

-  Enhancing assessment and care planning processes to ensure that children, 

young people and their families have a voice in relation to what is important 

to them and the support they need. 

10.5.2 Prevention and early intervention  

- Continue to strengthen the focus on prevention across the range of services, 
to build resilience of children, young people and families, reduce reliance on 
statutory services and facilitate de-escalation from intensive support where 
appropriate. 

10.5.3 Wellbeing  

- Reducing the number of placement moves for children looked after by local 
authorities (CLA) and reducing reliance on residential care  

- Improving access to mental health services at an early stage, thus preventing 
the need for referral to Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS).  

- Improving joint planning between CAMHS and learning disability services to 
ensure equitable service provision for children with neuro-developmental 
conditions 

10.5.4 Co-production  

- Improving engagement opportunities with Children, Young People and their 
Families to ensure their voice is heard and services are designed with them in 
mind.  

10.5.5 Cooperation, partnership, and integration 

- Developing consistent methodology such as Signs of Safety to underpin care 
and support across the region 

- Developing a consistent, outcomes-based performance framework for children 
and young people’s services across the region 

- Developing links between Integrated Family Support Services (IFSS) and other 
Council services, such as adult care and housing, as well as community-based 
services, to help families back to independence and enable them to function 
effectively within their communities 

Tudalen 384

https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-05/social-services-and-well-being-wales-act-2014-the-essentials.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-05/social-services-and-well-being-wales-act-2014-the-essentials.pdf


77 

 

- Reconfiguring commissioning processes for high cost, low volume care and 
support packages for children with complex needs to ensure best outcomes and 
improve financial efficiency 

- Incorporating of the NEST (Nurturing Empowering Safe Trusted) framework, 
bringing services together to support children and young people’s mental health 
at every opportunity 

Opportunities should be taken to take these areas forward in partnership across the 

region, thereby ensuring consistency of provision and enabling a ‘once for West Wales’ 

approach wherever possible.  

10.6 The impact of the Covid-19 pandemic 

The coronavirus pandemic (Covid-19) has presented new and difficult challenges for 

everyone. Many households have been put under strain or have faced adversity 

because of the social, psychological and economic impact of lockdown.  

Services have done everything they can under difficult circumstances, but it is likely 

children will have suffered harm during this period that will not have been identified 

by professionals.  

Providing time and space to listen directly to children is integral to a child-centred 

system and promotes good safeguarding practice. Children’s Social Services have 

maintained face-to-face contact for children known to be at risk. However, many 

children will have only had virtual contact via video, telephone or online with services 

from their home with family members present. This is likely to have impacted on the 

opportunities for practitioners to identify abuse and for children to disclose harm. 

Although many practitioners are very experienced in safeguarding practice, others 

may not feel as confident in this area of practice. 

10.7 Recommendations 

• Continue with the development of policies and practice that recognise the 
importance of the family in decision making processes 

• Develop an ‘Information Sharing Protocol’ and integrated case management 
system that assists professionals to maintain and share records and reports 
to support the “No Wrong Door approach”  

• Build on the success of one stop shop models of community-based family 
support such as Flying Start. 

• Improve targeted support for families of disabled children  
• Extend availability of Family Support Workers 

  

 

For current legislation and regulations see Appendix 10A  

For current care and support provision see Appendix 10B  

For additional data see Appendix 10C  

 

Tudalen 385

https://collaborative.nhs.wales/networks/wales-mental-health-network/together-for-children-and-young-people-2/the-nest-framework


78 

 

11. Mental Health 

11.1 Introduction 

According to the World Health Organisation, mental health is defined as "a state of 

well-being in which the individual realizes his or her own abilities, can cope with the 

normal stresses of life, can work productively and fruitfully, and is able to make a 

contribution to his or her community". [1] 

Our mental health affects how we think, feel and act. A healthy outlook can reduce 

both the intensity and duration of illnesses, whereas poor mental health can have the 

opposite effect. It has been shown that depression and its symptoms are major risk 

factors in the development of coronary heart disease and death after myocardial 

infarction. Mental illness generally refers to conditions that affect cognition, emotion 

and behaviour. [2] Many factors contribute to mental health problems, including: 

• Biological factors, such as genes or brain chemistry 

• Life experiences, such as trauma or abuse 
• Family history of mental health problems [3] 

 

11.1.1 Classification of Mental Health 

There are many different mental health disorders, which can generally be 

characterised by a combination of abnormal thoughts, perceptions, emotions, 

behaviours or relationships with others. Different mental health disorders include 

depression, bipolar disorder, schizophrenia and other psychoses. [4]; [5] 

11.1.2      Health facts and inequalities associated with Mental Health 

Stigma surrounding mental illness is common. This can be defined as the formation of 

stereotypes or negative expectations around the identity of an individual with mental 

illness. The presence of these stereotypes and negative expectations can lead to 

prejudice and discriminating behaviour. Stigma can also play a role in determining 

health-seeking behaviour, leading to people potentially hiding issues surrounding their 

mental health rather than seeking help [6]. Stigma can be reduced through increasing 

the information, education and public awareness surrounding mental illness. 

11.2  Demographic Profile 

The following are statistics around mental health in Wales: 

 

• 1 in 4 adults experience mental health problems or illness at some point in 
their lifetime 

• 1 in 6 adults are experiencing symptoms at any one time 
• 1 in 10 children between the ages of 5 and 16 has a mental health problem, 

and many more have behavioural issues 
• Approximately 50% of people who go on to have serious mental health 

problems will have symptoms by the time they are 14 and many at a much 
younger age 

 

Tudalen 386



79 

 

As can be seen in figure 23 below, the total number of people registered on the mental 

health Quality and Outcomes Framework (QOF) register has been increasing in both 

Wales and the West Wales region from 2009 to 2019. This implies that mental health 

issues are a growing problem across Wales. 

 

 
 

 
Figure 23: Total number of patients on the mental health  

Quality and Outcomes Framework (QOF) registered in HDdUHB and Wales 

 

11.2.1 Admissions to Mental Health Facilities by Local Health Board 

Figure 24 below shows total admissions to mental health facilities in Wales and the 

West Wales region covering a ten-year period from 2010 to 2019. Admissions have 

been steadily decreasing in Wales over the past 10 years, from around 11,000 in 2010-

11 to just over 8000 in 2018-19. Despite this overall reduction in Wales, numbers in 

West Wales have remained steady, and have actually increased from 2017 to 2019, 

with 768 admissions in 2016-17 and 902 admissions in 2018-19. 

 

 

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

4500

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

0

5000

10000

15000

20000

25000

30000

35000

W
es

t 
W

al
es

W
al

es

Wales West Wales

Tudalen 387



80 

 

 
Fig.24: Total admissions to mental health facilities in Wales and West Wales from 2010 to 2019 

 

11.2.2 Specialist Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services 

(sCAMHS) waiting for a First Appointment 
 

The waiting times for specialist child and adolescent mental health services (sCAMHS) 

under 4 weeks and over 4 weeks in Wales and West Wales are shown in Appendix 

11C. Waiting times on the sCAMHS pathways have generally been less in West Wales 

than in Wales overall, with a larger proportion of patient in Wales having to wait over 

4 weeks for this service. There appears to be a large spike in patients having to wait 

more than 4 weeks in Wales towards the end of 2020, with a smaller spike apparent 

in West Wales, which could be related to the COVID-19 pandemic. 

 

11.2.3 Local Primary Mental Health Support Services 

The total monthly referrals for local primary mental health support services for Wales 

and West Wales are presented in Appendix 11C.  

 

There appears to be a steadily growing demand for these services from 2013 through 

to 2019 in both Wales and West Wales. A sudden sharp decrease in referrals occurred 

in early 2020 coinciding with the covid outbreak. This decrease was seen in the West 

Wales region and across Wales overall. 

 

As can be seen in Appendix 11C, the total percentage of Local Primary Mental Health 

Support Service (LPMHSS) assessments that are carried out within 28 days is generally 

higher in West Wales than in Wales in general. 

 

11.2.4 Predicted Change in Mental Disorder Prevalence  

As shown in figure 25 below, whereas in Wales there is predicted to be an overall 

increase in the prevalence of mental health disorders, in West Wales the overall 

percentage of people with mental health disorders is generally predicted to decrease 

between 2020 and 2043. Although it is predicted that there will be an increase in 

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

0

2000

4000

6000

8000

10000

12000

W
es

t 
W

al
es

W
al

es

Wales West Wales

Tudalen 388



81 

 

common mental disorders in Carmarthenshire and Pembrokeshire. Overall, the total 

number of people in Ceredigion suffering from a mental disorder is predicted to 

decrease the most out of the three local authorities. 

 

 

 
Figure 25: Change in percentage of people with different mental disorders from 2020 to 2043 

 

11.3 Care and Support Needs 

To provide an assessment of the level and range of current mental health services, 

determine the adequacy of these services, and identify future care and support needs 

and areas for improvement, virtual engagement sessions were carried out with both 

service providers and service users from West Wales Action for Mental Health 

(WWAMH) and Mind.  

11.4 Current and Future Care and Support Provision 

• As a result of COVID-19, demand for mental health services in West Wales 
over the coming years is expected to increase significantly. Future planning 
should reflect this and be based on co-production principles 

• Secondary and primary care staff need more training to improve knowledge 
and understanding of mental health issues, especially surrounding crisis and 
suicide, to ensure they meet the complex issues and demands being 
presented and therefore are managed more effectively 

1

-4.4

-5.7

-4.8

-2.2

-7.1

-10.6

-6.9

-11

-11.9

2.7

-2.8

-1.6

-2.4

-0.4

3.2

0.4

0.2

0.5

1

Pembrokeshire: Common Mental Disorder

Pembrokeshire: Bipolar Disorder

Pembrokeshire: Borderline Personality Disorder

Pembrokeshire: Antisocial Mental Disorder

Pembrokeshire: Psychotic Mental Disorder

Ceredigion: Common Mental Disorder

Ceredigion: Bipolar Disorder

Ceredigion: Borderline Personality Disorder

Ceredigion: Antisocial Mental Disorder

Ceredigion: Psychotic Mental Disorder

Carmarthenshire: Common Mental Disorder

Carmarthenshire: Bipolar Disorder

Carmarthenshire: Borderline Personality Disorder

Carmarthenshire: Antisocial Mental Disorder

Carmarthenshire:Psychotic Mental Disorder

Wales: Common Mental Disorder

Wales: Bipolar Disorder

Wales: Borderline Personality Disorder

Wales: Antisocial Mental Disorder

Wales: Psychotic Mental Disorder

16+ with a mental disorder: % change 2020-2043

Tudalen 389



82 

 

• Services need to be community focussed and better integrated, so that 
patients managing multiple issues can get the full range of support they 
need from multi-disciplinary teams closer to home, which would also help 
mitigate access to services for those living in rural communities 

• Follow up services need to be improved to educate and support people with 
lifelong conditions after they have been released from a service; this could 
help people to self-manage their condition better and avoid them returning 
in the future 

• To keep up with the increasing demand for mental health services now and 
in the future, employers should consider how to make working within mental 
health services a more appealing opportunity for potential employees 

For current care and support provision, please see Appendix 11B. 

11.5 Gaps and Areas for Improvement 

The following are some of the key issues identified during engagements: 

 

• Follow up services need to be improved to educate and support people with 
lifelong conditions after they have been released from a service; this could 
help people to self-manage their condition better and avoid them returning 
in the future 

• There needs to be a greater recognition and awareness of dual diagnosis 
and neurodiversity, with increasing numbers of people diagnosed on the 
autism spectrum   

• Although progress has been made since 2017 in providing a 24/7 service, 
further work is still needed to achieve this. A twilight sanctuary has been set 
up in each of the three counties to provide support for people out of hours, 
but these do not offer around the clock support and are not always 
accessible for people in rural areas  

• These services need to be reviewed to ensure that a 24-hour service is 
delivering support in response to need, in the most appropriate, smart and 
cost-effective way.  For example, prioritising the service as a safe haven out 
of hours, with therapeutic support available there during the day 

• Overnight accommodation associated with the sanctuaries is currently 
underutilised, which could suggest the threshold for admission is set too 
high 

• Although some improvements have been made with regards to crisis 
management and intervention, there needs to be further consideration of 
effective alternatives to hospital attendance in response to crisis, to avoid A 
& E being the default option for situations where people are considered “too 
difficult to deal with” 

• Access and referrals to Community Mental Health Teams (CMHTs) need to 
be improved  

Tudalen 390



83 

 

• Assessment processes need to be improved to avoid people being released 
prematurely without the appropriate post-discharge support, only to be re-
admitted  

11.6 The impact of the Covid-19 pandemic 

The pandemic has led to increased isolation and a disruption of normal life and had a 

dramatic impact on people’s access to services. With access to primary care services 

severely curtailed or becoming virtual, many people have been unable or too worried 

to access the support they would expect. People that were doing well before COVID 

often have been unable to access support needed because of it. [10] 

 

Whilst some of the impact may be short-term and resolved by increasing the visibility 

and accessibility of services, it is not clear what the long-term impact might be on 

mental health and wellbeing. 

 

In the period immediately before the pandemic, it was reported that 11.7% of Welsh 

people suffered from severe mental health issues. This reportedly climbed to 28.1% 

in April 2020. This deterioration in mental health was equivalent to someone who is 

employed becoming unemployed. 

 

Young people reportedly experienced the largest deterioration because of COVID-19, 

with the average GHQ score among those aged 16-24 rising by 3 points, or 24% 

relative to pre-pandemic period. 

 

Women also experience worse levels of mental health than men after the onset of the 

pandemic, with the gap in mental health between men and women reportedly 

increasing from 9.9% to 14.1%. 

 

It is reported to have had a worse effect on those from black, Asian and minority 

ethnic (BAME) backgrounds – in June 2020 BAME individuals in Wales reported on 

average 4.1 problems associated with mental distress, whereas for white British 

individuals this was 2.7 (a 55% difference in relative terms). 

  

Mental health between the lowest and highest income has also widened significantly 

during the pandemic. Average GHQ-12 score in November 2020 for the lowest income 

quintile increased by 39% compared to the pre-COVID level. The top quintile of 

earners, however, only experience an increase of 6.5% over the same period. 

 

A common response from the engagement events suggests “COVID has highlighted 

cracks that were already there and made them worse”. 

 

11.7 Recommendations 

Results from the engagements highlight several important gaps in the current services 

which give rise to several recommendations: 

Tudalen 391



84 

 

• Increase integration of services to support people with multiple co-occurring 
issues 

• Improve recognition and awareness of neurodiversity and dual diagnosis 

• Provide a safe place for people in crisis to go 24/7, as an alternative to A&E 

• Improve the crisis referral process so that people experiencing crisis have 
access to immediate support  

• Improve training for front line, primary and secondary care staff  

• Improve follow up support for patients after they have been released from 

services, including education and self-management of conditions  

• Increase co-production of services  

• Increase staff retention and recruitment rates.  

  

For current legislation and regulations see Appendix 11A  

For current care and support provision see Appendix 11B  

For additional data see Appendix 11C  

 

Tudalen 392



85 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

References: 

[1]  World Health Organisation, available at https://www.who.int/en/news-

room/fact-sheets/detail/mental-health-strengthening-our-response. 

[2]  Manderscheid RW, Ryff CD, Freeman EJ, McKnight-Eily LR, Dhingra S, 

Strine TW. Prev Chronic Dis. 2010 Jan;7(1):A19. Epub 2009 Dec 15. 

[3]  MentalHealth.gov, available at https://www.mentalhealth.gov/basics/what-

is-mental-health. 

[4]  World Health Organisation, available at https://www.who.int/news-

room/fact-sheets/detail/mental-disorders. 

[5]  GBD 2017 Disease and Injury Incidence and Prevalence Collaborators. 

(2018). Global, regional, and national incidence, prevalence, and years lived 

with disability for 354 diseases and injuries for 195 countries and territories, 

1990–2017: a systematic analysis for the Global Burden of Disease Study 2017. 

The Lancet. DOI:https://doi.org/10.1016/S0140-6736(18)32279-7. 

[6]  Bharadwaj P, Mallesh MP, Suziedelyte A. Economics Letters. 2017 Mental 

health stigma, 159, pp. 57-60. doi: 10.1016/j.econlet.2017.06.028.  

[7]  Welsh Government. Available at https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue. 

[8]  Healthcare inspectorate Wales. Deprivation of liberty safeguards annual 

monitoring report for health and social care 2019-2020. Available at 

https://hiw.org.uk/sites/default/files/2021-03/210324dols2019-20en.pdf. 

[9]  Office for national statistics. Available at https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/. 

[10] Rodriguez J. Covid-19 in Wales: the mental health and wellbeing impact. 

Wales Fiscal Analysis. Available at 

https://www.cardiff.ac.uk/__data/assets/pdf_file/0010/2533762/COVID-19-

Mental-health-FINAL-08-07-2021.pdf. 

 

Tudalen 393



86 

 

12. Health and Physical Disabilities 

12.1 Introduction 

Latest population estimates state that there are 218,685 people aged between 18 to 

64 years old living in the West Wales (HDdUHB) region (Office for National Statistics 

(ONS), 2021). This means that 69% of the population is aged between 18 and 64 

years old, which is a fall of 1% from 2015 and is below the average for Wales (74%).  

This percentage is slightly lower in Pembrokeshire at 68% (69,575 of the 102,744 

residents), slightly higher in Carmarthenshire at 70% (106,117 of the 152,810 

residents) and the same as the region average in Ceredigion at 69% (41,993 out of 

the 60,661 residents). This highlights that we have an ageing population in West 

Wales in comparison to Wales as a whole, particularly in Pembrokeshire.  

Many of the people in the 18-64 age group are healthy adults, however, within this 

population there are considerable numbers with significant health concerns or physical 

disabilities, exacerbated by socio and economic risk factors that have a negative 

impact on their health and therefore on demand for services. 

12.2 Demographic Profile 

Socio-economic factors related to poor health in the region include:  

• 5.5% of people between 16 and 64 in Ceredigion do not have central heating, 
3.5% in Pembrokeshire and 2% in Carmarthenshire (StatsWales) 

• The National Survey for Wales (NSW) suggested that 36.9%, 27.6% and 
25.3% of adults were active for less than 30 minutes a week in 
Pembrokeshire, Carmarthenshire and Ceredigion, respectively  

• In Pembrokeshire, Carmarthenshire and Ceredigion it was estimated that 
25.0%, 21.7% and 23.3% of people had eaten five portions of fruit and veg 
the day before the survey, respectively 

• 5.8% of adults in Pembrokeshire were e-cigarette users, 6.7% in 
Carmarthenshire and 4.2% in Ceredigion  

• In Wales currently 60% of adults are overweight or obese, this is compared 
to Hywel Dda UHB at 59%. If current trends continue, it is projected that 
64% of adults in Wales will be overweight or obese by 2030  

• Prevalence of being overweight and obesity in Wales is higher in men than 
women, but for obesity prevalence alone, it is slightly higher in women and in 
terms of age, prevalence is highest in the 45-64 age group 

 

Census data, records of people on local authority registers or claiming certain benefits, 

provide a reasonable indication of the numbers in the region living with serious illness 

or disability as follows:  

• In the West Wales (HDdUHB) region over 22,000 people between the ages of 
18–64 are entitled to Personal Independence Payment (PIP); 10,000 people 
are entitled to Disability Living Allowance (DLA) and over 13,500 people are 
entitled to Attendance Allowance (AA) 

• According to Welsh Government records, in 2019, there were 9,444 people 
with physical or sensory disabilities on local authority registers in West Wales, 

Tudalen 394



87 

 

5,190 of whom live in Carmarthenshire, 1,183 in Ceredigion and 3,071 in 
Pembrokeshire.1,679 of those are aged between 18 and 64 and are 
registered with a physical disability and a further 1,744 aged between 18 and 
64 are registered as having physical and sensory disabilities, which combined 
represents around 1.1% of the total 18-64 population and aligns broadly with 
the Welsh average of 1.02% 

• Data from the 2011 census highlighted that Carmarthenshire had the highest 
percentage of people whose day-to-day activities were limited (25.4%) or 
limited a lot (13.6%), followed by Pembrokeshire (22.5% and 11.1% 
respectively) and then Ceredigion (21.1% and 10% respectively) 

• As can be seen in the figures below, the percentage of those who are EA core 
or work limited disabled are mainly higher in females than males, except in 
Pembrokeshire where males (23.4%) are higher than females (22.4%). 
Percentages are higher in Carmarthenshire for both males and females 
(28.4%) 

 

 Figures 27 & 28: HDdUHB population and Limiting Long-term illness (fig. 27);  

HDdUHB population with limiting disability (fig. 28)  

 

12.3 Care and Support Needs 

Although a drop in the number of people is predicted within this group in the medium 

term and the current number of people with specific care and support needs is small, 

it is vital that appropriate provision is in place to promote well-being and independence 

and prevent escalation of need.  

12.4 Current and Future Care and Support Provision 

Engagement activity has been undertaken with people in the community, people with 

physical disabilities and those people who provide their care to identify the appropriate 

care and support required now and in the future. Whilst recognising that support for 

people with a disability continues to improve, they indicated areas where more could 

be done to ensure people with a disability are provided with appropriate person-

centred support that allows them to lead full and fulfilling lives. 

For current care and support provision, please see Appendix 12B. 

Tudalen 395



88 

 

12.5 Gaps and Areas for Improvement  

Listed below are some of the recurring themes and issues identified: 

• Improving infrastructure and information, to ensure people with a disability or 
limiting condition and can access premises providing the care and support 
services they are entitled to 

• Recognising the changing requirements of people with a disability or limiting 
condition. Many buildings were compliant with the 1995 disability legislation 
to be wheelchair accessible however, almost all people with disabilities now 
use scooters   

• Increasing availability and choice of appropriate and accessible 
accommodation 

• Involving people with different disabilities at the planning and design stage of 
new and refurbished premises, recognising their views and experience can 
ensure that any new development is easy to use and accessible  

• Reducing restrictions around home improvements and modifications to help 
people manage in their own homes for as long as possible 

• Identifying alternative solutions for people living in rural areas where public 
transport is not adequate 

• Improving assessments and person-centred planning to ensure they reflect 
what really matters for individuals and can flex up and down in response to 
changing needs 

 

12.6 The impact of the Covid-19 Pandemic 

The pandemic has led to increased isolation and a disruption of normal life, having a 

dramatic impact on access to services generally and particularly for people with a 

disability or limiting condition, many of whom were shielding during the pandemic. 

With access to primary care and out-patient services severely curtailed or becoming 

virtual, many people have been unable or too vulnerable to access their regular 

support. 

12.7 Recommendations 

• Improving early identification and treatment of risk factors associated with 
health inequality 

• Improving the early identification, treatment and management of preventable 
and chronic conditions including diabetes, heart disease and respiratory 
illness, to improve long term well-being and reduce complications 

• Ensuring effective interventions and pathways for prevention, treatment and 
management of obesity and childhood obesity are routinely available and 
systematically implemented 

• Strengthening transition arrangements between children and young people’s 
services and adult services 

• Developing community-based, user-led, co-produced services that prevent 
isolation, promote independence and support people to become more resilient 
and manage their own conditions 

• Increasing use of assistive technology, such as telecare to transform 
domiciliary care and supported living services 

Tudalen 396



89 

 

 

 

  

For current legislation and regulations see Appendix 7A  

For current care and support provision see Appendix 7B  

For additional data see Appendix 7C  

 

Tudalen 397



90 

 

13. Sensory Impairment 

13.1 Introduction 

 

Sensory impairment is the common term used to describe blindness, deafness, visual 

impairment, hearing impairment and deafblindness. A person does not have to have 

a full loss of a sense to be impaired. 

13.1.1 Visual Impairment and Sight Loss 

Visual impairment is a severe reduction in vision that cannot be corrected with 

standard glasses or contact lenses and reduces a person’s ability to function at certain 

or all tasks. A person can be registered as either partially sighted or severely sight 

impaired (blind). It can be caused by several conditions, such as cataracts, diabetes, 

genetic defects, trauma, glaucoma, macular degeneration, visual cortex disorder. 

 

People living with visual impairment can experience different levels of sight loss – 

some might be able to only determine lights or shapes, whereas others might 

experience blurred vision. Likewise, visual impairment might lead to a loss of sight in 

the centre of the eye, or no side vision. It is uncommon for someone to have complete 

sight loss, even if they are registered blind. 

 

13.1.2 Hearing Impairment and Deafness 

Hearing impairment can be temporary or permanent and can affect all age groups. It 

can be caused by factors such as: old age, genetics, exposure to noise, infections, 

trauma, birth complications, certain medications or toxins. Hearing loss can be 

gradual, such as people who are later in life. Another common symptom of hearing 

loss is continual ringing in the ear which is caused by conditions such as tinnitus. 

 

13.1.3 Dual Sensory Impairment 

Dual sensory impairment or deafblindness is the loss of sight and hearing to the point 

where communication, mobility and ability to access information are impacted. Many 

people with dual sensory impairment can still see or hear to some extent, with the 

effects varying greatly. The department of health describes four groups of people who 

experience dual sensory impairment: 

 

• Those who are hearing and sight impaired from birth or early childhood 

• Those who are blind at birth or early childhood, and subsequently acquire 
hearing loss 

• Those who are profoundly deaf from birth or early childhood, and 
subsequently lose their sight 

• Those who acquire hearing and sight impairment later in life, which has a 
significant functional impact 

 

The combination of two sensory impairments can mean that a deafblind person will 

have difficulty, or find it impossible, to utilise and benefit fully from services for deaf 

Tudalen 398



91 

 

people or services for blind people. Meeting the needs of deafblind people therefore 

needs a different approach. 

 

Apart from the day-to-day difficulties, people with sensory impairment also have 

poorer health outcomes, higher rates of poverty and lower educational achievements 

than people free from disability [1]. 

13.2 Demographic Profile 

 
 

Figure 29: Sensory impairment in West Wales 

 

13.3 Care and Support Needs 
 

The accessible information standard states that patients, service users, carers and 

parents with a disability, impairment or sensory loss should:  

 

• Be able to contact, and be contacted by services in accessible ways, for 
example email or text message  

• Expect letters and information in formats they can read and understand, for 
example audio, braille, email or easy read  

• Be supported by a communication professional at appointments if this is 
needed to support conversation, for example a British Sign Language 
interpreter  

• Expect support from health and care staff and organisations to communicate, 
for example to lip-read 

 
People with sensory impairment are more likely to feel lonely and isolated. Research 
by RNID in 2000 found that 66% of deaf and hard of hearing people feel isolated due 
to their condition excluding them from everyday activities. Sufficient support in the 

Tudalen 399



92 

 

community is needed to address the issues of isolation and loneliness facing those 
with sensory impairment, along with improvements to identification and diagnosis, so 
that appropriate and timely support can be implemented. 
 

It has been found that 40-50% of older adults with visually impairing eye disease 
limited their activities due to fear of falling [6]. Evidence suggests that around 10% 
of falls can be attributed to sight loss [7]. Injuries from falls have detrimental effects 
on individuals and require costly interventions. Appropriate support and adaptations 
to help prevent falls and increase confidence of visually impaired people could improve 
quality of life and avoid further social isolation and loneliness. 
 

13.4 Current and Future Care and Support Provision 

For current care and support provision, please see Appendix 13B. 

13.5 Gaps and Areas for Improvement 

To provide an assessment of the current sensory impairment services, and to 

determine adequacy of these services and identify areas which can be improved, a 

series of engagements were carried out.  

The following are some of the key issues identified: 

 

• Improving awareness and understanding around sensory impairment and the 
corresponding needs across primary, secondary and social care 

• Developing services to meet predicted demand 
• Improving identification and diagnosis 
• Improving community support to address loneliness and isolation 
• Improving accessibility, so that patients are not turned away inappropriately 

or give up because of the difficulties of navigating the health and social care 
systems 

• Improving audit of the accessible implementation standard to ensure a 
person’s needs are fully recognised e.g., someone with complex needs also 
may have sensory impairment, which may be missed 

• Considering alternatives for those with sensory impairment to avoid having to 
use public transport to access services, which can be particularly challenging, 
especially in rural areas 

 

13.6 The impact of the Covid-19 pandemic 

Due to the Covid-19 pandemic, services have shifted from face-to-face to virtual 
delivery, such as video consultations. The pandemic has contributed to communication 
difficulties for both the hearing and visual impaired, as certain technologies may not 
be appropriate for communicating with people of differing sensory needs.  
 

Although convenient, remote video consultations do not work for blind or visually 
impaired people, telephone conversations are more appropriate. The pandemic has 
also led to communication challenges for deaf people e.g., face masks making lip 
reading impossible and information in braille has been more difficult to obtain. 

  

Tudalen 400



93 

 

13.7 Recommendations 

Results from the engagements highlight several important gaps in the current services 

which give rise to several recommendations: 

• Addressing system limitations when it comes to recording impairments. 
Currently, the Welsh Patient Administration System (WPAS) only allows for 
one impairment to be selected. Systems should be updated to record multiple 
impairments 

• Improving community support and diagnosis  
• Raising the profile, awareness and understanding of sensory impairment 

across the whole care and support system  
• Improving accessibility and communication for people with sensory 

impairment to support independence and increase confidence in using 
services e.g., improved signage, increased use of braille on doors and lifts, 
use of appropriate colour schemes etc.  

• Developing patient support services, such as interpretation, translation and 
lip-reading, to ensure they are accessible, available and equitable across the 
region 

References: 

[1] World Health Organisation. 2011. World report on disability. Available at 

https://www.who.int/publications/i/item/9789241564182 

[2] RNIB. Available at 

https://www.rnib.org.uk/sites/default/files/The%20economic%20impact%20of%20sight%20

loss%20and%20blindness%20in%20the%20UK%202013.pdf 

[3] Welsh Government. Available at https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue 

[4] Social Care Wales. Social Care Wales population projections platform. Available at 

http://www.daffodilcymru.org.uk/ 

[5] Deafblind UK, available at https://deafblind.org.uk/about-us/our-strategy/ 

[6] Wang, M. Y., Rousseau, J., Boisjoly, H., Schmaltz, H., Kergoat, M. J., Moghadaszadeh, S., 

Djafari, F. and Freeman, E. E. (2012). Activity limitation due to a fear of falling in older 

adults with eye disease. Investigative Ophthalmology & Visual Science, 53 (13), pp. 7967 – 

7972 

[7] Boyce, T. (2011). Falls - costs, numbers and links with visual impairment. London: RNIB 

[8] Welsh Government. Available at https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-

04/all-wales-standards-for-accessible-communication-and-information-for-people-with-

sensory-loss-large-print_0.pdf. 

[9] Welsh Government. Available at https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-

12/191209-support-for-children-and-young-people-with-multi-sensory-impairment-in-

educational-settings.pdf 

 

For current legislation and regulations see Appendix 13A  

For current care and support provision see Appendix 13B  

For additional data see Appendix 13C  

 

Tudalen 401

https://www.who.int/publications/i/item/9789241564182
https://www.rnib.org.uk/sites/default/files/The%20economic%20impact%20of%20sight%20loss%20and%20blindness%20in%20the%20UK%202013.pdf
https://www.rnib.org.uk/sites/default/files/The%20economic%20impact%20of%20sight%20loss%20and%20blindness%20in%20the%20UK%202013.pdf
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue
http://www.daffodilcymru.org.uk/
https://deafblind.org.uk/about-us/our-strategy/
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-04/all-wales-standards-for-accessible-communication-and-information-for-people-with-sensory-loss-large-print_0.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-04/all-wales-standards-for-accessible-communication-and-information-for-people-with-sensory-loss-large-print_0.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-04/all-wales-standards-for-accessible-communication-and-information-for-people-with-sensory-loss-large-print_0.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-12/191209-support-for-children-and-young-people-with-multi-sensory-impairment-in-educational-settings.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-12/191209-support-for-children-and-young-people-with-multi-sensory-impairment-in-educational-settings.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-12/191209-support-for-children-and-young-people-with-multi-sensory-impairment-in-educational-settings.pdf


94 

 

14. Substance Misuse 

14.1 Introduction 

Substance abuse or misuse is formally defined as the continued misuse of any mind-

altering substance that severely affects a person’s physical and mental health, social 

situation, and responsibilities. The World Health Organisation website (accessed 2019) 

notes that, “Substance abuse refers to the harmful or hazardous use of psychoactive 

substances, including alcohol and illicit drugs. Psychoactive substance use can lead to 

dependence syndrome - a cluster of behavioural, cognitive, and physiological 

phenomena that develop after repeated substance use and that typically include a 

strong desire to take the drug, difficulties in controlling its use, persisting in its use 

despite harmful consequences, a higher priority given to drug use than to other 

activities and obligations, increased tolerance, and sometimes a physical withdrawal 

state.” 

The UK has a higher prevalence of drug misuse than any other country in Europe.  

Drug and Alcohol (Substance) Misuse contributes considerably to the overall burden 

of disease and social need in the UK, such as communicable diseases, mental health 

issues, physical health, accidental harms, and the associated service pressures. 

Substance misuse is a complex issue that touches young people, families, 

communities, and societies, affecting a wide range of health and social outcomes for 

individuals and communities. 

In Wales, there is a joint strategic approach to tackling harms related to both drugs 

and alcohol. The Welsh Government Drug and Alcohol Strategy “Working Together to 

Reduce Harm” has recently ended and Welsh Government has recently launched its 

new Substance Misuse (drug and alcohol) Delivery Plan for 2019 - 2022. The new plan 

builds on the progress made during the lifetime of the 2008-2018 strategy. 

14.2  Demographic Profile 

Generally, West Wales has an older population than the rest of Wales with 9.8% of 

West Wales residents aged over 75, compared to the Welsh average of 8.6%. It is 

estimated that 59% of Hywel Dda adults are overweight or obese (above all Wales 

average of 57%) but only 23% of Hywel Dda residents smoke compared to 24% 

across Wales. It is self-reported that 40% of the adult population of Hywel Dda drink 

above the alcohol guidelines compared to 45% for all-Wales. Other indicators are 

presented in Table 6 below. 

 

Tudalen 402



95 

 

 
Table 5: Summary Statistics Description of Hywel Dda University Health Board’s population  

(Public Health Wales, 2019) 

 

14.3 Care and Support Needs 

The current care and support needs focuses on addressing the following population 

outcomes: 

• To stop people from starting to take drugs, and to reduce harm from alcohol 
through ensuring the whole population is informed of the risk and side effects of 
drug and alcohol misuse 

• To minimize the impact of drug and alcohol use on the health and wellbeing and 
safety of children, young people and families 

• To support people with substance misuse issues to achieve a good quality, 
meaningful life and to make a positive contribution to the community 

• To reduce health related harm because of drug and alcohol misuse and make 
communities safer through tackling issues created by drug and alcohol misuse 
within communities 

 

14.4 Current and Future Care and Support Provision 

The following have been identified as key priorities moving forward: 

• Prevention and harm reduction 

• Support for individuals – to improve health and aid maintain recovery 
• Support and protection families 
• Tackling availability and protecting individuals and communities 
• Stronger partnerships, workforce development and service user involvement 
 

For current care and support provision, please see Appendix 14B. 

 

 

Tudalen 403



96 

 

14.5 Gaps and Areas for Improvement 
 

Future service development plans, care and support provisions and needs should focus 

on the following interventions: 

 

• Turn the curve and reduce the inequalities gap in smoking prevalence through 
prioritising specific groups who are at high-risk of tobacco related harm. High-
risk groups include inpatients, people with mental ill-health, people with 
conditions made worse by smoking, people with smoking related illness and 
pregnant women who smoke 

• Support pregnant smokers to quit 
• Continue to target smoking cessation interventions in those areas with the 

highest smoking prevalence 
• Use social marketing to maximise reach 
• Use asset-based approaches to work with local communities to assess barriers 

and facilitators to prevent uptake and reduce prevalence 
• Treat smoking at the point of diagnosis for a wide range of diseases to 

improve outcomes. The evidence suggests that smoking quit attempts in 
healthcare settings are effective as smokers are overrepresented in the 
population of people who use NHS services 

• Support the development of digital or electronic aids to cessation 
• Support the development of opt-out models across secondary care settings 

and maternity  
• Work with partners to ensure full implementation of public health and 

wellbeing legislation 
• Work with partners (Local Authority, Education, Housing, Emergency Services) 

to reduce exposure to environmental tobacco smoke through supporting 
smoke free legislation, maximising the delivery of brief advice as support 
smoking cessation 

• Work in partnership to improve the strategic alignment of policy and services 
across the health and wellbeing continuum for tobacco control 

• Ensure evidence-based smoking cessation services are available for everyone 
who smokes, including brief advice, behavioural support 

• Implement the recommendations of the NHS Future Forum which emphasises 
the value of having brief opportunistic ‘healthy lifestyle chats’ including raising 
the issue of stopping smoking. Providing Very Brief Advice to every smoker is 
recommended by the Department of Health is effective in general care 
settings and can be adapted to mental health settings 

• Support staff in primary and secondary care settings who already have the 
necessary therapeutic skills to engage patients in conversations about 
behaviour change. We know that offering support to stop smoking, rather 
than mealy asking a smoker if they are interested in stopping or telling them 
they should stop, leads to more people making a quit attempt. Raising the 
issues of smoking can be done opportunistically with patients, such as during 
protected engagement time; at the end of a home visit or during clinical 
visits. It can also be helpful to link these brief interventions to a current 
health problem such as a cough, breathlessness or something that is of 
personal relevance to the patient 

Tudalen 404



97 

 

• Support the implementation of harm reduction approaches for those smokers 
who may not be able to stop in one step (NICE Guidance, 2013) 

 

14.6 The impact of the Covid-19 pandemic 

The effect of COVID-19 pandemic may have had a significant impact on substance 

misuse group, however this effect remains unknown. 

14.7 Recommendations 

To reduce exposure to drugs and tobacco misuse, the recommendations are as 

follows: 

• Co-ordinate Leadership for Drugs Control 
• Reduce the uptake of smoking 
• Reduce smoking prevalence levels 
• Reduce exposure to smoking 

 

To reduce exposure to alcohol misuse, the recommendations are as follows: 

• Improve prevention and harm reduction 

• Support for individuals to improve health and aid recovery 
• Support and protect families 
• Tackle availability and protect individuals and communities 
• Develop stronger partnerships, workforce development and service 

user involvement 

For current legislation and regulations see Appendix 14A  

For current care and support provision see Appendix 14B  

For additional data see Appendix 14C  

 

Tudalen 405



98 

 

15. Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse 

and Sexual Violence 

15.1 Introduction 

Violence against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (VAWDASV) refers to 

acts of violence or abuse that are disproportionately expressed toward women.[3] 

Types of VAWDASV include: 

• Gender based violence (GBV)  
• Intimate partner violence (IPV) 
• Domestic violence and abuse (DVA) 

• Sexual violence and abuse (SVA) 
• Coercive control 
• Forced marriage 
• Child marriage 
• So-called honour-based abuse (HBA) 
• Female genital mutilation (FGM) 

• Human trafficking 
• Sexual harassment 
• Cyber harassment 
• Adolescent dating violence (ADV) 

 

Violence against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (VAWDASV) is a major 

public health problem, a criminal justice issue and a violation of human rights. It 

causes harm to individuals and families [2], and its impact can be felt across whole 

communities, societies and economies (WHO, 2021). 

Living without fear of violence and abuse is a fundamental requirement for health and 

wellbeing. The National Institute for Health and Care Excellence (NICE, 2014) states 

that: "The cost, in both human and economic terms, is so significant that even 

marginally effective interventions are cost effective".  

The true impact of VAWDASV cannot be adequately quantified. However, these types 

of violence can impact on victims in many ways. For example, sexual violence can lead 

to a multitude of health consequences including physical, reproductive and 

psychological harm. Female genital mutilation (FGM) can lead to both immediate 

health risks as well as a variety of long-term complications which can affect the 

person’s physical, mental, and sexual health and well-being throughout their life.  

15.2 Demographic Profile                      

A Home Office report estimating the economic and social costs of VAWDASV in 

England and Wales, placed the annual cost at £66 billion, with 71% of that being 

attributed to addressing the physical and emotional harm experienced by victims 

(Oliver et al., 2019).  

Tudalen 406



99 

 

VAWDASV can have fatal outcomes. Every day, 137 women are killed worldwide by a 

family member. It has been estimated that more than half (50,000) of the 87,000 

women who were intentionally killed in 2018 were killed by family members or intimate 

partners. More than a third of these women (30,000) were killed by a current or ex 

intimate partner (United Nations Office on Drugs and Crime, 2019).  

Between March 2018 and 2019, Welsh police forces recorded 80,924 VAWDASV 

related incidents (ONS, 2020a), yet recorded police data only highlights a fraction of 

the real picture, as incidents often go unreported.  

It is estimated that a total of 2.3 million adults aged 16-74 living in Wales and England 

have experienced VAWDASV in the past year (ONS, 2020a). Anyone can experience 

VAWDASV, regardless of gender identity, age, sexuality, ethnicity, occupation, and 

income. However, understanding VAWDASV requires an appreciation that it is part of 

a social pattern of male violence towards women (Hester and Lilley, 2019), with data 

illustrating that it is predominantly women and girls who are victims and survivors of 

VAWDASV perpetrated by men and boys (ONS, 2020b).  

Women and girls are significantly more likely to experience severe forms of abuse, 

including physical and sexual violence, which result in injury or death (Hester, 2018). 

Furthermore, they are more likely to experience repeated physical, emotional, or 

psychological abuse.  

Between 2016 and 2018, 270 out of 366 domestic homicide victims, in Wales, who 

were killed by a current or ex intimate partner were female (ONS, 2019). 

As required by the VAWDASV Act, the Welsh Government published its five-year 

national strategy in 2016. This was followed by publication of its national delivery 

framework and in 2019, the Welsh Government published national indicators for 

measuring progress against the Act.[10] The Welsh Government has published several 

guidance documents and national standards to help deliver commitments within its 

five-year strategy including: 

• Whole Education Approach to Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse and 
Sexual Violence in Wales Good Practice Guide 

• Violence Against Women Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence – Guidance 
for Governors 

• National Advisers Annual Plan [4] 
• Information and guidance on domestic abuse and sexual violence: 

Safeguarding older people (60+) in Wales 
• National Training Framework Statutory Guidance 
• Ask and Act Training Guidance 
• Local Strategies Statutory Guidance 
• Commissioning Violence against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual 

Violence Services Statutory Guidance 
• National Standards for working with Perpetrators 

 

 

Tudalen 407



100 

 

15.3 Care and Support Needs 
 

• There is a lack of understanding amongst professionals of the nature, effects 
and long-term consequences of Violence against Women, Domestic Abuse 
and Sexual Violence, leading to reduced confidence in professional contacts 

• Both recognition and concern over the preventative and pastoral role of 
education in dealing with issues of Violence against Women, Domestic Abuse 
and Sexual Violence 

• The lack of consistency and availability of safe interventions across the 
region aimed at holding perpetrators to account and providing opportunities 
to change behaviours 

• The lack of specialist provision for children and young people who are 
experiencing Violence against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence 

• The persistent challenge to prioritise and resource early intervention and 
prevention 

• Inconsistency of commissioning practices and sustainability of funding 
• Complexity of current referral pathways resulting in confusion, response 

“overload” and duplication of services 
• The lack of coordinated approaches to service provision and the need for an 

integrated referral pathway into services 
• Lack of awareness amongst individuals experiencing Violence against 

Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence, their friends, families and 
professionals of what services are available and how to access information 
and support 

• The inconsistency of service availability across the region leading to a 
“postcode lottery” of provision 

• The lack of “whole family” approaches across the region 
• The critical role of leadership and accountability for Violence against Women, 

Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence across the region 
• Recognition that what seem like opposing views are often a product of 

parties with a variety of roles seeing things through a different lens; a need 
to utilise and harness these ‘differences’ to work creatively and 
collaboratively cross sector in a solution focussed manner to best meet 
individual and family needs 

• The need to maintain and sustain equal and respectful partnerships with 
professionals who are experts in their field, in particular agencies in the third 
sector who have a wealth of specialist knowledge, strategic expertise and 
operational skills 

• The value of involving partners at an early stage and to work in partnership 
with service providers to co-produce the regional approach to addressing 
gaps in provision, avoiding duplication and maximising resources 

 

15.4 Current and Future Care and Support Provision 

• The Violence against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (Wales) 
Act 2015, together with the statutory guidance on commissioning sets the 
conditions and expectations for service developments in Wales 

Tudalen 408



101 

 

 

• There are several changes to centrally co-ordinated funding streams which 
aim to encourage multi-disciplinary collaboration in order to develop more 
innovative, cross cutting and service user orientated responses. They also 
lay the foundations for regional activity 

 

• Through the MWW VAWDASV Strategy [5] the region has taken the first 
step to establish an agenda for commissioning and developing a range of 
services which can respond more fully to the spectrum of need [6] 

 

• Services and resources in the region are insufficient to meet the full range of 
needs articulated in the Strategy and there is agreement that that it will be 
necessary to work collaboratively and innovatively to address gaps and to 
respond to unmet need [7] 

 

• The strategy highlights the need for a fundamental change in understanding 
the cross-cutting nature and impact of VAWDASV to enable public services 
and the specialist VAWDASV sector to think differently about how resources 
can be maximised to support the implementation of the strategy [8] 

 

For current care and support provision, please see Appendix 15B. 

15.5 Gaps and Areas for Improvement 

The following gaps and areas for improvement have been identified as being required: 

• Adopt commissioning models that allow for flexibility and development to 
meet changing needs rather than prescriptive funding that limits creativity / 
innovation and results in services that are restricted in the services they can 
provide 

• Development of a service model whereby any eligibility criteria associated 
with accessing service provision is based solely on a need to access rather 
than a level of risk, complexity, or the availability of services 

• Involvement of survivors as integral to the commissioning process 
• The need for increased regional collaboration across the public and third 

sector to identify and secure additional resources 
• Recognition of the diversity of communities across Mid and West Wales and 

the importance of equality and diversity to be integral to commissioning of 
services 

• The challenges of rurality to be recognised when commissioning services – 
acknowledgement of the true cost of delivering services in rural areas 

• The need for equitable investment of resources across the region 
 

15.6 The impact of the Covid-19 pandemic 

During the COVID-19 pandemic in 2020-2021, a rapidly emerging literature suggests 

that levels of VAWDASV have been impacted by the COVID-19 public health 

Tudalen 409



102 

 

restrictions, including lockdown, shielding and social distancing regulations (Snowdon 

et al., 2020). Whilst the full picture of how the pandemic has impacted on VAWDASV 

is still to fully emerge, it appears likely that both the scale and nature of VAWDASV 

may have worsened, with rising 55 Wales Violence Prevention Unit VAWDASV 

Systematic Evidence Assessment [1] helpline contacts for all forms of VAWDASV and 

increased reports to emergency services in some areas for domestic abuse (Hohl and 

Johnson, 2020).  

Calls to helplines have increased fivefold in some countries as rates of reported IPV 

have increased because of the COVID-19 pandemic. This is referred to as the shadow 

pandemic, as COVID-19 continues to strain health services, and violence is 

exacerbated in the home, essential services such as domestic violence shelters and 

helplines have reached capacity (United Nations, 2021).  

Many prevention strategies and programming have been put on hold or been forced 

to adapt during the pandemic because of restrictions on movement, face to face 

interactions and public events. However, given the increasing number of reports of 

VAWDASV during the COVID-19 crisis, it is more important than ever to promote 

prevention through the transformation of norms, attitudes and stereotypes that accept 

and normalise violence. Also, while traditional avenues of prevention, such as face to 

face interactions are limited, new opportunities have emerged, multiple forms of 

media, online communications and many community mobilisation programmes involve 

delivering activities virtually (UN General Assembly, 2020), a number of interventions 

included in this report utilise online platforms (Real Consent and mHealth screening 

tools);these interventions may have particular relevance where face to face 

interactions may be limited. 

COVID-19 has further exposed VAWDASV as a global emergency requiring urgent 

action. The pandemic has exposed the failure of efforts to prevent and respond to 

violence but also the deeply entrenched and systemic nature of VAWDASV.  

As the pandemic continues, growing economic and social stress has an impact on 

everyone, but particularly women who often bear the additional burden of caring 

responsibilities, are more likely to hold insecure employment, in addition to being at 

increased risk of violence victimisation in the home. At the same time, restrictions on 

movement and social isolation measures increase women’s vulnerability to violence 

and since lockdown measures were introduced, restricted access to support services, 

friends and family reduce survivors' access to support thus increasing the risk of harm 

(UN General Assembly, 2020). 

15.7 Recommendations 

The current commissioning landscape for VAWDASV in West Wales has recognised six 

key areas for development and improvement: 

i. Principles for Commissioning VAWDASV Services in the Region 

ii. Establishing a Shared Understanding of the Big Picture within the Region 

iii. Local and Regional Commissioning activity 

Tudalen 410



103 

 

iv. Joint Commissioning and Pooled Budgets 

v. Gaps and Priorities 

vi. Governance, Leadership and Collaboration 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

References: 

[1] REPORT (violencepreventionwales.co.uk) 

[2] Bystander-Experiences-of-Domestic-Violence-and-Abuse-during-the-COVID-19-

Pandemic.pdf (violencepreventionwales.co.uk) 

[3] Violence against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence | Violence Prevention 

Unit (violencepreventionwales.co.uk) 

[4] national-advisers-annual-plan-2020-21.pdf (gov.wales) 

[5] safer-lives-healthier-families-final-draft-mww-vawdasv-strategy-march-2018.pdf 

(gov.wales) 

[6] mww-vawdasv-commissioning-and-service-development-framework-final.pdf 

(cysur.wales) 

[7] mid-and-west-wales-vawdasv-regional-pathway-to-support.pdf (cysur.wales) 

[8] Cysur | Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence 

[9] Domestic abuse victim characteristics, England and Wales - Office for National 

Statistics (ons.gov.uk) 

[10] https://gov.wales/violence-against-women-domestic-abuse-and-sexual-violence-
progress-report-2019-2020-html 

For current legislation and regulations see Appendix 15A  

For current care and support provision see Appendix 15B  

For additional data see Appendix 15C  

 

Tudalen 411

https://www.violencepreventionwales.co.uk/cms-assets/research/What-Works-to-Prevent-Violence-against-Women-Domestic-Abuse-and-Sexual-Violence-Systematic-Evidence-Assessment_2021-09-20-124755_aypz.pdf
https://www.violencepreventionwales.co.uk/cms-assets/research/Bystander-Experiences-of-Domestic-Violence-and-Abuse-during-the-COVID-19-Pandemic.pdf
https://www.violencepreventionwales.co.uk/cms-assets/research/Bystander-Experiences-of-Domestic-Violence-and-Abuse-during-the-COVID-19-Pandemic.pdf
https://www.violencepreventionwales.co.uk/research-evidence/violence-against-women-domestic-abuse-and-sexual-violence-2
https://www.violencepreventionwales.co.uk/research-evidence/violence-against-women-domestic-abuse-and-sexual-violence-2
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-11/national-advisers-annual-plan-2020-21.pdf
https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/1213738/safer-lives-healthier-families-final-draft-mww-vawdasv-strategy-march-2018.pdf
https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/1213738/safer-lives-healthier-families-final-draft-mww-vawdasv-strategy-march-2018.pdf
https://www.cysur.wales/media/1ztfkki3/mww-vawdasv-commissioning-and-service-development-framework-final.pdf
https://www.cysur.wales/media/1ztfkki3/mww-vawdasv-commissioning-and-service-development-framework-final.pdf
https://www.cysur.wales/media/42mh3kxm/mid-and-west-wales-vawdasv-regional-pathway-to-support.pdf
https://www.cysur.wales/vawdasv/
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/crimeandjustice/articles/domesticabusevictimcharacteristicsenglandandwales/yearendingmarch2021
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/crimeandjustice/articles/domesticabusevictimcharacteristicsenglandandwales/yearendingmarch2021


104 

 

APPENDIX 5A 

OLDER PEOPLE: Current Legislation and Regulations 

The Strategy for Older People in Wales 2013 – 2023 was published by the Welsh 

Government in 2012, with the following vision: 

• That all people in Wales feel valued and supported whatever their age. 

• That all older people in Wales have the social, environmental and financial 

resources they need to deal with the opportunities and challenges they face. 

The strategy aims to improve the wellbeing of older people around social, financial 

and environmental factors. Further information can be found here: 

https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-06/the-strategy-for-older-

people-in-wales-2013-2023.pdf 

Acknowledging that life experiences and daily reality vary greatly for people in their 

50s to those in their 80s and over, in 2021 the Welsh Government published Age 

friendly Wales: our strategy for an ageing society 

With one vision of:  

• An age friendly Wales that supports people of all ages to live and age well. 
• A Wales where everyone looks forward to growing older.  
• A Wales where individuals can take responsibility for their own health and 

well-being whilst feeling confident that support will be available and easily 
accessible if needed.  

• A Wales where ageism does not limit potential or affect the quality of services 
older people receive.  

• A nation that celebrates age and, in line with the UN Principles for Older 
Persons, a nation that upholds the independence, participation, care, self-
fulfilment and dignity of older people at all times.  

Further information can be found here: https://gov.wales/age-friendly-wales-our-
strategy-ageing-society-html  

 

 

  

Tudalen 412

https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-06/the-strategy-for-older-people-in-wales-2013-2023.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-06/the-strategy-for-older-people-in-wales-2013-2023.pdf
https://gov.wales/age-friendly-wales-our-strategy-ageing-society-html
https://gov.wales/age-friendly-wales-our-strategy-ageing-society-html


105 

 

APPENDIX 5B 

OLDER PEOPLE: Current Care and Support Provision 

All partners in the region have continued to move towards a consistent model of care 

for older people based on the principles of wellbeing and prevention encapsulated in 

the SSWB Act and informed locally by a range of plans and strategies including Ageing 

Well plans, the Health Board’s Integrated Medium Term Plan, Carmarthenshire County 

Council’s ‘Vision for Sustainable Social Services for Older People 2015-25 and the 

regional Statement of Intent for the Integration of Services for Older People with 

Complex Needs in West Wales (2014). 

 

Delivery across the region is based around the three levels of service, which includes 

three ‘offers’ to individuals depending on their needs: 

 

Offer 1: Help to Help Yourself 

Provision of services to build resilience and independence of older individuals, helping 

people to help themselves and prevent the need for ongoing care. 

 

Offer 2: Help When You Need It 

Provide care and support to people so they can regain their previous level of 

independence after an illness or injury. Includes reablement and rehabilitation at 

home. 

 

Offer 3: Ongoing Support 

Includes services for people who require longer term care or support. Usually delivered 

through integrated assessment, providing multi-disciplinary professional support. Care 

support plans are based on the question ‘What matters to you?’ with outcome plans 

delivered accordingly. 

 

Technology Enabled Care 

Currently various technology enabled care programmes are being utilised across West 

Wales. These vary from using telehealth to monitor and support people with chronic 

conditions such as COPD and heart failure, to using telecare to monitor and prevent 

falls. Various technology enabled care programmes can help people to manage their 

conditions, increase confidence, and help people to live independently in their own 

homes for longer.  

 

Current support services 

 

Information, Advice and Assistance 

A wide range of information and advice is available, to help people to achieve their 

outcomes by directing them to support available in the community. 

 

Third Sector 

There is a wide range of third sector services available, which promote independence, 

social engagement and inclusion. 

Domiciliary Care and Support 

Tudalen 413



106 

 

There is rapid access to domiciliary care to provide care and support when it is needed, 

or on a longer-term basis. 

 

Residential and Nursing Care 

There are several residential and nursing care options available across the region, 

from extra care to EMI nursing. A significant proportion of older people living in the 

residential care setting in West Wales currently fund their own placement but may 

need financial support at a later date. 

 

 

  

Tudalen 414



107 

 

APPENDIX 5C 

OLDER PEOPLE: Additional Data 

Attendance Allowance 

Total number of people aged over 65 receiving attendance allowance in Hywel Dda in 

November 2020 was 12,719 (6,490 in Carmarthenshire, 3,880 in Pembrokeshire and 

2,354 in Ceredigion). As the likelihood of receiving attendance allowance increases 

with age, this will incur further costs with an aging population in the future. 
 

Age 
Band 

Carmarthenshire Pembrokeshire Ceredigion West 
Wales 

65-69 274 (4.22) 129 (3.32) 87 (3.70) 489 

70-74 907 (13.98) 466 (12.01) 274 (11.64) 1,650 (3.84) 

75-79 1,216 (18.74) 713 (18.38) 436 (18.52) 2,368 
(12.97) 

80-84 1,471 (22.67) 889 (22.91) 510 (21.67) 2,871 
(18.62) 

85-89 1,404 (21.63) 894 (23.04) 553 (23.49) 2,848 
(22.57) 

90+ 1,215 (18.72) 786 (20.26) 493 (20.94) 2,497 
(22.39) 

Total 6,490 (100) 3,880 (100) 2,354 (100) 12,719 
(100) 

Table 6: Number of people receiving payment of attendance allowance for age groups  

in local authorities and West Wales (Nov 2020) [5] 

Fuel Poverty  

Fuel poverty is an increasing problem for many people and particularly older people. 

In addition to managing on a fixed income, the older the person is, the less likely they 

are to have central heating. This can have adverse effects on health and wellbeing 

and people diagnosed with respiratory diseases. Current data suggests that in future, 

older people will experience a much larger increase in fuel poverty than other age 

groups (as can be seen in figure 33 below) [4]. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 30: Total number of 

people projected to have fuel 

poverty in different age groups  

in HDdUHB 

36,000

37,000

38,000

39,000

40,000

41,000

42,000

43,000

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

14,000

To
ta

l

A
ge

 G
ro

u
p

s

Projected Fuel Poverty (Age Groups)

16-24 25-34 35-44 45-54

55-64 65-74 75+ Total

Tudalen 415



108 

 

APPENDIX 6A 

DEMENTIA:  Current Legislation and Regulations 

Listed below are plans, strategies, standards or good practice guides for implementing 
person-centred dementia support in Wales, rather than legislation: 
 
Ageing well in Wales: 

 

• Launched in 2014, Ageing well in Wales: An overview in a European 

perspective. Identified 5 priority areas to improve the health and wellbeing 

of older people in Wales:  

• Age friendly communities 

• Dementia supportive communities 

• Falls prevention 

• Loneliness and isolation 

• Opportunities for learning and employment 

• Appropriate accommodation for older people can help to contribute to 

addressing all of the above. 

 

Good Work Framework: A Dementia Learning and Development 

Framework for Wales: 

 

• Passed in 2016, the overall aim is to support people to freely, creatively and 

responsibly identify and address their own specific learning and development 

needs within the context of their lives and circumstances. 

• Intended to support what matters most to the people of Wales as well as 

the spirit and requirements of Welsh policy, legislation and guidance 

regarding the care, support and empowerment of people with dementia, 

carers and the health and social care workforce. 

 

Dementia Action Plan for Wales: 

 

• In February 2018 the Welsh Government published the Dementia Action Plan 

(DAP) 2018-2022. Dementia action plan 2018 to 2022 

• The action plan sets out a clear strategy for Wales to be a ‘dementia friendly 

nation that recognises the rights of people living with dementia to feel 

valued and to live as independently as possible in their communities’. 

• The DAP is overseen by the Dementia Delivery Assurance and 

Implementation Group (DDAIG), members of which include people living 

with dementia and their families. 

 

All Wales Dementia Care Pathway of Standards: 

 

• In March 2021, Improvement Cymru published the All-Wales Dementia care 

pathway of standards. The All Wales Dementia Care Pathway of Standards 

• Directed by the requirements of the Dementia Action Plan for Wales 

Tudalen 416

https://gov.wales/dementia-action-plan-2018-2022
https://www.improvementcymru.net/en/2021/03/23/the-all-wales-dementia-care-pathway-of-standards-enabling-improvements-in-the-provision-of-dementia-care-for-individuals-and-their-carers-by-michaela-morris-service-improvement-manager-for/


109 

 

• Overseen by the Welsh Government Dementia Oversight 

Implementation and Impact Group (DOIIG). 

• 20 standards have been designed to be dynamic by responding to 

evaluation and supporting evidence. 

• The standards sit within 4 themes: 

• Accessible 

• Responsive 

• Journey 

• Partnerships and Relationship 

• The standards have been developed using the Improvement Cymru 

Delivery Framework and it is anticipated that work will focus on 

developing a two-year Delivery Framework guide for the regions across 

Wales for the period April 2021 – March 2023. 

 

THE NATIONAL HEALTH SERVICE (WALES) ACT 2006 The Primary Medical Services 

(Mental Health) (Directed Enhanced Services) (Wales) Directions 2017 

(vii) early identification, effective management, advice and support for people with 

dementia and their carers; (viii) understanding the importance of timely diagnosis in 

dementia including advanced decision making and enduring or lasting powers of 

attorney; 

https://gov.wales/primary-medical-services-mental-health-directed-enhanced-

services-wales-directions-2017-2017-no13 

  

Tudalen 417

https://gov.wales/primary-medical-services-mental-health-directed-enhanced-services-wales-directions-2017-2017-no13
https://gov.wales/primary-medical-services-mental-health-directed-enhanced-services-wales-directions-2017-2017-no13


110 

 

APPENDIX 6B 

DEMENTIA:  Current Care and Support Provision 

The Dementia Action Plan for Wales (DAP) sets out the Welsh Government’s vision for 

creating a dementia friendly Wales, developed with those who know most about what 

needs to be done to improve truly person-centred dementia services – those with lived 

experience of dementia, their families and carers and service providers. As a result of 

views expressed in consultation and engagement processes the action plan is 

structured around outcomes which follow a pathway approach to dementia care to 

include the following: 

• Risk reduction and delaying onset 

• Raising awareness and understanding 

• Learning and development 

• Recognition and identification 

• Assessment and diagnosis 

• Living as well as possible, for as long as possible with dementia 

• Care and support for increasing needs 

 

As referenced in the main body of the chapter, to support implementation of best 

practice in alignment with the DAP, a Regional Dementia Strategy has been 

commissioned. Whilst recognising that the strategy will drive forward innovation and 

integration and identify gaps and areas for improvement, a range of services aligned 

with the aims of the DAP are available currently: 

Risk reduction and delaying onset: 

 

• Delta Connect – a telecare service providing individualised wellbeing 

assessment and personal stay-well plan 

 

Raising awareness and understanding: 

 

• A 3rd sector-led broad umbrella initiative – ‘West Wales is Kind’ campaign to 

incentivise random acts of kindness 

• PAVS Dementia Supportive Communities Development Officer 

 

Learning and development: 

 

• Development of a dementia training framework 

Assessment and diagnosis: 

 

• Memory assessment services 

Living as well as possible, for as long as possible with dementia: 

 

• Fast Access Community Teams in all parts of West Wales providing multi-

disciplinary support to people in their homes 

• Admiral Nurse Team 

Tudalen 418



111 

 

• Journey through dementia support groups 

 

Care and support for increasing needs: 

 

• Respite provision 

• Dementia Well-being Community Team 

• End-of-Life Care Service Provision including the following: 

• Paul Sartori and Marie Curie commissioned to deliver Advance Care 

Planning training 

• Marie Curie senior nurses help people with advanced dementia to 

access palliative and end of life care services in hospital, at home and 

in care homes across the region 

• Paul Sartori foundation provide education to a variety of audiences, 

including their own staff and others across the health board 

• Commitments from the DAP have been included in the Regional 

Palliative and End of Life Care strategy under development also 

 

 

  

Tudalen 419



112 

 

APPENDIX 6C 

DEMENTIA:  Additional Data 

Dementia Data Charts and Graphs: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figures 31, 32 and 33:   

Dementia Charts and Graphs (GP QOF) 

Tudalen 420



113 

 

APPENDIX 7A 
 

UNPAID CARERS:  Current Legislation and Regulations 

There is a range of national legislation, policies and strategies in Wales aimed to 

support carers, including: 

Welsh Government, Strategy for unpaid carers (2021) 

The Welsh Government published a Strategy for Unpaid Carers in March 2021, which 

represents a renewed commitment to improving the recognition of and support to 

unpaid carers in Wales. It sets out revised national priorities for unpaid carers which 

have close alignment to the regional Carers strategy in West Wales.  The 4 Welsh 

Government priorities are: 

• Priority 1: Identifying and valuing unpaid carers  

• Priority 2: Providing information, advice and assistance 

• Priority 3: Supporting life alongside caring  

• Priority 4: Supporting unpaid carers in education and the workplace 

Strategy for unpaid carers 

Ministerial Advisory Group for Carers 

Monitoring the implementation and progress of the delivery plan 

Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014  

Carers Wales Track the Act 

The Primary pillars of the act are: 

•  Voice and control – putting the individual and their needs at the centre of 

their care; giving them a voice in, and control over, reaching the outcomes 

that help them achieve wellbeing. 

•  Prevention and early intervention – increasing preventative services 

within the community to minimise the escalation of critical need. 

•  Well-being – supporting people to achieve their own wellbeing and 

measuring the success of care and support. 

•  Co-production – encouraging individuals to become more involved in the 

design and delivery of services. 

 

Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015  

The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act is about improving the social, 

economic, environmental and cultural well-being of Wales. It will make the public 

bodies listed in the act think more about the long term, work better with people and 

communities and each other, look to prevent problems and take a more joined-up 

approach. To make sure everyone is working towards the same vision, the act has 7 

well-being goals: 

Tudalen 421

https://gov.wales/strategy-unpaid-carers-html
https://gov.wales/ministerial-advisory-group-carers
https://gov.wales/strategy-unpaid-carers-delivery-plan-2021-html%23section-83608
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-05/social-services-and-well-being-wales-act-2014-the-essentials.pdf
https://www.carersuk.org/files/section/6609/carers-wales-track-the-act-briefing-final-version-eng.pdf


114 

 

• A prosperous Wales 

• A resilient Wales 

• A healthier Wales 

• A more equal Wales 

• A Wales of cohesive communities 

• A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language 

• A globally responsible Wales 

 

Well-being of future generations act: the essentials 

 

 Welsh Government, A Healthier Wales (2019)  

https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-10/a-healthier-wales-action-

plan.pdf  

The strategy is focussed on changing five key areas of health and social care:  

i. The health and social care system will work together so that people using 
them won’t notice when they are provided by different organisations.  

ii. Services will shift out of hospital into communities and services which stop 
people getting ill by detecting things earlier or preventing them altogether 
will be increased. 

iii. Systems to measure what really matters to people will get better and will be 
used to work out which services and support work well and which ones need 
to be improved. 

iv. Wales will be a great place to work in health and social care and more will 
be done to support carers and volunteers 

v. To make our services work as a single system, we need everyone to work 
together and pull in the same direction. 

 

The National Outcomes Framework for people who need care and support 

and carers who need support (2019) 

National Outcomes Framework Indicator Report (gov.wales)  

The key objectives for the national outcome’s framework are:  

•  To set the national direction to promote the well-being of people who need 

care and support and carers who need support in Wales. 

•  To describe the important national well-being outcomes that people who 

need care and support and carers who need support should expect in order 

to lead fulfilled lives. 

•  To provide greater transparency on whether services are improving well-

being outcomes for people who need care and support and carers who need 

support in Wales using consistent and comparable indicators. 

 

 

Tudalen 422

https://gov.wales/well-being-future-generations-act-essentials
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-10/a-healthier-wales-action-plan.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-10/a-healthier-wales-action-plan.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-05/the-national-outcomes-framework-for-people-who-need-care-and-support-and-carers-who-need-support.pdf


115 

 

APPENDIX 7B 

UNPAID CARERS:  Current Care and Support Provision 

1. Current work and important initiatives in the West Wales Region 

A full breakdown of the work that is being carried out in West Wales under the 
guidance of the WWCDG can be found in Annual reports produced by the group. These 
annual reports provide full detail on all the actions and programmes delivered through 
the carers programme by WWCDG: 

WWCDG-Annual-Report-2021-21-FINAL.pdf (wwcp.org.uk)  

WWCDG-Carers-Annual-Report-2019-20-FINAL.pdf (wwcp.org.uk)  

WWCDG-Carers-Annual-Report-2018-19-final-version.pdf (wwcp.org.uk)  

2. Current support services 

A range of care and support services are in place across the region to support carers. 
Some services are commissioned individually by statutory bodies and others are jointly 
commissioned on a county or regional basis. The WWCDG provides a key forum for 
partnership working between the commissioning bodies and ensures collaboration on 
the development of plans for utilisation of Welsh Government grant funding, e.g., 
Integrated Care Fund and Carers grants.  

The West Wales Carers’ Development Group (WWCDG) has been able to coordinate 
several important pieces of work, including:  

•  Providing young carers with access to a comprehensive information service 
and enabling them to notify supermarkets, pharmacies, teachers and others 
that they have caring responsibilities.  

•  Continued roll-out of the Investors in Carers’ Scheme, increasing the 
awareness of professionals across sectors including primary, community and 
acute health care, schools, libraries, social care, Job Centre Plus and third 
sector organisations of the needs of carers. Over 120 settings are currently 
participating in the scheme and many more are working towards their 
award.  The scheme also enables people to register as a carer with their GP, 
leading to the offer of a referral to the local Carers’ Information Service 
which can provide additional information, advice and support  

•  Deployment of Carers Officers (employed by the third sector) within 
hospitals to support health professionals to identify unpaid carers, improve 
their involvement in the discharge process and provide information and 
support. 

•  Continued delivery of the Introduction to Looking After Me (I2LAM) 
programme for carers across West Wales, helping carers learn new skills and 
take care of their own health while looking after someone else.  

•  Roll-out of the Carers’ Resilience and Wellbeing Programme, providing carers 
with a ‘what matters’ conversation and appropriate support including 
preventative interventions and respite  

Tudalen 423

https://www.wwcp.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/07/WWCDG-Annual-Report-2021-21-FINAL.pdf
https://www.wwcp.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/10/WWCDG-Carers-Annual-Report-2019-20-FINAL.pdf
https://www.wwcp.org.uk/wp/wp-content/uploads/2019/07/WWCDG-Carers-Annual-Report-2018-19-final-version.pdf


116 

 

•  Establishment of the regional Carers Support Innovation Fund offering third 
sector organisations with short-term funding to deliver support for carers. 
Initiatives supported include physical fitness sessions, sports reminiscence 
events, online craft and social sessions and targeted support for older carers  

•  Roll-out of the Employers for Carers (EfC) scheme in West Wales providing 
access to a range of resources for statutory and third sector partners.  This 
has enabled organisations to review policies and procedures through a 
carers’ lens and offer practical support to employees with caring 
responsibilities through the introduction of carers passports and staff 
networks 

•  Various digital inclusion initiatives to assist carers during the pandemic, 
including the Pembrokeshire Digital Connections Partnerships supporting 
people, including carers, to access digital equipment and technology  

 
 3. Support and Care Services 

In addition to the programmes of work carried out under the WWDCG funded Welsh 
Government grant programmes, there are also several support and care services 
available to carers which are commissioned by Hywel Dda UHB and Local authorities. 
These can be broadly broken down into services that support:   

• Identification and recognition 
• Advice and information 
• Assessment of carers needs 
• Practical support (for example replacement care, help around the home, 

shopping) 
• Advocacy 
• Condition specific support for the carer and the person they care for 

 
4. Local Authority and Community 

In addition to the specialised health support and services provided by Hywel Dda UHB, 
there are several other support mechanisms provided by local authorities: 
 

• Universal services - For example leisure centres, community centres, 
libraries, adult education opportunities although it is recognised that these 
services do not yet provide consistent equal access to people with LD 

• Preventative services - Council grant funding supports the growth of 
alternative community services that are co-produced with members of 
communities enabling people to build upon their own individual strengths 
and resources. These include good neighbour schemes, luncheon clubs, 
community enterprises, community/ voluntary services 

• Day Opportunities - Providing social contact and stimulation, reducing 
isolation and loneliness, maintaining and / or restoring independence, 
offering activities which provide mental and physical stimulation, providing 
care services, offering low-level support for people at risk 

• Respite provision - Short breaks/respites are a key commitment in 
recognition that planned breaks are an essential part of supporting families 

Tudalen 424



117 

 

• Commissioned Services - Individually commissioned supported living 
arrangements which enable people with learning disabilities to live in their 
own tenancies with support at varying levels, and residential services which 
include both the provision of accommodation and care on site, with care 
being available 24 hours per day. Advocacy services are commissioned 
across the region; and 

• Direct Payments -These provide another way for individuals to access a 
range of opportunities by being able to choose who provides the services 
they need 

 
5. Response to the COVID-19 Pandemic 

In West Wales, the local authorities and third sector organisations have responded 
very well to the Covid-19 pandemic, quickly adapting their services and in some cases 
moving activities online.  
 
For example, the Newport Carers group in Pembrokeshire went from meeting face-to-
face to meeting on Zoom, supported by a Community Connector. As a result, the 
Carers group became more accessible to Carers across the County, attracting new 
Carers looking for online peer support.  
 
Another example is Ceredigion Carers Unit who provided a full programme of 
workshops, training and discussions around Carers rights over the last six months of 
2020-21.  
 
All young Carers services have continued to operate and adapted ways of working, 
utilising Zoom, WhatsApp and Microsoft Teams.  
 
Regular contact has been maintained with young Carers and their families to address 
issues.  
 
All services have observed a decline in both young people’s and parents’ mental health 
over the year and services have responded by offering appropriate support.  
 

 

  

Tudalen 425



118 

 

APPENDIX 7C 

UNPAID CARERS:  Additional Data 

The 2019 GP Patient Survey (England) found that unpaid carers are more likely to 

report having a long-term condition, disability or illness than non-carers (63% of 

unpaid carers compared to 51% of non-carers).  

Based on a national calculation conducted by carers UK and Sheffield University in 

2015 (Buckner and Yeandle, 2015), the cost of replacing unpaid care in West Wales, 

can be estimated at £924m. This exceeds the NHS annual budget for the region which 

is almost £727m (Hywel Dda UHB, 2016a). 

 

 

Figure 34: Provision of unpaid care in Hywel Dda UHB, ONS 2011 

  

Tudalen 426



119 

 

APPENDIX 8A 

LEARNING DISABILITIES: Current Legislation and Regulations 

There are many policies in Wales supporting how people with LD live their lives. We 
want to make sure we are part of creating and shaping how these policies support 
people with a learning disability to have the best lives. There are many generic policies 
that focus on the whole of the population, however, there are specific acts and 
programmes that are aimed at people with LD, these include: 
 
Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014 

The Primary pillars of the act involve: 
 

• Voice and control – putting the individual and their needs at the centre of 
their care; giving them a voice in, and control over, reaching the outcomes 
that help them achieve wellbeing. 

• Prevention and early intervention – increasing preventative services 
within the community to minimise the escalation of critical need. 

• Well-being – supporting people to achieve their own wellbeing and 
measuring the success of care and support. 

• Co-production – encouraging individuals to become more involved in the 
design and delivery of services. 

 
Additional Learning Needs and Education Tribunal (Wales) Act 2018 

The act provides a unified legislative framework to support all children of compulsory 
school age or below with additional learning needs. The act focuses on: 
 
 

• An integrated, collaborative process of assessment, planning and monitoring 
that facilitates early, timely and effective intervention. 

• A fair and transparent system for providing information and advice, and for 
resolving concerns and appeals. 

 
Learning Disability – Improving Lives Programme 2018 

A single cross-cutting strategy to inform all decision-making and to provide a 
framework for improving the lives of people with LD.  The programme focuses on the 
strategies and evidence to improve five priority areas and address inequalities where 
they exist. The priority areas include: 

 

• Early years and children 
• Housing 
• Social care 

• Health and well-being 
• Skills, education and employment 

 

  

Tudalen 427



120 

 

APPENDIX 8B 

LEARNING DISABILITIES: Current Care and Support Provision 

A range of care and support services are in place across the region to support adults 

with LD to live fulfilled lives within the community.  

1. ‘A Change in Approach’: Coproduction and Involvement 

Following the 2015 PNA particular focus has been placed on developing an ethos of 

co-production. The support and care services have aimed to include people with LD in 

all aspect of the care and support delivery plans in West Wales. The focus on co-

production has led to the presence of service users on committees such as the RILP 

and the formulation of the ‘Dream Team’ and production of the West Wales LD 

Charter. 

 

DREAM TEAM 
The Dream Team is a collaboration of people and members from the 

Pembrokeshire and Carmarthenshire People First charities, together with 

representatives from Ceredigion. The members of the Dream Team consist of 

citizens with first-hand expereince of living with a LD. The Dream Team are a 

group of individuals with an LD who advise care providers and the local 

authorities on what really matters, to hold the services to account and to ensure 

that the care and support needs that matter most to people with LD are being 

met. 

LD Charter (https://www.ldcharter.com/) 
Over the past 5 years, the LD community in Carmarthenshire, Pembrokeshire and 

Ceredigion have worked together to develop a Charter – a simple list of things they 

expect, and need, to live fulfilling lives.  

“The West Wales LD Charter brings together our rights, our needs, and our wants, in  

a simple document aimed at everyone in our community. “It covers crucial areas like support, 

health and relationships, and brings them all together in a document anyone can – and should – 

sign up to. “I wasn’t sure about using the words “we demand” – but we do! It’s only fair that  

we demand to be treated like everyone else, to have a social life, to do things that fulfil us,  

and to be treated with dignity and respect.”  
             James Dash, Co-Chair of the Learning Disability Programme Group 

The West Wales LD Charter has been developed with support from the Welsh 

Government’s Intermediate Care Fund, the West Wales Care Partnership, and 

Pembrokeshire College. It is supported by the County Councils of Carmarthenshire, 

Ceredigion and Pembrokeshire, and the Hywel Dda University Health Board. The Charter 

has been developed and led by the Dream Team, people with LD’s, and not 

professionals, social services or even charities. The Dream Team are also involved in 

holding people to account. They visit businesses and organisations to get them to sign 

up – and checking that they really do follow through on their commitments.   

The LD charter underpins all the future planning and provision for LD services in West 

Wales and has been designed by people with LD for people with LD. 

 

 

Tudalen 428



121 

 

 

2. Current work and important initiatives in the West Wales Region 

In combination with the LD charter and co-production approach, several other 

initiatives have been put into action. These projects have had capital investment and 

are all designed to address the varying gaps and needs outlined by the previous PNA. 

The key to these initiatives is to ensure that citizen’s voices are heard/listened to and 

ensure citizens can access the right information, when it is needed, in the way they 

want it and use this to manage and improve their well-being. 

 

2.1 Health check champions 

PwLD supporting their peers to access Annual Health Checks thereby, reducing 

prevalent health inequalities.  

 

2.2 Tech apps 

Co-producing accessible digital solutions to paper-based systems such as Health 

Passports and Care Plans and access to other on-line support, such as travel 

information.  

 

2.3 Repatriation and Progression project 

A virtual team reviewing residential care placements to develop appropriate 
alternatives to long-term institutional care in -line with individual assessed needs.  
 
2.4 Regional LD Employment and training project 
Support to address limited opportunities for people with LD to engage in volunteering 
or paid work as identified in the LD Strategies across the region, by scaling-up a 
successful pilot in Pembrokeshire.  
 
2.5 Exercise buddies 
Increasing the health and well-being of adults with a learning disability and their 
parents/carers, by developing a range of supported exercise and activity groups.  
 
2.6 Supported accommodation 
Improving access to supported accommodation through improved policies, systems, 
processes and engagement with Registered Social Landlord (RSL) partners. 
 
2.7 Transformation of day opportunities 
An engagement programme to develop a future model of day opportunities. Aimed at 
transforming day opportunities by developing alternative delivery models and piloting 
of new ways of working. 
 
2.8 Prime of our lives 
Developing partnerships, disseminating information, sharing experiences, providing 
mechanisms to ensure that the voices of older people with learning disabilities are 
heard and responded to. 
 
 
  

Tudalen 429



122 

 

2.9 Carms PBIS 
Local services that support PwLD and their families, to reduce reported incidents of 
challenging behaviour, number of placement breakdowns and high cost of out of 
county placements. 
 
2.10 LD Innovation Fund 
Opportunities to test alternative service delivery models to support and empower 
those with learning disabilities by piloting innovative and co-produced services that 
meet gaps in provision.  
  

3. Hywel Dda UHB Support and Care Services 

Across Hywel Dda UHB there are a arrange of services and specialists that help to care 

and support people with LD, these include: Consultant psychiatry, psychology, 

community nursing, Speech and Language Therapy, Occupational Therapy and 

Physiotherapy. In addition, there are several services specifically available to the LD 

community across the Hywel Dda UHB to help ensure people with LD have access to 

the services and care they need and minimise any health inequalities. These include: 

3.1 Community Team Learning Disability (CTLD) service 

There are four Community Team Learning Disability (CTLD) services across the Hywel 

Dda area. The teams work together and are made up of learning disability nurses; 

occupational therapists; physiotherapists; speech and language therapists; 

psychologists; psychiatrists; behaviour practitioners; and social workers. The teams 

also work in the community supporting primary care, GPs and private providers, 

including clients in supported living and residential units, while also supporting 

individuals living on their own.  The teams also support carers, families, and day 

services. 

 

3.2 Learning Disability Health Liaison Service for adults and children 

The Learning Disability Health Liaison Service is for adults and children with learning 

disabilities who are having or due to have hospital treatment and may need advice 

and support. 

• Provides training to staff about the needs of people with LD. 

• Provides advice about following the LD pathway and using the ‘Care Bundle’ 

• Liaise with the hospital staff to ensure that reasonable adjustments are in 

place 

• Provide advice and support to individuals and their carers during their 

hospital admission 

• Provide support to ease communication between the patient, carers, and 

hospital staff 

 

3.3 PMLD/Complex Health Needs Clinic 

A new clinic due to be commissioned. The PMLD/complex health needs clinic aims to 

ensure that people with profound and multiple learning disabilities have access to 

consistent high-quality health support from the Learning Disabilities Service. 

Individuals are identified by members of the CTLD and referred to the PMLD Pathway.  

Aims and objectives of the clinic are: 

• Identify individuals who require multiple specialist LD health professionals.  

Tudalen 430

https://hduhb.nhs.wales/healthcare/services-and-teams/learning-disabilities-service/#collapsex8E6AA72D2


123 

 

• Complete coordinated assessments and reviews in clinic setting 

• Complete MDT care plan to meet complex needs and share with 

SU/carers/families 

• Identify interventions required and training needs for carers/families 

• Signpost to other professionals as required 

 

3.4 Learning Disability Intensive Support Team (LDIST) 

The Learning Disability Intensive Support Team (LDIST) is a pilot scheme. The LDIST 

consists of LD and MH nurses and health care support workers to provide intensive or 

additional support for adults with LD during a time of need. Support is available for a 

limited period to help manage or overcome a certain issue, problem or change. The 

support may include advice over the telephone, individually, in groups, by 

observational methods, assessments, via direct support, short term treatment, training 

to carers or through meetings. The LDIST work closely alongside CLDT and provide 

support that requires an increased level of input for a short and focused amount of 

time. The LDIST is community based, supporting people with LD/ their families or their 

care providers where they ordinarily live to continue delivery of care over the longer 

term.  

 
 

  

The specific care and support options do vary across the different LA, with 

specifics available from: Carmarthenshire family information service, 

Pembrokeshire People First and Ceredigion Community Team for Learning 

Disability. 

Tudalen 431



124 

 

APPENDIX 8C 

LEARNING DISABILITIES: Additional Data 

Current data (Feb 2021) from the Department of Works and Pensions indicate that 
the number of families claiming financial support on behalf of a child or young person 
(aged 0 to 16), in terms of Disabilities Living Allowance (DLA), is 1,199 (202 in 
Ceredigion, 460 in Pembrokeshire and 533 in Carmarthenshire). Despite the prediction 
of the numbers of Children and Young people with LD remaining constant, West Wales 
has seen a steady increase in the number of people claiming DLA over the last 5 years 
(see figure 38).  
 

 

Figure 35: Projection of number of children and young people with moderate LD  

across the LA in West Wales [Projection based on models provided by Social  

Care Wales Population Projection Profile, www.daffodilcymru.org.uk] 

 

 

Figure 36: Number of children or young people (aged 0-16)  

entitled to Disability Living Allowance in West Wales  

[data collected from the department of works and pension, https://stat-xplore.dwp.gov.uk] 

  

Tudalen 432

http://www.daffodilcymru.org.uk/


125 

 

APPENDIX 9A 

AUTISM: Current Legislation and Regulations 

As an alternative to a separate Autism Bill, The Welsh Government developed a Code 

of Practice for Autism which highlights and reinforces existing duties of the Social 

Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014 and the NHS (Wales) Act 2006 in respect of 

Autistic people, which can be found here: 

https://gov.wales/code-practice-delivery-autism-services-0   

In 2019 the Welsh Government published a refresh to the original action plan 

published in 2008, which can be found here: 

https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-03/refreshed-autistic-

spectrum-disorder-strategic-action-plan.pdf 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Tudalen 433

https://gov.wales/code-practice-delivery-autism-services-0
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-03/refreshed-autistic-spectrum-disorder-strategic-action-plan.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-03/refreshed-autistic-spectrum-disorder-strategic-action-plan.pdf


126 

 

APPENDIX 9B 

AUTISM: Current Care and Support Provision 

In March 2016, as part of the refreshed Autistic Spectrum Disorder Strategic Action 

Plan the Welsh Government announced that it would be funding a new national 

Integrated Autism Service (IAS), information on which can be found here: 

https://autismwales.org/en/integrated-autism-service/  

The service was developed across Wales following consultation with autistic people, 

carers and professionals which highlighted the lack of support available for autistic 

people who did not meet the criteria for mental health and learning disability services.   

The West Wales Integrated Autism Service (WWIAS) established in 2019 and is a joint 

service delivered by Hywel Dda University Health Board in partnership with the local 

authorities of West Wales.   

It offers diagnostic assessment for adults who do not have a significant learning 

disability or mental health problem and a range of support for autistic people, their 

families, including unpaid carers and advice for professionals.  Further information can 

be found here: https://fis.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/disability-autism/autism/  

 

  

Tudalen 434

https://autismwales.org/en/integrated-autism-service/
https://fis.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/disability-autism/autism/


127 

 

APPENDIX 9C 

AUTISM: Additional Data 

The availability of data specific to autism spectrum disorders is limited, as its collation 

and disaggregation is in the early stages. As and when data is available, it will be 

added to the chapter. 

 

 

  

Tudalen 435



128 

 

APPENDIX 10A 

CHILDREN and YOUNG PEOPLE: Current Legislation and Regulations 

The is a range of legislation, policies and guidance relating to children, which include 

the following:  

 

The Children Act 1989 (as amended):  

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1989/41  

The essentials of this piece of legislation are – 

• To allow children to be healthy. 
• Allowing children to remain safe in their environments. 
• Helping children to enjoy life. 
• Assist children in their quest to succeed. 

• Making a positive contribution – to the lives of children. 
• Achieving economic stability for our children’s futures. 
 

The Children and Social Work Act 2017: 

 https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2017/16/contents/enacted  

This Act intends to improve support for looked after children and care leavers, as well 

as promoting the welfare and safeguarding of children. It sets out corporate parenting 

principles for the local authority to be the ‘best parent it can be’ to children who are 

in its care. Local authorities are, under this Act, obliged to publish their support offer 

to care leavers and promote any educational attainment of children who have been 

adopted or placed in long-term care arrangements. 

 

Keeping Children Safe in Education 2021:  

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attach

ment_data/file/1021914/KCSIE_2021_September_guidance.pdf  

This document outlines statutory guidance for keeping children safe in schools and 

colleges. It is an update from the 2016 document. It is organised into five parts: 

• Safeguarding information for all staff  
• Management of safeguarding 
• Safer recruitment 
• Allegations of abuse made against teachers and other staff 
• Child-on-child sexual violence and sexual harassment 

 

The Education Act 2002: https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2002/32/contents  

The Education Act 2002 places a duty on educational settings such as schools and 

colleges to ensure that the safeguarding and welfare of children is paramount to the 

way in which their setting functions. Specific duties are placed on local education 

authorities and governing bodies under Section 175 of the Act, which maintains that: 

• The local education authority must make arrangements for ensuring that their 
responsibilities in terms of safeguarding are exercised so that children are 
safe and that their welfare is promoted. 

Tudalen 436

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1989/41
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2017/16/contents/enacted
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1021914/KCSIE_2021_September_guidance.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1021914/KCSIE_2021_September_guidance.pdf
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2002/32/contents


129 

 

• The governing body of a school should make arrangements to ensure that 
their functions concerning the school’s conduct are exercised with a view of 
safeguarding and promoting the welfare of children who attend the school. 

• The governing body of a school should ensure that staff receive adequate 
training related to the safeguarding and promotion of the welfare of children. 

 

The Equality Act 2010: https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2010/15/contents  

The Equality Act 2010 aims to protect people or groups of people who have one or 

more ‘protected characteristics. These protected characteristics are features of 

people’s lives upon which discrimination, in the UK is now illegal. The protected 

characteristics listed in the Act are: 

• Age 

• Disability 
• Sexual orientation 
• Sex 
• Gender reassignment 
• Marriage and civil partnership 

• Pregnancy and maternity 
• Race 
• Religion and belief 

 

The Children and Families Act 2014:  

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2014/6/contents/enacted  

This Act aims to ensure that greater protection is available for children who have been 

classed as vulnerable. It includes children who may be in foster care and those who 

are looked after or have additional needs. The Act also ensures that an Education, 

Health and Care Plan is produced for any child who has been identified as having 

additional needs. 

 

The Human Rights Act 1999:  

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1998/42/contents  

Human rights within the United Kingdom are protected by the Human Rights Act 1998, 

which means that if an individual believes that their human rights have been breached, 

they can take action against this in a court of law. Examples of rights that are 

contained within the Act, known as ‘Articles’ are: 

 

• The right to freedom from torture and inhumane or degrading treatment or 
punishment 

• The right to liberty and security 
• The right to freedom of thought, conscience and religion 

• The right to freedom of expression 
• The right of access to an education 

 

 

 

Tudalen 437

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2010/15/contents
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/equality-act-2010/what-equality-act
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2014/6/contents/enacted
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1998/42/contents


130 

 

APPENDIX 10B 

CHILDREN and YOUNG PEOPLE: Current Care and Support Provision 

Children and young people will have a range of care and support needs depending on 

their personal circumstances. Broadly speaking, this range will encompass: 

• Universal needs - for example, information and advice, low level family 
support, preventative services such as health visiting, early ante-natal 
provision, dietetic support and advice, childcare and careers advice 

 
• Additional needs and early intervention - such as improvement support for 

families, youth engagement, supporting young people into education and 
training, education inclusion and welfare 

 
• Multiple needs requiring coordinated multi-agency support to support children 

and families to address complex and/ or entrenched needs 
 
• Need for remedial intervention to support children at risk 

 

Figure 37: Needs of Children, Young People and Families 

 

 

  

Tudalen 438



131 

 

APPENDIX 10C 

CHILDREN and YOUNG PEOPLE: Additional Data 

When developing the chapter, some data was awaiting release, such as that from the 

2021 Census and some data had not been gathered during the pandemic to the level 

required. In some instances, data has been difficult to source, such as that on the 

impact of adverse childhood experiences (ACEs). As and when data is available, it will 

be added to the chapter including that for: 

• Levels of and impact of deprivation 
• Numbers in receipt of free school meals  

• Levels of attainment 
• Numbers receiving support from emotional and wellbeing services (Mental 

Health)  
• Numbers and outcomes for care leavers  
• Numbers of children in foster care 
• Impact of ACES 

 

  

Tudalen 439



132 

 

APPENDIX 11A 

MENTAL HEALTH:  Current Legislation and Regulations 

There are many policies in Wales supporting how people with mental health issues 

live their lives. Specific acts and programmes that are aimed at people with mental 

health issues include: 

 

Together for Mental Health: A Strategy for Mental Health and Wellbeing in 

Wales  

The Welsh strategy is outlined in Together for Mental Health: A Strategy for Mental 
Health and Wellbeing in Wales. Together for Mental Health sets out the ambitions for 
improving mental health in Wales and sets out the vision for 21st century mental 
health services. This is the first mental health strategy for Wales to cover all ages; 
previously there have been separate strategies for children, adults and older people, 
but feedback has suggested that transition between services can break down, so 
combining the age groups aims to eliminate boundaries. A New Mental Health 
Partnership Board (NPB) is being established to oversee delivery of the strategy. 
 
The Together for Mental Health Delivery Plan 

The Together for Mental Health Delivery Plan 2019-2022 was produced as part of 

Welsh Governments strategy to improve mental health and wellbeing in Wales. In 

response to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Together for Mental Health Delivery Plan 

2019-2022 was reviewed in 2020. The aim of the review was for the Welsh 

Government and partners to respond to the impacts of COVID-19 to ensure that the 

people of Wales have access to appropriate mental health support during the 

pandemic.  

 

 

  

Tudalen 440

https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2020-10/review-of-the-together-for-mental-health-delivery-plan-20192022-in-response-to-covid-19_0.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2020-10/review-of-the-together-for-mental-health-delivery-plan-20192022-in-response-to-covid-19_0.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2020-10/review-of-the-together-for-mental-health-delivery-plan-20192022-in-response-to-covid-19_0.pdf


133 

 

APPENDIX 11B 

MENTAL HEALTH:  Current Care and Support Provision 

Care and support provision 

Since 2010 and the introduction of the Mental Health (Wales) Measure, the majority 

of mental health cases are treated at the primary care level. This is to promote early 

intervention, to reduce the likelihood of their condition deteriorating and needing 

further secondary mental health services. 

 

Current support services 

Care, services and support needs for people with mental health issues in West Wales 

are coordinated by Local Primary Mental Health Support Services (LPMHSS) and 

Community Mental Health Teams (CMHTs).   

 
Local Primary Mental Health Support Services and Community Mental 

Health Teams 

The introduction of Local Primary Mental Health Support Services (LPMHSS) aimed to 

increase the availability and uptake of mental health services at the primary care level, 

as well as improving integration of services, and working with GPs and practice staff 

to provide support and training. 

 

Community Mental Health Teams (CMHTs) in West Wales are a partnership between 

Hywel Dda University Health Board and Social Services and provide the point of referral 

for those requiring access to secondary mental health services. CMHTs have a duty to 

assess anyone experiencing mental health issues which are affecting their ability to 

lead their life.  

 

Third Sector 

The health board and local authorities continue to commission a range of third sector 

organisations to support people with mental health issues such as advocacy services, 

information and advice, activities, healthy lifestyles and a range of supported 

accommodation and tenancy related support services. 

 

Mind is a mental health charity that operates throughout West Wales. They provide 

advice and support to empower anyone experiencing a mental health problem. They 

also campaign to improve services, raise awareness and promote understanding. Mind 

services operating in West Wales are Pembrokeshire Mind, Carmarthenshire Mind and 

Mind Aberystwyth. 

  

Other third sector organisations operating in West Wales include Hafal, which works 

with individuals recovering from mental health problems, with a special emphasis on 

those with serious mental illness, and FRAME, which provides around 80 people a 

week the opportunity practice work and train new skills. 

Tudalen 441

https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-03/the-mental-health-wales-measure-2010.pdf


134 

 

 

West Wales Action for Mental Health (WWAMH) is a mental health development 

organisation in West Wales. It provides a range of services to voluntary groups, carers 

and individuals who require support around mental health in the West Wales region 

and seeks to improve the services and opportunities available to people with mental 

health problems, their families and carers. 

 

Twilight Sanctuaries 

Twilight sanctuaries are part of the service provided by Mind. They are designed to 

offer support to people at risk of deteriorating mental health outside of normal office 

hours. Currently in West Wales, there are twilight sanctuary services in Llanelli and 

Haverfordwest, with plans for 3rd Twilight sanctuary to be implemented in Ceredigion 

soon. This will mean a twilight sanctuary in each of the three local authority areas by 

December.  

 

  

Tudalen 442



135 

 

APPENDIX 11C 

MENTAL HEALTH:  Additional Data 

 

 
 

Figure 26: sCAMHS pathways waiting time for first appointment (up to 4 weeks, compared to over 4 
weeks) in Wales.  

 

Figure 41 below shows the percentage of people aged 16+ years free from common 

mental disorders in each of the counties compared to Wales and West Wales. The 

prevalence of common mental disorders is around 16% in each of the local authorities 

and in Wales according to the data, with slightly lower prevalence in West Wales than 

in Wales as a whole. [7] 

 

 
Figure 38: Percentage of people aged 16+ years free from common mental disorders  

in West Wales local authorities compared to Wales and West Wales as a whole, 2020 

 

A
u

gu
st

 2
0

1
9

 

Se
p

te
m

b
er

 2
0

1
9

 

O
ct

o
b

er
 2

0
1

9
 

N
o

ve
m

b
er

 2
0

1
9

 

D
ec

em
b

er
 2

0
1

9
 

Ja
n

u
ar

y 
2

0
2

0
 

Fe
b

ru
ar

y 
2

0
2

0
 

M
ar

ch
 2

0
2

0
 

A
p

ri
l 2

0
2

0
 

M
ay

 2
0

2
0

 

Ju
n

e 
2

0
2

0
 

Ju
ly

 2
0

2
0

 

A
u

gu
st

 2
0

2
0

 

Se
p

te
m

b
er

 2
0

2
0

 

O
ct

o
b

er
 2

0
2

0
 

N
o

ve
m

b
er

 2
0

2
0

 

D
ec

em
b

er
 2

0
2

0
 

Ja
n

u
ar

y 
2

0
2

1
 

Fe
b

ru
ar

y 
2

0
2

1
 

M
ar

ch
 2

0
2

1
 

A
p

ri
l 2

0
2

1
 

M
ay

 2
0

2
1

 

Ju
n

e 
2

0
2

1
 

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

Up to 4 weeks Over 4 weeks 

84.21 84.15 83.91 84.05 83.54

Ceredigion Pembrokeshire Carmarthenshire Hywel Dda Wales

0.0

10.0

20.0

30.0

40.0

50.0

60.0

70.0

80.0

90.0

100.0

% of people aged 16+ years free from common 
mental disorder 2020

Tudalen 443



136 

 

The total number of section 135 and 136 detentions in Wales have fluctuated from 

2019 to 2021 (figure 42), ranging from a high of 633 per quarter in June 2019 to a 

low of 360 per quarter in June 2020. Detentions in West Wales have ranged from a 

high of 76 per quarter in September 2019 to a low of 41 per quarter in June 2020. 

Overall, the total 

detentions in Wales 

seems to have 

decreased slightly 

over the past two 

years, whereas rates 

in West Wales have 

remained around the 

same.  

 
 

 

Figure 39: Section 135 

and 136 detentions in 

Wales and West Wales by 

quarter 

 

The total patients in mental health hospitals and units with a mental illness have 

decreased in both Wales and West Wales from 2009 to 2019, although since 2013, 

this figure has remained relatively stable in West Wales, at around 110 to 125 patients 

(Figure 43). [7] 

 

 
Figure 40: Patients in mental health hospitals and units in Wales with a mental illness 

 

Deprivation of Liberty Safeguard (DoLS) Requests  

The total number DoLS requests from 2017 to 2020 is shown in figure 44 below, for 

each local authority. The total number of requests has increased in both 

Carmarthenshire and Pembrokeshire since 2017, while remaining at around the same 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

1800

2000
W

es
t 

W
al

es

W
al

es

Wales West Wales

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

Jun-19 Sep-19 Dec-19 Mar-20 Jun-20 Sep-20 Dec-20 Mar-21

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

W
es

t 
W

al
es

W
al

es

Wales West Wales

Tudalen 444



137 

 

level in Ceredigion (Figure 1.2) [8]. The main group of individuals with DoLS 

applications were older people, with 87% of applications made against someone over 

the age of 65 in 2019-20. Overall, the total number of DoLS requests has been 

increasing in West Wales, from 598 in 2017-18 to 832 in 2019-20. 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 41: Deprivation 

of liberty safeguard 

requests received by  

each local authority 

from 2017 to 2020 [8] 

 

 

 

Total Suicides in West Wales 

Tudalen 445



138 

 

Figure 45 shows the total 

number of suicides in 

Wales and the three local 

authorities from 2013 to 

2020. Roughly 250 to 400 

people in Wales commit 

suicide each year. In 

West Wales this has 

fluctuated from around 

25 to 60 people each 

year. [9] 
 

Figure 42: Yearly deaths due 

to suicide in local authorities 

and Wales, 2013 - 2020 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

450

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

W
al

es

Lo
ca

l A
u

th
o

ri
ti

es

Deaths due to Suicide

Carmarthenshire Pembrokeshire Ceredigion

West Wales Wales

Tudalen 446



139 

 

APPENDIX 12A 

HEALTH and PHYSICAL DISABILITIES: Current Legislation and 

Regulations 

The following Acts contain provisions which support independent living:  

The ‘Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014’ provides the statutory 

framework to deliver the Welsh Government’s commitment to transform social services 

in Wales to improve the well-being of people who need care and support and carers 

who need support. The Act sets out a definition of well-being for people who need 

care and support. Everyone, adult or child, has the right to be heard; to shape the 

decisions that affect them’ and to have control over their day-to-day lives. The code 

of practice in relation to Part 2 of the Act provides guidance to local authorities on 

their duties in this regard. This code of practice requires local authorities, when 

exercising social services functions in relation to disabled people who need care and 

support and disabled carers who need support, to have due regard to the UN 

Convention on the Rights of Disabled Persons.  

The Act also extends the eligibility and accessibility of Direct Payments, which provide 

an important mechanism by which people can exercise choice, voice and control to 

decide how to meet their needs for care and support and achieve their personal 

wellbeing outcomes. The ‘Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015’ sets out 

seven well-being goals - for national government, local government, local health 

boards and other specified public bodies. It also specifies the ways in which these 

bodies must work, and work together, to improve the well-being of Wales. This 

includes the five ‘ways of working’ to guide the Welsh public services in delivering for 

people. 

The ‘Housing (Wales) Act 2014’ includes provisions aimed at modernising and 

improving conditions in the private rented housing sector and for improving the 

practices of landlords and letting agents. Private landlords are now required to register 

and where they are carrying out lettings or property management work to become 

licensed, or to appoint licensed agents to carry out such work. As well as being 

required to be licensed, agents are required to be registered. It is intended this will 

improve standards of letting and management practice in the private rented sector.  

The ‘Renting Homes (Wales) Act 2016’ provides a simplified legal framework for 

renting based on two types of occupation contract, which will replace most existing 

tenancy arrangements. This will apply to social housing provided by local authorities 

and housing associations and to rentals from private landlords. Model written 

statements of contract will be provided. This will make it is easier for disabled and 

non-disabled people to understand their rights and responsibilities. In addition, the 

Act provides a new form of occupation contract for any person who occupies premises 

in conjunction with the provision of particular support services, including supporting 

people who require additional assistance to achieve independent living for example 

because of cognitive or intellectual impairments. Additionally, the Act will extend 

succession rights to carers, for which current housing legislation makes no provision. 

Tudalen 447



140 

 

action-on-disability-the-right-to-independent-living-framework-and-action-plan.pdf 

(gov.wales)  

Strategic Equality Plan 2016 (gov.wales) 

The Renting Homes (Wales) Act 2016  

http://senedd.assembly.wales/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=12055  

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2016/1/contents/enacted  

well-being-of-future-generations-wales-act-2015-the-essentials.pdf (gov.wales)  

social-services-and-well-being-wales-act-2014-the-essentials.pdf (gov.wales) 

The Housing (Wales) Act 2014  

http://senedd.assembly.wales/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=8220  

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2014/7/contents/enacted    

 

  

Tudalen 448

https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-09/action-on-disability-the-right-to-independent-living-framework-and-action-plan.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-09/action-on-disability-the-right-to-independent-living-framework-and-action-plan.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-03/equality-plan-and-objectives-2016-2020.pdf
http://senedd.assembly.wales/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=12055
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2016/1/contents/enacted
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-08/well-being-of-future-generations-wales-act-2015-the-essentials.pdf#:~:text=The%20Well-being%20of%20Future%20Generations%20%28Wales%29%20Act%20is,prevent%20problems%20and%20take%20a%20more%20joined-up%20approach.
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-05/social-services-and-well-being-wales-act-2014-the-essentials.pdf
http://senedd.assembly.wales/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=8220
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2014/7/contents/enacted


141 

 

APPENDIX 12B 

HEALTH and PHYSICAL DISABILITIES: Current Care and Support 

Provision 

People with health conditions and/or physical disabilities will have a range of care and 

support needs depending on their personal circumstances. Broadly speaking, this 

range will encompass: 

 

• Universal needs - for example, information and advice, low level support, 

preventative services, such as dietetic support and advice. 

 

• Multiple and complex needs requiring coordinated multi-agency support to 

address and manage specific issues. 

 

The Welsh Government’s Framework for Action on Independent Living, published in  

2013, set out actions to promote an inclusive and enabling society, to ensure people 

of all ages and from all communities can maintain independent living, enjoy well-being 

and access appropriate support when and how they need it. 

Wherever possible we will seek to “co-produce” services in West Wales. That is, we 

will work with stakeholders including disabled people to design, deliver and evaluate 

new initiatives. 

 

  

Tudalen 449

https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-09/easy-read-action-on-disability-the-right-to-independent-living-framework-and-action-plan.pdf


142 

 

APPENDIX 12C 

HEALTH and PHYSICAL DISABILITIES: Additional Data 

Claiming Support 
The main types of benefit available for people between the ages of 18-64 living with 

a serious illness or disability are disability living allowance and personal independent 

payment. There are over 22,000 people who are entitled to Personal Independence 

Payment (PIP) in the Hywel Dda University Health Board. Over 10,000 people are 

entitled to Disability Living Allowance (DLA) in the West Wales area and over 13,500 

people entitled to Attendance Allowance (AA).  

Figure 43: Number of people entitled to Personal Independence Payments and  

Disability Living Allowance in the West Wales area 

Limiting Long-term Illness 
A long-term health problem or disability that limits a person's day-to-day activities, 

and has lasted, or is expected to last, at least 12 months also includes problems that 

are related to old age. Data from the 2011 census highlighted that Carmarthenshire 

had the highest percentage of people whose day to day activities were limited (25.4%) 

or limited a lot (13.6%), followed by Pembrokeshire (22.5% and 11.1% respectively) 

and then Ceredigion (21.1% and 10% respectively). 

As can be seen in the figure below the percentage of those who are EA core or work 

limited disabled are mainly higher in females than males, except in Pembrokeshire 

where males (23.4%) are higher than females (22.4%). Percentages are higher overall 

in Carmarthenshire (28.4%) for both males and females. 

 
Figure 44: HDdUHB population and Limiting Long-term Illness and limiting disability 

Tudalen 450



143 

 

APPENDIX 13A 

SENSORY IMPAIRMENT: Current Legislation and Regulations 

There are many policies, acts and programmes in Wales supporting how people with 

sensory impairment live their lives including:  

 

1: The All-Wales Standards for Accessible Communication and 

Information for People with Sensory Loss [8] 

The All-Wales Standards for Accessible Communication and Information for People 

with Sensory Loss were published in 2013 by NHS Wales. The purpose of the standards 

is to ensure that the communication and information needs of people with sensory 

impairment are met when accessing healthcare services. 

Welsh Government. Available at 

https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-04/all-wales-standards-for-

accessible-communication-and-information-for-people-with-sensory-loss-large-

print_0.pdf. 

2: Support for Children and Young People with Multi-Sensory 

Impairment in Educational Settings [9] 

The Support for Children and Young People with Multi-Sensory Impairment in 

Educational Settings guide was produced by the Welsh Government in 2019 to provide 

a summary of evidence about the effectiveness of different educational approaches 

for supporting young people and children with multi-sensory 

impairment/deafblindness from a commissioned rapid evidence assessment (REA). 

Welsh Government. Available at 

https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-12/191209-support-for-

children-and-young-people-with-multi-sensory-impairment-in-educational-

settings.pdf 

 

  

Tudalen 451

https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-04/all-wales-standards-for-accessible-communication-and-information-for-people-with-sensory-loss-large-print_0.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-04/all-wales-standards-for-accessible-communication-and-information-for-people-with-sensory-loss-large-print_0.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-04/all-wales-standards-for-accessible-communication-and-information-for-people-with-sensory-loss-large-print_0.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-12/191209-support-for-children-and-young-people-with-multi-sensory-impairment-in-educational-settings.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-12/191209-support-for-children-and-young-people-with-multi-sensory-impairment-in-educational-settings.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-12/191209-support-for-children-and-young-people-with-multi-sensory-impairment-in-educational-settings.pdf


144 

 

APPENDIX 13B 

SENSORY IMPAIRMENT: Current Care and Support Provision 

The following support services are available in West Wales: 

• Eye Clinic Liaison Officers (ECLOs) are in hospitals and provide support to help 

link visually impaired patients to the correct services and help navigate the 

complexity of possible treatments and services. 

• Specialist Rehabilitation Officers are located within social care and help to 

support people who have lost or are losing their sight. Rehabilitation officers 

can help patients experiencing visual impairment to maintain independence, 

regain lost skills or build confidence. They can also assist with mobility 

training, which can help an individual to regain their confidence in going 

outdoors safely and independently. 

• Specialist Services such as mobility and communication equipment and 

services including braille and lip-reading services where appropriate 

The following third sector organisations also offer support: 

• Royal National Institute for Deaf People (RNID) is a charity that operates 

across the UK and works to make life fully inclusive for deaf people and those 

with hearing loss or tinnitus. 

• The Royal National Institute of Blind People (RNIB) is a charity that operates 

across the UK and works on behalf of more than 111,000 people in Wales 

living with sight loss. 

• Wales Council of the Blind (WCB) is an umbrella agency that represents vision 

impairment within Wales, and works to campaign, lobby and support the 

improvement of services for people with sight loss. 

• Wales Council for Deaf People (WCDP) are an umbrella association of both 

voluntary and statutory organisations providing support for people who deaf, 

deafened, hard of hearing or deafblind in Wales. 

• Deafblind UK currently supports people with dual sensory impairment in 

England, Wales and Northern Ireland. 

 

  

Tudalen 452



145 

 

APPENDIX 13C 

SENSORY IMPAIRMENT: Additional Data 

Sight Loss 

 

Sight loss affects people of all ages, but especially the elder population, with one in 

five people over the age of 75, and one in two people over the age of 90, living with 

sight loss. Nearly two thirds of people with sight loss are women. Adults with learning 

disabilities are ten times as likely to be blind or partially sighted than the general 

population. [2] 

 

The following table provides the figures on the number of people registered as partially 

sighted or blind in each county. 

 

 Carmarthenshire Ceredigion Pembrokeshire 

Number of people 

registered as partially 

sighted or blind (2018/19) 

 

987 

 

308 

 

644 

 

Table 7: Number of people registered as partially sighted or blind in local authorities [3] 

 

As can be seen in figure 1.1 below the number of people with visual impairment in the 

three local authorities is predicted to rise towards 2043. This mirrors the national 

projections [4]. 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 45: Projected number of people with visual impairment  

in Wales and Local Authorities, 2020 – 2043 

 

 

 

 

 

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000

120,000

140,000

160,000

2
0

2
0

2
0

2
1

2
0

2
2

2
0

2
3

2
0

2
4

2
0

2
5

2
0

2
6

2
0

2
7

2
0

2
8

2
0

2
9

2
0

3
0

2
0

3
1

2
0

3
2

2
0

3
3

2
0

3
4

2
0

3
5

2
0

3
6

2
0

3
7

2
0

3
8

2
0

3
9

2
0

4
0

2
0

4
1

2
0

4
2

2
0

4
3

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

Projected number of people with visual 
impairment in Wales and LAs

Carmarthenshire Pembrokeshire Ceredigion Wales

Tudalen 453



146 

 

Carmarthenshire 

 

 2020 2043 

0-19 73 71 

20-64 1238 1201 

65-74 1581 1704 

75+ 4349 7007 

Total 7241 9982 
Table 8: Predicted number of people with visual impairment in Carmarthenshire  

in 2020 and 2043 by age group 

 

Pembrokeshire 

 

 2020 2043 

0-19 47 42 

20-64 820 767 

65-74 1143 1211 

75+ 3380 5889 

Total 5390 7909 
Table 9: Predicted number of people with visual impairment in Pembrokeshire  

in 2020 and 2043 by age group 

 

Ceredigion 

 

 2020 2043 

0-19 28 25 

20-64 453 382 

65-74 642 626 

75+ 1919 2986 

Total 3040 4019 
Table 10: Predicted number of people with visual impairment  

in Ceredigion in 2020 and 2043 by age group 

 

As can be seen in the tables above, it is projected that the increase in overall numbers 

of visually impaired in the population is solely seen in older people, with little or no 

projected change in people under 75. This can be explained by the growing population 

of this age group.   Sight loss is also closely linked with certain medical factors, such 

as diabetes and obesity – both of which are increasing in the UK. 

 

Hearing Loss 

 

As seen in figure 1.2 below, the total number of adults with hearing impairment is 

projected to increase in all local authorities, and Wales in general from 2020 to 2043. 

These projected increases are most likely related to the general ageing population, 

and the fact that hearing impairment is far more common in the older population.  

 

Tudalen 454



147 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 46: Projected change in adults 18+ with hearing impairment,  

in Wales and West Wales Local Authorities 2020 – 2043 

 

Carmarthenshire 

 

 2020 2043 

18-60 8106 7660 

61-80 21666 25598 

81+ 10666 17623 

Total 40438 50882 
Table 11: Current and predicted number of adults with hearing impairment  

in Carmarthenshire by age group 

 

Pembrokeshire 

 

 2020 2043 

18-60 5320 4845 

61-80 15544 18356 

81+ 8268 14659 

Total 29133 37861 
Table 12: Current and predicted number of adults  

in Pembrokeshire with hearing impairment by age group 

 

Ceredigion 

 

 2020 2043 

18-60 2879 2329 

61-80 8730 9338 

81+ 4684 7371 

Total 16293 19039 
Table 13: Current and predicted number of adults  

in Ceredigion with hearing impairment by age group  

0

100,000

200,000

300,000

400,000

500,000

600,000

700,000

800,000

900,000

2020 2022 2024 2026 2028 2030 2032 2034 2036 2038 2040 2042

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000

70,000

W
al

es

Lo
ca

l A
u

th
o

ri
ti

es

Carmarthenshire Pembrokeshire Ceredigion Wales

Tudalen 455



148 

 

 

From the data it is predicted that there will be a marked increase in those with sensory 

impairment towards 2043. This increase in only observed in the elderly population, 

with a projected decrease in those with hearing impairment in the 16-60 age bracket 

across all three local authorities.  

 

Dual Sensory Loss 

 

In the UK today, there are an estimated 394,000 people with some degree of sight 

and hearing loss, approximately 60% of which are over 70 [5]. As people live longer, 

it is estimated that incidence of acquired deafblindness will increase, leading to the 

total number of people living with deafblindness reaching 600,000 by 2030 [5]. In a 

study carried out by Centre for Disability Research (CeDR) it was estimated that 

0.031% of children and young people up to the age of 19 in the UK have co-occurring 

vision and hearing impairments. 

 

  

Tudalen 456



149 

 

APPENDIX 14A 

SUBSTANCE MISUSE:  Current Legislation and Regulations 

Wales is fortunate to have a strong legislative framework in the Wellbeing of Future 
Generations (Wales) Act, the Social Services and Wellbeing Act and the 
Public Health (Wales) Act that ensures organisations across health, social care and 
communities work together to improve the health and wellbeing of the population. 

The strong strategic links between the Future Generations Act, the Substance Misuse 
Strategy for Wales and the Wales Reducing Reoffending framework, Integrated 
Offender Management and Prolific and Priority Offender strategies has seen criminal 
justice services in Wales aligned to become increasingly more involved in deliverables 
for the whole country.   

Service providers must demonstrate they will be able to work within the principles of 
an Integrated Offender Management (IOM) approach, including the proactive sharing 
of non – clinical information and intelligence with Police, Probation, YOPs, Prisons and 
other locally identified criminal justice and generic service partners in order to reduce 
criminal activity by individuals dependent on drugs and/or alcohol. 

In April 2018, Welsh Government and Her Majesty’s Prison and Probation Service in 
Wales were commissioned with Youth Justice Board Cymru to develop two new 
Blueprints for the delivery of justice services in a way that reflects the delivery 
landscape, in Wales; one to address offending by women and the other for youth 
justice.   

 There has been considerable work undertaken since then to develop Blueprints that 
include several ambitious and innovative recommendations for women and youth 
justice services.  

• Youth Justice 

https://gov.wales/supporting-young-offenders  

https://llyw.cymru/cefnogi-troseddwyr-ifanc   

• Female Offending 

https://gov.wales/supporting-female-offenders  

https://llyw.cymru/cefnogi-troseddwyr-benywaidd  

 

The Police and Crime Commissioner, within his Police and Crime Plan 2017-2021, 
indicated his commitment to tackling substance misuse within his key priorities: 

Keeping our communities safe 

• Reduce the impact and harm caused to communities through substance 

misuse by commissioning services to support individuals to become less 

dependent on substances  

Protecting our communities from serious threats 

Tudalen 457

https://gov.wales/supporting-young-offenders
https://llyw.cymru/cefnogi-troseddwyr-ifanc
https://gov.wales/supporting-female-offenders
https://llyw.cymru/cefnogi-troseddwyr-benywaidd


150 

 

• Educate young people on the dangers of using substances, including the 

potential links to organised crime activity that might lead them to a lifestyle 

of exploitation 

• Identify and dismantle the threat posed by OCGs and work with others to 

disrupt OG activity in particular the trafficking and supply of Class A drugs  

A recently commissioned needs assessment for victims and vulnerable people 
delivered for the Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC), included the following 
recommendation:  

The PCC is recommended to work with Area Planning Boards (APBs) and health boards 
to develop a single Dyfed-Powys approach.  

Key considerations include: 

a. Ensuring greater equity and consistency in delivery across the region. 

b. Maintaining best practice approaches such as the prison link workers and 

integration wherever possible into generic substance and alcohol misuse services.  

c. Gaining the benefits of scale to achieve greater value for money.  

This recommendation aligns with the PCC’s intentions that the direction of travel for 
provision of substance misuse services be considered as a holistic provision not just 
for residents of Dyfed Powys but across the whole of Wales, ensuring equity of access 
and consistency of quality support services. To this end, the current contract proposes 
short-term break clauses to allow strategic developments at a Dyfed Powys and All 
Wales level in the immediate future.   

Providers are expected to implement and develop a service model that takes account 
of the above and a range of other local strategies and guidance and any successor 
policies and guidance. 

 

 

 

 

  

Tudalen 458



151 

 

APPENDIX 14B 

SUBSTANCE MISUSE:  Current Care and Support Provision 

Prevention: Whole Population and Targeted Interventions 

Whole Population Prevention: 

There is no locally co-ordinated campaign that addresses whole population prevention. 

Key messages need to be developed to respond to trends of use emerging for different 

age groups and showing evidence of harm. 

Screening and Brief Interventions in primary care: 

The evidence base clearly states that this should be in place across primary care 

settings for all patients or as a minimum those at risk. There is currently no co-

ordinated programme of screening in place within primary care  

Treatment and Recovery 

Access, treatment models, age appropriateness of treatment: 

There is evidence that older (40/50 plus) substance users are reluctant to seek support 

from traditional services, because of the model of service provision and concerns over 

stigma at accessing a drug and alcohol service. We need to think differently about 

what services are offered (not just for this age group), across the health system and 

in different settings, to avoid this stigma. 

Psychology and psychological support for older adults with alcohol dependence 

issues. 

Dual Diagnosis psychology/psychological support: 

Gap in provision for those who don’t have Serious Mental Illness but suffering from 

significant other mental health issues as well as issues with drugs, alcohol, and other 

lifestyle behaviours 

Prescribing Capacity: 

Rapid access to prescribing is a protective factor against drug related deaths. Same 

day prescribing models are in place in other parts of the country, longer waits are in 

place locally with Carmarthenshire having the third highest drug related deaths in 

Wales. Local model reliant on GP capacity for prescribing 

Service User Involvement: 

Good local service involvement but little involvement of service users within planning 

process 

Harm Reduction Learning and Implementation: 

Review of alcohol deaths as well as drug deaths needed, and we need to establish 

non-fatal reviews 

Housing: 

Tudalen 459



152 

 

Fundamental to an individual’s ability to recover. Limited options available locally and 

housing reallocation policies often detrimental to recovery 

The West Wales Region’s current response to the Welsh Government Delivery Plan 

2019-2022 is outlined below: 

 

Welsh Government Delivery Plan 

2019-22 

Key Aim and Outcome 

Local Action 

Key Aim 1 Preventing Harm 

Outcome 1 People are able to make informed 

choices in order to prevent and reduce the harm 

associated with substance misuse 

Development of specific campaigns targeted at 

older populations 

Cross partnership Prevention Summit to be held 

in 2019, to explore the approach across the 

board to Prevention 

Prevention and Community asset-based 

development role established to lead on 

resilience-based model development, community 

co-production work and model implementation 

Key Aim 1 Preventing Harm 

Outcome 2 Drug and Alcohol Issues are 

identified and tackled early 

Screening and brief intervention primary care 

pilot to be implemented, one in each county. 

The health coach model is an umbrella term 

used to describe may different interventions that 

“coach” or actively support people to self-care.  

It uses behavioural change techniques and has 

good evidence of impact 

Key Aim 2 Support for substance misusers to 

improve their health and maintain recovery 

Outcome 3 The physical health and wellbeing 

of people with substance misuse issues are 

improved and related inequalities are minimised 

Service Development Manager to be appointed 

to lead on service user involvement model, co-

occurring service developments, case review co-

ordination and further develop models of service 

provision. 

Housing – Contribution to Supported Housing 

Dry House project to ensure continuation of 

service and increase bed capacity. 

Alcohol Psychologist to be appointed to sit 

within the hospital Alcohol Liaison Service. 

Advance Nurse Prescribing model to be 

developed 

Key Aim 2 Support for substance misusers to 

improve their health and maintain recovery 

Outcome 4 People with substance misuse 

issues have the skills, resilience and 

opportunities to gain and maintain economic 

independence and the negative impact of 

substance misuse on the Welsh economy is 

minimised 

Local work to be scoped out in 2020/21 

 

Tudalen 460



153 

 

Key Aim 2 Support for substance misusers to 

improve their health and maintain recovery 

Outcome 5 People with substance misuse 

issues participate in culturally diverse activities 

including the arts, sports and recreation 

Local work to be scoped out in 2020/21 

 

Key Aim 2 Support for substance misusers to 

improve their health and maintain recovery 

Outcome 6 Everyone affected by drug or 

alcohol issues are treated with dignity, fairness 

and respect 

Media Strategy to be developed 

Community Resilience building models to be 

explored 

Key Aim 2 Support for substance misusers to 

improve their health and maintain recovery 

Outcome 7 Everyone affected by drug and 

alcohol misuse can access timely, evidence 

based. Safe and effective quality services 

New service contracts to include requirement to 

work out of hours 

Key Aim 3 Supporting and protecting families 

Outcome 8 Social exclusion as a result of drug 

and alcohol misuse is minimised 

Local work to be scoped out in 2020/21 

Key Aim 3 Supporting and protecting families 

Outcome 9 The harms of drug and alcohol 

misuse are reduced for children and families 

A cross partnership “prevention summit” to be 

held in 2019 to explore the approach across the 

board to “prevention” including community, 

family and individual resilience building, ACES, 

County Lines and Safeguarding. 

Key Aim 3 Supporting and protecting families 

Outcome 10 Outcomes for children and 

families on the edge of care are improved 

Specialist CAMHS Early Intervention Psychologist 

for Drug and Alcohol Use to be appointed 

Expansion to Specialist CAMHS Substance 

Misuse Co-occurring service to ensure targeted 

and earlier intervention 

Key Aim 4 Tackling availability and protecting 

individuals via enforcement activity 

Outcome 11 People are/ feel safer in relation 

to crime 

Work collaboratively with Dyfed Powys Police 

and Police and Crime Commissioner via the APB 

to address alcohol and drug related crime, 

including County Lines 

Key Aim 4 Tackling availability and protecting 

individuals via enforcement activity 

Outcome 12 Welsh speakers and their families 

to receive support through their own language 

Local work to be scoped out in 2020/21 

Key Aim 5 Partnerships, workforce and Service 

User Involvement 

Outcome 13 Area Planning Boards are fit for 

the future 

Development of more formal cross partnership 

interfaces between partnership lead officers and 

Partnership Boards 

 

Key Aim 5 Partnerships, workforce and Service 

User Involvement 

Outcome 14 The drug and alcohol workforce is 

skilled and informed 

Continue to ensure training needs of service 

staff are considered  

 

Tudalen 461



154 

 

Key Aim 5 Partnerships, workforce and Service 

User Involvement 

Outcome 15 Service user involvement to be 

embedded into delivery and planning of services 

Establish and implement a local Service User 

involvement framework 

 

 

Table 14: West Wales’ response to the Welsh Government Delivery Plan 2019-2022 

  

Tudalen 462



155 

 

APPENDIX 14C 

SUBSTANCE MISUSE:  Additional Data 

According to Public Health Wales, (2019) 2018 saw the highest recorded drugs related 

deaths for Wales but 2019 saw significant decreases in both drug poisoning deaths 

(down 26% on 2018) and drug misuse deaths (down 21% on 2018). Drug related 

deaths have increased in Hywel Dda over the last few years. There were 17 deaths in 

2018, 18 deaths in 2019 and a significant rise in 2020 with 29 drug related deaths.  

 

 
Figure 47: Number of drug related deaths in Hywel Dda by year (2018-2020) 

 

The proportion of female deaths has increased since 2018. In 2018, there were a total 

of 17 drug related deaths, 3 of which were female. This accounts for 17.6% of all 

deaths. In 2019, there was a slight rise to 4 female deaths of the total 18 deaths, 

resulting in an increase in proportion to 22.2%. The trend not only continued in 2020 

but appears to accelerate as of the total 29 drug related deaths, 10 were female. This 

accounts for 34.4% of all drug related deaths in 2020, almost double the proportion 

from 2018. 

2018 2019 2020

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

Total drug related deaths

Tudalen 463



156 

 

   

Figure 48: Comparison charts to show the changes over time in the gender  

of drug related deaths in Hywel Dda (2018-2020) 

There is a trend developing with a noticeable increase over the three years of deaths 

in the 40-49-year-old and over 50-year-old age brackets. Although it is too early to 

determine if this is a sustained trend, it is clear that this is an issue that requires 

attention. In 2018 there were 6 deaths in people age 40 to 49 years of age but this 

has increased to 10 (2019) and 12 (2020), double the proportion from 2018. Although 

deaths in over 50s are small in number, the proportional jump is dramatic, rising from 

1 death in 2018 and 2 in 2019 to 5 in 2020. It is unclear whether these deaths are 

related to conditions resultant to long term drug misuse or specific acute incidents. 

The impact of COVID is also unknown. DPP evidence around drugs being accessed via 

the dark web. 

 

 

Figure 49: Age distribution of drug related deaths in Hywel Dda 2018-2020 

In 2018 there were 9 deaths in Carmarthenshire, 3 in Ceredigion and 5 in 

Pembrokeshire. In 2019, the number of deaths in Carmarthenshire reduced to 6 whilst 

2018 2019 2020

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

< 20 years old 20-29 years old 30-39 years old 40-49 years old Over 50 years old

Tudalen 464



157 

 

Ceredigion experienced an increase to 7. Pembrokeshire remained static at 5 deaths. 

However, in 2020 the trend of increasing drug related deaths in evident with 8 in 

Ceredigion, 10 in Carmarthen and 11 in Pembrokeshire. DPP evidence around drugs 

being accessed via the dark web. 

 

     
 

 
 

 
Figure 50: Geographical spread of drug related deaths in Hywel Dda 2018-2020 

 

  

DEATHS IN 2018

Carmarthenshire

Ceredigion

Pembrokeshire

DEATHS IN 2019

Carmarthenshire

Ceredigion

Pembrokeshire

DEATHS IN 2020

Carmarthenshire

Ceredigion

Pembrokeshire

Tudalen 465



158 

 

APPENDIX 15A 

VAWDASV:  Current Legislation and Regulations 

As required by the VAWDASV Act, the Welsh Government published its five-year 
national strategy in 2016. This was followed by publication of its national delivery 
framework and in 2019, the Welsh Government published national indicators for 
measuring progress against the Act.[10] The Welsh Government has published a 
number of guidance documents and national standards to help deliver commitments 
within its five-year strategy including: 

• Whole Education Approach to Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse and 

Sexual Violence in Wales Good Practice Guide 

• Violence Against Women Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence – Guidance for 

Governors 

• National Advisers Annual Plan [4] 

• Information and guidance on domestic abuse and sexual violence: 

Safeguarding older people (60+) in Wales 

• National Training Framework Statutory Guidance 

• Ask and Act Training Guidance 

• Local Strategies Statutory Guidance 

• Commissioning Violence against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence 

Services Statutory Guidance 

National Standards for working with Perpetrators 

  

Tudalen 466



159 

 

APPENDIX 15B 

VAWDASV:  Current Care and Support Provision 

Development of an integrated outcomes framework agreed by all commissioners to 

ensure consistent, meaningful, and comparative reporting. 

• Adopting commissioning models that allow for flexibility and development to 

meet changing needs rather than prescriptive funding that limits creativity / 

innovation and results in services that are restricted in the services they can 

provide. 

• Providing stability to the sector in terms of the duration of the contract(s) and 

funding for the lifetime of the contract for Domestic Abuse, Sexual Violence 

and Violence against Women services. 

• Development of a service model whereby any eligibility criteria associated with 

accessing service provision is based solely on a need to access rather than a 

level of risk, complexity, or the availability of services. 

 

  

Tudalen 467



160 

 

APPENDIX 15C 

VAWDASV:  Additional Data 

The availability of data specific to is limited. As and when data is available, it will be 

added to the chapter. 

Domestic abuse victim characteristics, England and Wales: year ending March 2021 

[9] 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 468


	Agenda
	3 LLOFNODI FEL COFNOD CYWIR GOFNODION CYFARFOD Y CABINET A GYNHALWYD AR 3YDD HYDREF 2022.
	6 CYNLLUN CARBON SERO NET - ADRODDIAD CYNNYDDA
	Adroddiad
	Progress against Actions
	Progress against Actions
	Progress against Actions
	Progress against Actions
	Progress against Actions
	Progress against Actions
	Progress against Actions
	Progress against Actions


	7 ADRODDIAD BLYNYDDOL CYFARWYDDWR STATUDOL Y GWASANAETHAU CYMDEITHASOL 2021/22
	Adroddiad

	8 CYMERADWYO STRATEGAETH DEMENTIA PARTNERIAETH GOFAL GORLLEWIN CYMRU
	Atodiad 1
	Atodiad 2

	9 ASESIAD POBLOGAETH AC ADRODDIAD YNGHYLCH SEFYDLOGRWYDD Y FARCHNAD PARTNERIAETH GOFAL GORLLEWIN CYMRU
	Atodiad A
	Atodiad B
	Atodiad C
	Atodiad D




